
 

 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2015, 8:30 AM 

2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN HALL 
455 MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO 

AGENDA  
 Time Min Presenter Type  

1.  8:30    Call to Order 

2.  8:30 5   Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

3.  8:35 5 
Kennefick 

Reed 
Action 

Consent Agenda 
All matters in the consent agenda are considered to be 
routine by the Town Council and will be enacted with a 
single vote.  There will be no separate discussion of these 
items.  If discussion is deemed necessary, that item should 
be removed from the Consent agenda and considered 
separately: 
  a.  Consideration of Approval of Minutes of the January 15,  
       2015 Regular Town Council Meeting  
  b.  Consideration of Approval of Minutes of the January 20, 
       2015 Town Council-Staff Work Session 
  c.  Consideration of a Resolution Ratifying Council  
       Approval of an Agreement to Convey a Portion of Lot  
       1003R-1, the Medical Center Site, to the Telluride  
       Hospital District 
  d.  Consideration of a Resolution Ratifying Council  
       Approval of an Agreement to sell a Portion of Lot  
       1003R-1, the Lofts at Mountain Village Site, to Belem 
       Properties, Co. LLC for Purposes of Developing Work  
       Force Housing 

4. 8
:
4
0 

8:40 10 Kennefick Action 

Liquor Licensing Authority: 
  a.  Consideration of an Application by Telski Food &  
       Beverage Services, LLC DBA Tomboy Tavern for a  
       Modification of Premises on the H&R Liquor License   
       March 27-29, 2015 for Mountain Town Get Down, a 
       Special Event in Heritage Plaza 

5.  8:50 30 
Reed 

Mahoney 
Legal 

Executive Session for the Purpose of Receiving Legal 
Advice Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for the Purpose 
of Negotiations Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)e  

6.  9:20 20    Martelon Informational Marketing Telluride Inc. (MTI) Quarterly Report 

7.  9:40 90 Hawkins Quasi- 
Judicial 

Telluride Apartments Redevelopment: 
  a.  First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council 
       Vote on an Ordinance to (1) rezone Lot 640A from the 
       Multi-family Zone District to the Full Use Active Open  
       Space Zone District; and (2) Transfer Density to 
       Increase the Permitted Density from 30 Workforce 
       (employee) apartment units to 91 workforce apartment  
       units and 2,200 square feet of commercial space on Lot  
       640A and a portion of OSP-35B 
  b.  Consideration of a Resolution Approving (1) Conditional 
       Use Permit to Allow for the Development of 91 
       Workforce Apartment Housing Units on Full Use Active 
       Open Space and on Lot 640A and a portion of OSP- 
       35B (2) a Subdivision to Create Four (4) Lots (Tracts) 

1



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING           PAGE 2 OF 2 
AGENDA FOR FEBRUARY 19, 2015                                                       

 

Please note that times are approximate and subject to change. 
2/11//2015 

jk 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting Town Hall at 970-369-6406 or email: mvclerk@mtnvillage.org.   

A minimum of 48 hours advance notice is required so arrangements can be made to locate requested auxiliary aid(s). 
 

       on Lot 640A and OSP-35B 

8.  11:10 50 Hawkins 
Kjome 

Work 
Session Meadows Improvement Plan  

9.  12:00 30   LUNCH BREAK 

10. E 12:30 15 Delves Informational Economic Development Definition Initiative (EDDI) Update 

11.  12:45 15 McKinley Action 
Consideration of Allocating up to $35,000 in Additional 
Funds for Purposes of Operating and Marketing the 
Telluride Conference Center 

12.  1:00 30 Kunz 

Informational 
Action 
Work 

Session 

Staff Reports: 
  a.  Human Resources 

1. Bi-annual Report 
2. Consideration of Approval of the 2015 Drug & 

Alcohol Policy-Safety Sensitive Employees 
3. Consideration of Approval of the 2015 Employee 

Handbook 
4. Council Compensation Discussion 

13.  1:30 30 Hawkins 
Work 

Session 

Conceptual Work Session to Discuss Conditional Use 
Permit for New Freestanding Antennas on Coonskin Ridge 
Located on OSP-49R 

14. 2 2:00 15 Pasquariello Action 
Consideration of Moving a Previously Approved Vending 
Cart (Backyard BBQ) from Sunset Plaza to Heritage Plaza  
(Item was Continued from the January Meeting) 

15.  2:15   30 Mahoney Action 

Consideration of a Resolution Approving a Second 
Amended and Restated Declaration of Condominium Hotel 
Covenants and Restrictions (Hotel Deed Restriction for 
Hotel Madeline Telluride) 

16.  2:45 15 
Swain 
Vergari 

Presentation 
Action 

 

Finance: 
a. Presentation of the January 31, 2015 Business & 

Government Activity Report (BAGAR) 
b. Consideration of the December 2014 Financials 

17.    3:00 20 Mahoney Informational Update on Ongoing Investigation and Potential Settlement 
Regarding Potential Zoning Violations at the Boulders 

18.  3:20 10 Council 
Members Informational 

Council Boards and Commissions Updates: 
a. Eco Action Partners – Howe/Sherry 
b. Telluride Historical Museum – Bronson 
c. San Miguel Watershed Coalition – Jett 
d. Colorado Flights Alliance – Jansen 
e. Plaza Use Committee – Jett 
f. Transportation & Parking - Howe/Schillaci 
g. Budget & Finance Committee – Jansen/McKinley 
h. Mayor’s Update - Jansen 

19.  3:30 10  Action 
Other Business: 

a. Consideration of a Letter of Support for Eco Action 
Partners Compost Facility Grant Application  

20.  3:40    Adjourn 
 

2



    
                                                                   Agenda # 3a 

 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 15, 2015 

REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING        
 

                             
 

 
The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Pro-Tem Cath Jett at 8:31 a.m. on Thursday, 
January 15, 2015 in the Mountain Village Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Town Hall Boulevard, Mountain 
Village, Colorado. 
 
Attendance: 
The following Town Council members were present and acting: 
Dan Jansen, Mayor 
Cath Jett, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Dave Schillaci 
John Howe  
Michelle Sherry  
Marty McKinley 
Jonette Bronson 

 
Also in attendance were: 
Kim Montgomery, Town Manager 
Jackie Kennefick, Director of Administration/Town Clerk  Aurelie Cannella 
Susan Johnston, Deputy Town Clerk     Rich Nuttall 
Nichole Zangara, Community Relations Manager   Robert Stenhammer 
Laila Benitez, Community Relations Assistant    Anton Benitez 
David Reed, Town Attorney      Eric Wells 
Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney    Steve Togni 
Chris Hawkins, Director of Community Development  Sara Larsen 
Kevin Swain, Finance Director      Lyn Gruss 
Chris Broady, Police Chief      Jeffrey Fasolo  
Sue Kunz, Human Resources Director     Jonathan Greenspan 
Corrie McMills, Human Resources Coordinator   Kim Wheels 
Steven Lehane, Director of Cable & Broadband Services  Dan Garner 
Randy Kee, Building Official      Michael Martelon 
Dawn Katz, Director of Mountain Munchkins    Douglas Tooley   
Deanna Drew, Director of Plaza & Environmental Services   Sean Stogner 
Finn Kjome, Public Works Director      Lisa Eidsmo 
Dave Bangert, Forester      Kiera Skinner 
Jodi Miller, Office Manager/Court Clerk    Dylan Henderson 
Ted Holland, MVPD Police Officer     Brian Kanaga 
Rachelle Redmond, MVPD Lieutenant    Nick Pasquariello 
Michael Hartig, MVPD Police Officer     Lisa Eisdmo 
Krysten Gottman, MVPD Police Officer    Judi Snelling 
Mark Martin, MVPD Police Officer     R. Gayle 
Ken Haynes        Tom Kennedy 
Susanne Connolly       Stephanie Fanos 
Stephen Roth        Dewitt Gayle 

3



 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 2 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  JANUARY 15, 2015 
 

 

Public Comment for Non-Agenda Items   
Public comment was received by Jeffrey Fasolo and Jonathan Greenspan.  Cath Jett directed staff to agendize 
the Boulder’s violations at the February meeting. 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the December 11, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting  
On a MOTION by John Howe and seconded by Jonette Bronson, Council voted unanimously to approve 
the December 11, 2014 Town Council meeting minutes as presented. 
 
Consideration of a Resolution Designating Posting Locations for the Town’s Ordinances and Public 
Notices  
Director of Administration/Town Clerk Jackie Kennefick presented the above item.  Council discussion 
ensued. On a MOTION by Jonette Bronson and seconded by John Howe Council voted unanimously to 
approve a Resolution designating posting locations for the Town’s Ordinances and public notices. 
 
Michelle Sherry arrived at 8:36 a.m. 
Dave Schillaci arrived at 8:40 a.m. 
Dan Jansen arrived at 8:43 a.m. 
 
Telluride Regional Airport Authority (TRAA) Bi-annual Report  
Telluride Airport Manager Rich Nuttall presented the bi-annual report.  TRAA completed a wildlife hazard 
assessment and drainage improvements in 2014 and a new de-ice pad will be added in 2015. Council 
requested a written report be included in the Town Council packet in the future. 
 
Ken Haynes of the San Miguel Power Association presented a rebate check in the amount of $12,408 to the 
Town for the LED lights retrofit project for the street lights, plaza lights, and path lights.  The check was 
accepted by Public Works Director Finn Kjome. 
 
Executive Session for the Purpose of a Personnel Matter Pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-
402((4)(f)(I)), and for Receiving Legal Advice Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for the Purpose of 
Negotiations Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)e  
On a MOTION by Dave Schillaci and seconded by Jonette Bronson, Council agreed to enter into Executive 
Session for the purpose of a personnel matter pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402((4)(f)(I)), and for receiving 
legal advice pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(b), and for the purpose of negotiations pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-
402(4)e at 8:45 a.m. 
 
Council returned to regular session at 10:05 a.m. 
 
Consideration of an Agreement to Convey a Portion of Lot 1003R-1, the Medical Center Site, to the 
Telluride Hospital District  
Mayor Jansen framed the discussion stating that a citizen’s advisory board will be involved throughout the 
development process. Tom Kennedy, Counsel for the Hospital District, thanked Council members for the 
opportunity to build the Medical Center stating that the agreement has been approved by the Hospital Board.  
Council discussion ensued. Public comment was received by DeWitt Gayle. On a MOTION by Cath Jett 
and seconded by Dave Schillaci, Council voted unanimously to approve an agreement to convey a portion of 
Lot 1003R-1, the Medical Center site to the Telluride Hospital District as presented. 
 
Consideration of an Agreement to Sell a Portion of Lot 1003R-1, the Lofts at Mountain Village Site, 
to Telluride Investments, LLC, a Colorado Limited Liability Company for Purposes of Developing 
Work Force Housing  
Mayor Jansen discussed the regional state of affordable housing.  Mountain Village challenged the developer 
community to come up with some creative and fast solutions. This project has come from that challenge.  
The developer has agreed to R-1 restrictions.  Town Attorney David Reed and the Mayor discussed that 

4



 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 3 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  JANUARY 15, 2015 
 

Council will defer the parking payment in lieu until such point where the town needs to expand the parking 
structure and the developer has accepted that deferral. When the town determines the need to expand the 
structure, the developer will be notified and will pay the full amount or set up a payment schedule.  If the 
property is sold or transferred, that obligation will carry with the property.  This is not part of today’s 
approval but rather will be implemented when the parking payment in lieu application is filed. The caveat is 
that it would not be a personal obligation but the obligation will run with the land for the 15 year sunset 
clause. Public comment was received by Human Resources Director Sue Kunz, Sean Stogner, Douglas 
Tooley, Lyn Gruss, and Steve Togni.  On a MOTION by Cath Jett and seconded by John Howe, Council 
voted unanimously to approve an agreement to sell a portion of Lot 1003R-1, the Lofts at Mountain Village 
site to Belem Properties Co., LLC, for the purposes of developing work force housing and authorize the 
Mayor to execute the Agreement on behalf of the Town. 
 
 
Liquor Licensing Authority: 

a.  Consideration of Recertification of the Mountain Village Promotional Association and  
     Common Consumption Area 

Jackie Kennefick presented the above application.  Council discussion ensued.  Police Chief Chris Broady 
stated that the use of the Common Consumption Area was successful last summer. He noted that some 
operational issues need to be addressed including: 

 The use of communication radios by security 
 Vendors ensuring an adequate number of cups are on hand 
 Location for the storage of the fencing    

Chief Broady has no concerns about approving the renewal application.  President of the Promotional 
Association (PA) Board Stephen Roth stated that the Entertainment District was a benefit to local businesses 
and that he is hoping to build on its success this year. On a MOTION by Dave Schillaci and seconded by 
Cath Jett, Council voted unanimously to approve recertification of the Mountain Village Promotional 
Association and Common Consumption Area for one year and directed staff to extend the License 
Agreement for the same. 
 
Council Boards and Commissions Updates:  

a. Eco Action Partners (EAP)– Howe/Sherry 
Michelle Sherry stated that EAP is proceeding with an LED light program called Green Lights and has 
received a $5000 grant from the Telluride Foundation for promotion of the program.   

b. Telluride Historical Museum – Bronson 
The Museum is continuing with programs featuring ski history and Telluride adventures.  Ms. Bronson stated 
that two candidates for the director’s position will be interviewed in the next two days. 

c. San Miguel Watershed Coalition – Jett 
Deanna Drew is now the Board President.  State of the Watershed Report is almost complete and should be 
out in the next quarter.  

d. Colorado Flights Alliance (CFA) – Jansen 
Mayor Jansen stated that flights are loading favorably compared to prior years.  Alegiant Air launched a 
repeat of their two for one program out of Montrose to Phoenix and Los Angeles.   TMVOA has filled their 
open Board seats with some good people and some nice cooperation with air is in the works.   

e. Plaza Use Committee – Jett 
There was no update. 

f. Transportation & Parking – Howe/Schillaci 
Mr. Howe suggested the Town consider putting a public restroom in the Meadows Parking area and Council 
was in favor.   

g. Budget & Finance Committee – Jansen/McKinley 
Mr. McKinley reinforced a conservative reserve philosophy in order to deal with any unforeseen events.    
 
Staff Reports:  

a.  Mountain Munchkins Preschool & Daycare 

5



 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 4 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  JANUARY 15, 2015 
 

Mountain Munchkins Director Dawn Katz presented her report. Ms. Katz stated that the Commission for 
Community Assistance, Arts and Special Events (CCAASE) grant was approved in the amount of $5000 
which brings the total grant money awarded for 2015 to $40,000. Council thanked Ms. Katz for her efforts 
and a very thorough report.   

 
b.  Cable & Broadband Services 

Director of Cable and Broadband Services Steven Lehane presented his report highlighting three specific 
areas.   

1. Council discussion ensued regarding the issues that occurred over the holidays with 
broadband and cell phone (especially ATT) services.  Mr. Lehane explained that data 
consumption is growing at a staggering rate as well as the number of devices being used. 
Mountain Village shares a one gigabyte pipe with the Town of Telluride.  He proposed that 
the Town of Mountain Village purchase a dedicated pipe at a cost of $85,000.  This would 
ensure much better broadband capacity. The pipe may be expanded periodically to 
accommodate growing data consumption and is expandable up to 50 gigabytes. Council 
discussed building the cost of the upgrades into the Broadband department budget annually 
so that when upgrades are needed, the funds are available.  Council directed staff to provide 
expansion information to the Budget/Finance committee to review and authorized the 
committee to make a decision.  

 
2. Discussion ensued on whether or not the Town should expand broadband services to include 

home installation (networking/printers set-up, troubleshooting, etc.).   This would entail 
hiring additional staff that would specialize in customer service. Council consensus was to 
direct staff to investigate an end to end service expansion for the Cable and Broadband 
Services Department, develop a business plan, identify the costs, and present to Council in a 
publically noticed meeting. 

 
3. Cell phone coverage (primarily AT&T) was degraded over the holiday season due to an 

increase of users. AT&T has indicated that the company is exploring installing another tower 
which would allow for more capacity.  Council discussion ensued and Mayor Jansen agreed to 
contact AT&T directly to discuss moving forward with the process as well as options for a 
tower location. 
 

c.  Town Manager 
Town Manager Kim Montgomery presented her report and announced that there was a four-way tie for the 
December Great Services Award. Jordan Houde and Patrick O’Flynn were recognized for taking on the 
responsibility of running the train on Saturday and Sunday of Holiday Prelude when the driver became sick 
and assisting the Recreation Department with shoveling the ice rink.  Corrie McMills and Michael 
Ruterbories were also recognized for helping shovel the ice rink for the figure skating performance during 
the snow storm while off duty. The Holiday Prelude and Holiday Magic were both very successful programs 
and had great turn out. Council discussion ensued. 

 
Council took a lunch break from 12:24 p.m. to 12:35 p.m. 
 
Finance:   
Finance Director Kevin Swain presented: 

a. December 31, 2014 Business & Government Activity Report (BAGAR) 
Council discussion ensued. 
Dave Schillaci returned to the meeting at 12:42 p.m. 

 
b. Consideration of the November 2014 Financials 

6



 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 5 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  JANUARY 15, 2015 
 

Council discussion ensued.  Council directed staff to begin retaining all surpluses generated in the Cable 
Fund and make the appropriate revision in the 2015 budget. On a MOTION by Cath Jett and seconded by 
John Howe, Council voted unanimously to approve the November 2014 Financials as presented. 
 
Presentation of the 2015 Telluride Conference Center Sales (TCC) and Marketing Plan  
TSG’s Vice President of Hospitality Robert Stenhammer presented the TCC Sales and Marketing Plan. He 
stated that 2014 was a rebuilding year for TCC.  The Conference Center hosted over sixty-five events in 2014 
and hired salesperson Allison Grassetti.  The focus for 2015 sales efforts include incentive business, 
association business, and continuing education The Conference Center will continue to be utilized as multi-
use community asset to provide economic stimulus. 
 
Consideration of Appointments to the Town Hall Subarea Task Force  
Director of Community Development Chris Hawkins presented the above item. Council discussion ensued. 
Public comment was received by Susanne Connolly. Council voted by paper ballot. On a MOTION by Cath 
Jett and seconded by Michelle Sherry, Council voted unanimously to appoint the following members to the 
Town Hall Subarea Task Force: 
 
Task Force Representation per Bylaws    Members    
Owner of Parcel C (Primarily Town)     Bob Delves  
   
Owner of Parcel D (Primarily TMVOA)    Pete Mitchell  
   
One at large member from Comp. Plan Task Force   Martinique Prohaska  
   
Two at large members from either the broader   Penelope Gleason 
community or adjacent property owners   Lyn Gruss    
impacted by development.     
 
Four Members Representing Adjacent Property Owner Communities     
Mountain Lodge       Steve Togni    
Lorian         Marcy Pickering    
Trails Edge        Bruce MacIntire     
Elkstone 21        Elizabeth Barth   

 
Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance to Approve:  

a. A Major PUD Amendment to: 1) Allow for the Construction of a Pool and Porte Cochere 
Addition on the West Side of Hotel Madeline on Lot OS-1A-MVB and Lot 38-50-51R; 2) 
Bring a Portion of OS-1A-MVB and Lot 38-50-51R into the PUD; and 3) Amend and Restate 
the PUD Development Agreement 

b. Rezoning a Portion of OS-1A-MVB and Lot 38-50-51R from the Full Use Active Open Space 
Zone District to the Village Center Zone District. 

Chris Hawkins presented the above matter. Assistant Town Attorney Jim Mahoney distributed a revised 
conveyance agreement noting that the Town benefits package will include only the cooling unit for the Ice 
Rink and the shade structure over the Ice Rink. The conditions of approval are: 

1. The Mayor will have the authority to review and approve the final PUD Development Agreement, 
the associated conveyance agreement and other legal instruments which may be required to be 
amended concurrently with the PUD. 

2. The zoning map shall include the following elements in the Village Center Zone District:   
structural columns, the exterior material facing, the porte cochere and pool addition air space.  
The plaza area below the porte cochere at ground level, surrounding plaza areas and the access drive 
shall remain a part of the Full Use Active Open Space Zone District. The final zoning map shall be 
created by the Town working with the applicant based on the future condominium map, with such 
final map amended into the Official Zoning Map and signed by the Mayor 

7



 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 6 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  JANUARY 15, 2015 
 

3. The PUD development agreement or a separate legal instrument shall include the pool hours. 
4. The Hotel Madeline Owner shall work with the Town to amend the applicable easements and/or 

license agreements to ensure the operation and maintenance of the sidewalks and plaza areas, 
including the proposed snowmelt system 

5. The Hotel Madeline Owner shall enter into a construction license and mitigation agreement prior to 
the construction of the porte cochere and pool addition 

6. The applicant will provide the cost estimates for replacing the panels and associated hardware to 
town staff for review and approval. 

The applicant’s architect Dylan Henderson provided details on the construction plans.  Council discussion 
ensued on various topics including the public benefit of the Ice Rink sunshade.  On a MOTION by Marty 
McKinley and seconded by Michelle Sherry, Council voted unanimously to adopt an Ordinance approving 
(1) Major PUD Amendment to (a) allow for the construction of a pool and porte cochere addition on the 
West Side of Hotel Madeline on lot OS-1-MVB and Lot 38-50-51R; (b) bring a portion of OS-1-MVB and 
Lot 38-50-51R into the PUD; and (c) Amend and restate the PUD Development Agreement; and (2) 
Rezoning a portion of OS-1-MVB and lot 38-50-51R from the Full Use Active Open Space Zone District to 
the Village Center Zone District with the above conditions. 
Council also requested that staff fully evaluate the quality of the shades, their lifespan and the costs of 
replacing the sun shade panels including the associated hardware. Additionally Council requested a 
comparison of the cost savings and other public benefits such as reducing energy use, and greenhouse gas 
reductions as a result of the shade. 

 
Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance to Amend the Community  
Development Code at Section 17.5, Design Regulations, Concerning Snowmelt Design; Section 17.7, 
Building Regulations, Concerning Snowmelt Limitations and Establishing a Smart 
Building Program with Energy Incentives and Energy Mitigation Requirements; and at Section 
17.7.20 to Establish the Maximum Time to Complete a Construction Project 
Building Official Randy Kee presented the above item stating that staff has made changes to the Ordinance 
based on previous Council input. Council discussion ensued regarding the proper motivation for 
homeowners to consider the HERS rating when building.  Kim Wheels of Eco Action Partners provided a 
formula for determining program values and Mr. Hawkins computed the incentives to homeowners if an 
owner has a HERS rating of 50.  Public comment was received by Jonathan Greenspan.   Council agreed to 
proceed with the program and observe what the percentage of participation is among homeowners once it is 
established.  On a MOTION by Cath Jett and seconded by Marty McKinley, Council voted 5-1, with Dan 
Jansen dissenting, to adopt an Ordinance  Amending the Community Development Code at Section 17.5, 
Design Regulations, Concerning Snowmelt Design; Section 17.7, Building Regulations, Concerning 
Snowmelt Limitations and Establishing a Smart Building Program with Energy Incentives and Energy 
Mitigation Requirements; and at Section 17.7.20 to Establish the Maximum Time to Complete a 
Construction Project as presented.  
 
Police Department:  
Mayor Dan Jansen performed the following: 

a.  Swearing in of New Police Officer Krysten Gottman 
b.  Re-affirm Oath of Office for Police Officers 

 
On a MOTION by Marty McKinley and seconded by John Howe, Council voted unanimously to extend the 
meeting beyond 6 hours. 
 
Dave Schillaci left the meeting at 3:02 p.m. 
 
Other Business:  

a. Consideration of Support for Submitting a Letter of Intent for the 2017 American 
Planning Association State Conference  

8



 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 7 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  JANUARY 15, 2015 
 

Kim Montgomery presented the above.  Council discussion ensued. On MOTION by John Howe and 
seconded by Dave Schillaci, Council voted unanimously to authorize the Mayor to sign the above letter. 

b. Consideration of  Moving a Previously Approved Vending Cart (Backyard BBQ) from 
Sunset Plaza to Heritage Plaza  

Director of Plaza & Environmental Services Deanna Drew presented the above item explaining that Nick 
Pasquariello, who owns the Backyard BBQ vending cart, has asked Council to consider allowing the cart to 
relocate to Heritage Plaza for the remainder of the 2014-15 ski season due to several issues: 

 Lack of pedestrian traffic at his current location in Sunset Plaza 
 The BBQ Cart is not advertised on the directories 
 Sunset Plaza is not a winter lunch destination Plaza 
 Sunset Plaza is not heated and requires snow shoveling 
 Cart is required to be removed each night.  

Council discussion ensued.  On a MOTION by John Howe and seconded by Michelle Sherry, Council 
voted 3-3 (with Marty McKinley, Jonette Bronson & Cath Jett dissenting) to allow Backyard BBQ to move 
to Heritage Plaza with the location to be determined by staff and for the remainder of the 2015 season. 
David Reed explained that in the case of a tie vote, the item will be continued to the February 19th Town 
Council meeting.  Council directed staff in the meantime to move the vendor to a more visible location on 
Sunset Plaza and allow for a sandwich board to be utilized with a three month exception for extenuating 
circumstances. Additional signage for Sunset Plaza vendors was also discussed.  
 

            c.   Other      
There was no other business.  
 
There being no further business, on a MOTION by John Howe and seconded by Cath Jett, Council 
unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting at 3:57 p.m.  
  
Respectfully prepared,      Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
 
Susan Johnston      Jackie Kennefick 
Deputy Town Clerk      Town Clerk 

9



 Agenda Item # 3b    
 

 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 20, 2015 

TOWN COUNCIL- STAFF WORK SESSION 
 

                         DRAFT       
 

 
The meeting of the Town Council was called to order at 1:00 p.m. at the Meadows Post Office site and 2:09 
p.m. in Council Chambers on Tuesday, January 20, 2015 in the Mountain Village Town Hall, 455 Mountain 
Village Town Hall Boulevard, Mountain Village, Colorado. 
 
Attendance: 
The following Town Council members were present and acting: 
Dave Schillaci  
John Howe  
Michelle Sherry  
Marty McKinley (meeting only) 
 
The following Town Council members were absent: 
Dan Jansen, Mayor 
Cath Jett, Mayor Pro Tem 
Jonette Bronson 

 
Also in attendance were: 
 
Kim Montgomery, Town Manager 
Jackie Kennefick, Director of Administration/Town Clerk   
Susan Johnston, Deputy Town Clerk        
David Reed, Town Attorney           
Chris Hawkins, Director of Community Development 
Finn Kjome, Public Works Director 
Chris Colter, Director of Transit & Recreation 
Chris Broady, Police Chief 
Jolana Vanek 
Richard Thorpe 
Jeffrey Fasolo  
 
Michelle Sherry was appointed chair and called the meeting to order at 2:09 p.m.   
 
Site Walk of Meadows Area Affected by Proposed Improvement Plan- Meet at Meadows Post Office 
Attendees: Kim Montgomery, Jackie Kennefick, Susan Johnston, Chris Hawkins, Finn Kjome, Chris Colter, 
Chris Broady, Jolana Vanek, Richard Thorpe, Jeffrey Fasolo. 
 
Council-Staff Work Session to Discuss the Meadows Improvement Plan 
Director of Community Development Chris Hawkins opened the discussion stating that the purpose of the 
meeting is to evaluate the Meadows area improvements list.  The list will be evaluated annually for 
prioritization in the budget process.  Extensive Council discussion ensued. The following direction was given 
to staff regarding specific improvement sections in the Meadows: 

10



 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE  PAGE 2 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  JANUARY 20, 2015 
 

 
For the Meadows Parking Lot Park shown in Section 7 

 Provide landscape buffer and fence improvements to keep children in the park. 
 Keep the option to expand the Park adjacent to the Meadows Parking Lot pending future 

TSG approval. 
 
For the Meadows Parking Lot shown in Section 7 

 Add temporary bathroom by post office 
 Look at new Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) ramp parallel to post office that is 

perpendicular to Northstar driveway versus curved ADA access 
 
For Section 5, New Walkway from pedestrian bridge to Northstar access driveway 

 Break out the costs of the ADA accessible walk, new stairs and new sidewalk along north side 
of the North Star Driveway 

 Ensure sidewalk connects to sidewalk along Adams Ranch Road to create walking loop in the 
Meadows 

 Add sidewalk connecting to Northstar from proposed sidewalk 
 
For Section 4, Sidewalk from Fairway Four to Adams Ranch Road Intersection by Big Billies 

 Majority of Council members indicated sidewalk should be on east side of Adams Ranch 
Road to intersection with North Star driveway/Adams Ranch Road then cross to the north 
side of the street across from Spring Creek preceding to the Adams Ranch Road by Big Billies 

 Explore methods to allow for Aspen regeneration in snow storage area for Big Billies 
 Improve the visibility of the current Adams Ranch Road intersection by Big Billies 

 
For Section 6, Big Billies Chondola Connection 

 Establish new pedestrian path on south side of Big Billies along Prospect Creek concurrent 
with the future redevelopment of the property 

 Consider installing lighting along the current pedestrian path 
 Consider installing new sidewalk connection to existing sidewalks on north side of Big Billies 

on the west side of the breezeway access drive 
 
Section 9, Pocket Park 

 Reach out to Parker Ridge as part of Meadows Improvement Plan process 
 

Final plan needs to: 
 Have a Comprehensive Plan-like document with verbiage and details 
 Map out all  improvements in final plan 
 Ensure it is a living document that is considered as a part of the annual budget process 
 Include a goal to create an overall landscaping plan for the Meadows 

 
Marty McKinley left the meeting at 2:44 p.m. 

  
There being no further business, on a MOTION by Michelle Sherry and seconded by John Howe, Council 
unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting at 3:20 p.m.  
  
Respectfully prepared,      Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
 
Susan Johnston      Jackie Kennefick 
Deputy Town Clerk      Town Clerk 

11



# 3c 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF  
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 

RATIFYING COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT TO CONVEY A PORTION 
OF LOT 1003R-1, THE MEDICAL CENTER SITE, TO THE TELLURIDE HOSPITAL 

DISTRICT FOR THE NEW TELLURIDE MEDICAL CENTER 
 

NO. 2015-02-____ 
 

 RECITALS:  
 

A. The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”) is a Home Rule Municipality pursuant 
to Article XX of the Constitution of the State of Colorado; and   
 

B. The Town of Mountain Village Town Council (the “Town Council”), at the January 
15, 2015 Regular Town Council Meeting, approved a Land Acquisition and 
Conveyance Agreement to covey a Portion of Lot 1003R-1, the Medical Center Site, 
to the Telluride Hospital District, a political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the 
“District”), and authorized the Mayor to execute such agreement; and  

 
C. Article XI Section 11.5 of the Town Charter holds that the Town, by ordinance or 

resolution of the Town Council, may sell or dispose of municipally owned buildings 
or real property in use for public purposes without first obtaining the approval of the 
majority of its electorate.    

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The Town Council, in accordance with the provisions of the Town Charter, hereby 
ratifies and affirms the January 23, 2015 Land Acquisition and Conveyance Agreement to 
convey a Portion of Lot 1003R-1, the Medical Center Site, to the District for the new Telluride 
Medical Center, and further authorizes the execution of all documents in connection therewith.   
  
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Town Council, at a regular meeting held on the 
19th day of February, 2015. 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN COUNCIL 
 
By:________________________________________ 

 Dan Jansen, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
By:__________________________________ 
     Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      J. David Reed, Town Attorney 

12



# 3d 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF  
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO 

RATIFYING COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT TO SELL A PORTION OF 
LOT 1003R-1, THE LOFTS AT MOUNTAIN VILLAGE SITE, TO BELEM 

PROPERTIES CO. LLC FOR PURPOSES OF DEVELOPING WORKFORCE 
HOUSING 

 
NO. 2015-02-____ 

 
RECITALS: 

 
A. The Town of Mountain Village (the “Town”) is a Home Rule Municipality pursuant 

to Article XX of the Constitution of the State of Colorado; and   
 

B. The Town of Mountain Village Town Council (the “Town Council”), at the January 
15, 2015 Regular Town Council Meeting, approved an Agreement to Sell a Portion of 
Lot 1003R-1, the Lofts at Mountain Village Site, to Belem Properties Co. LLC, a 
Colorado limited liability company (“Belem”), and authorized the Mayor to execute 
such agreement; and  

 
C. Article XI Section 11.5 of the Town Charter holds that the Town, by ordinance or 

resolution of the Town Council, may sell or dispose of municipally owned buildings 
or real property in use for public purposes without first obtaining the approval of the 
majority of its electorate.    

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The Town Council, in accordance with the provisions of the Town Charter, hereby 
ratifies and affirms the January 15, 2015 Agreement to Sell a Portion of Lot 1003R-1, the Lofts 
at Mountain Village Site, to Belem for purposes of developing workforce housing, and further 
authorizes the execution of all documents in connection therewith.  
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Town Council, at a regular meeting held on the 
19th day of February, 2015. 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN COUNCIL 
 
By:________________________________________ 

 Dan Jansen, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
By:__________________________________ 
     Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      J. David Reed, Town Attorney 

13



 

 

 

 

  1 

 

     AGENDA  ITEM  # 4 

Date: February 12, 2015 
To: Town Council, Acting as the Liquor Licensing Authority 
From: Jackie Kennefick, Director of Administration/Town Clerk  
RE: February 19, 2015 Considerations of the Liquor Licensing Authority 

Consideration of an Application by Telski Food & Beverage Services, LLC, DBA Tomboy 
Tavern for a Modification of Premises Permit on the Hotel &Restaurant Liquor License  for 
Mountain Town Get Down, a Special Event in Heritage Plaza on March 27-29, 2015 

 
All required documentation and fees have been received and found to be in compliance.  TSG is 
requesting approval to modify the Tomboy Tavern’s Hotel &Restaurant liquor license for the 
second annual Mountain Town Get Down special event in Heritage Plaza on March 27-29, 2015. 
Police Chief Chris Broady has reviewed the application and any areas of concern have been 
adequately addressed by TSG staff. A Special Events Permit application for the overall event has 
been submitted and is under review by staff.   
 
Staff recommendation:  Motion to approve application by Telski Food & Beverage Services, 
LLC, DBA Tomboy Tavern for a Modification of Premises Permit on the Hotel &Restaurant Liquor 
License for the Mountain Town Get Down special event in Heritage Plaza on March 27-29, 2015.   
 
 
 

14



- , 
TEL L URI D El~ 

CULINARY SERVICES , 
565 MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BOULEVARD, TELLURIDE, CO 81435 

970.728.7314 

January 15, 2015 

Town Council 
Town of Mountain Village Ref. Application for Temporary Modification of Premises 

Telluride Food and Beverage LLC is requesting approval to modify the liquor license number 40 919590D1 
for the dates of March 27 - 29,2015 to repeat the popular 2014 event, "Telluride's Mountain Town Get 
Down" to be held in the Heritage Plaza of the Mountain Village Core. The modification of liquor license 
will primarily be used on Saturday, March 28, 2014, however set-up and tear-down are scheduled for 
Friday, March 27 and Sunday, March 29. These dates have been included in the application in order to 
cover alternate dates of artist availability. 

Telluride's Mountain Town Get Down highlights free live music in Mountain Village's Hertiage Plaza. 
Musicians would perform from approximately 12 p.m. to 8 p.m. We are currently planning on two main 
bands to play on Saturday, March 28th

. Both bands will showcase music free of charge to the pUblic. 

Telluride Ski Resort would like to position two temporary bars in the the fenced-in concert venue area. 
The bars would be accessible for adults 21 years of age and older, offering alcoholic beverages for 
purchase. Only TIPs or SERVSAFE certified bartenders will be tending the bars. 

This event id being produced once again to enhance the vitaility of Mountain Village during spring ski 
season and help end the ski season on a high note. 

We would like to thank the town of Mountain Village and the State of Colorado for reviewing this 
application, and respectfully request its approval. 

Thank you for your consideration . 

~ =r:tJ!>b 
Stephen Roth 
Executive Director of Culinary Services 

-, 
TELLURIDE'" 

CULINARY SERVICES 

I 
565 MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BOULEVARD, TELLURIDE, CO 81435 

970.728.7314 

January 15, 2015 

Town Council 

Town of Mountain Village Ref. Application for Temporary Modification of Premises 

Telluride Food and Beverage LLC is requesting approval to modify the liquor license number 40 91959001 

for the dates of March 27 - 29, 2015 to repeat the popular 2014 event, ''Telluride's Mountain Town Get 
Down" to be held in the Heritage Plaza of the Mountain Village Core. The modification of liquor license 
will primarily be used on Saturday, March 28, 2014, however set-up and tear-down are scheduled for 

Friday, March 27 and Sunday, March 29. These dates have been induded in the application in order to 

cover alternate dates of artist availability. 

Telluride's Mountain Town Get Down highlights free live music in Mountain Village's Hertiage Plaza. 

Musicians would perform from approximately 12 p.m. to 8 p.m. We are currently planning on two main 
bands to play on Saturday, March 28th

. Both bands wilt showcase music free of charge to the public. 

Telluride Ski Resort would like to position two temporary bars in the the fenced-in concert venue area. 
The bars would be accessible for adults 21 years of age and older, offering alcoholic beverages for 
purchase. Only TIPs or SERVSAFE certified bartenders will be tending the bars. 

This event id being produced once again to enhance the vitaility of Mountain Village dunng spring ski 
season and help end the ski season on a high note. 

We would like to thank the town of Mountain Village and the State of Colorado for reviewing this 
application, and respectfully request its approval. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

s?? ttf!7b 
Stephen Roth 

Executive Director of Culinary Services 

15



January 16, 2015 

Colorado Department of Revenue 

Liquor Enforcement Division 

Denver, CO 81435 

To State of Colorado Liquor Enforcement Division: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAI N VILLAGE 
455 Mountain Village Blvd. Suite A 
Mountain Village, Co 81435 
970-728-8000 
970-728-4342 Fax 
mvclerk@mtnvillage.org 

The Town of Mountain Village authorizes use of the Town owned plaza space pursuant to the 

Temporary Modification of Premises Permit Application by Telski Food & Beverage Services DBA 

Tomboy Tavern on Friday March 2ih thru Sunday, March 29th, 2015 for an event named "Telluride's 

Mountain Town Get Down." 

This letter serves to show that Tomboy Tavern has possession of the space for the event. Please 

. contact Town Clerk Jackie Kennefick at 970-369-6406 should you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

- {'--
v 

Kim Montgomery 

Town Manager 

Kim Montgomery 
2015.01.21 10:00:14 -01'00' 

january 16, 2015 

Colorado Department of Revenue 

liquor Enforcement Division 

Denver, CO 81435 

To State of Colorado liquor Enforcement Division: 

TOWN OF MO UNTAIN VILLAGE 
455 Mountain village Blvd. Suite A 
Mountain Village, Co 81435 
970-728·8000 
970·728-4342 Fax 
mvclerk@mtnvillage.org 

The Town of Mountain Village authorizes use of the Town owned plaza space pursuant to the 

Temporary Modification of Premises Permit Application by Telski Food & Beverage Services DBA 

Tomboy Tavern on Friday March 27th thru Sunday, March 29th
, 2015 for an event named "Telluride's 

Mountain Town Get Down." 

This letter serves to show that Tomboy Tavern has possession of the space for the event. Please 

contact Town Clerk Jackie Kennefick at 970·369·6406 should you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Kim Montgomery 

Town Manager 

Kim Montgomery 
2015.01.21 10:00:14 -07'00' 

16



DR 8442 (09/24/09) Page 1 
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
LIQUOR ENFORCEMENT DIVISION 
DENVER, COLORADO 80261 
(303)-205-2300 

PERMIT APPLICATION 
AND REPORT OF CHANGES 

CURRENT ~40~91~9=5=9=00~1~ ______________ _ 

ALL ANSWERS MUST BE PRINTED IN BLACK INK OR TYPEWRITTEN 
LOCAL LICENSE FEE $ ______________ _ 

FOR DEPARTMENT USE ONLY 

APPLICANT SHOULD OBTAIN A COLORADO LIQUOR & BEER CODE BOOK TO ORDER CALL (303) 370-2165 

o Corporation ,. " " .. " ... " ., ...... ", ... " .. " .. 0 Individual 

o Partnership" .. "".".""."""." " . """".[if Limited Liability Company 4091959001 

me 

DBA: Tomboy Tavern 

• License Account No. _____________ _ 
2210-100 (999) 0 Retail Warehouse Storage Permit (ea) $100,00 

2200-100 (999) 0 Wholesale Branch House Permit (ea)" .. 100,00 
1983-750 (999) 0 Manager's Registration (Hotel & Restr,) ,,$75,OQ 

2012-750 (999) 0 Manager's Registration (Tavern) .. """"",,$75.00 

o Change of Manager (Other Licenses) NO FEE 

- -

Section B - Duplicate License 

• Liquor License No, _____________ _ 

2260-100 (999) 0 Change Corp. or Trade Name Permit (ea). 50,00 

2230-100 (999) 0 Change Location Permit (ea) .. "". " ." ...... 150,00 

2280-100 (999) Gr Change, Alter or Modify Premises 
$150.00 X_2 __ Total Fee--'3,.,,0""-0 ____ _ 

2220-100 (999) 0 Addition of Optional Premises to Existing H/R 
$100,00x ___ Total Fee _________ _ 

O $ 1988-100 (999) 0 Addition of Related Facility to Resort Complex 2270-100 (999) Duplicate License ......... """"." ..... ,, 50.00 
$75,00 x Total Fee _______ _ 

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE - FOR DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE USE ONLY 

-750 (999) 

The State may convert your check to a one time electronic banking transaction, 
Your bank account may be debited as earty as the same day received by the 
State. If converted, your check will not be returned. If your check is rejected TOTAL 

-1 00 (999) due to insuffICient or uncollected funds, the Department of Revenue may collect A MO U NT DUE $ 
the payment amount directly from your bank account electronically. 300,00 

DR 8442 (09~I09) Page 1 
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
LIQUOR ENFORCEMENT OlViSION 
OENIIER, COLORADO 80261 
(303)-205-2300 

PERMIT APPLICATION 
AND REPORT OF CHANGES 

MUST BE PRINTED IN BLACK INK OR TYPEWRITTEN 

FOR DEPARTMENT USE ONLV 

LICENSE FEE $ -::-,---_ ___ --,-,-,-,---,..,--,---__ _ 
OBTAIN A COLORADO LIQUOR & BEER CODE BOOK TO ORDER CALL (3CI3) 37CI·21165 

o COlpola~on _ ............................ _ .... .0 Individual 

o Partnership ~ .... _ .. _ •.• _ .. _ •.• _ .. _ ... .& Umiled Uabllity Company 4091959001 

Telski Food and Beverage Services LLC DBA: Tomboy Tavern 

565 Mountain Vi llage BLVD 

n 
Town of Mountain Village San Miguel 81435 

, SELECT THE APPROPRIATE SECTION BELOW AND PROCEED TO THE INSTRUCTIONS ON PAGE 2. 

Section A - Manager reg/change Section C 

• UcenseAccount No. ____________ _ 
2210·1 00 (999) 0 Retail Warehouse Storage Permit (ea) $100.00 

2200·100 (999) 0 Wlolesale Branch House Permit {ea) .... 100.00 
1983·750 (999) 0 Manage(s Registration (Hotel & Restr.) .. $75.00 

2260·100 (999) 0 Change Corp. or Trade Name Permit (ea) .50.00 
2012·750 (999) 0 Manage(s Registration (Tavern) .............. $75.00 

o Change of Manager (Other licenses) NO FEE 2230·100 (999) 0 Change Location Permit (ea) .. .. .... 150.00 

2280·100 (999) [l Change, Alter or Modify Premises 

Section B - Duplicate License 
$150.00x~ Total Fee~3'"0'-0 ____ _ 

2220·100 (999) 0 Addition of Optional Premises to Existing H/R 

• Liquor License No. _______ _ _ _ _ _ _ $100.00 x Total Fee _____ _ 

2270·100 (999) 0 Duplicate License .......................... . $50.00 1988·100 (999) 0 Addition of Related Facility to Resort Complex 
$75.00 x Total Fee ______ _ 

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE - FOR DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE USE ONLY 

DATE LICENSE ISSUED LICENSE ACCOUNT NUM BER 

Tm. Slale maycoo....n)IIM <had< la8 one IirflllIIIe<:tI\ric Ilatlld"l1 ~I"". 
VO\.O' bWl/l 8CCOIIIU m..y De o:Ie1>ilod ., earl)' as Ill' HIl1tI Clay recel\o8a D)' IIle 
Sta~. If coo~, yow check...tl not be retuned, If)/Oljl' dIWc is rejlKled TOTAL 

PERIOD 

·750 (999) 1 00 (999) duolollWl!fdent",u~~. II'I. Oepartmentcfl'!wenur! ITt8I'coIkICI 
• . !he " .ymenlamountdiradlylromyourballkKcOllr1Ie1ec:lronical)'. AMOUNT DUE $ 300.00 

17



I 

DR 8442 (09/24/09) Page 2 

INSTRUCTION SHEET 

FOR ALL SECTIONS, COMPLETE QUESTIONS 1-4 LOCATED ON PAGE 1 

o SectionA 

To Register or Change Managers, check the appropriate box in section A and complete question 
8 on page 4. Proceed to the Oath of Applicant for signature (Please note: Hotel, Restaurant, and 
Tavern licensees are required to register their managers). 

o Section B 

For a Duplicate license, be sure to include the liquor license number in section B on page 1 and 
proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

~ Section C 

Check the appropriate box in section C and proceed below. 

1) For a Retail Warehouse Storage Permit, go to page 3 complete question 5 (be sure to check the 
appropriate box). Submit the necessary information and proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

2) For a Wholesale Branch House Permit, go to page 3 and complete question 5 (be sure to check the 
appropriate box). Submit the necessary information and proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

3) To Change Trade Name or Corporation Name, go to page 3 and complete question 6 (be sure to check 
the appropriate box). Submit the necessary information and proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant 
signature. 

4) To modify Premise, go to page 4 and complete question 9. Submit the necessary information and 
proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

5) For Optional Premises or Related Facilities go to page 4 and complete question 9. Submit the necessary 
information and proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

6) To Change Location, go to page 3 and complete question 7. Submit the necessary information and 
proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

DR 6442 I09(l.11{)9) Pa9~ 2 

INSTRUCTION SHEET 

FOR ALL SECTIONS, COMPLETE QUESTIONS 1-4 LOCATED ON PAGE 1 

o Section A 

To Reg;ster or Change Managers, check the appropriate box in section A and complete question 
a on page 4. Proceed to the Oath of Applicant for signature (Please note: Hotel, Restaurant. and 
Tavern licensees are required to register their managers). 

o Section B 

For a Duplicate license, be sure to include the liquor license number in section B on page 1 and 
proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

~ Section C 

Check the appropriate box in sechon C and proceed below. 

1) For a Retail Warehouse Storage Permit, go to page 3 complete question 5 (be sure to check the 
appropriate box). Submit the necessary Information and proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

2) For a Wholesale Branch House Permit, go \0 page 3 and complete question 5 (be sure to check the 
appropriate box). Submit the necessary information and proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

3) To Change Trade Name or Corporation Name, go to page 3 and complete question 6 (be sure to check 
the appropriate box). Submit the necessary information and proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant 
signature. 

4) To modify Premise, go 10 page 4 and complete question 9. Submit the necessary information and 
proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

5) For Op tional Premises or Related Facilities go to page 4 and complete question 9. Submit the necessary 
information and proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant Signature. 

6) To Change Location, go to page 3 and complete question 7. Submit the necessary information and 
proceed to page 4 for Oath of Applicant signature. 

18



DR 8442 (09/24/09) Page 3 

5. Retail Warehouse Storage Permit or a Wholesalers Branch House Permit 

D Retail Warehouse Permit for: 

D On-Premises Licensee (Taverns, Restaurants etc.) 

D Off-Premises Licensee (Liquor stores) 

D Wholesalers Branch House Permit 

Address of storage premise: ______ ________________________ _ 

City _____ _____ , County ______________ , Zip _ _ _ ____ _ 

Attach a deed/ lease or rental agreement for the storage premises. 
Attach a detailed diagram of the storage premises. 

6. Change of Trade Name or Corporation Name 

D Change of Trade name / DBA only 

D Corporate Name Change (Attach the following supporting documents) 

1. Certificate of Amendment filed with the Secretary of State, or 

2. Statement of Change filed with the Secretary of State, ang 

3. Minutes of Corporate meeting, Limited Liability Members meeting, Partnership agreement. 

New Corporate Name 

7. Change of Location 
NOTE TO RETAIL LICENSEES: An application to change location has a local application fee of $750 payable to your local licensing 
authority. You may only change location within the same jurisdiction as the original license that was issued. Pursuant to 12-47-
311 (1) C.R.S. Your application must be on file with the local authority thirty (30) days before a public hearing can be held. 

Date filed with Local Authority __________ Date of Hearing _ ________ _ 

(a) Address of current premises ___________________________ _ 

City ___________ County ______________ Zip _ _ _____ _ 

(b) Address of proposed New Premises (Attach copy of the deed or lease that establishes possession of the 
premises by the licensee) 

Address __________________________ _ ________ _ 

City ___________ County ___ ___________ Zip ___ ____ _ 

(c) New mailing address if applicable. 

Address ___________ ______________________ _ 

City ___________ County _ ________ State ____ Zip _____ _ 

(d) Attach detailed diagram of the premises showing where the alcohol beverages will be stored, served, 
possessed or consumed. Include kitchen area(s} for hotel and restaurants. 

OR 8442 (09124109) Pll{le 3 

5. Retail Warehouse Storage Permit or a Wholesalers Branch House Permit 

D Retail Warehouse Permit for: 

o On-Premises Licensee (Taverns, Restaurants etc.) 

o Off-Premises Licensee (Liquor stores) 

o Wholesalers Branch House Permit 

Address of storage premise: _____________________________ _ 

City _________ , County _____________ " Zip ______ _ 

Attach a deed/ lease or rental agreement for the storage premises. 
Attach a detailed diagram afthe storage premises. 

6. Change of Trade Name or Corporation Name 

o Change of Trade name / DBA only 

o Corporate Name Change (Attach the following supporting documents) 

1. Certificate of Amendment filed with the Secretary of Stale , or 

2. Statement of Change filed with the Secretary of State , simi 
3. Minutes of Corporate meeting. Limited Liability Members meeting, Partnersh ip agreement. 

7. Change of location 
NOTE TO RETAIL UCENSEES: An application 10 change location has a local application fee of $750 pay~ble to your local licensing 
authority. You may ont)' change location within Ihc same Jurisdiction as the orlginallicensc that was issued. Pursuant to 12-47-
311 (1) C.R.S. Your application must be on Iile with the local authority thirty 1301 days before II public hearing can be held. 

Date filed with local Authority ___________ Date of Hearing __________ _ 

(a) Address of current premises ___________________________ _ 

C;ty _________ County ___________ ,z;p ______ _ 

(b) Address of proposed New Premises (Attach copy of the deed or lease that establishes possession of the 
premises by the licensee) 

Address ________________________________ _ 

City, __________ County ____________ ,Zip ______ _ 

(c) New mailing address if applicable. 

Address ______________________________ _ 

C;ty _________ County ________ State ___ Z;p ____ _ 

(d) Attach detailed diagram of the premises showing where the alcohol beverages will be stored , served, 
possessed or consumed. Include kitchen area(s) for hotel and restaurants. 

19



DR 8442 (09/24/09) Page 4 

8. Change of Manager or to Register the Manager of a Tavern or a Hotel and Restaurant liquor license. 

(a) Change of Manager (attach Individual History DR 8404-1 H/R and Tavern only) 
Former manager's name ________________ _ ___ __________ _ 

New manager's name ________ _______________________ _ 

(b) Date of Employment _ _____ _ 
Has manager ever managed a liquor licensed establishment? ... ... .... .. .. ... .............. .......... ... .... . Yes 0 No 0 
Does manager have a financial interest in any other liquor licensed establishment? ... .. .. ........ Yes 0 No 0 

If yes, give name and location of establishment _ _______________ _____ _ 

9. Modification of Premises, Addition of an Optional Premises, or Addition of Related Facility 

NOTE: Licensees may not modify or add to their licensed premises until approved by state and local authorities. 

Signature 

(a) Describe change proposed Music Eyent in Heritage Plaza' 1 performance stage Bands to perform 12pm to 8pm 

Temporary fencing will define "audience area" in center of plaza extending toward ski slooe: area will have two 

temporary bars serving alcohol: entries will be staffed to confine alcoholic beverages to defined space 

(b) If the modification is temporary, when will the proposed change: 

Start 3/27/15 (mo/day/year) End ..><3/""'2""'9/ ..... 1:;:,.5 _____ (mo/day/year) 

NOTE: THE TOTAL STATE FEE FOR TEMPORARY MODIFICATION IS $300.00 

(c) Will the proposed change result in the licensed premises now being located within 500 feet of any public or 
private school that meets compulsory education requirements of Colorado law, or the principal campus of any 
college, university or seminary? 

(If yes, explain in detail and describe any exemptions that apply) .. .. .... ............... ... ...... .... .. ...... Yes 0 No ~ 

(d) Is the proposed change in compliance with local building and zoning laws? ......... .... .. .... ......... Yes ~ No 0 

(e) If this modification is for an additional Hotel and Restaurant Optional Premises or Resort Complex Related 
Facility, has the local authority authorized by resolution or ordinance the issuance of optional premises? 

......... .... .... ................ ... ..... .............. ..... .... ............... ... .. .... .............. ......... ................... ..... ............ Yes 0 No 0 

(f) Attach a diagram of the current licensed premises and a diagram of the proposed changes for the 
licensed premises. 

(g) Attach any existing lease that is revised due to the modification. 

-

REPORT OF STATE LICENSING AUTHORITY 
The foregoing has been examined and complies with the filing requirements otTitle 12, Article 47, C.R.S., as amended. 
Signature Title Date 

DR 8<142 (09124/09) Page 4 

8. Change of Manager or to Register the Manager of a Tavern or a Hotel and Restaurant liquor license. 

(a) Change of Manager (attach Individual History DR 8404-1 H/R and Tavern only) 
Former manager's name ____________________________ _ 

New manager's name ______________________________ _ 

(b) Date of Employment .,..-,----.--.".--,-,-,,--
Has manager ever managed a liquor licensed establishment? .... ..... ....................................... Yes D No D 
Does manager have a financial interest in any other liquor licensed establishment? .............. Yes D No D 
If yes, give name and location of establishment _____________________ _ 

9, Modification of Premises, Addition of an Optional Premises, or Addition of Related Facility 

NOTE : licensees may nol modify or add 10 their licensed premises until approved by Slale and local authorities. 

(a) Describe change proposed Musjc Event in HeritClge plaza' 1 performance staQe Bands to oerform 120m to 8pm 

TemPOrary fencing Wil! define Maudleoce areaw In center of plaza extending toward ski slope: area wjll haye two 
temoorary bars serying alcohol' entries wjll be staffed to confine alcoholic beyerages to defined space 

(b) If the modification is temporary, when wi ll the proposed change: 

Start 3127115 (rna/day/year) End "'31"'2,,9',,15'---____ (rno/day/year) 

NOTE: THE TOTAL STATE FEE FOR TEMPORARY MODIFICATION IS 5300.00 

(c) win the proposed change result in the licensed premises now being located within 500 feet of any public or 
private school that meets compulsory education requirements of Colorado law, or the principal campus of any 
college, university or seminary? 

(If yes, explain In detail and describe any exemptions that apply) ......... ...................... .... ........ Yes 0 No [!l' 

(d) Is the proposed change in compliance with local building and zoning laws? ........................... Yes [l No 0 

(e) If this modification is for an additional Hotel and Restaurant Optional Premises or Resort Complex Related 
Facility, has the local authority authorized by resolution or ordinance the issuance of optional premises? 

............................................................................................................................................... yesD No D 

(f) Attach a diagram of the current licensed premises and a diagram of the proposed changes for the 
licensed premises. 

(g) Attach any existing lease that is revised due to the modification. 

REPORT OF STATE LICENSING AUTHORITY 
The foregOing has been examined and complies With the filing reqUirements of Tille 12, Artlcte 47 , C R S., as amended 
Signature ntle Date 

20



H
er

it
ag

e 
P

la
za

 
-&

 T
he

 B
ea

ch
 

~
 
~
 

~ 

~
r

ll
ll

ll
l
~
 

C
) 

~
 

:::
r 

(D
 

to
 

(D
 

P
l 

("
) 

0
-

o 

\'
-

\:
) 

~c
:S

.. 
~
 

~
 "" 

"" 
~ 

~\
 

..
..

 
,
~
t
J
 

')
 

)i
' 
~
)
 

~
 

;
:
,
' 

~
~
 

~
-
.
.
.
.
~
 

...
. 

";
/ 

\
} 

r-.
,' 

~
~
~
~
~
 

~ 
~
 
~ 

~ 
.;:;.

.-
~
 

,.
 

f\
 
~
 

....
., 

Mo
u~
ta
in
 V

il
la

ge
 S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s 
1"

 -
60

' 
S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

 M
ap

 
-

ph
: 

97
0-

36
9-

47
60

 
fx

: 
97

0-
36

9-
76

56
 

3-
14

-0
8 

w
w

w
.t

ow
no

fi
no

un
ta

in
vi

ii
ag

e.
co

m
 

~
 
~
 

~ ~
 

I\
) ) 

H
er

it
ag

e 
P

la
za

 
.&

 T
he

 B
ea

ch
 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
V

il
la

ge
 S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s 
S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

 M
ap

 
ph

: 
97

0-
36

9-
47

60
 

fx
: 

97
0-

36
9-

76
56

 
w

w
w

 J(
)w
nl
lf
mo
un
l~
in
vi
ll
ag
e 

.c
om

 

A
~

:;F
4I=

lI=
=I!

oI
~
 

1"
 =

 6
0'

 
3-

14
-0

8 

~
 

~
 

"f
-

\:>
-

) 

21



H
er

it
ag

e 
P

la
za

 
-&

 T
he

 B
ea

ch
 

@
ce

Ye
 

~
 

~ 
"
{

 

~
 

;:
T

 
(l

) t;O
 

(l
) 
~
 

(
)
 ::r-

~"
"'

:s
;:

> 
~
~
 

~
 

" 
~
 
~
 

...,.
. 

~
~
,
 
~
 

~ 
~
 
~ 

~ 
~
 t-
~
~
 

~
 

0 

§..
 

j;
 

~
 

<":
'l\ 

~ 
"" o 

®
 I
~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 
~
 
~
 ~

~ 
"'\

 
~
 

(
\ 
~
 

~
 

.....
.....

... 
<5

 
(\ 

~
 

>
(
' 

N
 
~
 r

 
--<J \ 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
\
~
'
 
~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
~
 

" 
...,.

.....
 

~
 

~ t ~
 

~
 

~
 
~
 

(
)
 

~
 

. o S)
 ::r.
.... 

~
 I

I 
II 

U
 

3"
 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
V

il
la

ge
 S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

s 
1"

 -
60

' 
S

pe
ci

al
 E

ve
nt

 M
ap

 
-

ph
: 

97
0-

36
9-

47
60

 
fx

: 
97

0-
36

9-
76

56
 

3-
14

-0
8 

w
w

w
.t

ow
nu

nn
uu

nt
ai

nv
il

la
ge

.c
om

 

H
er

it
ag

e 
P

la
za

 
&

 T
he

 B
ea

ch
 

t 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l 
E

ve
nt

s 
Sp

ec
ia

l E
ve

nt
 M

ap
 

ph
: 

97
0-

36
9-

47
60

 
fx

: 
97

0-
36

9-
76

56
 

v.
 w

w
 .!

!)
""

n,
,f

rn
ou

nl
ai
nv
il
la
g~
.c
om

 

--C) \ 

1"
 =

 6
0'

 
3-

14
-0

8 

~
 

~
 
~
 

(
)
 

'>
b

 
-.

 
0 ~ :::J

-.. 
~

. 

;:,
 

22



23



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 
              
TO:  Town Council 
 
FROM: Chris Hawkins, Director of Community Development 
 
FOR:  Meeting of February 19, 2015 
 
DATE:  February 11, 2015 
 
RE: Telluride Apartments Redevelopment: 

A. First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance to (1) 
rezone Lot 640A from the Multi-family Zone District to the Full Use Active Open 
Space Zone District; and (2) Transfer Density to Increase the Permitted Density 
from 30 Workforce (employee) apartment units to 91 workforce apartment units 
and 2,200 square feet of commercial space on Lot 640A and a portion of OSP-35B 

B. Consideration of a Resolution Approving (1) Conditional Use Permit to Allow for 
the Development of 91 Workforce Apartment Housing Units on Full Use Active 
Open Space and on Lot 640A and a portion of OSP-35B (2) a Subdivision to Create 
Four (4) Lots (Tracts) on Lot 640A and OSP-35B 

             
 
PROJECT GEOGRAPHY 
Legal Description: Lot 640A and a portion of OSP-35A 
Address:  306 Adams Ranch Road 
Applicant/Agent:   Adams Ranch MV, LLC 
Owner:   

Lot 640A: Adams Ranch MV, LLC 
 OSP-35A: TSG Ski and Golf, LLC 
Zoning:     
 Lot 640A: Multi-Family Zone District 
 OSP-35A: Full Use Active Open Space Zone District 
Existing Use:   Vacated apartments, vacant land, open space, and a park 
Proposed Use:   91 employee apartment units, new Meadows Park 
Site Area:  2.2 acres (Includes Proposed Tract A and Tract B) 
Density:  41 units per acre 
Adjacent Land Uses: 

� North:  Adams Ranch Road/Coyote Court/The Boulders 
� South:  Active Open Space, Golf Course/Northstar 
� East:  Northstar/Open Space –Prospect Creek 
� West:  Timberview 

 
  

24



 

2 
 

BASIC DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 Currently Allowed Density Proposed Density 

Use 
Actual 
Units 

Density 
Per Unit 

Person 
Equiv. Unit 
Density 

Actual 
Units 

Density 
Per Unit 

Person 
Equiv. Unit 
Density 

Emp. Apts. 30 3 90 91 3 273 
Required Density 
Transfer 61 3 183    

 
Building Height1:    Allowed:  Proposed 

o Maximum:   48’ +5’   53’ 
o Maximum Average:  48’   tbd 

 
Required Parking Spaces: 

Land Use 
Number of 
Apt. Units 

Parking 
Requirement 

Required 
Parking 
Spaces 

Employee Condominium 91 1.5 sp./unit 137 
HOA for Service Vehicles  1 to 5 1 
Total Required Parking Spaces 
for the Project   138 
Provided Spaces Regular Parking Spaces Accessible HOA-Service Total 
Surface Parking 70 not marked not marked 70 
Garage Parking 69 2 not marked 71 
Total Spaces 139 2  141 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. Applicant Narrative (Exhibit A) 
2. Conceptual Plans (Exhibit B) 
3. Wetland Delineation (Exhibit C) 
4. Meadow Floor Area Ratio Map (Exhibit D) 
5. Public Comments on Proposal (Exhibit E) 
6. Letter from Town Consulting Engineer (Exhibit F) 
 
RECORD DOCUMENTS 

� Town of Mountain Village Community Development Code (as amended) (the “CDC”) 
� Town of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter (as amended) (the “Charter”) 
� Design Review Application as maintained by the Community Development Department. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
DRB Recommendation 
 
The Design Review Board conducted a public hearing on the development applications as 
defined below under Overview of Development Applications (the “Development Applications”) 

                                                 
1 Building height and average building height will be re-evaluated with any future Design Review Process 
development application. 

25



 

3 
 

on January 8, 2015 and unanimously passed a motion to recommend the Council approve the 
applications with the following conditions: 
 
1. The rezoning, density transfer and conditional use permit are approving the density and the 

general location of the building, general scale and mass, parking areas, accessways, and 
the park.  The final location and design of the building, grading, landscaping, parking areas, 
accessways and other site improvements shall be determined with the required Design 
Review Process application pursuant to the applicable requirements of the CDC, including 
but not limited to the Design Regulations, Wetland Regulations and the Road and Driveway 
Standards. 

2. The proposed density and the general location of the building shall remain substantially as 
shown in the final approved conceptual plans. 

3. The scale and mass of the building and the associated floor area shall not increase from 
that approved during the rezoning; nor shall the amount of building articulation change 
substantially without approval of the DRB during the Design Review process application. 

4. Prior to submitting for the required Design Review Process development application, the 
applicant shall obtain approval for the wetland delineation from the United States Army 
Corps of Engineers. 

5. The park shall be designed to the satisfaction of the Design Review Board concurrent with 
the Design Review Process application, including but not limited to access, grading, useable 
park area, play equipment, river access/river park, and other park features.  This final design 
will only be achieved by the Town working closely with the developer and the community to 
create the best park possible while also allowing for the efficient development of the 
workforce housing project. 

6. Prior to the Town Council approving the development applications, the applicant shall enter 
into a development agreement with the Town to address the following and other topics that 
arise during the rezoning: 

 
6.1. Public Improvements (landscaping, park improvements, new bus stop and shelter by 

Coyote Court, lighting, etc.) 
6.2. Density and bedroom mix; 
6.3. Snow storage on the park and maintenance of such area; 
6.4. Noise; 
6.5. Dogs and cats; 
6.6. Maximum occupancy of each unit; 
6.7. Wetland protection; 
6.8. Fence with Northstar;  
6.9. Water Quality Protection. 
6.10. Meadows Sign Replacement; 
6.11. Park Design; and, 
6.12. Composite Utilities Plan. 
 

7. Trash and recycling facilities shall be located to minimize and mitigate impacts to Northstar 
and Timberview. 

8. Prior to the Town Council reviewing the subdivision, the plat shall be revised to meet the 
Subdivision Regulations.  [Staff Note:  The only missing element is the plat cover sheet 
which is a technical review to ensure consistency with Subdivision] 

 
  

26



 

4 
 

Overview of Development Applications 
 
The Applicant seeks to construct 91 workforce housing units.  To reach that objective, the 
Applicant must secure approval for the following development applications (the below are 
collectively referred to as the “Development Applications”): 
 

1. Rezoning.  The Applicant proposes rezoning Lot 640A from the Multi-family Zone 
District to the Full Use Active Open Space Zone District (workforce housing is allowed as 
a conditional use in the Full Use Active Open Space Zone District).  A rezoning is 
required by the Community Development Code (CDC) to change zone districts or to 
transfer density to or from a site.  The main goal for rezoning Lot 640A to the Full Use 
Active Open Space Zone District is to allow for the land area in the lot to be counted as 
Replacement Open Space for future rezonings as defined and permitted in the CDC (the 
“Rezoning Application”). 

2. Density Transfer.  The Applicant is proposing to transfer 61 employee apartments to 
the site to construct 91 units, with 30 apartment units permitted by the underlying zoning 
(the “Density Transfer Application”). 

3. Conditional Use Permit.  The Applicant proposes a conditional use permit to (A) allow 
for the development of workforce housing on a portion of OSP-35A (The CDC requires a 
conditional use permit to allow workforce housing on Full Use Active Open Space); and 
(B) allow for the workforce housing units on the new open space zoning on Lot 640A 
(the “Conditional Use Permit Application”). 

4. Subdivision.  The Applicant proposes to re-subdivide Lot 640A and OSP-35A into four 
new lots as shown on the draft plat, with Tract A, Hillside Open Space, containing 0.52 
acre.; Tract B, Development Site, containing 1.68 acres; Tract C, Park Parcel, containing 
1.22 acres; and Tract D, OSP-35AR, containing 2.66 acres.  The total site area for the 
proposed development includes Tract A and Tract B for a total of 2.2 acres (the 
“Subdivision Application”). 

 
The proposal is for 91 apartment units with 23 three-bedroom units (1,105 sq. ft.), 60 two-
bedroom units (840 sq. ft.) and 8 one-bedroom units (540 sq. ft.).  The total estimated maximum 
population for the project would be 210 persons based on San Miguel County Census data 
indicating 2.53 persons per household in the 2010 Census. 
 
It should be noted that the Applicant is not seeking a Design Review Process Development 
Application at this time, so the attached plans are intended to only provide a high level, 
conceptual view of the overall project design to be evaluated by the applicable criteria for 
decision as set forth below.  Any future Design Review Process application will fully evaluate the 
project pursuant to all the detailed requirements of the CDC, including but not limited to the 
Design Regulations and the Supplementary Regulations (Environmental Regulations, Road and 
Driveway Standards, etc.).  Approval of the Development Applications does not vest 
Development Rights, All design details, including but not limited to, grading, drainage, 
landscaping, snow storage, parking area design, park design, and building design shall be 
determined by the DRB during the Design Review Application Process.  The Design Review 
Process shall not amend, change or alter the general building massing, density, and location, 
that may be approved by Council and there is a  specific condition in the proposed ordinance 
limiting building mass, density, scale and general location to the final rezoning plans submitted 
to and approved by the Council. 
 
  

27



 

5 
 

Current Site Conditions 
 
Lot 640A is the current location for the Telluride Apartments, which currently consists of 30 
employee apartments on 2.6 acres.  The Town issued a notice and order to the Telluride 
Apartments project in November of 2008 directing the property to be vacated due to significant 
mold issues that caused the creation of a dangerous building.  The building has been vacant 
since that time, with slowly deteriorating conditions on the interior and the exterior of the building 
causing what staff considers a negative impact to the Meadows area. 
 
The site has two main natural features that influence the proposed location of development, with 
the forested hillside to the south and wetlands framing the development site.  Wetlands on a 
recent US Army Corps of Engineers (“Corps”) wetland delineation are shown on the east side of 
the site along Prospect Creek and the west side of the site.  The forested hillside has steep 
slopes that are approximately a 50% grade in most areas.  The site of the proposed 
development has a grade change of approximately 18 feet, with the lowest grade of 9075 feet 
located on the northeast corner to the east of the current Meadows neighborhood sign and the 
highest grade of 9093 feet. 
 
At some point in time a park area evolved on the undeveloped portion of Lot 640A and on a 
portion of OSP-35A without any formal public easements being granted or other Town 
approvals. The Town currently irrigates, mows, and otherwise maintains the grassy lawn area.  
Play equipment and a basketball court are located in closer proximity to the existing apartment 
building, which is used by the general public.  The approximate land size of the “park” area 
today is 0.5 acre depending upon where the measurements are taken from Staff is unsure of the 
evolution of the Town-maintained park area. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Context 
 
The Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan (the “Comprehensive Plan”) describes the subject 
site as Parcel G in the Meadows Subarea.  The Comprehensive Plan’s Meadows Development 
Table provides for a “target density” of 91 employee units, with a target maximum building 
height of 48 feet.  The Comprehensive Plan also includes the following policies for Parcel G: 
 
1. Provide a playfield on or adjacent to Parcel G Telluride Apartments.  At a minimum, 

provide park equipment desired by area neighbors such as a gazebo, grills, horseshoe 
pits, play equipment, a small play field, and a regulation sand volleyball area. Consult 
with area neighbors to determine appropriate park equipment, site design, and 
landscaping. 

2. Provide a fence along the North Star property line to the east. 
 
The Comprehensive Plan specifically focuses on infill development in the Mountain Village 
Center, Town Hall, and Meadows subareas in order to achieve the vision statements and the 
principles, policies and actions of the Comprehensive Plan.  In the Meadows subarea, the 
Comprehensive Plan identifies sites that should accommodate higher density employee housing 
projects to mitigate the impacts caused by overall development of the Comprehensive Plan, and 
to create a more sustainable community.  Lot 640A is one of the sites in the Meadows that 
received a significant increase in target density due primarily to the relative flatness of a majority 
of the site, and the existing low density building on only a portion of the overall lot. 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan policies are applicable to the DRB’s considerations on the 
development applications: 
 

28



 

6 
 

Land Use Principles, Policies and Actions, Principle I, Policies B, C & G 
 
B. Require rezoning, Planned Unit Developments (PUD), subdivisions, special use permits, 

density transfers, and other discretionary land use applications to be in general 
conformance with the Land Use Plan, the Subarea Plans and their associated principles 
and policies, and the applicable policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

C. Permit development applications in general conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 
per the applicable criteria for decision-making.  

G. Require a rezoning, PUD, subdivision or density transfer to meet the following applicable 
criteria: 

 
1. A proposal shall not increase the town’s density beyond the 8,027 person equivalent 

density cap in accordance with the terms of the County Settlement Agreement [The 
settlement agreement allows for the creation of bonus employee density]. 

2. A proposal generally meets the targeted parcel density as identified in the Development 
Tables for each Subarea Plan. 

3. A proposal shall meet the adopted criteria for decision-making for the required 
development review processes. 

4. A proposal to rezone, subdivide or transfer density shall provide public benefits listed in 
the Public Benefits Table. 

5. A proposal that involves rezoning open space, as envisioned by the Comprehensive 
Plan, shall provide an equal or greater amount of replacement of open space within the 
original County PUD boundary in accordance with the terms of the County Settlement 
Agreement and LUO and Design Guidelines. 

6. The proposal will meet the following or equivalent standards: 
6.1. Minimize and mitigate a project’s visual impacts, to the extent practical, while 

also providing the targeted density identified in each Subarea Plan Development 
Table. It is understood that some visual impacts will occur with development. 

6.2. Ensure appropriate scale and mass that fits the site(s) under review. 
6.3. Avoid, minimize and mitigate environmental and geotechnical impacts, to the 

extent practical, consistent with the Comprehensive Plan while also providing the 
target density identified in each Subarea Plan Development Table. 

6.4. Address all site-specific issues to the satisfaction of the town such as, but not 
limited to, the location of trash facilities, grease trap cleanouts, restaurant vents, 
and access points. 

 
CRITERIA FOR DECISION 
 
Rezoning Criteria 
 
1. The proposed rezoning is in general conformance with the goals, policies and provisions 

of the Comprehensive Plan; 
2. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Zoning and Land Use Regulations; 
3. The proposed rezoning meets the Comprehensive Plan project standards; 
4. The proposed rezoning is consistent with public health, safety and welfare, as well as 

efficiency and economy in the use of land and its resources; 
5. The proposed rezoning is justified because there is an error in the current zoning, there 

have been changes in conditions in the vicinity or there are specific policies in the 
Comprehensive Plan that contemplate the rezoning; 

6. Adequate public facilities and services are available to serve the intended land uses; 
7. The proposed rezoning shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or 

cause parking, trash or service delivery congestion; and 

29



 

7 
 

8. The proposed rezoning meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 
 
Density Transfer Criteria 
 
1. The criteria for decision for a rezoning are met, since such density transfer must be 

processed concurrently with a rezoning development application (except for MPUD 
development applications); 

2. The density transfer meets the density transfer and density bank policies; and 
3. The proposed density transfer meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 
 
Conditional Use Permit Criteria 
 
1. The proposed conditional use is in general conformity with the policies of the principles, 

policies and actions set forth in the Comprehensive Plan; 
2. The proposed conditional use is in harmony and compatible with surrounding land uses 

and the neighborhood and will not create a substantial adverse impact on adjacent 
properties or on services and infrastructure; 

3. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not 
constitute a substantial physical hazard to the neighborhood, public facilities, 
infrastructure or open space; 

4. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not have 
significant adverse effect to the surrounding property owners and uses; 

5. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not have a 
significant adverse effect on open space or the purposes of the facilities owned by the 
Town; 

6. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall minimize 
adverse environmental and visual impacts to the extent possible considering the nature 
of the proposed conditional use; 

7. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall provide 
adequate infrastructure; 

8. The proposed conditional use does not potentially damage or contaminate any public, 
private, residential or agricultural water supply source; and 

9. The proposed conditional use permit meets all applicable Town regulations and 
standards. 

 
Subdivision Criteria for Decision 
 
1. The proposed subdivision is in general conformance with the goals, policies and 

provisions of the Comprehensive Plan; 
2. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the applicable Zoning and Land Use 

Regulations and any PUD development agreement regulating development of the 
property; 

3. The proposed density is assigned to the lot by the official land use and density 
allocation, or the applicant is processing a concurrent rezoning and density transfer; 

4. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the applicable Subdivision Regulations; 
5. Adequate public facilities and services are available to serve the intended land uses; 
6. The applicant has provided evidence to show that all areas of the proposed subdivision 

that may involve soil or geological conditions that may present hazards or that may 
require special precautions have been identified, and that the proposed uses are 
compatible with such conditions; 

30



 

8 
 

7. Subdivision access is in compliance with Town standards and codes unless specific 
variances have been granted in accordance with the variance provisions of this CDC; 
and 

8. The proposed subdivision meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The Town Council should refer to the draft findings set forth under the recommendation section 
to review how staff believes the development applications meet the criteria for decision set forth 
above.  Staff believes that the following topics represent the main issues for the Town Council’s 
consideration:  
 
1. Building Scale, Mass and Fit 
 
The Comprehensive Plan and the CDC’s Comprehensive Plan Project Standards establish the 
policy to “ensure appropriate scale and mass that fits the site(s) under review”.  A conditional 
use permit criterion also requires that the proposed “use is in harmony and compatible with 
surrounding land uses and the neighborhood and will not create a substantial adverse impact on 
adjacent properties or on services and infrastructure.” 
 
Fit and compatibility of development are a discretionary determination by the Town Council.  Fit 
and compatibility can be partially gauged by evaluating similarity of land uses, building height, 
density per acre, floor area, and floor area ratio.  Site design can also help a project fit into an 
area with building design, landscaping, buffering and other site design elements very important.  
All of these site design issues will be evaluated during the required Design Review Process 
Development Application. 
 
The proposed multi-family land use is consistent with surrounding land uses.  The building 
height is also compatible with development in the Meadows with two, three and four stories and 
a gabled roof.  Prospect Plaza, the Outlaws, Big Billies, and Parker Ridge all are four storied 
buildings.  The following table reflects the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) and units per acre and floor 
area for each development in the Meadows: 
 
Table 1. Approximate Floor Area Ratio and Units Per Acre 
Development Approx. Floor Area Approx. FAR Units Per Acre 
Coyote Court 15,993 0.2 5 
Boulders 39,986 0.4 9 
Prospect Plaza 41,092 0.8 7 
The Outlaws 18,974 0.4 15 
Prospect Creek 15,577 0.3 13 
Parker Ridge 30,666 0.6 17 
North Star 41,968 0.5 13 
Fairway Four 29,103 0.2 9 
Spring Creek 22,572 0.4 11 
Big Billies 72,026 0.8 75 
Terraces 31,114 0.3 11 
Total Average 32,643 0.5 17 
Multi-Family Average2 33,677 0.5 19 
Proposed Development 84,817 0.9 41 
Existing Apartment Bldg. 28,000 0.3 12 
                                                 
2 Multi-family average does not include Coyote Court or The Boulders since these are single-family developments. 

31



 

9 
 

Evaluating density on a unit per acre basis with differing land uses, such as apartments versus 
single family, is not an apples-to-apples comparison.  For example, Big Billies has small dorm 
units so the density per acre is higher.  Prospect Plaza has two floors of commercial area that 
are not counted in a units per acre analysis so the density is less than a pure condominium 
project.  Apartment units are also typically smaller than condominium units and single-family 
homes are typically larger than multi-family units.  For the foregoing reasons, units per acre 
should not be used in The Meadows to gauge fit and compatibility. 
 
Floor Area Ratio (FAR) is a better gauge of compatibility and fit since it is a ratio of the floor 
area to the lot area.  For example, an FAR of 1:1 would be a development with the same 
amount of floor area as lot area, with a 40,000 sq. ft. lot having a 40,000 sq. ft. building.  The 
average FAR for the Meadows is approximately 0.5:1, or about 50% of the lot area in floor area, 
with a minimum of 0.2:1 for Coyote Court and a high of 0.8:1 for Prospect Plaza and Big Billies.  
The proposed development has an FAR of 0.9:1, which is similar to the mass and scale of 
Prospect Plaza and Big Billies.  Exhibit D illustrates the FAR found in the Meadows. 
 
Fit and compatibility can also be achieved through enhanced landscaping and building design, 
with the mass and scale of buildings mitigated by landscape buffering and building articulation 
and design.  The proposed plans reflect landscaping that will have to be significantly enhanced 
during the Design Review Process in order to comply with the Landscaping Regulations.  The 
proposed building design includes roof and building articulation stepping down towards Adams 
Ranch Road, which reduces the scale and mass by stepping. 
 
Fit and compatibility can also be achieved through proper siting of the proposed building.  In this 
case, the applicant has recessed the building into the hillside to minimize visual impacts to 
North Star and maximize the amount of park area, with the new proposed park lot consisting of 
1.22 acres,, which is more than double the size of the current park field, according to the 
applicant.  
 
2. Wetlands 
 
Comments on a previous development application for the site encouraged the Applicant to 
recess the building into the hillside in order to minimize visual impacts.  There is a wetland 
located immediately adjacent to the rear of the current building next to a sidewalk.  It appears 
that this wetland was created in a man-made ditch after the original project was developed as a 
result of drainage from an uphill wetland.  The Applicant is proposing to fill this wetland area as 
shown in the attached Exhibit C.  The total impacted wetland area is 0.082 acre.  The mitigation 
plan proposes to create a new drainage from the uphill wetland area and route this into a new 
drainage swale as shown on the plans, with mitigation accomplished by planting seed stock 
from the impacted area wetlands. 
 
The Applicant’s wetland consultant has indicated that the United States Army Corps of 
Engineers has not yet approved the delineation.  He has further indicated that the Corps of 
Engineers has provided comments on the proposal, and does not have any issues with the 
proposal at this time.  Town approval of the rezoning should include a condition that, prior to 
submitting for the required Design Review Process Development Application, the Applicant shall 
obtain approval for the wetland delineation from the Corps of Engineers.  The Town will 
evaluate the proposed wetland fill pursuant to the Wetland Regulations as a part of the Design 
Review Process Application.  Based on the conceptual plans, staff believes that the proposed fill 
will meet the following required criteria outlined in the Wetland Regulations: 
 

32



 

10 
 

1. The proposed wetland disturbance is in general conformance with the Comprehensive 
Plan or is necessary to allow for reasonable use of the lot; 

2. The applicant has provided a wetland mitigation plan that provides for replacing the 
wetland areas proposed for temporary disturbance, or, for wetland fill, replacement 
wetland areas with the same functions and values of the impacted wetland with the 
mitigation provided at an appropriate ratio of 1:1 or greater; 

3. The United States Army Corps of Engineers (“USACE”) has reviewed the proposed 
wetland disturbance or fill and has either recommended approval to the Town or has 
approved the required federal permits; 

4. The developer shall provide a conservation easement to the Town for the wetland area 
that requires it to maintain the wetland area over time; and 

5. The development has provided for specific best management practices to protect 
wetland resources not impacted by development from direct and indirect impacts. 

 
3. New Meadows Park 
 
While the provision of critically needed housing is the most significant benefit of the rezoning, 
Staff believes that the next most significant benefitt of the proposed rezoning is the 
establishment of a new park in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed above.  
This park can become the heart of the Meadows community providing needed facilities and 
improvements.  Past comments on Lot 640A have found that residents desire to maximize the 
amount of relatively flat park area while also providing other desired improvements.  While the 
Applicant has submitted a reasonable and viable conceptual park plan, Staff believes that the 
amount of useable flat park area can be enhanced by the provision of retaining walls and 
creative civil engineering.  In addition, the park can be expanded towards Prospect Creek to 
create a river park experience where children and parents can interact with the creek.  Park 
access and park parking also need to be clearly defined.  Recognizing that the park is not being 
designed as a part of these applications, Staff believes that any approval should include a 
condition that the park be designed to the satisfaction of the Design Review Board concurrent 
with the Design Review Process Application.  To achieve this final design the Town, the 
developer, and the community should work closely together to create the best park possible 
while also allowing for the efficient development of the workforce housing project. 
 
Staff would note that the Development Applications propose to dedicate the park tract to the 
Town, with the developer responsible for constructing, at the developer’s own cost and 
expense, the park and all associated improvements.  Upon acceptance of ownership of the park 
improvements, the Town would then be responsible for the ongoing maintenance of the park.  
Staff is supportive of the dedication, developer construction and subsequent Town ownership 
and maintenance, subject to staff review and input on the proposed improvements, including, 
but not limited to, equipment specifications and warranties.  Staff recommend that the Council 
consider using the project’s development revenues (water and sewer tap fees, use tax, etc.) for 
the creation of a world class community park above and beyond the Comprehensive Plan 
recommendations, such as the inclusion of a climbing wall on retaining walls, an interactive river 
park with Prospect Creek and community desired play or recreational equipment.  Should 
Council desire to consider this, staff will prepare an analysis of the estimated revenues to be 
generated for presentation at the March 26, 2015, Town Council meeting. 
 
4. Development Agreement 
 
The DRB approval included a condition that the applicant enter into a development agreement 
with the Town to address the following and other topics that arise during the rezoning: 
 

33



 

11 
 

1. Public Improvements (landscaping, park improvements, new bus stop and shelter by 
Coyote Court, lighting, etc.); 

2. Density and bedroom mix; 
3. Snow storage on the park and maintenance of such area; 
4. Noise; 
5. Maximum number of dogs and cats; 
6. Maximum occupancy of each unit; 
7. Wetland protection; 
8. Fence with Northstar;  
9. Water Quality Protection; 
10. Meadows Sign Replacement; 
11. Park Design; and, 
12. Composite Utilities Plan. 
 
Staff originally proposed the development agreement since it would bind the developer to 
meeting important requirements and improvements.  If the Council concurs with staff and DRB 
recommendations, a draft development agreement will be presented to the Council at the March 
26, 2015, Council meeting.  Staff recommends that approval of the rezoning include a condition 
that the Applicant enter into the final development agreement prior to issuing any development 
or building permits for the project and after the required Design Review Process Development 
Application is approved.  Staff believes the development agreement should be reviewed and 
approved by the Town Council at a public meeting that may also include a recommendation on 
the agreement by the DRB.  This recommended process will allow Town staff, the community 
and the Council to ensure the development agreement addresses key elements of the project 
based on acceptable and appropriate detailed designs. 
 
5. Plat Revisions 
 
The proposed subdivision plat must be revised to include a cover page, plat notes and required 
certificates pursuant to the Subdivision Regulations.  Council approval of the plat should include 
a condition to address the submission of a plat cover page for review and approval by the Town. 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE OVERVIEW 
 
Several of the public comments from Meadows’ residents express concerns over the Town’s 
infrastructure and the impacts of the proposed development.  The following sections confirm 
that the Town has adequate infrastructure to support the proposed development: 
 

1. Water and Sewer Capacity.  The Town’s consulting engineer analyzed the water and 
sewer system capacity and found that the Town’s systems as designed and constructed 
can accommodate the added density even at build-out as envisioned in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Please refer to the letter in Exhibit F. 

2. Road Capacity.  A transportation study completed for the Comprehensive Plan 
determined that Adams Ranch Road has good level of service, or capacity, with a 
volume to capacity ratio of 0.41, which means the road will only be at 41 percent of 
capacity at build out taking into account all existing development and proposed 
development in the Comprehensive Plan.  The transportation study determined that 
Russell Drive was only at 8 percent of capacity at build out. 

3. Paving of Adams Ranch Road.  The long range road improvement plan contemplates 
Adams Ranch Road in the Meadows being overlaid in 2019. The Public Works Director 
has indicated that the plan is very fluid and could possibly change between now and 
2019. 

34



 

12 
 

4. Mountain Village Cable Capacity.  This spring, Mountain Village Cable will be 
increasing its present internet circuit with CenturyLink from a 1 Gig shared circuit to a 10 
Gig dedicated circuit.  This will allow the high demands of broad band to flow in and out 
of the Mountain Village without being choked down by the smaller capacity shared 
circuit.  Other improvements scheduled for 2015 are faster internet speeds and more 
digital channels. 

5. Police Department Staffing.  The Chief of Police has indicated that current staff will be 
able to provide adequate police protection to the additional 60 apartment units. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
If the Town Council determines that the proposed development fits the site and is compatible 
with surrounding area development, staff recommends the Council approve the Lot 640A 
redevelopment with the following two separate motions: 
 

“I move to approve on first reading an ordinance to (1) rezone Lot 640A from the Multi-
Family Zone District to the Full Use Active Open Space Zone District; and (2) transfer 
density to increase the permitted density from 30 workforce (employee) apartment units to 
91 workforce apartment units and 2,200 square feet of commercial space on Lot 640A and a 
portion of OSP-35B, with direction to the Town Clerk to agendize the second reading of this 
Ordinance and set another public hearing on March 26, 2014.” 

 
“I move to approve a resolution approving (1) a conditional use permit to allow for the 
development of 91 workforce apartment housing units on Full Use Active Open Space and 
on Lot 640A and a portion of OSP-35B (2) a subdivision to create four (4) lots (Tracts) on 
Lot 640A and OSP-35B.” 

 
If the Council determines the proposed development does not fit the site and is not compatible 
with surrounding area development, then staff recommends the Council continue the 
development application, with the following motion: 
 

I move to continue the subject development applications to the March 26, 2015 meeting 
to be held at the Mountain Village Town Hall at 8:30 am or as soon as practicable 
thereafter with the following direction on needed changes: 
 
1. Change 1 
2. … 
 
 
 

35



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-___ 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO APPROVING:  (1) REZONE LOT 640A FROM THE MULTI-FAMILY ZONE 
DISTRICT TO THE FULL USE ACTIVE OPEN SPACE ZONE DISTRICT; AND (2) 
TRANSFER DENSITY TO INCREASE THE PERMITTED DENSITY FROM 30 WORKFORCE 
(EMPLOYEE) APARTMENT UNITS TO 91 WORKFORCE APARTMENT UNITS AND 2,200 
SQUARE FEET OF COMMERCIAL SPACE ON LOT 640A AND A PORTION OF OSP-35B. 
 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. Adams Ranch MV, LLC, (“Owner”) has submitted to the Town: (1) a rezoning development 

application for a rezoning of Lot 640A from the Multi-family Zone District to the Full Use Active 
Open Space Zone District; and (2) density transfer application to increase the permitted density 
from 30 workforce (employee) apartment units to 91 workforce apartment units and 2,200 square 
feet of commercial space on Lot 640A and a portion of OSP-35B (“Applications”) pursuant to 
the requirements of the Community Development Code (“CDC”). 

 
B. Adams Ranch MV, LLC is the owner of Lot 640A (“Adams Ranch MV, LLC Property”). 

 
C. TSG Ski and Golf, LLC is the owner of OSP-35B (“TSG Property”). 

 
D. TSG Ski and Golf, LLC has consented to an inclusion by the Owner to a portion of the TSG 

Property into the Applications. 
 
E. The Adams Ranch MV, LLC Property and the TSG Ski and Golf, LLC Property are collectively 

referred to as the “Property”. 
 

F. The Property has the following zoning designations pursuant to the Official Land Use and 
Density Allocation List as recorded at Reception Number 301133 and zoning as set forth on the 
Town Official Zoning Map: 
 

Lot No. Zone District Zoning 
Designation 

Actual 
Units 

Person Equivalent 
per Actual Unit 

Total Person 
Equivalent Density 

Lot 640A Multi-Family Employee Apts. 30 3 90 
OSP-35B Full Use Active 

Open Space 
Full Use Active 
Open Space 

0 0 0 

 
G. Following completion of a joint conceptual work session between the Town Council and the 

Town’s Design Review Board (“DRB”) held on October 17, 2013, the Owner submitted the 
Applications. 

 
H. At a public hearing held on January 8, 2015, the DRB considered the Applications, testimony and 

public comment and recommended to the Town Council that the Applications be approved with 
conditions pursuant to the requirement of the CDC. 
 

I. At its regularly scheduled meeting held on February 19, 2015, the Town Council conducted a 
public hearing pursuant to the CDC and after receiving testimony and public comment, closed the 

36



2 
 

hearing and approved this Ordinance on first reading and set a further  public hearing on March 
26, 2015. 

 
J. At its regularly scheduled meeting held on March 26, 2015, the Town Council conducted a public 

hearing on this Ordinance, pursuant to the Town Charter and after receiving testimony and public 
comment, closed the hearing and approved the Applications and this Ordinance on second 
reading. 

 
K. This Ordinance rezones the Property as follows 

 
 
Lot No. 

Zone District Zoning 
Designation 

Actual 
Units 

Person Equivalent 
per Actual Unit 

Total Person 
Equivalent 
Density 

Tract A 
OS-640A-1 

Full Use Active 
Open Space 

Full Use Active 
Open Space 

0 0 0 

Tract B 
OS-640A-2 

Multi-Family Employee Apts. 91 3 273 

Tract C 
OS-640A-3 

Full Use Active 
Open Space 

Full Use Active 
Open Space 

0 0 0 

Tract D 
OSP-35AR 

Full Use Active 
Open Space 

Full Use Active 
Open Space 

0 0 0 

 
L. The meeting held on February 19, 2015 and the public hearing held on March 26, 2015 were duly 

publically noticed as required by the CDC Public Hearing Noticing Requirements, including but 
not limited to notification of all property owners within 400 feet of the Property, posting of a sign 
and posting on the respective agendas. 

 
M. The Town Council hereby finds and determines that the Applications meet the Rezoning Process 

Criteria for Decision as provided in CDC Section 17.4.9(D) as follows: 
 
Rezoning Findings 

1. The proposed rezoning is in general conformance with the goals, policies and provisions of the 
Comprehensive Plan because, without limitation: 

 
1.1. The Applications are in general conformance with the Land Use Principles, Policies and 

Actions, Principle I because the development is consistent with the land use pattern 
envisioned by the Comprehensive Plan to provide economic and social vibrancy; 

1.2. The Applications are in general conformance with the Land Use Principles, Policies and 
Actions, Principle I, Policy B that requires rezoning, planned unit developments (PUD), 
subdivisions, special use permits, density transfers, and other discretionary land use 
applications to be in general conformance with the Land Use Plan, the Subarea Plans and 
their associated principles and policies, and the applicable policies of the Comprehensive 
Plan; 

1.3. The Applications are in general conformance with the Land Use Principles, Policies and 
Actions, Principle I, Policy C that permits development applications in general 
conformance with the Comprehensive Plan per the applicable criteria for decision-
making; 

1.4. The Applications meet are in general conformance with the Land Use Principles, Policies 
and Actions, Principle I, Policy G that requires a rezoning, PUD, subdivision or density 

37



3 
 

transfer to meet the certain site standards embodied in the CDC as the Comprehensive 
Plan Project Standards (Please refer to criterion below); 

1.5. The Applications are in general conformance with the Meadows Subarea Plan Principle, 
Policy and Action II.B that requires a proposed rezoning, density transfer, or subdivision 
to strive to reach the target density outlined in the Meadows Development Table which 
sets forth a target density of 91 deed restricted units for the Property; 

1.6. The Applications meet the vision of the Comprehensive Plan by providing for a playfield 
(park); 

1.7. The Comprehensive Plan envisions a fence will be provided along Northstar property in 
appropriate locations to prevent trespassing. 

 
2. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Zoning and Land Use Regulations because, without 

limitation: 
2.1. Employee housing is a permitted use on the Property in the current Multi-Family Zone 

District and is a conditional use in the proposed and current Full Use Active Open Space 
Zone District; 

2.2. The CDC density limitation will not be exceeded because new workforce housing does 
not count towards the density limitation; 

2.3. The platted open space requirements will be met because additional open space is being 
created; and 

2.4. The development will be required to comply with the building height, lot coverage and 
general easement setback requirements during the required Design Review Process 
development application. 

 
3. The proposed rezoning meets the Comprehensive Plan project standards as follows: 

3.1. Visual impacts shall be minimized and mitigated to the extent practical, while also 
providing the targeted density identified in each subarea plan development table.  Council 
is aware that visual impacts will occur with any development.  However, the proposed 
development shall be set back on the Property to mitigate visual impacts to Northstar 
residents.  The building and roof shall be articulated to mitigate visual impacts.  
Significant landscaping in accordance with the Landscaping Regulations combined with 
the application of the Design Regulations during the required Design Review Process will 
further mitigate visual impacts. 

3.2. The proposed development has appropriate scale and mass that fits the Property because, 
without limitation: 
3.2.1. The multi-family use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 
3.2.2. The proposed building height of four stories is consistent with several other 

developments in the Meadows, such as Prospect Plaza, Big Billies and Parker 
Ridge. 

3.2.3. The proposed floor area on the Property has approximately the same Floor Area 
Ratio (FAR) as Prospect Plaza and Big Billies, with the proposed development 
having an approximate FAR of 0.9:1 and Prospect Plaza and Big Billies having 
an approximate FAR of 0.8:1. 

3.2.4. Prospect Plaza is located next to the low density projects of The Boulders and 
Coyote Court that have an approximate FAR of 0.4:1 and 0.2:1, respectively; 

3.2.5. Big Billies with an FAR of approximately 0.8:1 is located next to The Terraces 
and Parker Ridge that have approximate FAR of 0.3:1 and 0.6:1, respectively; 
and 

3.2.6. The Meadows has a development pattern of high density development with 
higher Floor Area Ratios located next to lower density development with lower 

38



4 
 

Floor Area Ratios, thus, the proposed development fits within this pre-existing 
development pattern. 

 
3.3. Environmental and geotechnical impacts shall be avoided, minimized and mitigated, to 

the extent practical, consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, while also providing the 
target density identified in each subarea plan development table because, without 
limitation: 
3.3.1. Wetland impacts will be fully evaluated with the Design Review Process 

development application pursuant to the CDC Wetland Regulations and the 
United States Army Corps of Engineers Clean Water Act requirements; 

3.3.2. A geotechnical report will be required concurrent with any future building permit 
application; and, 

3.3.3. The development is not located in a floodplain. 
3.4. Site-specific issues such as, but not limited to the location of trash facilities, grease trap 

cleanouts, restaurant vents and access points will be addressed to the satisfaction of the 
Town DRB, with a condition of approval requiring trash and recycling facilities to be 
located to minimize and mitigate impacts to Northstar and Timberview; 

3.5. There are no impacts to the skier experience or ski runs. 
 
4. The proposed rezoning is consistent with public health, safety and welfare, as well as efficiency 

and economy in the use of land and its resources because, without limitation: 
4.1. The proposed development is envisioned by the Comprehensive Plan to provide for 

economic and social vibrancy, thus creating a more sustainable community; 
4.2. Due in large part to the critical housing shortage, employers in the Telluride Region are 

not able to a sufficient number of  employees to staff their businesses during the 2014-
2015 ski season., The proposed development will aid in reducing the housing shortage by 
providing housing for approximately 146 employees; 

4.3. The proposed development will reduce the amount of carbon emissions generated within 
the Telluride Region, with approximately 146 less commuters into the region on a daily 
basis; and 

4.4. The proposed development will have a positive economic effect on the Telluride Region 
by contributing to the reduction of economic leakage by housing more employees locally 
who will shop rather than in the surrounding commuting communities. 

 
5. The proposed rezoning is justified because of the specific policies in the Comprehensive Plan that 

contemplate the rezoning as applied for. 
 

6. Adequate public facilities and services are available to serve the intended land uses because, 
without limitation: 
6.1. The Telluride Fire Protection District will provide adequate fire protection and 

emergency medical services; 
6.2. The Mountain Village Police Department will provide adequate law enforcement 

services; 
6.3. The Town’s consulting engineer analyzed the water and sewer system capacity and found 

that the Town’s systems as designed and constructed can accommodate the added density 
even at build-out with as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan; 

6.4. Mountain Village Cable has adequate existing and planned infrastructure to serve 
existing and planned development, with a 10 Gig dedicated circuit and faster internet 
speeds service upgrades authorized for 2015; and, 

6.5. The Telluride School District is expanding its facilities to accommodate existing and 
planned growth in the Telluride Region. 

39



5 
 

 
7. The proposed rezoning shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause 

parking, trash or service delivery congestion, because, without limitation: 
7.1. A transportation study completed for the Comprehensive Plan determined that Adams 

Ranch Road has good level of service, or capacity, with a volume to capacity ratio of 
0.41, which means the road will only be at 41 percent of capacity at build out taking into 
account all existing development and proposed development in the Comprehensive Plan.  
The transportation study determined that Russell Drive was only at 8 percent of capacity 
at build out; 

7.2. The transportation study determined that Russell Drive was only at 8 percent of capacity 
at build out of the proposed development at build out; 

7.3. Adams Ranch Road will be resurfaced by the Town in accordance with the Public Works 
Department capital improvements plans and schedule. 

7.4. The access drives, parking areas, delivery area(s) and trash and recycling areas will, 
during the required Design Review Process, be designed so as not to create vehicular or 
pedestrian hazards; and 

7.5. Pedestrian infrastructure will be provided to ensure the proposed development is 
connected to the sidewalk along Adam’s Ranch Road and the bus stops located on the 
north side of such road. 

 
8. The proposed rezoning meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 
 
N. The Town Council finds that the Applications meet the Rezoning Density Transfer Process 

criteria for decision contained in CDC Section 17.4.10(D)(2) as follows: 
 

1. The criteria for decision for a rezoning are met; 
2. The density transfer meets the density transfer and density bank policies because, without 

limitation: 
a. The Town Council may create workforce housing density that is not in the density bank 

and transfer it to a site because new workforce housing density is not subject to the 
density limitation. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council approves the Applications. 

 
Section 1.  Conditions of Approval 
 
1. The rezoning and density transfer approvals are specifically limited to the density transfer, the 

general locations of the building, general scale and mass, parking areas, accessways, and the 
requirement for a park.  The final location and design of the building, grading, landscaping, 
parking areas, accessways and other site improvements shall be considered and determined 
during  the course of the required Design Review Process application pursuant to the applicable 
requirements of the CDC, including but not limited to the Design Regulations, Wetland 
Regulations and the Road and Driveway Standards. 

2. The general location of the building shall remain substantially as shown in the rezoning plan set 
submitted by the Applicant, made a part of the record of these proceedings and approved herein.  
The scale and mass of the building and the associated floor area shall not increase from that 
approved in this Ordinance. 

3. The building articulation as approved in this Ordinance shall not change without the approval of 
the DRB during the course of the consideration of the Design Review Process application. 

4. Prior to submitting required Design Review Process application, the applicant shall first obtain 
approval of the wetland delineation from the United States Army Corps of Engineers. 

40



6 
 

5. The park shall be designed to the satisfaction of the Design Review Board during the course of 
the consideration of the Design Review Process application, including but not limited to access, 
grading, useable park area, play equipment, river access/river park, and other park features.  This 
final design will only be achieved by the Town working closely with the developer and the 
community to create the best park possible while also allowing for the efficient development of 
the workforce housing project. 

6. Trash and recycling facilities shall be as approved by the Design Review Board during the course 
of the consideration of the Design Review Process application but shall be located so as to 
minimize and mitigate impacts to Northstar and Timberview. 

 
Section 2.  Amendment to Official Zoning Map 
 
The Official Zoning Map is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 
herein with direction to the Planning Division to prepare the Official Zoning Map as amended herein for 
the Mayor’s signature. 
 
Section 3.  Ordinance Effect 
 
All ordinances, of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance, are hereby 
repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict. 
 
Section 4.  Severability 
 
The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause or portion 
of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or 
effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective on April 25, 2015, following public hearing and approval by 
Council on second reading. 
 
Section 6.  Public Hearing 
 
A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the 26th day of March, 2015 in the Town Council 
Chambers, Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd, Mountain Village, Colorado 81435. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 
of Mountain Village, Colorado on the 19th day of February, 2014. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 
 

By:________________________________ 
Dan Jansen, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

41



7 
 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado this 26h day of March, 2015. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, A HOME-RULE 
MUNICIPALITY 

 
By:________________________________ 

Dan Jansen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
____________________________ 
David Reed, Town Attorney 
 

42



 

 
 

8 

I, Jackie Kennefick, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
(“Town") do hereby certify that: 
 
1.  The attached copy of Ordinance No.__________ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct and complete copy 
thereof. 
 
2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading with minor amendments and 
referred to public hearing by the Town Council the Town (“Council") at a regular meeting held at Town 
Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on February 19, 2015, by the affirmative 
vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 
Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Dan Jansen, Mayor     
Cath Jett, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Jonette Bronson     
John Howe     
Michelle Sherry     
Martin McKinley     
Dave Schillaci     
 
3.  After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, 
containing the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the 
proposed Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general 
circulation in the Town, on _____________________, 2015 in accordance with Section 5.2b of the Town 
of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter.   
 
4.  A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 
Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on March 26, 
2015.  At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and approved without 
amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Dan Jansen, Mayor     
Cath Jett, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Jonette Bronson     
John Howe     
Michelle Sherry     
Martin McKinley     
Dave Schillaci     
 
5.  The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town 
Clerk, and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this _____ day 
of ____________, 2015. 

 
____________________________ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

 
(SEAL)  

43



 

 
 

9 

Exhibit A:  Official Zoning Map Amendment 
 

 

640CR 

639 

640CR 

639 

44



Page 1 of 6 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
APPROVING (1) A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF 91 WORKFORCE APARTMENT HOUSING UNITS ON FULL USE ACTIVE OPEN SPACE 
AND ON LOT 640A AND A PORTION OF OSP-35B (2) A SUBDIVISION TO CREATE FOUR 
(4) LOTS (TRACTS) ON LOT 640A AND OSP-35B 

 
Resolution No. 2015-0219-__ 

 
A. Adams Ranch MV, LLC, (“Owner”) has submitted to the Town: (1) a conditional use permit 

application to allow for the development of 91 workforce apartment housing units on Full Use 
Active Open Space on Lot 640A and a portion of OSP-35B (the “Conditional Use Application”); 
and (2) a major subdivision to create four (4) lots (Tracts) on Lot 640A and OSP-35B (the 
“Subdivision Application”), jointly referred to as (the “Applications”) pursuant to the 
requirements of the Community Development Code (“CDC”). 

 
B. Adams Ranch MV, LLC is the owner of Lot 640A (“Adams Ranch MV, LLC Property”). 

 
C. TSG Ski and Golf, LLC is the owner of OSP-35B (“TSG Property”). 

 
D. TSG Ski and Golf, LLC has consented to inclusion by the Owner to a portion of the TSG 

Property into the Applications. 
 
E. The Adams Ranch MV, LLC Property and the TSG Ski and Golf, LLC Property are collectively 

referred to as the “Property”. 
 

F. Following completion of a joint conceptual work session between the Town Council and the 
Town’s Design Review Board (“DRB”) held on October 17, 2013, the Owner submitted the 
Applications. 

 
G. At a public hearing held on January 8, 2015, the DRB considered the Applications, testimony and 

public comment and recommended to the Town Council that the Applications be approved with 
conditions pursuant to the requirement of the CDC. 

 
H. At its regularly scheduled meeting held on February 19, 2015, the Town Council considered the 

Applications, all submittal materials, public letters and public testimony, and approved the 
Applications with conditions as set forth in this Resolution. 

 
I. The Town Council finds and determines that the Conditional Use Application meets the 

Conditional Use Permit Criteria For Decision as set forth in CDC Section 17.4.14(D) as follows: 
 

1.1. The proposed conditional use is in general conformity with the policies of the principles, 
policies and actions set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  The Conditional Use 
Application is in general conformance with  Land Use Principles, Policies and Actions, 
Principle I because the development is consistent with the  land use pattern envisioned by 
the Comprehensive Plan to provide economic and social vibrancy; 

1.2. The Conditional Use Application is in general conformance with Land Use Principles, 
Policies and Actions, Principle I, Policy B that requires rezoning, planned unit 
developments (PUD), subdivisions, special use permits, density transfers, and other 
discretionary land use applications to be in general conformance with the Land Use Plan, 
the Subarea Plans and their associated principles and policies, and the applicable policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan; 

45



Page 2 of 6 

1.3. The Conditional Use Application is in general conformance with Land Use Principles, 
Policies and Actions, Principle I, Policy C that permits development applications in 
general conformance with the Comprehensive Plan per the applicable criteria for 
decision-making; 

1.4. The Conditional Use Application is in general conformance with Land Use Principles, 
Policies and Actions, Principle I, Policy G that requires a rezoning, PUD, subdivision or 
density transfer to meet the certain site standards that have been embodied in the CDC as 
the Comprehensive Plan Project Standards (Please refer to criterion below) which sets 
forth a target density of 91 deed restricted units for the Property; 

1.5. The Conditional Use Application is in general conformance with the Meadows Subarea 
Plan Principle, Policy and Action II.B requires any applicant who proposes a rezoning, 
density transfer, subdivision to strive to reach the target density outlined in the Meadows 
Development Table which sets forth a target density of 91 deed restricted units for the 
Property; 

1.6. The Conditional Use Application meets the vision of the Comprehensive Plan by 
providing for a playfield (park); n; and, 

1.7. The Comprehensive Plan envisions a fence to be installed along Northstar property in 
appropriate locations to prevent trespassing. 

 
2. The proposed conditional use is in harmony and compatible with surrounding land uses and the 

neighborhood and will not create a substantial adverse impact on adjacent properties or on 
services and infrastructure because, without limitation: 
2.1. The multi-family use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 
2.2. The proposed building height of four stories is consistent with several other developments 

in the Meadows, such as Prospect Plaza, Big Billies and Parker Ridge. 
2.3. The proposed floor area on the Property has approximately the same Floor Area Ratio 

(FAR) as Prospect Plaza and Big Billies, with the proposed development having an 
approximate FAR of 0.9:1 and Prospect Plaza and Big Billies having an approximate FAR 
of 0.8:1. 

2.4. Prospect Plaza is located next to the low density projects of The Boulders and Coyote 
Court that have an approximate FAR of 0.4:1 and 0.2:1, respectively; 

2.5. Big Billies with an FAR of approximately 0.8:1 is located next to The Terraces and Parker 
Ridge that have approximate FAR of 0.3:1 and 0.6:1, respectively; and 

2.6. The Meadows has a development pattern of high density development with higher Floor 
Area Ratios located next to lower density development with lower Floor Area Ratios, thus, 
the proposed development fits within this pre-existing development pattern. 

2.7. Visual impacts shall be minimized and mitigated by positioning the development into the 
hillside and by roof and building articulation. 

2.8. Visual impacts shall be mitigated by intensive landscape buffering to surrounding uses. 
2.9. The development shall be evaluated pursuant to the Design Regulations which will 

further ensure compatibility and harmony with surrounding land uses. 
 

3. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use does not constitute a 
substantial physical hazard to the neighborhood, public facilities, infrastructure or open space 
because, without limitation:  the proposed conditional use will be safely developed and not pose a 
physical hazard to the neighborhood; adequate infrastructure is available to serve the proposed 
conditional use; and adequate public facilities area available to serve the proposed conditional 
use. 
 

4. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not have significant 
adverse effect to the surrounding property owners and uses because, without limitation: 

46



Page 3 of 6 

4.1. The multi-family use is consistent with surrounding land uses. 
4.2. The proposed building height of four stories is consistent with several other developments 

in the Meadows, such as Prospect Plaza, Big Billies and Parker Ridge. 
4.3. The proposed floor area on the Property has approximately the same Floor Area Ratio 

(FAR) as Prospect Plaza and Big Billies, with the proposed development having an 
approximate FAR of 0.9:1 and Prospect Plaza and Big Billies having an approximate FAR 
of 0.8:1. 

4.4. Prospect Plaza is located next to the low density projects of The Boulders and Coyote 
Court that have an approximate FAR of 0.4:1 and 0.2:1, respectively; 

4.5. Big Billies with an FAR of approximately 0.8:1 is located next to The Terraces and Parker 
Ridge that have approximate FAR of 0.3:1 and 0.6:1, respectively; and 

4.6. The Meadows has a development pattern of high density development with higher Floor 
Area Ratios located next to lower density development with lower Floor Area Ratios, thus, 
the proposed development fits within this pre-existing development pattern. 

4.7. Visual impacts shall be minimized and mitigated by positioning the development into the 
hillside and by roof and building articulation. 

4.8. Visual impacts shall be mitigated by intensive landscape buffering to surrounding uses. 
4.9. The development shall be evaluated pursuant to the Design Regulations which will 

further ensure compatibility and harmony with surrounding land uses. 
 
5. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not have significant 

adverse effect on open space or the purposes of the facilities owned by the Town because, 
without limitation, the proposed conditional use will create more open space than existed prior to 
its development, the existing open space park will be enhanced and landscaped buffering will be 
added to the existing park. 

6. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall minimize adverse 
environmental and visual impacts to the extent possible considering the nature of the proposed 
conditional use because, without limitation: 
6.1. The proposed development shall be setback on the Property to mitigate visual impacts to 

Northstar residents; 
6.2. Wetland impacts resulting from the set back of the proposed development on the Property 

for the purpose of minimizing visual impacts will be minimized and mitigated in 
accordance with the Town Wetland Regulations and the United States Army Corps of 
Engineers 404 permit process; 

6.3. The building and roof of the proposed development shall be articulated to mitigate visual 
impacts;  

6.4. Steep slopes, floodplains and other areas subject to environmental hazards shall be 
avoided; and 

6.5. Significant landscaping in accordance with the Landscaping Regulations combined with 
the application of the Design Regulations during the required Design Review Process will 
further mitigate visual impacts. 

 
7. The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use has adequate 

infrastructure, with water, sewer, electric, natural gas, telecommunications, police protection, and 
fire protection all provided to the site because, without limitation: 
7.1. The Telluride Fire Protection District will provide adequate fire protection and 

emergency medical services; 
7.2. The Mountain Village Police Department will provide adequate law enforcement 

services; 

47



Page 4 of 6 

7.3. The Town’s consulting engineer analyzed the water and sewer system capacity and found 
that the Town’s systems as designed and constructed can accommodate the added density 
even at build-out with as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan; 

7.4. Mountain Village Cable has adequate existing and planned infrastructure to serve 
existing and planned development, with a 10 Gig dedicated circuit and faster internet 
speeds service upgrades authorized for 2015; and, 

7.5. The Telluride School District is expanding its facilities to accommodate existing and 
planned growth in the Telluride Region. 

7.6. The Telluride School District is expanding its facilities to accommodate existing and 
planned growth in the Telluride Region. 

 
8. The proposed conditional use does not potentially damage or contaminate any public, private, 

residential or agricultural water supply source because water quality will have to be protected 
during and after construction; and 

9. The proposed conditional use meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 
10. The Conditional Use Permit approved by this Resolution shall become valid in perpetuity upon 

the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy from the Town for the proposed conditional use. 
 
J. The Town Council finds and determines that the Subdivision Application meets the Major 

Subdivision Criteria For Decision set forth in CDC Section 17.4.13(E) as follows: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision is in general conformance with the goals, policies and provisions of the 
Comprehensive Plan as outlined under the conditional use permit findings above; 
 

2. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the applicable Zoning and Land Use Regulations 
because, without limitation: 
2.1. Employee housing is a permitted use on the Property in the current Multi-Family 

Zone District and is a conditional use in the proposed and current Full Use Active 
Open Space Zone District; 

2.2. The CDC density limitation will not be exceeded because new workforce housing 
does not count towards the density limitation; 

2.3. The platted open space requirements will be met because additional open space is 
being created; and 

2.4. The development will be required to comply with the building height, lot 
coverage and general easement setback requirements during the required Design 
Review Process development application. 

 
3. The Applicant is processing concurrent rezoning and density transfer applications; 
4. Upon compliance with Condition 1 set forth below, the proposed subdivision shall be consistent 

with the applicable Subdivision Regulations because, without limitation: 
4.1. The proposed development lot (Tract B OS-640A-2) (the “Proposed Development Lot”) 

has a frontage of approximately 206 feet when a minimum frontage of 50 feet is required; 
4.2. The Proposed Development Lot establishes general vehicular and utility access via the 

Adams Ranch Road Right-of-Way; 
4.3. The size of the Proposed Development Lot  of 1.68 acres is in general conformance with 

the size of surrounding lots; 
4.4. The Proposed Development Lot provides for solar access;  
4.5. The Proposed Development Lot establishes a general easement setback; 

48



Page 5 of 6 

4.6. The Proposed Development Lot is designed taking into consideration development 
patterns envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan, such as topography, convenient and safe 
access, adequate building area, and utilities; 

4.7. The subdivision is designed to protect distinctive natural features to the extent practical; 
4.8. The Telluride Fire Protection District will provide fire protection to the Property; 
4.9. Fire protection will be provided in accordance with the International Fire Code, and 

wildfire hazard will be mitigated through the Fire Mitigation Regulations; 
4.10. Water, sewer and utilities are designed in accordance with the requirements of the CDC 

and Town standards; and, 
4.11. The Applicant is required to dedicate Tract C OS-640A-3 to the Town and to construct a 

park, at the Applicant’s sole cost and expense, as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

5. Adequate public facilities and services are available to serve the intended land uses because, 
without limitation: 
5.1. The Telluride Fire Protection District will provide adequate fire protection and 

emergency medical services; 
5.2. The Mountain Village Police Department will provide adequate law enforcement 

services; 
5.3. The Town’s consulting engineer analyzed the water and sewer system capacity and found 

that the Town’s systems as designed and constructed can accommodate the added density 
even at build-out with as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan; 

5.4. Mountain Village Cable has adequate existing and planned infrastructure to serve 
existing and planned development, with a 10 Gig dedicated circuit and faster internet 
speeds service upgrades authorized for 2015; and, 

5.5. The Telluride School District is expanding its facilities to accommodate existing and 
planned growth in the Telluride Region. 

 
6. The Applicant has provided evidence to show that all areas of the proposed subdivision that may 

involve soil or geological conditions that may present hazards or that may require special 
precautions have been identified, and the proposed uses are compatible with such conditions. 

7. The original subdivision for this area was approved by the County based on a geotechnical report 
that provided evidence to show that all areas of the proposed subdivision that may involve soil or 
geological conditions that may present hazards or that may require special precautions have been 
identified, and that the proposed uses are compatible with such conditions.  The applicant will be 
required to submit a new geotechnical report with any future building permit application; 

8. Subdivision access is in compliance with Town standards and codes including but not limited to 
maximum grades, driveway width, sight distance and maximum opening; and 

9. The proposed subdivision meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE TOWN COUNCIL HEREBY APPROVES 
(1) A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 91 
WORKFORCE APARTMENT HOUSING UNITS ON FULL USE ACTIVE OPEN SPACE AND 
ON LOT 640A AND A PORTION OF OSP-35B; (2) A SUBDIVISION TO CREATE FOUR (4) 
LOTS (TRACTS) ON LOT 640A AND OSP-35B AND AUTHORIZES THE MAYOR TO SIGN 
THE RESOLUTION SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN SECTION 1 BELOW: 
 
1. The Owner shall submit a plat cover sheet in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations prior 

to recording the plat. 
2. The concurrent Rezoning Application and Density Transfer Application Ordinance shall become 

effective.  
 

49



Page 6 of 6 

Be It Further Resolved that the Property may be developed as submitted in accordance with Resolution 
NO. 2015-0219-__                  
 
Approved by the Town Council at a public meeting February 19, 2015. 
 

Town of Mountain Village, Town Council 
 

By:                                               
Dan Jansen, Mayor  

Attest: 
 
By:         

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 
 
 

Approved as to Form:   
 
___________________________________ 
J. David Reed, Town Attorney 

50



APPLICATION FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF 
REZONING/DENSITY TRANSFER APPLICATION, 

MAJOR SUBDIVISION APPLICATION, AND 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION  

Dated and Submitted:  October 15, 2014 
Owner/Applicant:   Adams Ranch MV, LLC (“Applicant”) 
Project:   Parkside in the Meadows, A Professional Workforce Housing Project 
Property:   Lot 640A and OSP 35A 
Address:   306 Adams Ranch Road 
   Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado  

Overview 
Following four public meetings over the past 24 months, including the most recent, a joint work session 
with the Town Council and Design Review Board in order to seek guidance and direction for this 
application, Adams Ranch MV, LLC, (“ARMV” and “Owner”) an affiliate of Eastern Partners, LLC, is 
seeking approval of the Applications set forth herein with respect to Lot 640A and OSP 35A. ARMV and 
its principals have been working with the Town, staff and various boards since 2011 regarding an 
Employee Housing development on Lot 640A (the “Lot”), the site of the former Telluride Apartments 
project. In light of the Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan (“Comp Plan”), which was approved in 2011 
after several years of task forces and public vetting, a designation was established on Lot 640A for 
91employee apartments and an adjacent park, and through the prior meetings, AMRV has sought the 
counsel and approvals for the highest and best solution for the site and the project.  

Pursuant to the Town of Mountain Village Community Development Code (“CDC”), any application(s) on 
Lot 640A are required to be “substantially in compliance” with the Town Comprehensive Plan. And in 
compliance with that requirement, the Owner hereby tenders the current Applications, requesting the 
approval of the following: 

� An increase in the zoning of Employee Apartments to include approval of the 91 units as set forth 
in the Comprehensive Plan, from the 30 units currently zoned, and the transfer from the Town of 
Mountain Village Housing Authority of the additional density points required. 

� A Major Subdivision Application, which will seek to adjust and modify certain lot lines of the 
current Lot 640A and OSP 35A, owned by the Telluride Ski and Golf Company (“TSG”), 
including a replat of the entirety of Lot 640A from Employee Apartment to Active Open Space, 
which said Open Space zoning allows for the development of Employee Housing.  

� And finally, to approve a Conditional Use Permit to allow the use of the newly zoned Active Open 
Space for the specific purposes of A) Employee – Workforce Housing, and B) a public park.  

Pursuant to a recently executed agreement with TSG, which has been included as an integral part of the 
Application, the property will be subdivided and replatted as set forth herein, and certain rights titles and 
interests in the property shall be transferred as set forth in the Agreement with TSG.  

Pursuant to the Town CDC, these Applications are being presented for approval with the representations 
that the mass and scale of the Building will be substantially in the location represented herein, and that 
improvements must be built generally in compliance with the representations set forth in this application. 
Although the Applications do not specifically seek approval of the architectural elements of the project, the 
Applications do seek the following approvals: 

Exhibit A

51



� The location and placement of the apartment building on the site 
� The size and location of the Park 
� The aggregate size (square footage) of the Project, and the general unit mix of the size, number of 

bedrooms and bathrooms 
� The general size and improvements of the Park, and expected amenities thereon. 

During the previous public hearings and worksessions, a great deal has been expressed by the residents of 
the Meadows regarding mass and scale, population impacts, public services, unit mix and the park. ARMV 
continues to solicit insight and input from the residents of adjacent properties like North Star, Coyote 
Court, Fairway Four, The Boulders and others. This submission incorporates many of these comments, 
including prior direction from these Boards in an effort to develop what AMRV expects to be the primary 
location for work force housing in the Telluride region, the bellwether and centerpiece for the Meadows, 
and one of the primary economic drivers for the Mountain Village. All of this is in substantial compliance 
with the Comp Plan requirements for this Parcel, as is demanded by the Town CDC rules for application. 

What Has Changed
Pursuant to the direction provided by both Boards in the last Work Session, there are several things that 
have changed that impact the proposed Project. They are as follows: 

� The primary change in the Project, which reflects the comments and direction provided by the 
Town Council and DRB Board members, and including comments from Meadows residents as 
well, is that the project massing and siting has been further changed. The revised proposal pushes 
the bulk of the massing further up against the aspen grove hillside on the west by another 25-30 
feet, below the fairway for hole number 4. This final push increases the Park to its largest size at 
1.22 acres, approximately 30% larger than before. This change also pulls the north wing of the 
building back another 25-30 feet, now more than 100 feet from Adams Ranch Road.  These 
changes “open” the Project to the Park, rather than closing it off from the Park. Parking is 
expanded adjacent to the park, and the building massing will no longer overshadow the Park, or 
the neighbors to the north.  

� Based on the new wetland delineation, the wetlands will be improved subject to the Corp of 
Engineers to create a man-made creek of sorts down the North Star side of the property line, 
creating separation and inhibiting pedestrian traffic, while also increasing the park-like experience. 

� None of the proposed building will need to encroach into the utility easement with the Timberview 
development along the west side of the property. As a result, all utility relocations will remain in 
the appropriate easement, except that ARMV will agree to grant Timberview an easement for an 
encroaching gas line that doesn’t affect the proposed building relocation.  

As a result, the massing along Adams Ranch has been further reduced, the Park is approximately 40% 
larger than before (not including further discussions with North Star to make it larger), the building no 
longer extends into TSG Open Space, the southern end is still over 60 feet from the closest North Star 
property point, and the angle of the wing closest to Timberview continues to push the impact of the 
massing away from Timberview, further minimizing the visual impacts.  

The effect of this further pushing of the Project into the hill and the further re-siting changes, places the 
majority of the massing into its most appropriate position on the site, and thereby demonstrably minimizing 
the impact of the Project it relates to the entirety of the Meadows. 

52



The Project 
The Proposed concept for this Professional Work Force Housing project incorporates the Master Plan 
approved 91-units, including approximately 5.4% one bedroom units, 62.9% two bedroom units and 31.7% 
three bedroom units. The proposed building includes approximately 80,000 rentable square feet, a leasing, 
office and amenity space, with 2 elevators servicing 3 and 4 floors of units to be built above a single story 
podium parking garage, which is substantially subterranean.  

There will be the required 137 parking spaces, approximately 60% will be underground and 30% will be 
surface spaces.  

ARMV will still work to provide North Star with a “permanent Fix” for their encroachment issues along 
the common property line, including allowing “back yard improvements” in the 16 foot GE area on the site. 
Details of this will be forthcoming. 

In keeping with input from previous meetings, the Proposal will also incorporate the following: 

� The Project will not request any variance for height, and will comply with the 48 foot maximum 
height and 48 foot average height requirements for multi-density buildings outside of the Village 
Core. 

� The Applicant is undertaking a “swap” with TSG which cleans up easement issues and provides 
for the Park development. The executed Agreement is part of this Application. 

� The Applicant will be expanding the Park Area on OSP 35A, including improvements currently 
reflected on the Landscape Plan. The Park would also have a pedestrian path that serviced 
east/west foot traffic along Adams Ranch Road, including a footbridge through the wetlands 
along Prospect Creek. Input from the Town and the Meadow’s neighbors regarding these 
improvements is further expected and encouraged through the remaining process. 

� The Applicant has provided further buffering from all designated wetlands.    

Conclusion 
The Town Community Development Code requires that any application to redevelop a Property such as Lot 
640A must adhere “substantially” the recommendations of the Town of Mountain Village Comprehensive 
Plan. With respect to Lot 640A, the Comprehensive Plan recommended that of all of the potential sites in 
Mountain Village that could be utilized for Employee Rental Housing, Lot 640A had the largest number of 
recommended units in Town. This was clearly due to the site relative flatness and its central location as the 
“hub” of the Meadows, where most of the Town’s deed restricted Locals Housing is located.  

In the Comprehensive Plan, Lot 640A is also the desired location of neighborhood Meadows Park, that 
again due to the sites relative flatness and central location, make its future utilization highly sought after by 
the Meadows citizens. The Application being submitted for your review and approval complies in 
substantially all respects to the requirements and recommendation of the Comprehensive Plan and the 
demands of the Town’s CDC. As a part of these three (3) Applications, we are achieving 91 units as set 
forth in the Comprehensive Plan, and we are providing a 1.22 acre Park with improvements substantially 
compliant to the Comprehensive. 

Nothwithstanding the accuracies of the Applications, our Town and our region is dire, dire need of 
affordable and well-developed “professional” Workforce Housing. The Telluride Ski and Golf Company 
has gone as far as to ask for the unsubstantiated renovation of the existing improvements OR the potential 
installation of temporary housing to mitigate the immediate need for the units envisioned by these 
Application. In the words of the Ski Company’s HR director, “we can’t build it fast enough” to meet their 
current needs.  

53



Whether you review County Needs Studies, overall market analysis, talk to the managers of the 100% 
leased projects in Town, or you simply talk to employees on the street who cannot find any affordable, 
convenient (within 30-45 miles), and quality housing options, this housing is needed now in “the” location 
that Town determined in Task Force analyses it should go.  

The wisdom of the Comprehensive Plan says it should go here. The market says it is needed here NOW. 
And we have submitted Applications that comply with all of the requirements of the CDC. We respectfully 
request you review and approval of these Applications so that we may move ahead expeditiously to get this 
needed Project developed as soon as possible. 

54



The grading at Lot 640 was set in the following manner: 

From Adams Ranch Road, the driveway starts with a small horizontal section along the 
shoulder so that the Adams Ranch drainage can continue to the east and not turn into the 
project.

From the entrance, the driveway dips down in order to enter the garage and then rises to 
be within 12” of the ground floor at the back of the building.  The sag in the road is 
slightly lower than the garage entrance so that the garage can gravity-drain out. Parking 
along the driveway will be perpendicular to the longitudinal slope, so the slope of the 
driveway is less than 4.0% (the same requirement as a fire truck turn-around) to prevent 
the cars from having a steep cross-slope parking space. 

The elevation of the driveway at the SE corner of the building set the first grade (and 
high point) of the park.  This grade must be accessible for snow removal since the snow 
from the parking lot will be piled in this location.  The snow will drain to the east and 
there is a small swale along the parking back to the north.  These requirements set the 
elevation of that corner at elevation 9086. 

Once this elevation was set, the park then slopes north at a constant grade of 4% slope. 
That slope was determined to be the maximum slope and the future park improvements 
can exist at this grade. 

The south end of the park was also pushed down as far as deemed practical and the slope 
of the park was set as steep as considered useable in order to minimize the elevation 
difference between the driveway and the park.  The lower the park, the shorter the slopes 
are up to it.  This maximizes park width.   

Another consideration taken into account was that the slope on the east side is just an 
extension of the existing slope and that all vegetation would be preserved from the point 
of conformance down to the wetlands.  

DB

55



Consultant: Uncompahgre Engineering, LLC
Address: P.O. Box 3945 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-729-0683

Scale

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

1 Worksession Review 10-9-2013

10/ 09 / 2014

DH / BF

DH / BF

P.O. Box 2486 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-708-4795

e-mail: dylanh12@hotmail.com

PROJECT TEAM

PROJECT ZONING DESIGNATION

PROJECT LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Consultant: Foley Associates, Inc.
Address: 125 W. Pacific Ave., Suite B-1
Address: P.O. Box 1385 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-728-6153
Fax: 970-728-6050

2 Design Review 10-14-2013
3 Design Review 11-05-2013
4 Rezone_Density Transfer 08-22-2014
5 Parking Garage Study 10-09-2014

A0.1

Cover

Parkside In The
Meadows

Lot 640A 340 Adams Ranch Road
Telluride, CO 81435
San Miguel County

Employee Housing Proposal

Multi-Family

1 Site Perspective

2 Site Perspective - Street Level

SITE SUMMARY
OVERALL SITE AREA: 143,987.15 SQ FT
PARKING AREA: 25,149.47 SQ FT
BLDG FOOTPRINT: 27,843.85 SQ FT
BLDG TOTAL AREA: 87,016.76 SQ FT
PARK AREA: 34,000 SQ FT
BLDG SITE COVERAGE:19%
PARKING SITE COVERAGE: 17.6%
PARK COVERAGE: 24%
COMMERCIAL AREA: 2,200 SQ FT
RESIDENTIAL AREA: 84,816.76 SQ FT

No. Description Date

Exhibit B

56



! , 

I 
i 
I 
! 

TRACT IDSP- 3" 
iID.1JI'toc 5KI NIO ='J 

Topographic Survey 
A portion of Lot 640A and Tract OSP-35A, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado. 

o E}""~_'-'/1'I<l"""""", 

'"' ::r"","f!"'-'-'/1'!tl""""'''''' 
• ~~""'_''''·IlLUW""'CH', 

"""""""""<=111<""" 
""""'"",",,1IlL'><>OflH' 

""""'''''"'''''''''-,.,.''''' 
"""'""""""""".. 
""""''''''''''''''''''''' 

{ 
I 

BCJlli!, '"_20' 

!OjjOi 

""" """"""""'" ......,.. 0(. poril"" 01 Cot 64<14 ."" r""", OSP--JM ro"" 01 "'"""_ """"" "". """"'" tloId 
~"_20"o""_'''''''''''_ ''''''''''''''''..,._od''_''''''..vIyO(''''2.'''''' '"'l-' 201J ",.,,-m to. ~t ,.,,,,,,,,,iMly, ''i<'«'A',,,,, """ C~ 0( rm;j R. IM-. .r f"%,v !Woci"to~ <>< .. boiltg 
o ~ """""d 5""",..... ~ ""'" not o"".tiM< 0 C""" """,,,y !'fat or ~ s..v.y _ 0' _!nod 
Iy..o""" ",,-.,-'02 G;R.S; 

-
" flY ""''''y ""'" not """,tiMo 0 W. ''''''''" by fCoI.y ... OGiot., • .... '" """" ,;", II,. """"""'" 0( Iii> propMIy or..-t •• f __ . 

_ ""'fm1 ,.,,~t cp rA_'. o •• 1."" "'",,,,,, .,." "" _''''' of OOt.1/t) I .. , 

C"""""""',""",, . onoloot. 

-
"7"0-'72~1"" ..... 0-7"28-60&1 ..... 

p.o. BOX ':085 ,= W. PACIFIC. SUITE _, 

TELLURIDE. cxn..ORADO 

! , 

I 

I 
i 
I 
! 

TRACT IDSP- 3" 
iID.1JRlOC !iIG AM) ='J 

Topographic Survey 
A portion of Lot 640A and Tract OSP-35A, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, Colorado. 

~----

o E}""~_'-1/"I<l-"' '''', 

'"' ::r"",'W"'- ,-1(2'''"-'''''''' ","", 
• ~~_'_r"'·'"'-"""""CIt'. 

""""'''''-''''nrnII<lMf 

""""''''''"''''''''''''''''''' """,,,"""""""_1'V _ 
-.."""""""""" 
""""''''''''''''''''-

{ 
I 

/ICAU, '"_20' 

!OjjOi 

"""_~ o(o-"""oI'ot64"'_ T"""tDSP-JM r..""'~...,,,.. . , .. """"",,,.. 
ou""",,,,_t 2011 "",, _ ,., addlt_"'''''''''''''' """0""od ... __ ....".,""2. o<>i.t.;j.' 
ZOlJ IJ<'>'"kr til< """'" ,..ponoibik~. ''iD«'A',,,,, 0<>0 C~ 01 rm;j R. IM-. .r '0/0;1' !Wocioto~ <><" boiltg 
"~,,,-..,..,. 5""_,,,...-. ~ '"" not ".".ti"'," 0 '_","""y !'fa'.,.~ ""","y """ o. _ino. 
by..o""" .... -.,-' 02 G;1i'.S; 

-" _ ''''''''Y 00.. not " .".ti""o " W • ..,,"'" by I"oI'Y ... OGiat.., ho. '" 0« • .- II, • ...,.,...,., of "'" proportya-o-' •• f __ . 

_ """tmI P<"~' CP TA_'. o •• 1."" ".",,,,,, .,." "" _ ''''' of OOt.1/O f •• , 

"""""""'_ • .".fool. 

-
"70-72~1"" 970-728--60&1 ..... 

p.o. BOX ,:0_ 
,= W. PACIFIC. SUITE _, 

TELLURIDE. cxn..ORADO 

57



C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 T
O

 R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

A
R

E
 A

L
L

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
S

 A
N

D
 I
N

T
E

R
D

IS
C

IP
L
IN

A
R

Y
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

A
N

D
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

N
Y

 D
IS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 T

O
 T

H
E

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 A
N

Y
 F

IE
L
D

 W
O

R
K

 B
E

IN
G

D
O

N
E

 I
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 A

IA
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 A

2
0
1

U
n

co
m

pa
h

gr
e

E
n

gi
n

ee
ri

n
g,

 L
LC

C1

P.
O

. B
ox

 3
94

5
Te

llu
ri

de
, C

O
 8

14
35

97
0-

72
9-

06
83

 L
ot

 6
40

M
tn

. V
ill

ag
e,

 C
O

G
ra

di
n

g 
Pl

an

S
ca

le
: 1

"=
20

'

S
l
!
6
~
I
S
S
!
Q
N
S
'
 

..
,.

..
. 
"
"
'
~
T
'
1
 

T
V

M
m

<
 

~
-

"'
''.

14
 

",'"
14

 

" ~ 

'" '" o 
q 
w 

~ ~ 
~ ~ 

I! I I -i! 

AI'I1"'·-

, , , , 

". 

, 

~---

."". 

~'\ ~ '\ 
\ 

co 
~ 
~ 

~ .., 
~ 

/ 

V 
'4 
I 

e, 
C' 

on 
~ 

>--
'3 

~ 

'0 
, 

~ 

'" o 

58



Consultant: Uncompahgre Engineering, LLC
Address: P.O. Box 3945 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-729-0683

Scale

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

1 Worksession Review 10-9-2013

10/ 09 / 2014

DH / BF

DH / BF

P.O. Box 2486 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-708-4795

e-mail: dylanh12@hotmail.com

PROJECT TEAM

PROJECT ZONING DESIGNATION

PROJECT LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Consultant: Foley Associates, Inc.
Address: 125 W. Pacific Ave., Suite B-1
Address: P.O. Box 1385 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-728-6153
Fax: 970-728-6050

2 Design Review 10-14-2013
3 Design Review 11-05-2013
4 Rezone_Density Transfer 08-22-2014
5 Parking Garage Study 10-09-2014

 1" = 40'-0"

A0.4

Site Photo Overlay

Parkside In The
Meadows

Lot 640A 340 Adams Ranch Road
Telluride, CO 81435
San Miguel County

Employee Housing Proposal

Multi-Family

 1" = 40'-0"
1 Site Arial Overlay

No. Description Date

d ' 
architec1 

-

c------

d 
architecl 

c------

59



Consultant: Uncompahgre Engineering, LLC
Address: P.O. Box 3945 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-729-0683

Scale

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

1 Worksession Review 10-9-2013

10/ 09 / 2014

DH / BF

DH / BF

P.O. Box 2486 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-708-4795

e-mail: dylanh12@hotmail.com

PROJECT TEAM

PROJECT ZONING DESIGNATION

PROJECT LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Consultant: Foley Associates, Inc.
Address: 125 W. Pacific Ave., Suite B-1
Address: P.O. Box 1385 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-728-6153
Fax: 970-728-6050

2 Design Review 10-14-2013
3 Design Review 11-05-2013
4 Rezone_Density Transfer 08-22-2014
5 Parking Garage Study 10-09-2014

 1" = 80'-0"

A0.5

Site Overlay - Wide
View

Parkside In The
Meadows

Lot 640A 340 Adams Ranch Road
Telluride, CO 81435
San Miguel County

Employee Housing Proposal

Multi-Family

 1" = 80'-0"
1 Arial Overlay

No. Description Date

d 
architec1 

c~--

d 
architecl 

c~--

60



Level 2
9097' - 2"

Level 3
9106' - 4"

Level 4
9115' - 6"

Plate Ht
9127' - 6"

Level 1
9088' - 0"

Garage
9078' - 0"

Roof
9140' - 5 1/32"

Level 2
9097' - 2"

Level 3
9106' - 4"

Level 4
9115' - 6"

Plate Ht
9127' - 6"

Level 1
9088' - 0"

Garage
9078' - 0"

Roof
9140' - 5 1/32"

Level 2
9097' - 2"

Level 3
9106' - 4"

Level 4
9115' - 6"

Plate Ht
9127' - 6"

Level 1
9088' - 0"

Garage
9078' - 0"

Roof
9140' - 5 1/32"

Level 2
9097' - 2"

Level 3
9106' - 4"

Level 4
9115' - 6"

Plate Ht
9127' - 6"

Level 1
9088' - 0"

Garage
9078' - 0"

Roof
9140' - 5 1/32"

Consultant: Uncompahgre Engineering, LLC
Address: P.O. Box 3945 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-729-0683

Scale

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

1 Worksession Review 10-9-2013

10/ 09 / 2014

DH / BF

DH / BF

P.O. Box 2486 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-708-4795

e-mail: dylanh12@hotmail.com

PROJECT TEAM

PROJECT ZONING DESIGNATION

PROJECT LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Consultant: Foley Associates, Inc.
Address: 125 W. Pacific Ave., Suite B-1
Address: P.O. Box 1385 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-728-6153
Fax: 970-728-6050

2 Design Review 10-14-2013
3 Design Review 11-05-2013
4 Rezone_Density Transfer 08-22-2014
5 Parking Garage Study 10-09-2014

 1/16" = 1'-0"

A0.2

Elevations

Parkside In The
Meadows

Lot 640A 340 Adams Ranch Road
Telluride, CO 81435
San Miguel County

Employee Housing Proposal

Multi-Family

 1/16" = 1'-0"
1 Elevation 1 - a

 1/16" = 1'-0"
2 Elevation 2 - a

 1/16" = 1'-0"
3 Elevation 4 - a

 1/16" = 1'-0"
4 North

No. Description Date

61



10
 P

A
RK

IN
G

 S
PA

C
ES

18' - 
0"

26' - 
0"

18' - 
0"

26' - 
3"

18' - 
0"

71 PARKING SPACES

TOTAL IN GARAGE

G
A

RA
G

E 
EN

TR
A

N
C

E

18' - 0"

27' - 4"

18' - 0"

64' - 0"

114' - 
3"

106' - 
3"

7' - 
7"

1' - 2"

7' - 
4" 6"

24' - 0"

18' - 0"

8 
PA

RK
IN

G
 S

PA
C

ES

7 PA
RK

IN
G SP

ACES

17 PARKING SPACES

5 PARKING SPACES

8 PARKING SPACES

12 PARKING SPACES

4 PA
RK

IN
G SP

ACES

25' - 0"

Consultant: Uncompahgre Engineering, LLC
Address: P.O. Box 3945 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-729-0683

Scale

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

1 Worksession Review 10-9-2013

10/ 09 / 2014

DH / BF

DH / BF

P.O. Box 2486 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-708-4795

e-mail: dylanh12@hotmail.com

PROJECT TEAM

PROJECT ZONING DESIGNATION

PROJECT LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Consultant: Foley Associates, Inc.
Address: 125 W. Pacific Ave., Suite B-1
Address: P.O. Box 1385 - Telluride, CO 81435
Phone: 970-728-6153
Fax: 970-728-6050

2 Design Review 10-14-2013
3 Design Review 11-05-2013
4 Rezone_Density Transfer 08-22-2014
5 Parking Garage Study 10-09-2014

 1/16" = 1'-0"

A2.1

Garage Plan

Parkside In The
Meadows

Lot 640A 340 Adams Ranch Road
Telluride, CO 81435
San Miguel County

Employee Housing Proposal

Multi-Family

 1/16" = 1'-0"
1 Garage

GARAGE LAYOUT: 71 PARKING SPACES

SURFACE LAYOUT: 67 PARKING SPACES

TOTAL PARKING: 138 PARKING SPACES
136.5 REQUIRED- 4 EXTRA FOR PUBLIC PARK

PARKING SUMMARY

No. Description Date

62



Exhibit C:  Wetland Maps

llRl~!cl 
$~=(Sl~!Ol~ 

F&LEY 
AIUCIATI •• IIIC. 

e rt em 
EI<_.·~.·I",,",," 

Exhbl 

Ci<Mt: 

1 

SCALE: '-=50' 

F&LEY 
A.UIIATI •• 1111. 

e rt 4' 
a._.·~.·I",,",," 

Exhbl 

Cli<nt: 

1 
63



Z:IOld WlJob,IJOBSI990\90131IdwgIWetlands USCE 12-14.dwg, 121221201411:30:00 AM, marco 

I ' • 

!lfUl!'" 
I'i: H~ Ii! H~ 

!! i::i 

! 

i 

1 

~, N 

~ *~~ -II' 
~ 

• 

§)==II 

~:3§J 
O~ 
~~ 
~==II 

1L!Dl1 (6i3(Q) 

~ 
"i9J ==II 
o :3§J 

@R) ~ 
~~ 
§) ==II 
l§§l 

@R) 
~IF' 
§)§) 
l§§l==ll 
:3§J 

Z:IOld WlJob,IJOBSI990\90131IdwgIWetlands USCE 12-14.dwg, 121221201411:30:00 AM, =0 

-II' 
~ 

• 

IUO) 1 lSi 3l lID 
64



 

Exhibit D:  FAR Map

65



1

Chris Hawkins

Subject: FW: Lot 640 /Telluride Apartments

From: JOLANA VANKOVA [mailto:jolanavanek@yahoo.com]
Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 10:56 PM 
To: djensen@mtnvillage.org; Cath Jett; d.scillaci@mtnvillage.org; John Howe; Michelle Sherry; Jonette Bronson; Marty 
McKinley; Jackie Kennefick 
Subject: Lot 640 /Telluride Apartments 

Dear Town Council, 

Thank you volunteering your time to look at what is presented to you. 

Lot 640 /Telluride Apartments as proposed to be rebuilt by Randy Edwards and partners present 
several  problems. 

1)The project is 3x the size as  appropriate for our neighborhood (FAR is 3x the size of the other 
developments here); 

2) Figures used to calculate the amount of people to be housed in the project do not seem to be 
accurate (almost 200 bedrooms quoted as your staff to result in a bit over 200 people). Even the 
formula used by your staff calculated correctly results in over 300 people; 

3) During the last DRB meeting, DRB member Phil Evans said that everybody knows in our area 
there are often 6-8 people living in each room. I have personally seen it more than once: 

4) My neighbors far and wide in entire Meadows area are saying that maximum size should be the 
same size it is now - 30 units. Perhaps larger and nicer apartments, but 30 maximum. From respect 
to merchants showing up in force at the last DRB meeting (majority participating while on payroll)  our 
team of neighbors organized a petition asking to keep the project to maximum 45 units. Yet 30 is 
what most people really want when I speak with them. And a ball field as is now; 

We have a chance not to ruin Meadows neighborhood with an over sized project. Much talked 
about  crunch for workforce housing this past year coincides with our first year of legal 
marijuana in Colorado ! I weekly run into people who have moved here for a year to smoke pot 
legally. They plan to return home. 18 months ago we did not have this housing problem.  When other 
states will have legal pot we may no longer have this problem. 

Some good questions to ask ourselves: Perhaps some of the jobs merchants can't easily fill (e.g. 
dishwasher, driver, etc) are not being filled not because of housing , but real reason being - no ski 
pass with those jobs ? I have noticed one lodge advertised these menial jobs WITH SKI PASS, and 
their add diapered in just a couple of  days. Could that be a part of a key to housing ? People have 
couch surfed in Telluride area for decades. So why such drama about this now ? 
Keep your eye on a long term livability. Tossing 600 people with their cars and dogs onto the one 
road down here in Meadows, and on the 14 seat bus route - is not wise. --- We know - we live here ! 

How is the 'affordable housing" actually managed is another issue. Have you checked how do we 
qualify people for living in those units ? Do your realize that this entire proposed 91 units complex 

Exhibit E  Public Comments

66



2

could house merely 91 people, as only one person per unit has to actually work in the R-1 School 
District ?
Perhaps looking at working with changing the DEED RESTRICTION rules might be appropriate. 
Ruining a neighborhood quality of life in order to house 91 people is quite shortsighted. If anyone of 
the folks who secure a deed restricted unit decides to quit their job, they can live there even if they 
NO LONGER WORK here...clogging up that housing capacity. Is the Council aware of this ?- Inviting 
Shirley Diaz from San Miguel Housing Authority and asking here some important questions might be 
quite productive. 

Dear Council, as your constituent,  I ask you to pay attention to the bigger picture ,and long term. 
Rushing blindly to support the town budget yet again with building feels is not a long term answer. 
Being rushed  to approve a building complex with FAR 3x of the surrounding development, road with 
surface that is falling apart, insufficient sewer system is not an answer. Yes, sewer seems to be also 
a problem. Here at the Boulders 2 homes had toilets overflow...one home experience literally 'the s... 
hit the ceiling' in their bathroom. A couple of other homes had their toilets almost overflow- right to a 
brim, with placing no clogging material in. -Not a situation to bring another 600 people into. We in the 
Meadows are counting on your to make the right decision. Ask yourself" would I put this right 
under my windows ? A large city like tenement, with many people, cars and dogs being 
allowed ". The old Telluride Apartments were quite noisy, how about 3x as large ? 

Thank you considering these points, 

Respectfully,

Jolana Vanek,The  Boulders

67



1

Chris Hawkins

Subject: FW: Lot 640A

From:�Maneri�[mailto:cmaneri2@cox.net]��
Sent:�Wednesday,�February�11,�2015�11:51�AM�
To:�Jackie�Kennefick�
Subject:�Lot�640A�
�
I�have�sent�a�letter�but�want�to�reiterate�the�Hugh�mistake�I�and�many�others�feel�about�increasing�the�density�at�lot�
640A.�Please�make�sure�that�those�on�the�council�hear�the�list�of�our�concerns.�
1.�Traffic�danger�especially�for�the�children�biking�down�Adams�Ranch�Rd�2.�Noise�issue���you�can�easily�look�back�at�the�
number�of�police�complaints�there�were�from�just�30�units�both�notice�and�many�other�violations�that�seemed�to�take�
forever�to�get�resolved�3.�Increased�burden�on�the�chondola�to�get�to�town�4.�Decrease�in�property�values�and�potential�
law�suit�cost�to�fight�neighboring�condo�complexes�who�may�see�fit�suit�due�to�the�change�in�density�5.�Potential�
removal�of�the�beautiful�views�/�we�all�paid�so�dearly�to�have�6.�Increase�dog�traffic�and�the�increase�mess�it�will�bring�
�
�
All�though�we�agree�some�housing�is�need,�we�also�know�that�spaces�become�over�occupied�to�save�on�rent,�thus�30�apt�
may�easily�house�150�people,�90�might�bring�over�400�people.��We�know�there�are�plans�for�5�such�complexes,�please�
use�theses�complexes�to�spread�out�the�people�and�not�over�crowd�this�one�area.��
�
Thank�you�again�for�hearing�our�concerns��
�
Celia�Maneri�
North�Star��
�
�
�
�
Sent�from�my�iPad�

68



1

Chris Hawkins

Subject: FW: Lot 640 A (Telluride Apartments) 

From: Vise, Kerri (SW V&V COE) [mailto:kerri.vise@honeywell.com]
Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 1:14 PM 
To: Jackie Kennefick 
Cc: Vise, John (AZ77); COX 
Subject: Lot 640 A (Telluride Apartments)  
�
Hi�Jackie,�
�
We�live�in�the�Northstar�Condominiums�and�received�the�notice�for�pending�rezoning�changes�in�the�mail.��We�would�
like�the�following�to�part�of�the�Council�packet�for�their�meeting�on�February�19th.���
�
We�have�grave�concerns�on�this�increase�in�density.��We�believe�we�need�further�analysis�on�how�the�additional�density�
will�adversely�affect�our�community.��We�are�aware�of�the�need�for�additional�affordable�housing�to�support�the�ski�
resort,�but�this�may�be�overkill,�with�a�zoning�in�the�45�to�60�range�more�appropriate.�
�
Please�assess�and�address�our�concerns:��
�
1.��Why�is�the�rezoning�being�changed?��If�the�original�plan�was�for�30�units,�what�has�changed�necessitating�91�units?�
2.��Has�a�study�been�performed�analyzing�the�impact�on�Mountain�Village�Cable�and�Internet?��How�will�the�internet�be�
affected?��Can�the�company�handle�the�additional�users?�
3.��Is�there�going�to�be�a�gate�and�fence�proposed�between�the�two�subdivisions,�or�are�the�new�tenets�going�to�have�
access�and�be�able�to�walk�through�Northstar�on�the�way�to�Big�Billies?�
4.��Why�is�there�a�need�for�commercial�space?�
5.��What�does�Full�Use�Active�Open�Space�Zoning�mean?��Is�this�going�to�be�designated�as�a�park�which�will�be�
maintained�and�appeared�by�the�Town�of�Mountain�Village?�
6.��Based�on�the�architectural�diagrams,�it�looks�like�units�15�18�will�have�their�current�views�blocked�by�the�new�4�story�
building.��Can�you�confirm?�
7.��Will�there�be�pets�allowed?��If�so�is�there�a�restriction�to�the�number�of�pets?���
�
Based�on�our�initial�review,�we�are�not�in�favor�of�the�new�building�(increased�height)�and�increase�in�units�
(congestion).���The�proper�due�diligence�needs�to�be�performed�before�moving�forward�with�a�zoning�change�at�this�
time.�
�
Thanks,�
�
John�and�Kerri�Vise.�
�

69



Mountain�Village�–�Meadows�Landscape�Improvements�
Questionnaire:�June�17,�2014�
�
�
Do�you�prefer�more�active�or�passive�space�for�neighborhood�parks�(larger�park�areas)?�
Active�things�in�the�larger�parks�when�available.�But�no�lights.�Lights�would�attract�people�to�hang�out�
later�and�be�loud.��Horse�shoes,�volleyball�pit,�tennis�courts�would�be�nice.�The�open�flat�space�is�very�
valuable�since�it�is�hard�to�find�this.�We�use�the�space�behind�Northstar�regularly�to�play�soccer,�
baseball,�etc.�It’s�nice�to�have�a�flat�green�space.��
�
�
What�do�you�treasure�and�want�to�preserve�in�the�parks�and�trails�at�the�Meadows?��
I�think�a�clean�and�well�maintained�park�is�great.�The�most�important�thing�is�the�green�flat�open�space�
in�back�of�Northstar.�It�is�great�to�have�an�area�like�this�in�the�meadows.�Everyone�goes�back�there.�
�
�
Anything�else�you’d�like�to�tell�us?�
Let’s�do�what�we�can�to�keep�the�open�space�behind�Northstar�the�way�it�is�or�improve�it�a�bit.�If�the�
building�was�knocked�down�and�some�work�done�it�could�be�a�tremendous�park�with�tennis,�basketball,�
maybe�even�a�baseball�field.�It�could�be�done�cheaper�by�simply�maintaining�all�the�grass�areas�so�it�is�
nice�like�the�patch�which�is�currently�maintained�by�the�village.��
�
I�think�town�should�consider�purchasing�this�property�from�Randy�Edwards�and�create�a�park�which�
would�rival�Town�Park.��
�
I�have�given�this�some�thought�and�the�village�should�consider�purchasing�this�property.�You�might�even�
find�that�there�could�be�some�willing�investors�in�the�meadows.�My�thought�was�to�use�the�location�
where�the�building�is�now�and�create�some�townhomes�like�Northstar(Could�even�be�a�part�of�
Northstar)�Maybe�8�10�units.�These�could�be�sold�in�the�open�market�to�offset�the�cost�of�purchasing�the�
property�and�landscaping�the�open�area.��This�type�of�development�would�fit�in�perfectly�in�the�
meadows�and�keep�our�great�community�intact.�
�
I�think�dense�housing�which�understandably�is�needed�should�be�placed�closer�to�the�core�thereby�
creating�a�community�in�the�core�which�is�desperately�needed�to�attract�business�there.�
�
Another�thought�is�to�create�a�rec�center�which�was�discussed�years�ago.�The�space�is�perfect�for�it�and�
would�even�draw�people�from�town�to�use�it.�I�am�not�sure�of�the�cost�to�build�this�rec�center�but�seems�
like�if�it�were�there�it�would�get�used�a�lot.�Indoor�swimming,�racquetball,�workout�room,�etc.�The�town�
could�even�sell�memberships�to�this.�You�might�find�that�investors�could�be�found�by�selling�shares�in�
the�project�thereby�entitling�the�shareholders�to�free�access�or�something�along�that�lines.�
�
I�think�it�is�a�great�opportunity�to�create�something�all�Mountain�Village�residents�could�enjoy.�
�
Dumping�everyone�in�the�meadows�is�not�the�answer.�It�clogs�adams�ranch�road�and�adds�too�many�
people�to�the�meadows.�We�have�a�great�community�here�and�short�term�rowdy�renters�is�not�what�any�
of�us�want�here.�A�lot�of�us�have�lived�here�for�a�long�time�and�enjoy�the�peace�and�quiet.�We�have�the�
only�sustainable�community�in�the�village.�Other�homes�are�set�too�far�apart�we�are�in�close�proximity�
and�all�know�each�other.�It�is�enjoyable.�We�don’t�want�that�to�change�but�only�be�improved�upon.�

70



�
Thank�you�for�taking�the�time�to�read�this.�Feel�free�to�contact�me�to�discuss�anything�further.�
�
Dave�Doemland�

71



Town�Council�Density�Meeting�–�To�be�included�in�packet�for�2/19�meeting.�

These�are�my�personal�comments�and�they�may�or�may�not�reflect�the�opinions�of�others.�

I�have�been�a�homeowner�in�MV�for�14�years.�I�have�been�a�business�owner�in�MV�for�10�years.�I�have�
never�before�spoken�at�one�of�these�meetings�as�a�resident�and�I�have�never�attended�one�merchant�
meeting�for�MV.��

I�am�here�today�because�this�proposed�development�directly�affects�me�as�a�homeowner�and�a�business�
owner�in�MV.�I�understand�at�the�DRB�meeting�a�few�weeks�ago�that�other�representatives�in�the�
business�community�stood�up�and�voiced�their�opinion�in�favor�of�developing�lot�640A�with�as�many�
units�as�possible�so�that�their�workers�had�a�place�to�live.�I�too�have�experienced�the�same�problem�with�
employee�housing�through�the�years.�That�doesn’t�mean�that�I�want�all�of�them�living�in�my�back�yard.�
There�are�other�locations�where�developments�can�occur�which�make�more�sense.�

I�remember�through�the�years�numerous�surveys�and�discussions�about�how�to�“Vitalize�the�Core”.�
Businesses�want�more�people�there�because�that�means�more�business.�Makes�sense�to�me.�Why�don’t�
we�put�the�people�where�we�want�them,�near�the�“Core”.�This�would�add�color�to�the�village�and�create�
a�vibrant�year�round�community�instead�of�the�ghost�town�that�it�is�for�a�good�part�of�each�year.�

I�am�not�able�to�keep�my�business�open�year�round�because�there�are�simply�no�people�to�do�business�
with�for�a�solid�5�months�a�year.�I�have�managed�to�make�it�work�but�I�would�certainly�like�to�be�open�
year�round�but�I�can’t�justify�paying�an�employee�to�sit�and�do�nothing.��

When�I�first�heard�of�the�quantity�of�units�potentially�being�developed�in�the�meadows�as�a�business�
person�my�first�thought�was�“I�need�to�open�a�business�in�the�meadows”.�I�was�certain�I�would�be�
successful.�I�even�contacted�Mr.�Edwards�and�asked�him�to�add�some�commercial�space�to�his�plans�and�
I�would�be�interested�in�buying�or�leasing�the�space�for�my�new�business.�Why�did�I�do�this?�Because�a�
business�will�survive�and�thrive�when�located�in�close�proximity�to�where�people�live.�

I�have�been�telling�those�that�would�listen�this�for�years�about�the�“Core”.�A�business�will�survive�and�
thrive�when�located�in�close�proximity�to�where�people�live.�If�we�want�the�“Core”�to�be�a�bustling�
community�where�people�live�and�work�then�let�people�live�there!�If�we�don’t�want�the�“Core”�to�be�
that�community�then�place�the�people�somewhere�else�and�stop�crying�about�having�no�businesses�that�
want�to�open�in�the�“Core”.�

I�have�owned�my�home�in�Northstar�for�14�years�now�and�know�intimately�what�30�units�means�to�that�
parcel.�I�also�know�what�3�times�that�number�of�units�means.�When�it�was�30�units�most�summer�nights�
I�could�not�even�open�my�windows�at�night�to�let�fresh�air�in�because�it�was�too�loud.�Cookouts�almost�
every�night�with�kids�running�around�way�past�there�bed�time�and�mine.�We�heard�car�alarms�at�all�
hours.�In�general�it�was�very�busy�and�noisy�there.�We�had�to�call�the�MV�police�numerous�times�to�try�
to�quiet�the�parties.�I�purchased�my�property�with�this�in�my�backyard�so�I�couldn’t�complain�much.��

I�am�sure�that�there�are�some�in�this�room�that�are�rolling�they’re�eyes�saying�“Of�course�he�doesn’t�
want�the�development�he�lives�next�to�it”�Those�of�you�rolling�your�eyes�should�ask�yourselves�if�you�
wouldn’t�do�the�same.�

But�now�a�new�development�is�being�proposed�which�will�triple�the�quantity�of�people�in�my�backyard.�
On�top�of�it�the�development�is�going�to�be�temporary�rental�units�for�temporary�people.�We�can�live�

72



with�a�few�new�neighbors�which�fit�into�our�community�and�will�welcome�them�with�open�arms.�I�would�
prefer�this�new�development�be�condo’s�which�are�for�sale.�The�theory�being�that�a�homeowner�has�a�
vested�interest�in�maintaining�their�place.�Which�makes�for�a�better�neighbor.��

30�units�seems�about�right.�91�units�seems�wrong.�

This�is�simply�too�many�people�being�placed�in�a�location�which�doesn’t�make�sense.�We�have�a�great�
community�in�the�meadows.�Those�of�us�that�live�there�love�living�there.�We�have�a�real�neighborhood�
where�our�kids�can�still�walk�to�each�others�houses�to�play.�We�can�walk�our�dogs�around�and�talk�to�our�
neighbors�as�we�do.�We�have�a�real�connection�with�one�another�and�a�real�community.�

These�are�my�personal�comments�and�they�may�or�may�not�reflect�the�opinions�of�others.�

Thank�you�for�your�time.�

Dave�Doemland�

73



We are NOT the "Ghetto in the Meadows" 
Are you aware of what is happening in our neighborhood? 

Lot 640A. Otherwise known as "Telluride Apartments" is being proposed to be developed with 91 units. 

The parcel is currently zoned for 30. 

This will place a strain on our neighborhood and disrupt our mmmunity. 

History 

Telluride Apartments has 30 units and has been vacant for several yt!ars now because of mold issues. The 

Mountain Village ORB has recommended to Town Council that 91 units can be built there. The comprehensive plan 

for Mountain Village also has an additional 246 units to be developed in the Meadows In addition to the 91 talked 

about here. 

This does not mean that the development is going to happen. We ca:n still make a difference. 

What does 91 units mean to the meadows? 

• Potentially 394 new residents living In our neighborhood 

• Upwards of 180 more dogs and 180 more cats in our neighborhood 

• 182 cars being parked and driven daily on Adams Ranch road 

• Additional noise and disturbances 

• A daily stream of people walking on the roads and sidewalks 

• Stress on our fragile infrastructure (Sewer, Internet, Water, Transportation, Emergency services) 

• Per Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan Big Billie's is to become a hotel. 

• New housIng is not being added to increase density but simply swapping density to create a hotel . 

• This will all be an Impact to our way of life 

Who are we? 

• We are the only "Real" community of residents that live and work In Mountain Village. 

• We are NOT the "lost people of Mountain Village", we are h ere year round . 

• We want to see our homes appreciate in value 

• We want to raise our children in a safe environment 

• We want to live and work in peace and not be the dumping ground for temporary workers who serve the 

ski resort 

• We are the backbone of the town of Mountain Village 

What can we do? 

1. On Feb. 19th there is a meeting where Town Coundl will decide on the acceptable density of lot 640A. Go 

to it and let them know we are not the "Ghetto in the MeadClws". 

2. We are formulating a peti~ion which will need to be signed so that we can get a vote on the density Issue. 

We are working with tight deadlines so that it can be brought to the Feb. 19th meeting. Sign it. 

Come to the Meadows P\Jst office on Tuesday Feb. lOU. fronl4:30-6:30 for Information and signing. 

3. Send on emoil to mvmeadows1S@gmail.comor coI1970-728-1092withyournome 
and which complex you live in and we will add you to our email list so you can stay informed. 

We are NOT the "Ghetto in the Meadows" 
Are you aware of what is happening in our neighborhood? 

Lot 640A. Otherwise known as "Telluride Apartments" is beinG proposed to be developed w it h 91 units, 

The parcells cu rrently zoned for 30. 

This will place a strain on our neighborhood and disrupt our community. 

History 

TeUuride Apartments has 30 units and has been vacant for several years now because of mold issues. The 

Mountain Village ORB has recommended to Town Council that 91 units can be built t here. The comprehensive plan 

for Mountal" Village also has an additional 246 units to be developed in the Meadows In addition to the 91 talked 

about here. 

This does not mean that the development is gOing to happen . We ca'n stili make iii di fference. 

What does 91 unlU mean to the meadows? 

• Potentially 394 new residents living In our neighborhood 

• Upwards of 180 more dogs and 180 more cah in our neighborhood 

• 182 cars being parked and dri ... en daily on Adams Ranch road 

• AddItional noise and disturbances 

• A daily stream of people wallting on the roads and sidewalks 

• Stress on our fragile infrastructure (Sewer, Internet, Water, Transportation, Emergency services) 

• Per Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan Big Billie's is to become a hotel. 

• New housing is not being added to increase density but simply swappIng density to create a hotel. 

• This will all be an Impact to our way of life 

Who a re we? 

• We are the only "Real" community of residents that li ... e and work In Mountain Village. 

• We are NOT the "lost people of M ountain Village", we are h ere year round. 

• We want to see our homes appreciate in ... alue 

• We want to raise our children in a safe environment 

• We want to IIlIe and work in peace and not be the dumping eround for temporary workers who serve t he 

ski resort 

• We are the backbone 0/ the town 0/ Mountain Village 

What can we do? 

1 On Feb. 19th there is a meeting where TOWn Coundl will decide on the acceptable density of lot 640A. Go 

to it and let them know we are not the "Ghetto in the Meadows". 

2. We are formulatIng a petit jon which will need to be signed so that we can get a vote on the density Issue. 

We are working with tight deadlines so that it can be brought to the Feb. 19111 m eeting. SIgn it. 

Come to the Meadows p..,st office on Tuesday Feb. lOth from 4:39-6:30 for Information and 51.nine. 

3. Send an email to mvmeadows15@gmail.com or <aIl970-728-1092with yourname 
and which complex you live In and we will add you to our email list so you can stay informed. 

74



1

Chris Hawkins

Subject: FW: Lot 640A

From: Roz Strong [mailto:rosamond56@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, February 09, 2015 9:47 PM 
To: Jackie Kennefick 
Subject: Lot 640A 

Dear Telluride Mountain Village Town Council,  

I encourage you all to not increase the density on Lot 640A, Telluride Apartments site, to 91 units.  I know the 
DRB has passed this recommendation on to you and I do not agree with their decision.

I live in the Meadows area and an increase in density to 91 units will dramatically effect our living 
environment.  

I am not sure where all the members on the DRB board live, but I believe it is not in the Meadows area and that 
not all of them even live in the Mountain Village.  What are they basing their decision on to increase the density 
when they do not have a day to day experience of what it is like to live in our community?  How many of them 
have spent a day or more watching the community in action? I know the business community is crying out for 
more housing because there is a current crunch.  When the movie production leaves town there will be 
vacancies.  All of a sudden there is a urgency...how long will this urgency hold true?  

The local residents of the Meadows area have gathered together time and time again requesting the Town of 
Mountain Village limit this increase in density on Lot 640A.  Please consider what the local residents are asking 
for.  This central location is not a good place for a large number of people to live.  The increased vehicle traffic 
on that particular corner along with the increased bicycle traffic is just one example of a disaster waiting to 
happen.

One again, I ask you to be thoughtful of the whole community when making your decision.  Stop, Look and 
Listen.

Sincerely, Roz Strong.  Owner and resident at Prospect Creek Condos in the Meadows of TMV. 

75



1

Chris Hawkins

Subject: FW: A640

From: Rosa Lea Davis [mailto:rosalea_davis@hotmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 2:38 PM 
To: Jackie Kennefick 
Subject: A640 

My�name�is�Rosa�Lea�Davis,�I�live�327�Adams�Ranch�Rd,�Parker�Ridge.�I�am�opposed�to�the�91�unit�density�on�
the�a640�project.�I�think�the�impact�to�our�roads�and�community�would�a�travesty�to�the�people�
currently��living�in�the�area.�I�agree�with�the�original�zoning�of�31�units�allowing�a�park�and�open�space�to�
buffer.�
thank�you�Rosa�Lea�Davis�
�
Sent�from�Windows�Mail�
�

76



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Eric Wolff <ericwolff2@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 8:37 PM
To: Chris Hawkins
Cc: Jackie Kennefick
Subject: Re: Concerned Meadows citizen

On Feb 10, 2015, at 9:23 AM, Allison Wolff wrote: 

Dear�Town�Council,�
��
I�am�a�resident�of�The�Boulders�and�am�deeply�concerned�about�the�planned�development�at�lot�640A.�
��
Though�we�are�all�thrilled�to�get�rid�of�the�moldy�eye�sore�building�currently�there,�lot�640A�is�currently�zoned�for�only�
30�units.�An�increase�to�91�units�will�put�an�enormous�strain�on�our�neighborhood�and�way�of�life�here,�and�the�
proposed�comprehensive�plan�adding�another�246�units�to�the�Meadows�is�simply�not�feasible.�
��
Those�of�us�who�live�in�the�Meadows�today�are�here�for�the�long�haul.�We�moved�here�because�it�is�a�beautiful,�safe�
place�to�raise�our�kids,�walk�our�dogs�and�life�a�good�life.�The�potential�addition�of�394�new�residents�(in�just�the�
proposed�91�units),�many�of�them�short�term�workers�who�are�not�invested�in�building�a�safe,�clean,�thriving�
community,�will�have�an�enormous�impact.�We�will�have�that�many�more�cars�driving�on�the�roads�where�our�kids�are�
learning�to�ride�bikes,�that�much�more�pollution�and�dust�from�cars�on�our�roads�for�our�kids�to�breathe,�that�many�
more�strangers�they�will�have�to�navigate�when�playing�or�walking�to/from�the�school�bus.�In�addition,�we�could�have�up�
to�180�additional�cats�and�180�additional�dogs�in�the�neighborhood�–�it’s�simply�too�much�impact�on�this�already�
stressed�ecosystem.�
��
Lastly,�I�am�deeply�concerned�about�water.�Before�this�moves�forward,�our�residents�would�like�to�see�a�complete�
before/after�study�of�the�estimated�water�impact�of�this�development.�My�understanding�is�that�we�are�already�
stressing�our�water�and�sewer�systems�and�I�can�tell�you�first��hand,�as�someone�who�runs�a�business�from�home,�that�
we�are�stressing�our�internet�provider.�We’d�also�like�to�better�understand�how�the�town�would�shore�up�transportation�
and�emergency�services�to�support�this�number�of�new�residents.�
��
In�summary,�here�is�my�ask:�

�          Please�provide�water,�sewer,�internet,�transport�and�emergency�services�studies�and�plans�with�our�community�
before�any�decisions�are�made�

�          Please�consider�the�impact�on�the�lives�of�those�of�us�who�are�deeply�invested�in�making�the�Meadows�a�safe,�
thriving�community�here�in�Telluride.�Overbuilding�will�result�in�huge�impacts�on�our�quality�of�life.�Please�
spread�out�the�proposed�developments�rather�than�placing�them�all�in�our�area.�

��
Thank�you,�
��
Allison�Wolff�
3�Boulders�Way�
O:�970�728�7997�
C:�415�312�0000�
www.vibrantplanet.net�
��

77



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Eric Wolff <ericwolff2@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 9:10 PM
To: Jackie Kennefick; Chris Hawkins
Subject: Lot 640

Town�Counsel/All�
�
I�am�a�resident�of�the�Boulders�in�the�Meadows.��I�am�deeply�concerned�that�there�is�still�talk�of�a�91�unit�development�
still�on�the�table�for�lot�604.��I�was�hoping�that�after�the�enormous�outcry�the�last�time�this�was�proposed�that�there�
would�be�some�deep�soul�searching�on�this�councils�part�that�would�have�lead�to�some�sort�of�compromise.��Let�me�
make�it�clear�that�I�understand�the�need�for�more�employee�type�housing.��That�being�said�I�think�that�replacing�a�31�
unit�building�with�a�91�unit�building�in�the�already�dense�Meadows�is�……..irresponsible.�
�
Some�key�points�for�me:��
1)�Do�we�have�enough�infrastructure�in�place�to�provide�for�this�sort�of�impact�in�the�already�over�used�reign�in�the�
Meadows??���
2)There�has�been�no�talk�of�re�paving�Adams�Ranch�Rd.��Has�no�one�noticed�what�poor�condition�this�road�is�in?���
3)�Will�there�be�added�law�enforcement�budget�to�handle�this�influx�of�seasonal�residents??���
4)�Do�we�have�enough�water?���
5)�What�will�the�impact�be�on�the�public�transportation�that�is�barley�adequate�be?���
6)�Where�is�a�community�garden,�a�park�and�additional�landscaping??�
�
There�has�been�talk�of�a�$500,000�allotment�for�"improvements"�to�the�Meadows�area.��As�far�as�I�can�tell�all�that�has�
been�talked�about�with�regard�to�this�money�is�to�add�items�that�would�fall�under�infrastructure�and�very�little�to�do�
with�improvements�to�the�Meadows.��Side�walks�and�bike�lanes�are�infrastructure.��Parks�and�community�gardens�are�
examples�of�"improvements".�
�
In�closing,�I�am�very�frustrated�that�this�council�has�not�made�it�easier�for�the�residents�that�live�and�work�in�this�
community�to�be�able�to�voice�their�thoughts�on�this�matter�by�scheduling�meetings�that�would�be�better�attended�by�
working�folks,�such�as�an�evening�meeting.��Some�of�this�feels�like�you�are�trying�to�pass�this�without�the�input�of�us,�the�
people�that�live�and�work�here.�
�
Will�you�make�sure�that�counsel�members�receive�this�letter?�
�
Thank�you�Eric�Wolff�
�
�

78



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Nash, Timothy C. <Timothy.Nash@KutakRock.com>
Sent: Friday, February 06, 2015 11:48 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: To Town Council Re Telluride Apartments/Lot 640A

All, as a North Star owner who has spoken against the unreasonable re-sizing of this project at every 
opportunity (including back to the “conceptual” master plan), I continue to agree that the scale as shown is 
completely unreasonable for the site and the community.  I point out that the number of units is not completely 
relevant but rather, the density of each unit is key.  I think something like 120 bedrooms (however sliced and 
diced by number of “units”), each with reasonable occupancy limits is the proper metric.

Additionally, we’ve heard almost nothing of:

1.        the overall development scheme, including the for-profit developer’s financing plans, status of 
commitments, how much the developers stand to profit (directly and indirectly), tenant income 
restrictions, occupancy rules (including limits on persons per bedroom, subleases, vehicles and 
pets), duration of leases, other CCRs,…;
2.       the developer’s ability to sell and assign its rights in and to the property; or
3.       key design elements, including landscaping, visual and noise buffering, pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic mitigation, lighting, trash/recycle,… or anything else that will affect the daily lives of 
those living and working in the Meadows.  

The thought of 91 units, each with 3 or 4 bedrooms and multiple pets and vehicles, being rented short-term 
without occupancy limits is more than a little unsettling and the impact on existing public safety, transportation, 
parking, internet and other infrastructure potentially overwhelming.

We strongly urge a reasoned sense of community-minded decision-making by limiting the maximum number of 
bedrooms to 120 with reasonable restrictions placed on the developer and tenants.

Tim Nash, North Star #22

This E-mail message is confidential, is intended only for the named recipients above and may contain 
information that is privileged, attorney work product or otherwise protected by applicable law. If you have 
received this message in error, please notify the sender at 402-346-6000 and delete this E-mail message.  
Thank you.

79



Dear Mountain Village Town Council,   February 1, 2015 

 

Please accept my comments regarding Lot 640A, the Parkside Apartments. 

 

I ask that you please not approve a density transfer from 30 units to 91 units on lot 

640A.  

 

I applaud your efforts to work with a developer to provide much-demanded rental 

housing. But tripling the density of that site is too great of an impact on those of us 

who live in the Meadows.  

 

A 91-unit project is incompatible with the Meadows neighborhood. For comparison, 

Shandoka in Telluride has 134 apartments in nine buildings—Parkside would be 

about 70% of the size of Shandoka—completely out of scale with the surrounding 

development.   

 

As a county commissioner, I fully support the smaller workforce housing projects 

being proposed throughout Mountain Village. It certainly makes sense to put 

workforce housing close to the core (to help vitalize the core,) close to the gondola, 

and close to parking; and smaller developments are so much more livable and 

manageable from a homeowners’ association standpoint than large apartment 

buildings. (Those of you who have been here a while will remember that at 30 units, 

Telluride Apartments was the source of almost constant management problems.)   

 

As far as I can tell, none of the issues brought up by Meadows residents during 

earlier discussions of 640A with regard to impact-mitigation have been addressed in 

the latest development application. 

 

The impact of new development (cars, car alarms, dogs, people, parties, lights, 

delivery trucks, etc) should be carefully considered and addressed before such 

increases of population are considered. These include things like: a pulse gondola 

from the Post Office to the core or at least transit options for west-end-Meadows 

residents to get to the Chondola, neighborhood facilities such as parks, bike lanes, 

better side walks, improved internet, trails from the Meadows to the core, a 

community gathering place, etc. (Sidewalk mprovements from the Meadows parking 

lot to the Chondola, which are in the works, are vitally important now, even without 

new development.) 

 

The Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan, adopted June 2011, is a guiding 

document. It is not zoning, nor is it binding. According to the Comp Plan over 240 

additional housing units are contemplated for the Meadows before 640A is even 

considered (see list below*), more than doubling the current density of the 

Meadows!  

 

During the Comp Plan discussions, most of the focus was on where and how to add 

hot beds to Mountain Village.  There was also quite a bit of talk about protecting 

80



second homeowners from the impacts of employee housing (at Boomerang and 

Comanche). Looking at the final Comp Plan, it seems like the Mountain Village 

planning model is to use the Meadows as the employee-housing density dump.  

 

Please consider the quality of life of the 500 or so people that already live here full 

time and are vital to the quality of Mountain Village’s community.  

 

With the exception of Big Billies (150 single-resident-dorm units, which can be quite 

noisy, but at least it’s close to public transit) currently all developments in the 

Meadows are between 10 and 25 units. A 91 unit multi-bedroom building is 

completely incompatible, and the Meadows Area does not have the infrastructure to 

support it.  

 

Of all the businesses that are vocally supportive of this, I wonder how many of those 

individuals would want a development almost as big as Shandoka out their back 

door in one building.  

 

I’m trying to imagine how drastically this will change the quiet neighborhood vibe in 

the Meadows, which is already strained by the ski parking lot. To add this much 

density is disrespectful to those of us who live here. Please try to imagine that.  

 

The Meadows is currently a great place to live. Many, many families are choosing to 

raise their children here. It’s quiet, safe, sunny, close to the chondola and close to ski 

lifts. Please be very careful before destroying the neighborhood feel of the Meadows 

for the hundreds of us who already live here.  

 

Thank you for carefully considering the impacts on those whom this development 

will most greatly affect. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Joan May 

Fairway Four resident since 1992 

 

 

  *Meadows Projects Contemplated in the Comp Plan: 
 
  Parcel A Prospect Plaza +   68 units 
  Parcel B Town Shops +       70 units 
  Parcel C Lot 644 +               53 units 
  Parcel D Lot 651-A  +           53 units 
      244 units 

81



February 2, 2015 
 
Dear Mountain Village Town Council, 
 
Thank you for reading my following comments on Lot 640A. 
 
I am asking that you not transfer 61 units of density to Lot 640A. A change from 
30 to 91 is too much for that area and the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
Four years have been spent on this project. I thank the Mountain Village Town 
Council, The Design Review Board, Town Planners and the local citizens in 
their efforts to listen and hopefully make a decision on density that is 
compatible and in harmony with the existing Meadows community. 
 
According to the Meadows Development Table there are other areas that are 
targeted for development. If all these areas are developed according to the 
Comprehensive plan the Meadows will have 337 more units (including 91 units 
on Lot 640A). This is a lot of density! It will double the population of the 
Meadows. 
 
The developments that already exist in the Meadows, excluding Big Billies, are 
all 30 units or less. Smaller developments are much easier to manage, have 
less noise, parking problems, dogs, etc.  
 
When I bought my condominium it was with the understanding that Telluride 
Apartments (Lot 640A) was zoned for thirty units. I never realized that the 
density could be tripled!  Had I known this was a possibility, I probably would 
not have bought a North Star condominium. 
 
Randy Edwards has said numerous times that there will be excellent 
management at Parkside (formerly Telluride Apartments). Randy Edwards is a 
developer and will most likely sell this development after it is completed. What 
guarantee does the neighborhood have that what is being said pre-
development will continue after the project is finished?  
 
It is a reality that there will be more than one person in a one bedroom, two 
people in a two bedroom and three people in a three bedroom. It is highly likely 
that there could be up to two people per bedroom. The population at Parkside 
could be from 300-400 people with 91 units. 
 
Employee housing needs to be placed throughout Mountain Village where 
amenities are accessible in order to support vibrant, sustainable, year-round 
neighborhoods. The Meadows should not be used as the dumping ground for 

82



density transfers or to reduce the impacts of employee housing on second 
homeowners. 
 
The Meadows is a wonderful place to live. It is a vibrant community of working 
people and families. Please let us keep it this way!  
 
Once again, please do not transfer 61 units of density to Lot 640A.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Tami Huntsman 
North Star unit 16 
 
 

83



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Grimes, Rich <rgrimes@tellurideskiresort.com>
Sent: Tuesday, January 06, 2015 10:34 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Affordable Housing

Chris
            I am addressing this in support of affordable housing in the Telluride/Mountain Village area.  I am a  
Supervisor for Telluride Ski and Golf Resort (in both Ski School and Golf Operations).  During the last 20 years 
I have seen our local employee pool shrink as more local housing has been converted to second or short term 
rental housing.   The current growth of our region is being stifled by the lack of employee housing.   I support 
any project that can provide, affordable and plentiful employee accommodations 

Thank you 

Richard�Grimes�
Supervisor�
Telluride�Ski�and�Snowboard�School�
Adult�Group/Private�Lessons�
565�Mountain�Village�Blvd.�
Telluride�Mountain�Village,�Co.�81435�
Direct:�970�728�7534�
Fax:������970�728�7496�
rgrimes@tellurideskiresort.com�
�

84



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Kelly, John <JKelly@tellurideskiresort.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 07, 2015 3:54 PM
To: Chris Hawkins
Cc: Young, Heather; Proteau, Jeff
Subject: Letter for DRB

Hi�Chris,��

Please�consider�the�following�letter�in�support�of�more�affordable�housing�in�the�Mountain�Village,�in�particular,�using�
the�Telluride�Apartments’�space�for�this�purpose.��

Dear�Design�Review�Board�and�Mountain�Village�Residents,��

I�wanted�to�take�a�minute�to�comment�on�the�growing�debate�over�the�best�possible�land�use�for�the�Telluride�
Apartments’�space�in�the�Meadows�area�of�Mountain�Village.�In�my�position�as�Director�of�Resort�Services�for�the�
Telluride�Ski�Resort,�I�am�responsible�for�hiring�approximately�175�winter�seasonal�employees.�Of�those�175�positions,�
approximately�100�jobs�need�to�be�filled�by�first�year�staff,�new�to�the�Mountain�Village/Telluride�region�and�in�search�of�
housing.�Finding�housing�for�this�seasonal�demographic�has�always�been�difficult,�but�we�have�now�reached�a�tipping�
point.�Currently�three,�five,�and�ten�year�community�members�are�unable�to�find�a�place�to�live,�making�it�virtually�
impossible�to�find�housing�for�the�influx�of�winter�seasonal�employees�that�help�make�this�a�world�class�destination.�Big�
Billies,�Village�Court,�and�Shandoka�began�putting�year�round�and�seasonal�employees�on�wait�lists�in�August�of�this�past�
year.�This�is�by�far�the�earliest�this�has�happened�in�my�eight�years�of�working�for�the�ski�resort.�

While�the�benefits�of�affordable�housing�might�be�subtle�and�not�as�obvious�as�other�uses,�providing�affordable�housing�
for�local�employees�absolutely�benefits�every�member�of�this�community.�If�we�continue�to�use�available�land�for�
anything�other�than�affordable�housing�our�community�will�begin�to�see�the�effects�throughout�town.�Fewer�staff�to�get�
Lift�9�ready�on�a�powder�morning.�Less�restaurants�to�choose�from�on�a�Friday�night.��Not�enough�staff�to�support�the�
incredible�resources�we�have�at�our�doorstep�such�as�festivals,�non�profits,�and�artistic�ventures.�Anyone�reading�this�
letter�could�add�five�items�to�that�list�right�now.��

In�addition�to�what's�reflected�in�the�classifieds�everyday�(seemingly�not�enough�people�in�town�to�fill�the�amount�of�jobs�
needed�to�sustain�the�growth�of�Mountain�Village�and�Telluride),�there�is�also�the�issue�of�service�and�engagement�
level.��A�local�employee�living�within�their�community�is�going�to�be�much�more�committed�and�involved�in�giving�back�
than�someone�who�is�commuting�an�hour�each�way�to�work.�Mountain�Village�and�Telluride�have�seen�tremendous�
growth�in�the�short�time�that�I�have�been�here�as�evidenced�by�new�skier�visit�records,�additional�summer�festivals,�
record�setting�sales�revenues,�and�much�more.�Affordable�housing�is�one�area�that�has�not�maintained�this�level�of�
growth.�

I�do�understand�that�no�matter�what�side�of�the�argument�you�are�on,�everyone�recognizes�the�need�for�more�affordable�
housing.�However,�currently�designating�remaining�open�space�for�parks�or�similar�amenities�tells�me�the�scale�of�the�
housing�problem�is�not�fully�understood.�I�cannot�overstate�enough�how�serious�of�a�problem�this�is�for�any�employer�in�
the�area�trying�to�staff�seasonal�positions.�We�might�not�realize�the�benefits�of�affordable�housing�to�the�entire�
community�until�the�benefits�that�so�many�local�employees�provide�this�community�are�gone.���

Thank�you�for�your�time,�

John�Kelly�
Director���Resort�Services�

85



2

�
Telluride�Ski�&�Golf�Resort�
D�970�728�7523�
C�970�708�3960�
www.tellurideskiresort.com�
�

86



1

Chris Hawkins

From: mike ste. marie <mikestemarie@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 07, 2015 8:12 PM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Affordable Housing

I've�living�here�since�1975!��
�I've�been�renting�at�VCA�for�the�past�20years..�
I'm�writing�to�you�to�support�the�affordable�housing�meeting�onThusrday,�since�I�am�scheduled�to�work�teaching�ski�I�will�
not�be�able�to�attend�.�
Thank�You�for�your�consideration.�
�
Mike�Ste.Marie�

87



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Steve Hindman <steveh@fidalgo.net>
Sent: Thursday, January 08, 2015 7:54 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: affordable housing

Hi - I am a five year veteran of the ski school staff and have lived at 315 Adams Ranch Rd for three of those 
years now. I am fortunate to have a good friend who owns a condo and rents me a room at an affordable price. 
If I did not have that connection, I fear I could not afford to live in either Mountain Village or Telluride. Please 
do what you can to create more affordable housing for those who make their living and want to make their 
home in this area. 

Thanks,

Steve Hindman 
steveh@fidalgo.net
360-303-0473
Ski with Steve

88



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Bill Miller <billmiller1@mvcable.net>
Sent: Thursday, January 08, 2015 8:30 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Meadows Employee Housing Meeting with Mountain Village DRB on Thursday, Jan. 8, 

2015 at 10am

Mr. Hawkins: 

I am an owner/resident on Spring Creek Drive in the Meadows area.  I support the pending application for more employee 
housing in the region.  Like many residents in the Meadows, I am concerned about the substantial increase in the number 
of residents in our area but still support this application.  If this application is approved, I feel that it is important that Mtn. 
Village executes the proposed improvements in the Meadows area for pedestrian flow in our neighborhood and the 
creation of a park adjacent to this development. 

Sincerely, 

Bill Miller 
3 Spring Creek Drive 

89



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Nana Naisbitt <nana@telluridescience.org>
Sent: Thursday, January 08, 2015 8:32 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Apartment complex - today's meeting

Dear Chris, 

I wanted to write a letter of support for the proposed 91 unit rental apartment complex, but my computer 
charger died. I am in Denver with my phone as my only device. Forgive the informality. 

I am writing as an employer in the region and as a renter in region. I know how difficult it is for workers to find 
places to live. Many units are privately owned, and more often than not, are up for sale. Living in a unit that can 
be sold from under you is stressful and disruptive. It is essential that Telluride and MV grow the rental market 
to house employees and keep prices in some measurable level of competitiveness. Adding 91 units now would 
go a long way to alleviating the lodging shortage. 

Thank you for your consideration of my comments. 

Sincerely,
Nana Naisbitt 

90



To�whom�it�may�concern,��

�

� Thank�you�for�taking�the�time�to�hear�my�voice�in�the�issue�of�affordable�housing�in�the�Telluride�
area.�I�am�writing�in�strong�support�of�further�development,�availability,�and�long�term�planning�of�
affordable�housing�for�the�workforce�of�Telluride�and�Mt.�Village.�Make�no�mistake�that�this�is�a�problem�
NOW�and�a�problem�that�will�only�become�worse.��

� I�manage�a�department�for�the�Telluride�Ski�and�Golf�Resort�(ticket�checking)�that�like�so�many�
groups�in�the�area,�depends�on�seasonal�employees.�It�has�become�harder�and�harder�to�recruit�and�
keep�these�seasonal�employees�and�the�main�contributing�factor�is�the�lack�of�affordable�housing.��

� I�am�sure�that�you�will�hear�this�same�point�made�by�many�people�but�I�wanted�to�make�sure�to�
include�my�voice�as�well�as�the�voice�of�the�supervisory�team�that�I�represent�in�SUPPORT�OF�
AFFORDABLE�HOUSING.��

�

Thank�you,��

�

Tyler�Hollingsworth�

Resort�Services�Manager�

Telluride�Ski�and�Golf�Resort�

91



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Jack Wesson <jwesson@me.com>
Sent: Thursday, January 08, 2015 10:32 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Parkside in the Meadows

Chris,
I'm writing you to express by support of the proposed Parkside in the Meadows project in the Mountain 
Village.  First I think that the need for more employee housing locally has been demonstrated time and time 
again.  This was demonstrated in the last 'Needs Assessment' and as an urgent need at that time, and that need 
has only become more significant in the years since that was completed.  Secondly the 'Comp. Plan' identified 
the best locations for filling this need, and this location was designated for 91 units.  It is walking distance to the 
chodola and adjacent to the bus route, which significantly reduces the carbon footprint of the occupants, a 
primary public benefit identified in the Land Use Ordinance.  Furthermore the existing abandoned structure is 
basically a blight, so I really consider this to be a brown field site, in need of redevelopment.  If the developer 
can demonstrate the practicality of designing the density on this site, and the existing utility and access 
infrastructure are already in place, then I think it sets a very bad precedent to ignore all of the hard work and 
public input that went into the comp plan.   

Respectfully, 
Jack Wesson 

Jack Wesson
Jack Wesson Architects, Inc.  
970-728-9755 ext. 27 (p) 
970-519-1551 (c) 
970-728-4483 (f) 
jwesson@me.com

92



Mountain�Village�Community�Development�Department�
455�Mountain�Village�Blvd.,�Suite�A�
Mountain�Village,�CO�81435�
�

Regards:�306�Adams�Ranch�Rd�Development�Application�

Dear�DRB�&�Town�Council:�

I�am�a�relative�new�owner�at�North�Star,�Unit�10.�I�selected�my�unit�due�to�the�empty�property�between�
my�unit�and�its�beautiful�views�of�the�Mountains�that�would�never�be�blocked.�I�have�looked�at�this�
proposed�application�and�I�have�several�concerns.�

First�and�foremost,�putting�a�park�to�the�back�of�my�unit�with�multiple�large�trees�will�undoubtedly�block�
my�views�and�bring�more�dogs�and�people�into�our�yard.�Something�we�already�struggle�with�at�this�
time.�I�clean�up�after�multiple�animals�on�a�regular�basis.�I�bought�this�unit�for�the�views,�if�they�are�
obstructed�not�only�will�I�no�longer�enjoy�them,�I�will�struggle�to�sell�my�unit�in�the�future.�

My�other�concern�is�the�number�of�apartments�being�proposed.�The�addition�of�population�brings�up�
many�concerns.��When�I�researched�living�at�North�Star,�the�only�thing�I�heard�that�was�negative��was�
the�noise�from�the�apartment�complex�behind�us,�which�at�that�time�had�significantly�less�people�living�
there�than�what�is�being�proposed.�The�rumors�of�big�parties�and�unruly�behavior�were�talked�about�all�
over�town.�By�the�time�I�moved�in,�the�apartments�had�been�closed,�so�the�situation�had�been�resolved.�
This�has�made�North�Star�a�very�peaceful�place�to�live.��By�increasing�the�population,�not�only�may�this�
situation�reoccur,�but�the�amount�of�traffic�will�also�increase�along�Adams�Ranch�Rd.�This�road,�as�you�
know,�is�very�dangerous�road�with�summer�bikers�and�winter�weather.�

I�realize�that�there�is�a�need�for�some�additional�housing�in�Mountain�Village.�However,�the�fact�that�we�
have�gone�over�3�years�without�these�apartments�does�not�make�it�seem�reasonable�to�increase�the�
numbers�of�apartments�by�so�many.��Please�do�not�ruin�our�fabulous�community�by�allowing�these�
changes�to�take�place.��If�some�apartments�need�to�be�built,�so�be�it,�but�don't�try�to�sell�increasing�the�
number�of�apartments�by�giving�us�a�park�we�do�not�want.�Please�whatever�the�decision,�do�not�block�
our�views!�

Sincerely�

Dr.�Celia�Maneri�

302�Adams�Ranch�Rd�#�10�
8231�E�Appaloosa�Trl��
Scotsdale,�AZ�85258�
480�215�5056�
�

93



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Ray Farnsworth <ray@newsheridan.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 07, 2015 2:17 PM
To: Chris Hawkins
Cc: 'Randy Edwards'
Subject: Lot 640A Rezoning - Telluride Apartments

Hi,�Chris,�and�Happy�New�year!�
�
As�the�General�Manager�of�the�New�Sheridan�I�am�one�of�the�largest�employers�in�the�Telluride�and�Mountain�Village�
region.��As�such,�I�submit�this�letter�in�support�of�the�increase�in�density�on�Lot�640A�that�complies�with�the�Mountain�
Village�Comp�Plan�for�the�91�units�of�employee�apartments�planned�for�the�old�Telluride�Apartments�site.��This�
community�is�in�dire�need�of�employee�housing.��It�is�my�understanding�that�the�MV�comp�plan�identified�this�site�
specifically�for�this�number�of�units�and�that�the�application�meets�all�requirements�for�approval.��I�wholeheartedly�
support�this�application�and�urge�your�approval�to�help�address�the�extremely�concerning�lack�of�employee�
housing.��Thanks,�Ray��
�
Raymond�E.�Farnsworth�
General�Manager�
New�Sheridan�Hotel,�Chop�House�Restaurant�&�Bar�
231�West�Colorado�Avenue,�Post�Office�Box�980�
Telluride,�Colorado��81435�
Ph.��970.728.4351�
Fx.��970.728.5024�
ray@newsheridan.com�
�
The�New�Sheridan�Hotel�in�Telluride�is�the�premiere�destination�resort�in�Colorado.�We�were�awarded�the�2015�Four�Diamond�Hotel�rating.�The�
New�Sheridan�was�also�recognized�by�the�readers�of�Conde�Nast�Traveler�as�one�of�the�top�5�"Best�Places�to�Ski�&�Stay�in�North�America"�and�
number�1�in�service.��To�learn�more�about�the�New�Sheridan�Hotel,�New�Sheridan�Chop�House,�New�Sheridan�Parlor,�New�Sheridan�Historic�Bar�
or�The�Roof�,�please�visit�our�website�at�www.newsheridan.com��

�
�

94



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Elissa Dickson <edickson@telluridelibrary.org>
Sent: Wednesday, January 07, 2015 1:18 PM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: affordable housing

 
I�would�like�to�express�my�support�for�affordable�housing,�specifically�in�the�Rezoning�of�the�former�Telluride�
Apartments�site�and�the�affordable�housing�project�(approx..�43�units)�in�Mountain�Village�that�is�being�discussed.�� 
 
Thanks! 
Elissa Dickson
Adult Programs Coordinator 
Wilkinson Public Library
970-728-4519 x147

95



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Brian O'Neill <brian@oneillstetina.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 07, 2015 11:02 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Lot 640A

Chris,

Happy New year to you. I hope you are well. 

I wanted to send you a brief note to share my support of the 91 units at Lot 
640A. My hopes are that you can find a way to do as many units as 
possible while maintaining the integrity of the neighborhood. This is a 
tremendous location for our workforce given its proximity to public 
transportation. I know you understand the dire housing situation and I 
applaud you for your efforts in helping to solving the problem.

This is a great opportunity to further this effort. 
--
Sincerely,  

Brian F. O'Neill
Telluride Properties
Director
P.O. Box 37 
237 S. Oak Street 
m. 970-708-5367 
http://www.tellurideproperties.com/brianoneill

96



1

Chris Hawkins

From: 'Mark Dollard' <dollard@seatoskiproperties.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 07, 2015 10:15 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Meadows Employee Housing Meeting with Mountain Village DRB on Thursday Jan 8th 

at 10am

Hello�Chris,�
��
I�am�writing�you�a�quick�note�to�express�my�support�for�the�proposed�91�unit�employee�apartments�on�Lot�640A�in�the�
Meadows.��As�a�local�employer�I�have�a�unique�view�of�affordable�housing�and�our�community’s�lack�of�it.��I�generally�
support�projects�of�this�nature,�particularly�if�the�project�is�attended�with�an�adequate�amount�of�density.��We�only�have�
a�limited�number�of�spots�to�develop�these�projects,�and�the�housing�shortage�will�continue�to�be�an�issue�for�many�
years�to�come,�so�I�fully�support�the�original�MV�Comprehensive�Plan�that�puts�an�adequate�amount�of�density�on�this�
project�in�this�location.�
��
Thanks�for�your�time.��Please�let�me�know�if�I�can�provide�anything�else.�
��
Sincerely,�
��
Mark�Dollard�
President�
970.729.8830�
dollard@telluride.com�
��

�
��

97



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Ben Jackson <bkjack@rmi.net>
Sent: Wednesday, January 07, 2015 8:03 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Meadows Employee Housing Meeting with Mountain Village DRB on Thursday Jan 8th 

at 10am

Chris�
�
Please�accept�this�email�as�support�for�the�pending�application�in�front�of�the�Town�of�Mountain�Village�for�the�
Meadows�Employee�Housing�Project.�We�have�all�seen�the�recent�articles�in�the�newspapers�with�regards�to�the�
shortage�of�workforce�housing.�I�have�lived�in�Town�27�years�and�over�those�years�been�a�retail�business�owner�as�well�
as�a�landlord.�I�have�never�seen�so�many�people�trying�to�find�housing�in�or�within�a�15�minute�drive�to�Mountain�
Village/Telluride.��
�
This�area�of�the�Mountain�Village�was�created�for�just�this�type�of�project.�Please�approve�the�91�units�being�requested�
by�the�developer,�or�more�if�it�can�fit�on�the�site.�This�project�is�but�a�Band�Aid�on�the�overall�regional�housing�shortage�
and�will�show�the�public�at�large�that�the�Town�of�Mountain�Village�is�serious�about�providing�housing.�
�
I�have�heard�rumors�of�the�Town�of�Mountain�Village�purchasing�this�parcel�for�open�space?��Please�tell�me�this�is�
unfounded,�if�not�whoever�is�pushing�for�more�open�space�in�our�region�needs�to�step�outside�and�take�a�right�or�a�left�
we�are�surrounded�by�it!!�
�
PLEASE�READ�THIS�EMAIL�OF�SUPPORT�INTO�PUBLIC�RECORD�AND/OR�PROVIDE�IN�ANY�MEETING�PACKET�
�
Best�
�
�

�
�
�
Ben�Jackson,��
�
c�I��970.708.1495
f�|�970.728.3049�
e�|bkjack@rmi.net�
�

98



1

Chris Hawkins

From: tcpgreene@aol.com
Sent: Wednesday, January 07, 2015 9:14 AM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: Employee Housing Project at the Meadows

Good morning Chris and Board members,  
As a year round resident of Mountain Village I would like to encourage the Town to approve the 91 unit Employee 
Housing project at the Meadows. 
The area is desperate for employee housing. As everyone knows the quality of the service industry is dependent on 
having a high level of employees.This makes in town housing the most basic requirement. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
Please approve this project for the future of the area. 

 Thank you, 
Tim and Marcia Greene 

99



1

Chris Hawkins

From: Alice Martin <amartin@telluridelibrary.org>
Sent: Tuesday, January 06, 2015 7:13 PM
To: Chris Hawkins
Subject: housing

Please�make�affordable�housing�a�priority.�
��
Alice�Martin�
P.O.�Box�3654�
Telluride,�Co�8143�

100



1

Katie Cox

From: JOLANA VANKOVA <jolanavanek@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, January 05, 2015 4:08 PM
To: Forward bbrown; Forward kbrown; Forward deckman; Forward pevans; Forward 

ggarner; Forward bhoins; Forward kperpar; Forward ltrujillo; Forward dzemke; Chris 
Hawkins; Katie Cox

Subject: Regarding this upcoming DRB meetin on January 8, 2015

Dear esteemed members of Design and Review board, 

On your agenda for this upcoming meeting we see an item pertaining to Lot 640 A. As a secretary of 
the Boulders HOA I see or speak with, our members /neighbors  on a regular basis. 

I would like to bring to your attention that I have so far heard all neighbor still  have the same 
perception of the proposed behemoth of a project. It is way too big for our neighborhood, by mass , 
scale and the proposed amount of people it would bring into our neighborhood. 

We seem to always arrive at the same sentiment:  Anything than the current 30 units is not 
appropriate. And now we also see new areas that might be suitable for affordable housing. 
Something to think about. 

I will see you on Thursday,

Jolana Vanek, 
Meadows resident 

101



1

Katie Cox

From: John Vise <vise1@cox.net>
Sent: Sunday, January 04, 2015 4:21 PM
To: Katie Cox
Cc: Dave Doemland; johnhowe Howe; John Vise; Kerri Vise
Subject: Notice Of Pending Development Application:  Lot 640A and Tract OSP-35A

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Katie, 

I live in the Northstar Condominiums and received the notice for pending rezoning changes in the mail.  I have some questions. 

1.  Why is the rezoning being changed?  If the original plan was for 30 units, what has changed necessitating 91 units? 
2.  Has a study been performed analyzing the impact on Mountain Village Cable and Internet?  How will the internet be affected?  Can the 
company handle the additional users? 
3.  Is there going to be a gate and fence proposed between the two subdivisions, or are the new tenets going to have access and be able to walk 
through Northstar on the way to Big Billies? 
4.  Why is there a need for commercial space? 
5.  What does Full Use Active Open Space Zoning mean?  Is this going to be designated as a park which will be maintained and appeared by the 
Town of Mountain Village? 
6.  Based on the architectural diagrams on your website, it looks like units 15-18 will have there current views blocked by the new 4 story building.
Can you confirm? 
6.  What is the purpose of the DRB Hearings?  Will there be a dial in established? 

Based on my initial review, I am not in favor of the new building (increased height) and increase in units (congestion), but would like to get more 
information.  However, I am in favor of freeing up commercial and residential land for park use. 

Thanks,

John Vise 
Personal
vise1@cox.net
(480) 451-3690 Home 
(602) 738-9074 Cell 

102



1

Katie Cox

From: L Roddick <rdltd@msn.com>
Sent: Friday, December 12, 2014 4:25 PM
To: Katie Cox
Subject: Lot 640A and Tract OSP-35A

Hi Katie�
�
I own one of the Outlaws units.  I have a question regarding the Notice of Pending Development 
Application for Lots640A and Tract OSP-35A.  I am not understanding the inclusion of Tract OSP-35A.  Is 
Mountain Village planning to build employee housing anywhere on this Tract?  �
�
Thank you,  Laurie�
�
Laurie Roddick
Roddick & Dunbar Ltd.
Landscape Architecture 
970.708.4696
�
PO Box 600�
Telluride, Colorado 81435��
��
www.RoddickLtd.com�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

103



1

Katie Cox

From: Virginia Hinshaw <vhinshaw@hawaii.edu>
Sent: Friday, November 21, 2014 2:45 AM
To: Katie Cox
Subject: Lot 640A

Dear Mr. Cox,�
 �
We are writing in opposition to the proposed plans by the developer for Lot 640A, formerly Telluride 
Apartments, next to Northstar where we have owned a condo for over 16 years.  The impact of this 
plan on the current and future residents in the Meadows would be highly negative and create a 
diminished quality of life for all Meadows residents, such as increased infrastructure demands, more 
foot and car traffic, diminished property values, lower tax revenues – all serious issues.  This 
proposed large increase of residents in the Meadows does not reflect planning that would benefit the 
community in the long run.  The proposed density of 91 units is way too high - even at the former 
density, there were numerous problems from people walking through our area as a shortcut (lot of 
foot traffic) to noise from cars and people.  We are already a high density area, so there is a definite 
need to cap the number of units to no more than 30 and require the inclusion of open space for 
landscaping and adequate design for traffic flow in and out of the Meadows for all guests and 
residents.  What we truly need in that area is a park – green spaces for gatherings are non-existent in 
our area yet would greatly improve the quality of life for residents now and into the future.  Many of us 
have continually stated our concerns about the developer’s proposal for 91 units on many occasions -
our voices deserve to be heard and respected.  Thank you for your consideration - Bill and Virginia 
Hinshaw, #13 Northstar.�
 �
Virginia S. Hinshaw�
Chancellor Emeritus�
Professor of Tropical Medicine, Medical Microbiology and Pharmacology�
John A. Burns School of Medicine�
651 Ilalo Street, MEB 402F�
University of Hawai‘i M�noa �
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813�
Phone:  (808) 692-1215�
FAX:  (808) 692-1267�
Email:  vhinshaw@hawaii.edu�
��

104



1

Katie Cox

From: Rick Idler <rsihandmd@comcast.net>
Sent: Tuesday, November 11, 2014 8:41 PM
To: Katie Cox
Subject: Lot 640A development

Once again the town is dumping high density employee housing into the Meadows.  As  a home 
owner along Adams Ranch Road this means more traffic, noise and dust.  No provisions are being 
made to directly connect this population to the village core.  Wonder why the Village Core is an 
economic dead zone.  The people that work and require services don't live there.  New employee 
housing should be in the Core. The Meadows doesn't need more density.  Convert the Meadows 
Apartment to a park for those who already live there.  This development is not consistent with a 
community commitment to give all home owners in Mountain Village a quality experience in the 
mountains.  Richard Idler 101 Lupine Ln 

105



Exhibit F

February 12, 2015 

Chris Hawkins, AICP 
Town of Mountain Village, CO 
455 Mountain Village, Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

RE: Telluride Apartments Infrastructure Analysis (water and sewer) 

Dear Chris, 

934 Main Ave.,Unit C 
Durango, CO 81301 

Ph (970) 385-4546 
Fax (970) 385-4502 

Russell Planning and Engineering, Inc. (RPE) evaluated existing water and sewer infrastructure servicing the 
proposed Telluride Apartments project in the Meadows Area of the Town of Mountain Village. 

For the water distribution system, infrastructure was analyzed for both current build-out and build-out with 
an increase of 60 units on the Telluride Apartments lot. Under both peak demand scenarios, adequate 
domestic flow along with fIre flow demand is available. 

The sewer collection system was analyzed for current peak flows and also flows at peak build-out with the 
additional 60 units. It was determined that the flattest pipe (l8-inch pipe at a .72% slope) below the 
collection point for the additional 60 proposed units will handle the additional flows. 

If you bave any questions, please give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

i~r, p.E. 
Senior Project Manager 

1 

February 12, 2015 

Chris Hawkins, A1CP 
Town of Mountain Village, CO 
455 Mountain Village, Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

RE: Telluride Apartments Infrastructure Analysis (water and sewer) 

Dear Chris, 

934 M ain Ave.,Unit C 
Durango, CO 81301 

Ph (970) 385-4546 
Fax (970) 385-4502 

Russell Planning and Engineering, Inc. (RPE) evaluated existing water and sewer infrastructure servicing the 
proposed Telluride Apartments project in the Meadows Area of the Town of Mountain Village. 

For the water distribution system, infrastructure was analyzed for both current build-out and build-out with 
an increase of 60 units on the Telluride Apartments lot. Under both peak demand scenarios, adequate 
domestic flow along with fire flow demand is available. 

The sewer collection system was analyzed for current peak flows and also flows at peak build-out with tbe 
additional 60 units. It was determined that the flattest pipe (l8-inch pipe at a .72% slope) below the 
collection point for the additional 60 proposed units will handle the additional flows. 

If you have any questions, please give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

i~r, p.E. 
Senior Project Manager 

1 

106



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 
              
TO:  Town Council 
   
FROM: Chris Hawkins, Director of Community Development 
 
FOR:  Meeting of February 19, 2015 
 
DATE:  February 12, 2015 
 
RE: Meadows Improvement Plan 
             
 
Purpose of Meeting 
 
There are three main goals for the Council worksession:  (1) direction on the final path for the 
sidewalk from Fairway Four to the Adams Ranch intersection by Big Billies; (2) ensure we have 
the final list of desired improvements; and (3) direction on final 2015 projects. 
 
Framework 
 
The Town Council directed the creation of a Meadows Improvement Plan as part of the 2014 
budget and associated performance measures.  The main intent for this plan is to provide the 
desired community infrastructure and amenities to support existing development, and planned 
development as envisioned in the Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan’s Meadows Subarea 
Plan.  
 
The Meadows Improvement Plan has its foundation in the following Comprehensive Plan 
policies: 
 
Subarea Plan Introduction.  The following actions will lead the way to achieving the 
principles,  policies and actions of the Meadows Subarea Plan. 
 

 Improve connection to Mountain Village Center and/or Town Hall Center Subareas with 
a year-round chondola and/or pulse gondola connection and with an enhanced rubber 
tire system, as needed. 

 Provide a paved trail for pedestrians and cyclists from the Meadows Subarea to the 
Mountain Village Center Subarea. 

 Explore the construction of a two-story parking structure, with a green playfield roof, to 
alleviate traffic congestion and allow visitors to utilize the year-round gondola or summer 
paved trail for easy access to Mountain Village Center;  provide an amenity for the 
neighborhood, such as a day care. 

 Construct improved pedestrian connections and enhanced community amenities. 
 

  

107



Principle II, Policy F.  Provide the following list of improvements to create a better sense of 
community:  

1. Plant trees and shrubs on the north side of Adams Ranch Road, especially between 
Coyote Court and the Boulders entrance.  

2. Plant trees and shrubs on south side of existing cement sidewalk.  
3. Plant trees and shrubs on the north side of the proposed park by Telluride Apartments.  
4. Repave Meadows Run Parking lot.  
5. Install guard rail on Adams Ranch Road above Coyote Court.  
6. Replace dying trees surrounding Meadows Run Parking lot.  
7. Replace the wetland bridge decking with green building material.  
8. Install a cement sidewalk from Big Billie’s Apartments to the Post Office instead of a 

painted line as shown on the Meadows Subarea Plan Map. 
9. Construct two or more tree islands in the middle of Meadows Run Parking Lot. 
10. Work with private lot owners to plant flowers and flowering shrubs such as lilacs. 
11. Create a sidewalk from Spring Creek to Fairway Four as shown on the Meadows 

Subarea Plan Map. 
12. Improve the safety and efficiency of major road intersections for all users – pedestrians, 

drivers and cyclists. 
 
The Town Council conducted a special site walk and meeting on the Meadows Improvement 
Plan on January 20, with the draft staff notes from that meeting shown in Exhibit A. 
 
Funds Spent To-Date 
 
The Meadows Improvement Plan has spent $61,883.14 in 2014 for surveying, wetland 
delineations, engineering and landscaping services, which leaves $438,430 for work on actual 
improvements in 2015. 
 
Fairway Four to Adams Ranch Intersection 
 
Town Council agreed in 2015 to initiate Section 4, with some differing opinions on the exact 
location of the sidewalk.  Exhibit B contains all of the consultant prepared sections to-date for 
the plan per direction provided in 2014 Council meetings.  Section 4 shows the sidewalk leading 
from Fairway Four on the west side of the access road along the Meadows Parking Lot to a 
cross walk across the Northstar access drive.  The sidewalk then is shown running on the north 
side of Adams Ranch Road to the main intersection by Big Billies. 
 
At the January Council meeting, it appeared that a majority supported moving the sidewalk from 
Fairway Four to the Northstar access drive on the east side of the access road, and then cross 
Adams Ranch Road to follow along the north side as drawn.  Section 6 shows a blue line with 
this route.  One Council member felt that the sidewalk should continue on the south side of 
Adams Ranch Road all the way to the Big Billies intersection as shown in Red. 
 
Staff is looking for the final direction on Section 4 so that engineered plans can be developed for 
subsequent bids and completion in 2015. 
 
  

108



Meadows Improvement Plan List of Improvements 
 
Based on input provided to-date, staff believes that the following represents the desired 
improvements in the Meadows: 
 
List of Analyzed Improvements 

Improvement Description Estimated 
Cost 

Section 1 6’ Sidewalk from Coyote Court to Meadows Trail $76,597 
Section 21 6’ Sidewalk from Coyote Court to Boulders Way $252,733 
Section 3 Enhanced Lighting and Landscaping from Boulders Way to 

Adams Ranch Intersection (Retain Existing Sidewalk with 
Bikes on Road) 

$134,664 

Section 3a Boulders Way Access Tract Improvements $103,242 
Section 3b Adams Ranch Intersection Improvements (Normal Intersection) $144,864 
Section 4 6’ Sidewalk from Fairway Four to Adams Ranch Intersection $208,0194 

Section 5 Improved ADA Walkway to Northstar Access Drive from Bridge 
and Along Northstar Drive 

$185,092 

Section 62 6’ Sidewalk on South Side of Big Billies from Adams Ranch 
Road Intersection to the Chondola 

$240,346 

Section 7 Meadows Parking Lot Park Option 1 (No Loss of Parking)3 $139,351 
Section 8 Post Office Access Improvements $24,783 
Section 9 Prospect Creek Pocket Park $97,468 

Table Notes: 
1Section 2 could be eliminated if the Telluride School District agrees to a new bus stop located 
by Coyote Court on north side of the Road.  School District policy currently does not allow for 
another stop, so policy would have to be changed. 
2Section 6 is a low priority until the redevelopment of Big Billies, with improving the current 
Chondola access through Big Billies the consensus of the Council. 
3Section 6 should include a potential summertime basketball court in the parking lot since 
parking demand is lower in the summer. 
Most sections include landscaping as envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan, except for Section 
4 that did plan any additional landscaping. 
3Deducts out cost allocated for road maintenance budget that was allocated to repaving this 
section in 2015. 
 
List of Other Improvements That Were Not Analyzed Due to Costs But Will Be Included in the 
Final Plan as Future Improvements for Additional Analysis 

1. Meadows to Town Hall Subarea Trail (TSG concerned over golf course-trail interface) 
2. Meadows to Village Center Paved Trail (TSG concerned over golf course-trail interface, 

and Rosewood development will provide final end segment to the trail) 
3. Year-round operation of the Chondola to Village Center (Not analyzed due to costs and 

golf course impacts in the summer) 
4. New chondola to Town Hall subarea (Not analyzed due to costs) 
5. Additional trails in the Meadows area (Not analyzed because raised late in the planning 

process) 
6. Pump track in the Meadows area (Not analyzed because raised late in the planning 

process) 
7. Two story parking structure with green roof (Eliminated from analysis due to costs) 

109



8. Big Community Park in the Meadows (Not analyzed due to pending application and no 
consensus) 

9. Community garden (Not analyzed due to pending application) 
10. Neighborhood Park 
11. Other improvements not listed??? 

 
If the Council concurs with this list, staff will develop a Comprehensive Plan-like document for 
review at a future worksession. 
 
Direction on Final 2015 Projects 
 
The emphasis for 2015 projects has been on safety-related improvements, with the Fairway 
Four to Adams Ranch Road intersection sidewalk already selected by the Council in 2014 as 
the top priority project in 2015.  Continuing the safety theme, staff is recommending the 
following projects in 2015: 
 
  2015 Funds $438,430  

Section  Project 
 

Section 4 
6’ Sidewalk from Fairway Four to Adams Ranch 
Intersection $208,019 

Section 8 Post Office Access Improvements $24,783 

Section 5 
Improved ADA 6' Sidewalk to Northstar Access 
Drive from Bridge and Along Northstar Drive $185,092 

  Remainder $20,536  
 
This proposal will create a very nice looped sidewalk system in the Meadows as an amenity and 
provide safe sidewalk access throughout the neighborhood. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Town Council provide direction on (1) the final path for the sidewalk 
from Fairway Four to the Adams Ranch intersection by Big Billies (Section 4); (2) the final list of 
desired improvements in the Meadows Improvement Plan; and (3) the improvement projects to 
be completed in 2015.  Staff will then facilitate the preparation of engineered plans for the 2015 
improvements for bidding.  Staff will also create the more Comprehensive Plan-like final 
Meadows Improvement Plan document for additional Council review and approval. 
  

110



Exhibit A:  General Direction Provided at January 20, 2015 Council Meeting. 
 
For the Meadows Parking Lot Park shown in Section 7 

 Provide landscape buffer and potentially fence improvements to keep children in the 

park. 

 Keep the option to expand the Meadows Parking Lot Park into the parking lot pending 

future TSG approval. 

 

For the Meadows Parking Lot shown in Section 7 

 Add temporary toilet by post office with long-term goal for permanent, stick built toilet. 

 Look at new ADA ramp parallel to post office that is perpendicular to Northstar driveway 

versus curved ADA access. 

 

For Section 5, New Walkway from pedestrian bridge to Northstar access driveway. 

 Break out the costs of the ADA accessible walk, new stairs and new sidewalk along north 

side of the North Star Driveway. 

 Ensure sidewalk connects to sidewalk along Adams Ranch Road to create walking loop 

in the Meadows. 

 Add sidewalk connecting to Northstar from proposed sidewalk. 

 

For Section 4, Sidewalk from Fairway Four to Adams Ranch Road Intersection by Big Billies 

 Majority of Council members indicated sidewalk should be on east side of Adams Ranch 

Road to intersection with North Star driveway/Adams Ranch Road then cross to the north 

side of the street across from Spring Creek preceding to the Adams Ranch Road by Big 

Billies. 

 Explore methods to allow for Aspen regeneration in snow storage area for Big Billies. 

 Improve the visibility of the current Adams Ranch Road intersection by Big Billies. 

 

For Section 6, Big Billies Chondola Connection 

 Establish new pedestrian path on south side of Big Billies along Prospect Creek 

concurrent with the future redevelopment of the property. 

 Consider installing lighting along the current pedestrian path. 

 Consider installing new sidewalk connection to existing sidewalks on north side of Big 

Billies on the west side of the breezeway access drive. 

 

Section 9, Pocket Park 

 Reach out to Parker Ridge about the park as part of Meadows Improvement Plan process. 

 

Overall changes to the Plan 

 

Final plan needs to: 

 Be a Comprehensive Plan-like document with verbiage and details. 

 Map out all improvements in final plan. 

 Ensure it is a living document that is considered as a part of the annual budget process. 

 Include a goal to create an overall landscaping plan for the Meadows. 
 

111



Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan 
Sec  on 1: Proposed 6-foot Sidewalk from Exis  ng Meadows Trail to Coyote Court

Total Cost For Improvements
$76,597.35

November 2014

REVEGETATE 
SLOPE WITH 
NATIVE 
VEGETATION

EXISTING ROAD

SCALE IN FEET

6’ WALK

112

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 1 Costs6' Sidewalk:				$61,492*Landscaping:				$15,105Total Estimated Costs	$76,597

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text
*Includes Lighting



Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan 
Sec  on 2A: Trail Op  on From Coyote Court to Boulders Way

Total Cost For Improvements
$414,118.20   

November 2014 SCALE IN FEET

REVEGETATE 
SLOPE WITH 
NATIVE 
VEGETATION

6’ WALK 6’ WALK
ENHANCE EXISTING 

RIPARIAN VEGETATIONEXISTING ROAD
PLANTING

STRIP WITH 
COTTONWOODS 
& WILDFLOWERS

113

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 2 Costs6' Sidewalk (North Side Only):		$200,000*	Landscaping: 						$52,733Total Estimated Costs				$252,733		 

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Retain 5' Sidewalk

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
5'

chawkins
Text Box
*Includes Lighting



Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan 
Sec  on 3B: Trail Op  on From Boulders 

Way to Big Billies Intersec  on

Total Cost For Improvements
$1,345,384.20

November 2014

REVEGETATE 
SLOPE WITH 
NATIVE VEG

10’ WALK 6’ WALK
ENHANCE EXISTING 

RIPARIAN VEGETATIONEXISTING ROAD
PLANTING

STRIP WITH 
COTTONWOODS 
& WILDFLOWERS

SCALE IN FEET

114

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Line

chawkins
Line

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
5'

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Retain 5' Sidewalk

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 3 CostsSidewalk Costs:			$0 (Retain Existing)Enhanced Lighting:		$84,744Landscaping Costs:		$97,000Total Estimated Cost:	$134,664

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Line

chawkins
Line

chawkins
Typewritten Text
When reconstructed,Build to 6' width



Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan
Boulder Way Intersec  on Concept

3030 15 0

SCALE IN FEET

Total Cost For Improvements
$103,241.50November 2014

6’ WALK

BO
ULD

ER W
AY

SNOW 
STORAGE AREA

EXISTING BUS 
SHELTER TO REMAIN

NEW TREES

RELOCATE SIGN

PERENNIALS

RAISED CONCRETE 
CROSSWALK

BUS PULL OUT
ADAMS RANCH RD

115

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 3aBouders Way Intersection CostsPaving, Sidewalk, Etc:		$72,815*Landscaping:					$30,427Estimated Total Costs:		$103,242

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Text Box
*Includes Lighting



2020 10 0

SCALE IN FEET

Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan
Conceptual Intersec  on Design

Total Cost For Improvements
$144,863.50

November 2014

EXISTING TREES

RELOCATE
BUS STOP

DECIDUOUS TREES

ADAMS RANCH ROAD

TO BIG BILLIES

5’ SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 
CROSSWALK

PROPOSED 6’ WIDE 
SIDEWALK

TIE INTO 
EXISTING 

SIDEWALK

116

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 3bAdam's Ranch Intersection CostsNormal Intersection OptionPaving, Drainage, Etc:	$136,550*Landscaping:				$8,314Total Estimated Cost:	$144,864

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Text Box
*Includes Lighting



\ 

" " 

\ 
\ 

" 

\ 
\ 

" 

" " " 

" " 

" " 

" /" 
" " I , 

v 

---P~PATHP~~D 
ON ElOSI'WIG ASPHALT 

PARKING LOT 

/ 

, 

• EO'''' .... 
STA. 0t0CI TO STA.4+GO 

I 
I 

I 
I 

\~~ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

L 

PRCIP08ED EDGE OF 
ASPHALTTO IlATCH .. """" 

\ 
\ 

PLAN r--" Ii • ••• 
i 

• 

BF 
BN 
BF 

---P~PATHP~~D 
ON ElOSI'WIG ASPHALT 

PARKIIiIGLOT 

/ 
I 

_/ 

......... 
STA. 0t0G TO ITA,4+GO 

I 
I 

I 
I , 

" 

TO MATCH EXlSTWG 

\ 
\ 

\ 

I 

I 

L 

, " 
"' , \ \1 \ "\ ' 

, \ \' \ , 
.. -_:. I I I 

'. J i 
-, '" 1\ 

PRCIP08ED EDCJE OF 
ASPHALTTO IMTCH 

."'''''" 
\ 
\ 

• • 

PLAN 
i i 
• • 

i 

• 

, 
\ 

z 
~ 
"8"' I- Z 
iii w' ~ 
110" 
~~i!! 
0 .... -.. -"' .. >., 
liZ"" -co 
~!i:~ 
o:::J~ CO 
w ll 
IIIL", 
wO Z 
C)zQ 
~~o 
~I-~ 
l-
II 

o ~ 

;:::g 
o ~ 

! - ~ '" , " 

- ~~ • 0 

rl ~ ~ < 
I.~ ,.: 
Ii :i' <l - . ' r,· 
1II;:;g; 

, 

BF 
BN 
BF 

, 

• 
i 
~ 
~ 

i 
• 

! 
J 
j 

I 
I 
I 

L---~ __________________ ~'~I , 1-:=-----1 J 
EX·18 • 117

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Sidewalk from Fairway Four to Adams Ranch IntersectionPaving, Drainage, Etc:					$358,019*Landscaping:								$0Total Estimated Cost:						$358,019Less Budgeted Maintenance in 2015:	$150,000Estimated Total Cost from Imp. Plan:		$208,019	

chawkins
Typewritten Text
*Includes lighting

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Polygonal Line

chawkins
Polygonal Line

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 4

chawkins
Typewritten Text



Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan
ADA Access at Bridge 2020 10 0

SCALE IN FEET

ADA ACCESSIBLE WALK

STAIRS

Rebuild Bridge And Regrade Trail
$211,807.00

Regrade Trail To Meet ADA
$128,677.00

November 2014

POST 
OFFICE

EXISTIN
G BRID

GE
118

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text
	

chawkins
Typewritten Text
*Includes lighting

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
New Access Drive Sidewalk

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 5Improved Walkway To Post OfficePaving, Grading, Etc:			$128,677*New Access Drive Sidewalk:	$42,797Landscaping:					$13,618Total Estimated Cost:			$185,092

chawkins
Line

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text



Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan
Big Billies | Op  on 1 5050 25 0

SCALE IN FEET

RELOCATED BUS 
SHELTER

ELEVATED WALK

ADAMS RANCH ROAD

ADAMS RANCH ROAD

NEW TRAIL

BIG BILLIES

Total Cost For Improvements
$240,345.50

November 2014

119

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 6Big Billies-Chondola Access Option 1Paving, Drainage, Etc:	$215,327*Landscaping:				$25,019Total Estimated Cost:		$240,346	

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text



ADAMS RANCH ROAD

4040 20 0

SCALE IN FEET

Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan
Meadows Parking Lot | Op  on 1

Total Cost For Improvements
$150,298.46

November 2014

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

BUFFER CONDOS FROM PARKING 
LOT WITH VEGETATION

NEW SIDEWALK

SHADE STRUCTURE 
WITH PICNIC TABLES 

OPEN LAWN
   (75’x40’)

EXISTING 
PLAYGROUND 

TO REMAIN

TERRACED BOULDER WALLS 
TO EXPAND PARK AREA

PRECEDENTS

PERENNIALS

POST OFFICE

NEW CONCRETE 
PLAYGROUND EDGE

PERENNIALS

FENCE TO SEPARATE PARKING 
LOT FROM PLAYGROUND

BENCHES

Picnic Shelter

Wood Bench

Picnic Shelter

ADA CONNECTION

120

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Rectangle

chawkins
Typewritten Text
$139,351

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 7, Option 1

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 8



4040 20 0

SCALE IN FEET

POST OFFICE

ADAMS RANCH ROAD

Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan
Meadows Parking Lot | Op  on 2

Total Cost For Improvements
$225,076.80

November 2014

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

BOULDER SEAT WALL

BUFFER CONDOS FROM PARKING 
LOT WITH VEGETATION

EXPAND PARK 10’ INTO PARKING 
LOT TO CREATE AN OPEN AREA.

PICNIC SHELTER

ADA CONNECTION

OPEN LAWN
  (90’x100’)

TERRACED BOULDER WALLS 
TO EXPAND PARK AREA

BENCHES

PERENNIALS

NEW PLAYGROUND WITH 
BOULDERS

Boulder Playground

Picnic Shelter

Shade Structure

PRECEDENTS

121

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 7, Option 2



2020 10 0

SCALE IN FEET

Town of Mountain Village | Meadows Improvement Plan
Conceptual Pocket Park Design

Total Cost For Improvements
$97,467.50November 2014

(4) BENCHES

(5) BIKE RACKS

CONCRETE OVERLOOK

NEW COTTONWOODS, TYP.

CRUSHER FINES TRAIL

STONE STEPS TO CREEK ACCESS

CREEK

PICNIC SHELTER
WITH (2) PICNIC TABLES

ADAMS RANCH ROAD

PRECEDENTS

River Access

River Access

122

chawkins
Typewritten Text
Section 9



ADDITIONAL TCC FUNDS  
Agenda Item 11 

 
 

 

 

To: Mayor& Town Council 

From: Councilman Marty McKinley 

For: February 19, 2015 Town Council Meeting 

Date: February 11, 2015 

Re: Consideration of Allocating up to $35,000 in Additional Funds for the Telluride Conference Center  

 

In January Marty McKinley, Nichole Zangara Riley, Bob Delves and Anton Benitez (TMVOA) met with TSG Vice President 

of Hospitality Robert Stenhammer to discuss the status of the Telluride Conference Center. Several positive developments 

have occurred or are in planning. 

 A Marketing Director has been hired.  She is well qualified and has worked with Mr. Stenhammer in the past.  

Between salary, travel and event expenses this is a significant outlay 

 TMVOA has committed to the purchase of a new state of the art screen and projector.  TMVOA will retain the 

asset but it will be for the benefit and use of the Conference Center 

 TSG  intends to purchase a new sound system for approximately $150,000 which they would like to apply as a 

credit to a potential purchase of the facility 

 TSG intends to convert the mezzanine level into two breakout rooms.  The lack of breakout rooms is a significant 

deficiency 

 

It was a very positive meeting and I am encouraged at the direction of events.   

 

The Town’s current level of subsidy to the Conference Center is: 

 $65,000 to reimburse marketing expenses upon proof of expenditure 

 $83,000 HOA dues to Franz Klammer Lodge HOA 

 Up to $20,000 for repair expenses in excess of $2,500 

The reimbursement of expenses has been a significant effort for Ms. Zangara and is an ineffective use of her time.  The 

remaining indebtedness on our bonds will be retired in November of 2017.  A smooth transition of ownership would be 

ideal for the Town of Mountain Village.  To encourage that process I would recommend the following modifications to our 

working arrangement: 

 Increase the marketing expenditures to $100,000 in the form of a quarterly $25,000 grant requiring no supporting 

documentation.  TCC will easily exceed this amount with the costs of the new Marketing Director 

 Revisit and refresh the contract. It was written under different circumstances and is outdated 

These steps would reduce our administrative costs and would leave as a gesture of good will and support for the positive 

steps mentioned earlier. 

123



Town of Mountain Village 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

Biannual Report to Town Council 
August 2014 - January 2015 

12 a 1 

The Town of Mountain Vii/age is dedicated to providing exceptional facilities, services and opportunities, in partnership with the 
community, which will enhance the quality of life for our residents, homeowners, employees, and guests. 

HUMAN RESOURCES STAFF: 
Sue Kunz, HR Director 
Corrie McMills, HR Coordinator 

SUMMARY 

• 201S Employee satisfaction survey showed that 80% of respondents are either satisfied or very satisfied with their 
employment with the town. 

• Workers' compensation modifier rate is the lowest it has been in ten years (0.83) 
• Internal compensation study is being conducted anticipating all numbers to be available the end of June 
• Succession planning underway: 44% of town employees are currently age 50 or over 
• Effective 1/1/2015, seasonal employees starting wage is $14.00/hr + $1.00/hr end of season bonus + season ski pass. 

Gondola operations and Plaza departments are fully staffed for the first time in over a year. 
• Seasonal employees that work more than 1560 hours/year are eligible for health insurance benefits, effective 

1/1/2016. 

• ClRSA 

• DOT 
• EAP 
• PERA 
• Pinnacol 

Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (property / casualty insurance) 
Department of Transportation 
Employee Assistance Program 
Colorado Public Employees Retirement Association (in lieu of social security) 
Workers compensation carrier 

DEPARTMENT GOALS 

1. Administer and enforce town policies & federal regulations 
2. Assure compliance with Drug & alcohol policies 
3. Operate the department in an environmentally sustainable and sensitive manner including the responsible use of 

electricity, natural gas, fuel, paper, water, and chemicals 
4. Prepare and stay within the HR department's approved budget. Actively seek opportunities to optimize financial costs and 

investments when making decisions 
5. Maintain accurate personnel files in compliance with the Colorado Retention Schedule and ensure accurate information for 

payroll 
6. Assist management with timely and lawful recruitment processes to maintain proper staffing levels 
7. Respond to employee issues and concerns 
8. Oversee the Safety Committee, workers compensation, and safety programs to minimize workplace injuries 
9. Provide attractive compensation and benefits package to retain high-performing, well-qualified employees 
10. Coordinate staff training, performance reviews & staff development opportunities 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

1. Policies 
• Employee Handbook Update (item 12 a 3) 
• Drug & Alcohol Policy- Safety Sensitive Employees (item 12 a 2) 
• Drug & Alcohol Policy - Non-Safety Sensitive Employees (item 12 a 2) 

Town of Mountain Village 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

Biannual Report to Town Council 
August 2014 - Januarv 2015 

12 a 1 

The Town of Mountain Village is dedicated to providing exceptional facilities, services and opportunities, in partnership wIth the 
community, which will enhance the quality of life for our reSidents, homeowners, employees, and guests. 

HUMAN RESOURCES STAFF: 
Sue Kunz, HR Director 

Corrie McMills, HR Coordinator 

SUMMARY 

• 2015 Employee satisfaction survey showed that 80% of respondents are either satisfied or very satisfied with their 
employment with the town. 

• Workers' compensation modifier rate is the lowest it has been in ten years (0.83) 

• Internal compensation study is being conducted anticipating all numbers to be available the end of June 

• Succession planning underway: 44% of town employees are current ly age 50 or over 
• Effective 1/1/2015, seasonal employees starting wage is S14.00/hr + $1.00/hr end of season bonus + season ski pass. 

Gondola operations and Plaza departments are fully staffed for the first time in over a year. 

• Seasonal employees that work more than 1560 hours/year are eligible for health insurance benefits, effective 
1/ 1/2016. 

• CIRSA 

• DOT 
• EAP 
• PERA 

• Pinnacol 

Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (property / casualty insurance) 

Department of Transportation 

Employee Assistance Program 
Colorado Public Employees Retirement Association (In lieu of social security) 

Workers compensation carrier 

DEPARTMENT GOALS 

1. Administer and enforce town policies & federal regulations 
2. Assure compliance with Drug & alcohol poliCies 
3. Operate the department in an environmentally sustainable and sensitive manner including the responsible use of 

electricity, natural gas, fuel, paper, water, and chemicals 
4. Prepare and stay within the HR department's approved budget. Actively seek opportunities to optimize financial costs and 

investments when making decisions 
5. Maintain accurate personnel files in compliance with the Colorado Retention Schedule and ensure accurate information for 

payroll 
6. Assist management with timely and lawful recruitment processes to maintain proper staffing levels 
7. Respond to employee issues and concerns 
8. Oversee the Safety Committee, workers compensation, and safety programs to minimize workplace injuries 
9. Provide attractive compensation and benefits package to retain high-performing, well·qualified employees 
10. Coordinate staff training, performance reviews & staff development opportunities 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES 

1. Policies 

• Employee Handbook Update (item 12 a 3) 

• Drug & Alcohol Policy- Safety Sensitive Employees (item 12 a 2) 

• Drug & Alcohol Policy - Non-Safety Sensitive Employees (item 12 a 2) 

124



2. Drug testing compliance. Complete pre-employment testing for all new hires; ensure random, reasonable suspicion and 
post-accident testing is completed in compliance with the DOT and non-DOT policies; conduct required training for 
employees and supervisors. 

All required drug testing and reporting is current. Required training is ~ompleted. 
• DOT Reasonable Suspicion Training - September 17, 2014. 
• DOT Effects of Drugs & Alcohol - November 11, 2014. 

3. Environment. 
• Forms, applications, policies, handbooks are all available electronically significantly reducing paper. 
• HR Insider Newsletter includes Environmental Tips for the workplace. 

4. Budget 
Implemented new backgrounds check service through HireRight to further reduce recruiting costs. 

5. Personnel files 
Employee files are current. New hire packets are completed on or before the first day of employment. Personnel files 
scanned into Uitipro as appropriate according to state retention schedule. 

6. Recruitment & Retention 

Turnover rates 

Gondola Operators 

Seasonal FTYR 

Winter 2014-15 4 2 

Summer 2014 15 3 

Winter 2013-14 7 1 

Summer 2013 12 2 

All Regular, full time employees 
2014 15% 

2013 21% 

2012 19% 

Reasons for Termination 
01/01/2014 - 12/31/2014 

• Voluntary 

• Involuntary 

• End of 
Season 

Total 

6 12.5% 

18 46.9% 

8 21.9% 

14 43.8% 

2. Drug testing compliance. Complete pre-employment testing for all new hires; ensure random, reasonable suspicion and 
post-accident testing is com pleted in compliance with the DOT and non-DOT policies; conduct requ ired training for 
employees and supervisors. 

All required drug testing and reporting is current. Required training is completed. 
• DOT Reasonable Suspicion Training - September 17, 2014. 
• DOT Effects of Drugs & Alcohol- November 11, 2014. 

3. Environment. 
• Forms, applications, policies, handbooks are all available electronically significantly reducing paper. 
• HR Insider Newsletter inciudes Environmental Tips for the workplace. 

4. Budget 
Implemented new backgrounds check service through HlreRight to further reduce recruiting costs. 

5. Personnel fi les 
Employee files are current. New hire packets are completed on or before the first day of employment. Personnel files 
scanned into Ultipro as appropriate according to state retention schedule. 

6. Recruitment & Retention 

Turnover rates 

Gondola Operators 

Seasonal FlYR 

Winter 2014-15 • 2 

Summer 2014 15 3 

Winter 2013-14 7 1 

Summer 2013 12 2 

All Regular, full t ime employees 
2014 15% 

2013 ,,% 

2012 19% 

Reasons for Termination 
01/01/2014 -12/31/2014 

• Volu ntary 

• Involuntary 

• End of 
Season 

Total 

6 12.5% 

18 46.9% 

8 21.9% ,. 43.8% 

125



Reasons for Termination 

Temporary job ended 

Retirement 

Quit-no notice given 

Personal/family 

Performance 

Other job 

No call, no show 

Non-compliance drug ... 

Mutual Agreement 

Moving 

Excessive ... 

0% 

11% 

9% 

10% 

Commuting Employees 

4% 

Succession Planning 

20% 30% 40% 

• Cortez, Dolores, 
Egnar, Shiprock 

• Montrose, Olathe, 
Cedaredge 

• Mountain Village, 
Telluride 

• Nucla, Norwood, 
Naturita, Redvale 

• Ophir, Rico 

44% 

50% 

• 44% of current full time, year round employees are age 50 or over 

Over 65 
Ages 60-64 
Ages 50-59 
Ages 40-49 
Ages 30-39 
Ages 20-29 

= 2 employees 
=11 employees 
=35 employees 
=22 employees 
=21 employees 
=18 employees 

(2%) 
(10%) 
(32%) 
(20%) 
(19%) 
(17%) 

Reasons fo r Terminat ion 

Temporary job ended 

Retirement 

Qu it -no notice given 

Personal/family 

Performance 

Other job 

No call, no show 

Non-compliance drug .. 

Mu tual Agreement 

Moving 

Excessive .. 

4% 

4% 

11% 

70 

~ 6' 

7" 
. ~ 4% 

1% 

9% 

1% 

0% 10% 

Commuting Employees 

4% 

Succession Planning 

20% 30% 40% 

• Cortez, Dolores. 
Egnar, Shiprock 

• Montrose. Olathe. 
Cedaredge 

• Mountain Village. 
Telluride 

• Nucla, Norwood, 
Naturita, Redvale 

• Ophir, Rico 

44% 

50% 

• 44% of current full t ime, yea r round employees are age 50 o r over 

Over 65 
Ages 60-64 
Ages 50-59 
Ages 40-49 
Ages 30-39 
Ages 20-29 

= 2 employees 
=11 employees 
=35 employees 
=22 employees 
=21 employees 
=18 employees 

(2%) 
(10%) 
(32%) 

(20%) 

(19%) 
(17%) 

126



7. Respond to employee issues and concerns. 
Maintain a workforce that is generally satisfied with benefits, compensation, training, equity and the quality of life 
(Goal: annual employee satisfaction survey results of 70% satisfied) 

Employee Satisfaction Survey Results 
Completed Jan/Feb 2015 

# employees completed % of employees that said 
the survey 

2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2010 

very satisfied 

satisfied 

neither satisfied nor 
dissatisfied 

dissatisfied 

very dissatisfied 

30 
39 
53 
58 
44 

they were overall 'satisfied' 
or 'very satisfied' 

80% 
82% 
75% 
82% 
44% 

. 2010 

. 2012 

. 2013 

. 2014 

. 2015 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 

7. Respond to employee issues and concerns. 
Maintain a worktorce that 15 generallv satisfied with benefits, compensation, training, equity and the quality of life 
(Goal: annual employee satisfaction survey results of 70% satisfied) 

Employee Satisfaction Survey Results 
Completed Jan/Feb 2015 ., 

~~y were overall 'satisfied' the survey 
or 'very satisfied' 

WaH-
30 80% 
39 82% 

2013 53 75% 

-¥oi~ 
58 --¥.i-44 

very satisfied )llIIIiiijlo 

satisfied 

neither satisfied nor .-~--I 
dissatisfied 

dissatisfied 

very dissatisfied 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 

_ 2010 

_ 2012 

_ 2013 

_ 2014 

_ 2015 

127



Employee Satisfaction Survey 

30 Total Responses 
February 9, 2015 

Q1: Overall, how satisfied are you with the town as an 
employer? 

An.wer Choice. Re.pon.e. 

very satisfied 26.67'1. 8 

satisfied 53.33'/. 16 

ne~her satisfied nor dissatisfied 10.00% 3 

dissatisfied 6.67'/1, 2 

very dissatisfied 3.33% 

Total 30 

Employee Satisfaction Survey 

30 Total Responses 
February 9, 2015 

Q1: Overall, how satisfied are you with the town as an 
employer? 

An.wer Choices Responses 

vely slllisfied 26.61% 8 

sl!llisfied 5:J.31% " 
neHher satisf.ed nor diss8lisfied 10.00% J 

dissstisfied Ul% 2 

very dissatisfied J.3l% 

Toul ,. 

128



Q2~ FULL TIME YEAR ROUND_BENEFITS:-How-satisfied are you-with the benefits 
offered? 

heolh bener •• 

dental benefrts 

vision benefits 

amount 01 

EMPLOYEE 
p'elTMl1 

(heolh, dental, 

vision) paid by 

the town 

amount 01 

DEPEMlENT 
p'emoum 

(heolh, denio!, 

vision) paid by 

the town 

flex spending 
acco,,"s 
(FSA) 

PERA (ptAlic 

emplovee's 

reti-ement 

association) in 

lieu of social 
sec ... ly 

weess 
reinblxsement 

program 

COlTllll<JlOf 

stUlle 
benefls 

f ..... A (fonWy 

Medical Leave 

Act) 

hoiday pay 

8fl1O<II1I o'PTO 

401(k) 

paid He 

Ilsurance 

voluntary ife 
InsU"&nCe 

long term 
disability (LTD) 

paid 
bereavement 

paid jury <My 

paid rrilitary 
leave 

direct deposH 

EAP 
(empioyee 

8ssis1ance 
program) 

Iraning 

reimbursement 

discounted 

spa 

membership 

AFLAC 

very elll1lfled neither 
elllelfed elll1lfled 

34.41% 

10 

27.59% 

21.55% 

31.93% 

11 

24.14% 

21.59% 

31.93% 
11 

51.12% 

15 

24.14% 

10.14% 

24.14% 

l1.91% 

11 

34.4I'k 

10 

21.59% 

14.29% 

13.n'~ 

2D.69·~ 

20.69\\ 

6.11% 

44.13% 

13 

21.59'~ 

8 

20,69% 

3.51'1. 

1 

21.5n, 

~ 

55.11% 

16 

51.62% 

17 

44..,% 

13 

41.)8\\ 

12 

11.tl% 
11 

10.34% 

44..,% 

13 

11.03% 
9 

13.19% 

21.59% 

o 

11.24% 

~ 

41.31% 
12 

44."'k 
13 

41.31% 
12 

21.51% 

21,59% 

41,3n, 

12 

l1.91% 
11 

10,14\', 

41.31% 

12 

13.19'1. 

11.01'~ , 
3.51'~ 

34.4I\', 

10 

nor 
dl .. 1Il1lflod 

6.90% 

10.34% 

6.90% 

10.34% 

6.90% 

13.19% 

10.14% 

13.19% 

11.24% 

S 

11.24% 

S 

24.14% 

r 
11.24% 

10.14% 

13.19'" 
~ 

11.16% 

24.14% 

13.19\\ 

13.19'~ 

13.19'~ 

10.14\\ 

24.14% 

1 

11.24% 

2'.51·~ 

8 

11.24% 

dl .. 1Il1lfled very nil 
d1 .. 1Il1lfled 

0.00% 

o 

0.00\\ 

o 

1.45% 

3.45';' 

1 

0.00% 

o 

• • 00% 

o 

0.00% 

o 

0.00% 

3.45% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

o 

3.45% 

0.00% 

1.45% 

0.00% 

o 
1.45% 

0.00';' 

o 

0.00% 

o 
' .0'% 

o 

0.00% 

o 

0.00% 

o 

3.51% , 
0.00% 

0.00'4 3.45% 

o 

0.00% 3.45% 

o 

0.01\\ 11.24% 

o 
0.00% 6.10\\ 

o 

1,00% 31.01% 

o 

0.00% 55.11% 

II 16 

0.00% 

0.00't. 
o 

6.90\\ 

3.45% 

3.45'1\ l1.91'1\ 

11 

0.00% 51.12% 

15 

10.1411 24.1411 

0.00'1\ 0.00% 
o 

0.00% 10.3411 

0.00% 

o 

0.00% 

o 
0.00'1\ 

o 
0.00% 

o 

0.00% 

o 

0.00'1\ 

o 

0.0011 
Q 

0.00% 
Q 

13.1911 

39.29'/. 
11 

11 .03'4 

24.1411 

21.59'1\ 

61.91% 

.!!l 

3.4511 

14.41% 

111 

1.45'1\ 24.14% 
( 1 

0.0011 60.11% 

17 

UDII 20.&9';' 

b 

10lil1 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

28 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

Q2: FULL TIME YEAR ROUND_BENEFITS: How_satisfied are. you-with the benefits 
offered? 

". .w_ - ....... .nod - ~ ,-
. .... 11000 .~ ~--.... .u .... " 

". .. ~ ..... f< . ,,,41% "Mil .. ~ .- ,",til US,. .. " • • 
......... """. U.nllo n.n'4 .,.,'" t.OlIII U'" , .. 

" • • _ ........ ll."'" ~u ... ....... ••• .. "' 11.14'" 

" 
, • < -- 11.11% 41.,. ... ''''~ l .ti" 'M. "'til 

EIo'I'LOfEf " " 
, • • .-(""".II<rUI, 

>loioojJ""UI' 
~,,-

-" 1t,1I,," ".n,. UII< .- .M. 11.1l% 
~, , 

" 
, • • .-

(I'Ioolh, ..... ~ 

"''''''j"",01 
~,-........ ~- . ..,"" 11.1 .... .. - .. - n.n,. 
... IIU't. , • • " ,~, -,- n.'''' ~.~ ,.- .- ....... 1."% -,. " • , , 
,w_ ... ..,...,..., .. 
te.,o.t ...... _0. 
........ 11.11'1 ""'% lU'''' ~. ~. unto ,-- " • • • 
.~-_. ,l.U,. 11.1'" 11.14'" M~" US", ,',1)\\ - , , 

" _ .. 
f!.LA 1'_ 11.)4% n.n,. ".l~ ~. 'H' S1.Jl'Ji 
Mt<k:.lH., 0 • " • " .. , 
- ,,,,,, 14.'0lI0. IU .... 14.''''' , .. '''If.,. l4.14 ... , • , 
_ OI PIO 11.1:1'4 ",J'" H .U\\ U.,. .. It'"' .. -

" " 
, • 

40'1» .~. 4t,u "," " .1410 .M' "'" ',.,4'11 .. " • 
_lie 11.5'" " .ll'M. n. '''' J.~'II ,- ,1.1'" 
~-. • " 
.......... u. , .. u,. u,u'4 ,J.lI% .. - 1."\\ 3"l"" 

~-. • • • • " 
, .... 11.,'" JU,,. 14.'4" J."I\ .. "'" lUI,. 

"._y(~ro) • ... iU''M. IU'IIo tl.UIIo "'" OM. "'''' "''''-" , • 
pooct,.., .... lUI,. 11.11,., fI,/n. U t i' .. -l l .It'Jl, 

" " • 
pM .... . , 1.1,'" 1'-'""" 13.1'% un .... 'U''JI, 
~" 

, , • • • 
"odtlo"o" +l.U~ 41.1.% 10.'""" t.t~ t.Ni' , .. 

" " " • 
,~ 11.St'Jl, 11."", 24.H% .. - .... J ....... (-, .. • • • ", 
,,~ 

PI .... ) .... lU' .... ".n,," 17.1 .... us\!, OM. 14.10lil. ,_ ..... .,.. _ .. 
loS' .... 1.$J~ 2t.Hi' UI"I t.Hi' ff.11'J1, 

•• , -,-
,,~. l '.n~ 14. ..... 11."" O.N'>I "'1':< It.,,~ 

" " 
, 

129



Q3: SEASONALI PART TIME BENEFITS: How satisfied are you with each of the 
benefits offered? 

_01 
BoIPlOYfE 
",..,..". 

~,-, 

YiIion) poId by 

tIIe.own 

_01 
08'ENlENT 
"'..,..". 

('-.-, 
YiIion) poId by 
tIIe.own 

fIox~ 

-..ft. 
(fSA) 

PERA (J>IMe 

"""yH'. ,tIi'_ 
...-)1'1 
leuol_ 
oecurly 

_ OIPlO 

.a'(k) 

poId;"y cUy 

EAP 
(...,..y .. 
.... on« 
", ... ) 
Ir"**'ll ,-....... 

27.51% 

31,t)% 
11 

24.14% 
7 

31.t:l% 
11 

51.12% 
.5 

24.14% 

24.14% 

31.1:1% 
11 

,...
.0 

1UI% 

1111% 

ze.51% 
6 

2UI% 

44.1:1% 
.3 

21.51% 

2UI% 

21.51% 
e 

5"'2% 
.7 

44.1:1% 
13 

'U:I% ., 

1U4% 

44.1:1% 
13 

1111% 

2UI% 

41.31% 

12 

44.1:1% 
Il 

41.31% 

12 

H.5l% 

n.sl% 

41.1.% 
12 

31.':1% 
11 

to.'4% 
3 

41.31% 
,~ 

lU:I% 

J.51% 

34._ 

'0 

1l.T1% 

n.11% 

24.14% 

1UI% 

24.14% 

1UI% 

1l.T1% 

1UI% 

21.5"" 

1U4% 

.. -o 

3045% 

. .
o 

1.
o 

1'-

1.
o 

1.
o 

'.45% 

1.
o 

,.
o 

0._ 
o 

1.00% 

0._ 
o 

3.45% 

3.51% 

... .,. 
o 

•. -o 

.. -o 
1._ 11.24% 

o 

1.
o 

o 

1'
o 

. .
o 

16 

• .- 51.12% 
o .S 

1'- •. _ 
o 0 

e._ 11.34% 

o 
• .- 1UI% 

o 
0._ lUI% 

o 11 

•. _ 21.51% 

o 
•. _ ".1"" 

20 

•• _ 34.41% 

o 10 

3._ 24.14% 

.... % 51.11% 
o 17 

•• _ 2UI% 

o 

TGtII 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

28 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

29 

28 

29 

Q3: SEASONALI PART TIME BENEFITS: How satisfied are you with each of the 
benefits offered? 

--'" 
-" . ...,'" .--. -... ~ h'_ 
- " ........ .
~.--, 
_)",.lIby 
h_ .. -
"'" ... --..., ... ---" ~.-- .. _. -... ---_ .. 
""""If...,. -~. 

..... --

.. --

'" ,-... ~ . ..... , .... ,--

If,'" 

rut'll 
• 

n.~ 

" 

, .. ,ft 

n.'", 

" -., 

HSh 

-.. 

. , 

notH> 

" 

n
o 

11''''' 

.~ 

" 
~" 

" 
.~ 

" 

.~ 

" 
n .• ,... 

" 

J.l1'II. 

..... ---... 
, 

,,~ , 

,,.. 

, )'J" 

u.trt. 

n.r" 
• 

u.,.'" 

tUft 

n .IN 

• 
11.18 

."1' __ 

.... 
• ..... 
• ,., 

~, 

.... 
• . -• 

.... 
• 

.... 
• .... 
• .. , 

.... 
• 

.... 
• 

~, 

.• .• ..... , 

..... 
• .• 

'M' 

.• 

.. -• 

.. -, 

.... 
• 

• .... 
• 

.• 

~, 

.. 
, 

l._ n.'", 

" 
..... ,uno 

o 

1un 14 ...... .o 

....... 'u"' 
o 

• " 
..- 'u"' , . 
un 2UM! , . 
t ."", "-IN 

o ~ 

•. _ JM'" 
o .- -o .. 

• 

•• 

'. 

.', 

130



QA:-Compel'1sati-on-
very • .u.ned neither dI •• defled very nIIi Total 
..u.ned ..u.tled dlautlefled 

nor 
dleutlafled 

My pay Is 10.34% 51.12% 11.24% 11.24% 3.45% 0.00% 
fair for the 3 15 5 5 0 29 
work that I 
perform 

OveraD I'm 20.61% 61.11% 3.45% UO% 0.00% 0.00% 
satisfied 6 20 2 0 0 29 
with the 
town's 
benefit 
package 

Q4: Compensation .... ....... - .......... d ..." ..... T_ ....... -- chHtf.nad -.......... 
My p.y Ie ''''4% ft.12% 11.24% 11.24% 3.4,,, 0.10'110 
1. for the J 15 , , a ,. 
workthlt I 
perform 

Ovotll I'm 21.11'110 11.'7% 3.45% 1.1'% I.M'%. .... " 
• .tided 6 20 2 a a ,. 
wRhlhe 
town's 
beneB 
package 

131



Q5: My job 

• .u8fled neither dl •• .u8fled 
T 

nIII Tobi very very I 
..u.fIed • .u8fled dlUltl8fled I 

nor i 
di •• ltl8fled i 

t 
I like the type 31.03% 41.31% 24.14% 0.00% 3.45% 0.00% 
of work that I 9 12 7 0 0 29 
do 

lam given 31.03% 31.93% 13.19% 10.34% 6.90% 0.00% 
enough 9 11 4 3 i 2 i 0 29 
althorityto 
make 
decisions that 
I need to make , , 

I beHeve that 13.19% 41.21% 34.41% 3.45% 0.00% 0.00% 
my job is 4 14 10 0 0 29 
secure 

Deaclines in 24.14% 44.13% 21.59% 0.00% 3.45% 0.00% 
my 7 13 8 0 0 29 
department 
are realiStic 

I feel part of II 11.24% 41.31% 11.24% 10.34% 10.34Y. 3.45% 
team working 5 12 5 3 3 29 
toward II 
sheredgoel 

I am ebleto 11.24% 44.13% 21.59% 10.34% 0.00% 0.00% 
maintain II 5 13 8 3 I 0 0 29 
reasonable 
balance 
between my 
work and 
personal life 

My job makes 11.24% 51.12% 20.69% 3.45% 6.90% 0.00% 
good use of 5 15 6 2 0 29 
my skis and 

abilities 

I have a clear 20.69% 41.21% 20.69% 3.45% 6.90% 0.00% 
understanding 6 14 6 2 0 29 
of my job role 

I understand 20.69% 44.13% 21.59% 3.45% 3.45% 0.00% 
the 6 13 8 0 29 
importance of 
my job to the 
success of 
my 
department 
and to 
Mountain 
Vllage 

Q5: My job 

weoy ....... nelthar dl • ..u.n.d weoy I ... T_ 
• .u.n.d a.uened dI • ..u .... d 

, 
no, i 
... ..u.n.d I. 

I •• thelype 31.03% 41.3.% 24.14% 0.00% 3.4,,,, 0.00% 
01 work thlt I , 12 7 • , • ,. 
do 

I am jjven 'U,'" 37.1'% 13.11% 1U4% 1.10% 0.00% . .-. 9 " • , 2 • 
&lAhar.yto .... , 
declsion.that 
I need to make 

I belev. thel 'IU,,,, 41.2.% '40'" 3.45% 0.00% 0.00% 
my)ob II" • " I. • • 29 
Sletl'e 

De.~*n U .. 14% .... '" 21."% 0.00% :1.4,'" 0.00% 
my 7 " 

, • • 2. 
deplll1mett 

are realiStic 

I feel part of II 11.Z4% 41.3'''' 11.24% 10.34% fO.14% 1.45% 
toam worlli'lg 5 12 5 , 3 
lowards 
lharedgoal 

lam able to 1J.Z4'4 .... ,,, 2U'% 10.:14% 1.00% 0.00% -"'. 5 " • , • • " reaaonaOfe 
b __ • 

between my 

w""' .... 
personal If. 

My Job maic:es 1l.Z4% 51.12% lU'''' 3.46" &.90'4 0,00'4 

good us. 01 5 15 6 2 • 
my nlsand 
abliies 

I have. clear 20.5'" 41.2.'" 2Ut% 3.45% "'0% 0.00% 
~rst~ 6 " 6 2 • 
of my)ob rOle 

I understand 20,n% .... '" 21.51" , ..... 1.45% 0.00% 

'"' 6 " 
, • " mportance 01 

my jobtoth& 
suc:cess 01 

my 
deplWtme'" 
andto 
Mounoln 

VIe,. 

132



Q6-:_My_wo_rk-en~dronment 

very ._od 
n_ - very ",. TOoul _ad 
oOU8fJod -nor 
Il10_ 

Sar~'flsB 35.11% 41.43% 14.2t% "'0% 3.51% 0._ 
119> priorly 10 13 Z& 
ilmy 
deper1ment 

customer 42.16% 35.11% 11.11% 1.00% 10.11% D.OO% 
servk:e Is a 12 10 0 28 
119> priorly 
.,my 
deper1ment 

pratedi1g 32.14% 3t.2.% 14.2t% 1.14% 3.51% 3.51% 
1he 11 28 

enYi'orvnert 

Is 0119> 
PJiority., 
my 
department 

myphysica! 25.00% 42.IG% 21.43% 10.11% 0.00% 0.00% 
work~ 12 28 

condIlons 
or. good 

my_a! 21.51% 53.51% 10.11% 1.00% 1.14% 0.00% 
work area S 15 ) 2 0 28 
IS 

~ety 

• and cleon 

therels 21.43% 39.21% 32.14% 1.14% 0.00% 0.10% 
~. 11 C 28 
noise 
com-olto 
Blow meta 

focuo on 
my work 

!teel 32.1411 32.14% 25.10% 3.51% 1.1411 0.00% 
physicaly 9 : Zd 
slife i1 my 
work 
enYi'onnert 

the town 53.51% 3t.21% 3.51% 3.51% 0.00% 0.00% 
provides 15 11 :8 
~. 

facilies for 
recycing 

(!lIa". 
plastic, 

akJrrWun 
paper, 

car<l>oard, 
compost) i1 
my 
depaf1ment 

energy 31.2.% 35.11% 11.1G% 3.51% 3.51% 0.00% 
efrtciency is 11 10 I I 0 28 
0119> 
priorlyil 
my 
depaf1ment 

my 35.11% 35.11% 25.00% 0.00% 3.51% 0.00% 
depaf1ment 10 10 0 0 28 
always 

practtces 
efrlCiel1. 
use 01 
nah .. 1 
resources 
(fuel, 
water, 
eleclrldy, 
nstlJ"al gas, 

he .. ) 

lamwq 41.43% 42.15% 10.11% 0,00% 0.00% 0.00% 
to recyc~ 13 I. 0 0 0 28 
waste and 

conserve 
energy n 
the 

wor1<ptace 

to he\> the 

town reach 

Is Zero 
Wast. and 

Energy 
EfrlCiency 
goats 

Q6.: My w.o.rk enyjronment 

- .- - - - ~ .-- -- ---.. te .... ~"' ~ ,~ - .. ~ .-""'_", .. n , , • 
.~ -- OM. :tII.ltli tLH" - ~h' .-.... _ ... .. " • • "" ."'" 
"~ -.- IMft ~~ .~ I ..... U~ '1-11" 
h " 

, 
" --..... ,,,,,., .. 

~ -Il0l/ .... *. n._ 0.- ,,~. '''II'' .- I,M .. - " • , , • • -..... 
~-. l'-'rIO I I.111l '11.1111 ~. I,I*M. .-..... ~ .... " • • , • • 
-~ ......... _ .. 

n~ ,,~ IU*'" I .1 ft .- .-- " • -_ .. 
_N' ---_. 
,~ )/.'" U.lfi - ~ Ufi .-.. - • • 
-"~ - ' --h_ um' .. '" .... ..... .- .-..- " " • -. ,--,-,_. ---. 
, .-~ 

-'" N -- JUt'll IU,,,,, ', ....... "'''" ,,~ •. -
.,~, .. " .• • " . "" _., ... 
N -"' H."'" '''''''1 ,- 0- .n. 0--- .. .. • • 
~ .. . --.--' _. ,_ ... 
,~ .-
-""" 
-~ . •• 
,-.... ~ ~" ,"11'1. .. - .- ~ . ...... " 

, 
" • • • ._-... -_n" 

h ._-
.... h 

10 .... '.-.. -_.w -. E'r-... -
133



Q7: My relationship with my immediate supervisor 

very • .o.ned neither d ... .o.ned very n" loUl 
.d.ned • .oefled cU •• .oefled 

nor 
dl •• .oefled 

my supervisor 50.00% 25.00% 10.11% 1.14% 1.14% 0.00% 

treats me 14 7 3 2 2 0 28 
fairly and w~h 

respect 

my supervisor 50.00% 21.43% 10.11% 14.29% 3.51% 0.00% 

handles my 14 6 3 4 0 28 
work related 

issues 

satisfactor~y 

my supervisor 46.43% 32.14% 11.16% 3.51% 0.00% 0.00% 

handles my 13 9 5 1 0 0 28 
personal 

issues 

satisfactorily 

my supervisor 39.29·1. 28.51% 21.43% 1.14% 3.51% 0.00% 

acknowledges 11 8 6 2 0 28 
me when I do 

my work well 

my supervisor 35.11% 39.29% 21.43% 3.51% 0.00% 0.00% 

tells me when 10 11 6 1 0 0 28 
my work 

needs 
improvement 

my supervisor 42.16% 21.43% 25.00% 1.14·1. 3.51% 0.00% 

is open to 12 6 7 2 1 0 28 
hearing my 

opinion or 

feedback 

my supervisor 42.16°1. 21.43% 28.51% 3.51% 3.51·1. 0.00% 

helps me 12 6 8 1 0 28 
develop to my 

fullest 

potential 

I can trust 50.00% 25.00% '10.11% 1.14% 1.14% 0.00% , 

what my 14 7 3 2 2 0 28 
supervisor 

tells me 

my peers treat 42.86% 28.51% 21.43% 3.51% 3.51% 0.00% 

me fairly and 12 8 6 0 28 
w~h respect 

Q7: My relationship with my immediate supervisor 

very • .o .... d neither dleollltlll.d very nlll Totol 
IllIefied olllofled df •• .u.ned 

nor 
dl •• Itf.n.d 

my supervisor 50.00% 25.00% 10.J1% J.14% J.14% 0.00% 
treats me 14 7 3 2 2 0 28 
fairly and w~h 
respect 

my supervisor 50.00% 21.43% 10.11% 14.29% 3.5J% 0.00% 
handfes my 14 6 3 4 1 0 28 
work related 
issues 

Satist8ctot~V 

my supervisor 4i.43% 32.14% 11.16% 3.51% 0.00% 0.00% 
handles my 13 9 5 1 0 0 28 
personal 

issues 

satisfactOf'Uy 

my supervisor 3t.25% 21.5J% 21.43% 1.14% 3.5J% 0.00% 

acknowledges 11 8 6 2 0 28 
mewhenldo 
my work wei 

my supervisor 35.J1% 39.29% 21.43% 3.51% 0.00% 0.00% 
tens me when 10 11 6 1 0 0 28 
my work 
needs 
improvement 

my supervisor 42.15% 21.43% 25.00% J.14% 3.5J% 0.00% 
is open to 12 6 7 2 1 0 28 
hearing my 
opinion Of 

feedback 

my supervisor 42.16% 21.43% 21.51% 3.51% 3.5l'At 0.00% 
helps me 12 6 8 1 0 28 
develop to my 
fuKest 
potential 

I can trust 50.00% 25.00% 10.11% J.14% 1.14% 0.00% 
what my 14 7 3 2 2 0 28 
supervisor 

tens me 

my peers treat 42.16% 21.51% 21.43% 3.51% 3.5J% 0.00% 
me fairly and 12 8 6 1 0 28 
wnh respect 

134



__ ___ Q8_:_T[a i n i n9-&_D_eY-e_1 o_pment---

very ..u.tIed neither dls ..... .n.d very M Total 
nUsfled $ tisfled ..... lIIded 

nor 
cII ......... d 

the town 20.69% 51.62% 6.90% 6.90% 3.45% 3.45% 
provide liS 6 17 I 2 2 29 
rmlCh inlilll 
training liS I 
needed to 
provide high 

qualy 
service 

the town 20.69% 51.62% 6.90% 10.34% 3.45% 0.00% 
provided liS 6 17 2 3 0 29 

much on· 
going tranng 
liS I need to 
provide high 

qualy 
service 

the town 24.14% 55.11% 13.19% 3.45% 3.45% 0.00% 
provides 7 16 4 0 29 
enough 

information. 
ecppmel1. 
end 
resources I 
need to do 
my job wei 

the town 1.90% 31.13% 31.93% 0.00% 13.19% 3.45% 
clearlytels 2 11 11 0 4 29 
me wh81 is 
expected for 
advancement 

I trust what 10.34% 24.14% 44.13% 0.00% 13.19% 6.90% 

the town tels 3 7 13 0 4 2 29 
me • takes to 
IIdvance my 
career 

the town hils 3.45% 21.59% 41.311% 3.45% 13.19% 10.34% 
provided 8 12 4 3 29 
tr!lining or 
experiences 
to help me 
explore other 
opportunities 
Mhlnthe 
town 

there Is room &.90% 34.411% 24.14% 6.90% 11.24% 10.34% 
for me to 2 10 7 2 5 3 29 
IIdvance at 
this 
organization 

I trust that if I 10.34% 21.59% 21.59% 10.34% 11.24% 6.90% 

do good 3 8 8 3 5 2 29 
work. the 
townwil 
consider me 
for II 
promotion of 
IIvllilllble 

Q8: Training & Development 

-. . ..-. nolth e, dI...u.ned - ... r .... ........ ..thrfied ............ 
n .. - .. 

lhelown 2U. % 51,12% ..,0'4 1.10% 3.45% '-45'4 
provide •• • 17 , , ,. 
Il'UCh hlllll 
1t~lsl 

needed to 

prOvldll~ -, 
.elvie, 

thelown 2Ut% 51.12% UO'llo 1U4% 3.45% 0.00'4 
provided I. • " 

, , 0 ,. 
-~. 
gohglr*i"lg 

•• I nelld to 

pro'llde ~ -, 
service 

lhetown :4.'4% n.t"" 13.1.'4 3.45'4 ,.- 0.00'4 
provide, r " • 0 " ."""" irIfor!Tllltion, 

e~nI, 

*'" flSOU'ce.1 

ne&CIlodo 

my job wet 

lhelown "'I'll. ' 1.13'4 )1.'3% 0.00% 1).1''4 U6% 
cIe./y lei. , 

" " 
, • ,. ---IJq)IIcted for 

Idveocernet'!l 

I \rust what 1U4Yo 24.14% ... '" 0.00% 1l.Tt'll. ..,0% 

lne town tds , r " 0 • , ,. 
me_llkuto 
edvlll"lC:O my 
e .... er 

lheIOwnhIS 1.46'4 27.5.'4 41."% 3.045'4 1U, '4 10.34% 
provided • 1? • , ,. 
training Of 

experiences 
10 help me 
explofe other 
opporl\ri:lu 
wi.., 'he 
,,~ 

there I. room 5.10% '4.41'4 24.14% 6.90'4 11.24% ".34% 
fOf mete , to 7 , 5 J ,. 
edvence II 

'''' OI"9WWZIIlion 

IltudtMllfl 10,34% n.SS'4 21.SS'4 10,34'4 11.24'4 "'0'4 "'- , • • 3 S , 
work, the 
townwJ 
c:ooslchlr me 
f« , 

promolion of ,,-
135



Q9: Town leadership & planning 

very • .uafled neither d1.HtIafied very M lobi 
• .uafled HtIafied d1 .. .uafled 

nor 
d1 •• .uafled 

I understand 14.29% 32.14% 39.21% 14.29% 0.00% 0.00% 

the long range 9 11 0 0 28 
vision of the 

town 

I have 28.51% 39.29% 11.16% 10.11% 3.51% 0.00% 

confidence in a 11 3 0 28 
the leaderstop 

of thelown 

the leeders of 32.14% 21.51% 21.43% 14.21% 3.51% 0.00% 

the lown care 9 8 6 4 0 28 
aboutthe~ 

employee's 

wei-being 

there is 25.00% 39.29% 11.8&% 10.11% 1.14% 0.00% 

adequate 7 11 3 0 28 
plaruWlg of the 

departmental 

objectives 

the leaders of 25.00% 25.00% 32.14% 14.29% 3.51% 0.00% 

lhetown are 7 7 0 28 

open to Input 

from employees 

thetown's 11.1&% 39.29% 25.00% 14.2.% 3.51% 0.00% 

commt.rkatkms 5 11 7 0 28 

are fre""en! 
enough 

the town's 14.29"- 46.43% 11.8&% 21.43% 0.00% 0.00% 

communications 13 5 6 0 0 28 
are detaied 

enough 

I heve a good 10.11% 21,43% 35.71% 25.00% 1.14% 0.00% 

understanding 3 6 10 7 0 28 
01 how the 

town Is doing 

fUl8/lcialy 

I can trust what 21.43% 32.14% 21,51% 1.14% 10.11% 0.00% 

the town tels 6 9 8 2 3 0 28 
me 

the town treats 32.14% 35.11% 14.29% 10,11% 1.14% 0.00% 

me ike a 9 10 0 28 
person. not 8 

number 

the town gives 28.51% 35.11% 10.11% 11.16% 1,14% 0.00% 

me enough 8 10 5 2 0 28 
recognition for 

work that is 
wei done 

stalfmg levels 10.11% 28.51% 28.51% 28,51% 3,51% 0,00% 

are adequate to 3 8 8 I 0 28 
provide quality 

services 

I believe there 11.86% 39,29% 11.86% 21.43% 3.51% 0.00% 

is aspd of 11 6 , 0 28 
cooperation 

wnhthetown 

employees are 25.00% 53.51% 1.14% 1.14% 1.14% 0.00% 

treated fairly 15 2 ~ 2 0 28 
here regardless 

of race, 

gender, age, 

reJi9on, sexual 

orientation 

changes that 10.11% 35.71% 32.14% 11,86% 3.51% 0.00% 

affect me are 10 9 S , 0 28 

convnunicated 

prior to 

inpIementation 

Q9: Town leadership & planning 

"'" loUaft,d -- ......... "'" ... ,-"""' .. .. ".fld ... ..-. --' ..... 11_ .. - n .lft 'UK 'UK •. - un 
1I\o1ong._ • " • • • " -~ .. .., 
,- JI.I,% ,.,." lUn. 11.11'" ..... ~ ...... ~. • " 

, , • " 11 .. _.". 

OI1Mlown 

11",-_.01 11.''''' ,U'" ""'" ..... 3.51'110 .-IrMlownclt. • • , • • " _ ... 
employ .... . ~ .... 
11'1 ..... lUll'll. ,t,n'lli lUI ... 11.11'4 J.14% 1.10'11. _. , 

" 
, , , • ,. 

pIIrvwIg otlhl _ . 
........ 
""'~.of U .lt'II. lUi'll. :tUft ,4."'110 un~ .... ,., 
InIlown II. , , • • , • " OPtfl'O~ 

""'" OfI1IioYeH 

\1>010"''''' 11 .. ,'110 ,un .. - ,4.Z.'" ~ .... '11. _ .... , 
" 

, 
" •• In..,..,. ...... ....... ..... ~..,,, 11""'" 11.4"'" ..- ....... . ...- • " • • , .. .. ....., -11WY'"9£IO"I 11.1''110 U ,Q'jI, .)5.71'11. ,,- 1.1"'" .--- • " 

, , , 
" oillowlhe 

10_11 cIoi!g "-It., Inttl! '"'* " ..... n .t,", D."" '.lft ,0.1,,, •. -
!he 10W1'I , ... • • " 

, , , .. 
~ 

IlIclownl, ••• n.t"" JUt'llo '4.U% te.n'llo 7.14'110 ...... 
""'''-'1 , 

" 
, , , 

" ",,'ao, ""' • ..... , 
th&1 ..... n\ll ••• 2U''IIi JUt,.. 10.11'11 u."'" 1.14% .. U ... N._ • " 

, , , , 
" rlC~'OI' 

_~_II ._-
riMing IewiI 11.1'" 11.1n. 21.5'''' 21.1'% un~ ...... 
w, -*'QUlle to , • • • , .. 
Pf_~y ._" ,_ ....... lU .... JU ..... 17M ... ZU,,,, un< .. .. .,. 
.... "'10' , 

" 
, • , 

" CoopeIllliorI 

_","lown 

~e".c 1$.10,.. lUrA. 1.1 .... 1.14% r .l4'!1. . ... '110 

Ifutedl_ty , 
" , • " htr. ftfllt",UI 

of,..,e, 

O<'flGar, ~, 
,~,.""", 
_Ilion 

tlla-ogee 1l1li 11.11~ 3$.11~ ,2.1",", ", .. '" UJ'14. un. 
elftelmt a,. , .. • , 0 " c~cd 

""0 _ .... ., 
136



_____ Q~tO_: _empJo-¥ment 

very ..tI .... ed neither .... .u.rIecI very RIll Total 
........ ed ........ d dI •• 1UafIed 

nor 
cn.utlafled 

I am wlingto 46.43% 35.71% 14.29% 0.00% 3.57% 0.00% 
give extra 13 10 4 0 1 0 28 
effort to help 

the town 
succeed 

I plan to 42.16% 25.00% 21.57% 0.00% 3.57% 0.00% 
continue my 12 7 8 0 1 0 28 
career with 
the town for 
at least 2 
more years 

lam 46.43% 21.57% 17.16% 0.00% 3.57% 3.57% 

interested in 13 8 5 0 1 1 28 
advancement 
with the 
town if an 
opportunity 
becomes 
available 

I would 46.43% 25.00% 21.43% 3.57% 3.57% 0.00% 
recommend 13 7 6 1 1 0 28 
employment 
with the 
town to a 
friend 

Q10: employment 

nry _oiled neHhe, ... - nry RIo T_ 
._ed _d ... -no, 

dI.utlofIed 

10m wiling 10 45.43% 35.11% 14.21% 0.00% 3.51% 0.00% 

give extra 13 10 4 0 1 0 28 
effort 10 help 

the town 
succeed 

I plan 10 42.11% 25.00% 21.51% 0.00% 3.51% 0.00% 

conlinue my 12 7 8 0 1 0 28 
eareer wlh 
the town for 
ot leest 2 
more years 

10m 45.43% 21.51% 11.1&% 0.00% 3.51% 3.51% 

f1tereated in 13 8 5 0 1 1 28 
advancemeli 
wlh1he 
town if en 
opportunity 

becomes 
avMabfe 

I would 45.43% 25.00% 21.43% 3.51% 3.51% 0.00% 
recommend 13 7 6 1 1 0 28 
employment 
w.hthe 
town to a 
friend 

137



Q11" Safety Culture 
ftIY - n_or "'_d .. ry ToU! 
nIlefIed nIlefIod dl .. oII_d 

nor 
... _d 

I gel the .. rety 13.18% '2.01% 24.14% ... .,. ... .,. 
trM'Wlg 1 need before 18 Q 29 
I perform II taslc 

I belove 8atety 20."% 51.n% 20.69% ).AS' 3.4'% 
suggestlofw .0 15 • 29 
taten Mliously and 
folowed I4J on 

I know the rlJes Sld .... ". 51.&2% 11.24% J.4S~. D._ 
procedlEes for safe ft 17 , 1 G 29 
work n my.iOb 

I arnpro'lldedwth 31.03% 31.03% 24.14% 1.46% 10'-
the PPE (hard hats, 7 29 
safetyglanes. 
otc. )lhoIlneed 

I, Of my co.wOI'kers, 17.24% 41.31% 31.'''' Ut% 3.4Ii% 
unt;t tr*e .'Nfl c.\ts; i I~ 29 
Of "egerd safe 
wort procedlses 

IIIRIeqK)weredto 14._ 41.31% 11.24% 3.45% 3.46% 
correct aafely 10 12 I 29 
procedses on my 

own 

lam catiloned bV my 11.24% 44.03% 21.5". .. - , . .-
co-workers when ~ OJ 0 , 
obI«ved WorDlg 

"""'eIy 
My~YtsOIfeels 24..14% 41._ 21.'''' 3.45% ,.....% 

that most acckle ... s 12 • 1 1t 
l!WePlev~ 

My~neYef 21.5'" 41._ 11.24% 11.34% 1.46% 
dhets .. ~yee 12 ~ ,. 
to perform 8 Job lh8I 

hel'ahettHsii: 
..... 1. 

Hazards .e 21.5". 44.13% 31.13% 0'- 3M% 
IdeItified clrilg • 13 0 ,. 
"'_"mv 
depa1merd corrected 

Oedles never 24.14% l4.4I% 11.13% 1.46% 6.1.,. 
override my 10 ~ 

St4)efvttor's concern 
andliteriionlo 
safely 

DeadIlet never 25._ 35.11% 21.51% 1.51% 1.14% 
overl1demv '0 28 

supervisor's concern 
and 8I:leriion to 
safe4V 

My supervisor 24.14% 24.14% 34._ . ....,. 10.14% 
verbaly 10 3 29 
actrl9w1edges 
empIoyeet when 
they perform their 
Iob ... rety 

0.. occidenI 14.29% 42."% 21.43% 10.11% 10.11% 
investigciton process I' I 28 

does not seetc to 
_e btame on an .......... 
ht~w5is 31.03% lUl% 20 •• '" 3.45'" S.H'" 
to be nfonned of 11 , 1 29 
terIous accidenls 

~'" 20."% lUl% 24.14% 10.34% 6,90% 

cons/$'lenlillhH 11 2 29 
treetmen: of lhose 
viDISilg safely rUes 
and procecb"es 

Manager. ond 25._ 42."% 14,29\\ 10.11% 1.14% 
supervisors 12 1 28 
conslslerily tolow 

eslebished "fely 
rUell and Pl'ocedu'es - 20.1.% 51.12% 13.19"1. .. - 1.90% 
~8S8fely 15 ~ 

Pl'owam errorts wlh 

l~ondolher 

relOl..-ces 

~ 11.24% 44.U% 24.14"1. l,45% 1'.:14% 
r~ty~es 13 3 .J 
i1 safety progsn 

activtiea _'I view 
11.24% 41.21% 13.19% 10.34% 10.34% 

on lhe mportance of ~ 14 29 
88retyisfr~ 

stressed to 

~yees 

Q11 Safety Culture 

- - - - - ,-- - ---' ...... -. ,,- -- "'" - -...... '- ...... " • • '''_''-,--, - 11.1'''' ,)1.1"" ... .-"'"'_ ... " 100 .. _ _ - .. ,_ ........ - ~ - ,,- • •• --_.,,,,- • " • 
-~ ... "" , ...... _- "'" .," "'" - ,-
"'PfI!""'.""', , -.-. tic- ,_,_ 

I . ... ~ __ ' ... , 11.1 ... o~ " ..... - ~ ...... , ... _ .... ..... _ ..... -.. -.. 
, .. _" ..... ~ .. ..... ".'O'I ••• ~ . ............ .. " 

, .... -..... .., -' .. e_ .,. ... ,,- _. 
II.U" .- ,-.. _' .... - " • • _ .. -.... 

-~ 

... --- ....... .~ ..~ ••• .. . -_..-... " 
, ..... .-

..,--"' ... n .. ", 0 .- ,,- ,,,. • •• -_ .. - • " • .. ,. ..... _-__ ,. 
-_0. .- _. .. " - ~ -- " -". ----- fO.I'" - ... ••• --. ,. , 
~-
"-" -, -- ,,- ... H .II .. ". ...... - . " --" "-" w'" 
"- ",. "'. -- - ,-.- , .. , , 
~-, 

-""'-",", .. ,10< .. _ -.... 
~- , .. ,'" •. ~ ....... , ...... ....... ............. "'_ .. " • -""-'" ""._ ..... -.. _ ..... . ," , ...... ,,- ... • •• .... __ .. 

" 
, --, _. .... ,,~ "'" .- .-.-..... - • " ._tl_ ---"--- ," .... ~ . ,~ ... I.' ''' -- " • --._ ...... -"-- "". .. ,. 11."" .- I ..... _ ..... 

" • , 
" .. _.,------'. - ,,- ••• ",. ... ,,-,--, .. ..., ..... .., .. -, _ ....... iI.'''' ".II" 'u.,. 11 ..... ,-....... _ ..... .. • " , 

""'1"·_ -_. -
138



Comments: 

• I believe that employees that live in town should be able to ride the goldola to and from work everyday. I do not believe it is right that 
employees that live in town should have to drive to work and waste fuel when there is free public transportation. 

• PTO - Vacation AND Sick leave accural cap is too low for new hire employees - a minor injury will negate all PTO - didnt know 
anything about a discounted spa membership 

• In reguard to commuter shuttle benefits. I think it would be awesome if the town figured a way to allow employees to ride the gondola 
earlier than the 7 AM current time. This would allow employees that reside in Telluride to avoid driving to work. If the gondola would 
allow emplyees to get on at 6:30 AM this would allow enough time for employees to make their 7 AM shift. 

• Was never told about "discounted spa membership". Please email me more info. 

• need to complete a comprehensive survey of other like resort towns pay & benifit packages 

• Year round employees should get free ski pass, XXXXXX only works 2 days a week and she got a free season pass 

• We do not have a place to compost 

• Do not feel safe on road with village drivers 

• we are not all treated farely, sups have there favs . Sups should not date emplyees they supervize on the "G" 

• if u r not friends or dating someone in managment u do not advance 

• Job-specific training is very lacking 

• i feel as if the town should base pay more on experience rather than time with the town. i dont think that someone who has been 
employed here longer than someone with more knowledge related to their department should make more money. 

• "G'" needs more than 6 people on the day shift, stop getting rid of the good employes 

• Highly enjoy working for the town. 

• safety seems secondary to job accomplishment 

Comments: 

• I believe that employees that lIve in town shoUld be able 10 ride the goldola to arid from work everyClay. I do nol believe it is righ t thai 
employees that Irve In town should have to drive to work and waste luel when there is free public transportation. 

• PTa - Vacation AND Sick leave accural cap is too low for new hire employees - a minor injury will negate all PTa - didnt know 
anything about a discounted spa membership 

• In reguard to commuter shuttle benefits. I think it would be awesome if the lown figured a way to allow employees to ride the gondola 
earlier than the 7 AM current time. This would allow employees that reside in Telluride to avoid driving to work. If the gondola would 
allow emplyees to get on at 6:30 AM this would allow enough lime for employees to make their 7 AM shift. 

• Was never told about "discounted spa membership". Please email me more info. 

need to complete a comprehensive survey of other like resort towns pay & benifit packages 

Year round employees should get free ski pass, XXXXXX only works 2 days a week and she gol a free season pass 

• We do nol have a place to compost 

00 not feel safe on road with village drivers 

• we are not all treated farely, sups have there favs . Sups should not dale emplyees they supervize on the "G" 

• if u r not friends or dating someone in managment u do not advance 

• Job-specific training is very lacking 

• i feel as if the town should base pay more on experience rather than time with the lown. i dont think that someone who has been 
employed here longer than someone with more knowledge related to their department should make more money, 

• "G'" needs more than 6 people on the day shift, stop getting rid of the good employes 

• Highly enjoy working for the town. 

• safety seems secondary to job accomplishment 

139



8. Safety. Oversee the Safety Committee & monthly meetings, safety reporting, loss control and safety programs to minimize 
injuries and the loss of property; process workers compensation claims within 48 hours; promote safety incentives for a 
safety free workplace (to include 1-year accident free awards, team safety bucks, & lottery tickets); utilize the return-to
work~rogram after injuries, oversee 9~~:terly safety newsletter "Mountain Village Matters". 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

o 

Workers Compensation 
Total Number of Claims 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Workers Compensation 
Premiums 

500,000 

400,000 

300,000 

200,000 

100,000 

o -

Workers Compensation 
Total Costs Incurred 

- - • • 
200720082009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Workers Compensation 
Modifier Rate (MOD)* 

$300,000 

$200,000 

$100,000 

1.50 

1.00 

0.50 

0.88 1.01 1.09 1.00 0.89 
__ ---""""'-'---"W8"---U 

$0 0.00 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

* MOD is the adjustment of your annual premium based on loss experience, typically the past three years. The 
lower the number the better! 

9. Salary & Benefits Administration. Provide attractive compensation and benefits package to retain high-
performing, well-qualified employees; assist employees in the utilization of benefit programs; annual review of 
compensation and benefits and look to reduce benefit expenses; continue to develop the wellness 
reimbursement plan; coordinate employee functions and appreciation incentives. 

Compensation 

• Seasonal wages were increased, effective 1/1/2015, to $14/hr. + $l/hr. end of season bonus and include a season ski 
pass (employees working >20 hrs./week) 

• Returning seasonal employees (consecutive seasons)will be eligible for a merit increase as budgeted, same as full 
time, year round employees (if 2% merit increase is budgeted: lSI season= $14/hr.; 2nd season = $14.14; 3rd season = 
$14.28 

o Requirements include 20 hrs./week minimum; minimum 500 hours in previous season; evaluation score of 
3.0 or better; must complete previous season 

• Employee wellness (full time, year round employees) has been increased to $795 (the cost of an employee season 
pass) 

• Compensation study is being conducted internally utilizing current job descriptions 

o Positions are being compared to other employers with similar positions, primarily Aspen, Avon, 
Breckenridge, Crested Butte, Steamboat Springs, Telluride and Vail. 

o Utilizing data from existing surveys including Mountain States Employers Council (MSEC), CML 
Compensation Surveys, and other available surveys 

o Anticipate all 2015 data will be available by the end of June 

8. Safety. Oversee the Safety Committee & monthly meetings, safety reporting, loss control and safety programs to minimize 
injuries and the loss of property; process workers compensation claims within 48 hours; promote safety Incentives for a 
safety free workplace (to include I -year accident free awards. team safety bucks, & lottery tickets); utilize the return -to
work program after Injuries, oversee Quarterly safett newsletter "Mountain Village Matters". 

Workers Compensation 
Total Number of Claims 

Workers Compensation 
Total Costs Incurred 

25 r---~~~2---------------- 500,000 

400,000 

300,000 

200,000 

100,000 

20 +-----==--i 
15 

10 +---
5 1-·n-
o .j-~ o 

I-
I- • 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Workers Compensation 
Premiums 

200720082009201020112012 2013 2014 

Workers Compensation 
Modifier Rate (MOD)· 

$300,000 r----------- 1.50 

$200,000 

$100,000 

$0 
2011 2012 2013 2014 

O 8 1.01 1.09 1.00 0.89 
+~. ~8_ -_-JWU~~IO~~ 100 r 

0.50 

0.00 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

· MOD is the adjustment of your annual premium based on loss experience, typica lly the past three years. The 
lower the number the better ! 

9. Salary & Benefits Administration. Provide attractive compensation and benefits package to retain high-
performing, well-qualified employees; assist employees in the utilization of benefit programs; annual review of 
compensation and benefits and look to reduce benefit expenses; continue to develop the weUness 
reimbursement plan; coordinate employee functions and appreciation incentives. 

Compensation 

• Seasonal wages were increased, effective 1/1/2015, to $14/hr. + $I/hr. end of season bonus and include a season ski 
pass (employees working >20 hrs./week) 

• Returning seasonal employees (consecutive seasons)wHl be eligible for a merit increase as budgeted, same as full 
time, year round employees (If 2% merit Increase is budgeted: l Si season= $14/hr.; 2nd season = $14.14; 3'd season = 
$14.28 

o Requirements include 20 hrs./week minimum; minimum 500 hours In previous season; evaluation score of 
3.0 or better; must complete previous season 

• Employee wellness (full time, year round employees) has been increased to $795 (the cost of an employee season 
pass) 

• Compensation study is being conducted internally utilizing current job descriptions 

o Positions are being compared to other employers w ith similar positions, primarily Aspen, Avon, 
Breckenridge, Crested Butte, Steamboat Springs, Te lluride and Va il. 

o Utilizing data from existing surveys including Mountain States Employers Council (MSfC), CML 
Compensation Surveys, and other available surveys 

o Anticipate all 2015 data w ill be available by the end of June 

140



Average Pay Increases 

2013 2014 2015 

Denver/ Boulder 2.7% 2.8% 3.0% 

Western Slope 2.5% 2.8% 3.0% 

Resort 2.6% 3.1% 3.2% 

TMV 0% 3.0% 2.0% 

Average Pay Structure Increases 

2013 2014 

Denver/ Boulder 1.2% 1.3% 1.5% 

Western Slope 1.2% 1.6% 1.4% 

Resort 0.8% 1.2% 1.8% 

TMV 0 0 0 

10. Training & staff development 

Employee Development Opportunities: 
Employee orientation- May 7-8,2014 & November 11-12,2014 
PERA Benefit Information Meeting - November 12, 2014 

2015 

Guest Service Training - July 8-9 by Sue Hansen, including participants from TSG, Hotel Madeline, & Mountain Lodge. 
Lunch & Learn Webinars (Outlook, Word, Building Memory Skills, Project Mgmt., Excel...) 

Recognition: 
Great service awards awarded monthly 
Annual Employee appreciation picnic - July 

Performance Reviews: 
Annual performance reviews for all full time, year round employees in December. 
End of season performance reviews for all seasonal employees conducted in March and October. 

Average Pay Increases 

2013 2014 2015 

Denverl Boulder 2.7% 2.8% 3.0% 

Western Slope 2.5% 2.8% 3.0% 

Resort 2.6% 3.1% 3.2% 

TMV 0% 3.0% 2.0% 

Average Pay Structure Increases 

2013 2014 

Denverl Boulder 1.2% 1.3% 1.5% 

Western Slope 1.2% 1.6% 1.4% 

Resort 0.8% 1.2% 1.8% 

TMV 0 0 0 

10. Training & staff development 

Employee Development Opportunities: 
Employee orientation- May 7-8, 2014 & November 11-12, 2014 
PERA Benefit Information Meet ing - November 12, 2014 

2015 

Guest Service Training - July 8-9 by Sue Hansen, Incl uding participants from TSG, Hotel Madeline, & Mountain l odge. 
lunch & learn Weblna rs (Outlook, Word, Building Memory Skills, Project Mgmt., Excel...) 

Recognition: 
Great service awards awarded monthly 
Annual Emplovee appreciation picnic - JulV 

Performance Reviews: 
Annual performance reviews for all full t ime, vear round emplovees in December. 
End of season performance reviews for all seasonal employees conducted in March and October. 

141



Memo 12a2 

To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council 

From: Sue Kunz, Director Human Resources 

Date: February 12, 2015 

Re: Consideration of Approval for the Drug and Alcohol Policies 

The town has two drug and alcohol policies. Due to the grant funding received for operation of the 
gondola and some vehicles, some of the town employees are required to comply with the DOT 
regulations (safety sensitive employees). All other employees are required to comply with the Drug 
Free Workplace Act (non-safety sensitive employees). The quick answer is that safety sensitive 
employees are subject to random drug testing; non-safety sensitive employees are not. 

Drug & Alcohol Policy- Non-Safety Sensitive Employees 

The changes below have been made to maintain consistency between the two policies. 

1. Page 2- Removed the 'second chance' opportunity in order to be consistent with the safety 
sensitive policy. Employees that seek treatment are eligible to reapply for employment with 
the town; however, we do not hold their positions open during that time. 

2. Page 6- Follow up testing language has been removed from the policy. Since we don't offer a 
second chance, there is no follow up testing. 

3. Page 6- Clarification only to be consistent with the employee handbook. Alcohol can only be 
allowed at town functions with town manager approval. 

4. Page 7- Information has been updated to include the contact information for the new Medical 
Review Officer (MRO). 

Drug & Alcohol Policy- Safety Sensitive Employees 

s. Page 14-lnformation has been updated to include the contact information for the new Medical 
Review Officer (MRO) 

Memo 12a2 

To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council 

From: Sue Kunz, Director HUman Resources 

Date: February 12, 2015 

Re: Consideration of Approval for the Drug and Alcohol Policies 

The town has two drug and alcohol policies. Due to the grant funding received for operation of the 
gondola and some vehides, some of the town employees are required to comply with the DOT 
regulations (safety sensitive employees). All other employees are required to comply w ith the Drug 
Free Workplace Act (non-safety sensitive employees), The quick answer is that safety sensitive 

employees are subject to random drug testing; non-safety sensitive employees are not. 

Drug & A1cohol Policy- Non-Safety Sensitive Employees 

The changes below have been made to maintain consistency between the two policies. 

1. Page 2- Removed the 'second chance' opportunity in order to be consistent with the safety 
sensitive policy. Employees that seek treatment are eligible to reapply for employment with 
the town; however, we do not hold their positions open during that time. 

2_ Page 6- Follow up testing language has been removed from the policy. Since we don't offer a 
second chance, there is no follow up testing. 

3_ Page 6- Clarification only to be consistent with the employee handbook. Alcohol can only be 
allowed at town functions with town manager approval. 

4. Page 7- Information has been updated to include the contact information for the new Medical 
Review Officer (MROJ. 

Drug & Alcohol Policy- Safety Sensitive Employees 

S_ Page 14-lnformation has been updated to include the contact information for the new Medical 
Review Officer (MRO) 

142



~ 
I~ 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

April 1, 2011February20, 2015 

DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY - NON-SAFETY SENSITIVE EMPLOYEES 

PURPOSE 

The Town of Mountain Village ("the Town") is committed to both the community and its employees to provide a safe 
and healthy workplace that is free from the risks posed by the use or abuse of drugs and alcohol. The purpose of this 
policy is to initiate and maintain a program for achieving a drug-free work force and to provide a workplace that is 
free from the abuse of alcohol and the illegal manufacture, distribution, possession, sale and use of illegal drugs. 

The Town values its employees and recognizes their need for a safe and healthy work place. The use of drugs and the 
abuse of alcohol can have a negative impact on the ability of a person to perform specific functions and to be 
productive in a job. The position of the Town is to maintain a safe, productive working environment, and the purpose 
of this policy is to assert the position that a safe and drug free working environment benefits everyone. 

SCOPE 

This document describes the current policy of the Town and will be interpreted, administered and amended by the 
Town within its sole discretion. The Designated Employer Representative (DER) to answer your questions in regard 
to the materials in the drug and alcohol policy is the Director of Human Resources. The Town is an employer at will 
and does not wish to give up any of those rights by adopting this policy. Therefore this policy is in no way a binding 
contractual agreement on the conditions of employment and should not be construed as such. 

APPLICABILITY 

This policy covers current applicants (including rehires) and current employees (including temporary employees) not 
covered by the testing requirements of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation (DOT), 49 CFR Part~ 40 and 655. This policy applies during all working hours, whenever conducting 
business or representing the organization while on call, paid standby. 

For employees in safety sensitive positions, the Town will comply with testing requirements with the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) ofthe U.S. Department ofTransportation (DOT), 49 CFR Parts 40 and 655. (See Drug & Alcohol 
Policy - Safety Sensitive Employees) 

POLICY 

The manufacture, distribution, possession, sale or use of illegal drugs by the Town employees, during working hours 
or non-working hours and on or off the Town's property is prohibited. While the possession and consumption of 
alcohol is legal, the Town will not allow employees to possess or consume alcohol where it is prohibited by law or on 
Town property, except for approved employee events. 

G:jUsersjHRjPoliciesjDrug Free Workplace 
Page 1 

~ 
I ~ 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

ArHilt, 2QUFebruary20, 2015 

DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY - NON-SAFETY SENsmVE EMPLOYEES 

PURPOSE 

The Town of Mountain Village ("the Town") is committed to both the community and its employees to provide a safe 
and healthy workplace that is free from the risks posed by the use or abuse of drugs and alcohol. The purpose of this 
policy is to Initiate and maintain a program for achieving a drug-free work force and to provide a workplace that is 
free from the abuse of alcohol and the illegal manufacture, distribution, possession, sale and use of illegal drugs. 

The Town values its employees and recognizes their need for a safe and healthy work place. The use of drugs and the 
abuse of alcohol can have a negative impact on the ability of a person to perform specific functions and to be 
productive in a job, The position of the Town is to maintain a safe, productive working environment, and the purpose 
of this policy is to assert the position that a safe and drug free working environment benefits everyone, 

SCOPE 

ThiS document describes the current policy of the Town and will be Interpreted, administered and amended by the 
Town within its sale discretion, The Designated Employer Representative (DER) to answer your questions in regard 
to the materials in the drug and alcohol policy is the Director of Human Resources, The Town Is an employer at will 
and does not wish to give up any of those rights by adopting this policy, Therefore this policy is in no way a binding 
contractual agreement on the conditions of employment and should not be construed as such, 

APPUCABlllTY 

This policy covers current applicants (including rehires) and current employees (induding temporary employees) not 
covered by the testing requirements of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) of the U,S, Department of 
Transportation (DOT), 49 CFR Parti 40 and 655, This policy applies during all working hours, whenever conducting 
business or representing the organization while on call, paid standby, 

For employees in safety sensitive positions, the Town will comply with testing requirements with the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) of the U,S, Department of Transportation (DOT), 49 CFR Parts 40 and 655, (See Drug & Alcohol 
Policy - Safety Sensitive Employees) 

POLICY 

The manufacture, distribution, possession, sale or use of illegal drugs by the Town employees, during working hours 
or non-working hours and on or off the Town's property is prohibited, While the possession and consumption of 
alcohol is legal, the Town will not allow employees to possess or consume alcohol where it is prohibited by law or on 
Town property, except for approved employee events. 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Pagel 

143



DRUG FREE EDUCATION PROGRAM 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

Aprii 1, 2!Jlll-ebruarylU. 2015 

To begin this drug-free workplace program and to assist employees in understanding and avoiding illegal drug use and 
controlled substance abuse, the Town will provide a drug-free awareness program which consists of the following: 

1. Employee education 
2. Reasonable Suspicion Training: Supervisors will be trained in drug and alcohol abuse recognition. Through 

this policy, the Town establishes procedures for handling and assisting employees who are subject to the 
effects of illegal drug use, controlled substance abuse or alcohol abuse. 

3. Employee Assistance Program (EAP): The availability of treatment and counseling for employees who 
voluntarily seek assistance. 

4. The consequences for violations of this policy. 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP) 

Early recognition and treatment of illegal drug use or controlled substance abuse or alcohol abuse is important for 
successful rehabilitation, return to productive work, and reduced personal, family, and social disruption. The Town 
encourages the earliest possible diagnosis and treatment for illegal drug use or controlled substance abuse or alcohol 
abuse. The Town supports sound treatment efforts. Whenever feasible, and subject to the limitations set out in this 
policy, the Town will support an employee in overcoming illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol abuse. 
However, the decision to seek diagnosis and accept treatment for illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol 
abuse is primarily the individual employee's responsibility. 

Self-Referral. The Town recognizes that there may be times when employees need help with substance abuse and 
other family matters. Therefore, the Town offers an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) which provides free 
counseling visits. Employees who are experiencing problems with drugs or alcohol may request confidential 
assistance from the EAP without having to consult their supervisor. An employee may seek assistance directly: 

Triad, EAP 877.679.1100 

Horizon Health, EAP 888.293.6948 

970.242.9536 www.triadeap.com 

www.horizoneap.com 

login: standard 

password: eap4u 

Use of the EAP must be on the employee's own time and is not designed to be a substitute for good job performance 
or an excuse for not completing work duties and responsibilities. Those employees initiating a request for assistance 
from the EAP prior to receiving a positive drug or alcohol test or any disciplinary action for violating the Town policies 
will not be disciplined or retaliated against for participating in any counseling or rehabilitation program. 

:rown Referral. Employees WAO test positive for illegal dnlg ",se or controlled s",bstance ab",se and who are referred, 
at the Town's reE{l;Iest, for cOl;lnseling or treatment vAil be IimiteEl to one oppertl:Jnity for cOl:Jnseling or treatment to 
cease the use of illegal drugs. 

A positive test for the use of illegal drugs will result in immediate termination. Emf'lloyees terminateEl for this reason 
will be ineligible for rehire. 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 2 

DRUG FREE EDUCATION PROGRAM 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

April 1, lfc.JIHebruarytU, 2015 

To begin this drug-free workplace program and to assist employees in understanding and avoiding Illegal drug lise and 
controlled substance abuse, the Town will provide a drug-free awareness program which consists of the following: 

1. Employee education 
2. Reasonable Suspicion Training: Supervisors will be trained in drug and alcohol abuse recognition. Through 

this policy, the Town establishes procedures for handling and assisting employees who are subject to the 
effects of illegal drug use, controlled substance abuse or alcohol abuse. 

3. Employee Assistance Program (EAPI: The availability of treatment and counseling for employees who 
voluntarily seek assistance. 

4. The consequences for violations of this policy. 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP) 

Early recognition and treatment of Illegal drug use or controlled substance abuse or alcohol abuse is important for 
successfu l rehabilitation, return to productive work, and reduced personal, family, and social disruption. The Town 
encourages the earliest possible diagnosis and treatment for illegal drug use or controlled substance abuse or alcohol 
abuse. The Town supports sound treatment efforts. Whenever feasible, and subject to the limitations set out In this 
policy, the Town will support an employee in overcoming illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol abuse. 
However, the decision to seek diagnosis and accept treatment for illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol 
abuse is primarily the individual employee's responsibility. 

Self-Referra l. The Town recognizes that there may be times when employees need help with substance abuse and 
other family matters , Therefore, the Town offers an Employee Assistance Program (EAPJ which provides free 
counseling visits . Employees who are experiencing problems with drugs or alcohol may request confidential 
assistance from the EAP without having to consult their supervisor. An employee may seek assistance directly: 

Triad. EAP 877.679.1100 
Horizon Health, EAP 888.293.6948 

970.242.9536 ww w.triadeap.com 

www.horizoneap.com 

login: standard 

password: eap4u 

Use of the EAP must be on the employee's own time and is not designed to be a substitute for good job performance 
or an e)(cuse for not completing work duties and responsibilities. Those employees initiating a request for assistance 
from the EAP prior to receiving a positive drug or alcohol test or any disciplinary action for vioiating the Town policies 
will not be diSCiplined or retaliated against for participating in any counseling or rehabilitation program. 

:r.QWn--Aef-e«~5mplo't'ees \ ... hG-te5~sIUve for illegal d,ugloISt I), OOAtrolled Stlbst3RCQ abuse-afld wtlo are-refe#ed; 
aHhe-lowA'S requesl? for EouA5elifl8-eHfea-1ment-will-6Hmtled-t~r:tunit-v-feFEBu~ffl~mem t8 
€~se of illegal drugs. 

A positive test for the use of illegal drugs will result in immediate termination. eR'll'lleyees terR'liRateEi fer tRis reaSOR 
w ill lie iAeligible for rel:tire. 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 2 

144



Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

April 1, 2011February20, 2015 

Employees who are referred for any other reason, at the Town's request, for counseling or treatment will be limited 
to one opportunity for counseling or treatment to cease the use of illegal drugs. Any positive test for the use of illegal 
drugs following treatment and counseling will result in immediate termination. Employees terminated for this reason 
will be ineligible for rehire unless they can demonstrate successful rehabilitation. 

DEFINITIONS 

Breath Alcohol Concentration (BAC) means the amount of alcohol in a breath sample 
in terms of grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath as indicated by an evidential 
breath test (EBT). 

Confirmation test is a second test performed to confirm the results ofthe initial 
screening test. For controlled substances, this shall be a GC/MS test. For alcohol 
testing this test shall be performed on an EBT device and shall be conducted 
between 15 and 30 minutes after the initial screening test. 

Controlled substance abuse includes prescribed drugs not being used for prescribed 
purposes or in a prescribed manner. 

Designated Employee Representative (DER) An employee authorized by the 
employer to take immediate action(s) to remove employees from safety sensitive 
duties, or cause employees to be removed from these covered duties, and to make 
required decisions in the testing and evaluation processes; the DER also receives 
test results and other communications for the employer, consistent with the 
requirements of this part. 

EBT is an evidential breath testing device that measures breath alcohol concentration (BAC) . 

GC/MS is gas chromatography/mass spectrometry and the technology used to 
test for the presence of illegal drugs and/or controlled substances. 

Illegal drugs means drugs and controlled substances, the possession or use of 
which is unlawful, pursuant to the laws of any country or Federal, State, or local 
laws or regulations in the United States. Drugs and controlled substances that are 
not legally obtainable, or that are legally obtainable but have not been legally 
obtained, are considered to be illegal drugs. Examples include street drugs such as 
cocaine, heroin, marijuana and phencyclidine and controlled substances such as 
amphetamine, methamphetamine and barbiturates. 

Medical Review Officer (MRO) is a certified licensed physician who is responsible for 
receiving all laboratory reports and reviewing those results to determine the valid ity 
of a positive test. 

Positive alcohol test is a result of 0.04 BAC or greater that has been confirmed with an EBT. 

Positive drug test is a result of a GC/MS test showing concentrations at or above 
the following levels for the named drugs: 

G:jUsers/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 3 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

Af,lrill, 2011February20. 2015 

Employees who are referred for any other reason, at the Town's request, for counseling or treatment will be limited 
to one opportunity for counseling or treatment to cease the use of illegal drugs. Any positive test for the use of illegal 
drugs following treatment and counseling will resu lt in immediate termination. Employees terminated for this reason 
will bl?' ineligible for rehire unless they can demonstrate successful rehabilitation. 

DEFINITIONS 

Breath Alcohol Concent ration (BAC) means the amount of alcohol in a breath sample 
in terms of grams of alcohol per 210 liters of breath as Indicated by an evidential 
breath test (EBT) . 

Confirmation test is a second test performed to confirm the results of the initial 
screening test. For controlled substances, this sha ll be a GC/MS test. For alcohol 
testing this test sha ll be performed on an EBT device and shall be conducted 
between 15 and 30 minutes after the initial screening test. 

Controlled substance abuse includes prescribed drugs not being used for prescribed 
purposes or in a prescribed manner. 

Designated Employee Representative (DER) An employee authorized by the 
employer to take immediate action(s) to remove employees from safety sensitive 
duties, or cause employees to be removed from these covered duties, and to make 
required decisions in the testing and evaluation processes; the DER also receives 
test results and other communications for the employer, consistent with the 
requirements of this part. 

EBT is an evidential breath testing device that measures breath alcohol concentration (BAC). 

GC/MS is gas chromatography/mass spect rometry and the technology used to 
test for the presence of Illegal drugs and/or controlled substances. 

Illegal drugs means drugs and controlled substances, the possession or use of 
which is unlawful, pursuant to the laws of any country or Federal, State, or local 
laws or regulations in the United States. Drugs and controlled substances that are 
not legally obtainable, or that are legally obtainable but have not been legally 
obtained, are considered to be illegal drugs. Examples include street drugs such as 
cocaine, heroin, marijuana and phencyclidine and controlled substances such as 
amphetamine, methamphetamine and barbiturates. 

Medical Review Officer (MRO) is a certlf1ed licensed physician who is responsible for 
receiving all laboratory reports and reviewing those results to determine the valid ity 
of a positive test. 

Positive alcohol test is a result of 0.04 BAC or greater that has been confirmed w ith an EBT. 

Positive drug test is a result of a GCjMS test showing concentrations at or above 
the following levels for the named drugs: 

G:/UsersjHR/PoliciesjDrug Free Workplace 
Page 3 

145



Screening Cut-

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

i~prii i, 20iiFebruary20, 2015 

Drug Name- Metabolite off Confirmation Cut-off level 

Marijuana- Delta 9 THC 50 ng/ml 15 ng/ml 

Cocaine Benzoylecgonine 150 ng/ml 100 ng/ml 

MDMA 2000 ng/ml 2000 ng/ml 

MDA 25 ng/ml 25 ng/ml 

MDEA 500 ng/ml 250 ng/ml 

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) is a licensed physician or licensed or certified psychologist, social worker, 
employee assistance professional or an addictions counselor with a minimum of a CAC II certification (certified by the 
National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification Commission) with knowledge of and 
clinical experience in the diagnosis of drug and alcohol related disorders. 

PROHITIBED BEHAVIOR 
The Town's policy prohibits the following: 

1. Use, possession, manufacture, distribution or sale of illegal drugs on Town premises, or in Town supplied 
vehicles during working hours or non-working hours. 

2. Controlled substance abuse on Town premises or during working hours. 
3. Storing any illegal drug in a locker, desk, automobile, or other repository on Town premises. 
4. Being under the influence of an illegal drug or engaging in controlled substance abuse on Town premises or 

while engaged in Town business or in Town supplied vehicles, or during working hours. 
5. Testing positive for illegal drugs or controlled substances or alcohol. 
6. Use, possession, sale or distribution of alcohol or being under the influence of alcohol on Town premises, or 

in Town-supplied vehicles, during working hours. 
7. Refusing to consent to testing or refusing to submit a urine sample for testing when requested by the Town. 
8. Failing, when requested by the Town, to enroll in any alcohol or other drug treatment or counseling program 

and failing to adhere to the requirements of the program. 
9. Being convicted under any criminal drug statue for a violation occurring in the workplace or outside the 

workplace. 
10. Failing to notify the Town of any conviction under any criminal drug statue immediately or no later than five 

days of the event. 
11. Failing to notify the Town after pleading guilty, no contest, or being convicted of any criminal drug statute 

that occurred in the workplace. 
12. Failing to comply with rules and regulations governing any testing program maintained by the Town. 

NOTIFICATION OF CONVICTIONS 
Any employee who pleads guilty or no contest or is convicted of a criminal drug violation in the workplace must notify 
the organization in writing within five calendar days of the conviction. 

PRESCRIPTION MEDICINE 

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not prohibited. The employee 
shall, when drugs are prescribed by a medical professional, inquire of the medical professional whether the drug 
prescribed has any side effects which may impair the employee's ability to safely perform the employee's job duties. 
If the answer from the medical professional is yes, the employee shall obtain a statement from the medical 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 4 

~ 
I~ 

Screening Cut~ 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

J\IlFii 1, 2911Feotuarv20, 2015 

Drug Name· Metabolite off Confirmation Cut-off level 
Marijuana- Delta 9 THe 50 ng/ml 15 ng/ml 

Cocaine Benzoylecgonine 150 ng/ml 100 ng/ml 

MDMA 2000 ng/ml 2000 ng/ml 

MDA 25 ng/ml 2S ngfml 

MDEA 500 ng/ml 250 ng/ml 

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) is a licensed physician or licensed or certified psychologist, social worker, 
employee assistance professional or an addictions counselor with a minimum of a CAe 11 certification (certified by the 
National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors Certification Commission) with knowledge of and 
clinical experience in the diagnosis of drug and alcohol related disorders. 

PROHITIBED BEHAVIOR 
The Town's policy prohibits the following: 

1. Use, possession, manufacture, distribution or sale of illegal drugs on Town premises, or in Town supplied 
vehicles during working hours or non-working hours. 

2. Controlled substance abuse on Town premises or during working hours. 
3. Storing any illegal drug in a locker, desk, automobile, or other repository on Town premises. 
4. Being under the influence of an illegal drug or engaging in controlled substance abuse on Town premises or 

while engaged in Town business or in Town supplied vehicles, or during working hours. 
5. Testing positive for illegal drugs or controlled substances or alcohol. 
6. Use, possession, sale or distribution of alcohol or being under the influence of alcohol on Town premises, or 

in Town-supplied vehicles, during working hours. 
7. Refusing to consent to testing or refusing to submit a urine sample for testing when requested by the Town. 
8. Failing, when requested by the Town, to enroll in any alcohol or other drug treatment or counseling program 

and failing to adhere to the requirements of the program. 
9. Being convicted under any criminal drug statue for a violation occurring In the workplace or outside the 

workplace. 
10. Failing to notify the Town of any conviction under any criminal drug statue immediately or no later than five 

days of the event. 
11. Failing to notify the Town after pleading guilty, no contest, or being convicted of any criminal drug statute 

that occurred in the workplace. 
12. Failing to comply with rules and regulations governing any testing program maintained by the Town. 

NOTIFICATION Of CONVICTIONS 
Any employee who pleads guilty or no contest or is convicted of a criminal drug violation in the workplace must notify 
the organization in writing within five calendar days of the conviction. 

PRESCRIPTION MEDICINE 

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not prohibited. The employee 
shall, when drugs are prescribed by a medica l professional, Inquire of the medical professional whether the drug 
prescribed has any side effects which may impair the employee's ability to safely perform the employee's job duties. 
If the answer from the medical professional is yes, the employee shall obtain a statement from the medical 

G:/Uscrs/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 4 

146



Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

April 1, 2011February20, 2015 

professional indicating any work restrictions and their duration. The employee shall present that statement to his or 
her supervisor prior to going on duty. It is the employee's responsibility to inform the physician the nature of the 
employee's job duties. 

The illegal or unauthorized use of prescription drugs is prohibited. It is a violation of our drug-free workplace policy to 
intentionally misuse and/or abuse prescription medications. Appropriate disciplinary action will be taken if job 
performance deterioration and/or other accidents occur. 

TESTING 

The Town hereby establishes a testing program for illegal drugs and controlled substances for all employees and will, 
in its sole discretion, determine and may at any time change the requirements, extent and frequency of employee 
testing. The testing program will use a laboratory drug test for Marijuana, Cocaine, Opiates, Amphetamines and 
Phencyclidines (PCP). 

Applicants and employees subject to testing must, prior to testing, sign an approved form agreeing to the testing. All 
drug test result records are confidential and precautions will be taken to ensure that only authorized personnel will 
have access to those documents. The Town's management, authorized agents or representatives may use 
information on drug test results in connection with Mountain Village business and for purposes of employment and 
disciplinary actions, Otherwise the Town will not divulge any information unless authorized in writing to do so by the 
tested individual. The Town will afford affected applicants and employees subject to testing the opportunity, prior to 
testing, to list all prescription and non-prescription drugs and controlled substances they have used and to explain the 
circumstances surrounding the use of such drugs and controlled substances. Failure of any employee to adequately 
establish a legal basis for the use of any drug or controlled substance with respect to which the employee tests 
positive shall constitute a violation of this policy. 

In the event of a positive result, if the MRO offers the employee the opportunity to have the split sample sent to 
another certified laboratory for analysis, the test must be conducted on the split sample that was provided by the 
employee at the same time of the original sample. Payment for testing of the split specimen is the responsibility of 
the employee, unless the result of the split sample test invalidates the result of the original test. In the event the 
confirmation test is ruled negative, the Town would reimburse the employee for the cost of the confirmation test. 

Pre-employment Testing 
Candidates for a position with the Town will undergo a test for the presence of drugs prior to being hired. The Town 
will not hire an applicant who tests positive for drugs. 

Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
Any employee suspected of the use of drugs or alcohol while on the job will be required to take a reasonable 
suspicion drug and/or alcohol test. Reasonable suspicion testing is performed when one or more trained supervisors 
can articulate and substantiate phYSical indicators (appearance, speech, or body odors), behavioral indicators and 
performance indicators of probable drug or alcohol use. 

Whenever the Town has reasonable suspicion that an employee's performance is impaired because of alcohol use, 
the Town may require the employee to submit to a breath alcohol test. If the breath alcohol confirmation test result 
is 0.04 BAC or greater, the test will be considered positive, and the Town may take action as stated under 
Consequences for Violation in this policy. 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 5 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

AIlFill, 2011February20, 2015 

professional indicating any work restrictIons and their duration, The employee shall present that statement to his or 
her supervisor prior to going on duty, It is the employee's responsibility to Inform the phYSician the nature of the 
employee's job duties, 

The i11egal or unauthorIzed use of prescription drugs is prohibited, It is a violation of our drug-free workplace policy to 
intentionally misuse and/or abuse prescription medications. Appropriate disciplinary action will be taken if job 
performance deterioration and/or other accidents occur, 

TESTING 

The Town hereby establishes a testing program for illegal drugs and controlled substances for all employees and wi11, 
in its sole discretion, determine and may at any time change the requirements, extent and frequency of employee 
testing, The testing program will use a laboratory drug test for Marijuana, Cocaine, Opiates, Amphetamines and 
Phencyclidines (PCP) , 

Applicants and employees subject to testing must, prior to testing, sign an approved form agreeing to the testing, All 
drug test result records are confidential and precautions will be taken to ensure that only authorized personnel will 
have access to those documents. The Town's management, authorized agents or representatives may use 
information on drug test results in connection with Mountain Village business and for purposes of employment and 
disciplinary actIons, Otherwise the Town will not divulge any information unless authorized in writing to do so by the 
tested individual. The Town will afford affected applicants and employees subject to testing the opportunity, prior to 
testing, to list all prescription and non-prescription drugs and controlled substances they have used and to explain the 
circumstances surrounding the use of such drugs and controlled substances. Failure of any employee to adequately 
establish a legal basis for the use of any drug or controlled substance with respect to which the employee tests 
positive shall constitute a violation of this policy. 

In the event of a positive result, if the MRO offers the employee the opportunity to have the split sample sent to 
another certified laboratory for analysis, the test must be conducted on the split sample that was provided by the 
employee at the same time of the original sample, Payment for testing of the split specimen is the responsibility of 
the employee, unless the result of the split sample test invalidates the result of the original test. In the event the 
confirmation test is ru led negative, the Town would reimburse the employee for the cost of the confirmation test. 

Pre-employment Testing 
Candidates for a position with the Town will undergo a test for the presence of drugs prior to being hired, The Town 
wllt not hire an applicant who tests positive for drugs. 

Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
Any employee suspected of the use of drugs or alcohol while on the job will be required to take a reasonable 
suspicion drug and/or alcohol test. Reasonable suspicion testing is performed when one or more trained supervisors 
can articulate and substantiate physical indicators (appearance, speech, or body odors), behaVioral indicators and 
performance indicators of probable drug or alcohol use, 

Whenever the Town has reasonable suspicion that an employee's performance is impaired because of alcohol use, 
the Town may require the employee to submit to a breath alcohol test. If the breath alcohol confirmation test result 
is 0,04 BAC or greater, the test will be considered positive, and the Town may take action as stated under 
Consequences for Violation in this policy. 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 5 

147



Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

A!3riI1, 2Ql1February20. 2015 

Whenever the Town has reasonable suspicion that an employee has used illegal drugs or engaged in controlled 
substance abuse, whether during working hours or non-working hours, on or off premises, the Town may require the 
employee to submit a urine sample for testing. If the laboratory tests results are positive, this test result will be 
forwarded to a Medical Review Officer. The Medical Review Officer will make the final determination of the result 
after contacting the donor/ employee. 

Post Accident Testing 
In the event that an employee is involved in an accident that occurs on the job, the employee must contact his or her 
supervisor immediately, and the supervisor will determine if a post-accident drug and alcohol test should be 
conducted. The Town may require the employee to submit a urine sample for testing. If the test results are positive, 
the test result will be forwarded to a Medical Review Officer. The Medical Review Officer will make the final 
determination of the result after contacting the donor/employee. 

1=0110''''' U@ Testing 
I=ollowing a verified positive arl:lg or aleohel test (O.04 or greater), ttle employee may be sl:Ibjeet to I:Inannol:lnGea 
testing for at least t\',lel ... e (12) months, bLit-Aot more than sixt\' (60) FRonths with a miniml:lFR of sh( (6) tests being 
done dl:lFing tAe first twel'le (12) FROntRs. The SAP will deterFRine t Ae freEfl:lenC'1 and dl:lration of tl:te follow 1:IJ'l 
testing, tl:te DER Gan set tl:te sched",le. 

The Town will establish and maintain any and all additional testing programs and requirements that may be necessary 
or appropriate to comply with applicable rules and regulations of all government agencies. 

CONSEQUENCES FOR VIOLATION OF THE DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 

Violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination, at the Town's sole discretion. 
In addition to any disciplinary action, the Town may, in its sole discretion, refer the employee to a treatment or 
counseling program for illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol abuse. Employees referred to such a 
program by the Town must bear the cost of any treatment, counseling and/or follow up testing, beyond the free 
counseling sessions offered by the Town through the EAP or group health insurance. The employee must immediately 
cease any illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol abuse, must consent to periodic unannounced testing for 
a period of at least twelve (12) months but not more than sixty (60) months, and must comply with all other 
conditions of the treatment or counseling program and disciplinary action. Town management may determine 
whether an employee referred for illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol abuse treatment or counseling 
should be reassigned to another position. 

The Town will terminate any employee who tests positive for illegal drugs or controlled substances in a follow-up test 
while undergoing or after completion of 
treatment or counseling. 

TOWN PARTIES AND ACTIVITIES 

As a measure of the Town's responsibility to promote safety, standards have been established for Mountain Village 
sponsored parties and activities. Alcohol is allowed on Town premises for Town sponsored parties and activities w it h 
Town Manager approval. A supervisor should be present at all times to monitor party guidelines and participants' 
behavior. Employees, scheduled to work during or immediately following attendance at a party, must refrain from the 
use of alcohol during the party. Employees attending the party, who are not scheduled to work immediately following 
the party, must exhibit good judgment in their alcohol consumption to ensure their capability of safe travel home. 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 6 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

AfJfill. 2011Februarv20, 2015 

Whenever the Town has reasonable suspicion that an employee has used illegal drugs or engaged in controlled 
substance abuse, whether during working hours or non-working hours, on or off premIses, the Town may require the 
employee to submit a urine sample for testing. If the laboratory tests results are positive, this test result w ill be 
forwarded to a Medical Review Officer. The Medical Review Officer w ill make the final determination of the result 
after contacting the donor/ employee. 

Post Accident Testing 
In the event that an employee is involved in an accident that occurs on the job, the employee must contact his or her 
supervisor immediately, and the supervisor will determine if a post-accident drug and alcohol test should be 
conducted. The Tow n may require the employee to submit a urine sample for testing. If the test results are posit ive, 
the test resu lt w ill be forwarded to a Medical Review Officer. The Medical Review Officer wi ll make the final 
determination of the result after contacting the donor/employee. 

Fallaw U@TestiAg 

FQllowiAg a 'Ierified pesitive.Elrwg aF al~l-tesllg.04 OF ~eater), the eA'lplayee ma,! be , wblact t9 wnaAR9wA£efit 
~east twel'Je {tal nIOOttts, ':hlt Ret fR9~ thaR 5iMP( (60) mOAtl:is with a miAlmum of sil( 1'1 tests beffig 
dane duriAg the lim WJewe (12) months.--f-he-&AP-wilkletef.mlne .hefff!qUeney-and-duf.ati&n-eJ-t.he-.f9"ew~ 
testiRg, tile DE A caR set lRe schedwle. 

The Town w ill establish and maintain any and all additional testing programs and requirements that may be necessary 
or appropriate to comply with applicable ru les and regulatIons of all government agencies. 

CONSEQUENCES FOR VIOLATION OF THE DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POUCY 

Violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination, at the Town's sole discretion. 
In addition to any diSCiplinary action. the Tow n may, in its sole discret ion, refer the employee to a treatment or 
counseling program for illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol abuse. Employees referred to such a 
program by the Town must bear the cost of any treatment, counseling and/or follow up testing, beyond the free 
counseling sessions offered by the Town through the EAP or group health insurance. The employee must immediately 
cease any illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol abuse, must consent to periodic unannounced testing for 
a period of at least t welve (12) months but not more than sixty (GO) months, and must comply with all other 
cond itions of the treatment or counseling program and disciplinary action. Town management may determine 
whether an employee referred for illegal drug use or controlled substance or alcohol abuse treatment or counseling 
should be reassigned to another position. 

The Town will terminate any employee who tests positive for illegal drugs or controlled substances In a follow-up test 
w hile undergoing or after completion of 
treatment or counseling. 

TOWN PARTIES AND ACTIVITIES 

As a measure of the Town's responsibility to promote safety, standards have been established for Mountain Village 
sponsored parties and activities. Alcohol is allowed on Town premises for Town sponsored parties and activities with 
Town Manager apprpval. A supervisor should be present at all times to monitor party guidel1nes and participants' 
behavior. Employees, scheduled to work during or immediately following attendance at a party, must refrain from the 
use of alcohol during the party. Employees attending the party, who are not scheduled to work immediately fol1owlng 
the party, must exhibit good judgment In their alcohol consumption to ensure their capability of safe travel home. 

G:/Users/HR/ Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 6 

148



System Contacts 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

A~Fill, 2011February20, 2015 

Any questions regarding this policy or any other aspect of the drug free and alcohol free transit program should 
contact the following transit system representative: 

Designated Employer Representative/Program Manager: 

Name: Sue Kunz 
Title: Director of Human Resources 
Address: 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A, Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Telephone Number: 970-369-6412 

SAMHSA Certified Laboratory 

Name: SED Medical Laboratories 
Address:500 Walter Northeast, suite 500, Albuquerque, NM 87102 

Medical Review Officer: 

Name: MRO Services, Inc., J.R. Saber, M .(;)., l(;).,Dr's Staggs & Peretti 
Address: 425 W. Broadway, Ste. B, N. Little Rock, AR 72114 
Telephone Number: 501.954.9533 855-885-9162 
Fax Number: 501.954.2624 501-376-0560 

Substance Abuse Professionals 

Agency: TRIAD Employee Assistance Program 
Address: 2501 Blichman Ave., Suite 120, Grand Junction, CO 81505 
Telephone Number: (970) 242-9536; 1-877-679-1100 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 7 

Systeom Contacts 

Town of Mounta in Village 
Policies & Procedures 

A~rill, 2QllFebruary20. 2015 

Any questions rega rding this policy or any other aspect of the drug free and alcohol free transit program should 
contact the following transit system representative: 

Designated Employer Representative/Program Manager: 

Name: 5ue Kunz 
Title : Director of Human Resources 
Address: 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A, Mountain Vi llage, CO 81435 
Telephone Number: 970-369-6412 

SAMHSA Certified laboratory 

Name: 5ED Medical laboratories 
Address:500 Walter Northeast, suite 500, Albuquerque, NM 87102 

Medical Review Officer: 

Name: MRO Services, Inc., Mlr8aaeFJ-M.Q.) J,Q."Or's Staggs & Peretti 
Address: 425 W. Broadway. Ste. B. N. little Rock. Aft 72114 
Telephone Number: §Ql.9,§4 .9S55 855-885-9162 
Fax Number: 501.954.2624501-376-0560 

Substance Abuse Professionals 

Agency: TRIAD Employee Assistance Program 
Address: 2501 BUchman Ave., Suite 120, Grand Junction, CO 81505 
Telephone Number: (970) 242-9536; 1-877-679-1100 

G:/UsersfHR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page? 

149



~ 
l~ 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

April 1, 2011February20, 2015 

PROOF OF POLICY ADOPTION BY GOVERNING BOARD OR HIGHEST AUTHORITY 

The aforementioned Drug Free Workplace Policy- (non safety sensitive employees) was reviewed and approved by 
the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village at a public meeting held r;eBFllar~1 17, ZOll.February 20, 2015 

Town of Mountain Village 

By: _________ ______ _ 

Mayor Bee Oel'/csDan Jansen 

G:/Users/HR/Policies/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 8 

~ 
I ~ 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

April}, 2011February20, 1015 

PROOF OF POLICY ADOPTION BY GOVERNING BOARD OR HIGHEST AUTHORITY 

The aforement ioned Drug Free Workplace Poliey- {non safety sensitive employees) was reviewed and approved by 
the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village at a public meeting held Fe9waFY 17. 2011.Febru ary 20. 2015 

Tow n of Mountain Village 

By: 
MaYV<o~r~B~B~.~Q~.~h~'e~5QDian~Jalln~s.~n~----------------

G:/Users/HRjPolicies/Drug Free Workplace 
PageS 

150



RECEIPT & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT A . . _ ______ _ _ ___ . __ , __ ____ _ 

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 

Town of Mountain Village 
Policies & Procedures 

April 1, 2011February20, 2015 

I have received a copy ofthe Town of Mountain Village Drug Free Workplace Policy dated April 1, 2011February 19, 
2015 and understand that, in order to continue my employment with the Town, I must abide by the terms of this 
policy. I agree to notify the Town of any drug or alcohol violation occurring in the workplace. 

Employee Name (please print) 

Employee Signature Date 

G:jUsersjHRjPoliciesjDrug Free Workplace 
Page 9 

Town of Mountain village 
Policies & Procedures 

Al'lfill, 2QllFebruary20. 2015 
~ 
I~ 

-------------------------------------
.RECEIPT & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 

I have received a copy of the Town of Mountain Village Drug Free Workplace Policy dated April 1, 2QllFebruarv 19, 
2015 and understand that, in order to continue my employment with the Town, I must abide by the terms of this 
policy. I agree to notify the Town of any drug or alcohol violation occurring in the workplace. 

Employee Name (please print) 

Employee Signature Date 

G:/Users/HR/Polides/Drug Free Workplace 
Page 9 

151



Introduction 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420. 2015 

DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY - SAFETY SENSITIVE EMPLOYEES 

The Town of Mountain Village (lithe Town") is dedicated to providing friendly, safe, dependable 
and economical transportation services to our transit system passengers. The Town is concerned 
about the effects of the use of illegal drugs, controlled substances and abuse of alcohol upon the 
health and safety of its employees and passengers. To address these concerns, it is our policy to 
ensure that employees are not impaired in their ability to perform assigned duties in a safe, 
productive and healthy manner; to create a workplace environment free from the adverse drug 
effects of drug abuse and alcohol misuse; to prohibit the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensing, possession or use of controlled substances; and to encourage employees to seek 
professional assistance anytime personal problems, including alcohol or drug dependency, 
adversely affect their ability to perform assigned duties. . 

Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to assure worker's fitness for duty and to protect employees, 
passengers and the public from the risks posed by the misuse of alcohol and use of prohibited 
drugs. This policy is intended to comply with all applicable Federal regulations governing 
workplace anti-drug programs in the transit industry. The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) of 
the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) has enacted 49 CFR Part 655, as amended, that 
mandates urine drug testing and breath alcohol testing for safety sensitive positions and prevents 
performance of safety sensitive functions when there is a positive test result or a refusal to test. 
The U.S. DOT has enacted CFR 49 Part 40, as amended, that sets standards for the collection, 
testing and reporting of urine and breath specimens. Part 40 also mandates specific protocols 
used by the Medical Review Officer (MRO), Substance Abuse Professional (SAP), Collector, Breath 
Alcohol Technician (BAT) and Third Party Administrator/Consortium (TPA). The sections of this 
policy that reflect Parts 655 and 40 will be indicated by the use of Bold Typeface. In addition, the 
Federal Government has enacted 49 CFR part 29, "The Drug Free Workplace" policies and the 
reporting of certain drug related offenses to the FTA. This policy incorporates those requirements 
for safety sensitive employees as well as stating the Town's policy on the use of alcohol and drugs. 
(as indicated by the use of an asterisk throughout the content of the policy{*}). A copy of these 
procedures may be obtained from Human Resources. 

Applicability 
This policy applies to all transit system employees; paid part-time employees; contract 
employees and contractors when performing any transit-related safety-sensitive duties *or 
when they are on transit property. 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*}. 

I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 201S 

DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY - SAFETY SENSITIVE EMPLOYEES 

Introduction 

The Town of Mountain Village ("the Town") is dedicated to providing friendly, safe, dependable 
and economical transportation se rvices to our transit system passengers. The Town is concerned 
about the effects of the use of illegal drugs, controlled substances and abuse of alcohol upon the 
health and safety of its employees and passengers. To address these concerns, it is our policy to 
ensure that employees are not impaired in their ability to perform assigned duties in a safe, 
productive and healthy manner; to create a workplace environment free from the adverse drug 
effects of drug abuse and alcohol misuse; to prohibit the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensing, possession or use of controlled substances; and to encourage employees to seek 
professional assistance anytime personal problems, including alcohol or drug dependency, 
adversely affect their ability to perform assigned duties. . 

Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to assure worker's fitness for duty and to protect employees, 
passengers and the public from the risks posed by the misuse of alcohol and use of prohibited 
drugs. This policy is intended to comply with all applicable Federal regulations governing 
workplace anti -drug programs in the transit industry. The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) of 
the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) has enacted 49 CFR Part 655, as amended, that 
mandates urine drug testing and breath alcohol testing for safety sensitive positions and prevents 
performance of safety sensitive functions when there is a positive test result or a refusal to test . 
The U.S. DOT has enacted CFR 49 Part 40, as amended, that sets standards for t he collection, 
testing and reporting of urine and breath specimens. Part 40 also mandates specific protocols 
used by the Medical Review Officer IM RO), Substance Abuse ProfessionallSAP), Collector, Breath 
Alcohol Technician (BAT) and Third Party Administrator/Consortium (TPA). The sections of this 
policy that reflect Parts 655 and 40 will be indicated by the use of Bold Typeface. In addition, the 
Federal Government has enacted 49 CFR part 29, "The Drug Free Workplace" policies and the 
reporting of certain drug related offenses to the flA. This policy incorporates those requirements 
for safety sensitive employees as well as stating the Town's policy on the use of alcohol and drugs. 
(as indicated by the use of an asterisk throughout the content of the policy{·}) . A copy of these 
procedures may be obtained from Human Resources. 

Applicability 
This policy applies to all transit system employees; paid part-time employees; contract 
employees and contractors when performing any transit-related safety-sensitive duties ·or 
when they are on transit property_ 'f'"""'I 

All prOVisions sel forlh In bold face prinl are Included conslSletlt wllh requirements spetlfiLally sel forth In 49 CFR Part 655. or Part 40, as '"'~ 
amended. ProvisJons ~t forth in Ihe Drug Free Workplace Atl (49 CFR Part 29) are dellnealed in Ilalics. All olher provlslorlS are sel forth under _ 
Ihe atJl horlly of the lown as indicated by the use of an asteri sk (Of. 

152



Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

This policy applies to off-site lunch periods or breaks when an employee is scheduled to return 
to work. *Visitors, vendors, and contract employees are governed by this policy while on transit 
premises and will not be permitted to conduct transit business if found to be in violation of this 
policy. 

A safety-sensitive function is any duty related to the safe operation of mass transit service 
including the operation of a mass transit vehicle (whether or not the vehicle is in service), 
controlling the dispatch or movement and maintenance of a mass transit vehicle or equipment 
used in mass transit service (maintenance functions include the repair, overhaul and rebuilding 
of engines, vehicles and/or equipment used in mass transit service), security personnel who 
carry firearms, and any other employee or volunteer who perform duties requiring a COL and/or 
performs a safety-sensitive function and receives remuneration in excess of their actual 
expenses. Supervisors performing any of the above described functions are considered to be 
safety-sensitive employees. 

Participation in the Substance Abuse Program as stated in this policy is a condition of 
employment. 

All positions were reviewed for safety-sensitive duties to determine the safety-sensitive 
positions. Additionally, any new positions created in the future will be reviewed for safety
sensitive duties. A full listing of such employee positions is located on Attachment A of this 
policy. 

The FTA anti-drug rule preempts any state or local law, rule, regulation, or order to the extent 
that: (a) compliance with both the state or local requirement and any requirement in this part is 
not possible, or (b) compliance with the state or local requirement is an obstacle to the 
accomplishment and execution of any requirement in this part. Requirements exceeding those 
established for compliance with FTA regulations will be noted in this policy with the use of an 
*asterisk as being based upon the authority of the Town. 

Prohibited Substances 

Prohibited substances addressed by this policy include the following: 

Illegally Used Controlled Substance or Drugs 
Any illegal drug or any substance identified in Schedules I through V of Section 202 of the 
Controlled Substance Act (21 U.S.c. 812), and as further defined by 21 CFR 1300.11 through 
1300.15. This includes, but is not limited to: marijuana, amphetamines, opiates, phencyclidine 
(PCP), and cocaine, as well as any drugs not approved for medical use by the U.S. Drug 
Enforcement Administration or the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. Illegal use includes use of 
any illegal drug, misuse of legally prescribed drugs, and use of illegally obtained prescription drugs. 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*). 

N 
Q,) 
b.O ro 

0... 

I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 20,201420, 2015 

This policy applies to off-site lunch periods or breaks when an employee is scheduled to return 
to work. ·Visitors, vendors, and contract employees are governed by this policy while on transit 
premises and will not be permitted to conduct transit business if found to be in violation of this 
policy_ 

A safety-sensitive function Is any duty related to the safe operation of mass transit service 
including the operation of a mass transit vehicle (whether or not the vehicle is in service), 
controlling the dispatch or movement and maintenance of a mass transit vehicle or equipment 
used in mass transit service (maintenance functions include the repair, overhaul and rebuilding 
of engines, vehicles and/or equipment used in mass transit service), security personnel who 
carry firearms, and any other employee or volunteer who perform duties requiring a COL and/or 
performs a safety~sensitive function and receives remuneration in excess of their actual 
expenses. Supervisors performing any of the above described functions are considered to be 
safety-sensitive employees. 

Participation in the Substance Abuse Program as stated in this policy is a condition of 
employment. 

All positions were reviewed for safety~sensitive duties to determine the safety-sensitive 
positions. Additionally, any new positions created in the future will be reviewed for safety
sensitive duties. A full listing of such employee positions is located on Attachment A of this 
policy. 

The FTA anti-drug rule preempts any state or local law, rule, regulation, or order to the extent 
that: (a) compliance with both the state or local requirement and any requirement in this part is 
not pOSSible, or (b) compliance with the state or loca l requirement is an obstacle to the 
accomplishment and execution of any requirement in this part. Requirements exceeding those 
established for compliance with FTA regulations will be noted in this policy with the use of an 
"asterisk as being based upon the authority of the Town. 

Prohibited Substances 

Prohibited substances addressed by this policy include the following: 

Illegally Used Controlled Substance or Drugs 
Any illegal drug or any substance identified in Schedules I through V of Section 202 of the 
Controlled Substance Act (21 U.S.c. 812), and as further defined by 21 CFR 1300.11 through 
1300.15. This includes, but is not limited to: marijuana, amphetamines, opiates, phencycl idine 
(PCP), and cocaine, as well as any drugs not approved for medical use by the U.S. Drug 
Enforcement Administration or the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. IUegal use includes use of 
any illegal drug, misuse of legally prescribed drugs, and use of illegally obtained prescription drugs. 

All provisions set forth in bold fact' print are included consistent with requiremen ts specifically set forth In 49 CFR Part 655, or Pan 40, as 

amended. ProviSions set forth In the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated In lIalits. All other provisions are set forth under 
the au thority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk I · ). 

153



~ I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

Safety sensitive employees will be tested for marijuana, cocaine, amphetamines, opiates, and 
phencyclidine. Use of any products that may result in a positive drug test (hemp oil for example) 
is prohibited by the Federal Guidelines. 

legal Drugs 
*The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not 
prohibited. The employee shall, when drugs are prescribed by a medical professional, inquire of 
the medical professional whether the drug prescribed has any side effects which may impair the 
employee's ability to safely perform the employee's job duties. If the answer from the medical 
professional is yes, the employee shall obtain a statement from the medical professional indicating 
any work restrictions and their duration. The employee shall present that statement to his or her 
supervisor prior to going on duty. It is the employee's responsibility to inform the physician the 
nature of the employee's job duties. 

A legally prescribed drug means that an individual has a prescription or other written approval 
from a physician for the use of a drug in the course of medical treatment. It must include the 
patient's name, the name of the substance, quantity/amount to be taken and the period of 
authorization. The misuse of legal drugs while performing transit business is prohibited. 

Alcohol 
The use of beverages containing alcohol or substances including any medication, mouthwash, 
food, candy, or any other substance, which causes alcohol to be present in the body while 
performing transit business or while on call to perform a safety-sensitive duty, is prohibited. 

Prohibited Conduct 

Manufacture, Trafficking, Ingestion, and Use 
Any employee engaging in the manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of 
prohibited substances on Town premises, in public transit vehicles, in uniform or while on business 
related to a public transportation system operated under a contract with the Town will be subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including termination. Ingestion of stated drugs is prohibited at all 
times. law enforcement shall be notified, as appropriate, where criminal activity is suspected. 

Intoxication/Under the Influence 
*Any safety sensitive employee who is reasonably suspected of being intoxicated, impaired, under 
the influence of a prohibited substance, or not fit for duty shall be suspended from job duties 
pending an investigation and verification of condition. Employees found to be under the influence 
of prohibited substances or who fail to pass a drug or alcohol test shall be removed from duty. In 
addition to being removed from duty, such employees will receive educational and 
rehabilitative information and a referral to a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP). 

A drug or alcohol test is considered positive if the individual is found to have a quantifiable 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*). 

Town of Mountain Village 
February -20, 201~ 20. 2015 

Safety sensitive employees will be tested for marijuana, cocaine, amphetamines, opiates, and 
phencyclidine. Use of any products that may result In a positive drug test (hemp oil for example) 
Is prohibited by the Federal Guidelines. 

legal Drugs 
*The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not 
prohibited, The employee shall, when drugs are prescribed by a medical profeSSional, inquire of 
the medical professional whether the drug prescribed has any side effects which may impair the 
em ployee's ability to safely perform the employee's job duties. If the answer from the medical 
professional is yes, the employee shall obtain a statement from the medical profess ional indicating 
any work restri ctions and their duration. The employee shall present that statement to his or her 
supervisor prior to going on duty. It is the employee's responsibility to inform the physician the 
nature of the employee's job duties. 

A legally prescribed drug means that an individual has a prescription or other written approval 
from a physician for the use of a drug in the course of medical treatment. It must include the 
patient's name, the name of the su bstance, quantity/amount to be taken and the period of 
authorization . The misuse of legal drugs while performing transit business is prohibited. 

Alcohol 
The use of beverages containing alcohol or substances including any medication, mouthwash, 
food, candy, or any other substance, which causes alcohol to be present in the body while 
performing transit business or while on call to perform a safety-sensitive duty, is prohibited. 

Prohibited Conduct 

Manufacture, Trafficking, Ingestion. and Use 
Any employee engaging in the manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of 
prohibited substances on Town premises, in public transit vehicles, in uniform or while on business 
related to a public transportation system operated under a contract with the Town will be subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including termination. Ingestion of stated drugs is prohibited at all 
times. l aw enforcement shall be notified, as appropriate, where criminal activity is suspected. 

Intoxication/ Under the Influence 
* Any sa fety sensitive employee who is reasonably suspected of being intoxicated, impaired, under 
the influence of a prohibited substance, or not fit for duty shall be suspended from job duties 
pending an investigation and verification of condition. Employees found to be under the influence 
of prohibited substances or who fail to pass a drug or alcohol test shall be removed from duty. In 
addition to being removed from duty, such employees will receive educational and 
rehabilitative information and a referral to a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP). 

A drug or alcohol test is considered positive if the individual is found to have a quantifiable 

All provisions set forth in bold face print art' included cons istent witll requiremenu specificallv set forth ill 49 CFR Part 6SS, or Part 40, as 

amended. ProV'isiolls set forth In the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in I\alio. All otller provisions are set forth under 
the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk 1-). 

154



Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

presence of a prohibited substance in the body above the minimum thresholds defined in 49 CFR 
Part 40, as amended. 

Alcohol Use 
No safety sensitive employee should report for duty or remain on duty when his/her ability to 
perform assigned functions is adversely affected by alcohol or when his/her blood alcohol 
concentration is 0.04 or greater. Although Part 655 permits alcohol testing just before, during 
and just following the performance of a safety-sensitive duty, * the Town under its own authority 
also prohibits the consumption of alcohol at all times when the employee is on duty. No safety 
sensitive employee shall use alcohol while performing safety sensitive functions, or four 4 hours 
before, just after performing a safety sensitive function or while on call. No safety sensitive 
employee shall use alcohol eight (8) hours after a reportable accident or until the employee has 
undergone a post-accident alcohol test, whichever is first. 

Compliance with Testing Requirements 
All safety-sensitive employees will be subject to urine drug testing and breath alcohol testing as 
a condition of their employment. Refusal of a drug and/or alcohol test will be treated as a 
verified positive test result. Any covered employee who refuses to comply with a request for 
testing shall be removed from duty. Such employees will also receive educational and 
rehabilitative information and be referred to an SAP. 

Refusals: 
Refusals can include a variety of behaviors, including: 

~ Failure to remain at the testing site until the testing process is completed 
~ Failure to provide a urine specimen, saliva, or breath specimen, as 

applicable 
~ Failure to cooperate with any part of the testing process 
~ Failure to take a second test required by the employer or collector 
~ A drug test result that is verified by the MRO as adulterated or substituted 
~ Verbal refusal 
~ Physical absence 
~ Failure to provide a urine specimen or breath sample without a valid 

medical explanation 
~ Failure to undergo a medical evaluation or an observed collection when 

required 
~ Obstructive behavior 
~ Not reporting to the collection site in the time allotted (except in the case 

of pre-employment) 
~ Not remaining at the collection site until the completion of the process 
~ Failure to sign step 2 of the alcohol test form 
~ Failure to permit monitoring or direct observation 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk (*). 

Town of Mountain Village 
Februarv 20,201420.2015 

presence of a prohibited substance in the body above the minimum thresholds defined in 49 (FR 
Part 40, as amended. 

Alcohol Use 
No safety sensitive employee should report for duty or remain on duty when his/her ability to 
perform assigned functions is adversely affected by alcohol or when his/her blood alcohol 
concentration is 0.04 or greater. Although Part 655 permits alcohol testing just before, during 
and just following the performance of a safety-sensitive duty, * the Town under its own authority 
also prohibits the consumption of alcohol at all times when the employee is on duty, No safety 
sensitive employee shall use alcohol while performing safety sensitive functions, or four 4 hours 
before, just after performing a safety sensitive function or while on call. No safety sensitive 
employee shall use alcohol eight (8) hours after a reportable accident or until the employee has 
undergone a post-aCcident alcohol test, whichever is first. 

Compliance with Testing Requirements 
All safety-sensitive employees will be subject to urine drug testing and breath alcohol testing as 
a condition of their employment. Refusal of a drug and/or alcohol test will be treated as a 
verified positive test result. Any covered employee who refuses to comply with a request for 
testing shall be removed from duty. Such employees will also receive educational and 
rehabilitative information and be referred to an SAP. 

Refusals: 
Refusals can include a variety of behaviors, including: 

)I> Failure to remain at the testing site until the testing process is completed 
» Failure to provide a urine specimen, saliva, or breath specimen, as 

applicable 
;i> Failure to cooperate with any part of the testing process 
» Failure to take a second test required by the employer or collector 
» A drug test result that is verified by the MRO as adulterated or substituted 
» Verbal refusal 
» Physical absence 
» Failure to provide a urine specimen or breath sample without a valid 

medical explanation 
» Failure to undergo a medical evaluation or an observed collection when 

required 
~ Obstructive behavior 
)0> Not reporting to the collection site in the time allotted (except in the case 

of pre-employment) 
» Not remaining at the collection site until the complet ion of the process 
}> Failure to sign step 2 of the alcohol test form 
}o> Failure to permit monitoring or direct observation 

All provisions set forth in bold f~ce print are included consistent with requirements specincatly set forth In 49 CFR Part 655, Of Part 40, ~s 

amended. Provisions set forth In Ihe Drue Free Workpl~ce Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delilleated In 1t~liC5. All other provisions are set lorth under 
the authority 01 the town as Indicated by the use of an aSlerls~ (oJ. 

155



I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

~ The donor is found to possess or wear a prosthetic or other device that 
could be used to interfere with the collection process. 

~ The donor refused to follow collector instructions during an observed 
collection process to raise and lower clothing as specified in regulations, 
and 

~ The donor admits to the collector or MRO that he/she adulterated or 
substituted the specimen. 

Observed Samples 
Any safety-sensitive employee who is suspected of falsifying test results through tampering, 
contamination, adulteration, or substitution will be required to undergo an observed collection. 

All employees who go for return-to-duty and follow-up tests must have their collections 
observed. 

During observed collections, items such as prosthetic devices designed to carry clean urine will 
be checked for by observers with both male and female donors. The observer is the same gender 
as the employee and will have the employee lower his or her pants and underpants and raise his 
or her shirt/blouse, turn around and then put the clothing back into place for the observed 
collection. 

Drug tests can be performed any time a safety-sensitive employee is on duty. An alcohol test 
can be performed when the safety-sensitive employee is performing a safety-sensitive duty, just 
before, or just after the performance of a safety- sensitive duty. 

Voluntary Treatment Requirements 
*Voluntary requests for treatment must be made prior to any pending drug/alcohol test or 
disciplinary action. Employees will not be disCiplined for requesting treatment, but will be 
expected to observe job performance standards and work rules as they apply to every employee. 

The Town offers an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) which provides up to three free 
counseling visits per year. An employee may seek assistance directly from: 

TRIAD, EAP by calling 877-679-1100 or 970.249.1100 
or Horizon Health EAP at 888-293-6948. 

All employees are encouraged to make use of the available resources for treatment for alcohol 
misuse and illegal drug use problems. Under certain circumstances, employees may be required to 
undergo treatment for substance abuse or alcohol misuse. Any employee who refuses or fails to 
comply with transit system requirements for treatment, after care, or return to duty shall be 
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. The cost of any treatment or 
rehabilitation services will be paid directly by the employee or their insurance provider. Employees 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*}. 

I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 29, 291420, 2015 

~ The donor is found to possess or wear a prosthetic or other device that 
could be used to interfere with the collection process. 

)- The donor refused to follow collector instructions during an observed 
collection process to raise and lower clothing as specified in regulations, 
and 

);> The donor admits to the collector or MRO that he/she adulterated or 
substituted the specimen. 

Observed Samples 
Any safety-sensitive employee who Is suspected of falsifying test results through tampering, 
contamination, adulteration, or substitution will be required to undergo an observed collection. 

All employees who go for return~to-duty and follow-up tests must have their collections 
observed. 

During observed collections, items such as prosthetic devices designed to carry clean urine will 
be checked for by observers with both male and female donors. The observer is the same gender 
as the employee and will have the employee lower his or her pants and underpants and raise his 
or her shirt/blouse, turn around and then put the clothing back into place for the observed 
collection. 

Drug tests can be performed any time a safety-sensitive employee is on duty. An alcohol test 
can be performed when the safety-sensitive employee is performing a safety-sensitive duty, just 
before, or just after the performance of a safety· sensitive duty. 

Voluntary Treatment Requirements 
"Voluntary requests for treatment must be made prior to any pending drug/alcohol test or 
disciplinary action . Employees will not be disciplined for requesting treatment, but will be 
expected to observe job performance standards and work rules as they apply to every employee. 

The Town offers an Employee Assistance Program (EAP) which provides up to three free 
counseling visits per year. An employee may seek assistance directly from : 

TRIAD, EAP by calling 877-679-1100 or 970.249.1100 
or Horizon Health EAP at 888-293-6948. 

All employees are encouraged to make use of the available resources for treatment for alcohol 
misuse and illegal drug use problems. Under certain circumstances, employees may be required to 
undergo treatment for substance abuse or alcohol misuse. Any employee who refuses or fails to 
comply with transit system requirements for treatment, after care, or return to duty shall be 
subject to disci plinary action, up to and including termination. The cost of any treatment or 
rehabilitation services will be paid directly by the employee or their insurance provider. Employees 

All provisions set fortllin bold face print <Ire included conslstellt with requlremerltS speclflcally set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40. is 
amended. Provisions set forth in the Orug Free Woricpl<lce Act (49 CFR P~rt 29) are de li ~eated In Italics. Al l other provisions are set fortn under 

the authority of the town as IndiC<lted by the use of an ~5tl'ri5k {Ol. 

156



Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

will be allowed to take accumulated sick leave and vacation leave to participate in the prescribed 
rehabilitation program. 

Notification of Criminal Drug Conviction 
All employees are required to notify the transit system of pleading guilty or no co-contest or being 
convicted of any criminal drug statute that occurred in the workplace within five days after such 
plea or conviction. Failure to comply with this provision shall result in disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination. Any safety-sensitive employee must also report any circumstances 
where there was a criminal conviction or loss of driving privileges due to drug or alcohol misuse 
within five days of such conviction or loss of privileges. 

Testing for Prohibited Substances 

Analytical urine drug testing and breath testing for alcohol may be conducted when 
circumstances warrant and as required by Federal regulations. Testing shall be conducted in a 
manner to assure a high degree of accuracy and reliability, using techniques, equipment, and 
laboratory facilities which have been approved by the u.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services (DHHS). All testing will be conducted according to the procedures put forth in 49 CFR 
Part 40, as amended, to ensure the test results are attributed to the correct employee by 
procedures including, picture identification of the employee, the use of the Federal Drug 
Custody and Control Form with unique specimen identification number completed by a trained 
collection site person who insures that the Custody and Control Form is completed correctly and 
signed and certified by the donor, collection of Split Sample specimens that are sealed and 
initialed by the donor. 

Drugs: 
An employee may be tested for the following prohibited substances anytime while on duty. The 
drugs that will be tested for include marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, and 
phencyclidine. An initial drug screen, called an immunoassay test, will be conducted on each 
urine specimen. For those specimens that are not negative, a confirmatory Gas 
Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry (GC/MS) test will be performed. The test will be 
considered positive if the amounts of the metabolites present are above the minimum 
thresholds established in 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. 
*In instances where there is a reason to believe an employee is abusing a substance other than the 
five drugs, the Town reserves the right to request a separate sample and to test for additional 
drugs under the Town's own authority using standard laboratory testing protocols and a non
federal custody and control form. The Town also reserves the right to require a fitness-for-duty 
examination by a licensed medical professional when an employee's observable behavior and 
actions are consdered to be inconsistent with a safe workplace. 

Alcohol: 
Tests confirming alcohol concentration will be conducted utilizing National Highway Traffic 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*}. 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 29. 291420. 201 5 

will be allowed to take accumulated sick leave and vacation leave to participate in the prescribed 
rehabilitation program. 

Notification of Criminal Drug Conviction 
All employees are required to notify the transit system 0/ pleading guilty or no co-contest or being 
convicted 0/ any criminal drug statute that occurred in the workplace within five days after such 
plea or conviction. Failure to comply with this provision shall result in disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination. Any safety-sensitive employee must also report any circumstances 
where there was a criminal conviction or loss of driving privileges due to drug or alcohol misuse 
within five days of such conviction or loss of privileges, 

Testing for Prohibited Substances 

Analytical urine drug testing and breath testing for alcohol may be conducted when 
circumstances warrant and as required by Federal regulations. Testing shall be conducted in a 
manner to assure a high degree of accuracy and reliability, using techniques, equipment, and 
laboratory facilities which have been approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services (DHHS). All testing will be conducted according to the procedures put forth in 49 CFR 
Part 40, as amended, to ensure the test results are attributed to the correct employee by 
procedures Including, picture identification of the employee, the use of the Federal Drug 
Custody and Control Form with unique specimen identification number completed by a trained 
collection site person who insures that the Custody and Control Form is completed correctly and 
signed and certified by the donor, collection of Spilt Sample specimens that are sealed and 
Initialed by the donor. 

Drugs: 
An employee may be tested for the following prohibited substances anytime while on duty. The 
drugs that will be tested for include marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, and 
phencyclidine. An initial drug screen, called an Immunoassay test, will be conducted on each 
urine specimen, For those specimens that are not negative, a confirmatory Gas 
Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry (GC/MS) test will be performed. The test will be 
considered positive If the amounts of the metabolites present are above the minimum 
thresholds established in 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. 
"'In instances where there is a reason to believe an employee is abusing a su bstance other than the 
five drugs, the Town reserves the right to request a separate sample and to test for additional 
drugs under the Town's own authority using standard laboratory testing protocols and a non
federal custody and control form . The Town also reserves the right to require a fitness~for-duty 
examination by a licensed medical professional when an employee's observable behavior and 
actions are consdered to be inconsistent with a safe workplace. 

Alcohol : 
Tests confirming alcohol concentration will be conducted utilizing National Highway Traffic 

All provisions set forth In bold face print are included consistent with reqtJlrements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or part 40, as 

amended. Provisions ~t forth In t he Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in ItallC$. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as Indicated by the use of an asterisk ('). 

157



Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

Safety Administration (NHTSA) approved Evidential Breath Test (EBT) device operated by a 
trained Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT). If the initial test indicated an alcohol concentration of 
0.02 or greater, a second test will be performed to confirm the results of the initial test. A safety 
sensitive employee who has a confirmed alcohol concentration of greater than 0.02 but less 
than 0.04 will result in removal from his/her position for eight hours unless a retest results in a 
concentration measure of less than 0.02. An alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater will be 
considered a positive alcohol test and in violation of this policy. 

MRO: 
All test results from the laboratory will be reported to a Medical Review Officer (MRO). A MRO 
is a licensed physician with detailed knowledge of substance abuse disorders and drug testing. 
The MRO will review the test results to ensure the scientific validity of the test and to determine 
whether there is a legitimate alternative medical explanation for a confirmed positive result. 
The MRO will contact the employee, notify the employee of the positive laboratory result, and 
provide the employee with an opportunity to explain the confirmed test result. The MRO will 
subsequently review the employee's medical history/medical records to determine whether 
there is a legitimate medical explanation for a positive laboratory result. If no legitimate medical 
explanation is found, the test will be verified positive and reported to the Designated Employer 
Representative. If a legitimate explanation is found, the MRO will report the test result as 
negative. The MRO may also cancel results that are troubled according to the protocol set forth 
in 49CFR part 40. The MRO will also inform the employee whose result is positive from the 
laboratory of his/her rights to have the split sample analyzed at a second SAMHSA laboratory. 
See part 7 - Employee Requested Testing. 
Testing Procedures: 

A copy of 49CFR part 40 as amended is available for review for complete and detailed 
laboratory, collection, MRO, and SAP procedures. An employee who would like to review 49 
CFR parts 40 and 655 may request a copy from the Designated Employer Representative (DER). 

Any safety sensitive employee that has a confirmed positive drug and/or alcohol test will be 
removed from his/her position. The employee will be informed of educational and rehabilitation 
programs available, and evaluated by an SAP. 

Testing Events: 

1. Pre-employment /Reclassification Testing 
All safety sensitive applicants shall undergo urine drug testing prior to performing safety
sensitive duties. This requirement also affects employees not in safety-sensitive positions who 
seek reclassification into a safety-sensitive position. Receipt by the Town of a negative test 
result is required prior to performing safety-sensitive duties in a covered position. A cancelled 
test result is not acceptable and must be retaken. *Hiring into a safety-sensitive position will be 
completed within one (1) month of a successful pre-employment/reclassification test. If the 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*}. 

Town of Mountain Vi llage 
February 29, 291420, 2Q15 

Safety Administration (NHTSA) approved Evidential oreath Test (EDT) device operated by a 
trained Breath Alcohol Technician (BAT). If the initial test indicated an alcohol concentration of 
0.02 or greater, a second test will be performed to confirm the results of the initial test. A safety 
sensitive employee who has a confirmed alcohol concentration of greater than 0.02 but less 
than 0.04 will result in removal from his/her position for eight hours unless a retest results in a 
concentration measure of less than 0.02. An alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater will be 
considered a positive alcohol test and in violation of this policy. 

MRO: 
All test results from the laboratory will be reported to a Medical Review Officer (MRO). A MRO 
is a licensed physician with detailed knowledge of substance abuse disorders and drug testing. 
The MRO will review the test results to ensure the scientific validity of the test and to determine 
whether there is a legitimate alternative medical explanation for a confirmed positive result . 
The MRO will contact the employee, notify the employee of the positive laboratory result, and 
provide the employee with an opportunity to explain the confirmed test result. The MRO will 
subsequently review the employee's medical history/medical records to determine whether 
there Is a legitimate medical explanation for a positive laboratory result. If no legitimate medical 
explanation is found, the test will be verified positive and reported to the Designated Employer 
Representative. If a legitimate explanation is found, the MRO will report the test result as 
negative. The MRO may also cancel results that are troubled according to the protocol set forth 
in 49CFR part 40. The MRO will also inform the employee whose result is positive from the 
laboratory of his/her rights to have the split sample analyzed at a second SAMHSA laboratory. 
See part 7 - Employee Requested Testing. 
Testing Procedures: 

A copy of 49CFR part 40 as amended is available for review for complete and detailed 
laboratory, collection, MRO, and SAP procedures. An employee who would like to review 49 
CFR parts 40 and 6S5 may request a copy from the Designated Employer Representative (DER). 

Any safety sensitive employee that has a confirmed positive drug and/or alcohol test will be 
removed from his/her position. The employee will be informed of educational and rehabilitation 
programs available, and evaluated by an SAP. 

Testing Events: 

1. Prewemployment /Reclassification Testing 
All safety sensitive applicants shall undergo urine drug testing prior to performing safety~ 
sensitive duties. This requirement also affects employees not in safety-sensitive positions who 
seek reclassification into a safety-sensitive position. Receipt by the Town of a negative test 
result Is required prior to performing safety-sensitive duties in a covered position. A cancelled 
test result is not acceptable and must be retaken. *Hiring into a safety-sensitive position will be 
completed within one (1) month of a successful pre-employment/reclassification test. If the 

All provisions §t'! forth in bard face print are included consistent with requirements specificalLy set torth in 49 CFR Part 655, 01 Part 40, as 

amended. PrOViSIons set forth in the DrUI! Free Workplate Act (49 CFR Part 29) ilre delineated In Itancs. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town ilS indicated by the use at an asterisk (*}. 

158



Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

applicant has a positive pre-employment drug test, he/she will not be hired. 

If a current covered employee has not performed a safety-sensitive duty for 90 days or 
longer, and has been removed from the random pool, the employee must submit to a new 
pre-employment test and receive a negative result before resuming safety-sensitive duties. 
When a covered employee or applicant has previously failed or refused a pre-employment 
drug test, the employee must provide the employer proof of having successfully completed 
a referral, evaluation and treatment plan as described in Section 655.62. 

An MRO may report negative pre-employment test results for individuals who are unable to 
provide sufficient volume due to permanent disability, but has a medical evaluation that 
indicates no chemical evidence of illegal drug use. 

*The Town will accept a dilute negative test as a negative result and will not require re-testing 
unless required by the MRO. 

All applicants for safety-sensitive positions will be notified in writing that they will be required 
to undergo pre-employment/reclassification drug testing prior to their employment and that 
they will be subject to drug and alcohol testing throughout the period of their employment with 
the Town. Applicants will acknowledge in writing their understanding of these provisions for 
their application and employment. The Town will retain on file the negative drug test results of 
all new hires. 

2. Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
A reasonable suspicion referral for testing, as specified by Part 655, will be made on the basis of 
documented objective facts and circumstances which are consistent with the long or short term 
effects of substance abuse. Reasonable suspicion testing can be done if the observation is made 
for the suspicion of drugs anytime the employee is on duty or for alcohol during, just preceding, 
or immediately following the performance of a safety-sensitive function. *However, under the 
Town's authority, a reasonable suspicion alcohol test may be performed anytime a covered 
employee is on duty. 

Reasonable suspicion determinations will be made by one or more supervisors, in function 
rather than by title, who is trained to detect the signs and symptoms of drug and alcohol use 
and who reasonably concludes that an employee may be adversely affected or impaired in 
his/her work performance due to prohibited substance abuse or misuse. Criteria for reasonable 
suspicion testing included specific, contemporaneous, and articulable observations concerning 
appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of the covered employee consistent with possible 
drug or alcohol misuse. Written documentation shall be required for any reasonable suspicion 
testing. Only trained supervisors who directly observe said reasonably suspicious behavior have 
justification for requiring reasonable suspicion testing. *When a determination has been made 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*}. 

co 
Q) 
bO 
ro 

0... 

Town of Mountain Village 
February ;HJT~!H420 . 20 I S 

applicant has a positive pre-employment drug test, he/she will not be hired. 

If a current covered employee has not performed a safety-sensitive duty for 90 days or 
longer, and has been removed from the random pool, the employee must submit to a new 
pre-employment test and receive a negative result before resuming safety-sensitive duties. 
When a covered employee or applicant has previously failed or refused a pre-employment 
drug test, the employee must provide the employer proof of having successfully completed 
a referral, evaluation and treatment plan as described in Section 655.62. 

An MRO may report negative pre-employment test results for individuals who are unable to 
provide suffident volume due to permanent disability, but has a medical evaluation that 
indicates no chemical evidence of illegal drug use. 

*The Town will accept a dilute negative test as a negative result and will not require re-testing 
unless required by the MRO. 

All applicants for safety-sensitive positions will be notified in writing that they will be required 
to undergo pre-employment/reclassification drug testing prior to their employment and that 
they will be subject to drug and alcohol testing throughout the period of their employment with 
the Town. Applicants will acknowledge in writing their understanding of these provisions for 
their application and employment. The Town will retain on file the negative drug test results of 
all new hires. 

2. Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
A reasonable suspicion referral for testing, as specified by Part 655, will be made on the basis of 
documented objective facts and circumstances which are consistent with the long or short term 
effects of substance abuse. Reasonable suspicion testing can be done if the observation Is made 
for the suspicion of drugs anytime the employee is on duty or for alcohol during, just preceding, 
or immediately following the performance of a safety-sensitive function. *However, under the 
Town's authority, a reasonable suspicion alcohol test may be performed anytime a covered 
employee is on duty. 

Reasonable suspicion determinations will be made by one or more supervisors, in function 
rather than by title, who is trained to detect the signs and symptoms of drug and alcohol use 
and who reasonably concludes that an employee may be adversely affected or impaired in 
his/her work performance due to prohibited substance abuse or misuse. Criteria for reasonable 
suspicion testing included specifiC, contemporaneous, and articulable observations concerning 
appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of the covered employee consistent with possible 
drug or alcohol misuse. Written documentation shall be required for any reasonable suspicion 
testing. Only trained supervisors who directly observe said reasonably suspicious behavior have 
justification for requiring reasonable suspicion testing. *When a det ermination has been made 

All provisions set forth in bold lace print are Incillde<:l consistent with requi rements specifically se t forth In 49 CFR Part 6S5, or Part 40, as 

amended. P ro~isions set forth in the Dfllg Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italits. All other provisions are set forth lInder 

the allthorlty oflhe town as Indicated by the lise of an asterisk {O). 

co 
gj, 

'" 0. 

159



I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420. 2015 

for reasonable suspicion testing, the employee will be transported immediately to the collection 
site. Alcohol tests delayed more than two hours must be accompanied with documentation 
specifying the reason for such a delay. Attempts to collect an alcohol test must conclude after 8 
(eight) hours. 

3. Post-Accident Testing 
Safety sensitive employees will be required to undergo urine drug and breath alcohol testing if 
they are involved in an accident with a mass transit vehicle (regardless of whether or not the 
vehicle is in service) that results in a fatality. This includes all safety sensitive employees that 
are on duty in the vehicle and any other whose performance could have contributed to the 
accident, such as surviving operators, dispatchers, maintenance personnel, or other safety 
sensitive associated employees. Neither a deceased nor an unconscious employee can be tested. 
Any post-accident testing is stayed while the employee assists in resolution of the accident or 
receives medical attention following the accident. 

In addition, a post accident test will be conducted in situations where there isn't a fatality but 
the following occurs, (a) an individual requires immediate transportation to a medical 
treatment facility (as a result of collision or non-collision), (b) any time one or more vehicles 
incurs disabling damage that prevents any of the vehicles involved from leaving the scene of the 
occurrence in their usual manner in daylight after simple repairs, or (c) with respect to an 
occurrence in which the mass transit vehicle involved is a rail car, trolley car, trolley bus or 
vessel and the vehicle is removed from operation. In a non-fatal accident as previously 
described, post-accident testing will be conducted unless the operator's performance (and any 
other covered employees whose performance could have contributed to the accident) can be 
completely discounted as a contributing factor to the accident as determined by the employer 
using the best information at the time of the decision. 

Following an accident, the safety sensitive employee will be tested as soon as possible, but not 
to exceed eight (8) hours for alcohol testing and thirty-two (32) hours for drug testing. All 
accidents will have documentation as to whether or not a test was administered and the 
rationale for such a decision. If there is a delay of greater than two (2) hours for an alcohol test, 
a reason must be given in writing, retained in a file for possible later referral, and the employer 
must still attempt to administer the alcohol test, however, all attempts must cease after eight 
(8) hours. Any safety sensitive employees subject to post-accident testing must refrain from 
alcohol use for eight (8) hours following the accident or until he/she undergoes a post-accident 
alcohol test. 

Safety-sensitive employees subject to post-accident testing must remain readily available for 
testing and the employer must know the whereabouts of those employees at all times until post 
accident testing has been completed or until the employee has been completely discounted as a 
contributing factor. 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {oJ. 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 20142Q, 2015 

for reasonable suspicion testing, the employee will be transported immediately to the collection 
site. Alcohol tests delayed more than two hours must be accompanied with documentation 
specifying the reason for such a delay. Attempts to collect an alcohol test must conclude after 8 
(eight) hours. 

3. Post-Accident Testing 
Safety sensitive employees will be required to undergo urine drug and breath alcohol testing if 
they are involved in an accident with a mass transit vehicle (regardless of whether or not the 
vehicle Is in service) that results In a fatality. This Includes all safety sensitive employees that 
are on duty In the vehicle and any other whose performance could have contributed to the 
accident, such as surviving operators, dispatchers, maintenance personnel, or other safety 
sensitive associated employees. Neither a deceased nor an unconscious employee can be tested. 
Any post-accident testing Is stayed while the employee assists in resolution of the accident or 
receives medical attention following the accident. 

In addition, a post accident test will be conducted In situations where there isn't a fatality but 
the following occurs, (a) an Individual requires Immediate transportation to a medical 
treatment facility (as a result of collision or non-collision), (b) any time one or more vehicles 
incurs disabling damage that prevents any of the vehicles involved from leaving the scene of the 
occurrence in their usual manner in daylight after simple repairs, or (c) with respect to an 
occurrenCe in which the mass transit vehicle involved is a rail car, trolley car, trolley bus or 
vessel and the vehicle is removed from operation. In a non-fatal accident as previously 
described, post-accident testing will be conducted unless the operator's performance (and any 
other covered employees whose performance could have contributed to the accident) can be 
completely discounted as a contributing factor to the accident as determined by the employer 
using the best Information at the time of the decision. 

Following an accident, the safety sensitive employee wllf be tested as soon as possible, but not 
to exceed eight (8) hours for alcohol testing and thirty-two (32) hours for drug testing. All 
accidents will have documentation as to whether or not a test was administered and the 
rationale for such a decision. If there is a delay of greater than two (2) hours for an alcohol test, 
a reason must be given in writing, retained in a file for possible later referral, and the employer 
must stili attempt to administer the alcohol test, however, all attempts must cease after eight 
(8) hours. Any safety sensitive employees subject to post-accident testing must refrain from 
alcohol use for eight (8) hours following the accident or until he/she undergoes a post-accident 
alcohol test . 

Safety-sensitive employees subject to post-accident testing must remain readily available for 
testing and the employer must know the whereabouts of those employees at all tImes until post 
accident testing has been completed or until the employee has been completely discounted as a 
contributing factor. 

All provisions set forth In bold face print are illeillded consiSlenl wlth requirements specificaliV set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 
amel1ded. Provisions set forth In the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are dellneated In Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 
the authority of the town as Indicated bv the use of an asterisk {Of. 

160



Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420. 2015 

Written rationale and documentation is required when a decision is made not to test an 
employee in a non-fatal accident. In the rare event that the employee cannot participate in the 
FTA collection process, following an accident, the employer may accept the results of a test 
performed by federal, state, or local officials if results are released. 

Procedures will be in place to insure testing can be conducted all hours of operation. 
Any safety sensitive employee who leaves the scene of the accident without justifiable 
explanation prior to submission to drug and alcohol testing will be considered to have refused 
the test. 

Post-accident testing will be stayed while the employee(s) in question receive medical treatment 
following the accident. 

4. Random Testing 
FTA regulations require random testing of drugs and alcohol for all safety sensitive employees. 
Random testing serves as a deterrent against employee beginning or continuing drug use or 
alcohol misuse. All employees in safety sensitive positions will be subjected to random, 
unannounced testing. The selection of safety sensitive employees for random drug and/or 
alcohol testing will be made using a scientifically valid method that ensures each covered 
employee will have an equal chance of being selected each time selections are made and there 
will be no discretion of the managers as to the selections made. All safety-sensitive employees 
remain in the selection pool even after being selected for testing thus, employees may be 
selected more than once a year. The tests are conducted throughout the year in an 
unpredictable pattern. The random number selection process is conducted in strict confidence 
to ensure no employee is forewarned and that testing is unannounced. A limited number of 
individuals will have knowledge of the random numbers to insure confidentiality and the 
integrity of the testing process. 

The random tests will be spread throughout the draw period and all shifts of safety-sensitive 
functions and duties. Alcohol tests can only be performed just before, during, or just after the 
performance of a safety-sensitive job functipn, while drug tests can be conducted at any time 
during an employee's shift (i.e. beginning, middle, and end). Employees are required to proceed 
immediately to the collection site upon notification of their random selection. 

Only US DOT safety-sensitive employees are included in the random pool. *In the event the 
Designated Employer Representative is selected for random testing, a secondary contact person 
will notify the Program Manager to report to the collection site for random testing. All safety 
sensitive employees shall be notified discreetly to report to the collection site to provide for 
privacy. 

The Town retains and records the dates of notification that a safety-sensitive employee has 
been selected and the results of those tests. All information is confidential. 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {OJ. 

Town of Mountain Vil lage 
February 29, 291420, 201~ 

Written rationale and documentation is required when a decision is made not to test an 
employee in a non-fatal accident. In the rare event that the employee cannot participate in the 
FTA collection process, following an accident, the employer may accept the results of a test 
performed by federal, state, or local officials if results are released. 

Procedures will be in place to insure testing can be conducted aU hours of operation. 
Any safety sensitive employee who leaves the scene of the accident without justifiable 
explanation prior to submission to drug and alcohol testing will be considered to have refused 
the test. 

Post-accident testing will be stayed while the employee(s) in question receive medical treatment 
following the accident. 

4. Random Testing 
FTA regulations require random testing of drugs and alcohol for all safety sensitive employees. 
Random testing serves as a deterrent against employee beginning or continuing drug use or 
alcohol misuse. All employees in safety sensitive positions will be subjected to random, 
unannounced testing. The selection of safety sensitive employees for random drug and/or 
alcohol testing will be made using a scientifically valid method that ensures each covered 
employee will have an equal chance of being selected each time selections are made and there 
will be no discretion of the managers as to the selections made. All safety-sensitive employees 
remain in the selection pool even after being selected for testing thus, employees may be 
selected more than once a year. The tests are conducted throughout the year in an 
unpredictable pattern. The random number selection process is conducted in strict confidence 
to ensure no employee is forewarned and that testing Is unannounced. A limited number of 
individuals will have knowledge of the random numbers to insure confidentiality and the 
Integrity of the testing process. 

The random tests will be spread throughout the draw period and all shifts of safety-sensitive 
functions and duties. Alcohol tests can only be performed just before, during, or just after the 
performance of a safety-sensitive job functi!,n, While drug tests can be conducted at any time 
during an employee's shift (i.e. beginning, middle, and end). Employees are required to proceed 
immediately to the collection site upon notification of their random selection. 

Only us DOT safety-sensitive employees are included in the random pool. *In the event the 
Designated Employer Representative is selected for random testing, a secondary contact person 
will notify the Program Manager to report to th e collection site for random testing. All safety 
sensitive employees shall be notified discreetly to report to the collection site to provide for 
privacy. 

The Town retains and records the dates of notification that a safety-sensitive employee has 
been selected and the results of those tests. All information is confidential. 

All provisions set forth in bold face prin t are Included consistent with requirements specifically set forth In 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 
amended. Provisions set forth In the Orug Free Workplace At! (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in italics. All other proviSions are set forth under 
the authority of t tle town as Indicated bV ttle use of an asterisk (O}. 

161



I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

* The Town shall, during the course of a year, participate in the random testing program to assist 
in insuring a minimum of 25 percent of USDOT safety-sensitive employees are tested for drug use 
and a minimum of 10 percent of USDOT safety sensitive employees are tested for alcohol abuse 
for the Consortium. The rates are subject to annual revision based on the FTA mandate. 

5. Return-to-Duty Testing 
Before any safety-sensitive employee is allowed to return to performing safety-sensitive duties 
following a verified positive drug or alcohol test (0.04 or greater) he/she must be evaluated by a 
SAP, shown successful compliance with any recommended treatment and provide a negative 
return-to-duty test. The employer makes the decision to request a return-to-duty test as a 
result of the written recommendation of ~he SAP. The SAP may require testing for 
both drugs and alcohol, regardless if the original positive test result was for only one substance. 
All employees who go for return-to-duty tests must have their collections observed. 

6. Follow-up Testing 
Once a safety-sensitive employee is allowed to return to duty and the employer has a negative 
return-to-duty test on file, the employee shall be subject to unannounced random follow-up 
testing for at least twelve (12) months, but not more than sixty (60) months with a minimum of 
six (6) tests being done during the first twelve (12) months. The SAP will determine the 
frequency and duration of the follow-up testing, the DER can set the schedule. Follow-up testing 
is separate from and in addition to the regular random testing program. Employees subject to 
follow-up testing must also remain in the standard random pool and must be tested whenever 
their name comes up for random testing, even if this means being tested twice in the same day, 
week, or month. All employees who go for follow-up tests must have their collections observed. 

7. Employee Requested Testing 
Any safety-sensitive employee who questions the results of a required drug test may request the 
MRO to forward the split sample to a different DHHS certified laboratory for analysis. The test 
must be conducted on the split sample that was provided by the employee at the same time as 
the original sample. 

*Payment for testing of the split specimen is the responsibility of the employee, unless the result 
of the split sample test invalidates the result of the original test. Testing will not be denied if the 
employee cannot pay. The Town will ensure that the costs for the split specimen are covered in 
order for a timely analysis; however, the Town will seek reimbursement for the split analysis from 
the employee. The final split specimen result goes to the employer. 

The method of collecting, storing, and testing the split sample will be consistent with the 
procedures set forth in 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. The employee's request for split sample 
testing must be made to the Medical Review Officer within 72 hours of notice of the original 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*}. 

I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 29, 291420, 2015 

* The Town shall, during the course of a year, participate in the random testing program to assist 
in insuring a minimum of 25 percent of USDOT safety-sensitive employees are tested for drug use 
and a minimum of 10 percent of USDOT safety sensitive employees are tested for alcohol abuse 
for the Consortium. The rates are subject to annual revision based on the FTA mandate. 

S. Return-ta-Duty Testing 
Before any safety-sensitive employee is allowed to return to performing safety-sensitive duties 
following a verified positive drug or alcohol test (0.04 or greater) he/she must be evaluated by a 
SAP, shown successful compliance with any recommended treatment and provide a negative 
return·to-duty test. The employer makes the decision to request a return-to-duty test as a 
result of the written recommendation of ~he SAP. The SAP may require testing for 
both drugs and alcohol, regardless if the original positive test result was for only one substance. 
All employees who go for return-to-duty tests must have their collections observed. 

6. Follow-up Testing 
Once a safety-sensitive employee is allowed to return to duty and the employer has a negative 
return-to-duty test on file, the employee shall be subject to unannounced random follow-up 
testing for at least twelve (12) months, but not more than sixty (60) months with a minimum of 
six (6) tests being done during the first twelve (12) months. The SAP will determine the 
frequency and duration of the follow-up testing, the DER can set the schedule. Follow-up testing 
15 separate from and in addition to the regular random testing program. Employees subject to 
follow-up testing must also remain in the standard random pool and must be tested whenever 
their name comes up for random testing, even if this means being tested twice in the same day, 
week, or month. All employees who go for follow-up tests must have their collections observed. 

7. Employee Requested Testing 
Any safety-sensitive employee who questions the results of a required drug test may request the 
MRO to forward the split sample to a different DHHS certified laboratory for analysis. The test 
must be conducted on the split sample that was provided by the employee at the same time as 
the original sample. 

·Payment for testing of the split specimen is the responsibility of the employee, unless the result 
of the split sample test invalidates the result of the original test. Testing will not be denied if the 
employee cannot pay. The Town will ensure that the costs for the split specimen are covered in 
order for a timely analysis; however, the Town will seek reimbursement for the split analysis from 
the employee. The final split specimen result goes to the employer. 

The method of collecting, storing, and testing the split sample will be consistent with the 
procedures set forth in 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. The employee's request for split sample 
testing must be made to the Medical Review Officer within 72 hours of notice of the original 

All provisIons set forth In bold fate prln t are ind uded tonsiste nt witl'l requirements spetifically se t forth in 49 CFR f>art 655, or f>art 40, ilS 
~mended . ProviSions set forth in the Drug Free Workpl~te Att (49 CFR f>art 29) are delineated in Itali cs. All other provisk)ns are set forth under 
the authority of tl'le town as indica ted by Ihe use of an asteriSk I- j. 

162



Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420. 2015. 

sample verified test result. The MRO must direct the laboratory in writing to send the split 
sample with appropriate copies of the chain of custody form and a copy of the MRO's request 
for testing to another DHHS certified laboratory. Requests after 72 hours will only be accepted if 
the delay was due to documented facts that were beyond the control of the employee. 
Employment Assessment 

The responsibilities of the SAP Include: 

• Evaluating and assessing the employee (face-to-face) and the type of assistance 
needed in resolving the problems associated with a safety-sensitive employee who 
has refused to submit to a drug or alcohol test or who has a verified positive drug 
and/or alcohol test result. 

• Refer the employee to an appropriate program. 

• Provide a face-to-face evaluation to determine whether a safety-sensitive employee 
who has a verified positive drug and/or alcohol test result has complied appropriately 
with the SAP's recommendations. 

• Determine when return-to-duty testing is appropriate and whether it should be for 
drugs and/or alcohol. Provide a written report to the employer. 

• Recommending the frequency of the testing and the number of months the returning 
safety-sensitive employee will be subject to follow-up testing (after the minimum six 
tests during the first 12 months) and whether it will be for drugs and/or alcohol. 

The SAP must follow the specific procedures and protocols set forth in 49CFR part 40. 

Information Disclosure 

The Town will strictly adhere to all standards of confidentiality and assure all employees that 
testing records and results will be released only to those authorized by FTA rules to receive such 
information. All drug and alcohol testing records will be maintained in a secure manner so that 
disclosure of information to unauthorized persons does not occur. Privacy of each tested 
employee shall be strictly maintained. Information will only be released in the following 
circumstances: 

1. to a third party only as directed by specific, written instruction of the employee; 
2. to the decision maker in a lawsuit, grievance, or other proceeding initiated by or on 
the behalf of the employee test 
3. to the subsequent employer upon receipt of a written request from the employee; 
4. to the National Transportation Safety Board during an accident investigation; 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*}. 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 2014£Q,.2l) 1~ 

sample verified test result. The MRO must direct the laboratory in writing to send the split 
sample with appropriate copies of the chain of custody form and a copy of the MRO's request 
for testing to another DHHS certified laboratory. Requests after 72 hours will only be accepted If 
the delay was due to documented facts that were beyond the control of the employee, 
Employment Assessment 

The responsibilities of the SAP Include: 

• Evaluating and assessing the employee (face-ta-face) and the type of assistance 
needed in resolving the problems associated with a safety-sensitive employee who 
has refused to submit to a drug or alcohol test or who has a verified positive drug 
and/or alcohol test result. 

• Refer the employee to an appropriate program. 

• Provide a face-to-face evaluation to determine whether a safety-sensitive employee 
Who has a verified positive drug and/or alcohol test result has complied appropriately 
with the SAP's recommendations. 

• Determine when return-to-duty testing is appropriate and whether It should be for 
drugs and/or alcohol . Provide a written report to the employer. 

• Recommending the frequency of the testing and the number of months the returning 
safety-sensitive employee will be subject to follow-up testing (after the minimum six 
tests during the first 12 months) and whether it will be for drugs and/or alcohol . 

The SAP must follow the specific procedures and protocols set forth in 49CFR part 40. 

Information Disclosure 

The Town wHl strictly adhere to all standards of confidentiality and assure all employees that 
testing records and results will be released only to those authorized by FTA rules to receive such 
information. All drug and alcohol testing records will be maintained in a secure manner so that 
disclosure of information to unauthorized persons does not occur. Privacy of each tested 
employee shall be strictly maintained. Information will only be released in the following 
circumstances: 

1. to a third party only as directed by specific, written instruction of the employee; 
2. to the decision maker in a lawsuit, grievance, or other proceeding Initiated by or on 
the behalf of the employee test 
3. to the subsequent employer upon receipt of a written request from the employee; 
4. to the National Transportation Safety Board during an accident investigation; 

All provIsions set forth in bold face print are Included con~istent with requlremenh spe<ificallv set forth in 49 eFR Part 6~S, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth In the Drug free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other proviSions are set forth under 
the authorltv of the town as Indicated by the use of an asterisk \0). 

163



I~ Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

S. to the DOT or any DOT agency with the regulatory authority over the employer or any 
of its employees, or to a authorized State oversite agency 
6. to the employee, upon written request 

Employees have the unqualified right to review their drug and alcohol testing records, to have 
access to information to dispute the results of any testing outcome, to have access to any 
pertinent records such as equipment calibration records and records of laboratory certifications. 

Employee and Supervisor Training 

All safety-sensitive employees will undergo a minimum of 60 minutes of training on the signs 
and symptoms of drug use including the effects and consequences of drug use on personal 
health, safety, and the work environment. The training must also include manifestations and 
behavioral cues that may indicate prohibited drug use. The training will be in the context of 
prohibited drug use in the workplace, the FTA regulations, and the Town's substance abuse 
policy. The training shall also include information concerning the effects of alcohol misuse on 
the individual's health, work, and personal life, and signs and symptoms of an alcohol problem. 
Printed literature concerning prohibited drug use and the effects of drugs and alcohol as well as 
a service hotline for employees experiencing problems with prohibited drugs and alcohol will be 
made readily available to all safety-sensitive employees. 

Supervisors will also receive 60 minutes of reasonable SUspICion training on the physical, 
behavioral, and performance indicators of probable drug use and 60 minutes of additional 
reasonable suspicion training on the physical, behavioral, speech, and performance indicators of 
probable alcohol misuse. Training shall be given to all supervisors concerning: (a) their role and 
responsibility of reasonable suspicion determinations, (b) procedures for initiating, sustaining, 
and documenting the referral of reasonable suspicions, (c) instructions for employee 
intervention, and (d) procedures for record keeping/documenting a reasonable suspicion event. 
Supervisors will not perform supervisory duties that require reasonable suspicion determination 
prior to completing supervisor training. *Training for non-safety-sensitive employees on the 
importance of maintaining a drug free workplace shall also be provided. 

*Handouts are available providing information concerning the effects of drug use and alcohol 
misuse on the individual's health, work, and personal life and the signs and symptoms of alcohol 
misuse. 
Employee/Provider Communications 

The Town's Substance Abuse Policy was originally approved and adopted by Town Council on 
May 13th and May 28th

, 2003 and became effective May 28, 2003. A copy of the signed adoption 
by the Town Council is attached to this policy. Anytime this policy is substantively amended or 
updated due to changes in Federal regulations in the future, the policy will contain the date, 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requi rements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*}. 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420. 201 5 

5, to the DOT or any DOT agency with the regulatory authority over the employer or any 
of its employees, or to a authorized State oversite agency 
6. to the employee, upon written request 

Employees have the unqualified right to review their drug and alcohol testing records, to have 
access to information to dispute the results of any testing outcome, to have access to any 
pertinent records such as equipment calibration records and records of laboratory certifications. 

Employee and Supervisor Training 

All safety-sensitive employees will undergo a minimum of 60 minutes of training on the signs 
and symptoms of drug use including the effects and consequences of drug use on personal 
health, safety, and the work environment. The training must also include manifestations and 
behavioral cues that may indicate prohibited drug use. The training will be In the context of 
prohibited drug use in the workplace, the FTA regulations, and the Town's substance abuse 
policy. The training shall also Include information concerning the effects of alcohol misuse on 
the individual's health, work, and personal life, and signs and symptoms of an alcohol problem. 
Printed literature concerning prohibited drug use and the effects of drugs and alcohol as well as 
a service hotline for employees experiencing problems with prohibited drugs and alcohol will be 
made readily available to all safety-sensitive employees. 

Supervisors will also receive 60 minutes of reasonable SuspICion training on the physical, 
behavioral, and performance indicators of probable drug use and 60 minutes of additional 
reasonable suspicion training on the physical, behavioral, speech, and performance indicators of 
probable alcohol misuse. Training shall be given to all supervisors concerning: (a) their role and 
responsibility of reasonable suspicion determinations, (b) procedures for initiating, sustaining, 
and documenting the referral of reasonable suspicions, (c) instructions for employee 
intervention. and (d) procedures for record keeping/documenting a reasonable suspicion event. 
Supervisors will not perform supervisory duties that require reasonable suspicion determination 
prior to completing supervisor training. *Training for non-safety-sensitive employees on the 
importance of maintaining a drug free workplace sha ll also be provided. 

"Handouts are available providing information concerning the effects of drug use and alcohol 
misuse on the individual's health, work, and personal life and the signs and symptoms of alcohol 
misuse. 
Employee/Provider Communications 

The Town's Substance Abuse Policy was originally approved and adopted by Town Council on 
May 13th and May 28th

, 2003 and became effeclive May 28, 2003. A copy of the signed adoption 
by the Town Council is attached to this policy. Anytime this policy is substantively amended or 
updated due to changes in Federal regulations in the future. the policy will contain the date, 

All provisiof'ls set forth If'I bold face prlf'l t are If'ld uded conslstef'lt with requiremef'lts specifically !let forth if'l 49 CFR P~rt 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth In the Drug Free Wo~pl~ce Act (49 CfR Part 291 are delineated In Italics. Al l other provisions ate set rorth under 

the authority of the town as Indicated by the U!Ie of an asterisk {'J. 

164



Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

proof of adoption of the amended policy by Town Council and the date the amended policy, or 
portion thereof, became effective. See attachment B. 

Copies of this policy will be provided to all safety-sensitive employees. A Confirmation of 
Receipt shall be signed acknowledging that the employee has received the policy and 
understands that it is the employee's responsibility to abide by the provisions of the policy. 
Revisions to this policy shall be made aware of to the employee and shall be acknowledged with 
an updated Confirmation of Receipt. All new hires shall receive the most current policy. 

This policy and current and future ~ontracts will be modified to stay within required compliance 
with FTA regulations. 

System Contacts 

Any questions regarding this policy or any other aspect of the drug free and alcohol free transit 
program should contact the following transit system representative: 

DeSignated Employer Representative/Program Manager: 
Name: Sue Kunz, Director of Human Resources 
Address: 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A, Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Telephone Number: 970-369-6412 

SAMHSA Certified Laboratory 
Name: SED Medical Laboratories 
Address: 500 Walter Northeast, Suite 500, Albuquerque, NM 87102 

Medical Review Officer: 

Name: Drs Staggs & Peretti 
Address: 425 W. Broadway, Ste. B, N. Little Rock, AR 72114 
Telephone Number: 866.954.9533855-885-9162 
Fax Number: 501.954.2624501-376-0560 

Substance Abuse Professionals 
Agency: TRIAD Employee Assistance Program 
Address: 2501 Blichman Ave., Suite 120, Grand Junction, CO 81505 
Telephone Number: (970) 242-9536; 1-877-679-1100 
Email: info@triadeap.com 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {OJ. 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 29. 291420. 201 5 

proof of adoption of the amended policy by Town Council and the date the amended policy, or 
portion thereof, became effective. See attachment 8. 

Copies of this policy will be provided to all safety-sensitive employees. A Confirmation of 
Receipt shall be signed acknowledging that the employee has received the policy and 
understands that it is the employee's responsibility to abide by the provisions of the policy. 
Revisions to this policy shall be made aware of to the employee and shall be acknowledged with 
an updated Confirmation of Receipt. All new hires shall receive the most current policy. 

This policy and current and future contracts will be modified to stay within required compliance 
with FTA regulations. 

System Contacts 

Any questions regarding this policy or any other aspect of the drug free and alcohol free transit 
program should contact the following transit system rep resentative: 

Designated Employer Representative/Program Manager: 
Name: Sue Kunz, Director of Human Resources 
Address: 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A, Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Telephone Number: 970-369-6412 

SAMHSA Certified laboratory 
Name: SED Medical Laboratories 
Address: 500 Walter Northeast, Suite 500, Albuquerque, NM 87102 

Medical Review Officer: 

Name: Drs Stagg, & Peretti 
Address: 425 W. Broadway. Ste. B. N. little Rock. AR 72114 
Telephone Number: 866.954.951]855-885-9162 
Fax Number: .01.954 .2624501-376-0560 

Substance Abuse Professionals 
Agency: TRIAD Employee Assist ance Program 
Address: 2501 Blichman Ave., Suite 120, Grand Junction, CO 81505 
Telephone Number: (970) 242-9536; 1-877-679-1100 
Email : info@triadeap.com 

"'" rl 
All pro~islons set forth In bold face print are included consistent with requirements speclfjca l~ set forth in 49 CFR Part 65S, or Part 40. as ~ 
amended, Provisions set forth In the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated In Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 0.. 

the authority of the lown as Indicated by the use of an astel isk /of. 

165



~ 
I ~ 

Attachment A 

Safety-Sensitive Functions 

Safety-Sensitive Positions at Mountain Village 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

All positions at the Town were reviewed for safety-sensitive duties to determine the safety
sensitive positions as defined in 49 CFR part 655. Additionally, any new positions created in the 
future will be reviewed for safety-sensitive duties. The following positions were determined to 
be safety-sensitive: 

Gondola Operators 
Gondola Mechanics 
Gondola Supervisors 
Vehicle Maintenance Mechanics 
Vehicle Maintenance Supervisors 
Commuter Shuttle Drivers 

*Other job descriptions may be included in the safety-sensitive category, while substituting in the 
safety-sensitive job classifications listed above. 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {oJ. 

I~ 
Attachment A 

Safety-Sensitive Functions 

Safety-Sensitive Positions at Mountain Village 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420 , 2015 

All positions at the Town were reviewed for safety-sensitive duties to determine the safety· 
sensitive positions as defined in 49 CFR part 655. Additionally, any new positions created in the 
future will be reviewed for safety-sensitive duties. The following positions were determined to 
be safety-sensitive: 

Gondola Operators 
Gondola Mechanics 
Gondola Supervisors 
Vehicle Maintenance Mechanics 
Vehicle Maintenance Supervisors 
Commuter Shuttle Drivers 

· Other job descriptions may be included in the safety-sensitive category, while substituting in the 
safety-sensitive job classifications listed above. 

All provisions set fortll in bold hce print are Included consIstent with requ irements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 
amended. Provisions set forth In the Drug Free WOfkplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. Al l other provisions are set forth under 

tile authority oltlle town as indicated by the use of an asterisk (O). 

166



I~ 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY - SAFETY SENSITIVE EMPLOYEES 

I, , the undersigned, hereby 
acknowledge that I have received a copy of the anti-drug and alcohol misuse 
program policy mandated by the U. S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit 
Administration for all covered employees who perform a safety-sensitive function. I 
understand this policy is required by 49 CFR Part 655, as amended, and has been 
duly adopted by the governing board of the employer. Any provisions contained 
herein which are not required by 49 CFR Part 655 or 49 CFR Part 40, as amended, 
that have been imposed solely on the authority of the employer are designated as 
such in the policy document. 

I further understand that receipt of this policy constitutes a legal notification of the 
contents, and that it is my responsibility to become familiar with and adhere to all 
provisions contained therein. I will seek and get clarifications for any questions from 
the employer contact person listed in the policy. I also understand that compliance 
with all provisions contained in the policy is a condition of my employment. 
I further understand that the information contained in the approved policy dated 
February 20, 2015, is subject to change, and that any such changes, or addendum, 
shall be given to me in a manner consistent with the proviSion of 49 CFR Part 40 and 
49 CFR Part 655, as amended. 

Print Employee Name 

Signature of Employee Date 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with requirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {*). 

I~ 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY - SAFETY SENSITIVE EMPLOYEES 

I, , the undersigned, hereby 
acknowledge that I have received a copy of the anti-drug and alcohol misuse 
program policy mandated by the U. S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit 
Administration for all covered employees who perform a safety-sensitive function. 1 
understand this policy is required by 49 CFR Part 655, as amended, and has been 
duly adopted by the governing board of the employer. Any provisions contained 
herein which are not required by 49 CFR Part 655 or 49 CFR Part 40, as amended, 
that have been imposed solely on the authority of the employer are designated as 
such in the policy document. 

I further understand that receipt of this policy constitutes a legal notification of the 
contents', and that it is my responsibility to become familiar with and adhere to all 
provisions contained therein. I will seek and get clarifications for any questions from 
the employer contact person listed in the policy. I also understand that compliance 
with all provisions contained in the policy is a condition of my employment. 
I further understand that the information contained in the approved policy dated 
February 20, 2015, is subject to change, and that any such changes, or addendum, 
shall be given to me in a manner consistent with the provision of 49 CFR Part 40 and 
49 CFR Part 655, as amended. 

Print Employee Name 

Signature of Employee Date 

\0 ..... 
All pfo~islol1s set for th In bold face print are Included consistent with requirements specifically M't forth in 49 eFR Part 6SS, or Part 40, as ~ 
amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 eFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other prO\lislons are set forth under 0.. 
ItU! authority of the town as Indicated by Ihe use 01 an asterisk {- I. 

167



I~ 
Attachment B 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420, 2015 

PROOF OF POLICY ADOPTION BY GOVERNING BOARD OR HIGHEST AUTHORITY 

The aforementioned Drug and Alcohol Policy - Safety Sensitive was reviewed and approved by the 
Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village at a public meeting held February 20, 2014,!2,. 
2015. 

Town of Mountain Village 

By: ------------------------------------------
Mayor Dan Jansen 

By: __________________________________ _ 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

All provisions set forth in bold face print are included consistent with reQuirements specifically set forth in 49 CFR Part 655, or Part 40, as 

amended. Provisions set forth in the Drug Free Workplace Act (49 CFR Part 29) are delineated in Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 

the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {OJ. 

I~ 
Attachment B 

Town of Mountain Village 
February 20, 201420. 2015 

PROOF OF POLICY ADOPTION BY GOVERNING BOARD OR HIGHEST AUTHORITY 

The aforementioned Drug and Alcohol Policy Safety Sensitive was reviewed and approved by the 
Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village at a public meeting held February 2Q, 2014 ,~ 

2015. 

Town of Mountain Village 

By: 
~~------------------

Mayor Dan Jansen 

By: __ ----, ___________ _ 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

All provi\ions.set fonh in bold face print ilfe included consistent with requlrementsspKificalfY se t forth In 49 CFR Part 655, Of Part 40, as 
amended. Provisions set forth lr1 the Drug Frcl' Worl!:place Act (49 CfR Part 29) ilfC delineated In Italics. All other provisions are set forth under 
the authority of the town as indicated by the use of an asterisk {-I. 

168



Memo 
To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council 

From: Sue Kunz, Director Human Resources 

Date: February 12, 2015 

Re: 2015 Employee Handbook 

The Employee Handbook has been updated to reflect the following changes: 

• P.7 Pursuant to HB 1383, effective April 1, 2015, employers must designate four designated 
medical providers to treat workers that our injured on the job. The town's providers will now 
include: 

o Telluride Medical Center 
o Uncompahgre Medical Center, Norwood 
o Mountain Medical Center, Ridgway 
o Dr. Patrick O'Meara, Montrose 

• P. 13 In compliance with new health care regulations, one additional employee classification 
was added to include seasonal employees working more than 1560 hours that qualify for 
health insurance in 2016 

• P.34 Computer Use/ Data Security language was added. All employees were trained on this 
in 2014. In compliance with the new CIRSA loss control standards, this was added to the 
handbook. 

• All other changes were strictly clerical in nature and do not involve any policy changes. 

11 tot 3 

Memo 
To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council 

From: Sue Kunz, Director Human Resources 

Date: February 12, 2015 

Re: 2015 Employee Handbook 

The Employee Handbook has been updated to reftect the following changes: 
• P.7 Pursuant to HB 1383, effective April l, 2015, employers must designate four designated 

medical providers to treat workers that our injured on the job. The town's providers wilt now 
include: 

o Telluride Medical Center 

a Uncompahgre Medical Center, Norwood 
o Mountain Medical Center, Ridgway 
o Dr. Patrick O'Meara, Montrose 

• P. 13 In compliance with new health care regulations, one additional employee classification 
was added to include seasonal employees working more than 1560 hours that qualify for 
health insurance in 2016 

• P. 34 Computer Use/ Data Security language was added. All employees were trained on this 
in 2014. In compliance with the new CtRSA loss control standards, this was added to the 
handbook. 

• All other changes were strictly clerical in nature and do not involve any policy changes. 

169



Employee Handbook 
The Town of Mountain Village is dedicated to providing exceptional 
facilities, services and opportunities, in partnership with the community, 
which will enhance the quality of life for our residents, homeowners, 
employees, and guests. 

Town of Mountain Village 

Adopted February +920, 201 5. 

Employee Handbook 
The Town of Mountain Village is dedicated to providing exceptional 
facilities, services and opportunities, in partnership with the community, 
which will enhance the quality of life for our residents, homeowners, 
employees, and guests. 

Town of Mountain Village 

Adopted February +-920, 201 5 

170



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction 

From the Town Manager 

EMPLOYMENT 
Guest Service Policy 
Safety 

Reporting Atcidents 

Designated Medical Providers 

Environment 
EEO/ Harassment Policy 

ADA and Religious Accommodation 

Anti-Violence 
Sexual Harassment 

Complaint Procedure 
Job Descriptions 
Confidentiality of Information 

Personnel Records 
Reference Requests 

Employee Selection 
Employee Classification 

BENEFITS 
Benefits Eligibility Chart 

401(k) Plan 

Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 

Colorado Public Employer's Retirement Association (PERA) 

Fire & Police Pension Association (FPPA)- Police only 

Medical/Dental/Vision/Life Insurance Plan 

Flexible Spending Plans 

Paid Time-Oft (PTO) 

Donated PTO Policy 

Unpaid Time Oft 
Short Term Disability (STD) 

Long Term Disability (LTD) 

Ski Passes 

Spa Memberships 

Employer Assisted Housing Program 

Unemployment Insurance 

PAY 
Employee Information Changes 

Garnishments and Attachments 

Holiday Pay 

Lost Paychecks 

On-Call Duty and Pay 

Overtime Pay 
Pay Period and Paydays 

Payroll Deductions 

February 20154 

4 
5 

6 
6 
7 
7 
8 
9 
9 
9 

10 
10 

11 

11 

11 

12 
12 
13 
14 

14 

15 
16 

16 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
21 
21 
21 
21 
21 
22 
22 
22 
22 
22 
22 
23 
24 

25 
25 

Page 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction 
From the Town Manager 
EMPLOYMENT 

Guest Service Policy 
Safety 
Reporting Atcidents 
Designated Medical Providers 
Environment 
EEO/ Harassment Policy 
ADA and Religious Accommodation 
Anti-Violence 
Sexual Harassment 
Complaint Procedure 

Job Descriptions 
Confidentiality of Information 
Personnel Records 
Reference Requests 
Employee Selection 
Employee Classification 

BENEFITS 
Benefits Eligibility Chart 
401(k) Plan 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 

Colorado Public Employer's Retirement Association (PERA) 
Fire & Police Pension ASSOciation (FPPA)- Police only 

Medical/Dental/Vision/Ufe Insurance Plan 
FleXible Spending Plans 
Paid Time-Off (pro) 

Donated PTa Policy 
Unpaid Time Off 
Short Term Disability (STD) 
long Term Disability (LTD) 
Ski Passes 
Spa Membe~ships 
Employer Assisted Housing Program 
Unemployment Insurance 

PAY 

Employee Information Changes 
Garnishments and Attachments 
Holiday Pay 
lost Paychecks 
On-Call Duty and Pay 
Overtime Pay 
Pay Period and Paydays 
Payroll Deductions 

February 201S:4 

4 
5 

6 
6 
7 
7 
8 
9 
9 
9 
10 
10 
11 
11 
11 
12 
12 
13 
14 
14 
15 
16 

16 
16 

17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
21 
21 
21 
21 
21 
22 
22 
22 
22 
22 
22 
23 
24 

25 
25 

Page 2 

171



Payroll Disruption 
Time Reporting 

Tips 

Travel, Training & Education Reimbursements 
TIME OFF 

Absence Request 

Bereavement/Funeral 
Domestic Abuse Leave 
Extended Leaves of Absence 
Jury Duty 

Medical Leave of Absence - Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 

Non-work Related and Non-FMLA Leave 
Military Leave 

Parental Involvement Leave 
Voting 

WORK ENVIRONMENT 
Appearance 
Attendance and Punctuality 
Lunch Periods 

Communications Systems 
Conflict of Interest 

Discipline/Discharge 
Drugs and Alcohol 
Inspections 
Parking 

Performance Evaluation 
Problem Solving 

Theft/Property Losses or Damage 
Smoking 

Terminating Employment 

Vehicle Use & Commuter Shuttles 
Commuter Shuttles 

Work Assignments & Schedules 
Policy Adoption 

Acknowledgement of Handbook Receipt 

February 2015.4 

25 
25 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
27 
27 
29 

30 
30 
30 
31 
31 
32 
32 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
36 
37 
36 
37 
38 
38 
38 
40 
40 
41 
42 

Page 3 

Payroll Disruption 
Time Reporting 
Tips 
Travel, Training & Education Reimbursements 

TIME OFF 

Absence Request 
Bereavement/Funeral 
Domestic Abuse Leave 
Extended Leaves of Absence 
Jury Duty 
Medical Leave of Absence - Family and Medical Le ave Act (FMLA) 
Non-work Related and Non-FMLA Leave 
Military Leave 
Parental Involvement Leave 
Voting 

WORK ENVIRONMENT 

Appearance 
Attendance and Punctuality 
lunch Periods 
Communications Systems 
Conflict of Interest 
Discipline/Discharge 
Drugs and Alcohol 
Inspections 
Parking 
Performance Evaluation 
Problem Solving 
Theft/Property losses or Damage 
Smoking 

Terminating Employment 
Vehicle Use & Commuter Shuttles 
Commuter Shuttles 
Work Assignments & Schedules 
Policy Adoption 

Acknowledgement of Handbook Receipt 

February 2015.4 

25 
25 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
26 
27 
27 
29 
30 
30 
30 
31 
31 
32 
32 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
36 
37 
36 
37 
38 
38 
38 
40 
40 
41 
42 

Page 3 

172



ABOUT THE HANDBOOK 

The Town of Mountain Village employee handbook will acquaint you with the Town and some policies 
affecting your employment. Since it is impossible to anticipate every situation that could arise, this 
handbook will highlight general Town policies, practices, and benefits. Other existing policies and 
practices may not appear in this handbook. If you are not sure about a written or unwritten policy of 
the Town, have questions about any portion of this handbook, or any aspect of your job, or need further 
information, please ask your supervisor. 

We recognize that our business needs may change from time to time and that new governmental 
regulations take effect. Therefore, we reserve the right to amend, rescind, or modify any Town policies, 
practices, and benefits at any time, with or without prior notice. 

We wish to apply Town policies consistently and without discrimination so that all similarly situated 
employees receive uniform treatment. A situation may arise that causes us to deviate from our normal 
operating procedure. While we try to minimize these situations, we must reserve the right to consider 
each case separately and make any appropriate exceptions we feel necessary. The only recognized 
deviations from Town policies, practices, and benefits are those authorized and signed by the Town 
Manager. 

This employee handbook has been created without bias toward the employee, the employer, or any 
group of employees. The provisions of this handbook or any other documents (such as benefit 
statements or confidentiality agreements) are not intended to create any contractual obligation that 
conflicts in any way with this policy. 

You have been provided with your own personal copy of the employee handbook. As soon as pOSSible, 
please take a moment to review your handbook. Refer to it whenever you have questions about Town 
policies, practices, or benefits. These policies are effective immediately, and you are expected to know 
and comply with them accordingly. 

February 20154 Page 4 

ABOUT THE HANDBOOK 

The Town of Mountain Village employee handbook will acquaint you with the Town and some policies 
affecting your employment. Since it is impossible to anticipate every situation that could arise, this 
handbook will highlight general Town policies, practices, and benefits. Other existing policies and 
practices may not appear in this handbook. If you are not sure about a written or unwritten policy of 
the Town, have questions about any portion of this handbook, or any aspect of your job, or need further 
information, please ask your supervisor. 

We recognize that our business needs may change from time to time and that new governmental 
regulations take effect, Therefore, we reserve the right to amend, rescind, or modify any Town policies, 
practices, and benefits at any time, with or without prior notice. 

We wish to apply Town policies consistent ly and without discrimination so that all similarly situated 
employees receive uniform treatment. A situation may arise that causes us to deviate from our normal 
operating procedure. While we try to minimize these situations, we must reserve the right to c:onsider 
each case separate ly and make any appropriate exceptions we feel necessary. The only recognized 
deviations from Town policies, practices, and benefits are those authorized and signed by the Town 
Manager. 

This employee handbook has been created without bias toward the employee, the employer, or any 
group of employees. The provisions of this handbook or any other documents (such as benefit 
statements or confidentiality agreements) are not intended to create any contractual obligation that 
conflicts in any way with this policy. 

You have been provided with your own personal copy of the employee handbook. As soon as possible, 
plea"se take a moment to review your handbook. Refer to it whenever you have questions about Town 
poliCies, practices, or benefits. These policies are effective immediately, and you are expected to know 
and comply with them accordingly. 

February 20154 Page 4 

173



From the Town Manager 

Welcome to the Town of Mountain Village 

This handbook was developed to describe some of the guidelines, programs, and benefits for 
employees. All employees should familiarize themselves with the contents of the employee 
handbook as soon as possible, for it may answer many questions about employment with the 
Town. 

We greatly appreciate having you join our team of exceptional employees that are dedicated to 
serving our residents and visitors to Mountain Village and the greater Telluride region. We 
believe that each employee contributes directly to the success of Mountain Village and we 
hope you will take pride in being a member of our team. 

The Town is committed to providing a safe work environment for employees. We know that 
our employees are our greatest resource and we will strive to prevent any possible injury or 
illness. We believe that most accidents and injuries are preventable and it should be clear that 
the responsibility for safety lies with all levels of employees at Mountain Village. We all need to 
work together to accomplish our goal of zero injuries by reporting unsafe conditions 
immediately. 

In the necessary push toward a greener nation, we're changing the way we do things day-to
day in Mountain Village. With these changes comes a greater awareness of our habits, and a 
deeper appreciation for our natural environment. We ask that you make environmentally 
conscious decisions daily regarding energy use, behavior and recycling. 

Please contact your supervisor or Human Resources with any questions you may have regarding 
Town policies and procedures. 

We're glad to have you with us. 

Kim Montgomery 

Town Manager 

February 201 54 PageS 

From the Town Manager 

Welcome to the Town of Mountain Village 

This handbook was developed to describe some of the guidelines, programs, and benefits for 
employees. All employees should familiarize themselves with the contents of the employee 
handbook as soon as possible, for it may answer many questions about employment with the 
Town . 

We greatly appreciate having you join our team of exceptional employees that are dedicated to 
serving our residents and visitors to Mountain Village and the greater Telluride region . We 
believe that each employee contributes directly to the success of Mountain Village and we 
hope you will take pride in being a member of our team . 

The Town is committed to providing a safe work environment for employees, We know that 
our employees are our greatest resource and we will strive to prevent any possible injury or 
illness. We believe that most accidents and injuries are preventable and it should be clear that 
the responsibility for safety lies with all levels of employees at Mountain Village, We all need to 
work together to accomplish our goal of zero injuries by reporting unsafe conditions 
immediately, 

In the necessary push toward a greener nation, we're changing the way we do things day-to
day in Mountain Village, With these changes comes a greater awareness of our habits, and a 
deeper appreciation for our natural environment. We ask that you make environmentally 
conscious decisions daily regarding energy use, behavior and recycling, 

Please contact your supervisor or Human Resources with any questions you may have regarding 
Town policies and procedures. 

We're glad to have you with us. 

Kim Montgomery 

Town Manager 

174



EMPLOYMENT 
Guest Service Policy 

It is the philosophy of the Town that everyone in this community is a guest. One of the main functions 
of the Town is to provide consistently high quality "Guest Service" to everyone in our community 
including our co-workers. Guest Service refers to the interaction and assistance we provide the 
residents, visitors, business owners and employees of businesses here. The combination of Telluride's 
history and the Mountain Village's style offers a profoundly unique guest experience unequaled by any 
other resort in the world. It is the goal ofthe Town to ensure that our guests enjoy their stay here to 
the extent that they would wish to remain in or return to the Town over and over again. 

When referring to "Guest Service", the Town distinguishes between Internal and External Guests as 
follows: 

• Internal Guests - Co-workers and people with whom we work to create and maintain a highly 
professional, positively motivated working environment. We serve internal guests every time 
we do our own jobs exceptionally well and offer to assist other employees in any way we can to 
do their jobs well. 

• External Guests - Mountain Village and Telluride visitors, residents, clientele and employees of 
businesses we encounter during the course of performing our job duties each day. We serve 
external guests every time we offer assistance or direction to non-employees. 

All employees are empowered and encouraged to go beyond that which is expected ofthem when 
serving our guests. All employees are encouraged to serve guests as though they were visitors in our 
own homes. All employees are encouraged to work together with the employees of other companies to 
ensure that every guest's needs are met and, if possible, exceeded. Finally, as guests themselves, all 
employees are encouraged to communicate with co-workers and supervisors letting them know what 
they need in order to do their jobs more efficiently and enjoyably. 

SAFETY 

Our Town goal is to provide a safe and healthy work environment. The biggest single factor in insuring 
your safety on the job is YOU. It is YOUR responsibility, to both yourself and those working in your area, 
to practice safe work habits. Report any unsafe practices and conditions to your supervisor so corrective 
action can be taken. 

The Town has general safety rules that apply to every department. Any violation of either departmental 
or Town safety rules will not be tolerated. Should an on-the injury occur as a result of a violation of the 
departmental or Town safety rules, a reduction in worker's compensation benefits may occur. General 
safety rule violations may include but are not limited to: 

• Failure to abide by safety rules established for your department. 
• Falsification of accident or incident reports. 
• Being impaired by or under the influence of alcohol or any drugs (legal or illegal) while on duty. 
• Fighting or other disorderly conduct that may endanger the well being of co-workers or guests. 
• Unauthorized operation of Town vehicles or equipment. 
• Reckless operation of Town vehicles or equipment. 
_. _Failure to utilize safety seat belts at all times when the vehicle is in service (Buckle Up!). 

February 20154 Page 6 

EMPLOYMENT 

Guest Service Policy 

It is the philosophv of the Town that everyone in this community is a guest. One of the main functions 
of t he Town is to provide consistently high quality "Guest Service" to everyone in our community 
including our co-workers. Guest Service refers to the interaction and assistance we provide the 
residents, visitors. business owners and employees of businesses here. The combination of Telluride's 
history and the Mountain Village's style offers a profoundly unique guest experience unequaled by any 
other resort in the world . It is the goal of the Town to ensure that our guests enjoy thei r stay here to 
the extent that they would wish to remain in or return to the Town over and over again. 

When refe rring to "Guest Service", the Town distinguishes between Internal and External Guests as 
follows: 

• Internal Guests - Co-workers and people with whom we work to create and maintain a highly 
professional, positively motivated working environment. We serve internal guests every time 
we do our own jobs exceptionally well and offer to assist other employees in any way we can to 
do their jobs well. 

• External Guests - Mountain Village and Telluride visitors, residents, clientele and employees of 
businesses we encounter during the course of performing our job duties each day. We serve 
external guests every time we offer assistance or direction to non-employees. 

All employees are empowered and encouraged to go beyond that which is expected of them when 
serving our guests. All employees are encouraged to serve guests as though they were visitors in our 
own homes. All employees are encouraged to work together with the employees of other companies to 
ensure that every guest's needs are met and, if possible, exceeded. Finally, as guests themselves, all 
employees are encouraged to communicate with co-workers and supervisors letting them know what 
they need in order to do their jobs more efficiently and enjoyably. 

SAFETY 

Our Town goal is to provide a safe and healthy work environment. The biggest single factor in insuring 

your safety on the job is YOU . It is YOUR responsibility, to both yourself and those working in your area, 
to practice safe work habits. Report any unsafe practices and conditions to your supervisor so corrective 

action can be taken. 

The Town has general safety rules that apply to every department. Any violation of either departmental 
or Town safety rules will not be tolerated. Should an on-the injury occur as a result of a violation of the 
departmental or Town safety rules, a reduction in worker's compensation benefits may occur. General 
safety rule violations may include but are not limited to: 

• Failure to abide by safety rules established for your department. 

• Falsification of accident or incident reports. 

• Being impaired by or under the influence of alcohol or any drugs (legal or illegal) whi le on duty. 

• Fighting or other disorderly conduct that may endanger the well being of co-workers or guests. 

• Unauthorized operation of Town vehicles or equipment. 

• Reckless operation of Town vehicles or equipment. 
_0 _Failure to utilize safety seat belts at all times when the vehicle is in service (Buckle Up!). 

175



_e _ Remember safety rules are only as effective as you make them. Safety is a cooperative endeavor"
and must be kept constantly in mind by all of us. Exercise common sense and good judgment in 
all that you do on the job. Then, we all can enjoy an excellent safety record. 

Upon employment with the Town, employees will be provided a general orientation session designed to 
acquaint them with their department, its safety concerns, equipment, first-aid kits and fire 
extinguishers. If an orientation session has not yet been scheduled for you please contact the 
supervisor to determine a time when this orientation may occur. 

Any unsafe conditions or practices an employee observes must be reported to your supervisor and your 
department's Safety Committee representative immediately. Your supervisor will immediately inform 
Human Resources. 

Reporting Accidents/Injuries 
Notify your supervisor of any accident or injury (no matter how minor) either to yourself or to a co
worker immediately. Failure to notify a supervisor of a work-related injury to one's self or a co-worker 
immediately but not later than within twenty-four (24) hours, will be considered cause for disciplinary 
action for both the injured worker and co-worker. Untimely reporting of injuries may also result in 
worker's compensation benefits being denied in most cases or greatly reduced in other cases. Once 
informed of an injury, the supervisor, the employee and any witnesses to the injury must complete a 
worker's compensation "First Report of Injury" form. This form will be submitted to the Human 
Resources Department for processing and opening of your worker's compensation claim. The supervisor 
is responsible for collection of statements from all persons involved in incidents or accidents as well as 
from any witnesses thereto. The supervisor is responsible for immediately notifying their Department 
Head, as appropriate and Human Resources regardless of the time of day. 

Receive authorization from the supervisor for medical treatment. When an injury has occurred the 
supervisor will send the employee immediately for medical treatment. Effective January 1, 2008April1, 
2015, all employees have the choice of receiving treatment for work-related injuries and illnesses from 
twe-four designated medical providers. The two providers are: 

1. Telluride Medical Center, 500 W. Pacific Avenue, Telluride, CO 81435 * (970) 728-3848 
After hours personnel are "On Call" 

2. Uncompahgre Medicol Center, 1350 Aspen Street, Norwood, CO 81423 * (970327-4233 

3. Mountain Medical Center, 295 Sherman Street (295 Hwy 62), Ridgway, CO 81432 * (970) 626-
5123 
After hours personnel are "On Call" 

4. O'Meara DO, Patrick 0, 330 S 9th Street, Montrose, CO 81401 * (970) 240-3775 

Failure to receive treatment from a designated medical provider may result in non-payment of medical 
benefits. 

Any employee sustaining a work-related injury may be asked to submit a drug and/or alcohol test in 
accordance with Town policy. An employee injured while under the influence of drugs or alcohol is only 

February 201 54 Page 7 

[ Forml 
0.25" 

_, _ Remember safety rules are only as effective as you make them. Safety is a cooperative endeavor ~ 

and must be kept constantly in mind by all of us, Exercise common sense and good judgment in 
all that you do on the job. Then, we all can enjoy an excellent safety record. 

Upon employment with the Town, employees will be provided a general orientation session designed to 
acquaint them with their department, its safety concerns, equipment, first-aid kits and fire 
extinguishers. If an orientation session has not yet been scheduled for you please contact the 
supervisor to determine a time when th is orientation may occur. 

Any unsafe conditions or practices an employee observes must be reported to your supervisor and your 
department's Safety Committee representative immediately. Your supervisor will immediately inform 
Human Resources. 

Reporting Accidents/Injuries 
Notify your supervisor of any accident or injury (no matter how minor) either to yourself or to a co
worker immediately. Failure to notify a supervisor of a work-related injury to one's self or a co-worker 
immediately but not later than within twenty-four (24) hours, will be considered cause for disciplinary 
action for both the injured worker and co-worker. Untimely reporting of injuries may also result in 
worker's compensation benefits being denied in most cases or greatly reduced in other cases. Once 
informed of an injury, the supervisor, the employee and any witnesses to the injury must complete a 
worker's compensation "First Report of Injury" form. This form will be submitted to the Human 
Resources Department for processing and opening of your worker's compensation claim. The supervisor 
is responsible for collection of statements from all persons involved in incidents or accidents as well as 
from any witnesses thereto. The supervisor is responsible for immediately notifying their Department 

Head, as appropriate and Human Resources regardless of the time of day. 

Receive authorization from the supervisor for medical treatment. When an injury has occurred the 
supervisor will send the employee immediately for medical treatment. Effective JaRl:lary 1. 2008April1. 
2015. all employees have the choice of receiving treatment for work-related injuries and illnesses from 
tw&-four designated medical providers. The two providers are: 

1. Telluride Medical Center, 500 W. Pacific Avenue, Telluride, CO 81435 * (970) 728-3848 
After hours personnel are "On Call" 

2. Uncompahgre MedIcal Center. 1350 Aspen Street. Norwood. CO 81423 '" (970 327-42:33 

3. Mountain Medical Center, 295 Sherman Street (295 Hwy 62), Ridgway, CO 81432 * (970) 626-

5123 
After hours personnel are "On Call" 

4. O'Meara DO. Patrick D, 330 S 9t~ Street. Montrose, CO 81401 .. (970\240-3775 

Failure to receive treatment from a designated medical provider may result in non-payment of medical 
benefits. 

Any employee sustaining a work-related injury may be asked to submit a drug and/or alcohol test in 
accordance with Town policy. An employee injured while under the influence of drugs or alcohol is only 

20 

(Fo;;;;: 
~ 

176



entitled to half of the normal compensation allowed by law. If it is determined that the injury occurred 
in the course of an activity unrelated to the employee's job, benefits may be denied completely. 

The treating physician determines needed time off from work. Compensation payments made to the 
employee for lost wages resulting from an injury or occupational diseases begin after the third 
consecutive missed day of work and will commence until the employee is released to return to work. 
The compensation rate while unable to work is 2/3 of the average weekly wage, not to exceed a 
maximum amount as provided under the worker's compensation laws. Time spent away from work, 
during a work related injury leave will be applied to FMLA leave if eligible. 

Worker's compensation requires all employees to adhere to the physician's instructions, including 
attendance at follow-up appointments. If unable to comply, you must notify your physician and your 
supervisor. Failure to comply with your physician's prescribed treatment and follow-up plan could 
jeopardize your worker's compensation benefits. 

IMPORTANT NOTES: 
1. If an employee, qualifying for leave and benefits under FMLA is released by their physician to 
return to work and is able to work but decides they do not want to return to work, the Town reserves 
the right to pursue reimbursement from the employee for all benefit premiums paid retroactive to the 
end of the required period of benefit continuation under FMLA. 

2. If an employee, technically ineligible for leave and benefits under FMLA is released by their 
physiCian to return to work and is able to work but decides they do not want to return to work, the 
Town reserves the right to pursue reimbursement from the employee for all benefit premiums paid 
retroactive to the beginning of the leave. 

Recreational skiing and off-the-job accidents are not covered by worker's compensation. However, 
injuries sustained off-the-job may be covered by the Town's health insurance provided. 

Filing a fraudulent claim under worker's compensation for non-work-related injuries is against the law 
and will be grounds for termination. 

THE ENVIRONMENT 
The Town of Mountain Village cares about our environment. Town Council and the community have 
made energy conservation and waste reduction a priority goal. In an effort to assist the town with 
reaching its Energy Efficiency and Zero Waste goals, we participate in our collective efforts to reduce 
waste and conserve energy in the workplace. 

Reduce Waste: 
• REDUCE: Reduce daily office waste by bringing a re-usable coffee mug to work and making sure 

you really need a hard copy before printing. Bring a re-usable bag to work for groceries or 
other shopping needs (or wants!). 

• REUSE: Reuse paper for scratch pads before recycling. Reuse plastic food containers as 
Tupperware before throwing away. Recycling is great, but still requires a lot of energy so please 
try to use items as many times as possible before discarding into the town's trash or recycling 
bins. 

• RECYCLE: All offices in Town should be equipped with recycling bins. Recycle all paper, 
cardboard, glass, plastic #1-7 and aluminum products in these bins for collection by either the 

February 2015.4 Page 8 

entitled to half of the normal compensation allowed by law. If it is determined that the injury occurred 
in the course of an activity unrelated to the employee's job, benefits may be denied completely. 

The treating physician determines needed time off from work . Compensation payments made to the 
employee for lost wages resulting from an injury or occupational diseases begin after the third 
consecutive missed day of work and will commence until the employee is released to return to work. 
The compensation rate while unable to work is 2/3 of the average weekly wage, not to exceed a 
maximum amount as provided under the worker's compensation laws. Time spent away from work, 
during a work related injury leave will be applied to FMlA leave if eligible. 

Worker's compensation requires all employees to adhere to the physician's instructions, including 
attendance at foHow-up appointments. If unable to comply, you must notify your physician and your 
supervisor. Failure to comply with your physician's prescribed treatment and follow-up plan could 
jeopardize your worker's compensation benefits. 

IMPORTANT NOTES; 
1 . If an employee, qualifying for leave and benefits under FMLA is released by their physician to 
return to work and is able to work but decides they do not want to return to work, the Town reserves 
the right to pursue reimbursement from the employee for all benefit premiums paid retroactive to the 
end of the required period of benefit continuation under FMlA 

2. If an employee, technically ineligible for [eave and benefits under FMLA is released by their 
physician to return to work and is able to work but decides they do not want to return to work, the 
Town reserves the right to pursue reimbursement from the employee for all benefit premiums paid 
retroactive to the beginning of the leave. 

Recreational skiing and off-the-job accidents are not covered by worker's compensation . However, 
injuries sustained off-the-job may be covered by the Town's health insurance provided. 

Filing a fraudulent claim under worker's compensation for non-work-related injuries is against the law 
and will be grounds for termination. 

THE ENVIRONMENT 
The Town of Mountain Village cares about our environment. Town Council and the community have 
made energy conservation and waste reduction a priority goal. In an effort to assist the town with 
reaching its Energy Efficiency and Zero Waste goals, we participate in our collective efforts to reduce 
waste and conserve energy in the workplace. 

Reduce Waste: 

• REDUCE: Reduce daily office waste by bringing a re-usable coffee mug to work and making sure 
you really need a hard copy before printing. Bring a re-usable bag to work for groceries or 
other shopping needs (or wants!). 

• REUSE: Reuse paper for scratch pads before recycling. Reuse plastic food containers as 
Tupperware before throwing away. Recycling is great but still requires a lot of energy so please 
try to use items as many times as possible before discarding into the town's trash or recycling 
bins. 

• RECYCLE: All offices in Town should be equipped with recycling bins. Recycle all paper, 
cardboard, glass, plastic #1-7 and aluminum products in these bins for collection by either the 

February 201 .s.4 PageS 

177



cleaning team or Town staff. If you are in a facility that does not have adequate recycling bins, 
please contact Deanna Drew to arrange a method for you to recycle. Recycling these items is 
mandatory for all residents and businesses in the Town of Mountain Village. 

Save Energy: 
• OFFICE HEAT: All thermostats in the office building should be set at 68 degrees. We realize that 

everyone's comfort level is different so please do your best to dress appropriately for the season 
with enough layers to stay warm throughout the workday. Although personal space heaters are 
not prohibited, they do use a large amount of energy and could thwart our efforts to conserve, 
so please use your personal space heaters sparingly when necessary. 

• WINDOWS: Pulling your blinds down at the end of the day could help keep the offices warm 
and prevent the heaters from coming on during the night when no-one is here. Please close 
your blinds when you leave your office for the night to keep the heat in and the cold out. 

• COMPUTERS, PRINTERS, ELECTRONICS: These devices require a "phantom" load of energy 
when plugged in and not in use. Please remember to turn off electronic devices when leaving 
for the night and/or weekend. 

• OFFICE LIGHTS: We are in the process of upgrading lights from fluorescents to LEOs. LED bulbs 
use half as much energy as fluorescent lights for the same amount of light. Please turn off your 
lights when employees are not in the office or shop, and especially at night and on weekends, to 
make sure valuable electricity is not being wasted. 

If you have additional ideas for how to conserve in the workplace, please bring them to the attention of 
your supervisor or the Environmental Services Director so that your ideas can be distributed to the rest 
of the Mountain Village team. 

EEO and Unlawful Harassment 
The Town is dedicated to the principles of equal employment opportunity. We prohibit unlawful 
discrimination against applicants or employees on the basis of age 40 and over, race, sex, color, religion, 
national origin, disability, military status, genetic information, or any other applicable status protected 
by state or local law. 

ADA and Religious Accommodation 
The Town will make reasonable accommodation for qualified individuals with known disabilities and 
employees whose work requirements interfere with a religious belief unless doing so would result in an 
undue hardship to the Town or a direct threat. Employees needing such accommodation are instructed 
to contact their supervisor or Human Resources. 

Anti-Violence 
Employees have the right to a safe, violence free and drug free workplace. To that end, the Town's 
position on workplace violence is very inflexible. Employees who engage in workplace violence, 
whether instigating it or not, may be drug and/or alcohol tested, and pending a full investigation may be 
subject to discipline up to and including suspension from duty without payor termination. 

Employees must not engage in intimidation, threats, or hostile behaviors, physical abuse, vandalism, 
arson, sabotage, use of weapons, carrying weapons on to Town property, or any other act, which, in 

Febntary 20124 Page 9 

cleaning team or Town staff. If you are in a facility that does not have adequate recycling bins, 
please contact Deanna Drew to arrange a method for you to recycle. Recycling these items is 
mandatory for all residents and businesses in the Town of Mountain Village. 

Save Energy: 

• OFFICE HEAT: All thermostats in the office building should be set at 68 degrees. We realize that 
everyone's comfort level is different so please do your best to dress appropriately for the season 
with enough layers to stay warm throughout the workday. Although personal space heaters are 
not prohibited, they do use a large amount of energy and could thwart our efforts to conserve, 
so please use your personal space heaters sparingly when necessary. 

• WINDOWS: Pulling your blinds down at the end of the day could help keep the offices warm 
and prevent the heaters from coming on during the night when no-one is here. Please dose 
your blinds when you leave your office for the night to keep the heat in and the cold out. 

• COMPUTERS, PRINTERS, elECTRONICS: These devices require a "phantom" load of energy 
when plugged in and not in use. Please remember to turn off electronic devices when leaving 
for the night and/or weekend. 

• OFFICE LIGHTS: We are in the process of upgrading lights from fluorescents to lEOs. LED bulbs 
use half as much energy as fluorescent lights forthe same amount of light. Please turn off your 
lights when employees are not in the office or shop, and especially at night and on weekends, to 
make sure valuable electricity is not being wasted. 

If you have additional ideas for how to conserve in the workplace, please bring them to the attention of 
your supervisor or the Environmental Services Director so that your ideas can be distributed to the rest 
of the Mountain Village team. 

EEO and Unlawful Harassment 
The Town is dedicated to the prinCiples of equal employment opportunity. We prohibit unlawful 
discrimination against applicants or employees on the basis of age 40 and over, race, sex, color, religion, 
national origin, disability, military status, genetic information, or any other applicable status protected 
by state or local law. 

ADA and Religious Accommodation 
The Town will make reasonable accommodation for qualified individuals with known disabilities and 
employees whose work requirements interfere with a religious belief unless doing so would result in an 
undue hardship to the Town or a direct threat. Employees needing such accommodation are instructed 
to contact their supervisor or Human Resources. 

Anti-Violence 
Employees have the right to a safe, violence free and drug free workplace. To that end, the Town's 
position on workplace violence is very inflexible. Employees who engage in workplace violence, 
whether instigating it or not, may be drug and/or alcohol tested, and pending a full investigation may be 
subject to discipline up to and including suspension from duty without payor termination. 

Employees must not engage in intimidation, threats, or hostile behaviors, physical abuse, vandalism, 
arson, sabotage, use of weapons, carrying weapons on to Town property, or any other act, which, in 

FebrualX 201 5:4 Page 9 

178



management's opinion, is inappropriate to the workplace. In addition, employees must refrain from 
making bizarre or offensive comments regarding violent events and/or behavior. Employees are 
expected to report any prohibited conduct to management. (Sworn officers ofthe police department 
are exempt from the weapons reference of this policy) 

Sexual Harassment/Inappropriate Conduct 
Because sexual harassment raises issues that are to some extent unique in comparison to other 
harassment, the Town believes it warrants separate emphasis. 
The Town strongly opposes sexual harassment and inappropriate sexual conduct. Sexual harassment is 
defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct 
of a sexual nature, when: 

• Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment. 
• Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for decisions affecting an 

individual's employment. 

• Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work 
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

All employees are expected to conduct themselves in a professional and businesslike manner at all , 
times. Conduct which may violate this policy includes, but is not limited to, sexually implicit or explicit 
communications whether in: 

• Written form, such as cartoons, posters, calendars, notes, letters, emails 

• Verbal form, such as comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual nature, gossiping or 
questions about another's sex life, or repeated unwanted requests for dates. 

• Physical gestures and other nonverbal behavior, such as unwelcome touching, grabbing, 
fondling, kissing, massaging, and brushing up against another's body. 

Complaint Procedure 
If you believe there has been a violation of the EEO policy or harassment based on the protected classes 
outlined above, including sexual harassment, please use the following complaint procedure. The Town 
expects employees to make a timely complaint to enable the Town to investigate and correct any 
behavior that may be in violation of this policy. 

1. Report the incident to your supervisor or manager who will investigate the matter where 
appropriate and take corrective action. Your complaint will be kept as confidential as 
practicable. 

2. If you prefer not to go to either of these individuals with your complaint, you should report the 
incident to Human Resources 

3. If the problem still cannot be resolved, employees may submit a written complaint to the Town 
Manager for review and final decision about the situation. 

The Town prohibits retaliation against an employee for filing a complaint under this policy or for 
assisting in a complaint investigation. If you perceive retaliation for making a complaint or your 
participation in the investigation, please follow the complaint procedure outlined above. The situation 
will be investigated. 

If the Town determines that an employee's behavior is in violation of this policy, appropriate disciplinary 
action will be taken against the offending employee up to and including suspension or termination of 
employment. 

Filing a Retaliation Complaint 

February 20154 Page 10 

management's opinion, is inappropriate to the workplace. In addition, employees must refrain from 
making bizarre or offensive comments regarding violent events and/or behavior. Employees are 
expected to report any prohibited conduct to management. (Sworn officers of the police department 
are exempt from the weapons reference of this policy) 

Sexual Harassment! Inappropriate Conduct 
Because sexual harassment raises issues that are to some extent unique in comparison to other 
harassment, the Town believes it warrants separate emphasis. 
The Town strongly opposes sexual harassment and inappropriate sexual conduct. Sexual harassment is 
defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other ve rbal or physical conduct 
of a sexual nature, when: 

• Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment. 
• Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for decisions affecting an 

individual's employment. 

• Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work 
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

All employees are expected to conduct themselves in a professional and businesslike manner at all 
times. Conduct which may violate this policy includes, but is not limited to, sexually implicit or explicit 
communications whether in: 

• Written form, such as cartoons, posters, calendars, notes, letters, emails 
• Verbal form, such as comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual nature, gOSSiping or 

questions about another's sex life, or repeated unwanted requests for dates. 
• Physical gestures and other nonverbal behavior, such as unwelcome touching, grabbing, 

fondling, kissing, massaging, and brushing up against another's body. 

Complaint Procedure 
If you believe there has been a violation of the EEO policy or harassment based on the pratected classes 
outl ined above, including sexual harassment, please use the following complaint procedure. The Town 
expects employees ta make a timely complaint to enable the Town to investigate and correct any 
behavior that may be in violation of this policy. 

1. Report the incident to your supervisor or manager w ho will investigate the matter where 
appropriate and take co rrective action. Your complaint will be kept as confidential as 
practicable. 

2. If you prefer not to go ta either of these individuals with your camplaint, you should report the 
incident ta Human Resources 

3. If the prablem still cannot be resolved, employees may submit a written complaint to the Town 
Manager for review and final decision abaut the situation. 

The Tawn prohibits retaliation against an emplayee for filing a complaint under this policy or for 
assisting in a complaint investigation. If you perceive retaliation for making a comp laint or your 
participation in the investigation, please follow the complaint procedure outlined above. The situatian 
will be investigated . 

If the Town determines that an employee's behavior is in violation of this policy, appropriate disciplinary 
action will be taken against the offending emplayee up to and inctuding suspension or termination of 
employment. 

Filing a Retaliation Complaint 

February 2015.4 Page 10 

179



A retaliation complaint may be filed directly with the Human Resources Director or Town 
Manager. A retaliation claim must be filed within 90 days of the retaliation behavior. If there is 
a pattern of retaliation, the complaint must be filed within 45 days of the most recent alleged 
act or threat of interference or retaliation. 

Investigation 
The complaint will be investigated. The Town Manager and Human Resources Director will 
convene a meeting for the purposes of making a determination about the investigation. The 
Town Manager may request any documentation or verbal statements by employees as may be 
legitimately required for appropriate fact finding. 

Decision 
If a finding that interference or retaliation has occurred, the Town Manager will review the 
incident. The determination is final and binding. The Town Manager sees to it that, through 
appropriate channels, corrective action is taken against the employee who is found to have 
interfered or retaliated. The Town Manager will communicate the determination in writing to 
the complainant, if known, and to the person or persons accused of violating this guideline. 

With regard to complaints where it is alleged that the Town Manager interfered or took 
retaliatory action, the finding of the investigation shall be presented for a decision to the Mayor. 

Job Descriptions 
Job descriptions are available for each position within the Town. Your immediate supervisor will provide 
you with a copy of your job description and answer any questions that you may have regarding it. Each 
job description typically indicates duties and responsibilities, major reporting relationships, measures of 
job performance, required skills and education, and required physical ability. 

Confidentiality of Information 
To repay the trust and confidence placed in us by our guests and our employees we must maintain the 
confidentiality of information within the Town. Confidential information obtained as a consequence of 
employment is released only when properly authorized. This information includes, but is not limited to 
personnel records, confidential meetings, memoranda, documents, and other methods of internal 
communication. Any copying, reproducing, or distributing of confidential information in any manner 
must be authorized by management. 

A breach of confidentiality may subject the Town to liability. Confidential information may not be used 
for the purpose of furthering a private interest or as a means of making a profit. Such use of 
confidential information will not be tolerated. 

Door codes are issued to the individual employee are not to be shared or given to any other person, 
whether an employee or not. 

Personnel Records 
The Town keeps a personnel file as a record of your employment. It is important for this record to be 
up-to-date and complete. This enables us to reach you in an emergency, forward your mail, and 
properly maintain your insurance and other benefits. It also helps keep track of your payroll deductions 
and many other things that concern you as an individual. 

February 20154 Page 11 

A retaliation complaint may be filed directly with the Human Resources Director or Town 
Manager. A retaliation claim must be filed within 90 days of the retaliation behavior. If there is 
a pattern of retaliation, the complaint must be filed within 45 days of the most recent alleged 
act or threat of interference or retaliation. 

Investigation 
The complaint will be investigated. The Town Manager and Human Resources Director will 
convene a meeting for the purposes of making a determination about the investigation. The 
Town Manager may request any documentation or verbal statements by employees as may be 
legitimately required for appropriate fact finding. 

Decision 
If a finding that interference or retaliation has occurred, the Town Manager will review the 
incident. The determination is final and binding. The Town Manager sees to it that, through 
appropriate channels, corrective action is taken against the employee who is found to have 
interfered or retaliated . The Town Manager will communicate the determination in writing to 
t he complainant, if known, and to the person or persons accused of vio lating this guideline. 

With regard to complaints where it is alleged that the Town Manager interfered or took 
retaliatory action, the finding of the investigation shall be presented for a decision to the Mayor. 

Job Descriptions 
Job descriptions are available for each position within the Town. Your immediate supervisor will provide 
you with a copy of your job description and answer any questions that you may have regarding it. Each 
job description typically indicates duties and responsibilities, major reporting relationships, measures of 
job performance, required skills and education, and required physical ability. 

Confidentiality of Information 
To repay the trust and confidence placed in us by our guests and our employees we must mainta in the 
confidentiality of information within the Town. Confidential information obtained as a consequence of 
employment is released only when properly authorized. This information includes, but is not limited to 
personnel records, confidential meetings, memoranda, documents, and other methods of internal 
communication . Any copying, reproducing, or distributing of confidential information in any manner 
must be authorized by management. 

A breach of confidentiality may subject the Town to liability. Confidential information may not be used 
for the purpose of furthering a private interest or as a means of making a profit. Such use of 
confidential information will not be tolerated. 

Door codes are issued to the individual employee are not to be shared or given to any other person, 
whether an employee or not. 

Personnel Records 
The Town keeps a personnel file as a record of your employment. It is important for this record to be 
up-to-date and complete. This enables us to reach you in an emergency, forward your mail, and 
properly maintain your insurance and other benefits. It also helps keep track of your payroll deductions 
and many other things that concern you as an individua l. 

February 20154 Page 11 

180



Notify the Human Resource Department immediately if you have changes in any of the following areas: 
Name, residence, telephone, marital status, insurance changes, tax exemptions, person to notify in case 
of an emergency, and other relevant information. 
Additionally, you should notify the Human Resources Department if you complete educational or 
training courses. This information may be considered with your other employment records as job 
opportunities arise in the Town. 

All requests to view personnel records must be made in writing to the Human Resources Department 
with reasonable advance notice. 

Reference Requests 
Employees who are approached either formally or informally and asked to provide information about 
former employees of the Town should refer such inquiries to the Human Resource Department. 

EMPLOYEE SELECTION 

Application Accuracy 
Prospective employees will be required to complete an employee application and necessary hiring 
forms. The Town reserves the right to verify all employment data. False or misleading information on an 
application or other hiring forms before or during employment may be cause for disciplinary action or 
employment denial. If an employee realizes they have put inaccurate information on Town forms, he or 
she must notify Human Resources and correct the information immediately. 

Interviews 
Considered applicants for Town positions participate in an interview with Human Resources and with 
the supervisor/manager of the department to which the pOSition reports. Interviews will be job related 
and will be used, in conjunction with employment and driver background checks and a variety of other 
measures, as a tool for making hiring decisions. 

Promotions 
Employees may be considered for promotion to fill vacancies based upon the following factors including 
but not limited to individual's experience, training, work related background, attendance, present and 
past performance, and anything else management believes to be important to the job at the time the 
open position is filled. Length of servic~ for the Town will be considered when two or more applicants 
possess equal qualifications. In order to be eligible to apply for a posted position, you must meet the 
minimum hiring specifications for the position, be capable of performing the essential functions of the 
job with or without a reasonable accommodation. 

Employees are responsible for monitoring job vacancy notices on the Town website and for completing 
an online application during the posting period for a specific opening. 

Employment of Relatives (see Code of Ethics) 
The Town recognizes that the work force in the region is limited, and on occasion, more than one close 
relative may work for the Town and even in the same department. In order to avoid any real or 
apparent Conflict of Interest, impropriety or favoritism, no person shall be permitted to be involved in 
the hiring, evaluation, salary adjustments, promotions, disciplinary decisions or other budgetary or 
financial decisions of a relative. For purposes of this Section, a relative shall mean spouses, parents, 

February 20154 Page 12 

Notify the Human Resource Department immediately if you have changes in any of the following areas: 
Name, residence, telephone, marita l status, insurance changes, tax exemptions, person to notify in case 
of an emergency, and other relevant information. 
Additiona lly, you should not ify the Human Resources Department if you complete educational or 
training courses, This information may be considered with your other employment records as job 
opportunit ies arise in the Town. 

All requests to view personnel records must be made in writing to the HUman Resources Department 
with reasonable advance notice. 

Reference Requests 
Employees who are approached either formally or informally and asked to provide information about 
former employees of the Town should refer such inquiries to the Human Resource Department. 

EMPLOYEE SELECTION 

Application Accuracy 
Prospective employees will be required to complete an employee application and necessary hiring 
forms. The Town reserves the right to verify all employment data, False or misleading information on an 
application or other hiring fo rms before or during employment may be cause for disciplinary action or 
employment deniaL If an employee realizes t hey have put inaccurate information on Town forms, he or 
she must notify Human Resources and correct the information immediately, 

Interviews 
Considered applicants for Town positions participate in an interview with Human Resources and with 
the supervisor/manager of the department to which the position reports. Interviews will be job related 
and will be used, in conjunction w ith employment and driver background checks and a variety of other 
measures, as a tool for making hiring decisions, 

Promotions 
Employees may be considered for promotion to fill vacancies based upon the following factors including 
but not limited to individual's experience, train ing, work related background, attendance, present and 
past performance, and anything else management believes to be important to the job at the time the 
open position is filled . length of servic!;! for the Town will be considered when two or more applicants 
possess equal qualifications, In order to be eligible to apply for a posted position, you must meet the 
minimum hiring specifications for t he position, be capable of performing the essential functions of the 
job with or without a reasonable accommodation. 

Employees are responsible for monitoring job vacancy not ices on the Town website and for complet ing 
an online application during the posting period for a specific opening, 

Employment of Relatives (see Code of Ethics) 
The Town recognizes that the work force in the region is limited, and on occasion, more than one close 
relat ive may work for the Town and even in the same department. In order to avoid any real or 
apparent Conflict of Interest, impropriety or favo ritism, no person shall be permitted to be involved in 
the hiring, eva luation, sa lary adjustments, promotions, disciplinary decisions or other budgetary or 
finan cial decisions of a relative. For purposes of this Sect ion, a relative shall mean spouses, parents, 

February 2015.4 Page 12 

181



children, brothers and sisters, grandparents, grandchildren, in-laws or relatives living in the same 
household. 
In the event a situation exists as of the date of this employee handbook, where a relative is in a 
supervisory role of another relative, these situations may continue with the direct involvement and 
supervision of the Department Director. The Department Director shall be solely responsible for the 
evaluation, salary adjustments, promotions, disciplinary decisions or other budgetary or financial 
decisions of the supervised relative. 

EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION & INTRODUCTORY PERIOD 
Tlie following employee group definitions are assigned at the time of hire and are used to determine 
eligibility for benefits such as PTO, health insurance, etc. 

Group 1 Full time, year round employees (Exempt) - Exempt employees must meet both the duties 
test and the salary basis test under FlSA for exempt status. Exempt employees are expected to work at least 40 
hours per week or until the job is done, whichever is greater and are compensated based upon a biweekly salary. 
The employee is expected to work, at a minimum, the hours established for a particular department and be 
available when necessary outside those hours, either daily or weekly. No overtime will be paid for hours worked in 
excess of 40 hours per week. 

Group 2 Full time, year round, hourly employees (Non-exempt) - Full-time hourly employees are 
normally scheduled for 40 hours per week. Benefits are calculated based upon hours worked up to 40 hours per 
week. Some employees may regularly be scheduled less than a 40 hour week with Department Head and Town 
Manager approval. 

Group 3 Seasonal employees (Non-exempt) - Work for a limited period of time, referred to as a 
season (i.e. summer season, winter season, shoulder season, or during summer or holiday breaks from school or a 
period of time identified and agreed upon by the Town and the employee on the date of hire.) 

3A Full-time seasonal, hourly- Workingfull time during Town recognized seasons. Season to be 
defined and agreed upon prior to commencement of employment 

3B. Part-time seasonal, hourly- Working part time during Town recognized seasons. Season to 
be defined and agreed upon prior to commencement of employment 

3C. Full-time, seasonal, hourly -;.Working f ull t ime, more than 1560 hours per year A . . 

Group 4 Part time, hourly employees (Non-exempt) -Part time employees generally work more than 
15 hours, but less than 30 hours per week and have a schedule that has been defined and agreed upon prior to the 
commencement or employment. 

Group 5 Part time, on call hourly employees (Non-exempt) - Employee on call to work a limited 
period of time, working the hours and/or shift assigned. 

Group 5 Part time, hourly employees (Non-exempt) - Part time employees generally work less than 
15 hours/week working the hours and/or shift assigned. 

Group 6 POLICE Full time, year round employees (Exempt) - Exempt employees must meet both the 
duties test and the salary basis test under FlSA for exempt status. Exempt employees are expected to work at 
least 80 hours per pay period or until the job is done, whichever is greater and are compensated based upon a 
biweekly salary. The employee is expected to work, at a minimum, the hours established for a particular 
department and be available when necessary outside those hours, either daily or weekly. 

Group 7 POLICE Full time; year round, hourly employees (Non-exempt) Full-time hourly employees 
are normally scheduled for 80 hours per pay period. Employees are paid overtime on hours worked over 80. 

February 2015.4 Page 13 

" 

children, brothers and sisters, grandparen ts, grandchildren, in-laws or re latives living in the same 
household. 
In the event a situation exists as of the date of this employee handbook, where a relative is in a 
supervisory role of another relative, these situations may continue with the direct involvement and 
supervision of the Department Director. The Department Director shall be solely responsible for the 
evaluation, sa lary adjustments, promotions, disciplinary decisions or other budgetary or financial 
decisions of the supervised relative. 

EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION & INTRODUCTORY PERIOD 
Tlie following employee group definitions are assigned at the time of hire and are used to determine 
eligibility for benefits such as PTO, health insurance, etc. 

Group 1 Full time, year round employees (Exempt) - Exempt employees must meet both the duties 
test and the salary basis test under FlSA for exempt status. Exempt employees are expected to work at least 40 
hours per week or until the job Is done, whichever is greater and are compensated based upon a biweekly salary. 
The employee is expected to work, at a minimum, the hours established for a particular department and be 
avaitable when necessary outside those hours, either daily or weekly. No overtime will be paid for hours worked in 
excess of 40 hours per week. 

Group 2 Full time, year round, hourly employees (Non-exempt) - Full-time hourly employees are 
normally scheduled for 40 hours per week. Benefits are calculated based upon hours worked up to 40 hours per 
week. Some employees may regularly be schedu led less than a 40 hour week with Department Head and Town 
Manager approval. 

Group 3 Seasonal employees (Non-exempt) - Work for a limited period of time, referred to as a 
season (I.e. summer season, winter season, shoulder season, or during summer or holiday breaks from school or a 
period of time iden tified and agreed upon by the Town and the employee on the date of hire .) 

3A Full-time seasonal, hourly- Workingfull time during Town recognized seasons. Season to be 
defined and agreed upon prior to commencement of employment 

38. Port-time seasonal, haurly- Working port time during Town recognized seasons. Season to 
be defined and agreed upon prior to commencement of employment 

3e. FUIHlme. st"osonol, hourly -.Worklng full lim!. more than 1560 Mllrs per ve:Jr.... Fann, 

Group 4 Port time, hourly employees (Non-exempt) -Part t ime employees generally work more than 
15 hou rs, but less than 30 hours per week and have a schedule that has been defined and agreed upon prior to the 
commencement or employment. 

Group 5 Part time, on coli hourly employees (Non-exempt) - Employee on call to work a limi ted 
period of time, working the hours and/or shift assigned. 

Group 5 Part time, hourly employees (Non-exempt) - Part time employees generally work less than 
15 hours/week working the hours and/or shift assigned. 

Group 6 POLICE Full time, year round employees (Exempt) - Exempt employees must meet both the 
duties test and the salary basis test under FLSA for exempt status. Exempt employees are expected t o work at 
least 80 hours per pay period or until the Job is done, whichever is greater and are compensated based upon a 
biweekly salary. Th e employee is expected to work, at a minimum, the hours established for a particular 
department and be available when necessary outside those hours, either daily or weekly. 

Group 7 POLICE Full time,' yeor round, hourly employees (Non·exempt) Full-time hourly employees 
are normally scheduled for 80 hours per pay period. Employees are paid overt ime on hours worked over 80. 

February 2015.4 Page 13 

Form. 

Forn>, 

182



Definition of Seasons: 

• Winter Season - the beginning of November through the beginning of April, based on available 
work. 

• Summer Season - the end of May through the end of October, based on available work. 

• Shoulder Season - The time period between the beginning of April and the end of May and 
between the end of October and the beginning of November when the Town of Mountain 
Village may be operating with a reduced work force. 

• Other Season - A period oftime identified and agreed upon by the Town and the employee and 
noted on the employment paperwork at the time of hire. 

BENEFITS & ELIGIBILITY 
Employee Benefits 
This section describes the current employee benefits provided for you. The "Benefits Eligibility Chart" 
will familiarize you with our total benefits package. Seniority for benefits will accrue based on the 
employee's date of hireeligibility date. with the TOWA. 

BENEFIT ELIGIBILITY CHART 

Eligible Groups 

Benefit 1 2 3A 3B 4 5 6 7 

AFLAC x x x x x x x 
401(k) x x 
457 x x 
Bereavement Leave- paid x x x x 
Direct Deposit x x x x x x x x 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) x x x x x x x 
Employee Shuttles x x x x x x x x 
End of Season Bonus x x 
Flex Spending Accounts (FSA) - Dependent Care x x x x 
Flex Spending Accounts (FSA) - Medical x x x x 
FMLA (minimum 1250 hrs, 1 yr service) x x x x x x 
FPPA (Police Only) x x 
FPPA (457 (Police Only) x x 
Holiday Pay x x x x x x 
Jury Duty - full pay x x x x x x x 
Life Insurance - paid x x x x 
Life Insurance (PERA) - voluntary x x x x x x x x 

Long Term Disability (LTD) x x x x 

Medical, Dental, Vision Insurance x x x x 
Military Leave (paid) x x x x x x x x 
PERA x x x x x x 

Februar~ 2015.4 Paf;je 14 

Definition of Seasons: 

• Winter Season - the beginning of November through the beginning of April, based on available 
work. 

• Summer Season - the end of May through the end of October, based on available work. 
• Shoulder Season - The time period between the beginning of April and the end of May and 

between the end of October and the beginning of November when the Town of Mountain 
Village may be operating with a reduced work force . 

• Other Season - A period of time identified and agreed upon by the Town and the employee and 
noted on the employment paperwork at the time of hire . 

BENEFITS & ELIGIBILITY 
Employee Benefits 
This section describes the current employee benefits provided for you. The "Benefits Eligibility Chart" 
will familiarize you with our total benefits package. Seniority for benefits will accrue based on the 
employee's date of hireel lglbllity date. with the Town, 

BENEFIT ELIGIBILITY CHART 

Eligible Groups 

Benefit 1 2 3A 3B 4 5 6 
AFLAC x x x x x x 
401(k) x x 
457 x x 
Bereavement Leave- paid x x x 
Direct Deposit x x x x x x x 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) x x x x x x 
Employee Shuttles x x x x x x x 
End of Season Bonus x x 
Flex Spending Accounts (FSA) - Dependent Care x x x 
Flex Spending Accounts (FSA) - Medical x x x 
FMLA (minimum 1250 hrs, 1 yr service) x x x x x 
FPPA (Police Onlv) x 
FPPA (457 (Police Onlv) x 
Holiday Pay x x x x x 
Jury Duty - full pay x x x x x x 
Life Insurance - paid x x x 
life Insurance (PERA) - voluntary x x x x x x x 
Long Term Disability (LTD) x x x 
Medical, Dental, Vision Insurance x x x 
Military Leave (paid) x x x x x x x 
PERA x x x x x x 

Februa~ 2015.4 Page 14 

7 

x 

x 
x 
x 
x 

x 
x 
x 
x 
x 
x 
x 
x 
x 
x 

x 
x 

183



PTO (Paid Time Off) x x x x 
Discounted Employee Ski Passes x x x x x x 

Discounted Peaks Spa Membership x x x x 
Eligible Dependents Dependents eligible for coverage under the Town group health plan, employee 
assistance program, and other Town benefits are as follows: 

1. The employee's lawful spouse, as defined in the State that you reside; provided that: 
a. the spouse is not legally separated from the employee, and 
b. the employee is eligible to claim a marital status of marriage on their Federal Income 
Tax Return as a result 

2. Common-law spouse verified by valid affidavit 

3. A covered employee's Civil Union partner, who meets the requirements of Colorado's Civil 
Union Act, on a post-tax basis; verified by civil union certificate 

4. A covered employee's married or unmarried: natural born, blood related child; step-child; 
foster child; a Civil Union partner's child; legally adopted child; child placed in the 
employee's legal guardianship by court order; or a child placed with the employee for 
purpose of adoption and for which the employee has a legal obligation to provide full or 
partial support; whose age is less than the *Iimiting age. 

*The limiting age for each dependent child is 26 years of age. 

Human Resources must be notified within twenty (21) days to add newly acquired dependents (birth, 
marriage, adoption, etc.). New dependents become effective on the date oftheir eligibility. 

40l(k) Plan 
The Town participates in PERA's 401(k} retirement plan. Participation in the 401K plan is voluntary for 
eligible employees. Employees who participate in the 401K plan decide how much money they want to 
contribute, consistent with current IRS regulations and they control how their money is invested. 401K 
plan contributions will be automatically deducted from your paycheck and the Town will match that 
amount dollar for dollar based upon the table below. Employee and Town contributions are 100% 
vested immediately. 

PLAN A Employees that were eligible for 401K PRIOR to Aprill, 2008 may elect to stay on the previous 
plan as stated below or convert to the new plan: 

• Employees In their first year of efR!}!eymeffi-eliglbility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 1% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their second year of employment eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 3% to their 401K. 

• Employees in t heir third year of emp!eyffient-eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 5% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their fourth year of ~eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 9% to their 401K. 

PLAN B: Employees that are eligible for 401K on or after Aprill, 2008 will receive the following match: 
• Employees in their first year of eml»evmeflt-eligibil ity who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 

matching contribution up to 2% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their second year of ema1eymeeteligibil ity who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 3% to their 401K. 

February 2015.4 Page 15 

PTO (Paid Time Off) , , 
Discounted Employee Ski Passes , , , , 

, , 
, , 

Discounted Peaks Spa Membership x x x x 
Eligible Dependents Dependents eligible for coverage under the Town group health plan, employee 
assistance program, and other Town benefits are as follows: 

1. The employee's lawful spouse, as defined in the State that you reside; provided that: 
a. the spouse is not legally separated from the employee, and 
b. the employee is eligible to claim a marital status of marriage on their Federal Income 
Tax Return as a result 

2. Common-law spouse verified by valid affidavit 

3. A covered employee's Civil Union partner, who meets the requirements of Colorado's Civil 
Union Act, on a post-tax basis; veri fied by civil union certificate 

4. A covered employee's married or unmarried: natural born, blood related child; step-child; 
foster child; a Civil Union partner's child; legally adopted child; child placed in the 
employee's legal guardianship by court order; or a child placed with the employee for 
purpose of ~doption and for which the employee has a legal obligation to provide full or 
partial support; whose age is less than the -limiting age. 

·The limiting age for each dependent child is 26 years of age. 

Human Resources must be notified within twenty (21) days to add newly acquired dependents (birth, 
marriage, adoption, etc.). New dependents become effective on the date of their eligibility. 

401(k) Pian 
The Town participates in PERA's 401(k) retirement plan. Participation in the 401K plan is voluntary for 
eligible employees. Employees who participate in the 401K plan decide how much money they want to 
cont ribute, consistent with current IRS regulations and t hey control how their money is invested. 401K 
plan contributions wilt be automatically deducted f rom your paycheck and the Town will match that 
amount dollar for dollar based upon the table below. Employee and Town contributions are 100% 
vested immediately. 

PLAN A Employees that were eligible for 401K PRIOR to Aprill. 2008 may elect to stay on the previous 
plan as stated below or convert to the new plan: 

• Employees in their first year of gmpkwmeAt-e' jgjbjlitv who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 1% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their second year of emp!Qyll!eAHliBjbllltv. who contribute to the 401K win receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 3% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their third year or empkwmenl-eliglbilftv who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 5% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their rourth year or empleYmeAI·.ellRibIliIV who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 9% to their 401K. 

PlAN 8: Employees that are eligible for 401K on or after Aprill. 2008 will receive the following match: 
• Employees in their first year of emp!oYmt'ftHllglbllity who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 

matching contribution up to 2% to their 401K. 
• Employees in their second year of efflplevmeoHlIglbillty who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 

matching contribution up to 3% to their 401K. 

184



• Employees in their third year of emplovmeAt-eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 4% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their fourth year of effiploymcnt eligibility who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 5% to their 401K. 

A 401K summary plan description booklet outlining all aspects of the plan is provided to all Group I and II 
employees upon hire. Additional information is available in Human Resources. 

Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 
The Town recognizes there may be times when employees need professional help with substance abuse 
and other personal or family matters. Therefore, the Town offers an Employee Assistance Program 
{EAP}. All Town employees and their families are eligible for three {3} free counseling sessions per 
incident per year. Two financial counseling sessions with certified financial planners and two 30-minute 
consultations with an attorney are also included. It is not necessary to consult your supervisor before 
using the EAP. Employees may confidentially request information about the EAP from Human 
Resources. An employee may seek assistance directly from the EAP by contacting: 

Triad, EAP 
Phone: 877.679.1100 or 970.242.9536 

Fax: 970.257.1157 

Email: triadeap.com 

www.triadeap.com 

HorizonCare 

Phone: 888.293.6948 

www.horizoneap.com 

login: standard 

password: eap4u 

Use of the EAP must be on the employee's own time and is not designed to be a substitute for good job 
performance or an excuse for not completing their work duties and responsibilities. Those employees 
initiating a request for assistance from the EAP prior to receiving a positive drug or alcohol test or any 
disciplinary action for violating Town policies will be given positive consideration for their attempt to 
obtain help. 

~ OOLORADO Colorado Public Employer's Retirement Association (PERA) 
~UIl' PER4e www.copera.org * 1-800-759-7372 

Colorado PERA is a qualified retirement plan that the Town contributes to in lieu of 
Social Security, as required by law. PERA pays interest on the employee contribution. Your PERA 
contributions are tax-deferred It is your responsibility to keep PERA advised of any name, address or 
beneficiary changes. 

FPPA Fire & Police Pension Association-FPPA (Police only) 
The Town provides retirement, death, and disability and survivor benefits for its police officers through 
the Fire & Police Pension Association of Colorado {FPPA}. As members of FPPA, police officers make a 
member contribution of 8% to FPPA matched by Town contributions. Employees may consult their FPPA 
member handbooks or contact Human Resources for more information regarding FPPA plan design and 
benefits. 

FPPA 457 Plans (Police only) 
FPPA offers a valuable plan for those members who want to save additional funds towards retirement. 

PLAN A Employees that were eligible for 457 PRIOR to April 1, 2008 may elect to stay on the previous 
plan as stated below or convert to the new plan: 

February 20154 Page 16 

• Employees in their third year of emWeWeAl-eligibi1lw who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 4% to their 401K. 

• Employees in their fourth year of emD!oymeA\ eli6ibitity who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal 
matching contribution up to 5% to their 401K. 

A 401K summary plan description booklet outlining all aspects of the plan is provided to all Group I and II 
employees upon hire. Additional information is available in Human Resources. 

Employee Assistance Program {EAP} 

The Town recognizes there may be times when employees need professional help with substance abuse 
and other personal or family matters. Therefore, the Town offers an Employee Assistance Program 
(EAP). All Town employees and their families are eligible for three (3) free counseling sessions per 
incident per year. Two financial counseling sessions with certified financial planners and two 3D-minute 
consultations with an attorney are also included. It is not necessary to consult your supervisor before 
using the EAP. Employees may confidentially request information about the EAP from Human 
Resources. An employee may seek assistance directly from the EAP by contacting: 

Triad, EAP 

Phone: 877.679.1100 or 970.242.9536 

Fax: 970.257.1157 

Email: triadeap.com 

www.triadeap.com 

HorizonCare 

Phone: 888.293.6948 

www.horizoneap.com 

login: standard 

password: eap4u 

Use of the EAP must be on the employee's own time and is not designed to be a substitute for good job 
performance or an excuse for not completing their work duties and responsibilities. Those employees 
initiating a request for assistance from the EAP prior to receiving a positive drug or alcohol test or any 
disciplinary action for violating Town policies will be given positive consideration for their attempt to 
obtain help. 

~ COtDRAOO Colorado Public Employer's Retirement Association (PERA) 
"UIl' PERA.. www.copera.org * 1-800-759-7372 

Colorado PERA is a qualified retirement plan that the Town contributes to in lieu of 
Social Security, as required by law. PERA pays interest on the employee contribution. Your PERA 
contributions are tax-deferred It is your responsibility to keep PERA advised of any name, address or 
beneficiary changes. 

FPPA. Fire & Pollee Pension Association-FPPA (Police only) 

The Town provides retirement, death, and disability and survivor benefits for its police officers through 
the Fire & Police Pension Association of Colorado (FPPA). As members of FPPA, police officers make a 
member contribution of 8% to FPPA matched by Town contributions. Employees may consult their FPPA 
member handbooks or contact Human Resources for more information rega rding FPPA plan design and 
benefits. 

PPM 457 Plans (Police only) 
FPPA offers a valuable plan for those members who want to save additional funds towards retirement. 

PLAN A Employees that were eligible for 457 PRIOR to April!. 2008 may elect to stay on the previous 
plan as stated below or convert to the new plan: 

February 201 .5.4 Page 16 

185



- Employees in their first year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 1% to their 457. 

- Employees in their second year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 3% to their 457. 

- Employees in their third year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 5% to their 457. 

_-_Employees in their fourth year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 9% to their 457. 

PLAN B: Employees t hat are el igible for 457 as of or after April!, 2008 will receive the following 
match: 

- Employees in their first year of who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching contribution up 
to 2% to their 457. 

- Employees in their second year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 3% to their 457. 

- Employees in their third year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 4% to their 457. 

- Employees in their fourth year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 5% to their 457. 

Medical/Dental/Vision/Life Insurance Plan 
The Town provides health, dental, vision and life insurance coverage for all eligible employees effective 
the first day of the month following 30 days of employment eligibility. Details about these coverage's 
are outlined in the summary plan information provided to each employee upon hire. 

Dependents of the employees can obtain health, dental and vision coverage under the same group plan 
for a reasonable employee contribution. The dependent cost for coverage will be deducted from the 
employee's biweekly paycheck. 

Specific information regarding the health/dental/vision plan is available at www.cebt.org and from the 
Human Resources department. 

Dependent Eligibility 
A dependent is eligible to be covered on the later of: 

1. The date the employee is covered; 
2. The date of the employee's marriage for a dependent acquired on that date. 
3. The child's date of birth 
4. The date a court order places a child in the employee's home. The child must be under the 

employee's legal guardianship 
5. The date a child is legally adopted 
6. The date a valid court order is issued which requires the plan to provide coverage 
7. For a Civil Union partner, the date you meet the definition of dependent as stated in the plan 

Dependents may only be covered if the employee is covered. Late enrollment may result in a delay of 
coverage. 

Changes in Eligibility / COBRA Coverage 

Employees must notify Human Resources immediately regarding ANY CHANGE IN ELIGIBILITY. 
Qualifying events include: 

• Marriage, divorce, or legal separation 
• Death of any dependent 

February 20154 Page 17 

• Employees in their first year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 1% to their 457. 

• Employees in their second year of employment who contribute to the 401K wilt receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 3% to their 457. 

• Employees in their third year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 5% to their 457 . 

• __ Employees in their fourth year of employment who contribute to the 401K wilt receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 9% to their 457. 

PLAN B: Employees that are eligible for 457 as of or after April 1. 2008 will receive the following 
match; 

• Employees in their first year of who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching contribution up 
to 2% to their 457. 

• Employees in their second year of employment who contribute to the 40lK will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 3% to their 457. 

• Employees in their third year of employment who contribute to the 401K will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 4% to their 457. 

• Employees in their fourth year of employment who contribute to the 40lK will receive an equal matching 
contribution up to 5% to their 457. 

Medical/Dental/Vision/life Insurance Plan 
The Town provides health, dental, vision and life insurance coverage for all eligible employees effective 
the first day of the month following 30 days of employment eligibilit y. Details about these coverage's 
are outlined in the summary plan information provided to each employee upon hire. 

Dependents of the employees can obtain health, dental and vision coverage under the same group plan 
for a reasonable employee contribution. The dependent cost for coverage will be deducted from the 
employee's biweekly paycheck. 

Specific information regarding the health/dental/vision plan is avaitable at www.cebt. org andfromthe 
Human Resources department. 

Dependent Eligibility 
A dependent is eligible to be covered on the later of: 

1. The date the employee is covered; 
2. The date of the employee's marriage for a dependent acquired on that date. 
3. The child's date of birth 
4. The date a court order places a child in the employee's home. The child must be under the 

employee's legal guardianship 
S. The date a child is legally adopted 
6. The date a va lid court order is issued which requires the plan to provide coverage 
7. For a Civil Union partner, the date you meet the definition of dependent as stated in the plan 

Dependents may only be covered if the employee is covered. Late enrollment may result in a delay of 
coverage. 

Changes in Eligibility / COBRA Coverage 
Employees must notify Human Resources immediately regarding ANY CHANGE IN ELIGIBILITY. 
Qualifying events include: 

• Marriage, divorce, or legal separation 

• Death of any dependent 

February 201.5.4 Page 17 

186



• Birth or adoption of a child 

• Total disability 

• Retirement 
• Medicare eligibility 
• Attainment of maximum age of the employee's dependent child. 

Failure to inform Human Resources of a qualifying event may result in a dependent being uninsured. 
Qualifying events allow dependents to remain on our plan by electing COBRA coverage. 

Coverage under COBRA for an employee and dependents may be elected for up to 18 to 36 months 
depending on the nature ofthe qualifying event. Please contact Human Resources with any questions 
you may have regarding COBRA coverage. 

Upon termination of employment, all medical benefits will cease at the end of the month unless the 
employee elects to continue their coverage at their own expense under COBRA, for up to 18 months. 
Termination of continued coverage will occur if: 

• The employee becomes covered under another group health plan, 
• The employee becomes eligible for Medicare, or 
• The employee fails to pay the monthly coverage premium. 

Flexible Spending Plans 
The Town offers eligible employees the opportunity to participate in flexible spending plans. Employees 
become eligible to participate in the plans on the first day of the month following thirty days of 
employment eligibility. _These plans enable participants to pay health care and dependent care 
expenses with pre-tax dollars rather than after-tax dollars. The plans require advance annual enrollment 
and money not used during the period specified in the plan document is forfeited. _Open enrollment is 
in November/December each year for the following year.,. 

The Town currently offers three Flexible Spending (Section 125) Plans: 
Premium Only Plan 
This salary reduction plan converts employee premiums for health and/or dental benefits from an after
tax to a pre-tax basis. Employees who pay for health premiums are automatically included in this Plan, 
unless an employee specifically requests to be omitted from the Plan. 

Health Plan 
This plan allows employees to designate a portion of their income, up to a maximum amount allowed 
per year, to be placed into their flexible spending account. This money can be used to pay for medical 
expenses, such as dental care, vision care, coinsurance, deductibles, and over-the-counter and 
prescription drugs that are not covered by other insurance. 

Dependent Care Plan 
This plan allows employees to designate a portion of their income, up to a maximum amount allowed 
per year, to be placed into their flexible spending account. This money can be used to pay for eligible 
child or eldercare expenses. 

In the event the above information conflicts with the actual terms and conditions of coverage, the latter 
governs. For more information, please refer to the Summary Plan Description, or contact Human 
Resources. 

February 20 1.5.4 Page 18 

• Birth or adoption of a ch ild 

• Total disability 
+ Retirement 
+ Medicare eligibility 
• Attainment of maximum age of the employee's dependent child. 

Failu re to inform Human Resources of a qualifying event may result in a dependent being uninsured. 
Qualifying events allow dependents to remain on our plan by electing COBRA coverage. 

Coverage under COBRA for an employee and dependents may be elected for up to 18 to 36 months 
depending on the nature of the qualifying event . Please contact Human Resources w ith any questions 
you may have regarding COBRA coverage. 

Upon termination of employment, all medical benefits wil l cease at the end of the month unless the 
employee elects to continue their coverage at their own expense under COBRA, for up to 18 months, 
Termination of continued coverage will occur if: 

• The employee becomes covered under another group health plan, 
• The employee becomes eligible for Medicare, or 
• The employee fails to pay the monthly coverage premium. 

Flexible Spending Plans 
The Town offers eligible employees the opportunity to participate in flexible spending plans. Employees 
become eligible to partir.ipate in the plans on the first day of the month following thirty days of 
employment eligibility. _These plans enable participants to pay health care and dependent care 
expenses with pre-tax dollars rather than after-tax dollars. The plans require advance annual enrollment 
and money not used during the period specified in the plan document is forfeited. _Open enrollment is 
in November/December each year for t he following vea,~ 

The Town currently offers three Flexible Spending (Section 125) Plans: 
Premium Only Plan 
This salary reduction plan converts employee premiums for health and/or dental benefits from an after
tax to a pre-tax basis. Employees who pay for health premiums are automaticallv included in this Plan, 
unless an employee specif ical ly requests to be omitted from the Plan. 

Health Plan 
This plan allows employees to designate a portion of their income, up to a maximum amount allowed 
per year, to be placed into their flexible spending account. This money can be used to pay for medical 
expenses, such as dental care, vision care, coinsurance, deductibles, and over-the-counter and 
prescription drugs that are not covered by other insurance. 

Dependent Care Plan 
This plan allows employees to designate a portion of their income, up to a maximum amount allowed 
per year, to be placed into their flexible spending account. This money can be used ta pay far eligible 
child or eldercare expenses, 

In the event the above information conflicts with the actual terms and conditions of coverage, the latter 
governs. Far more information, please refer to the Summary Plan Description, ar contact Human 
Resources. 

187



Paid Time-Off (PTO) 
The Town strives to provide equity, consistency, and flexibility in the delivery of benefit alternatives to 
Town employees. Where appropriate, certain benefits have also been designed to incorporate 
employee tenure to recognize and reward long-term service to the Town. All eligible employees accrue 
PTO based on the schedule as set forth below, not including overtime and leaves of absence. 
It is the policy of the Town to provide employees necessary time away from work. This policy is 
implemented by means of the PTO plan, which covers all paid PTO previously available under the Town's 
PTO and PTO policies. 

PTO can be utilized for any purpose, subject only to necessary request/ approval procedures consistent 
with the Town of Mountain Village Employee Handbook. 

PTO Accrual - Plan A (Employees hired eligible prior to November 3, 2013 .-

Years of Annual Accrual Rate Hourly Accrual Maximum 
PTO Payout Cap 

SeMGeEligibilit~ (hours) Rate Bankable Hours 

0- 1.99 years 192 0.0923 384 120 

2.0 - 2.99 years 208 0.1 416 152 

3.0 - 3.99 years 216 0.1038 432 184 

4.0 - 4.99 years 224 0.1076 448 216 

5.0 - 5.99 years 232 0.1115 464 224 

6.0 - 6.99 years 240 0.1153 480 280 

7.0 -7.99 years 248 0.1192 496 340 

8.0 - 8.99 years 256 0.123 512 340 

9.0 - 9.99 years 264 0.1269 528 340 

10.0 -10.99 years 272 0.1307 544 400 

11.0 -11.99 years 280 0.1346 560 400 

12.0 - 12.99 years 288 0.1384 576 400 

13.0 -13.99 years 296 0.1423 592 400 

14.0 - 14.99 years 304 0.1461 608 400 

15.0 - 15.99 years 312 0.15 624 460 

16.0 -16.99 years 320 0.1538 640 460 

17.0 -17.99 years 328 0.1576 656 460 

18.0 - 18.99 years 336 0.1615 672 460 

February 201 54 Page 19 

Paid Time-Off (PTO) 
The Town strives to provide equity, consistency, and flexibility in the delivery of benefit alternat ives to 
Town employees. Where appropriate, certain benefits have also been designed to incorporate 
employee tenure to recognize and reward long-term service to the Town. All eligible employees accrue 
PTO based on the schedule as set forth below, not including overtime and leaves of absence. 
It is the policy of the Town to provide employees necessary t ime away from work. This policy is 
implemented by means of the PTO plan, which covers all paid PTO previously available under the Town's 
PTO and PTO policies. 

PTO can be utilized for any purpose, subject on ly to necessary request/ approva l procedures consistent 
with t he Town of Mountain Village Employee Handbook. 

PTO Accrual - Plan A (Employees Ili,e~ eligible prior to November 3, 2013 . 

Years of Annual Accrual Rate Hourly Accrual Maximum 
PTO Payout Cap 

~Eliglbilitll (hours) Rate Bankable Hours 

0- 1.99 years 192 0.0923 384 120 

2.0 - 2.99 years 208 0.1 416 152 

3.0 - 3.99 years 216 0.1038 432 184 

4.0 - 4.99 years 224 0.1076 448 216 

5.0 - 5.99 years 232 0.1115 464 224 

6.0 - 6.99 years 240 0.1153 480 280 

7.0-7.99 years 248 0.1192 496 340 

8.0 - 8.99 years 256 0.123 512 340 

9.0 - 9.99 years 264 0.1269 528 340 

10.0 -10.99 years 272 0.1307 544 400 

11.0 -11.99 years 280 0.1346 560 400 

12.0 - 12.99 years 288 0.1384 576 400 

13.0 - 13.99 years 296 0.1423 592 400 

14.0 -14.99 years 304 0.1461 608 400 

15.0 - 15.99 years 312 0.15 624 460 

16.0 -16.99 years 320 0.1538 640 460 

17.0 - 17.99 years 328 0.1576 656 460 

18.0 - 18.99 years 336 0.1615 672 460 

February 2015.4 Page 19 

188



19.0 -19.99 years 344 0.1653 688 460 

~ 20 years 352 0.1692 704 520 

PTO Accrual - Plan B (Employees hireli eligible on November 3, 2013 or later) 
Years of Annual Accrual Rate Hourly Accrual Maximum 

PTO Payout Cap 
SeA46eEligibilitv (hours) Rate Bankable Hours 

0-1.99 years 192 0.0923 384 124.8 

2.0 - 2.99 years 208 0.1 416 129.6 

3.0 - 3.99 years 216 0.1038 432 134.4 

4.0 - 4.99 years 224 0.1076 448 139.2 
5.0 - 5.99 years 232 0.1115 464 144 

6.0 - 6.99 years 240 0.1153 480 146.4 
7.0 -7.99 years 248 0.1192 488 148.8 

8.0 - 8.99 years 256 0.123 496 151.2 

9.0 - 9.99 years 264 0.1269 504 153.6 

10.0 -10.99 years 272 0.1307 512 156 

11.0 -11.99 years 280 0.1346 520 158.4 

12.0 -12.99 years 288 0.1384 528 160.8 

13.0 -13.99 years 296 0.1423 536 160.8 

14.0 -14.99 years 304 0.1461 536 160.8 

15.0 -15.99 years 312 0.15 536 160.8 

16.0 - 16.99 years 320 0.1538 536 160.8 

17.0 -17.99 years 328 0.1576 536 160.8 

18.0 -18.99 years 336 0.1615 536 160.8 

19.0 - 19.99 years 344 0.1653 536 160.8 

~ 20 years 352 0.1692 536 160.8 
Use o/PTO 

• PTO is accrued on a per hour basis up to 80 hours and may be used subsequent to the 
payroll in which it was earned. 

• PTO time is available for an employee's absence due to a minor illness or injury. In the 
event an employee is absent for more than three days or in cases of excessive absenteeism, 
medical certification from a healthcare provider must be provided by the employee if 
requested by the employee's supervisor or Department Head. The Department Head may 
also require certification from a physician that the employee is capable of returning to work. 
(See FMLA) 

• PTO will continue to accrue up to the Maximum Bankable Hours listed above but only the 
number of hours set forth below will be paid out at termination: 

• Non-scheduled use must be requested prior to the beginning of a shift or per departmental 
practices. Non-scheduled PTO requests may be denied depending on staffing needs. 

February 20154 Page 20 

19.0 -19.99 years 344 0.1653 688 460 

»- 20 years 352 0.1692 704 520 

PTO Accrual - Plan B (Employees hi,eo! eligible on November 3, 2013 or later) 
Years of Annual Accrual Rate Hourly Accrual Maximum 

PTO Payout Cap 
~EII!dblllty (hours) Rate Bankable Hours 

0- 1.99 years 192 0.0923 384 124,8 

2.0 - 2.99 years 208 0,1 416 129,6 

3.0 - 3.99 yea rs 216 0.1038 432 134,4 

4.0 - 4.99 years 224 0.1076 448 139.2 

5.0 - 5.99 years 232 0.1115 464 144 

6.0 -6.99 years 240 0.1153 480 146.4 

7.0-7.99 years 248 0.1192 488 148.8 

8.0 - 8.99 years 256 0.123 496 151.2 

9.0 - 9.99 years 264 0.1269 504 153.6 

10.0 -10.99 years 272 0.1307 512 156 

11.0 - 11.99 years 280 0.1346 520 158,4 

12.0 -12.99 years 288 0.1384 528 160.8 

13.0 -13.99 years 296 0.1423 536 160,8 

14.0 - 14.99 years 304 0.1461 536 160.8 

15.0 -15.99 years 312 0.15 536 160,8 

16.0 - 16.99 years 320 0.1538 536 160,8 

17.0 -17.99 years 328 0.1576 536 160,8 

18.0 - 18.99 years 336 0.1615 536 160.8 

19.0 -19.99 years 344 0. 1653 536 160.8 

»- 20 yea rs 352 0.1692 536 160,8 

Use a/PTO 

• PTO is accrued on a per hour basis up to 80 hours and may be used subsequent to the 
payroll in which it was earned. 

• PTO time is available for an employee's absence due to a minor illness or injury. tn the 
event an employee is absent for more than three days or in cases of excessive absenteeism, 
medical certification from a healthcare provider must be provided by the employee if 
requested by the employee's supervisor or Department Head. The Department Head may 
also require certification from a physicia n that the employee is capable of return ing to work. 
(See FMLAI 

• PTO w ill continue to accrue up to the Maximum Bankable Hours listed above but on ly the 
number of hours set forth be low will be pa id out at termination: 

• Non-scheduled use must be requested prior to the beginning of a shift or per departmental 
practices. Non-scheduled PTO requests may be denied depending on staffing needs. 

February 2015:4 Page 20 

• 

189



• Employees receiving Workers Compensation may use accrued PTO hours to return to 100% of 
their net salary. 

• An employee taking an unpaid leave of absence must use all accrued PTO hours before 
beginning the unpaid leave. 

• Supervisors have the authority to encourage and/or deny use of PTO during critical times. 

Termination Benefits 
Upon termination of employment with the Town, PTO will be paid at the employee's hourly wage based 
upon the PTO Payout Caps listed above. 
Termination pay cannot be used to extend the employee's date of termination beyond the last 
scheduled workday. 

Donated PTO Policy 
The intent of this section is to allow for the transfer of accrued PTO from one employee to the paid time 
off account of another employee who has a need for additional paid PTO because he/she has exhausted 
all paid PTO. The donation of accumulated PTO can be done only on a dollar for dollar basis. The 
employee requesting donated PTO shall submit a request to Human Resources authorized by the 
recipient's Department Head. PTO may be donated to all employees including seasonal and part-time 
employees subject to all terms and conditions contained in this policy. 

Employees may also contribute to a Donation Bank. All employees may be eligible recipients of the 
Donation Bank. Requests for PTO donations from the bank must be submitted to Human Resources. 
Donations must be approved by the department directors/supervisors. 

The Town Manager reserves the right to determine eligibility for donation transfer on a case-by-case 
basis. Exercise ofthe donation policy shall not establish precedent or practice and shall not be subject 
to the grievance procedure. 

Donated PTO Terms and Conditions 
1. Donations may be from accrued PTO and will be credited to the recipient's PTO account. Donations will 

be subject to policies that govern the PTO policy. 
2. The recipient must first use all accrued PTO before being eligible to receive donated PTO. 
3. Employees receiving worker's compensation, disability, or other similar benefits are not eligible to receive 

donated PTO. 
4. Any donation of PTO must be at least four hours and not more than forty hours per year from anyone 

donor to anyone employee unless approved by the Town Manager. Department Directors/Supervisors 
must authorize the donation of PTO to their employees. 

5. The donor must maintain at least 40 hours of PTO in their own account. 
6. The donated PTO will be transferred at the donor's pay rate and used at the recipients pay rate. 
7. Donations may be made retroactively, but no more than sixty days retroactively . 
8. Names of donors and recipients will not be revealed unless the donors and recipients choose to do so in 

writing. 
9. Employees are only eligible to receive donated PTO for normal work hours lost. 
10. Employees will be allowed to receive up to 480 hours of donated PTO annually. Any donation of PTO 

must be approved by the recipient's Department Head/Supervisor. 
11. Donated PTO hours do not qualify for cash payout upon termination. 

Unpaid Time Off 

February 2015.4 Page 21 

• Employees receiving Workers Compensation may use accrued PTO hours to return to 100% of 
their net salary. 

• An employee taking an unpaid leave of absence must use all accrued PTO hours before 
beginning the unpaid leave. 

• Supervisors have the authority to encourage and/or deny use of PTO during critical times. 

Termination Benefits 
Upon terminat ion of employment with the Town, PTO will be paid at the employee's hourly wage based 
upon the PTO Payout Caps listed above. 
Termination pay cannot be used to extend the employee's date of termination beyond the last 
scheduled workday. 

Donated PTO Policy 
The intent of t his section is to allow for the transfer of accrued PTO from one employee to the paid t ime 
off account of another employee who has a need for additional paid PTO because he/she has exhausted 
all paid PTO. The donation of accumulated PTO can be done only on a dollar for dollar basis. The 
employee requesting donated PTO sha ll submit a request to Human Resources authorized by the 
recipient's Department Head. PTO may be donated to all employees including seasonal and part· time 
employees subject to all terms and conditions contained in this policy . 

Employees may also contribute to a Donation Bank. All employees may be eligible recipients of t he 
Donation Bank. Requests for PTO donations from the bank must be submitted to Human Resources. 
Donations must be approved by the department directors/supervisors. 

The Town Manager reserves the right to determ ine eligibilit y for donat ion transfer on a case-by-case 
basis. Exercise of the donation pol icy shalt not establish precedent or practice and shall not be subject 
to the grievance procedure. 

Donated PTO Terms and Conditions 
1. Donations may be from accrued PTO and will be credited to the recipient's PTO account. Donations will 

be subject to policies that govern the PTQ policy. 
2. The recipient must first use all accrued PTO before being eligible to receive donated PTO. 
3. Employees receiving worker's compensation, disability, or other similar benefits are not eligible to receive 

donated PTa. 
4. Any donation of PTa must be at least four hours and not more than forty hours per year from anyone 

donor to anyone employee unless approved by the Town Manager. Department Directors/Supervisors 
must authorize the donation of PTa to their employees. 

5. The donor must maintain at least 40 hours of PTa in their own account. 
6. The donated PTa will be transferred at the donor's pay rate and used at the recipients pay rate. 
1. Donations may be made retroactively, but no more than sixty days retroactively. 
8. Names of donors and recipients will not be revealed unless the donors and recipients choose to do so in 

writing. 
9. Employees are only eligible to receive donated PTa for normal work hours lost. 
10. Employees w ill be allowed to receive up to 480 hours of donated PTa annually. Any donation of PTa 

must be approved by the recipient's Department Head/Supervisor. 
11. Donated PTa hours do not qualify for cash payout upon termination. 

Unpaid Time Off 

February 201 .5.4 Page 21 

190



Employees may, with their supervisor's approval, take unpaid time off from work; however, employees 
are required to exhaust all PTa first. During these brief periods of time the Town will continue to 
provide employee insurance benefits for Group I & II employees with the understanding that the 
employee will return to work at a predetermined scheduled time. However, the employee must make 
arrangements to make payments for any dependent coverage cost he/she may be carrying when 
payment by payroll deduction is not possible. If the employee fails to return to work following unpaid 
time off, the employee will be held responsible for repayment of all benefit costs incurred by the Town 
during the employee's absence. The employee will not accrue PTa during unpaid time off since PTO is 
based upon hours worked. 

G PEiiA. 
PERA Short Term Disability (STD) (all employees except Police) 

Colorado PERA members with five or more years of earned service credit are covered by short term 
disability (STD) insurance and a disability retirement benefit. STD may provide reasonable income after 
you have been unable to work for 60 days. STD lasts a maximum of 22 months. The maximum income 
is 60% of your pre-disability earnings. www.copera.org 

llleStandard" Group Long Term Disability Insurance (LTD) 
At no cost to the employee, full time/year round employees (group 1, 2, 6 & 7) are automatically 
enrolled into the Town of Mountain Village Group long Term Disability Insurance Program. This 
program provides employees with income protection if they are unable to work more than 90 days due 
to illness, physical disease, injury, pregnancy or mental disorder. 

Ski Passes and Skiing Privileges (except Group 5 employees) 
Employees are eligible for a discounted ski pass. All ski passes are a taxable benefit. 

All passes are for use by employees ONLY. For those who are new to the mountain, the fastest way to 
lose your ski privilege is to sell, loan or give away your ski passes. Misuse or abuse of ski passes is closely 
monitored. Selling, loaning or giving away either your Season pass or the Day Passes is against the law. 
This type of ski pass misuse is called tlTheft of Skier Services". For your own protection, you should 
know that selling, loaning or giving away a Day Pass is a Class III Misdemeanor punishable by six months 
in prison and up to a $500.00 fine. Selling, loaning or giving away a Season Pass is a Class IV Felony Theft 
carrying a maximum penalty of up to six years in prison and a minimum fine of $2,000.00. In addition to 
these penalties other additional disciplinary actions may also occur. 
Discounted Spa Memberships at the Peaks Resort 
All full time, year round employees are eligible for an annual spa membership at a reduced rate through 
biweekly payroll deductions. Contact Human Resources for more information. 

Employer Assisted Housing Program 
An employee may be eligible for housing assistance towards the purchase of a home in Mountain Village 
depending on the Town's available funding. Contact Human Resources for more information. 

Unemployment Insurance 
The Town contributes a percentage of employee's wages to the state to provide unemployment benefits 
if an employee becomes unemployed through no fault of their own. Eligibility for benefits is an 
individual determination made by the appropriate state agency. 

February 20154 Page 22 

Employees may, with their supervisor's approval, take unpaid time off from work; however, employees 
are required to exhaust all PTO first. During these brief periods of time the Town will continue to 
provide employee insurance benefits for Group I & II employees with the understanding that the 
employee will return to work at a predetermined scheduled t ime. However, the employee must make 
arrangements to make payments for any dependent coverage cost he/she may be carrying when 
payment by payroll deduction is not possible. If the employee fails to return to work following unpaid 
time off, the employee will be held responsible for repayment of all benefit costs incurred by the Town 
during the employee's absence. The employee w ill not accrue PTa during unpaid time off since PTa is 
based upon hours worked. 

G P'EM. 
PERA Short Term Disability (STD) (all employees except Police) 

Colorado PERA members with five or more years of earned selVice credit are covered by short term 
disability (STO) insurance and a disability retirement benefit. STO may provide reasonable income after 
you have been unable to work for 60 days. STO lasts a maximum of 22 months. The maximum income 
is 60% of your pre-disability earnings. www.copera.org 

TheSta1dartf Group Long Term Disability Insurance (LTD) 
At no cost to the employee, full time/year round employees (group I, 2, 6 & 7) are automatically 
enrolled into the Town of Mountain Village Group long Term Disability Insurance Program. This 
program provides employees with income protection if they are unable to work more than 90 days due 
to illness, physical disease, injury. pregnancy or mental disorder. 

Ski Passes and Skiing Privileges (except Group 5 employees) 
Employees are eligible for a discounted ski pass. All ski passes are a taxable benefit. 

All passes are for use by employees ONLY. For those who are new to the mountain, the fastest way to 
lose your ski privilege is to sell, loan or give away your ski passes. Misuse or abuse of ski passes is closely 
monitored . Selling, loaning or giving away either your Season pass or the Day Passes is against the law. 
This type of ski pass misuse is called "Theft of Skier Services". For your own protection, you should 
know that selling, loaning or giving away a Day Pass is a Ctass III Misdemeanor punishable by six months 
in prison and up to a $500.00 fine. Selling, loaning or giving away a Season Pass is a Class IV Felony Theft 
carrying a maximum penalty of up to six years in prison and a minimum fine of $2,000.00. In addition to 
these penalties other additional disciplinary actions may also occur. 
Discounted Spa Memberships at the Peaks Resort 
All full time, year round employees are el igible for an annual spa membership at a reduced rate through 
biweekly payroll deductions. Contact Human Resources for more information. 

Employer Assisted Housing Program 
An employee may be eligible for housing assistance towards the purchase of a home in Mountain Village 
depending on the Town's available funding. Contact Human Resources for more information. 

Unemployment Insurance 
The Town contributes a percentage of employee's wages to the state to provide unemployment benefits 
if an employee becomes unemployed through no fault of their own. Eligibility for benefits is an 
individual determination made by the appropriate state agency. 

February 20154 Page 22 

191



PAY 
This section of your handbook explains how payroll is administered, defines Employee Classification 
Groups, outlines Employee Benefits and explains Eligibility. 

Employee Information Changes 
Employees are required to contact the Human Resource Department if changes occur in the following 
information: 

• Marital status 
• Dependent insurance coverage information 
• W-4 or 401(k) contribution 
• Address, telephone or other contact information 
• Driver's license or identification renewal 
• Completion of education, credential or training program 

• Beneficiary changes 
• Bank information for direct deposit 

In some cases, your insurance eligibility or other dependent coverage options may be affected by 
inaccurate information. 

Garnishments and Attachments 
By court action, a creditor may require the Town to withhold a certain percentage of your pay. If 
garnishments or similar proceedings are instituted against an employee, the Town will deduct the 
required amount from the employee's paycheck. Garnishment actions are conducted in compliance 
with appropriate federal and state laws. 

Holiday Pay Dates 
It is the policy of the Town to provide employees with certain holiday pay dates. Employees must work 
their regularly scheduled shift prior to and after the holiday to be eligible for the holiday pay rate. All 
non-exempt employees ofthe Town shall receive time and one half ifthey work on the following 
designated official holiday pay dates: . 

Holiday 
New Year's Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 

If an employee does not work on a holiday pay date they must use PTO if they want to be compensated 
for that day. 

Compensation and Calculation of Holiday Pay 
When a non-exempt employee is scheduled to work an official holiday pay date, the employee shall be 
paid time and one-half for the hours worked. (i.e. An employee that makes $1O.00/hr will be paid 
$15.00/hr for working a designated holiday pay date). If overtime is worked on a holiday over forty 

February 20154 Page 23 

PAY 
This section of your handbook explains how payroll is administered, defines Employee Classification 
Groups, outlines Employee Benefits and explains Eligibility. 

Employee Information Changes 
Employees are required to contact the Human Resource Department if changes occur in the following 
information: 

• Marital status 
• Dependent insurance coverage information 

• W-4 or 401(k) contribution 
• Address, telephone or other contact information 
• Driver's license or identification renewal 

• Completion of education, credential or training program 

• Beneficiary changes 
• Bank information for direct deposit 

In some cases, your insurance eligibitity or other dependent coverage options may be affected by 
inaccurate information. 

Garnishments and Attachments 
By court action, a creditor may require the Town to withhold a certain percentage of your pay. If 
garnishments or similar proceedings are instituted against an employee, the Town will deduct the 
required amount from the employee's paycheck. Garnishment actions are conducted in compliance 
with appropriate federal and state laws. 

Holiday Pay Oates 
It is the policy of the Town to provide employees with certain holiday pay dates. Employees must work 
their regularly scheduled shift prior to and after the holiday to be eligible fo r the holiday pay rate. All 
non-exempt employees of the Town shall receive time and one half if they work on the following 
designated official holiday p~y dates: 

Holiday 
New Year's Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 

If an employee does not work on a holiday pay date they must use PTO if they want to be compensated 
for that day. 

Compensation ond Calculation of Holiday Pay 
When a non-exempt employee is scheduled to work an official holiday pay date, the employee shall be 
paid time and one-half for the hours worked. (I.e. An employee that makes S10.00thr will be paid 
SlS.DOthr for working a deSignated holiday pay date). If overtime is worked on a holiday over forty 

February 2015.4 Page 23 

192



hours, the overtime hours will be paid at 2.25 times the regular pay rate (Le. if an employee that makes 

$10/hr works 36 hours of regular time, and 8 hours on a holiday pay date he/she will be paid $15/hour 

for 4 hours and $22.50 for the 4 overtime hours). Pre-approval by the Town manager is required for 
exempt employees to receive holiday pay. 

When a I'lolice Elel'lartment eml'lloyee is scl:leduled to work a holiday pay date, the emplo't'ee will be paid 

time and one half for the hours worked and will also ee reEfuired to take an eEjl:Ji'Jalent amount of PTO 

t ime (effectively getting paid 2.5 times their regu lar rate). The policy for overtime worked on a holida't' 

f'}ay date as stated above will also apply to non exempt employees of tAe police department. 

Wst=/(;AfI eA Q helld6y must be PUFSU9At ~ " l'6f1ulBr wet=/( sGhedule 9r 9utheri~ed by the Oep"rtmeAt 
J.#eQ(// Sflpervff&lH. 

Lost Paychecks 
Employees are responsible for their paychecks once they have been received from the supervisor. If an 

employee loses a check, they should immediately notify their supervisor. Employees should not expect 

to receive their replacement paycheck until five working days after a check has been reported lost. This 

delay is due to the amount of time required to stop payment on one check and to issue a new one. 

ON CALL DUTY & ON CALL PAY (except police) 

The safety sensitive and customer service nature of many of our departments dictates the need for 

twenty-four hour, seven-day coverage. These departments operate fully staffed during normal business 
hours and require coverage by "On Call" personnel after hours, on holidays and weekends. The term 

"On Call" means that an employee carries an electronic communication device (Le.: cellular phone, 
pager or radio) and responds to whatever calls may come in after hours. This response is made first by 

phone and, if necessary, secondly by going into work and physically addressing whatever the problem 

might be. In- instances where calls come in reporting severe or emergency conditions, an employee 
should contact their supervisor and report as to the condition. Supervisors should discuss with 

employees the types of situations constituting a severe or emergency condition, for which the 

Supervisor should be contacted. 

Exempt (salaried) personnel performing "On Call" duties are not eligible for additional compensation for 

time spent being "On Call", for being called out or for overtime in accordance with applicable federal 
wage and salary guidelines. 

Eligible non-exempt (hourly) employees performing "On Call" duties are eligible for additional 

compensation for being "On Call", for being called out and for overtime hours (hours spent over their 

normal 40 hour work week). Non-exempt employees will be compensated in the following manner and 
at the following rates: 

"On Call" Pay for non-exempt employees 
Departments with 7 day week coverage 

$10.00 per day for after hour on call duty 

Departments with 5 day week coverage 

-$10.00 per day for after hour on call duty on days the employee is regularly scheduled to work. 

-$25.00 per day on days the employee is not regularly scheduled to work and there is no day time 

coverage, and when the employee is required to respond 24 hours a day 

February 20154 Page 24 

hours, the overtime hours will be paid at 2.25 t imes the regular pay rate (i.e . if an employee that makes 
$lO/hr works 36 hours of regular t ime, and 8 hours on a holiday pay date he/she will be pa id $15/hour 
for 4 hours and $22.50 for the 4 overtime hours). Pre-approval by the Town manager is required for 
exempt employees to receive holiday pay. 

WheR iii f3eJiee-depaFtmeAt empl9ree is SEhedwled te work a hal/dar pa'f date. tt.e empl()l(ee will be paid 
Wne-iifld ORe ha~f..feF-t~A9-wm also be required to take aA-eql:tiYalefl~ 
time-{e.ffeetiYeiv gett iFlg-pa~~laHatel. The polley for oyertifl-le w&r~~~ 
par date as stated aoove-will-a~so applr to non elCemf3t empleyees of the pa llEe depaftmeA'" 
W&RfIn, fM (I ~e44I"" my" be pw,esWQ,.t to "14911"" wo,k uhelhlle ot' ",,'hrlmell bV 'he l)epllrtmeflt 
IrIflQfJ/Sw"eAlj&o'; 

Lost Paychecks 
Employees are responsible for their paychecks once they have been received from the supervisor. If an 
employee loses a check, they should immediately notify their supervisor. Employees should not expect 
to receive their replacement paycheck until five working days after a check has been reported lost. This 
delay is due to the amount of time required to stop payment on one check and to issue a new one. 

ON CAll DUTY & ON CAll PAY (except police) 
The safety sensitive and customer service nature of many of our departments dictates the need for 
twenty-four hour, seven-day coverage. These departments operate fully staffed during normal business 
hours and require coverage by "On Call" personnel after hours, on holidays and weekends. The term 
"On Call" means that an employee carries an electronic communication device (I.e.: cellular phone, 
pager or radio) and responds to whatever calls may come in after hours. This response is made first by 
phone and, if necessary, secondly by going into work and physically addressing whatever the problem 
might be. In instances where calls come in reporting severe or emergency conditions, an employee 
should contact their supervisor and report as to the condition. Supervisors should discuss with 
employees the types of situations constituting a severe or emergency condition, for which the 
Supervisor should be contacted. 

Exempt (salaried) personnel performing "On Call" duties are not eligible for additional compensation for 
time spent being "On Call", for being called out or for overtime in accordance with applicable federal 
wage and salary gUidelines. 

Eligible non-exempt (hourly) employees performing "On Call" duties are eligible for additional 
compensation for being "On Call", for being called out and for overtime hours (hours spent over their 
normal 40 hour work week) . Non-exempt employees will be compensated in the following manner and 
at the following rates: 

"On Call" Pay for non-exempt employees 
Departments with 7 day week coverage 
$10.00 per day for after hour on call duty 

Departments with 5 day week coverage 
-$10.00 per day for after hour on call duty on days the employee is regularly scheduled to work. 
-$25.00 per day on days the employee is not regularly scheduled to work and there is no day time 
coverage, and when the employee is required to respond 24 hours a day 

193



"Call Out" Pay for non-exempt employees 
"Call Out" pay for non-exempt employees is paid at the regular hourly rate up to 40 hours per week. 
Employees will be paid at 1 Yz times the regular hourly rate over 40 hours per week. 

On Coli Staffing: 
The "On Call" schedule for each department may be staffed by management personnel, supervisory 
personnel or hourly personnel at the discretion of the department manager/supervisor. 
OVERTIME COMPENSATION 
From time to time, employees may be required to work overtime. In these instances, employees are 
given as much advance notice as practical. Non-exempt employees are paid at the rate of one and one
half times their regular rate for hours worked in excess of 40 during the established workweek. For 
purposes of calculating overtime, only hours actually worked are counted. 

Town employees may elect, at their own discretion, to work in jobs outside their regular duties and 
departments without incurring overtime. The extra work must be completely separate from their 
regular job and must be very occasional. There is no set number of hours for these sporadic 
assignments, however, they should be relatively minimal. 

Non-exempt (Hourly) Employees 
All non-exempt employees (employees paid on an hourly basis), with the exception of Police Officers, 
will be compensated at an overtime rate of one and one-half times their regular rate for all hours 
worked in excess of 40 hours per week. A week is defined as Sunday through Saturday. Time paid but 
not worked (Le. PTa and/or jury duty) will not be counted as hours in calculating weekly overtime. All 
overtime must be pre-authorized by a supervisor. 

Exempt (Salaried) Employees 
Exempt employees are not subject to overtime provisions. No overtime will be paid for hours worked in 
excess of 40 hours per week. 

Compensatory time may be granted for extra hours worked under certain circumstances, entirely 
through the generosity ofthe Town and only with the pre-approval ofthe direct supervisor and Town 
manager. Approved compensatory time may only be taken during the pay period in which the extra 
time worked is incurred and cannot be carried over to future pay periods. 

Overtime Pay for Police Officers 
Police Officers are paid overtime at a rate of time and one half for hours worked in excess of eighty 
hours per two-week pay period. A two-week pay period for Police Officers is defined as Sunday of one 
week through Saturday of the following week. Time paid but not worked (e.g., PTa, jury duty) will not 
be counted as hours in calculating weekly overtime. All overtime must be pre-authorized by a 
supervisor. 

Pay Period and Paydays 
Employees are paid on a biweekly basis. The pay period runs from Sunday through Saturday. Actual 
paydays are regularly scheduled for the Friday following the close of the pay period the previous 
Saturday. Employees may obtain their paychecks and/or pay statements directly from their supervisor. 
For the employees' convenience, we offer the option of having paychecks automatically deposited to 
bank account(s). Employees that also opt to receive an electronic statement can view/print their direct 
deposit statement via online employee self service. 

February 20154 Page 25 

"Call Out" Pay for non-exempt employees 
"Call Out" pay for non-exempt employees is paid at the regular hourly rate up to 40 hours per week. 
Employees will be paid at 1 J4 times the regular hourly rate over 40 hours per week. 

On Call Staffing: 
The "On Call" schedule for each department may be staffed by management personnel, supervisory 
personnel or hourly personnel at the discretion of the department manager/supervisor. 
OVERTIME COMPENSATION 
From time to time, employees may be required to work overtime. In these instances, employees are 
given as much advance notice as practical. Non-exempt employees are paid at the rate of one and one
half times their regular rate for hours worked in excess of 40 during the established workweek. For 
purposes of calculating overtime, only hours actually worked are counted. 

Town employees may elect, at their own discretion, to work in jobs outside their regular duties and 
departments without incurring overtime. The extra work must be completely separate from their 
regular job and must be very occasional. There is no set number of hours for these sporadic 
assignments, however, they shou ld be relatively minimal. 

Non-exempt (Hourly) Employees 
All non-exempt employees (employees paid on an hourly basis), with the exception of Police Officers, 
will be compensated at an overtime rate of one and one-half times their regular rate for all hours 
worked in excess of 40 hours per week. A week is defined as Sunday th rough Saturday. Time paid but 
not worked (i.e. PTO and/or jury duty) will not be counted as hours in calculating weekly overtime. All 
overtime must be pre-authorized by a supervisor. 

Exempt (Salaried) Employees 
Exempt employees are not subject to overtime provisions, No overtime will be paid for hours worked in 
excess of 40 hours per week. 

Compensatory time may be granted for extra hours worked under certain circumstances, entirely 
through the generosity of the Town and only with the pre-approval of the direct supervisor and Town 
manager. Approved compensatory time may only be taken during the pay period in which the extra 
time worked is incurred and cannot be carried over to future pay periods. 

Overtime Pay for Police Officers 
Police Officers are paid overtime at a rate of time and one half for hours worked in excess of eighty 
hours per two-week pay period. A two-week pay period for Police Officers is defined as Sunday of one 
week through Saturday of the following week. TIme paid but not worked (e.g., PTO, j ury duty) wHl not 
be counted as hours in calculating weekly overtime, All overtime must be pre-authorized by a 
supervisor. 

Pay Period and Paydays 
Employees are paid on a biweekly basis. The pay period runs from Sunday through Saturday, Actua l 
paydays are regu larly scheduled for the Friday following the close of the pay period the previous 
Saturday. Employees may obtain their paychecks and/or pay statements directly from their supervisor. 
For the employees' convenience, we offer the option of having paychecks automatica lly deposited to 
bank account(s) , Employees that also opt to receive an electronic statement can view/print their di rect 
deposit statement via online employee self service. 

194



Payroll Deductions 
Applicable federal and state taxes are withheld from your paycheck each pay period. The law requires 
that a specified amount be withheld for Medicare Tax and Public Employees Retirement Association 
(PERA) benefits. The number of exemptions each employee claims on their W-4 form determines the 
amount of federal and state withholding. 
If you need to increase your federal or state withholding or change the number of exemptions claimed, 
you must initiate the changes online in Ultipro or notify the Human Resources Department and 
complete the required forms. 

Payroll Disruption 
If the Town experiences computer failure or some other complication that could cause disruption of the 
paycheck distribution schedule, the Town will use its best efforts to distribute the paychecks within 
forty-eight (48) hours of the affected payday. 

Time Reporting 
All employees are required to record the hours worked and project tasks via time clock, computer, or 
phone. Time utilized commuting to and from the workplace is not considered hours worked. Scheduled 
time off for any employee must be taken as PTO or unpaid leave. All timesheets must reflect the actual 
hours worked. The accuracy of employee time reporting is the responsibility of the employee. 

The supervisor is responsible for verifying, approving and submitting time records no later than 10 am 
on the Monday prior to payday. If there is a discrepancy between times shown on the time record and 
the employee's paycheck, employees should notify their supervisor immediately. If an employee has 
not recorded their time properly, adjustments may be made to the next paycheck if appropriate. 

Do not punch "In" before starting a shift more than seven minutes before the normal start of that shift. 
For example, if your shift begins at 8:00 a.m., do not punch "In" before 7:53 a.m. unless instructed 
otherwise by your supervisor. 

Punch "Out" as soon as possible following the completion of your shift. Normally, this should not be 
more than seven minutes following the end of your shift, unless you are authorized to work overtime. 

Employees may not punch another person's time card. Employees may not falsify information on time 
cards. Should an employee punch another person's time card by mistake, the employee must notify 
their supervisor immediately. Falsification or tampering with time records or violation of this policy is 
subject to disciplinary action including termination. 

Tips, Commissions or Fees 
The solicitation or acceptance of unauthorized tips, commissions, fees, or items of monetary value from 
guests, representatives, suppliers, or any other source, as compensation for services rendered is 
improper and illegal. (See Code of Ethics Policy) 

TRAVEL & TRAINING COMPENSATION POLICY 
Employee Development 
Employees may be given the opportunity to develop their work capacity so that they can improve and 
extend their contribution to the employer. The department head must approve in advance any 
employee training to determine the value to the employee and Town. 

February 20154 Page 26 

Payroll Deductions 
Applicable federal and state taxes are withheld from your paycheck each pay period. The law requires 
that a specified amount be withheld for Medicare Tax and Public Employees Retirement Association 
(PERA) benefits. The number of exemptions each employee claims on their W-4 form determines the 
amount of federal and state withholding. 
If you need to increase your federal or state withholding or change the number of exemptions claimed, 
you must initiate the changes online in Ultipro or notify the Human Resources Department and 
complete the required forms. 

Payroll Disruption 
If the Town experiences computer failure or some other complication that could cause disruption of the 
paycheck distribution schedule, the Town will use its best efforts to distribute the paychecks within 
forty-eight (48) hours of the affected payday. 

Time Reporting 
All employees are required to record the hours worked and project tasks via time dock, compute r, or 
phone. TIme utilized commuting to and from the workplace is not considered hours worked. Scheduled 
time off for any employee must be taken as PTQ or unpaid leave. All timesheets must reflect the actual 
hours worked. The accuracy of employee time reporting is the responsibility of the employee. 

The supervisor is responsible for verifying, approving and submitting time records no later than 10 am 
on the Monday prior to payday. If t here is a discrepancy between times shown on the time record and 
the employee's paycheck, employees should notify their supervisor immediately. If an employee has 
not recorded their time properly, adjustments may be made to the next paycheck if appropriate. 

Do not punch "In" before starting a shift more than seven minutes before the normal start of that shift. 
For example, if your shift begins at 8:00 a.m., do not punch "In" before 7:53 a.m. unless instructed 
otherwise by your supervisor. 

Punch "Out" as soon as possible following the completion of your sh ift. Normally, this should not be 
more than seven minutes following the end of your shift, unless you are authorized to work overtime. 

Employees may not punch another person's time card. Employees may not falsify information on t ime 
cards. Should an employee punch another person's time ca rd by mistake, the employee must notify 
their supervisor immediately. Falsification or tampering with time record s or violation of this policy is 
subject to disciplinary action including termination . 

Tips, Commissions or Fees 
The solicitation or acceptance of unauthorized tips, commissions, fees, or items of monetary value from 
guests, representatives, supplie rs, or any other source, as compensation for selVices rendered is 
improper and iJlegal. (See Code of Ethics Policy) 

TRAVEL & TRAINING COMPENSATION POLICY 
Employee Development 
Employees may be given the opportunity to develop their work capacity so tha t they can improve and 
extend their contribution to the employer. The department head must approve in advance any 
employee training to determine the va lue to t he employee and Town. 

February 201 5.4 Page 26 

195



A completed Per Diem Travel Expense Form with department head approval is necessary for any 
reimbursement. Cash advances may be allowed if requested at least 48 hours in advance. Expenses for 
alcoholic beverages and personal entertainment are not reimbursable. Mileage for use of a personal 
vehicle is reimbursable at the current IRS rate. Registration fees and/or airfare are generally paid by 
check before the trip. 

TIME OFF 
Absence Requests 
Requests for absence from work must be submitted to the supervisor. Supervisors have the authority to 
grant or deny requests based upon a variety of factors including but not limited to: department staffing 
considerations, reason for needing the absence, whether the employee has adequate PTO accrued to 
accommodate the request, tenure with the Town, etc. Failure to submit absence requests in a timely 
manner may result in requests being denied. 

Bereavement/Funeral 
All full time, year round employees will be granted up to five days (40 Hours) of paid leave to atteAd a 
flmeral, due to a death of an immediate family member. "Immediate family" is defined as follows: 
spouse, children, parents, brothers, sisters, grandchildren or grandparents of either employee or 
employee's spouse. This paid leave is in addition to any PTO the employee may be eligible for. The 
Town reserves the right to request proof of such death. Pay will be calculated based on straight time of 
the employee's normally scheduled work week. 

Employees are also allowed up to four hours of paid leave to attend a fellow employee's funeral service. 
Time off is subject to supervisor approval. Employees are required to use PTO if they need additional 
time. 

Domestic Abuse Leave 
Employees subject to domestic abuse may be eligible for a leave of absence. Please see the Human 
Resource Department for more information. 

Extended Leaves of Absence 
Full time, year round employees may, in certain circumstances, be granted an extended leave of 
absence that is voluntary time off without pay. Such leaves may be for furthering of education, family 
hardships, etc. Health, dental and vision benefits will remain in force if the individual makes prior 
arrangements to pay their share of the costs. 

Individuals may be reinstated to their original job or to a position of like status and pay without loss of 
seniority, if they return to work within a period of six weeks. Time spent on personal leave must be 
applied to accrued PTO. The supervisor and the Town Manager must approve all personal leaves of 
absence. 

Jury Duty 
Employees will receive the necessary time off for jury duty. Any employee who is summoned for jury 
duty or subpoenaed in connection with his or her employment during regularly scheduled work time will 
be compensated for scheduled hours. When summoned, employees should notify and submit a copy of 
the summons to their immediate supervisor. If excused from jury duty during regular working hours, 
employees are expected to return to work. Employees will receive their normal pay for all jury duty 

February 20154 Page 27 

A completed Per Diem Travel Expense Form with department head approval is necessary for any 
reimbursement. Cash advances may be allowed if requested at least 48 hours in advance. Expenses for 
alcoholic beverages and personal entertainment are not reimbursable. Mileage for use of a personal 
vehicle is reimbursable at the current IRS rate. Registration fees and/or airfare are generally paid by 
check before the trip. 

TIME OFF 
Absence Requests 
Requests for absence from work must be submitted to the supervisor. Supervisors have the authority to 
grant or deny requests based upon a variety of factors including but not limited to: department staffing 
considerations, reason for needing the absence, whether the employee has adequate PTO accrued to 
accommodate the request, tenure with the Town, etc. Failure to submit absence requests in a timely 
manner may result in requests being denied. 

Bereavement/Funeral 
All full time, year round employees will be granted up to fjve days (40 Hours) of paid leave te atteA9 a 
NAeFal, due to a death of an immediate family member. "Immediate family" is defined as follows: 
spouse, children, parents, brothers, Sisters, grandchildren or grandparents of either employee or 
employee's spouse. This paid leave is in addition to any PTO the employee may be eligible for. The 
Town reserves the right to request proof of such death. Pay will be calculated based on straight time of 
the employee's normally scheduled work week. 

Employees are also allowed up to four hours of paid leave to attend a fellow employee's funeral service. 
Time off is subject to supervisor approval. Employees are required to use PTO if they need additional 
time. 

Domestic Abuse Leave 
Employees subject to domestic abuse may be eligible for a leave of absence. Please see the Human 
Resource Department for more information. 

Extended Leaves of Absence 
Full time, year round employees may, in certain circumstances, be granted an extended leave of 
absence that is voluntary time off without pay. Such leaves may be for furthering of education, family 
hardships, etc. Health, dental and vision benefits will remain in force if the individual makes prior 
arrangements to pay their share of the costs. 

Individuals may be reinstated to their original job or to a position of like status and pay without loss of 
seniority, if they return to work within a period of six weeks. Time spent on personal leave must be 
applied to accrued PTO. The supervisor and the Town Manager must approve all personal leaves of 
absence. 

Jury Duty 
Employees will receive the necessary time off for jury duty. Any employee who is summoned for jury 
duty or subpoenaed in connection with his or her employment during regularly scheduled work time will 
be compensated for scheduled hours. When summoned, employees should notify and submit a copy of 
the summons to their immediate supervisor. If excused from jury duty during regular working hours, 
employees are expected to return to work. Employees will receive their normal pay for all jury duty 

February 2015.4 Page 27 

196



hours worked that coincides with their regularly scheduled work time. Employees must endorse all jury 
duty compensation checks to the Town or have the amount deducted from their pay. 

Family and Medical Leave (FMLA) 
The Town provides up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to eligible employees for the following 
reasons: 

• Incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care, or child birth. 
• To care for the employee's child after birth, or placement for adoption, or foster care. 
• To care for the employee's spouse, son or daughter, or parent, who has a serious health 

condition. 
• Serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee's job. 

Military Family Leave Entitlements 
Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty or called to active duty 
status in the National Guard or Reserves may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address certain 
qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include attending certain military events, arranging 
for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain 
counseling sessions, and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings. 

Eligible employees may also take up to 26 weeks of leave to care for a covered service member 
during a single 12-month period. A covered service member is a current member ofthe Armed 
Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who has a serious injury or 
illness incurred or aggravated in the line of duty on active duty. Covered service members also 
includes veterans who were members of the Armed Forces, National Guard, or Reserves at any 
time during the period of five years preceding the start of treatment, recuperation, or therapy. 

The injury or illness must make the service member medically unfit to perform his or her duties 
for which the service member is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, or is 
in outpatient status, or is on the temporary disability retired list. In the case of a veteran, the 
qualifying illness or injury must be incurred or aggravated in the line of duty and manifest itself 
before or after the service member becomes a veteran. 

Benefits and Protections 
During FMLA leave, the Town maintains the employee's health coverage under any group health 
plan on the same terms as if the employee had continued to work. Employees must continue to 
pay their portion of any insurance premium while on leave. If the employee is able but does not 
return to work after the expiration of the leave, the employee will be required to reimburse the 
Town for payment of insurance premiums during leave. 

Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees are restored to their original or equivalent 
positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms. Certain highly 
compensated employees (key employees) may have limited reinstatement rights. 

Use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to the 
start of an employee's leave. As with other types of unpaid leaves, paid leave will not accrue 
during the unpaid leave. Holidays, funeral leave, or employer's jury duty pay are not granted on 
unpaid leave. 

February 20154 Page 28 

hours worked that coincides with their regularly scheduled work time. Employees must endorse all jury 
duty compensation checks to the Town or have the amount deducted from their pay. 

Family and Medical leave (FMLA) 
The Town provides up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to eligible employees for the following 
reasons; 

• Incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care, or child birth. 
• To care for the employee's child after birth, or placement for adoption, or foster care. 
• To care for the employee's spouse, son or daughter, or parent, who has a serious health 

condition . 
• Serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee's job. 

Military Family Leave Entitlements 
Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent on active duty or called to active duty 
status in the National Guard or Reserves may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address certain 
qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include attending certain military events, arranging 
for alternative childcare, addressing ce rtain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain 
counseling sessions, and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings. 

Eligible employees may also take up to 26 weeks of leave to care for a covered service member 
during a single 12-month period. A covered service member is a current member of the Armed 
Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who has a serious injury or 
illness incurred or aggravated in the line of duty on active duty. Covered service members also 
includes veterans who were members of the Armed Forces, National Guard, or Reserves at any 
time during the period of five years preceding the start of treatment, recuperation, or therapy. 

The injury or illness must make the service member medically unfit to perform his or her duties 
for which the service member is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, or is 
in outpatient status, or is on the temporary disability retired list. In the case of a veteran, the 
qualifying illness or injury must be incurred or aggravated in the line of duty and manifest itself 
before or after the service member becomes a veteran. 

Benefits and Protections 
During FMlA leave, the Town maintains the employee's health coverage under any group health 
plan on the same terms as if the employee had continued to work. Employees must continue to 
pay their portion of any insurance premium while on leave. If the employee is able but does not 
return to work after the expiration of the leave, the employee will be required to reimburse the 
Town for payment of insurance premiums during leave. 

Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees are restored to their original or equivalent 
positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms. Certain highly 
compensated employees (key employees) may have limited rein statement rights . 

Use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to the 
start of an employee's leave. As with other types of unpaid leaves, paid leave will not accrue 
during the unpaid leave. Holidays, funeral leave, or employer's jury duty pay are not granted on 
unpaid leave. 

February 2015.4 Page 28 

197



Eligibility Requirements 
Employees are eligible if they have worked for the Town for at least 12 months and for 1,250 
hours over the previous 12 months. 
Definition of Serious Health Condition 
A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that 
involves either an overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment by a health 
care provider for a condition that either prevents the employee from performing the functions 
of the employee's job, or prevents a qualified family member from participating in school or 
other daily activities. 
Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of 
incapacity of more than three consecutive full calendar days combined with at least two visits to 
a health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to 
pregnancy, or incapacity due to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of 
continuing treatment. 

Use of Leave 
The maximum time allowed for FMLA leave is 12 weeks in the 12-month period. An employee 
does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block. Leave can be taken intermittently or 
on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. Employees must make reasonable 
efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the Town's 
operations. Leave due to qualifying exigencies may also be taken on an intermittent basis. 
Employees taking intermittent or reduced schedule leave based on planned medical treatment 
and those taking intermittent or reduced schedule family leave with the Town's agreement may 
be required to temporarily transfer to another job with equivalent pay and benefits that better 
accommodates that type of leave. 

Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave 
The Town requires employees to use accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave. In order to 
use paid leave for FMLA leave, employees must comply with the Town's normal paid leave 
policies. FMLA leave is without pay when paid leave benefits are exhausted. 

Employee Responsibilities 
Employees must provide 30 days advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when the need 
is foreseeable. When 30 days' notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon 
as practicable and generally must comply with the Town's normal call-in procedures. Employees 
must provide sufficient information for the Town to determine if the leave may qualify for FMLA 
protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information may 
include that the employee is unable to perform job functions; the family member is unable to 
perform daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care 
provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family leave. Employees also must 
inform the Town if the requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously 
taken or certified. 
Employees also may be required to provide a certification and periodic recertification 
supporting the need for leave. The Town may require second and third medical opinions at the 
Town's expense. Documentation confirming family relationship, adoption, or foster care may be 
required. If notification and appropriate certification are not provided in a timely manner, 
approval for leave may be denied. Continued absence after denial of leave may result in 

February 201.5.4 Page 29 

Eligibility Requirements 
Employees are eligible if they have worked for the Town for at least 12 months and for 1,2S0 
hours over the previous 12 months. 
Definition of Serious Health Condition 
A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that 
involves either an overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment by a health 
care provider for a condition that either prevents the employee from performing the functions 
of the employee's job, or prevents a qualified family member from participating in school or 
other daily activities. 
Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of 
incapacity of more than three consecutive full calendar days combined with at least two visits to 
a health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to 
pregnilncy, or incapacity due to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of 
continuing treatment. 

Use afLeave 
The maximum time allowed for FMlA leave is 12 weeks in the 12-month period. An employee 
does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block. leave can be taken intermittently or 
on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. Employees must make reasonable 
efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the Town's 
operations. leave due to qualifying exigencies may also be taken on an intermittent basis. 
Employees tak.ing intermittent or reduced schedule leave based on planned mf'diC<l1 treatment 
and those taking intermittent or reduced schedule family leave with the Town's agreement may 
be required to tempor<lrily transfer to another job with equivalent pay and benefits that better 
accommodates that type of leave. 

Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave 
The Town requires employees to use accrued paid leave while taking FMlA leave. In order to 
use paid leave for FMlA leave, employees must comply with the Town's normal paid leave 
policies. FMlA leave is without pay when paid leave benefits are exhausted. 

Employee Responsibilities 
Employees must provide 30 days advance notice of the need to take FMlA leave when the need 
is foreseeable. When 30 days' notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon 
as practicable and generally must comply with the Town's normal call-in procedures. Employees 
must provide sufficient information for the Town to determine if the leave may qualify for FMLA 
protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information may 
include that the employee is unable to perform job functions; the family member is unable to 
perform daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care 
provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family leave. Employees also must 
inform the Town if the requested leave is for a reason for which FMlA leave was previously 
taken or certified. 
Employees also may be required to provide a certification and periodic recertification 
supporting the need for leave. The Town may require second and third medical opinions at the 
Town's expense. Documentation confirming family relationship, adoption, or foster care may be 
required. If notification and appropriate certification are not provided in a timely manner, 
approval for leave may be denied. Continued absence after denial of leave may result in 

February 2015.4 page 29 

198



disciplinary action in accordance with the Town's attendance guideline. Employees on leave 
must contact the Human Resource Director at least two days before their first day of return. 

The Town's Responsibilities 
The Town will inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under FMLA. If they 
are, the notice will specify any additional information required as well as the employees' rights 
and responsibilities. The Town will provide a reason for the ineligibility if they are not eligible. 
The Town will inform employees if leave will be designated as FMLA-protected and the amount 
of leave counted against the employee's leave entitlement. If the Town determines that the 
leave is not FMLA-protected, the Town will notify the employee. 

Unlawful Acts 
FMLA makes it unlawful for the Town to: 
• Interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under FMLA. 
• Discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful 

by FMLA or for involvement in any proceeding under or relating to FMLA. 
Enforcement 
An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may bring a private 
lawsuit against the Town. FML'A does not affect any federal or state law prohibiting 
discrimination, or supersede any state or local law or collective bargaining agreement which 
provides greater family or medical leave rights. 

Non-Work Related and Non-FMLA Leave 
Employees who have not worked 12 months or 1,250 hours are not eligible for the Town's FMLA 
guideline. New employees requiring non-work related medical leave may have up to two (2) weeks 
unpaid time off without jeopardizing their employment status. Employees requiring more time off than 
two weeks may be involuntarily terminated in order to allow the Town to address staffing needs. 
Employees terminated under these circumstances may be eligible for consideration for future positions 
once they are able to return to work. 

Any employee requiring non-work related medical leave must produce a doctor's excuse in order to 
receive approval for that leave. Upon the employee's return to work, they must produce a doctor's 
release for full or modified duty. 

Military Leave 
Employees granted a military leave of absence are re-instated and paid in accordance with the laws 
governing veterans' re-employment rights. 

Parental Involvement Leave 
Eligible employees may be granted parental involvement leave to attend academic activities for school 
aged children. To be eligible, an employee must work in a nonexecutive or nonsupervisory capacity and 
be the parent or legal guardian of a child enrolled in either public or private school grades K-12 or 
certain nonpublic home-based educational programs. Employees can take leave for the following 
academic activities: Parent-teacher conferences and meetings about special education services, 
response to intervention, dropout prevention, attendance, truancy, or disciplinary issues. 

Use of Leave 

Februa,y 20 154 Page 30 

disciplinary action in accordance with the Town's attendance guideline. Employees on leave 
must contact the Human Resource Director at least two days before their first day of return . 

The Town's Responsibilities 
The Town will inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under FMLA. If they 
are, the notice will specify any additional information required as well as the employees' rights 
and responsibilities . The Town will provide a reason for the ineligibility if they are not eligible, 
The Town will inform employees if leave will be designated as FMLA-protected and the amount 
of leave counted against the employee's leave entitlement. If the Town determines that the 
leave is not FMLA-protected, the Town will notify the employee. 

Unlawful Acts 
FMLA makes it unlawful for the Town to: 
• Interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under FMLA, 
• Discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful 

by FMLA or for involvement in any proceeding under or relating to FMLA. 
Enforcement 
An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may bring a private 
lawsuit against the Town. FMLA does not affect any federal or state law prohibiting 
discrimination, or supersede any state or local law or collective bargaining agreement which 
provides greater family or medical leave rights. 

Non-Work Related and Non·FMLA leave 
Employees w ho have not worked 12 months or 1,250 hours are not eligible for the Town's FMLA 
guideline. New employees requiring non-work related medical leave may have up to two (2) weeks 
unpaid time off Without jeopardizing their employment status. Employees requiring more time off than 
two weeks may be involuntarily terminated in order to allow the Town to address staffing needs, 
Employees terminated under these circumstances may be eligible for consideration for future positions 
once they are able to return to work. 

Any employee requiring non-work related medical leave must produce a doctor's excuse in order to 
receive approval for that leave. Upon the employee's return to work, they must produce a doctor's 
release for full or modified duty. 

Military Leave 
Employees granted a military leave of absence are re-instated and paid in accordance with the laws 
governing veterans' re-employment rights. 

Parental Involvement Leave 
Eligible employees may be granted parental involvement leave to attend academic activities for school 
aged children. To be eligible, an employee must work in a nonexecutive or nonsupervisory capacity and 
be the parent or legal guardian of a child enrolled in either public or private school grades K-12 or 
certain nonpubHc home-based educational programs. Employees can take leave for the following 
academic activities: Parent-teacher conferences and meetings about special education services, 
response to intervention, dropout prevention, attendance, truancy, or disciplinary issues. 

Use of Leove 

199



Voting 

Full-time employees may take up to a maximum of 18 hours in an academic year to attend such 
activities. Part-time employees may take leave on a prorated basis. Employees may not take 
more than six hours of leave in anyone-month period and leave may not be taken in increments 
of longer than three hours. 

Paid Leave Substitution 
The Town requires employees to use accrued paid time off (PTO) if available while taking 
Parental Involvement Leave. 
Notice Requirements 
Except in emergencies, employees are required to provide at least one calendar week's advance 
notice of the need for leave. Employees must provide written verification of the academic 
activity from the school or school district. In emergencies, employees are required to provide 
notice and written verification from the school as soon as possible after learning of the need for 
leave. Employees are required to make a reasonable attempt to schedule academic activities 
outside regular work hours. 

Limitations on Leave 
The Town may limit the ability of an employee to take Parental Involvement Leave in cases of 
emergency or in other situations where the employee taking leave may endanger a person's 
health or safety or in a situation where the absence of the employee would result in a halt of 
service or production. 

The Town will give an employee time off to vote. The employee will be paid for working time he or she 
is required to miss in order to vote. The employee is required to apply for the leave before the day of 
election and the supervisor may specify the hours that the employee may be absent, provided, however, 
that the hours shall be at the beginning or end of a shift if the employee so requests. 

WORK ENVIRONMENT 
APPEARANCE 

The Town believes an employee's dress and grooming should be appropriate to the work situation. 
Radical departures from what the Town considers conventional dress or grooming are not permitted, 
regardless ofthe nature ofthe job performed. 
Personal appearance is important to maintaining our commitment to excellence, and our commitment 
to a professional image. While appearance is a matter of personal taste and personal pride, certain 
standards must be adhered to. You may be required to wear a specific uniform, however if you are not, 
you are expected to have a "resort casual" appearance. In that respect, the following list is a partial list 
of inappropriate attire/styles: 

• Extremely "short" shorts, skirts and dresses. 
• Extremely low cut blouses or shirts with cleavage or chest hair showing. 
• Clothing that reveals undergarments (or lack thereof). 
• Frayed, worn-out or overly faded clothing. 
• Belts, chains, or other attachments that could be become a safety issue. 
• Excessive ear piercing (more than three earrings per ear). 
• Any overly extreme hairstyles, dress or jewelry. 

February 201 54 Page 31 

Voting 

Full-time employees may take up to a maximum of 18 hours in an academic year to attend such 
activities. ParHime employees may take leave on a prorated basis. Employees may not take 
more than six hours of leave in anyone-month period and leave may not be taken in increments 
of longer than three hours. 

Paid Leave Substitution 
The Town requires employees to use accrued paid time off (PTO) if available while taking 
Parental Involvement l eave. 
Notice Requirements 
Except in emergencies, employees are required to provide at least one calendar week's advance 
notice of the need for leave. Employees must provide written verification of the academic 
activity from the school or school district. In emergencies. employees are required to provide 
notice and written verification from the school as soon as possible after learning of the need for 
leave. Employees are required to make a reasonable attempt to schedule academic activities 
outside regular work hours. 

Limitations on Leave 
The Town may limit the abili ty of an employee to take Parental Involvement leave in cases of 
emergency or in other situations where the employee taking leave may endanger a person 's 
health or safety or in a situation where the absence of the employee would result in a halt of 
service or production. 

The Town will give an employee time off to vote . The employee will be pa id for working time he or she 
is required to miss in order to vote . The employee is required to apply for the leave before the day of 
election and the supervisor may specify the hours that the employee may be absent, provided, however, 
that the hours shall be at the beginning or end of a shift if the employee so requests. 

WORK ENVIRONMENT 
APPEARANCE 

The Town believes an employee's dress and grooming should be appropriate to the work situation. 
Radical departures f rom what the Town considers conventional dress or grooming are not permitted, 
regardless of the nature of the job performed. 
Personal appearance is important to maintaining our commitment to excellence, and our commitment 
to a professional image. White appearance is a matter of persona l taste and personal pride, certain 
standard s must be adhered to . You may be required to wear a specific uniform, however if you are not, 
you are expected to have a "resort casual" appearance. In that respect, the following list is a partial list 
of inappropriate attire/styles: 

• Extremely "short" shorts, skirts and dresses. 
• Extremely low cut blouses or shirts with cleavage or chest hair showing. 

• Cloth ing that reveals undergarments (or lack thereof). 
• Frayed, worn-out or overly faded clothing. 
• Belts, chains, or other attachments that could be become a safety issue. 
• Excessive ear piercing (more than three earrings per ear). 
• Any overly extreme hairstyles, dress or jewelry. 

February 2015.4 Page 31 

200



• Flip-flops, thongs or sandals worn in safety sensitive areas are not permissible. These types of 
shoes may only be worn where job appropriate and where safety standards permit. 

All employees should wear their hair clean and neatly groomed so that it does not interfere with 
operational duties or the professional image ofthe employee. Departmental guidelines may require 
certain hair restrictions due to health and safety requirements at the direction of their department 
supervisor/manager. Hair must be of a natural color. 

Name Tags ~ 

Failure to wear a provided nametag or wearing another person's nametag is not acceptable. If you lose 
your nametag please notify your supervisor immediately so that a replacement can be obtained. 
Front line employees are asked to wear buttons to be more visible for guests, visitors, and residents. 

ID Cards 
Employees are issued Town employee identification cards when required by their position. Upon 

termination employees must return cards to Human Resources. 

Uniforms 
Many employees are required to wear a uniform during working hours, furnished by the Town. When 
uniforms and other Town owned equipment are issued, employees will be asked to sign a uniform/ 
equipment log identifying each item received its value and the Town's policy regarding return of these 
items to the Town. The uniform/equipment log clearly states that the value of any items not returned 
to the Town may be deducted from an employee's final paycheck 
Employees are responsible for the maintenance of all uniforms and equipment assigned to them. All 
uniform and employee clothing shall be in good condition, free of stains, rips, holes and excessive wear. 
It is the responsibility of each Town employee to maintain his/her uniform work clothing in a neat, 
clean, and identifiable condition. Replacement of worn, tattered or stained clothing may be arranged 
with the supervisor upon the return of the excessively worn or stained clothing at the supervisor's 
discretion. 

Department Managers and Supervisors are responsible for department inventory of all uniforms -
issuing at hire and collecting upon termination. Employees will be charged for all items not returned. 

ATTENDANCE & PUNCTUALITY 
Excessive absenteeism and late attendance places a huge burden on other employees and on the Town. 
In many cases, working short staffed compromises employee safety and it is detrimental to the quality 
of guest service we provide the public and our customers. Each employee is expected to be prompt and 
regular in attendance. Your attendance and punctuality record will be a key consideration in granting 
pay raises, promotions or transfers. Personal appointments should be scheduled during the lunch hour 
or after work hours, whenever possible. If scheduling a personal appOintment during working hours is 
absolutely necessary, advance approval from your supervisor is required. 

The Town has a strict policy relative to an employee's failure to report to work. As soon as you know 
that you will be absent or late to work, you must telephone your supervisor to report your absence or 
lateness. Permission not to report to work must be obtained directly from your supervisor. Leaving a 
message with non-designated employee is not acceptable. Failure to promptly report your absence or 
lateness will not be tolerated. Your supervisor will determine what constitutes an excused or unexcused 

February 201 54 Page 32 

• Flip-flops, thongs or sanda ls worn in safety sensitive areas are not permissible. These types of 
shoes may only be worn where job appropriate and where safety standards permit. 

All employees should wear their hair clean and neatly groomed so that it does not interfere with 
operationa l duties or the professional image of the employee. Departmental guidelines may require 
certain hair restrictions due to health and safety requirements at the direction of their department 
supervisor/manager. Hair must be of a natural color. 

Name Tags ~ 

Failure to wear a provided nametag or wearing another person's nametag is not acceptable. If you lose 
your nametag please notify your supervisor immediately so that a replacement can be obtained. 
Front line employees are asked to wear buttons to be more visible for guests, visitors, and residents . 

ID Cards 
Employees are issued Town employee identification cards when required by their position. Upon 
termination employees must return cards to Human Resources. 

Unjforms 
Many employees are required to wear a uniform during working hours, furnished by the Town. When 
uniforms and other Town owned equipment are issued, employees will be asked to sign a uniform/ 
equ ipment log identifying each item received its value and the Town's policy regarding return of these 
items to the Town. The uniform/equipment log clearly states that the va lue of any items not returned 
to the Town may be deducted from an employee's final paycheck 
Employees are responsible for the maintenance of all uniforms and equipment assigned to them. All 
uniform and employee clothing shall be in good condition, f ree of stains, rips, holes and excessive wear. 
It is the responsibility of each Town employee to maintain his/her uniform work clothing in a neat, 
clean, and identifiable condition. Replacement of worn, tattered or stained clothing may be arranged 
with the supervisor upon the return of the excessively worn or stained clothing at the supervisor's 
discretion. 

Department Managers and Supervisors are responsible for department inventory of all uniforms -
issuing at hire and collecting upon termination. Employees wilt be charged for all items not returned. 

ATTENDANCE & PUNCTUALITY 
Excessive absenteeism and late attendance places a huge burden on other employees and on the Town. 
In many cases, working short staffed compromises employee safety and it is detrimental to the quality 
of guest service we provide the public and our customers. Each employee is expected to be prompt and 
regula r in attendance. Your attendance and punctuality record wilt be a key conside ra t ion in granting 
pay raises, promotions or transfers. Personal appointments should be scheduled during the lunch hour 
or after work hours, whenever possible. If scheduling a personal appointment during working hours is 
absolute ly necessary, advance approva l from your supervisor is required. 

The Town has a strict policy relative to an employee's failure to report to work. As soon as you know 
that you will be absent or late to work, you must telephone your supervisor to report your absence or 
lateness. Permission not to report to work must be obtained directly from your supervisor. leaving a 
message with non-designated employee is not acceptable. Failure to promptly report your absence or 
lateness will not be tolerated. Your supervisor will determine what constitutes an excused or unexcused 

February 20154 Page 32 

201



absence. The Town reserves the right to make allowances, at its sole discretion, for what it considers 
emergency or extraordinary circumstances. 

LUNCH PERIOD (Does not apply to Police) 
The supervisor will determine when, during your shift, you may take your lunch period. Lunch periods 
are not paid by the Town unless the employee is required to take a working lunch. Employees who take 
their meal breaks at their desks are asked to refrain from working during that time. The Town 
encourages employees to leave their work area during meal time. On the rare occasion that an 
employee must work through lunch, due to staffing shortage or other considerations, the employee will 
be paid for the portion of their lunch time worked. Prior authorization is required before employees 
work overtime or through meal breaks. Employees who abuse this regulation may be subject to 
disciplinary actions. 

COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS 
The communication systems are property of the Town and intended for business use. Therefore, the 
Town maintains the ability to access any computer files, use of software, Internet usage, e-mail and 
voice mail. Although employees may select individual passwords, employees should not assume that 
such files are confidential. However, other than management employees acting on behalf of the Town, 
employees should not attempt to gain access to another employee's computer, Internet files, e-mail or 
voice mail without the latter's permission. 

All computer users' "Windows password" must be changed at least once every 90 days. You will be 
prompted to change your password. 

All information regarding access to the Town's computer resources, such as user identifications, modem 
phone numbers, access codes, and passwords are Town confidential information and may not be 
disclosed to non-Town personnel. 

Email 
Because the Town provides the e-mail system to employees to help them with the performance of their 
jobs, it should be used for official Town business. Incidental and occasional personal use of email is 
permitted. However, employees should be aware that these messages will be treated the same as 
business messages, and subject to review at any time without notice. Employee correspondence on 
email may be a public record under the public records law and may be subject to public inspection. 

Also, employees cannot control where their messages will ultimately end up. For example, a message 
meant for one person can be mistakenly sent to the wrong individual(s), or the message can be 
forwarded to unintended recipients. In addition, e-mails that were deleted are stored elsewhere on the 
system. 

Personal Use of the Internet 

Use of the internet must not interrupt the operation of the Town network or the networks of other 
users. It must not interfere with employee's productivity. 

Software and Copyright 
The Town licenses, and does not own the software it utilizes. Therefore, use of the software must be in 
accordance with the applicable Software Agreements or as directed by the Town's designated Software 
Manager. 

February 20154 Page 33 

absence. The Town reserves the right to make allowances, at its sole discretion, for what it considers 
emergency or extraordinary circumstances. 

LUNCH PERIOD (Does not apply to Police) 
The supervisor will determine when, during your shift, you may take your lunch period. Lunch periods 
are not paid by the Town unless the employee is required to take a working lunch. Employees who take 
their meal breaks at their desks are asked to refrain from working during that time. The Town 
encourages employees to leave their work area during meal time. On the rare occasion that an 
employee must work through lunch, due to staffing shortage or other considerations, t he employee will 
be paid for the portion of their lunch time worked. Prior authorization is required before employees 
work overtime or through meal breaks. Employees who abuse this regulation may be subject to 
disciplinary actions. 

COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS 
The communication systems are property of the Town and intended for business use. Therefore, the 
Town maintains the ability to access any computer files, use of software, Internet usage, e·mail and 
voice mail. Although employees may select individual passwords, employees should not assume that 
such files are confidential. However, other than management employees acting on behalf of the Town, 
employees should not attempt to gain access to another employee's computer, Internet f iles, e-mail or 
voice mail without the latter's permission. 

All computer users' "Windows password" must be changed at least once every 90 days. You will be 
prompted to change your password. 

All information regarding access to the Town's computer resources, such as user identifications, modem 
phone numbers, access codes, and passwords are Town confidential information and may not be 
disclosed to non·Town personnel. 

Email 
Because the Town provides the e·mait system to employees to help them with the performance of their 
jobs, it should be used for official Town business. Incidental and occasional personal use of email is 
permitted. However, employees should be aware that these messages will be treated the same as 
business messages, and subject to review at any time without notice. Employee correspondence on 
email may be a publ ic record under the public records law and may be subject to public inspection. 

Also, employees cannot control where their messages will ultimately end up. For example, a message 
meant for one person can be mistakenly sent to the wrong individual(s), or the message can be 
forwarded to unintended reCipients. In addition, e-mails that were deleted are stored elsewhere on the 
system. 

Personal Use of the Internet 
Use of the internet must not interrupt the operation of the Town network or the networks of other 
users. it must not interfere with employee's productivity. 

Software and Copyright 
The Town licenses, and does not own the software it utilizes. Therefore, use of the software must be in 
accordance with the applicable Software Agreements or as directed by the Town's designated Software 
Manager. 

February 201 .5.4 Page 33 

202



Employees must not use the Town's technology resources to copy, retrieve, forward or send 
copyrighted materials unless the employee has the author's permission. 

Unauthorized Use 
Employees are not permitted to visit websites or send electronic e-mail that is deemed by management 
as inappropriate or in violation of other Town guidelines (such as pornography or online gambling). We 
reserve the right to determine when an employee is using the Town communications inappropriately. 

Passwords: 

The Town's Computer system requires the use of "complex passwords". "Complex passwords" require 
three of the following four characters (upper case, lower case, numeric and special character) be 
contained in your password. The password also must be at least eight characters in length. Password~ 
are required to be changed every 90 days. 

It is the employee's responsibility to protect their password (IE. DO NOT give out your password to 
anyone or write it down whereas someone could obtain it). 

Password Responsibility 

It is the employee's responsibility to protect their password (IE. DO NOT give out your password to 
anyone or write it down whereas someone could obtain it). 

Website Blocking 

An Internet filtering system has been deployed which w ill block "known" infected websites. Other sites 
have also been blocked based on categories. This w ill be an ongoing process in determining which 
categories to block. Initially the following categories have been blocked : Adware, Dating, Gambling, 
Games, Hate/Discrimination, NUdity, P2P File/Music sharing, Pornography and Web Spam. Attempting 
to access a blocked page will cause this message: "Sorry, [domain] has been blocked by your network 
administrator" . 

ote: Use of [he Internet can be important for completing job funclions. This web fillering projecl is nOl intended La 
prevent you from doing your job or to make your job harder. It is intended La protect the system and the users of the 
system. Therefore. if you need to access a website and it is blocked, please notify your supervisor who in turn wil l 
notify me. With supervisor approval. these sites will be unblocked as needed. 

Please contact your manager or human resources with any questions. 

Email Security Tips 

Have separate email accounts: 

Have separate email accounts for work and personal activity. Having separate email accounts will not 
only help boost your security, but also your productivity. Imagine if you could consolidate all of your 
work emails into a single work account; all of your friends and family communicate with your personal 
account; you have a recreational account for various websites; and a throwaway account for potential 
spam links. This way, if someone hacks your work account, all of your personal emails are still safe. 

Unique Passwords: 

February 201 54 Page 34 

Employees must not use the Town's technology resources to copy, retrieve, forward or send 
copyrighted materials unless the employee has the author's permission. 

Unauthorized Use 
Employees are not permitted to visit websites or send electronic e-mail that is deemed by management 
as inappropriate or in violation of other Town guidelines (such as pornography or online gambling). We 
reserve the right to determine when an employee is using the Town communications inappropriately. 

Passwords: 

The Town's Computer system requires the use of "complex passwords". "Complex passwords" require 
three of the following four characters (upper case, lower case, numeric and special character) be 
contained in your password . The password also must be at least eight characters in length. Password~ 
are required to be changed every 90 days. 

It is the employee's responsibility to protect their password (IE. DO NOT give out your password to 
anyone or write it down whereas someone could obtain it). 

Password Responsibility 

It is the employee's responsibility to protect their password (IE. DO NOT give out your password to 
anyone or write it down whereas someone could obtain it). 

Website Blocking 

An Internet fil tering system has been deployed which w ill block "known" infected websites. Other sites 
have also been blocked based on categories. This will be an ongoing process in determining which 
categories to block. Initially the following categories have been blocked: Adware. Dating. Gambling. 
Games. Hate/ Discrimination, Nudity, P2P File/ Music sharing. Pornography and Web Spam. Attempting 
to access a blocked page will cause this message: "Sorry, [domain) has been blocked by your network 
administrator" . 

Note: Use of the Internet can he important for completing job functions. Tbis web filt('ring project is not intended 10 
prevent you from doing your job or to make vour job harder. It is intended to protect the system and the users of the 
system, Therefore. ifyoy need 10 access a website and it is blocked. please notify your suocrvisor who in turn will 
nolify mc. With supervisor approval. these sites will be unblocked as needed. 

Please contact your manager or human resources with any questions. 

Email Security Tips 

Have separate email accounts: 

Have separate email accounts for work and personal activity . Having separate email accounts will not 
only help boost your security, but also your productivity. Imagine if you could consolidate all of your 
work emails into a single work account; all of your friends and family communicate with your personal 
account; you have a recreational account for various websites; and a throwaway account for potential 
spam links. This way, if someone hacks your work account, all of your personal emails are stili safe. 

Unique Passwords: 

February 2015.4 Page 34 

203



You should use a unique password for each account that you setup. If your password is compromised, 
only that account will be affected. 

Beware of Phishing Scams: 

Basically, malicious users will imitate and impersonate high-profile websites (e.g., eBay, Amazon, 
Facebook, etc.) and say that they're experiencing trouble with your account; all you have to do to fix it is 
to send them your username and password to verify your authenticity. Sometimes they'll even link you 
to a false website that looks exactly like the real thing. 

Be wary. In fact, whenever your personal information is ever brought up in a non-face-to-face capacity, 
your scam detector should go off loud and clear. 

Outlook Setting: 

Disable auto preview pane. If a suspicious message is received, it can be deleted without being opened . 

Do Not Open Unsolicited Attachments: 

Attachments are a tricky thing when it comes to email. If you're expecting something from a buddy or an 
uncle, then sure, go ahead and open the attachment. Have a laugh at the funny photo they sent you. It's 
all good when you are expecting the attachment. But if the email is unsolicited, never open any 
attachments. Even if the file looks innocent, you could be in for a world of hurt. Filenames can be 
spoofed. JPEGs could be EXEs in disguise and those EXEs will run as soon as they're downloaded. And 
then you'll have a virus on your hands. 

Avoid Public Wi-Fi: 

Avoid checking your email when you're on public Internet. It can be tempting to whip out your 
smartphone or laptop and check for new messages. Unfortunately, public Wi-Fi can be extremely 
insecure. There are programs out there called "network sniffers" that run passively in the background of 
some hacker's device. The sniffer monitors all of the wireless data flowing through a particular network 
and t hat data can be ana lyzed for important information. like your username and password. 

Voice Mail 
Employees are responsible to make certain their voice mail messages are reviewed in a timely fashion. 
When employees know that they are going to be out of the office for a day or more, they must leave 
messages on their voice mail stating when they will be returning messages, and who will be an alternate 
contact in the meantime. 

Telephonesl Cell Phones 
The Town provides cell phones to those employees who need them to perform their jobs. Such phones 
are intended for business use. In the interest of good business practice, personal telephone calls, 
including those made with cell phones, must be minimal and not interfere with employees' performance 
of their jobs. Where personal use of Town's phones cost the Town money, the Town is entitled to 
reimbursement. For safety reasons, employees should avoid the use of cell phones while driving. 

February 201 54 Page 35 

You should use a unique password for each account that you setup. If your password is compromised, 
only that account will be affected. 

Beware of Phishing Scams: 

Basically, malicious users will imitate and impersonate high-profile websites (e.g., eBay, Amazon, 
Facebook, etc.) and say that they' re experiencing trouble with your account; aU you have to do to fix it is 
to send them your username and password to verify your authenticity. Sometimes they'll even link you 
to a false website that looks exactly like the real thing. 

Be wary. In fact, whenever your personal information is ever brought up in a non-face-to-face capacity, 
your scam detector should go off loud and clear. 

Outlook Setting: 

Disable auto preview pane. If a suspicious message is received, it can be deleted without being opened. 

00 Not Open Unsolicited Attachments: 

Attachments are a tricky thing when it comes to email. If you're expecting something from a buddy or an 
uncle, then sure, go ahead and open the attachment. Have a laugh at the funny photo they sent you. It's 
all good when you are expecting the attachment. But jf the email is unsolicited, never open any 
attachments. Even if the file looks innocent, you could be in for a world of hurt. Filenames can be 
spoofed. JPEGs could be EXEs in disguise and those EXEs will run as soon as they're downloaded. And 
then you'll have a virus on your hands. 

Avoid Public WI·Fi: 

Avoid checkinj;t your email when you're on public Internet. It can be tempting to whip out your 
smartphone or laptop and check for new messages. Unfortunatelv. public Wi-Fi can be extremely 
insecure. There are programs out there called "network sniffers" t hat run passively in the background of 
some hacker's device. The sniffer monjtors all of the wireless data flowing through OJ particular network 
and t hat data can be ana lyzed for important information. Like your usemame and password. 

Voice Mail 
Employees are responsible to make certain their voice mail messages are reviewed in a timely fashion. 
When employees know that they are going to be out of the office for a day or more, they must leave 
messages on their voice mail stating when they will be returning messages, and who will be an alternate 
contact in the meantime. 

Telephones! Cell Phones 
The Town provides cell phones to those employees who need them to perform their jobs. Such phones 
are intended for business use. In the interest of good business practice, personal telephone calis, 
including those made with cell phones, must be minimal and not interfere with employees' performance 
of their jobs. Where personal use of Town's phones cost the Town money, the Town is entitled to 
reimbursement. For safety reasons, employees should avoid the use of ce ll phones while driving. 

204



In accordance with Colorado law, all drivers are prohibited from texting while driving. 

Town cell phone numbers shall be published in the Town directory. Phone numbers remain with the 
Town upon termination. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
A "conflict of interest" exists when the interests of the Town or the community it serves are 
compromised by an employee's involvement in outside interests, businesses or employment. 
Employees must report in writing any outside interests, businesses or employment to their supervisor 
and to the Town Manager so that any possible conflicts of interest may be identified. 

An employee may engage in outside interestS, businesses or employment only after the following has 
occurred: 

• The employee has informed their supervisor and the Town Manager in writing, 
• No conflict of interest is found to exist, and 

• The employee has received written permission from the Town Manager to proceed. 

Where there is the possibility of a conflict of interest an employee may be asked either to forgo outside 
interests, businesses and employment during their employment with the Town or to seek employment 
elsewhere. The Town believes that, in these instances, the community as a whole is better served by 
doing what is right rather than what is expedient or of direct personal gain. 

DISCIPLINE/DISCHARGE 

Occasionally performance or other behavior falls short of our standards and/or expectations. When this 
occurs, management takes action, which, in its opinion, seems appropriate. 

Disciplinary actions can range from a formal discussion with the employee about the matter to 
immediate discharge. Action taken by management in an individual case does not establish a precedent 
in other circumstances. An employee's conduct is a major factor affecting the health and growth of the 
Town. It is also an important aspect of the Town's image within the community. When management 
finds an employee's performance is unsatisfactory or an employee's conduct is unacceptable, 
disciplinary action may be taken. 
In the event that it becomes necessary to discipline an employee for unsatisfactory performance or 
violation of Town policies and procedures, one or more of the following disciplinary actions may be 
taken. 

Verbal Reprimand - A verbal reprimand is usually considered the least serious form of 
disciplinary action. It is generally intended to inform the employee of the need for 
improvement in job performance or to confirm an employee's understanding and application of 
Town policies and procedures. The "Employee Disciplinary Notice" form is filled out as written 
documentation of a verbal reprimand, verifying that the employee has been informed and is 
aware of the issue in question. Goals for improvement are established and documented on the 
form. Both the supervisor and the employee may make comments on this form and both must 
sign it. 
Written Reprimand - A written reprimand is a formal reprimand considered to be an 
appropriate disciplinary action to be taken for more serious job performance or Town policy 
infractions. This type of reprimand requires a counseling session with the employee during 
which the supervisor discusses the serious performance or policy related problem with the 

February 20154 Page 36 

In accordance with Colorado law, all drivers are prohibited from texting while driving. 

Town cell phone numbers shall be published in the Town directory. Phone numbers remain with the 
Town upon termination. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
A "conttict of interest" exists when the interests of the Town or the community it serves are 
compromised by an employee's involvement in outside interests, businesses or employment. 
Employees must report in writing any outside interests, businesses or employment to their supervisor 
and to the Town Manager so that any possible conflicts of interest may be identified. 

An employee may engage in outside interests, businesses or employment only after the following has 
occurred: 

• The employee has informed their supervisor and the Town Manager in writing, 

• No conflict of interest is found to exist, and 
• The employee has received wr itten permission from the Town Manager to proceed. 

Where there is the possibility of a conflict of interest an employee may be asked either to forgo outside 
interests, businesses and employment during their employment with the Town or to seek employment 
elsewhere. The Town believes that, in these instances, the community as a whole is better served by 
doing what is right rather than what is expedient or of direct personal gain. 

DISCIPLINE/DISCHARGE 

Occasionally performance or other behavior falls short of our standards and/or expectations. When this 
occurs, management takes action, which, in its opinion, seems appropriate. 

Disciplinary actions can range from a formal discussion with the employee about the matter to 
immediate discharge. Action taken by management in an individual case does not establish a precedent 
in other circumstances. An employee's conduct is a major factor affecting the health and growth of the 
Town. It is also an important aspect of the Town's image within the community. When management 
finds an employee's performance is unsatisfactory or an employee's conduct is unacceptable, 
disciplinary action may be taken. 
In the event that it becomes necessary to diScipline an employee for unsatisfactory performance or 
violation of Town policies and procedures, one or more of the following disciplinary actions may be 
taken. 

Verbal Reprimand - A verbal reprimand is usualJy considered the least serious form of 
disciplinary action. It is generally intended to inform the employee of the need for 
improvement in job performance or to confirm an employee's understanding and application of 
Town policies and procedures. The "Employee Disciplinary Notice" form is filled out as written 
documentation of a verbal reprimand, verifying that the employee has been informed and is 
aware of the issue in question. Goals for improvement are established and documented on the 
form. Both the supervisor and the employee may make comments on this form and both must 
sign it. 
Written Reprimand - A written reprimand is a formal reprimand considered to be an 
appropriate disciplinary action to be taken for more serious job performance or Town policy 
infractions. This type of reprimand requires a counse ling session with the employee during 
which the supervisor discusses the serious performance or policy related problem with the 

February 20154 Page 36 

205



employee. The "Employee Disciplinary Notice" form is filled out as written documentation of 
the written reprimand, verifying that the employee has been informed and is aware of the issue 
in question. Goals for improvement are established and documented on the form. Both the 
supervisor and the employee may make comments on this form and both must sign it. 
Termination - While meant to be the exception rather than the rule, immediate termination 
without prior warning may be a justified course of action in light of the seriousness of the 
particular violation and for employees who are repeat violators of Town policies and work rules. 
The employee is clearly informed as to the reason(s) for termination during a counseling session 
with the Supervisor. The employee is given the opportunity to make their written comments 
and sign the "Termination Record" form. 

Employees should realize that these general guidelines for disciplinary action must have a degree of 
flexibility as there are varying degrees of seriousness that pertain to performance and/or Town policy 
infractions. The Town does not have a policy of progressive discipline and reserves the right to handle 
each diSciplinary issue on a case-by-case basis. The fact that the Town has or has not utilized any of 
these actions does not set any precedent and should not be relied upon in future disciplinary situations 
by any employee. 

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL 
The Town is committed to a safe, healthy and productive work environment for all employees that are 
free from the effects of substance abuse. Abuse of alcohol, drugs and controlled substances impairs 
employee judgment, resulting in increased safety risks, injuries and faulty decision-making. This 
includes working after the apparent use of marijuana. 

In accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Town prohibits the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance during Town time, on Town 
premises, or other work sites. 

Testing is an important element in the Town's efforts to ensure a safe and productive work 
environment. Please refer to the Drug & Alcohol Policy- Safety Sensitive Employees or the Drug & 
Alcohol Paficy~ Non-Safety Sensitive Employees as appropriate for your position. Contact the Human 
Resources Department or your supervisor if you have specific questions. 

Parties & Activities 
As a measure of The Town's responsibility to promote safety, the following standards have been 
established for Town sponsored parties and activities: 

• Alcohol is allowed on Town premises ONLY for Town sponsored parties or activities. Town 
sponsored parties or activities shall be defined as Town sanctioned planned events with specific 
pre-approval by the Town Manager. All other possession and/or consumption of Alcohol on 
Town premises shall be considered in direct violation of the Town Drug and Alcohol Policy. 

• A supervisor should be present at all times to monitor party guidelines and participants' 
behavior. 

• Employees scheduled to work immediately following attendance at a Town sponsored party 
must refrain from the use of alcohol during the party. 

February 20 1~4 Page 37 

employee. The "Employee Disciplinary Notice" form is filled out as written documentation of 
the written reprimand, verifying that the employee has been informed and is aware of the issue 
in question. Goals for improvement are established and documented on the form. Both the 
supervisor and the employee may make comments on this form and both must sign it. 
Termination - While meant to be the exception rather than the rule, immediate termination 
without prior warning may be a justified course of action in light of the seriousness of the 
particular violation and for employees who are repeat violators of Town policies and work rules . 
The employee is clearly informed as to the reason(sJ for termination during a counseling session 
with the Supervisor. The employee is given the opportunity to make their written comments 
and sign the "Termination Record" form. 

Employees should realize that these general guidelines for diSCiplinary action must have a degree of 
flexibility as there are varying degrees of seriousness that pertain to performance and/or Town policy 
infractions. The Town does not have a policy of progressive discipline and reserves the right to handle 
each disciplinary issue on a case-by-case basis. The fact that the Town has or has not utilized any of 
these actions does not set any precedent and should not be relied upon in future disciplinary situations 
by any employee. 

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL 
The Town is committed to a safe, healthy and productive work environment for all employees that are 
free from the effects of substance abuse. Abuse of alcohol, drugs and controlled substances impairs 
employee judgment, resulting in increased safety risks, injuries and faulty decision-making. This 
includes working after the apparent use of marijuana. 

In accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Town prohibits the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance during Town time, on Town 
premises, or other work sites. 

Testing is an important element in the Town's efforts to ensure a safe and productive work 
environment. Please refer to the Drug & Alcohol Policy- Safety Sensitive Employees or the Drug & 
Alcohol Policy~ Non-Safety Sensitive Employees as appropriate for your position. Contact the Human 
Resources Department or your supervisor if you have specific questions. 

Parties & Activities 
As a measure of The Town's responsibility to promote safety, the following standards have been 
established for Town sponsored parties and activities: 

• Alcohol is allowed on Town premises ONLY for Town sponsored parties or activities. Town 
sponsored parties or activities shall be defined as Town sanctioned planned events with specific 
pre-approva l by the Town Manager. All other possession and/or consumption of Alcohol on 
Town premises shall be considered in direct violation of the Town Drug and Alcohol Policy. 

• A supervisor should be present at all times to monitor party guidelines and participants' 
behavior. 

• Employees scheduled to work immediately fo llowing attendance at a Town sponsored party 
must refrain from the use of alcohol during the party. 

February 201 5.4 Page 37 

206



• Employees attending a Town sponsored party who are not scheduled to work immediately 
following the party must exhibit good judgment in their alcohol consumption to ensure their 
capability of safe travel home. 

• The only Town function that employees are paid to attend is the Annual Town Picnic, unless 
approved in advance by the Town Manager. 

Employee Political Participation 
The Town encourages employees to participate in matters of responsible citizenship. The Town will not 
interfere with the conduct of Town employees engaged in political activity, as long as the activities are 
confined to hours when the employees are not on duty, are not campaigning in their official Town 
uniforms, and that the activities do not impair the employee's job efficiency or that of others. 
Employees whose principal employment is in connection with federally financed activities are subject to 
the following federal requirements as a condition of such employment. 

1. Covered employees may not use their official authority or influence for the purposes of 
interfering with or affecting the results of elections or nominations for office. 

2. In addition, they may not coerce, attempt to coerce, command, or advise other covered 
employees to pay, lend or contribute anything of value to a party, committee, Town, agency, or 
person for political purposes. 

Political beliefs, activities, and affiliations are the private concern of the employee. An employee's work 
status is not affected by participating or not participating in lawful civic and political activities. No 
employee of the Town can directly or indirectly coerce or command any other employee to pay, lend, or 
contribute salary, compensation, service, or anything else of value to any political party, group, Town, or 
candidate. 

Any Town employee may be a candidate for a partisan political office provided that the involvement 
does not interfere or present a conflict of interest with his/her job. If involvement is necessary during 
normal working hours, the individual must take PTe or leave without pay. Employees whose salary 
comes in part or in whole from federal government sources are subject to the Hatch Act and its 
revisions. 

INSPECTIONS 
We may conduct searches after notice is given and with the employee's consent of employees' personal 
effects. This may include, but is not limited to: lunch bags, boxes, purses, personal computers, 
packages, or vehicles. 
We may conduct searches of the above items without employee consent if we have a reasonable 
suspicion to believe that illegal activity is taking place and after obtaining a warrant to do so. Any illegal 
and unauthorized articles discovered may be taken into custody and will be turned over to law 
enforcement representatives. 

Employees do not have a reasonable expectation of privacy in lockers, desks, cabinets, or file drawers, 
all of which are keyed by the Town and copies of those keys are kept by the Town. 

PARKING 

February 201.5..4 Page 38 

• Employees attending a Town sponsored party who are not scheduled to work immediately 
following the party must exhibit good judgment in the ir alcohol consumption to ensure their 
capability of safe t ravel home. 

• The only Town function that employees are paid to attend is the Annual Town Picnic, unless 
approved in advance by the Town Manager. 

Employee Political Participation 
The Town encourages employees to participate in matters of responsible citizenship. The Town will not 
interfere with the conduct of Town employees engaged in political activity, as lang as the activities are 
confined to hours when the employees are not on duty, are not campaigning in their official Town 
uniforms, and that the activities do not impair the employee's job efficiency or that of others. 
Employees whose principal employment is in connection with federally financed activities are subject to 
the following federal requirements as a condition of such employment. 

1. Covered employees may not use thei r official authority or influence for the purposes of 
interfering with or affecting the results of elections or nominations for office. 

2. In addition, they may not coerce, attempt to coerce, command, or advise other covered 
employees to pay, lend or contribute anything of value to a party, committee, Town, agency, or 
person for political purposes. 

Political beliefs, activities, and affiliations are the private concern of the employee. An employee's work 
status is not affected by participating or not participating in lawful civic and political activities. No 
employee of the Town can directly or indirectly coerce or command any other employee to pay, lend, or 
contribute salary, compensation, service, or anything else of value to any political party, group, Town, or 
candidate. 

Any Town employee may be a candidate for a partisan political office provided that the involvement 
does not interfere or present a conflict of interest with his/her job. If involvement is necessary during 
normal working hours, the individual must take PTO or leave without pay. Employees whose salary 
comes in part or in whole from federal government sources are subject to the Hatch Act and its 
revisions. 

INSPECTIONS 
We may conduct searches after notice is given and with the employee's consent of employees' personal 
effects. This may include, but is not limited to : lunch bags, boxes, purses, personal computers, 
packages, or vehicles. 
We may conduct searches of the above items without employee consent if we have a reasonable 
suspicion to believe that illegal activity is taking place and after obtaining a warrant to do so. Any illegal 
and unauthorized articles discovered may be taken into custody and will be turned over to law 
enforcement representatives. 

Employees do not have a reasonable expectation of privacy in lockers, desks, cabinets, or file drawers, 
all of which are keyed by the Town and copies of those keys are kept by the Town. 

PARKING 

I February 20154 Page 38 

207



If you are parking at the town Hall for business purposes and will be here less than an hour, please park 
against the rock wall and not in the middle spaces immediately in front of the grocery store. If you will 
be longer than an hour, please utilize the Gondola Parking Garage. 

If you are driving your personal vehicle to /from work, parking permit stickers are available from the 
police department if you work in town hall. Department head authorization is required. 

The Town is not liable for fire, theft, damage or personal injury involving employees' automobiles. 
Protect your property by locking your car. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 
The Town reserves the right to review employee performance at any time. Evaluating employee job 
performance and providing feedback is an important factor in making employment-related decisions. 
Seasonal employees will receive evaluations at the end of each season. All other employees receive an 
annual performance evaluation. 

PROBLEM SOLVING 

If you have a problem concerning a work-related matter, discuss it with your immediate supervisor, 
where appropriate. Normally, this discussion should be held within 3-5 days ofthe incident or in a 
timely manner. Discussions held in a timely manner will enhance our ability to resolve concerns while 
it's fresh in everyone's mind. The majority of misunderstandings can be resolved at this level. 

If the solution offered is not satisfactory, or if it is inappropriate to go to the supervisor, then employees 
are encouraged to take the problem to Human Resources. Ifthe problem still cannot be resolved, 
employees may submit a written complaint to the Town Manager for review and final decision about 
the situation. Also see (EEO Harassment Complaint Procedure) 

THEFT /PROPERTY LOSSES or DAMAGE 

Theft of Town or Employee Property 
The Town assumes no responsibility for the property of its employees. However, the Town is committed 
to ensuring a safe and secure working environment. Theft of money or property from the Town or its 
employees will be promptly and thoroughly investigated. Such investigations will be conducted by the 
Town and, if the size and nature of the theft warrants, the Police Department (MVPD). All employees 
are asked to assist in ensuring the on-going security of the Town and employee property by immediately 
reporting any suspicious activity to their supervisor, Human Resources, Risk Management or the police 
department. 

Town Property Losses or Damage 
All losses of Town property, including theft, fire or accidental damage, must be reported immediately to 
a supervisor. The supervisor will take appropriate action informing Risk Management and the MVPD (if 
appropriate) and will complete the Incident/Accident Report. Risk Management, the supervisor and 
Safety Committee will conduct an investigation. Once the investigation is completed a report will be 
submitted to the Town Manager. In cases involving losses or damage to Town property, the Town may 
ask an employee to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test in accordance with the Town's Drug and 
Alcohol Policy. The employee has the option of obtaining insurance to cover any possible loss or 
damage to personal property. 

February 2015.4 Page 39 

If you are parking at the town Hall for business purposes and will be here less than an hour, please park 
against the ro ck wall and not in the middle spaces immediately in front of the grocery store. If you will 
be longer than an hour, please utilize the Gondola Parking Garage. 

If you are driving your personal vehicle to /from work, parking permit stickers are available from the 
police department if you work in town hall. Department head authorization is required. 

The Town is not liable for fire, theft, damage or personal injury involving employees' automobiles. 
Protect your property by locking your car. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 
The Town reserves the right to review employee performance at any time. Evaluating employee job 
performance and providing feedback is an important factor in making employment-related decisions. 
Seasonal employees will receive eva luations at the end of each season. All other employees receive an 
annual performance evaluation. 

PROBLEM SOLVING 

If you have a problem concerning a work-related matter, discuss it with your immediate supervisor, 
where appropriate. Normally, this discussion should be held within 3-5 days of the incident or in a 
timely manner. Discussions held in a timely manner will enhance our ability to resolve concerns while 
it's fresh in everyone's mind. The majority of misunderstandings can be resolved at this level. 

If the solution offered is not satisfactory, or if it is inappropriate to go to the supervisor, then employees 
are encouraged to take the problem to Human Resources. If the problem still cannot be resolved, 
employees may submit a written complaint to the Town Manager for review and final decision about 
the situation. Also see (E£O Harassment Complaint Procedure) 

THEFT /PROPERTY LOSSES or DAMAGE 

Theft of Town or Employee Property 
The Town assumes no responsibility for the property of its employees. However, the Town is committed 
to ensuring a safe and secure working environment. Theft of money or property from the Town or its 
employees will be promptly and thoroughly investigated. Such investigations will be conducted by the 
Town and, if the size and nature of the theft warrants, the Police Department (MVPD). All employees 
are asked to assist in ensuring the on-going security of the Town and employee property by immediately 
reporting any suspicious activity to their supervisor, Human Resources, Risk Management or the police 
department. 

Town Property Losses or Oamage 
All losses of Town property, including theft, fire or accidental damage, must be reported immediately to 
a supervisor. The supervisor will take appropriate action informing Risk Management and the MVPD (if 
appropriate) and will complete the Incident/Accident Report. Risk Management, the supervisor and 
Safety Committee will conduct an investigation. Once the investigation is completed a report will be 
submitted to the Town Manager. In cases involving losses or damage to Town property, the Town may 
ask an employee to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test in accordance with the Town's Drug and 
Alcohol Policy. The employee has the option of obtaining insurance to cover any possible loss or 
damage to personal property. 

208



Town Vehicles and Equipment Losses 
As an employee, you must comply with all state and local laws in reporting accidents involving Town 
vehicles and equipment. All vehicle accidents on public roads or private property should be immediately 
reported to the Police Department or appropriate law enforcement agency and to your supervisor. Do 
not move a vehicle involved in an accident until a law enforcement officer authorizes you to do so. A 
"Vehicle Accident Report Form" must be filled out the same day the accident has occurred. 

Incident Inquiries 
You might anticipate that an accident or incident relating to the Town's operations will generate inquiry 
from the press, insurance adjusters, attorneys, etc. Before responding to any such inquiry, it is essential 
that you first bring the inquiry and the circumstances surrounding the inquiry to the attention of your 
supervisor and the Town Manager. Do not talk to ANYONE regarding the incident without permission 
from the Manager. Get the phone number and name of the individual inquiring and indicate that you 
will have someone follow up. By following this procedure, you will not only protect your own interests 
but also the interests of the Town. 

SMOKING 
Smoking 
The Town of Mountain Village recognizes that smoking and tobacco chewing in the workplace can 

adversely affect employees and guests and are prohibited. The time spent away from 
your job to smoke or chew tobacco must be limited to Breaks and Lunch Periods. In 
accordance with the Colorado Clean Indoor Air Act, smoking is prohibited in all Town 
facilities, vehicles, or in any workplace. This includes lobbies, elevators, restrooms, 
reception areas, hallways and any other common-use areas, child day care facilities, 
common areas of Village Court Apartments, public transportation of any kind 
(including gondola cabins/terminals, Dial a Ride, employee shuttles and all Town 

vehicles). In addition, smoking is prohibited within 15 feet of any main entrance. This includes.2.!! 
buildings and gondola terminals. 

TERMINATING EMPLOYMENT 

Exit interviews 
Exit interviews with the Human Resources Department gather constructive feedback from employees 
who leave the Town. The purposes ofthis interview are to review eligibility for benefit continuation and 
conversion, ensure necessary forms are completed, collect all Town property that may be in the 
employee's possession (keys, phones), and provide employees with an opportunity to discuss their job
related experiences. 

Employees may be considered for re-employment provided they qualify for the position of interest and 
while they were employed with the Town maintained satisfactory performance and attendance. 

Final Paycheck Issuance 
The Supervisor ensures that all Town property (uniforms, keys, tools, radios, ski passes, advances, 
overdrawn PTO etc.) is returned or paid back prior to the preparation of the employee's final check. As 
disclosed in this handbook and on the Uniform/ Equipment Log signed by the employee at the time 
Town property is issued, the Town will deduct an amount equal to the value of all money owed or un
returned Town property from the employee's final paycheck OR depending upon the circumstances, the 
Town may hold a portion of the employee's final check pending the return of Town property or money. 

February 201 54 Page 40 

Town Vehicles and Equipment Losses 
As an employee, you must comply with all state and loca l laws in reporting accidents involving Town 
vehicles and equipment. All vehicle accidents on public roads or private property should be immediately 
reported to the Police Department or appropriate law enforcement agency and to your supervisor. Do 
not move a vehicle involved in an accident until a law enforcement officer authorizes you to do so. A 
"Vehicle Accident Report Form" must be fil led out the same day the accident has occurred. 

Incident Inquiries 
You might anticipate that an accident or incident relating to the Town's operations will generate inquiry 
from the press, insurance adjusters, attorneys, etc. Before responding to any such inquiry, it is essential 
tha t you first bring the inquiry and the circumstances surrounding the inquiry to the attention of your 
supervisor and the Town Manager. Do not ta lk to ANYONE regarding the incident without permission 
from the Manager. Get the phone number and name of the individual inquiring and indicate that you 
will have someone follow up. By following this procedure, you will not only protect your own interests 
but also the interests of the Tow n. 

SMOKING 
Smoking 
The Town of Mountain Village recognizes that smoking and tobacco chewing in the workplace can 

adversely affect employees and guests and are prohibited. The time spent away from 
your job to smoke or chew tobacco must be limited to Breaks and Lunch Periods. In 
accordance with the Colorado Clean Indoor Air Act, smoking is prohibited in all Town 
faci lities, vehicles, or in any workplace. This includes lobbies, elevators, restrooms, 
reception areas, hallways and any other common-use areas, child day care facilities, 
common areas of Vi llage Court Apartments, public transportation of any kind 
(including gondola cabins/terminals, Dial a Ride, employee shuttles and all Town 

vehicles). In addition, smoking is prohibited within 15 feet of any main entrance. This includes all 
buildings and gondola terminals. 

TERMINATING EMPLOYMENT 

Exit interviews 
Exit interviews with the Human Re sources Department gather constructive feedback from employees 
who leave the Town. The purposes of this interview are to review eligibility for benefit continuation and 
conversion, ensure necessary forms are completed, collect all Town property that may be in the 
employee's possession (keys, phones), and provide employees with an opportunity to discuss their job
related experiences. 

Employees may be considered for re-employment provided they qualify for the position of interest and 
while they were employed with the Town maintained satisfactory performance and attendance. 

Final Paycheck Issuance 
The Supervisor ensures that all Town property (uniforms, keys, tools, radios, ski passes, advances, 
overdrawn PTO etc.) is returned or paid back prior to the preparation of the employee's final check. As 
disclosed in this handbook and on the Uniforml Equipment log signed by the employee at the time 
Town property is issued, the Town will deduct an amount equal to the value of all money owed or un
returned Town property from the employee's final paycheck OR depending upon the circumstances, the 
Town may hold a portion of the employee's final che.ck pending the return of Town property or money. 

February 20154 Page 40 

209



Final paychecks are issued for all voluntarily and involuntarily terminated employees on the next 
regularly scheduled payday, unless other arrangements are requested and approved for earlier issuance. 
Paydays occur every two weeks on Friday. 

VEHICLE USE 

The Town owns a variety of vehicles from heavy equipment on down to small trucks. These vehicles are 
used for transporting personnel, equipment and supplies and for working on a variety of construction 
and snow removal projects. In some cases, employees use vehicles during and after normal business 
hours while conducting Town business. Authorized personnel who use Town vehicles will receive a 
copy ofthe Vehicle Use and Care Procedure. Employees of the Town will not be authorized to use Town 
owned vehicles for personal use. "Personal use" is defined as any use of a vehicle that does not occur 
during the performance of one's job duties. The operation of Town vehicles by non-employees (i.e.: 
friends or family members of employees) is strictly forbidden. Non-employees shall not use, operate or 
perform any kind of maintenance on a Town vehicle. 
Any employee who operates a Town vehicle must be on a qualified Town Vehicle Operator list and must 
meet the following criteria: 

• Have valid Drivers' License to operate vehicle, 
• Have supervisor's authorization to operate the vehicle, 
• Have acceptable driving record as verified by a DMV background check, 
• Be operating a vehicle on Town business or for authorized direct commute to work or home 

only, and 
• Have completed vehicle checklist before operating the vehicle. 

• Obey ALL traffic laws 
• Are responsible for ensuring the safe operation of the vehicle at all times. 

The driver and passengers must utilize the safety seat belts at all times when the vehicle is in service in 
compliance with Colorado law. 

The following activities will not be tolerated: 

• Operating a Town vehicle in violation of applicable laws and regulations or in a careless manner. 
• Operating a Town vehicle without permission. 
• Operating a Town vehicle without a valid driver's license or without proof of insurance. 
• Operating a Town vehicle while using or while under the influence of alcohol or drugs. 
• Smoking and tobacco chewing are strictly prohibited in Town vehicles 
• Utilizing a Town vehicle to transport hitchhikers. 
• Falsification of information on Driver's Questionnaire form. 

If an employee operates a Town vehicle in violation of any of the above, the employee will receive a 
written warning and depending upon the nature and circumstances surrounding the infraction, may be 
subject to additional disciplinary action up to and including termination. If the driver is cited and fined 
for an invalid driver's license, proof of insurance, expired registration, driving a vehicl.e not in proper 
working condition or for disobeying the law, any fines will be the responsibility of the employee. These 
are not Town expenses. Proof of insurance and copies of the current registration can be obtained from 
the transportation department. 

Emergency Use/Extended work hours 

February 20154 Page 41 

Final paychecks are issued for all voluntarilv and involuntarilv terminated emplovees on the next 
regularlv scheduled payday, unless other arrangements are requested and approved for earlier issuance. 
Paydays occur every two weeks on Fridav. 

VEHICLE USE 

The Town owns a variety of vehicles from heavy equipment on down to small trucks. These vehicles are 
used for transporting personnel, equipment and supplies and for working on a variety of construction 
and snow removal projects. In some cases, emplovees use vehicles during and after normal business 
hours while conducting Town business. Authorized personnel who use Town vehicles will receive a 
copy of the Vehicle Use and Care Procedure. Employees of the Town will not be authorized to use Town 
owned vehicles for personal use. "Personal use" is defined as any use of a vehicle that does not occur 
during the performance of one's job duties. The operation of Town vehicles by non-employees (i .e.: 
friends or family members of employees) is strictly forbidden. Non-employees shall not use, operate or 
perform any kind of maintenance on a Town vehicle. 
Any employee who operates a Town vehicle must be on a qualified Town Vehicle Operator list and must 
meet the following criteria : 

• Have valid Drivers' license to operate vehicle, 

• Have supervisor's authorization to operate the vehicle, 

• Have acceptable driving record as verified by a DMV background check, 

• Be operating a vehicle on Town business or for authorized direct commute to work or home 
only, and 

• Have completed vehicle checklist before operating the vehicle. 

• Obey ALL traffic laws 
• Are responsible for ensuring the safe operation of the vehicle at all times. 

The driver and passengers must utilize the safety seat belts at all times when the vehicle is in service In 
compliance with Colorado law. 

The following activities will not be tolerated: 

• Operating a Town vehicle in violation of applicable laws and regulations or in a careless manner. 

• Operating a Town vehicle without permission. 

• Operating a Town vehicle without a valid driver's license or without proof of insurance. 

• Operating a Town vehicle while using or while under the influence of alcohol or drugs. 

• Smoking and tobacco chewing are strictly prohibited in Town vehicles 

• Utilizing a Town vehicle to transport hitchhikers. 

• Falsification of information on Driver's Questionnaire form. 

If an employee operates a Town vehicle in violation of any of the above, the employee will receive a 
written warning and depending upon the nature and circumstances surrounding the infraction, may be 
subject to additional disciplinary action up to and including termination . If the driver is cited and fined 
for an invalid driver's license, proof of insurance, expired registration, driving a vehicl.e not in proper 
working condition or for disobeying the law, any fines will be the responsibility of the employee. These 
are not Town expenses. Proof of insurance and copies of the current registration can be obtained from 
the transportation department. 

Emergency Use/Extended work hours 

February 20154 Page 41 

210



From time to time a personal emergency situation may arise or, an employee without personal 
transportation may be asked for extended work hours. In these cases a Department Head may 
authorize a properly licensed employee to use an appropriate Town vehicle, if one is available. If a 
vehicle is not available, the Town will try to accommodate the employee with alternative transportation. 

Use of Town owned, leased or sponsored vehicles for business travel 
From time to time it may be necessary for an authorized employee to use a Town vehicle for business 
travel, locally or out-of-Town. In these cases a Department Head may authorize a properly licensed 
employee to use an appropriate Town vehicle, if one is available. 

Commuter Shuttles 
It is the intent of the Town to provide safe and reliable transportation to and from work for groups of 
three (3) or more employees who work similar shifts and who commute in similar directions from the 
same location or on the same general route. Employees of the Town may access the shuttle system by 
contacting the Transit Coordinator. 

• Employees currently pay a pre-determined rate per ride, deducted bi-weekly from their 
paycheck for this service. For the current rate please contact the Human Resources 
Department. 

• Any employee who drives a shuttle is considered a safety sensitive employee as defined by 49 
CFR Part 655, as amended, and must submit to a urine test and undergo a minimum of 60 
minutes of training on the signs and symptoms of drug use on personal health, safety and the 
work environment. 

• Drivers are required to have a valid driver's license. 
• Must be 21 or over to drive shuttles. 

Employees that utilize the shuttles to commute to and from work that arrive and depart outside their 
regularly scheduled workday must adhere to their regularly assigned workday schedule. Shuttle arrival 
and departure times do not supersede or alter your assigned work scheduled nor is it to be considered 
authorization for overtime or authorization to leave work early. Management does not expect 
employees to start their workday any earlier or end their workday any earlier as a result of riding a 
shuttle. 

WORK ASSIGNMENTS & SCHEDULES 
The scheduling of work assignments and work-day schedules are the responsibility of each supervisor. If 
you have any questions about or difficulty with your work assignment, please discuss it with your 
supervisor. If you are unable to perform any duty assigned to you, let your supervisor know 
immediately. 
Participation in the Employee Shuttle Program is not to be considered authorization to deviate from 
the regularly assigned work-day schedules. 

February 20154 Page 42 

From time to time a personal emergency situation may arise or, an employee without personal 
transportation may be asked for extended work hours. In these cases a Department Head may 
authorize a properly licensed employee to use an appropriate Town vehicle, if one is available. If a 
vehicle is not available, the Town will try to accommodate the employee with alternative transportation. 

Use of Town owned, leased or sponsored "ehicles for business travel 
From time to time it may be necessary for an authorized employee to use a Town vehicle for business 
travel, locally or out-of-Town. In these cases a Department Head may authorize a properly licensed 
employee to use an appropriate Town vehicle, if one is available. 

Commuter Shuttles 
It is the intent of the Town to provide safe and reliable transportation to and from work for groups of 
three (3) or more employees who work similar shjfts and who commute in similar directions from the 
same location or on the same general route . Employees of the Town may access the shuttle system by 
contacting the Transit Coordinator. 

• Employees currently pay a pre-determined rate per ride, deducted bi~weekly from their 
paycheck for this service. For the current rate please contact the Human Resources 
Department. 

• Any employee who drives a shuttle is considered a safety sensitive employee as defined by 49 
CFR Part 655, as amended, and must submit to a urine test and undergo a minimum of 60 
minutes of training on the signs and symptoms of drug use on personal health, safety and the 
work environment. 

• Drivers are required to have a valid driver's license. 
• Must be 21 or over to drive shuttles. 

Employees that utilize the shuttles to commute to and from work that arrive and depart outside their 
regularly scheduled workday must adhere to their regularly assigned workday schedule. Shuttle arrival 
and departure times do not supersede or alter your assigned work scheduled nor is it to be considered 
authorization for overtime or authorization to leave work early. Management does not expect 
employees to start their workday any earlier or end their workday any earlier as a result of riding a 
shuttle. 

WORK ASSIGNMENTS & SCHEDULES 
The scheduling of work assignments and work-day schedules are the responsibility of each supervisor. If 
you have any questions about or difficulty with your work assignment, please discuss it with your 
supervisor. If you are unable to perform any duty aSSigned to you, let your supervisor know 
immediately. 
Participation in the Employee Shuttle Program is not to be considered authorization to deviate from 
the regularly assigned work~day schedules. 

February 2015:4 Page 42 

211



Policy Adoption 

The aforementioned employee handbook was reviewed and approved by the Mountain 
Village Town Council at a public meeting on February 20, 20154. 

Town of Mountain Village 

By: ___________ ____ _ 

Mayor Dan Jansen 

By: 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

February 20154 Page 43 

Policy Adoption 

The aforementioned employee handbook was reviewed and approved by the Mountain 
Village Town Council at a public meeting on Februarv 20, 20154. 

Town of Mountain Village 

By: _____________ _ 

Mayor Dan Jansen 

By: 
Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

I February 2015.4 Page 43 

212



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT 

I HAVE RECEIVED A COpy OF THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK DATED Feluwary aQ, aQ14February 19, 2015. 

I UNDERSTAND THAT I AM TO BECOME FAMILIAR WITH ITS CONTENTS. FURTHER, I UNDERSTAND: 

u THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS HANDBOOK AND ANY VERBAL STATEMENTS OF MANAGEMENT ARE 

NOT INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 

NOR ARE THEY A GUARANTEE OF EMPLOYMENT FOR A SPECIFIC DURATION. 

u THE HANDBOOK IS NOT ALL INCLUSIVE, BUT IS INTENDED TO PROVIDE ME WITH A SUMMARY OF 

SOME OF THE TOWN'S GUIDELINES. 

u THIS EDITION REPLACES ALL PREVIOUSLY ISSUED HANDBOOKS. THE NEED MAY ARISE TO CHANGE 

THE GUIDELINES DESCRIBED IN THE HANDBOOK. THE TOWN THEREFORE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO 

INTERPRET THEM OR TO CHANGE THEM WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE. 

u NO REPRESENTATIVE OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, OTHER THAN THE TOWN MANAGER, 

HAS THE AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT OF EMPLOYMENT FOR ANY SPECIFIED 

PERIOD AND SUCH AGREEMENT MUST BE IN WRITING, SIGNED BY THE TOWN MANAGER AND 

MYSELF. WE HAVE NOT ENTERED INTO SUCH AN AGREEMENT. 

Print Employee Name Signature 

Date 

February 20154 Page 44 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT 

I HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK DATED FelnW3FY 300. ::;I014Februarv 19. 2015. 
I UNDERSTAND THAT I AM TO BECOME FAMILIAR WITH ITS CONTENTS. FURTHER, I UNDERSTAND: 

u THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS HANDBOOK AND ANY VERBAL STATEMENTS OF MANAGEMENT ARE 
NOT INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
NOR ARE THEY A GUARANTEE OF EMPLOYMENT FOR A SPECIFIC DURATION. 

u THE HANDBOOK IS NOT ALL INCLUSIVE, BUT IS INTENDED TO PROVIDE ME WITH A SUMMARY OF 
SOME OF THE TOWN'S GUIDELINES. 

u THIS EDITION REPLACES ALL PREVIOUSLY ISSUED HANDBOOKS. THE NEED MAY ARISE TO CHANGE 
THE GUIDELINES DESCRIBED IN THE HANDBOOK. THE TOWN THEREFORE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO 
INTERPRET THEM OR TO CHANGE THEM WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE. 

u NO REPRESENTATIVE OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, OTHER THAN THE TOWN MANAGER, 
HAS THE AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT OF EMPLOYMENT FOR ANY SPECIFIED 
PERIOD AND SUCH AGREEMENT MUST BE IN WRITING, SIGNED BY THE TOWN MANAGER AND 
MYSelF. WE HAVE NOT ENTERED INTO SUCH AN AGREEMENT. 

Print Employee Name Signature 

Date 

213



 

 

Memo              12 a 4 

To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council 

Date: February 12, 2015 

Re: Town Council Compensation 
 
At the November, 2014 meeting, council asked for some possible benefit options for town council members for purposes of 
recruiting and rewarding members. 
 
According to the Town Charter, Section 3.4: 
 

Town Council compensation may, by ordinance, amend or otherwise modify the compensation to the Mayor and Town 
Councilors as described in this Charter.  In the event the compensation set forth in this Charter is from time to time subsequently 
amended or modified by ordinance, such amendment or modification shall not affect the compensation of any Mayor or Town 
Councilors then in office during their current term of office. 
 
If any changes are recommended, the first reading of an ordinance would have to take place at the April meeting and second 
reading in May for this to be effective for the new council. 
 
Compensation 
 

Currently $100 per month (Mayor) and $50 per month (Councilors). 
 

Compensation Comparison of other Similar Municipalities 

 

 
SALARY HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS 

  COUNCIL MAYOR   

Telluride $800/month $1500/month  
Reimbursed for health insurance expenses up to the employee's 
budgeted amount for health (currently $443/month).    

Aspen     
council member only OR eligible for a stipend equal to the cost 
he/she is paying for single coverage 

Avon 

$500/mo                          
(2 mtgs per month) 

$750/month ( pro tem) 
$1000/  month (mayor) 

health benefits and family rec pass 

Breckenridge 
$800/month $1200/month can choose to participate in either medical or dental plan or take 

cash equivalent 

SMC $58,000/yr - 
Receives a full benefits package.  Salary is determined by the 
state and county classifications.  SMC is a class III county. 

Crested Butte Town $400/month $800/month no coverage 

Mt. Crested Butte 
$75/mtg                         
2 mtgs per month 

$150/mtg                                          
2 mtgs per month   

Telluride $800/month $1500 /month  

214



 

2 

Some possible benefits the town could offer include: 

 Free basic cable  

 Free water  

 Free sewer  

 401(K)- can contribute up to 100% of your compensation pre-tax 

 Town match option 

 Can rollover money from other qualified plans into 401K 

 457  Roth IRA  -pending option 

 Taxes are withheld before contributions are invested in your account 

 Withdrawal of contributions/ earnings are tax free 

 Health, dental, vision, life insurance  (see costs below) 

 Employee Assistance Program (EAP)  

 Free financial, legal and personal counseling 

 Identity theft protection services 
 

Town council members are PERA members if they accept any compensation. 
 PERA benefits include: 

 13.7% employer match on salary 

 3% interest  on member contributions 

 Voluntary life insurance option  

 Option to rollover PERA monies to a 401(k) upon termination of employment 
 

Benefit costs for comparison  (all are annual costs) 
  

 
Employer cost 

Employee 
cost 

Total 
Compensation 

Pay $600.00 $0.00 $600.00 

PERA $82.20 $48.00 $130.20 

PERA voluntary life insurance  $0.00 $93.00 $93.00 

Season ski pass $795.00 $0.00 $795.00 

Health, dental, vision (Employee only) $7,419.00 $0.00 $7,419.00 

401(k) and/or 457 $600.00 $93.00 $93.00 

Employee Assistance Program $29.76 $0.00 $29.76 

Water $516.00 $0.00 $516.00 
Sewer $516.00 $0.00 $516.00 

Cable                      $599.40               $0.00                     $599.40 

 
            $10,557.96           $234.00               $10,191.96 

215



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392 
 

Agenda Item No. 13 
              
TO:  Town Council 
   
FROM: Chris Hawkins, Director of Community Development 
 
FOR:  Meeting of February 19, 2015 
 
DATE:  February 13, 2015 
 
RE:  Conceptual Work Session to Discuss Conditional Use Permit for New 
Freestanding Antennas on Coonskin Ridge Located on OSP-49R 
 
             
 
PROJECT GEOGRAPHY 
Legal Description:   Lot 49R 
Address:    NA 
Applicant/Agent:   New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC d/b/a AT&T 
Owner:   TSG Ski and Golf, LLC 
Zoning:    Full Use Active Open Space 
Existing Use:   Telecommunications Antenna 
Proposed Use:   New Freestanding Antenna 
Adjacent Land Uses: 

o North:  USFS 
o South:  The Ridge 
o East:  The Ridge 
o West:  Open Space 

ATTACHMENTS 
Exhibit A: Applicant Narrative and Conceptual Plans 
 
RECORD DOCUMENTS 

 Town of Mountain Village Community Development Code (as adopted March 2013) 
 Town of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter (as amended on June 28, 2005) 
 Design Review Application as maintained by the Community Development Department. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current antenna on Coonskin Ridge, located by the Ridge was approved by San Miguel 
County prior to incorporation, with a height of approximately 90 feet.  The current tower is 
maxed out and cannot support any additional equipment, so the applicant is proposing the new 
tower.  The applicant is proposing a new tower as outlined in its narrative, with three options for 
consideration: 
 
Primary Option:  Construction of a new second tower about 20' away from the existing tower 
with the existing tower remaining in place for current broadcasters' antennas.  The new tower 

216



would be 100' tall, and would accommodate AT&T and would provide the most colocation 
potential. 
  
Second Option. This option has the same scenario as the first option but the second, new 
tower would be 90 feet tall matching the current tower height.  This would leave less room for 
collocation. 
  
Thrid Option.  This option would be to take down the existing tower, build a new tower that is 
100' tall, and move all broadcasters’ antennas over to the new tower.  This option would less 
room for collocation than the other two options. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The installation of a new antenna triggers the need for a conditional use permit.  In addition, the 
applicant would have to submit for a variance since the maximum height at the site that could be 
permitted is 48 feet. 
 
The Community Development Code (CDC) contains the following provisions related to the 
proposal: 
 

1. Freestanding Antenna Design Standards.  Freestanding antennas not 
mounted to a building or structure shall meet the following requirements. 

 
a. Visual impacts shall be mitigated to the extent practical; 

 
i. Visual mitigation techniques such as coloring, screening, stealth 

antennas and landscaping shall be used to the extent practicable. 
ii. The level of mitigation required will depend on the location of the 

proposed facility in relation to topographic features, important 
visual features, major public thoroughfares, public recreational 
areas, residential neighborhoods and other sensitive visual areas. 

iii. Implementation of a visual mitigation plan shall be included as a 
condition of any conditional use permit approval. 

 
b. Antenna height shall be minimized to the extent practical with the 

acceptable height permitted determined by the review authority.  In no 
event shall an antenna exceed the maximum height permitted in the 
underlying zone district unless approved by a variance or PUD 
development review process; 

c. The antenna shall be made available for the collocation of other 
telecommunication providers as a condition of approval with the goal to 
reduce the number of antennas in the town to the extent practical; and 

d. There are no other alternative antenna sites currently in existence in the 
Telluride/town region that provide for collocation and the desired 
telecommunication service, service area and telecommunication service 
provider’s technical needs. 

 
2. Consideration of Radio Frequency Emissions.  The environmental effects of 

radio frequency emissions shall not be considered an appropriate concern of an 
adjacent lot owner provided the antenna complies with the regulations of the 
Federal Communications Commission regarding such concern. 

3. No Signal Interference.  Evidence shall be submitted to demonstrate that a 
proposed communication antenna complies with all specifications of the Federal 

217



Communications Commission with respect to preventing signal interference with 
other systems, facilities, towers or antennas in the area.  After operation of the 
antenna commences, the antenna operator shall be required to investigate any 
electrical disturbances affecting operation of equipment beyond the boundaries 
of the antenna site and to resolve such disturbances if the disturbances are 
attributable to the use of the antenna. 

4. Federal and State Regulations.  Communication antennas shall comply with all 
applicable federal and state regulations. At the time application is made for a 
conditional use permit, site-plan or final plat approval, the applicant shall submit 
evidence showing he has obtained any required approvals or permits for 
commercial communication antennas from these agencies. 

 
Staff is highly supportive of improving AT&T’s capacity in Mountain Village because the current 
system does not have enough capacity to handle the peak cellular demand, especially when 
there are high occupancies in the town.  Cellular service has become extremely important 
because more households are relying on cellular communication versus land lines, with cellular 
service the only means of communication.  Moreover, excellent cellular service is important for 
the town’s economic development and attractiveness as a resort destination. 
 
Staff has some concerns over the 100 foot tower options due to potential need for a red, 
blinking beacon and increased visual impact.  However, the main goal should be to balance the 
need to minimize visual impacts while also ensuring adequate cellular coverage and future 
colocation options.  The Town of Telluride and San Miguel County may also have some visual 
impact concerns due to the CDC Ridge Regulations and an associated covenant that require a 
referral for formal development applications.  Staff has referred the conceptual worksession to 
the Town of Telluride and San Miguel County with the goal to have comments by the meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Council provide a general comments and direction on the proposal. 
As outlined in CDC Section 17.4.6.E, any comments or general direction by the Town Council 
shall not be considered binding or represent any promises, warranties, guarantees and/or 
approvals in any manner or form. A conceptual worksession shall not be construed as a 
comprehensive review of the proposal under discussion, and as such, additional issues and/or 
concerns will most likely arise as part of the formal development review process. 

218



BLACK & VEATCH 
Building a world of difference~ 

Project Location: 

DEVELOPMENTNARRATnffi 

Telluride Ski & Golf Property, Coonskin Mountain, near Ski Lift #7 
(Granite Ridge Drive), Town of Mountain Village 

AT&T Representative: Mike McCreedy, Independent Contractor of Black & Veatch, 
on behalf of New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (alk/a AT&T Mobility) 

Project Description: 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a.k.a. AT&T Mobility (hereon referred to as "AT&T") operates 
an antenna facility at the above-referenced property. AT&T's antennas are currently mounted to 
the top of an existing 90-ft.-tall guy tower. AT&T's ground equipment is currently housed inside 
an existing equipment shelter at the base of the tower. 

AT&T would like to implement much-needed upgrades to its antennas and equipment at the site, 
including the replacement of older technology antennas with newer technology "L TE" antennas. 
The proposed LTE upgrade will greatly enhance AT&T's ability to meet customer demand for data 
and voice transmission throughout the surrounding community (including the use of E-911 and 
other emergency services). 

AT&T performed an extensive structural analysis of the existing tower last year. The analysis 
concluded that the exiting tower is at capacity. It does not have the ability to accommodate the 
increased loading associated with AT&T's proposed LTE upgrade at the site. 

Proposed Scope of Work: 
To accommodate the LTE upgrade, AT&T is proposing the following: 

• Construct a new 100-ft. guy tower, located approximately 20 feet from the existing tower. 
• Relocate AT&T's antennas & cables from the existing tower over to the new tower. 
• Make the necessary LTE upgrades to AT&T's antenna configuration (described later in 

this Project Narrative). 
• TSG' s antennas and a number of broadcast antennas would remain on the existing tower. 
• The new tower would be built to accommodate future collocation. By relocating AT&T's 

antennas to the new tower, the existing tower would also have room for future collocation. 

Alternative Option #1: 
An acceptable (but less-preferred) option would consist of the following: 

• Construct a new 90-ft. guy tower (instead of a 100-ft. guy tower), located approximately 20 
feet from the existing tower. 

• Relocate AT&T's antennas & cables from the existing tower over to the new tower. 
• Make the necessary LTE upgrades to AT&T's antenna configuration on the new tower 

(described later in this Project Narrative). 
• TSG's antennas and a number of broadcast antennas would remain on the existing tower. 
• The new tower would be built to accommodate future collocation, but there would be less 

available space on this 90-ft. tower than if we built a 100' tower. It might be difficult for a 
collocator to find adequate space and an acceptable antenna height on the 90-ft. tower. 

Black & Veatch * 4600 S. Syracuse Street * Suite 300 * Denver, CO 80237 * (303) 332-1212 

BLACK & VEATCH 
Building a world of difference~ 

Project Location: 

DEVELOPMENTNARRATWE 

Telluride Ski & Golf Property, Coonskin Mountain, near Ski Lift #7 
(Granite Ridge Drive), Town of Mountain Village 

AT&T Representative: Mike McCreedy, Independent Contractor of Black & Veatch, 
on behalf of New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (a/k/a AT&T Mobility) 

Project Description: 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a.k.a. AT&T Mobility (hereon referred to as "AT&T") operates 
an antenna facility at the above-referenced property. AT&T's antennas are currently mounted to 
the top of an existing 90-ft.-tall guy tower. AT&T's ground equipment is currently housed inside 
an existing equipment shelter at the base of the tower. 

AT&T would like to implement much-needed upgrades to its antennas and equipment at the site, 
including the replacement of older technology antennas with newer technology "L TE" antennas. 
The proposed LTE upgrade will greatly enhance AT&T's ability to meet customer demand for data 
and voice transmission throughout the surrounding community (including the use of E-911 and 
other emergency services). 

AT&T performed an extensive structural analysis of the existing tower last year. The analysis 
concluded that the exiting tower is at capacity. It does not have the ability to accommodate the 
increased loading associated with AT&T's proposed LTE upgrade at the site. 

Proposed Scope of Work: 
To accommodate the LTE upgrade, AT&T is proposing the following: 

• Construct a new 100-ft. guy tower, located approximately 20 feet from the existing tower. 
• Relocate AT&T's antennas & cables from the existing tower over to the new tower. 
• Make the necessary LTE upgrades to AT&T's antenna configuration (described later in 

this Project Narrative). 
• TSG' s antennas and a number of broadcast antennas would remain on the existing tower. 
• The new tower would be built to accommodate future collocation. By relocating AT&T's 

antennas to the new tower, the existing tower would also have room for future collocation. 

Alternative Option #1: 
An acceptable (but less-preferred) option would consist of the following: 

• Construct a new 90-ft. guy tower (instead of a tOO-ft. guy tower), located approximately 20 
feet from the existing tower. 

• Relocate AT&T's antennas & cables from the existing tower over to the new tower. 
• Make the necessary LTE upgrades to AT&T's antenna configuration on the new tower 

(described later in this Project Narrative). 
• TSG's antennas and a number of broadcast antennas would remain on the existing tower. 
• The new tower would be built to accommodate future collocation, but there would be less 

available space on this 90-ft. tower than if we built a 100' tower. It might be difficult for a 
collocator to find adequate space and an acceptable antenna height on the 90-ft. tower. 

Black & Veatch * 4600 S. Syracuse Street * Suite 300 * Denver, CO 80237 * (303) 332-1212 219



Alternative Option #2: 
Another acceptable (but less preferred) option would consist of the following: 

• Construct a new 100-ft. tower, located approximately 20 feet from the existing tower. 
• Relocate all antennas from the existing tower over to the new tower (including AT&T's 

antennas, TSG's antennas and several broadcast antennas). 
• Completely dismantle and remove the existing 90-ft. tower. 
• Make the necessary LTE upgrades to AT&T's antenna configuration on the new tower 

(described later in this Project Narrative). 
• Because the new tower would be 10' ta ller than the existing tower, there would be room on 

it for future co-location. But because the existing tower would be dismantled, TSG's 
antennas and the broadcast antennas would all be relocated to the new tower. Thus, the 
new tower would be crowded with antennas, and there would be less avai lable space for 
future collocation than if we had left the existing tower in place. 

Upon the completion of the Proposed Scope of Work (or Alternative Option #1 or Alternative 
Option #2), AT&T would then be able to complete the following LTE upgrades at the site: 

• Remove three (3) existing 8' panel antennas; 
• Remove three (3) existing TMA's (power booster devices that sit behind the antennas); 
• Remove three (3) existing antenna mounting arms; 
• Insta ll three (3) new antenna mounting arms; 
• Install six (6) new 8' L TE antennas; and sometime in the future, install six (6) more 8' 

L TE antennas; 
• Install nine (9) new remote radio heads (auxiliary devices that sit behind the antennas); and 

sometime in the future, install fifteen ( 15) more remote radio heads; 
• Install two (2) new surge suppressors (aux iliary devices that mount to the tower behind the 

antennas); and sometime in the future, install one (1) more surge suppressor; 
• install one (1) new 4'-diameter microwave dish (and associated mount, ice shield, and 

cable) at a dish centerline height of70'; 
• Run four (4) new DC power trunks and two (2) new fiber trunks up the tower to the new 

antennas; and sometime in the future, run four (4) additional power trunks up the tower; 
• Attach one ( I) new GPS antenna on the new ice bridge running from the equ ipment shelter 

to the new tower; 
• Various work inside AT&T's existing eq uipment shelter (including the removal and 

replacement of a battery rack, the removal and replacement of a power plant, the removal 
and replacement of various equipment racks, and the installation of some MW equipment). 

Please see attached plans, which describes the Proposed Scope of Work in more detail. 

Conditional Use Permit - Criteria for Decision: 

a) The proposed conditional use is in general confonnity with the principles, policies and 
actions set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The existing telecom facility has been in 
operation on the subject property for several decades, and AT&T has been a user of the 
facility for many years. The proposed tower wi ll be consistent with the existing use of the 
property as well as with the Comprehensive Plan. 

b) Because the proposed tower will be consistent with the current use of the subject property, 
the proposed conditional use will be in harmony and compatible with surrounding land 
uses and the neighborhood. The proposed tower will not create a substantial adverse 
impact on adjacent properties or on serv ices and infrastructure. The general size and 
appearance of the proposed tower will be relatively similar to that of the existing tower, 

Black & Veatch * 4600 S. Syracuse Street * Suite 300 * Denver, CO 80237 * (303) 332-1 2 12 

Alternative Option #2: 
Another acceptable (but less preferred) option would consist of the following: 

• Construct a new 100-ft. tower, located approximately 20 feet from the existing tower. 
• Relocate all antennas from the existing tower over to the new tower (including AT&T's 

antennas, TSG' s antennas and several broadcast antennas). 
• Completely dismantle and remove the existing 90-ft. tower. 
• Make the necessary LTE upgrades to AT&T's antenna configuration on the new tower 

(described later in this Project Narrative). 
• Because the new tower would be 10' taller than the existing tower, there would be room on 

it for future co-location. But because the existing tower would be dismantled, TSG's 
antennas and the broadcast antennas would all be relocated to the new tower. Thus, the 
new tower would be crowded with antennas, and there would be less avai lable space for 
future col location than if we had left the existing tower in place. 

Upon the completion of the Proposed Scope of Work (or Alternative Option #1 or Alternative 
Option #2), AT&T would then be able to complete the following LTE upgrades at the site: 

• Remove three (3) existing 8' panel antennas; 
• Remove three (3) existing TMA's (power booster devices that sit behind the antennas); 
• Remove three (3) existing antenna mounting arms; 
• Install three (3) new antenna mounting arms; 
• Install six (6) new 8' L TE antennas; and sometime in the future, install six (6) more 8' 

L TE antennas; 
• Install nine (9) new remote radio heads (auxiliary devices that sit behind the antennas); and 

sometime in the future, install fifteen (15) more remote radio heads; 
• Install two (2) new surge suppressors (aux iliary devices that mount to the tower behind the 

antennas); and sometime in the future, install one (1) more surge suppressor; 
• Install one (1) new 4' -diameter microwave dish (and associated mount, ice shield, and 

cable) at a dish centerline beight of70'; 
• Run four (4) new DC power trunks and two (2) new fiber trunks up the tower to the new 

antennas; and sometime in the future, run four (4) additional power trunks up the tower; 
• Attach one (1) new GPS antenna on the new ice bridge running from the equipment shelter 

to the new tower; 
• Various work inside AT&T's existing eq uipment shelter (including the removal and 

replacement of a battery rack, the removal and replacement of a power plant, the removal 
and replacement of various equipment racks, and the installation of some MW equi pment). 

Please see attached plans, which describes the Proposed Scope of Work in more detail. 

Conditional Use Permit - Criteria for Decision: 

a) The proposed conditional use is in general confonn ity with the principles, policies and 
actions set forth in the Comprehensive Plan. The existing telecom facility has been in 
operation on the subject property for several decades, and AT&T has been a user of the 
faci li ty for many years. The proposed tower wi ll be consistent with the existing use of the 
property as well as witb the Comprehensive Plan. 

b) Because the proposed tower wi ll be consistent with tbe current use of the subject property, 
the proposed conditional use will be in harmony and compatible with surrounding land 
uses and the neighborhood. The proposed tower will not create a substantial adverse 
impact on adjacent properties or on services and infrastructure. The general size and 
appearance of the proposed tower wi ll be relatively similar to that of the existing tower, 

Black & Veatch * 4600 S. Syracuse Street * Suite 300 * Denver, CO 80237 * (303) 332-1 2 12 220



except that it will be stronger, stouter and slightly taller. It will be able to accommodate 
the structural loading of the LTE antennas and equipment (a benefit to mobile phone users 
in the community). The proposed tower will also accommodate future collocation by other 
telecom providers (also a benefit to the community because it reduces the proliferation of 
towers in the area). The te lecom facility has been in existence on this property since the 
1960's, so the proposed tower will not be significant change to what is there now. From 
most vantage points, the existing tower is masked by trees and topography, as will the 
proposed tower. The proposed tower will not significantly change the overall appearance 
oftbe telecom facility. 

c) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not constitute 
a substantial physical hazard to the neighborhood, public facilities, infrastructure or open 
space. From a structural standpoint, the existing tower is already at capacity, and any 
increase in the loading of the tower would be unsafe. By constructing a newer stronger 
tower, some much needed L TE upgrades can be made to the telecom facility without 
compromising safety. 

d) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use sball not have a 
significant adverse effect to the surrounding property owners and uses. As mentioned 
above, the existing telecom facility has been in existence for nearly 50 years. The 
proposed improvements to the site will not significantly alter the appearance, traffic or 
noi se experienced by surrounding property owners. And tbe proposed modifications will 
benefit the surrounding community by greatly improving mobile phone service (including 
E-9 11 and other emergency services). 

e) Tbe design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not have a 
significant adverse effect on open space or the purposes of the facilities owned by the 
Town. And the proposed modifications will benefit the Town by improving service to 
mobile phone users (including E-911 and other emergency services). 

f) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use sball minimize 
adverse environmental and visual impacts to the extent possible considering the natnre of 
the proposed conditional use. There is already an access road cut to the existing telecom 
facility. Tbere is also power and Telco servicing the site. By utilizing an existing telecom 
facility, we eliminate the need to cut a new access road or run new utilities. Also, because 
the proposed tower will generally be tbe same relative size and appearance as the existing 
tower, visual impact will be minimized. 

g) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall provide 
adequate infrastructure. Road access and utilities are already available at the site. And the 
proposed tower will provide adequate structural capacity for new technology to be 
implemented. The proposed tower will also accommodate collocation. 

h) The proposed conditional use does not potentially damage or contaminate any public, 
private, residential or agricu ltural water supply source. 

i) Because of its height, the existing tower is out of compliance with the Town's regulations. 
The height of the proposed tower will also be out of compliance. We are requesting a 
height variance so that AT&T's antennas can maintain an adequate centerline, and thereby 
propagate signal over surrounding trees and topography. This will allow the site to provide 
quality service to mobile phone users in the area. Other than the height of the tower, the 
proposed variance meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

Variance - Criteria for Decision: 

a) The strict enforcement of the CDC regulations would result in exceptional and undue 
hardship upon AT&T in the development of property lot because of special circumstances 
applicable to the lot. For many years, AT&T's antennas have been operating at a height of 
93 feet on the existing tower at the subject site. A 93-fl. centerline height (or higher) needs 
to be maintained so that AT&T's antennas can adequately propagate signal over 

Black & Veatch * 4600 S. Syracuse Street * Suite 300 * Denver, CO 80237 * (303) 332-1212 

except that it will be stronger, stouter and slightly taller. It will be able to accommodate 
the structural loading of the LTE antennas and equipment (a benefit to mobile phone users 
in the community). The proposed tower will also accommodate future collocation by other 
telecom providers (also a benefit to the community because it reduces the proliferation of 
towers in the area). The telecom facility has been in existence on this property since the 
1960's, so the proposed tower will not be sign ificant change to what is there now. From 
most vantage points, the existing tower is masked by trees and topography, as will the 
proposed tower. The proposed tower will not sign ificantly change the overall appearance 
of the telecom facility. 

c) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not constitute 
a substantial physical hazard to the neighborhood, public facilities, infmstructure or open 
space. From a structural standpoint, the existing tower is already at capacity, and any 
increase in the loading of the tower would be unsafe. By constructing a newer stronger 
tower, some much needed L TE upgrades can be made to the telecom facility without 
compromising safety. 

d) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not have a 
significant adverse effect to the surrounding property owners and uses. As mentioned 
above, the existing telecom facility has been in existence for nearly 50 years. The 
proposed improvements to the site will not significantly alter the appearance, traffic or 
noise experienced by surrounding property owners. And the proposed modifications will 
benefit the surrounding community by greatly improving mobile phone service (including 
E-91 I and other emergency services). 

e) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall not have a 
s ignificant adverse effect on open space or the purposes of the facilities owned by the 
Town. And the proposed modifications will benefit the Town by improving service to 
mobile phone users (including E-911 and other emergency services). 

f) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall minimize 
adverse envirorunental and visual impacts to the extent possible considering the nature of 
the proposed conditional use. There is already an access road cut to the existing telecom 
facility. There is also power and Telco servicing the site. By utilizing an existing telecom 
facility, we eliminate the need to cut a new access road or run new utilities. Also, because 
the proposed tower will generally be the same relative size and appearance as the existing 
tower, visual impact will be minimized. 

g) The design, development and operation of the proposed conditional use shall provide 
adequate infrastructure. Road access and utilities are already available at the site. And the 
proposed tower will provide adequate structural capacity for new technology to be 
implemented. The proposed tower will also accommodate collocation. 

h) The proposed conditional lise does not potentially damage or contaminate any public, 
private, residential or agricultural water supply source. 

i) Because of its height, the existing tower is out of compliance with the Town's regulations. 
The height of the proposed tower will also be out of compliance. We are requesting a 
height variance so that AT&T's antennas can maintain an adequate centerline, and thereby 
propagate signal over surrounding trees and topograpby. This will allow the site to provide 
quality service to mobile phone users in the area . Other than the height of the tower, the 
proposed variance meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

Variance - Criteria for Decision: 

a) The strict enforcement of the CDC regulations would result in exceptional and undue 
hardship upon AT&T in the development of property lot because of special circumstances 
applicable to the lot. For many years, AT&T's antennas have been operating at a height of 
93 feet on the existing tower at the subject site. A 93-ft. centerline height (or higber) needs 
to be maintained so that AT&T's antennas can adequately propagate signal over 

Black & Veatch * 4600 S. Syracuse Street * Suite 300 * Denver, CO 80237 * (303) 332-1212 221



surrounding trees and topography, thus providing adequate service to mobile phone users 
in the area. From a structural standpoint, the existing tower is already at capacity, and any 
increase in the loading on the tower would be unsafe. Thus, by constructing a new 
stronger tower, much-needed tecnnological upgrades can be made to the telecom facility 
without compromising safety or service quality. 

b) The variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public health, safety and 
welfare. The proposed tower will actually be an improvement to public safety and welfare. 
By constructing a newer stronger tower, some much needed LTE upgrades can be made to 
the telecom facility without compromising safety. Plus, we can greatly improve mobile 
phone service for people in the community (including E-911 and other emergency 
services). 

c) The variance can be granted without substantial impairment of the intent of the CDC. The 
proposed tower will be in conformance with the current use of the property. [n addition, 
by locating the new tower within the existing telecom facility, we eliminating the need to 
develop a second telecom facility somewhere else in the community. In addition, Section 
17.6.5 of the CDC requires that telecom sites be made available for the collocation of other 
telecom providers, thus reducing the proliferation of towers in the area. By constructing a 
newer stronger tower, we accommodate future collocation. 

d) Granting the variance does not constitute a grant of special privilege in excess of that 
enjoyed by other property owners or other users of the subject property. 

e) Reasonable use of the property is not otherwise available without granting of a variance, 
and the variance being granted is the minimum necessary to allow for reasonable use. The 
existing tower was able to accommodate the needs of the telecom users at the site for many 
years. But from a structural standpoint, the tower is not suitable for making technological 
upgrades. For AT&T to implement much needed LTE upgrades, and for the tower to 
accommodate future collocation, a newer stronger tower needs to be constructed. 

f) The lot for which the variance is being granted was not created in violation of Town 
regulations or Colorado State Statutes in effect at the time the lot was created. 

g) The variance is not solely based on economic hardship. It is instead based on the need to 
build a stronger tower that can structurally accommodate AT&T's technological upgrades 
and future collocation. AT&T must maintain the current 93-ft. centerline antenna height 
(or higher) so that its signal can propagate over surrounding trees and topography, and so 
that service quality to customers is not compromised. 

h) The existing tower is out of compliance with the Town's height restriction. The proposed 
tower will also be out of compliance. We are requesting a height variance so that the new 
tower can accommodate similar antenna heights as the existing tower. This will allow the 
antennas to adequately propagate over the surrounding trees and topography, and thus 
provide adequate signal to mobile phone users in the area. Other than the height of the 
tower, the proposed variance meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

Conclusion: 

AT&T respectfully requests the Town's approval of the proposed site modifications. If allowed to 
make the requested enhancements, AT&T will be able to greatly improve mobile phone service for 
people living, working and traveling in the surrounding community. The proposed upgrades to the 
antennas and radio equipment will allow the facility to employ advanced LTE technology, thus 
allowing phone users to make calls, transmit data, and utilize advanced phone applications without 
blockage or intemlption of service. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please contact Mike McCreedy, 303-332-
1212, mike.mccreedy@comcast.net. 

Black & Veatch * 4600 S. Syracuse Street * Suite 300 * Denver, CO 80237 * (303) 332-1212 

surrounding trees and topography, thus providing adequate service to mobile phone users 
in the area. From a structural standpoint, the existing tower is already at capacity, and any 
increase in the loading on the tower would be unsafe. Thus, by constructing a new 
stronger tower, much-needed technological upgrades can be made to the telecom facility 
without compromising safety or service quality. 

b) The variance can be granted without substantial detriment to the public health, safety and 
welfare. The proposed tower will actually be an improvement to public safety and welfare. 
By constructing a newer stronger tower, some much needed LTE upgrades can be made to 
the telecom facility without compromising safety. Plus, we can greatly improve mobile 
phone service for people in the community (including E-911 and other emergency 
services). 

c) The variance can be granted without substantial impairment ofthe intent of the CDC. The 
proposed tower will be in conformance with the current use of the property. [n addition, 
by locating the new tower within the existing te[ecom facility, we eliminating the need to 
develop a second telecom facility somewhere else in the community. In addition, Section 
17.6.5 of the CDC requires that telecom sites be made available for the collocation of other 
telecom providers, thus reducing the proliferation of towers in the area. By constructing a 
newer stronger tower, we accommodate future collocation. 

d) Granting the variance does not constitute a grant of special privilege in excess of that 
enjoyed by other property owners or other users of the subject property. 

e) Reasonable use of the property is not otherwise available without granting of a variance, 
and the variance being granted is the minimum necessary to allow for reasonable use. The 
existing tower was able to accommodate the needs of the telecom users at the site for many 
years. But from a structural standpoint, the tower is not suitable for making technological 
upgrades. For AT&T to implement much needed LTE upgrades, and for the tower to 
accommodate future collocation, a newer stronger tower needs to be constructed. 

£) The lot for which the variance is being granted was not created in violation of Town 
regulations or Colorado State Statutes in effect at the time the lot was created. 

g) The variance is not solely based on economic hardship. It is instead based on the need to 
build a stronger tower that can structurally accommodate AT&T's technological upgrades 
and future collocation. AT&T must maintain the current 93-ft. centerline antenna height 
(or higher) so that its signal can propagate over surrounding trees and topography, and so 
that service quality to customers is not compromised. 

h) The existing tower is out of compliance with the Town' s height restriction. The proposed 
tower will also be out of compliance. We are requesting a height variance so that the new 
tower can accommodate similar antenna heights as the existing tower. This will allow the 
antennas to adequately propagate over the surrounding trees and topography, and thus 
provide adequate signal to mobile phone users in the area. Other than the height of the 
tower, the proposed variance meets all applicable Town regulations and standards. 

Conclusion: 

AT&T respectfully requests the Town ' s approval of the proposed site modifications. If allowed to 
make the requested enhancements, AT&T will be able to greatly improve mobile phone service for 
people living, working and traveling in the surrounding community. The proposed upgrades to the 
antennas and radio equipment will allow the facility to employ advanced LTE technology, thus 
allowing phone users to make calls, transmit data, and utilize advanced phone applications without 
blockage or intemlption of service. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please contact Mike McCreedy, 303-332-
1212, mike.mccreedy@comcast.net. 

Black & Veatch * 4600 S. Syracuse Street * Suite 300 * Denver, CO 80237 * (303) 332-1212 
222



223



SITE BENCHMARK 
SET PIN AND CAP 

"PSM CONTROL POINT" 
EL.~1 0481.41' 

U.S. FOREST 
SERVICE LAND 

S88'51'40"E 1311.66' 1---- -" ~-~-" -~ ~ -"---.'" --/ ~ 
~ ~ 

S88' 51'40"E 1310.01' 
-- N. LINE SE174- NWI/4 SEC:.-2~-

lII~""---RIDGE ROAD 
~ ~ EASEMENT 

~ ~ ( , ~ REC. NO. 

~
365@ 

" TRACT 
LOT 161A-4 " OS161-R3 

TSG 
OWNER: 
SKI & GOLF, 

LLC. 
~~~:~~\~~ 

~ "i I ~ '-.:: 
SKIWAY~4 ~I ~, ~ GEOGRAPHIC COO~,' 

EASEMENT ~ 

I 

I I 
LJ 

'-.:: LATITUDE~N37'56'01.71" I ' 
~ ,LONGITUDE~Wl 07'50'05.64" I 

~ "~ELEVATION~10478' LOT 
""-.. 161A-2 

~ I '-.:: 

~ ~, 

~ 
~ ~ LOT 
~ Q "' \ 161A-J 

('c1~!vDO~ ~ \ 
~o('''ct~ . ~ 
~r0 ~\ 

PEDESTRIAN ~ ~ 

TRACT OSP-49R 

SE1/4 NWI/4 SECTION 2 
T42N, R9W, N.M.P.M. 

COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL 
STATE OF COLORADO 

o 
z REPLAT OF LOT 161-A, LOT 161-Al, 

LOT 161-B AND LOT 161-0 AND A 
PORTION OF TRACT OSP-49, 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PLAT 
BOOK 1, PAGE 2758, COUNTY OF SAN 

MIGUEL, STATE OF COLORADO. 

EA~~~~~~~ ~ 
REe. NO. ~ :::~-:i~~ 

408047 ~ " ~ 

LOT 
1610-2 

LOT 
161A-1R 

~---

w 

LOT 
1610-1 

\ 
\ TRACT 
OS161-R2 

---] 

, 
CD 
N 
o 

---L S60'45'19"W 74.61' 

N8S'48' 42"W 1311.06' 

NI8'33'02"W 
18.80' 

I~ 
15l 

NI4'04'1:J"E 
20.62' 

"-----

200' 
I 

100' , 0' 200' , , 

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 200' 

GEOGRAPHIC COORDINATES 

LATITUDE~N37'56'01.71 " 
LONGITUDE~W1 07'50'05.64" 
GROUND ELEV.~ 1 0478' 

HIGHEST POINT ON TOWER ELEV.~10573' 

BENCHMARK 

400' 
I 

SITE BENCHMARK-CAPPED PIN "PSM CONTROL POINT" GROUND 
ELEVATION~ 1 0481.41' (NAVD88) UTILIZING GEOID 12A 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 
COLORADO STATE PLANE SOUTH ZONE (NAD83) 
CLASSIFICATION-THIRD 
MINIMUM GEOMETRIC ACCURACY STANDARD: 5.0cm + 1 :10,000 

NOTES 
1.) THIS SURVEY AND ACCOMPANYING DESCRIPTION(S) ARE NOT INTENDED FOR PURPOSE OF 
TRANSFER OF TITLE OR SUBDIVISION OF LAND. 
2.) THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY, LAND SURVEY PLAT OR IMPROVEMENT SURVEY PLAT. 
3.) THIS SURVEY DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A TITLE SEARCH BY PRECISION SURVEY & MAPPING, 
INC. TO DETERMINE OWNERSHIP OR EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 
4.) THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PROVIDE ANY DETERMINATION CONCERNING WETLANDS, FAULT LINES, 
TOXIC WASTE OR ANY OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES. SUCH MATTERS SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO 
AN EXPERT CONSULTANT. 
5.) THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL BURIED OR UNDERGROUND UTILITIES IN THE AREA WHICH THE 
SURVEYOR IS UNAWARE OF AND NO LIABILITY FOR SUCH IS ASSUMED HEREIN. ALL 
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOULD BE FIELD LOCATED BY THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANY 
PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR DIGGING ON OR ADJACENT TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY. 
6.) THIS SURVEY IS VALID ONLY IF PRINT HAS ORIGINAL SEAL AND SIGNATURE OF THE 
SURVEYOR. 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION 
I, THE UNDERSIGNED, A REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF 
COLORADO, DO HEREBY STATE THAT THIS SITE PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME, 
OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND ARE TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE. THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY. 

14 

DATE 
& MAPPING, INC. 

N88'48'42"W 882.17' 
N88 '48'42"W 361.04' 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION-PARENT PARCEL 
TRACT OSP-49R, TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, ACCORDING TO THE REPLAT OF LOT 161-A, LOT 161-Al, LOT 161-B AND LOT 161-0 
AND A PORTION OF TRACT OSP-49, RECORDED JULY 14, 2000 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 2758, COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE OF 
COLORADO. 

TITLE REPORT 
PREPARED BY: LAND TITLE GUARANTEE COMPANY 
COMPANY ORDER NUMBER: ABC 86004347 
EFFECTIVE DATE: NOVEMBER 19, 2014 AT 5:00 P.M. 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS AFFECT THE LAND: 
1) EASEMENTS, CONDITIONS, COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS, RESERVATIONS AND NOTES ON THE FOLLOWING PLATS: 
#1 - TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, FILING 1 RECORDED MARCH 9, 1984 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 476, AND TECHNICAL AMENDMENT 
CONCERNING DENSITY RECORDED FEBRUARY 12,1990 IN BOOK 462 AT PAGE 759, BLANKET IN NATURE, NOT PLOTTABLE 

#2 - PLAT OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RECORDED OCTOBER 6, 1995 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 1918 AND OFFICIAL LAND USE 
AND DENSITY ALLOCATION FOR ALL LAND WITHIN THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO RECORDED OCTOBER 6, 1995 IN BOOK 551 
AT PAGE 485 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED JUNE 25, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 
407544, BLANKET IN NATURE, NOT PLOTTABLE 

#3 - TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RECORDED JULY 24, 1996 IN PLAT BOOK 2 AT PAGE 2073, AND BLANKET IN NATURE, NOT PLOTTABLE 

#4 - THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE OFFICIAL TOWN PLAT RECORDED SEPTEMBER 8, 1997 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 2281 AND THE 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE OFFICIAL LOT LIST RECORDED SEPTEMBER 8, 1997 IN BOOK 586 AT PAGE 548. BLANKET IN NATURE, NOT 
PLOTTABLE 

2) RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, FOR MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, WHICH DO NOT CONTAIN A FORFEITURE OR REVERTER CLAUSE, BUT OMITTING ANY 
COVENANTS OR RESTRICTIONS, IF ANY, BASED UPON RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, FAMILIAL STATUS, 
MARITAL STATUS, DISABILITY, HANDICAP, NATIONAL ORIGIN, ANCESTRY, OR SOURCE OF INCOME, AS SET FORTH IN APPLICABLE STATE OR 
FEDERAL LAWS, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT SAID COVENANT OR RESTRICTION IS PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, AS CONTAINED IN 
INSTRUMENT RECORDED MARCH 9, 1964 IN BOOK 409 AT PAGE 714, AS AMENDED OR SUPPLEMENTED. AMENDED AND RESTATED GENERAL 
DECLARATION RECORDED DECEMBER 11, 2002 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 353666. FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED 
GENERAL DECLARATION RECORDED DECEMBER 09, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 410160. SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND 
RESTATED GENERAL DECLARATION RECORDED MARCH 19, 2012 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 422188. BLANKET IN NATURE, NOT PLOTTABLE 

NOTE: UNDER THE GENERAL NOTES ON THE PLAT OF TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RECORDED MARCH 9, 1984 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 
476 THE TELLURIDE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO IMPOSE ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS ON ALL LOTS IN ADDITION TO 
THE ONES DESCRIBED HEREIN. NOTE: NOTICE BY THE TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE OWNERS ASSOCIATION REGARDING CONTACT 
INFORMATION AND REAL ESTATE TRANSFER ASSESSMENT RECORDED MAY 25, 2011 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 418209. BLANKET IN NATURE, 
NOT PLOTTABLE 

3) TERMS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS OF NOTICE OF WATER AND SEWER TAP FEE PAYMENT RECORDED APRIL 14, 1987 IN BOOK 435 
AT PAGE 603, TAP FEE AGREEMENT RECORDED MAY 29, 1992 IN BOOK 492 AT PAGE 991, AND BY FIRST AMENDMENT TO TAP FEE 
AGREEMENT RECORDED DECEMBER 18, 1996 IN BOOK 573 AT PAGE 237, AND AS ASSIGNED BY TAP FEE ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 
AGREEMENT RECORDED APRIL 29, 1999, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 326037. BLANKET IN NATURE, NOT PLOTTABLE 

4) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED MARCH 30, 1992 IN 
BOOK 489 AT PAGE 1007. SHOWN HEREON 

5) TERMS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS OF FACILITIES, WATER RIGHTS AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED APRIL 27, 1992 IN BOOK 
491 AT PAGE 359 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED NOVEMBER 13, 1992 IN BOOK 501 AT PAGES 433 AND 437 AND AS 
AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED APRIL 26, 1993 IN BOOK 510 AT PAGE 8 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED APRIL 26, 
1993 IN BOOK 510 AT PAGE 11 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED OCTOBER 24, 1996 IN BOOK 569 AT PAGE 668. NOT 
APP LI CAB LE TO SURVEY AR EA/ NOT SHOWN HEREON 

,~!iooI/Qub 

! 

'\ 
\ 

, 

VICINITY MAP - NTS 

6) EASEMENTS, CONDITIONS, COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS, RESERVATIONS AND NOTES ON THE PLAT OF TRACT OSP-49, TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE RECORDED APRIL 13, 1994 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 1675 AND REPLAT OF LOT 161-A, LOT 161-Al, LOT 161-B, AND LOT 
161-0 AND A PORTION OF TRACT OSP-49, TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RECORDED JULY 14, 2000 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 2758. 
SHOWN HEREON 

7) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RESOLUTION #1994-12 RECORDED APRIL 13, 1994 IN 
BOOK 527 AT PAGE 803. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

8) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN AGREEMENT REGARDING GENERAL EASEMENTS 
RECORDED MAY 21, 1996 IN BOOK 562 AT PAGE 97 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED OCTOBER 24, 1996 IN BOOK 569 AT 
PAGE 670. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

9) TERMS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS OF NOTICE FILED BY SAN MIGUEL POWER ASSOCIATION, INC. RECORDED MARCH 18, 1999 UNDER 
RECEPTION NO. 325020. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

10) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RESOLUTION #1999-0223-04 RECORDED JULY 14, 
2000 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 335479. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

11) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN UTILITY SERVICE LINE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
RECORDED JULY 14, 2000 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 335495 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED JULY 15, 2003 UNDER 
RECEPTION NO. 358715. NO MEASUREMENTS, BEARINGS OR DISTANCES/NOT PLOTTABLE 

12) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN SKIWAY EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED JULY 14, 
2000 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 335496. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

13) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RESOLUTIONS #2002-07 
AND #2002-1210-31 AMENDING AND RESTATING THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE DESIGN REGULATIONS RECORDED DECEMBER 18, 2002 
UNDER RECEPTION NOS. 353652 AND 353853. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

14) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RIDGE SKIWAY EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED JULY 
15, 2003 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 358714. SHOWN HEREON 

15) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RIDGE ROAD EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED JULY 
15, 2003 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 356716 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED APRIL 5, 2004 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 365189 
AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED JULY 27, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 408053 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED 
JULY 19, 2011 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 416967. SHOWN HEREON 

16) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENT TO LOT 161 D-2 
RECORDED JULY 27, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 408047. SHOWN HEREON 

17) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN BUILDING MAINTENANCE EASEMENT RECORDED JULY 
27, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 408050. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

18) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RESOLUTION #2011-1117-26 RECORDED DECEMBER 
12, 2011 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 420866. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

19) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RESOLUTION #2013-0117-01 RECORDED FEBRUARY 
15, 2013 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 426870. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

20) DEED OF TRUST DATED JULY 10, 1998 FROM TELLURIDE SKI & GOLF COMPANY AND THE TELLURIDE COMPANY AND THE MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE, INC. TO THE PUBLIC TRUSTEE OF SAN MIGUEL COUNTY FOR THE USE OF U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, F/K/A COLORADO 
NATIONAL BANK TO SECURE THE SUM OF $25,000,000.00, AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS PAYABLE UNDER THE TERMS THEREOF, RECORDED 
JULY 10, 1996, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 319935. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

AMENDMENT IN CONNECTION WITH SAID DEED OF TRUST WAS RECORDED JULY 14, 2000, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 335511. BLANKET IN 
NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

MODIFICATION AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH SAID DEED OF TRUST WAS RECORDED OCTOBER 18, 2012, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 425196. 
BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

NOTE: ADDITIONAL UPDATES TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE BINDER MAY BE REQUESTED BY THE PROPOSED INSURED. ONE UPDATE IS 
INCLUDED WITH THIS BINDER AT NO ADDITIONAL COST. ANY ADDITIONAL UPDATES WILL BE ISSUED AT THE COST OF $125 PER UPDATE. 
FOR EACH UPDATE PROVIDED, A REVISED BINDER WILL BE ISSUED SHOWING A NEW EFFECTIVE DATE AND ANY MATTERS RECORDED SINCE 
THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE PREVIOUS BINDER. 

NOTE: THIS BINDER DOES NOT REFLECT THE STATUS OF TITLE TO WATER RIGHTS OR REPRESENTATION OF SAID RIGHTS, RECORDED OR 
NOT. NOTE: THIS BINDER IS NOT A REPORT OR REPRESENTATION AS TO MINERAL INTERESTS, AND SHOULD NOT BE USED, OR RELIED 
UPON, IN CONNECTION WITH THE NOTICE REQUIREMENTS THAT ARE SET FORTH IN CRS 24-65.5-103. 

~. 
BLACK & VEATCH 

101110 G1WIlII1EW DR1YE 
OI/ERIAND -. KANSAS 1MI21D 

(113) 4l1li-2000 

Pi..ANS PREPARED BY: 

9145 E. KENYON AVE., SUITE 101 
DENVER, COLORADO 80237 
OFFICE: (J03) 753-9799 

FAX: (303) 753-404+ 

DRAWINGS 

NC, 

DIlI .... gl and Splclllcatloni al hllrumlnts of ... 
art and than rtmoln the property of the Ardlrt.ct lIheth .. 
the Project fur which they are made il executed III" not. 
Thl Own .. shall b, I*TTIlttld to rwtan cap'" Indudhg 
rtpl'oduelbl, eopl .. , of Drollngli t:r1d Spltlfk:otlon. for 
nfmnatian II'Id reftrence in CCIIlnectign lIith the Owner', 
u. and oc:a.Ipclncy of th, Projlct, The [)uwingl II'Id Spe
~"'I:IItIII'I' IIhIllI root be u_ by th, Own ... 11'1 oth ... prollet .. 
fw additill'l' tg thi' f'nIject or klr the eanpietiGn of thi' 
Projlct by oth .... prcM'*I fl. Architect i. mit i1 dlfu.llt 
un_ thl, AQrtlmll"lt. IKl:Ipt by QI7M'"II"It i'I writing and 
with Clppl'q)ria1e «mpcn,qlill'l tg IhI Arehileet. 

PROJECT FOR 

DATE ISSUED 

DEC. 1,2014 

DATE ISSUED AS 

ZDAPPROVAL 

CD PRELIMINARY I 

BID SETS 

PERMIT SUBMITIED 

DATE REVISIONS 

1211114 ZD APPROVAL 

12/3/14 REVISED LATITUDE 

PROJECT NAME 

FAR COONSKIN 

SITE ADDRESS 

GRANITE RIDGE DRIVE 

TELLURIDE, CO 81435 

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 

PSM JOB NO. 

R11224 

LS 1 

SITE BENCHMARK 
SET PIN AND CAP 

"PSM CONTROL POINT" 
EL.~1 0481.41' 

US. FOREST 
SERVICE LAND 

S88'51'40"E 1311.66' 
-'C ,,- -- _~ S88' 51'40"E 1310.01' 

~ ~ / ~ /" -- N. LINE SE1-/4-NW1/4 SEC. 2 
~ 15~ ----: ~ "" \oo~~---RIDG[ ROAD 

"--. ~ ----- '" EASEMENT 
~ ~ ( I ' ~ REC . NO. 

~~~~~J ~ , " C<S;6~~ J65I~ 
~ 'I~ I LOT '0' A-4 "R3 ~ TSG 

OWNER: 
SKI & GOLF. 

~ ~ I ~' "i I 0..;:: I ' 
SK'WA, ~ ~ ..::::..' ~ GEOGRAPHIC COORDINATES , 

EASEMENT ',,\ I ~ 0..;:: LATlTUDE~N3T56'01.71" I ' 

LLC. 

TRACT OSP-49R 

~ ,LONGITUDE~W1OT50'05.64" I 

I ~''::-~ELEVATION~10478' LOT 
.......... 151A-2 

~ , 0..;:: 

I I ~~, 
SEI/4 NW1/4 SECTION 2 

T42N. R9W. N.M.P.M. 

~ ~ 
U ~ ~ = 

"' \ lS1A - 3 

COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL 
STATE OF COLORADO 

w , 
aJ 
,0, 
CD 

" -

~ f'.'P1V ~ ~ \ 
'-..:Sf"~Q ~, 

'-..: > ~ 0..;:: \ 
F'EOESTRI/I.N ~ ~ 

o 
z REPLAT OF LOT 161-A. LOT 161-A1. 

LOT 161-B AND LOT 161-0 AND A 
PORTION OF TRACT OSP-49. 

EA~i~~~~66~6~~ ~ ~ 
REC. ~JO. ~-:'::---?i~~ 

40.8047 ~ 

LOT 
1!)IA-lR 

'N.-rfOR ACT 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PLAT 

BOOK 1. PAGE 2758. COUNTY OF SAN 
MIGUEL. STATE OF COLORADO. LOT 

161D-2 

OS161-Rl 

en 
N 

cOl 
:21 

~---
LOT 

HilQ-1 

\ 
TRACT 

IOS1S1-R2 

I 

----] 

, 
<.0 
N 
o 

N8S'48' 42"W 1311.06' 
---~ S60'45'19"W 74.61' 

N1S '33'02"W 

18.80' 
I~ 
15l 

N14'04'1:J"E 
20.62' 

200' 
I 

100' , o· 200' , , 

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 200' 

GEOGRAPHIC COORDINATES 

LATITUDE~N37"56·01.71 '" 

LONGITUDE~Wl 07"50'05.64"' 

GROUND ELEV.~ 1 0478' 

HIGHEST POINT ON TOWER ELEV.~10573· 

BENCHMARK 

400' 
I 

SITE BENCHMARK-CAPPED PIN '"PSM CONTROL POINT" GROUND 

ELEVATION~ 1 0481.41' (NAVD88) UTILIZING GEOID 12A 

BASIS OF BEARINGS 

COLORADO STATE PLANE SOUTH ZONE (NAD83) 
CLASSIFICATION-THIRD 
MINIMUM GEOMETRIC ACCURACY STANDARD: 5.0cm + 1 :10.000 

NOTES 

1.) THIS SURVEY AND ACCOMPANYING DESCRIPTION(S) ARE NOT INTENDED FOR PURPOSE OF 
TRANSFER OF TITLE OR SUBDIVISION OF LAND. 

2.) THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY, LAND SURVC( PLAT OR IMPROVEMENT SURVEY PLAT. 

3.) THIS SURVEY DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A TITLE SEARCH BY PRECISION SURVEY & MAPPING. 
INC. TO DETERMINE OWNERSHIP OR EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 

4.) THIS SURVEY DOES NOT PROVIDE ANY DETERMINATION CONCERNING WETLANDS, FAULT LINES, 
TOXIC WASTE OR ANY OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES. SUCH MATIERS SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO 
AN EXPERT CONSULTANT. 

5,) THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL BURIED OR UNDERGROUND UTILITIES IN THE AREA WHICH THE 
SURVEYOR IS UNAWARE OF AND NO LIABILITY FOR SUCH IS ASSUMED HEREIN. ALL 
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOULD BE FIELD LOCATED BY THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANY 
PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR DIGGING ON OR ADJACENT TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY. 
6.) THIS SURVEY IS VALID ONLY IF PRINT HAS ORIGINAL SEAL AND SIGNATURE OF THE 
SURVEYOR. 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION 
I, THE UNDERSIGNED , A REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF 
COLORADO, DO HEREBY STATE THAT THIS SITE PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME, 
OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND ARE TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE. THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY. 

14 

.L.s. NO. 31158 DATE 
SION SURVEY & MAPP ING. INC. 

~--

N88 '48'42"W 361.04' 
N88 '48'42"W 882.17' 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION-PARENT PARCEL 
TRACT OSP-49R. TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, ACCORDING TO THE REPLAT OF LOT 161-A, LOT 161-A1, LOT 161-B AND LOT 161-0 
AND A PORTION OF TRACT OSP-49. RECORDED JULY 14. 2000 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 2758, COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL. STATE OF 
COLORADO. 

TITLE REPORT 
PREPARED BY: LAND TITLE GUARANTEE COMPANY 
COMPANY ORDER NUMBER: ABC 86004347 
EFFECTIVE DATE: NOVEMBER 19. 2014 AT 5:00 P.M. 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS AFFECT THE LAND: 
1) EASEMENTS, CONDITIONS, COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS, RESERVATIONS AND NOTES ON THE FOLLOWING PLATS: 
#1 - TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, FILING 1 RECORDED MARCH 9, 1984 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 476. AND TECHNICAL AMENDMENT 
CONCERNING DENSITY RECORDED FEBRUARY 12,1990 IN BOOK 462 AT PAGE 759, BLANKET IN NATURE. NOT PLOTIABLE 

#2 - PLAT OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RECORDED OCTOBER 6, 1995 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 191 B AND OFFICIAL LAND USE 
AND DENSITY ALLOCATION FOR ALL LAND WITHIN THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE. COLORADO RECORDED OCTOBER 6. 1995 IN BOOK 551 
AT PAGE 485 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED JUNE 25, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 
407544, BLANKET IN NATURE. NOT PLOTTABLE 

#3 - TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RECORDED JULY 24. 1996 IN PLAT BOOK 2 AT PAGE 2073, AND BLANKET IN NATURE. NOT PLOTIABLE 

#4 - THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE OFFICIAL TOWN PLAT RECORDED SEPTEMBER 8. 1997 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 2281 AND THE 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE OFFICIAL LOT LIST RECORDED SEPTEMBER 8, 1997 IN BOOK 586 AT PAGE 548. BLANKET IN NATURE, NOT 
PLOTTABLE 

2) RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, FOR MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, WHICH DO NOT CONTAIN A FORFEITURE OR REVERTER CLAUSE, BUT OMITTING ANY 
COVENANTS OR RESTRICTIONS, IF ANY, BASED UPON RACE. COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, FAMILIAL STATUS. 
MARITAL STATUS. DISABILITY. HANDICAP. NATIONAL ORIGIN. ANCESTRY. OR SOURCE OF INCOME, AS SET FORTH IN APPLICABLE STATE OR 
FEDERAL LAWS, EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THAT SAID COVENANT OR RESTRICTION IS PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. AS CONTAINED IN 
INSTRUMENT RECORDED MARCH 9, 1984 IN BOOK 409 AT PAGE 714. AS AMENDED OR SUPPLEMENTED. AMENDED AND RESTATED GENERAL 
DECLARATION RECORDED DECEMBER 11, 2002 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 353668. FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED 
GENERAL DECLARATION RECORDED DECEMBER 09. 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 410160. SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND 
RESTATED GENERAL DECLARATION RECORDED MARCH 19. 2012 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 42218B. BLANKET IN NATURE, NOT PLOTIABLE 

NOTE: UNDER THE GENERAL NOTES ON THE PLAT OF TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RECORDED MARCH 9, 1984 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 
476 THE TELLURIDE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO IMPOSE ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS ON ALL LOTS IN ADD ITION TO 
THE ONES DESCRIBED HEREIN. NOTE: NOTICE BY THE TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE OWNERS ASSOCIATION REGARDING CONTACT 
INFORMATION AND REAL ESTATE TRANSFER ASSESSMENT RECORDED MAY 25, 2011 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 418209. BLANKET IN NATURE, 
NOT PLOTIABLE 

3) TERMS, COND ITIONS AND PROVISIONS OF NOTICE OF WATER AND SEWER TAP FEE PAYMENT RECORDED APRIL 14, 1987 IN BOOK 435 
AT PAGE 603, TAP FEE AGREEMENT RECORDED MAY 29, 1992 IN BOOK 492 AT PAGE 991. AND BY FIRST AMENDMENT TO TAP FEE 
AGREEMENT RECORDED DECEMBER 1 B, 1996 IN BOOK 573 AT PAGE 237. AND AS ASSIGNED BY TAP FEE ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 
AGREEMENT RECORDED APR IL 29. 1999, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 326037. BLANKET IN NATURE. NOT PLOTTABLE 

4) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED MARCH 30, 1992 IN 
BOOK 489 AT PAGE 1007. SHOWN HEREON 

5) TERMS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS OF FACILITIES. WATER RIGHTS AND EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED APRIL 27 . 1992 IN BOOK 
491 AT PAGE 359 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED NOVEMBER 13. 1992 IN BOOK 501 AT PAGES 433 AND 437 AND AS 
AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED APRIL 26, 1993 IN BOOK 510 AT PAGE B AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED APRIL 26. 
1993 IN BOOK 510 AT PAGE 11 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED OCTOBER 24, 1996 IN BOOK 569 AT PAGE 668. NOT 
APPLICAB LE TO SURVEY AR EA/ NOT SHOWN HEREO N 

• 

'" 

\0<.'1""'., . 

V ICINITY MAP - NTS 

6) EASEMENTS, CONDITIONS. COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS, RESERVATIONS AND NOTES ON THE PLAT OF TRACT OSP-49, TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE RECORDED APRIL 13, 1994 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 1675 AND REPLAT OF LOT 161-A. LOT 161-A1. LOT 161-B. AND LOT 
161-D AND A PORTION OF TRACT OSP-49, TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RECORDED JULY 14, 2000 IN PLAT BOOK 1 AT PAGE 2758. 
SHOWN HEREON 

7) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RESOLUTION #1994-12 RECORDED APRIL 13. 1994 IN 
BOOK 527 AT PAGE B03. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

8) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN AGREEMENT REGARDING GENERAL EASEMENTS 
RECORDED MAY 21, 1996 IN BOOK 562 AT PAGE 97 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED OCTOBER 24. 1996 IN BOOK 569 AT 
PAGE 670. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

9) TERMS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS OF NOTICE FILED BY SAN MIGUEL POWER ASSOC IATION. INC. RECORDED MARCH 18, 1999 UNDER 
RECEPTION NO. 325020. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTTABLE 

10) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS. BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RESOLUTION #1999-0223-04 RECORDED JULY 14, 

2000 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 335479. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

11) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN UTILITY SERVICE LINE EASEMENT AGR EEMENT 
RECORDED JULY 14, 2000 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 335495 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED JULY 15. 2003 UNDER 
RECEPTION NO. 358715. NO MEASUREMENTS. BEARINGS OR DISTANCES/NOT PLOTIABLE 

12) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS. BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN SKIWAY EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED JULY 14. 
2000 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 335496. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

13) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS. BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE RESOLUTIONS #2002-07 

AND #2002-1210-31 AMEND ING AND RESTATING THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE DESIGN REGULATIONS RECORDED DECEMBER 18, 2002 

UNDER RECEPTION NOS. 353852 AND 353853. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

14) TERMS, COND ITIONS, PROVISIONS. BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RIDGE SKIWAY EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED JULY 
15. 2003 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 358714. SHOWN HEREON 

15) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RIDGE ROAD EASEMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED JULY 
15, 2003 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 358716 AN D AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED APRIL 5. 2004 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 365189 
AN D AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED JULY 27, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 408053 AND AS AMENDED IN INSTRUMENT RECORDED 
JULY 19. 201 1 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 418967. SHOWN HEREON 

16) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENT TO LOT 161 D-2 
RECORDED JULY 27, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 408047. SHOWN HEREON 

17) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS. BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN BUILDING MAINTENANCE EASEMENT RECORDED JULY 

27, 2009 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 408050. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

18) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS. BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RESOLUTION #2011-1117-26 RECORDED DECEMBER 

12. 2011 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 420866. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

19) TERMS, CONDITIONS, PROVISIONS, BURDENS AND OBLIGATIONS AS SET FORTH IN RESOLUTION #2013-0117-01 RECORDED FEBRUARY 

15. 2013 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 426870. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

20) DEED OF TRUST DATED JULY 10, 1998 FROM TELLURIDE SKI & GOLF COMPANY AN D THE TELLURIDE COMPANY AND THE MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE, INC. TO THE PUBLIC TRUSTEE OF SAN MIGUEL COUNTY FOR THE USE OF U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, F /K/A COLORADO 
NATIONAL BANK TO SECURE THE SUM OF $ 25,000,000.00. AND ANY OTHER AMOUNTS PAYABLE UNDER THE TERMS THEREOF, RECORDED 

JULY 10. 1998, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 319935. BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

AMENDMENT IN CONNECTION WITH SAID DEED OF TRUST WAS RECORDED JULY 14, 2000, UNDER RECEPTION NO. 335511. BLANKET IN 
NATURE/NOT PLOTIA8LE 

MODIFICATION AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH SAID DEED OF TRUST WAS RECORDED OCTOBER 18, 2012. UNDER RECEPTION NO. 425196. 
BLANKET IN NATURE/NOT PLOTIABLE 

NOTE: ADDITIONAL UPDATES TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE BINDER MAY BE REQUESTED BY THE PROPOSED INSURED. ONE UPDATE IS 
INCLUDED WITH THIS BINDER AT NO ADD ITIONAL COST. ANY ADDITIONAL UPDATES WILL BE ISSUED AT THE COST OF $125 PER UPDATE. 
FOR EACH UPDATE PROVIDED. A REVISED BINDER WILL BE ISSUED SHOWING A NEW EFFECTIVE DATE AND ANY MATIERS RECORDED SINCE 
THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE PREVIOUS BINDER. 

NOTE: THIS BINDER DOES NOT REFLECT THE STATUS OF TITLE TO WATER RIGHTS OR REPRESENTATION OF SAID RIGHTS, RECORDED OR 
NOT. NOTE: THIS BINDER IS NOT A REPORT OR REPRESENTATION AS TO MINERAL INTERESTS. AND SHOULD NOT BE USED. OR RELIED 
UPON. IN CONNECTION WITH THE NOTICE REQUIREMENTS THAT ARE SET FORTH IN CRS 24-65.5-103. 

~. 
BLACK & VEATCH 

101110 G1IiINIMEW DRIYE 
Cll/ERlAND -. _ 1MI21D 

(113) 4l1li-2000 

Pi..ANS PREPARED BY: 

9145 E. KENYON AVE., SUITE 101 
DENVER, COLORADO 80237 
OFFlCE: (J03) 753-9799 

FAX: (303) 753-40-4-4 

DRAWINGS 

NC, 

DIlI .... gl and Splcillcatlanl al hllrumlnts of sr.ok:a 
~re ~nd than rwnoln u.. propwty of th. Ardlrt.ct lIheth ... 
the Projlet fq which they ore made II _tilted III" not. 
lhl Own .. sholl be I*TTIlttld to man ccpJ., Indudhg 
reproduelbll eople .. of Drowlngll <J1d Sp.tlfk:otlon. for 
nknnatian II'Id reftnnce in CCIIloeetiGn with the O,,"er', 
u. and oca.Ipclncy of th, Projlct. The [)uwingl CIId Spe
tlflelltlm. IIhIllI root be u_ by fl' Own ... on oth .. proJeet .. 
for additill'll tg tIIi. Project or for the eanpletion of tIIi. 
Projlct by othars prcMded fI, Architect is not i1 dlflallt 
under this AQrtIIII'Ient. IKl:ept by ol1l*"ent h writing and 
with apprq:Iria1e «mpcniKIla, to the Architect. 

PROJECT FOR 

DATE ISSUED 

DEC. 1,2014 

DATE ISSUED AS 

ZDAPPROVAL 

CD PRELIMINARY I 

BID SETS 

PERMIT SUBMITIED 

DATE REVISIONS 

1211114 ZD APPROVAL 

12/3/14 REVISED LATITUDE 

PROJECT NAME 

FAR COONSKIN 

SITE ADDRESS 

GRANITE RIDGE DRIVE 

TELLURIDE, CO 81435 

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 

PSM JOB IW. 
R11224 

LS 1 
224



, , 

"" , , 

RIDGE ROAD 
EASEMENT 
REC. NO. 
358716 @ 

"" , , 
"" 

NOTE: 
ON DATE OF SURVEY AS SHOWN 

HEREON. THE SITE WAS COVERED WITH 
SNOW. CAN NOT GUARANTEE ALL 

EXISTING FEATURES AND OR UTILITIES 
OBSTRUCTED BY SNOW WILL BE SHOWN. 

/ 

CONeREY( 

THRESHOLD 
EL.=10478.3' 

\ METAL BUILDING 

TOP OF 
TREES 
EL.~I 0517.0' 

HEAVY 
/VEGETATION 

APPROXIMATE 
GUY ELEV.~I0461.6' 

\ TOP OF BUILDING 

'\ \ \ EL.=10489.1' 

\ \ \ 
\ \ \ 

\ 

WOOD 
PLATFORM 

/ 

\ \ L 
EXISTING 

TOWER 
----~ 

--
\ \ \ '
\ \ \ 
\ \ L __ 

\'--

, , 

L h 

"" , , 

T 

"" 

SITE BENCHMARK 
SET PIN AND CAP 
"PSM CONTROL POINT" 
EL.~I 0481.41' 

GEOGRAPHIC COO~INATES 
LATITUDE=N37'56'01. 71" 
LONGI TU DE = WI 07'50'05.64" 
ELEVATION=10478' 

-......, 
-......, 

u.s. FOREST 
SERVICE LAND 

N. LINE SEI/4 NWI/4 SEC. 2 

REPLAT OF LOT 161-A, LOT 161-AI, 
LOT 161-B AND LOT 161-0 AND A 

PORTION OF TRACT OSP-49, 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PLAT 

BOOK I. PAGE 2758. COUNTY OF SAN 
MIGUEL, STATE OF COLORADO. 

-......, 
-......, 

TRACT OSP-49R 

-......, 

OWNER: 
TSG SKI & 
GOLF, LLC. 

-......, 
-......, 

-......, 
-......, 

TRACT 
OS161-R3 

-......, 
-......, 

-......, 
-......, 

-......, 
-......, 

-......, 
-......, 

-......, 
-......, 

-......, 
-......, 

T,Q , EXI STING .... NTENNA 
ELEV. _ 10567.0' 

ELE'I. - 1 

-----

10' 5' O' 10' 20' 
'~I Oiil"';'~_;i' ................ "'Iio' ___ 0000I1 

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 10' 

LEGEND: 

MONUMENT FOUND AS DESCRIBED 0 
SCHEDULE B2 EXCEPTION @ 
SITE BENCHMARK ~ 

INDEX CONTOUR 

INTERMEDIATE CONTOUR 

ELECTRIC LINE 

EVERGREEN TREE 

BOLLARD/POST 

ELECTRIC METER 

GUY WIRE 

LlGHTPOST 

TOWER DET AI L 
N.T.S 

_______________ 5 05 0---------

----------- 5051-----_______ _ 

--E---E--

* • 

T.O. EXISTING ANTENNAS 
ELEV. 1057J.O' 

T.O. EXISTING TOWER 
ELEV.- 10569.0 

CENTER EXISTING ANTENNA 
ELEV,- 10557.0' 

T.O. EXISTING ANTENNA 
ELEV,_ 10555.0' 

B.D. EXISTING ANTENNA 
ELEV.- 10551.5' 

T,O. EXISTING ANTENNA 
ELEV. 1 05~7.5 

8,0, DISTING .'.NTENNA 
ELEV.- 1 05~.3.5· 

CENTER EXISTING ANTENNA 
ELEV. _ 10542,0' 

CENTER DISH 
ELEV._ 10535.0' 

GENTER EXISTING ANTENNA 
ELEV. 10SJO,0' 

CENTER DISH 
ELEV.- 10526.0' 

CENTER DISH 
ElEV. 10524.5 

T,O, DISTING ANTENNA 
ELEV. - 10521.0' 

CENTER EXISTING AlHENNA 
ELEV, 10~9.3,0' 

~. 
BLACK & VEATCH 

10lIII0 GIWOIIEW DRIYE 
O\IERIAND PMK. KANSAS 1MI21D 

(113) __ 2000 

PLANs PREPARE;D BY: 

,NC, 

9145 E. KENYON AVE., SUITE 101 
DENVER, COLORADO 80237 
OFFICE: (303) 753-9799 

FAX: (303) 753-40++ 

DRAWINGS 

Olll .... gl and Splclllcatloni al "'lirumlnis of "I 
art and Ihan rtmaln thl proptrty of thl Ardlfttct IIhtth .. 
the Project fur .hich they are made il executed or not. 
Thl Own .. Ihall b, prmltltd to ma'" cap'" Indud"'g 
ftpl"odut?fbl, eopll" of 0f!l"lngll (11~ Sp~tlfk:otl(l1' fqr 
nftlrmalian II'Id reftrence In camectian lIith the Owner I 
u. and oc:a.Ipancy of th, Projlct. The l)uwingl II'Id Spt
dielltlll'l' IIhIllI root be u_ by th, Own .. 11'1 ou. .. prollcl .. 
far addilill'll to thi, Project or flIr the eanpleiion at thi, 
Projlcl by oIh ... pr<M'*I th, Archiltcl i, nat n dtfu.llt 
un_ thl, Agrtlll'rl .. t, IKl:Ipt by al7M'!l .. t In writing and 
with CIpprq)ricite «mpen~tion to the Architect. 

PROJECT FOR 

DATE ISSUED 

DEC. 1,2014 

DATE ISSUED AS 

DATE 

1211114 

1213/14 

ZDAPPROVAL 

CD PRELIMINARY 1 

BID SETS 

PERMIT SUBMITIED 

REVISIONS 

ZDAPPROVAL 

REVISED LATITUDE 

PROJECT NAME 

FAR COONSKIN 

SITE ADDRESS 

GRANITE RIDGE DRIVE 

TELLURIDE, CO 81435 

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 

PSM JOB NO. 

R11224 

LS 2 

-- --

, , 

, , 

RIDGE ROAD 
EASEMEN T 
REC. NO. 
358716 \151 

"" , , 
"" 

-- --
NOTE: 

ON DATE OF SURVEY AS SHOWN 
HEREON, THE SITE WAS COVERED WITH 

SNOW. CAN NOT GUARANTEE ALL 
EX ISTING FEATURES AN D OR UTILITIES 

OBSTRUCTED BY SNOW WILL BE SHOWN. 

/ 

! 

--

-TOP OF 
/ TREES 

El.='I051 7 , Q' 

/ 

~- HEAVY 

.,/' VEGETATIOI·I 

, 
'-- APPPOXIMATE 

GU I ELEV ~ 10461,6' 

, 

-- --

, , 

--
SITE BENCHMAR K 
SET PIN AND CAP 
"PSM CONTRO L POINT" 
EL,~ I 048 1 .41 ' --

u.s. FOREST 
SERVICE LAND 

N. LI NE SEI/4 NWI/4 SEC. 2 

REP LAT OF LOT 161 - A, LOT 161 - AI, 
LOT 161 - B AND LOT 16 1- D AN D A 

PORTION OF TRACT OSP-49, 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PLAT 

BOOK I, PAGE 2758, CO UNTY OF SAN 
MIGUEL, STATE OF COLORADO. 

TRACT OSP- 49R 

OWNER: 
TSG SK I & 
GOLF, LLC. 

WACT 
OS 161-RJ 

T,Q, EXISTI NG !\NTENNA 
ELEV. _ 105l;7.D' 

10' 5' O' 10' 20' 
~I Oiil...j!;._~! .................. !~ ___ .il' 

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 10' 

LEGEND: 

MONUMENT FO UND AS DESC RI BED 0 
SCH ED ULE B2 EXCEPTI ON @ 
SITE BENCHMARK ~ 

IND EX CONTOUR 

INTERMEDIATE CONTOUR 

ELECTR IC LI NE 

EVERGREEN TREE 

BO LLARD/POST 

ELECTR IC METER 

GUY WIRE 

Ll GHTPOST 

TClWER DET jI,1 L 
N,T.S 

___ '_'-'5050--

---5051~--------

--[ ---E--

• 
D" 

--? 

T.O. EXISTlNG ANTENNAS 
ELEV. 1057J.0' 

T.O. EXISTING TOWER 
ElEY.- 10569 .0 

CENTER EXISTlNG ANTENNA 
(l.fV. - 10~57 .0' 

T.O. EXISTlNG ANTINNA 
ELtV. _ 10555.0' 

8.0. EXISTING ANTENNA 
ELEV.- 1 ~51.5' 

T,O. EXISTI NG ANTENNA 
ELEV. 1 D5~7.5 

8.0. D ISTlNG ANTENNA 
ELEY. - 10!HJ.S' 

CENTER EXISTI NG AtHENNA 
EllV. 105JO,O' 

CENTER DISH 
ELEV. - 1 M 25.0' 

CENTER DISH 
ELEV. 1052 • . 5 

T, O. EXI STIN G ANTENNA 
ELEV.- 10521.0' 

CENTER EXlSTlN G ANTENNA 
ELEV. 10 ~9 a,O ' 

CENTER EXISTING ANTENNA 

~. 
BLACK & VEATCH 

10lIII0 GIWOIIEW DRIYE 
CMRIMD PMK. KANSAS 1MI21D 

(113) 4II8-2ODD 

PlANS PREPARE;D BY: 

,NC, 

9145 E. KENYON AVE., SUITE 101 
DENVER, COLORADO 80237 
OFFlCE: (J03) 753-9799 

FAX: (303) 753-40-4-4 

DRAWINGS 

DIlI .... g_ and Splclflcailonl al hllruml nts of sr.ok:a 
are and than rwnoln u., propwty of th. Ardlfttct .. ether 
the Projlet fq which they are made II executed III" nol 
lhl Own .. sholl ba I*TTIlttld to man ccpJ., Indudhg 
reproduelbll eopl ... of Drollngli t:r1d Spetlfk:otlon. for 
nftnnatian II'Id reftnncc in CCIIloectian with the O,,"er.', 
u. and oc:a.Ipcrncy of lire Projrrct. The [)uwingl IIId 5pI
~1IIeIItI1II' rrhllli not be uaed by 1Ir, Own ... III oth ... proJeet .. 
tr.- additillli til thil Praject or far the eanpletian of thil 
Projlct by others prcMd.:I th, Architect is nrrt i1 dllflallt 
under thl' Agrtllll'lent. IKr:ept by Q'1l*"ent In wttIng and 
with ~ «mpa"llQliIII til IhI Archileet. 

PROJECT FOR 

DATE ISSUED 

DEC. 1,2014 

DATE ISSUED AS 

DATE 

1211114 

1213/14 

ZDAPPROVAL 

CD PRELIMINARY 1 

BID SETS 

PERMIT SUBMITIED 

REVISIONS 

ZDAPPROVAL 

REVISED LATITUDE 

PROJECT NAME 

FAR COONSKIN 

SITE ADD RESS 

GRANITE RIDGE DRIVE 

TELLURIDE, CO 81435 

SAN MIGUEL COUNTY 

PSM JOB IW. 
R11224 

LS 2 
225



226



227



228



229



230



231



 
 
 

 

  1 

 

     AGENDA  ITEM  # 14 

Date: February 12, 2015 
To: Mayor & Town Council 
From: Jackie Kennefick, Director of Administration/Town Clerk  
RE: Agenda Item #14 

Consideration of Moving a Previously Approved Vending Cart (Backyard BBQ) from Sunset 
Plaza to Heritage Plaza (Item was Continued from the January Meeting). 
This item was continued from the January Town Council meeting due to a tie vote.  All original 
packet information has been included in the February packet as well as an additional email from 
the vendor. 
 
 
 

232



 

MEMORANDUM       AGENDA ITEM #19 

TO: MAYOR JANSEN AND TOWN COUNCIL 

FROM: DEANNA DREW, DIRECTOR PLAZA SERVICES 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL VENDING CART IN HERITAGE PLAZA 

DATE: JANUARY 8, 2015 

CC: KIM MONTGOMERY, JD WISE 

  

BACKGROUND 

The town approved and permitted the applicant’s vending cart, Backyard BBQ, 
to operate during the 2014-2015 winter season on Lot OS-3V in Sunset Plaza 
pursuant to Section 17.5.15.E of the Community Development Code (CDC), 
“Vending Regulations”.    

After approximately one month of operation, the applicant desires to move his 
vending cart to Lot OS-3X, Heritage Plaza, to operate for the remainder of the winter 
season.   A letter from the applicant listing the reasons for this request is attached.    

The town code currently allows a maximum of three vending carts to operate 
in Heritage Plaza.  Three vending carts (Place de Crepes, Wax Guru, and Gyro Stand) 
were previously approved to be located in Heritage Plaza for the 2014-2015 winter 
season and are currently operating under license agreements with the town.  Two of 
the existing carts serve food and the other offers ski and snowboard waxing services.   

The Town Council may permit additional vending carts on Plaza Areas in its 
sole discretion.   

CONSIDERATIONS 

 The applicant has met all conditions for approval of a vending cart on Town 
plazas.   

 According to the CDC, the purpose of permitting vending carts in the Village 
Center is to promote vitality and vibrancy without impacting the public interest 
or causing detriment to existing businesses.   

 

233



2 
 

 The vendor serves pulled pork and chicken brisket BBQ, a food item that does 
not compete with other food establishments in the Sunset Plaza.   However 
this food item does compete with the Diggity’s Dogg House in Heritage Plaza.   

But, Eric Moser the owner of the Dogg House has indicated he does not 
oppose the vending cart moving to Heritage Plaza.   

 The vendor has recognized the town’s intent to utilize vending carts as 
“incubator” businesses to eventually occupy long term, year-round, brick and 
mortar sites in the Village Center.   

 The town desires to increase activity and vibrancy in our outlying plaza areas 
including Sunset Plaza.  The vendor has stated he will consider returning to 
Sunset Plaza after he is able to build a reputation in a location with more 
visibility and foot traffic.   

 The vendor has spent a considerable amount of time and money gaining 
approval from the town for his vending cart operation.   

 The town acknowledges that Sunset Plaza does not provide a heated, snow-
free, plaza surface or a large seating area to serve a vending cart operation, but 
cannot provide an immediate solution to these issues.  However, manual snow 
removal and a variety of benches, tables and chairs do exist at this location.   

 It is the Plaza Services staff opinion that there is enough physical space for an 
additional vending cart in Heritage Plaza this season.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

234



1/7/15 

Mayor & Town Council 

Town of Mt. Village, C0. 

RE: Sunset Plaza -Food Cart location 

 

Dear Council Members, 

As an introduction, I am Nick Pasquariello, an Executive Chef. I have worked in Mt. Village Hospitality 
/Food operations in the past as: 

1. Deli-Manager in the Mt. Market for 2 years &  
2. Line Chef at the Peaks (in the 5 Star Restaurant) for a season.   

Since graduation from Johnson & Wales University -Denver Culinary College in 2005, I have been 
Executive Chef and/or Restaurant Manager in several restaurants in Ridgway & Montrose.  The last 2 
years I have been the Food Service Director /Dietary Manager of San Juan Living Center (Assisted living 
facility) in Montrose. I felt that I needed a “rest” from that type of Food operation- as the “clients” are 
usually ill & are there to either rehab or to have assisted living services until they pass.  I am not a novice 
businessman.   

 I chose to open a lunch BBQ Food Cart operation in Mt Village for the 2014-2015 Winter Ski season. 
When I applied, there were no available Cart spots in Heritage Plaza, so I reluctantly accepted a cart 
location in Sunset Plaza.  I started in Sunset Plaza on 12/13/14.  I have been in the Sunset Plaza for over 
4 weeks from 10:30 -3:30 6-7 days a week, as per contract.  I have opened up & stood by the BBQ Cart 
during the snow storms /blizzard/freezing temps /overcast /wind & a few sunny days.  

Here are the issues with this  Lunch Food Cart location assignment in Sunset Plaza: 

1. This is the first year a Lunch Food cart has operated in Sunset Plaza-there is no “winter lunch 
cart history” to build on 

2. My BBQ Cart is not advertised on the directories – & no temp sandwich board advertising is 
allowed for carts (although allowed for other businesses) 

3. Sunset Plaza has very little Skier/visitor & local “foot traffic” before 3 PM-(happy hour & dinner). 
4. Sunset Plaza is not a winter lunch destination Plaza (Heritage Plaza is).  The several inside Food 

operations in Sunset Plaza have very minimal lunch traffic. 
5. Sunset Plaza is not heated & requires snow shoveling & plowing –several inches of snow on the 

Plaza  is not conducive to having potential customers get to my Food Cart (Heritage Plaza is 
heated) 

6. My cart is required to be removed each nite. I had to rent a monthly parking spot in the parking 
garage. 

235



7. Sunset Plaza did not provide public seating (tables & chairs) for my BBQ Food Cart business for 
the 1st  3 weeks during the Xmas or New Year’s Holiday weeks (Heritage Plaza does).  My few 
customers had to either stand or continue eating & walking. Addition of public seating (2 tables-
4 chairs) this week has not improved traffic or revenue. 

Business to date: 

I have had excellent reviews of the quality of my BBQ –Pulled Pork-Chicken & Brisket.  However, because 
of the issues above in the Sunset Plaza location, I have only averaged from 6-12 sandwiches per day 
($50-$75/day).  I have grossed Less than $800 for the 4 weeks. That barely pays for the cost of the Food 
& my gas each day.  There is NO revenue for space rental /parking rental / licenses or my salary. I am in 
the red every day. I have invested over $6000 up front to: 

1. Purchase the Food cart 
2. Buy food 
3. Food license & health inspection 
4. Acquire the required Mt Village Insurance package 
5. Pay Mt. Village Application & Licensing fees & the $500 deposit 
6. Pay monthly rental for the cart location 
7. Pay monthly parking fees 

Request of the Town Council: 

I can not return to my former position as Food Service Director at the Assisted Living Facility.  I fully 
intend to have this BBQ Lunch Cart be successful.  However, I can not make this BBQ Food Cart a success 
or build the reputation in Sunset Plaza.  The Plaza is not set up for Winter Lunch Food Cart service and 
no history as a Winter Lunch Plaza.  I can not continue to stand in the Sunset Plaza in the snow & cold 
with no real lunch foot traffic for the winter ski season. 

Therefore, I am asking the Town Council to Transfer my cart location to Heritage Plaza immediately-so 
that my business can survive & I can build a reputation for the BBQ Cart.  BBQ (Pulled Pork-Chicken & 
Brisket) is an approved menu & does not compete with other restaurant or cart menu items in Heritage 
Plaza.  

Future Intent: 

As per the contract, my future vision would to become a brick & mortar operation, perhaps take over 
the Sweet Life location in Heritage Plaza, if I have a successful season.  At a minimum, I could agree to 
return to Sunset Plaza next ski season, after I have built the BBQ Cart reputation in Heritage Plaza this 
season. Without this move to Heritage Plaza for the rest of the Winter Ski season, I will lose my 
investment & my livelihood. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Nick Pasquariello/ Pasquariello Services /nickpasquariello@ouraynet.com  /(970) 318-0153 

236



1

Susan Johnston

Subject: FW: February 19 MV Town Council agenda

 
-----Original Message----- 
From: nickpasquariello@ouraynet.com [mailto:nickpasquariello@ouraynet.com] 
Sent: Thursday, February 12, 2015 11:40 AM 
To: Jackie Kennefick 
Subject: Re: February 19 MV Town Council agenda 
 
2/12/15 
 
Jackie Kennefick 
Mtn Village Staff 
Mtn Village Town Council Meeting 2/19/15 
 
Re: # 15 Pasquariello Services- 
 
Please present the original letter to the Town Council.  See my new comments below.. 
 
There has been no discernible change in customer traffic since the last Mtn. Village Town Council meeting in January (still 5-10 
sandwiches per day). 
 
The Town did finally put up an a frame sign in Heritage Plaza. However it took 10 days.  The sign was supposed to for the 3 Food 
operations in Sunset Plaza & ended up with a listing of all business (food / service & 
retail) in Sunset Plaza. It is something that should have been done at the start of the season -but it was completely ineffective in 
increasing foot & customer traffic.... 
 
With no snow since the middle of January, unless I am able to move to the Heritage Plaza, I must close for this season & lose my 
investment. 
 
Last council meeting..it was a tie vote 3-3 because one of the Council Members left early.  I want a full vote.. 
 
Respectfully, Nick Pasquariello 
 
Pasquariello Services 
(970) 318-0153 
nickpasquariello@ouraynet.com 
 
 
 
Attached is the agenda for next week's Council meeting. 
> 
> Please submit all packet materials by noon tomorrow and refer to the  
> agenda item number.  Thank you. 
> 
> Jackie Kennefick 
> Director of Administration/Town Clerk 
> Town of Mountain Village 
> O :: 970.369.6406 
> M :: 970.729.3440 
> Email Signup<http://www.townofmountainvillage.com/emailsignup> |  

237



Agenda Item 15 
   J. David Reed P.C. 

Memo 
To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council 
From: James Mahoney 

Date: February 12, 2015 

Re: Lot 38-50-51 Hotel Madeline – Amended and Restated Hotel Deed 
Restriction  

The Town was approached by the Madeline Property Owner (“Applicant”) about 
the potential to amend and restate the Declaration of Condominium Hotel 
Covenants and Restrictions (the “Hotel Deed Restriction”).  In your packets you 
will find the existing Hotel Deed Restriction, which was amended and restated in 
2013, a proposed new amendment to the Hotel Deed Restriction (in redline format), 
and a narrative from the Applicant as to why this proposed amendment is requested 
and necessary.   
 
The history of this document is that it was originally put in place in 2006 when the 
PUD for Hotel Madeline was originally approved.  The overall goal of the Hotel 
Deed Restriction was to insure that the Hotel Madeline actually functioned like a 
hotel, despite the ability to sell the efficiency lodge units to third party owners.  The 
amendment in 2013 cleaned up the document and removed an inventory deficiency 
penalty section which was a cumbersome formula that didn’t work and attempted to 
resolve any potential securities issues by adding language that stated that so long as 
registration as a security is not required, each efficiency lodge unit shall be required 
to participate in the hotels rental management program.  This amendment was 
requested by the previous owner of the property, Ektornet.   
 
The property has since been purchased by the Applicant.  The Applicant hired a 
firm, Greenberg Taurig, who are the industry experts in condo-hotels and related 
securities issues to analyze the document regarding securities and it is their opinion 
that requiring an owner of an efficiency lodge unit to participate in the hotel’s rental 
management program would require registration of a security, which is a very 
expensive and prohibitive way to sell real estate.  After receiving this analysis, our 

238



office reached out to the securities section at Sherman & Howard, for our own 
expert analysis on the matter.   
 
Our analysis was essentially that this could give rise to the need to register as a 
security; however, it is not a given that it would.  The analysis focused on what are 
called “No Action Letters” which are issued by the SEC when a developer asks the 
SEC if it will take action against such a developer based on their set of facts and 
circumstances.  There have been several No Action Letters issued by the SEC that 
seem to indicate - when there are conditions which may normally require 
registration as a security, when such conditions come from local zoning registration 
as a security may not be required.    The one major twist in our fact pattern from the 
few No Action Letters that have been issued is that the rental requirement for this 
property does not straight out of our LUO (now the CDC), but rather was part of a 
negotiated PUD.  The Applicant believes this is a major distinguishing factor.  Our 
analysis agrees that it is a distinguishing factor, but is not sure which way the SEC 
would go on that question.   
 
Therefore, the only way to be certain would be to require the applicant to seek a No 
Action Letter from the SEC.  As the Applicant explains in its narrative, that 
approach is a very expensive, long and potentially risky route to take.  Thus, the 
Applicant has proposed adding various elements to the Hotel Deed Restriction, that 
while not requiring each owner of an efficiency lodge unit to be in the hotels rental 
management program, will (1) require owners to rent their unit when not using; (2) 
limits occupancy of efficiency lodge units (something that is consistent with our 
code, which calls these units out as short term lodging units); (3) requires the hotel 
operator to be the only provider of (“Hotel Exclusive Services”); (4) requires any 
third party rental operators to be approved by the HOA; (5) requires furniture 
packages and decorations to be approved by the hotel operator; and (6) offers 
benefits for owners who do participate.  The Applicant believes that with these 
elements in place they will have an extremely high rate of owners of efficiency 
lodge units as part of their rental program.   
 
This appears to be a viable option as opposed to staying with the existing restriction 
as written and requiring the Applicant to seek a No Action Letter.  However, that is 
a determination that is entirely up to Town Council.   
 
Should you want to approve the agenda item, you would need a motion as follows: 
 
I move to approve the resolution approving the Second Amended and Restated  
Declaration of Condominium Hotel Covenants and Restrictions (the “Hotel Deed 
Restriction”) as presented.   
  
 

239



 

February 5, 2015 

 

 

Town of Mountain Village Town Council,  

 

Madeline Property Owner, LLC (“MPO”) purchased Hotel Madeline Telluride (the “Property”), on August 

22, 2014. NVHG Madeline Hotel Operator, LLC is operating the Property, now Madeline Hotel and 

Residences Telluride, and is overseeing $15mm in capital improvements projects and the sale of the 

Property’s Residences. NVHG Madeline Hotel Operator, LLC will also oversee a voluntary Residence 

(Rental) Management Program for the soon-to-be Residence Owners.  

 

MPO and the Mountain Village community have much to gain from the (i) successful sale of the Property’s 

residences (the Property’s bed base will more than double, and the real estate transfer taxes will total 

approximately $1.8mm conservatively), and (ii) successful operation of the Hotel and Residence Management 

Program.  

 

MPO plans to sell 60 Residence Condominiums and 11 Hotel Condominiums (the Hotel’s suites). The 11 

Hotel Condominiums have kitchens and larger floor plans, both of which are necessary to obtain end-

purchaser financing. Unfortunately, the current Hotel Deed Restrictions includes language that is troubling to 

potential buyers, and potential end-purchaser lenders, which effectively make the Hotel Condominiums 

unsellable. Section 12.vi.c. of the current Hotel Deed Restrictions states:  

 

“So long as the registration as a security is not required under applicable state and federal securities laws, each lodge and 

efficiency lodge unit in the condominium-hotel shall be included in the hotel operator’s management and marketing program 

and managed by the condominium-hotel operator, and in that case a separate unit management agreement for each unit must 

be executed at the time of closing on a lodge and efficiency lodge unit, consistent with this section.” 

 

I have been representing condo-hotel developers and large-scale condominium sales programs for over 

thirteen years. MPO’s legal counsel, GreenbergTraurig, is regarded as the experts in US real estate sales. 

Together we are confident that any attempt to mandate participation in the Hotel Operator’s rental 

management program would require securities registration. As GreenbergTraurig’s attached letter states: 

 

“…mandatory rental program participation is viewed by the SEC to turn a real estate offering into a security offering for 

which registration would be required. Securities registrations are costly in both time and fees, and even if successful, entirely 

change the nature of the sales program from licensed brokers to Series 7 licensed brokers.” 

 

Having said this, MPO could file for an SEC no action letter. Unfortunately, the lengthy process, high fees, 

SEC scrutiny, and outcome uncertainty (just three have been issued in over a decade) all make this an 

unviable option. Moreover, even if an SEC no action letter could be obtained, it is doubtful lenders would be 

comfortable enough with the unique restriction to provide end-purchaser financing.   

 

Alternatively, an Amended Hotel Deed Restrictions has been drafted with the Town’s legal counsel, which 

specifically calls out that the Town and MPO have the same goal – to have as many hot beds as possible, and 

240



to operate the same at the highest possible occupancy, rates and quality levels. The significant changes 

include: 

 

HOTEL EXCLUSIVE SERVICES: In the Amended and Restated Declaration, adopted January 29, 2015, 

“Hotel Exclusive Services” were added to ensure the Hotel Operator is able to operate the property to the 

Standards, and provide privacy and security to all unit Owners and Hotel Guests. Per the Hotel Exclusive 

Services, the Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator shall have the sole and exclusive right to provide the 

following services to all Residence Condominium and Hotel Condominium Units:  

 

 Accept reservations by, from and through the Unit Owner and/or its agents, including any Qualified 

Rental Program, for the use and occupancy of the Unit;  

 

 Establish and enforce check-in and check-out procedures for all Owner's and Owner's guests; 

 

 Housekeeping and cleaning services necessary or desired for the Units; 

 

 All routine repairs and maintenance services necessary or desired for the Units;  

 

 Valet parking services;  

 

 Pest control services;  

 

 Manage and maintain the Unit electronic locking system, and all associated keys, including issuance and 

replacement of room keys; 

 

 Collection of all service fees and other charges payable by the Owner to the Hotel Unit Owner or Hotel 

Operator for the provision of these Hotel Exclusive Services and any other individual charges incurred 

by or on behalf of Owner;  

 

 Connect telephones in the Unit to the Hotel's telephone switchboard. All Units must utilize the Hotel's 

telephone systems;  

 

 Make arrangements for, or cause to be arranged, internet service and basic cable or satellite television 

service to the Unit utilizing the Hotel's cable or satellite system and such additional television services as 

Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator may, from time to time determine, in its discretion. No 

separate internet, cable or satellite televisions services may be provided to the Units.  

 

 In accordance with the liquor license issued by the State of Colorado for the Community, (i) operate 

mini-bars in the Units; and (ii) provide room service to the Units, which shall include the sale and 

dispensing of alcoholic beverages and food in the Unit. Unit Owners shall not engage in any activity 

within its Unit or any portion of the Community requiring a liquor license from the State of Colorado, 

without limitation, the sale of alcoholic beverages and food;  

 

 Such additional services and procedures as the Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator may elect, from 

time to time, in order to maintain uniformity, quality, appropriate access restrictions, and ensure 

compliance with the Town Requirements and the Standards. 

241



 

These same Hotel Exclusive Services, which ensure the Hotel Operator is able to operate the property to the 

Standards, and provide privacy and security to all unit Owners and Hotel Guests, are also called out in the 

Amended Hotel Deed Restrictions for your approval (see Section 6.6.4.).  

 

QUALIFIED RENTAL PROGRAM: In the Amended and Restated Declaration, adopted January 29, 2015, 

“Qualified Rental Program” was added to ensure that the Residence Condominiums and Hotel 

Condominiums will always be represented in a manner that complements the Standards. In essence, any 

company that intends to represent Residence Condominiums and/or Hotel Condominiums for transient 

rentals is now required to be pre-qualified by the Association Board. Qualified Rental Programs are required 

to:  

 

 Be registered to do business in the State of Colorado;  

 

 Have all business license(s) required by the Town of Mountain Village;  

 

 Be current in the payment of applicable taxes to the Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County and 

the State of Colorado;  

 

 Have an physical office located in or near the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado;  

 

 Have a dedicated telephone number for Owners and guests to utilize that is a local or toll free call;  

 

 Have experience managing rental units of at least four stars in quality rating;  

 

 Have other rental units under management that meet at least a four star quality rating; and  

 

 Have personal injury liability insurance at a minimum amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 

occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) in the aggregate or at such higher amounts as may be 

required by the Board.  

 

In order to ensure free enterprise and end-purchaser financing, Residence Condominium and Hotel 

Condominium Unit Owners are not precluded from directly renting the Owner's Unit to a guest or from 

utilizing rental services such as VRBO, HomeAway, Flip Key or similar rental services under which the 

Owner is directly renting the Owner's Unit to a guest.  

 

The Hotel Unit Owner is under no obligation to grant trademark usage rights to Qualified Rental Program or 

to Unit Owner that choose to rent their Unit on their own.  

 

Regardless of whether a Unit Owner chooses to rent with a Qualified Rental Program or on their own, they 

must always adhere to the Hotel Exclusive Services.  

 

The Qualified Rental Programs are also called out in the Amended Hotel Deed Restrictions for your approval 

(see Section 6.6.5.).  

 

242



USE AND BUSINESS LICENSE REQUIREMENT: The current Hotel Deed Restrictions states the Hotel 

Condominiums may not be the primary residence of the Hotel Condominium Owner. The Amended Hotel 

Deed Restriction for your approval includes additional language that the Hotel Condominium Owner will be 

required to have all business license(s) required by the Town of Mountain Village (see Section 6.6.6.). Per the 

Town’s existing codes, if a Hotel Condominium Owner does not have the necessary business license, and 

therefore does not report rental activity and pay the associated transient room taxes, certain penalties will be 

enforced.  

 

As an added measure of protection, given the Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator must provide the 

Hotel Exclusive Services, the Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator will at all times be able to report to 

the Town any rental activity, per the Town’s request.  

 

CONDOMINIUM RECONFIGURATIONS: As always, and per the Amended and Restated Declaration, 

adopted January 29, 2015, the Hotel Unit Owner must approve any and all renovations with the Residence 

Condominiums and Hotel Condominiums, which continues to ensure that the Hotel, in its entirety, meets or 

exceeds the Standards.  

 

RESIDENCE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM PARTICIPANT BENEFITS: The Hotel Operator will make available 

to all Residence Condominium and Hotel Condominium Owner a voluntary Residence Management 

Program. The terms are nearly identical to those the Hotel Operator has used and uses at multiple resort 

properties throughout the US. The terms have been optimized over many years to ensure the Hotel Operator 

is able to maximize occupancy, rates and overall performance. The Madeline Residence Management 

Program also provides additional benefits to the participants, including:  

 

 Complimentary housekeeping up to 30 nights per year;  

 Complimentary turn-down services (including trash/tidy) up to 30 nights per year;   

 Complimentary valet parking for Unit Owner and Unit Owner Guests while in residences vs. non-

participants only receive complimentary valet for the Unit Owner;  

 Rev Restaurant and Black Iron Kitchen + Bar – 20% discount vs. 10% for non-participants;  

 Hotel guestrooms – 15-40% discounts (15% guaranteed) vs. 10% for non-participants (not-guaranteed);   

 Spa and Salon – 30% discounts vs. 20% for non-participants. 

 

In the future, if necessary, additional participant benefits will be evaluated and added to encourage 

participation in the Madeline Residence Management Program. By way of example, when the Hotel Operator 

was brought in to operate Brasada Ranch in Bend Oregon, less than 30% of the individually owned cabins 

that were being made available for overnight rentals were participating in the Hotel Operator’s Rental 

Management Program. As of July 2015, 97% of the cabins that are being made available for overnight rentals 

are participating in the Hotel Operator’s Rental Management Program.   

 

CONCLUSION 

WIth your approval of the Amended Hotel Deed Restrictions, you will be making the Hotel Condominium 

Units sellable and therefore ensuring the Property’s full potential.  

 

It is time the Property achieve its potential, and I truly appreciate you your time and consideration.   

 

243



Sincerely,  

 

 

 

 

Brent P. McLean 

Senior Vice President – Real Estate 

Northview Hotel Group 

244



43(_) 163 
PCI!!!;! 1 of 13 
SAN m GUEl (,"OUNTY. CU 
rI . KA THLEEN ER I E, CL( nr..·'RECOROER 
10-07·-2013 01: 2, PM R'.!cording Fee $7t.01) 

RECORDING REQUESTCDRY 
ANI) WilEN RECORDI3D RETURN TO: 

James Mahoney 
J. David Reed, P.C. 
PO Box 196 
Montrose, CO 81402 

AM ENDED AND RESTATED 
DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM HOTEL 

COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS 
(Hotel Deed Restrictions) 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION Or-CONDOM INIUM HOTEL 
COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS (this "Declaration") is made this J.L day of f ep{fv1 Let-
20 13 by ~KTORNET US TELLURIDE LLC (" Oeclaranl"), successor in title to RAL Mountain Village 
Lodging, L.L.C. (" RAL"), for the benefit of tho TOWN OF MOUNTA IN VILLAGE, a home rule 
municipali ty and political subd ivision of the State of Colorado ("Town"), its successors and assigns. 
Declarant is owner oCthe Hotel Un it as defined herein. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RAL executed thai certain Declaration of Condominium Hotel Covenants 
and RC""slrictions (Hotel Deed Restrictions) dated April 4, 2006 and recorded June 12. 2006, at Reception 
No. 384748 or(he records in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder of San Miguel County, Co lorado 
(" Original Declaration") with respect to that certain !"eal property described therein and on l!:xhibit .. A" 
<Inached hereto ("Project Prop~rty"); and 

Wl lEREAS. the Original Declaration provided for the release therefrom of nil portions of 
the Project Property other than the Hotel Unil upon the creation thereof by recording an appropriate 
condominium Declaration pursuant to the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act, C R.S. 38·33.3·101 
ot seq. : and 

WHEREAS, RAL recorded thai cer1aill First Amended !lnd Restated Declaration of 
Grants, Covenants, Conditions aud Restrictions for Telluride MOuntai n Village Resort Condom iniums, a 
Condomin ium CommOIl Interest Community Located in Towll of Mountain Village, San Miguel County. 
Colorado, dated November 7, 201 1 and recorded November 23, 201 1 at Reception No. 420677 of the 
records in the Office or lhe Clerk and Recorder of San Miguel County, Colorado, creating a condominium 
regime on the Project Property including "Various components of condominium units, incl udi ng without 
limitation, the " Hotel Unit," 100 " hotel condo miniums" (a lso known as " lodge and efficiency lodge 
units" and, together with the Hotel Unit, the "condominium-hotel" ) and 60 " residential 
condominiums;" and 

WII EREAS, Declarant is the successor owner of the Project Property; and 

27{)4 t 962 2 

/3 

430163 
PtllH! 1 of 13 
SAN I'lfGUEL COUN 'I'V', t;U 
n, MTHlEE~1 ER IE I ClERI\-~ECORDER 
1L1-07-2013 01:24 PM Recordln~ Fee $71.00 

RECORDJNG IlliQUESTTID ny 
ANIJ WJIEN REeQHO!;D RUTURN TO: 

James Mahoney 
J, David Reed, P.C, 
PO Box 196 
Montrose, CO 81402 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
DECLARATlON OF CONDOM INIUM HOTEL 

COVENANTS AND RF..5TRICTIONS 
(Hotcl De<>d Restrictions) 

nils AMEND~D AND Il~Sl'ATED DECLARATION Or-CONDOM INIUM HOrm. 
COVENANTS AND RESTR ICTIONS (Ihis " Decla ratloll") is made this ~ day or fll{J{lY1 Let 
20 13 by IZKTORNETUS TELLURI DE LLC C' Oed:mlnt"), successor in litle, to RAL Mountain Village 
Lodging,LL.C, ("RAL"), for !he benefit of the TOWN OF MOUNTA IN YfLLAGE, a home rule 
municipality and political subd ivision orthe State of Colorado ("Town"), its successors and assigns. 
Declarant is owner of the Hotel Unit as defmed herein. 

WITN.ESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RAL executed that certain Declaration ofCondollliniutll HOle! CovcmutlS 
and Rcstrictions (Hotcl Deed RCSlr'ictions) dfl ted April 4 , 2006 and recorded June 12 . 2006, al Reception 
No. 384748 of lhe records in the Office Qfthc Clerk and Recorder of San Miguel CounlY. Co lorado 
(" Original Declaration") with respect to that ccrtuin rcal property described therein und 00 l!:xhibit j, A" 
attached hereto (<<Project PrOllcrty"): and 

WIIEREAS. the Originnl Declaration provided for the release therefrom or all portioos or 
the Project Property olher than the Hotel Unit upon the Crl'\3tjon thereof by recording an appropriate 
condominium Dec larat ion pursuant to the Co lorado Common Interest Ownership Act. C. R.S. 38·33.3·1 0 I 
ct seq.: and 

WHEREAS. RA L recorded Ihn! cer1ain First. Amended and Restated Declaration of 
Granls, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Telluride Moulltai n ViJJage Resort Condom iniums, a 
Condomin iwn Commol] Interest Community Located ill TowlI of Mountain Village, San Miguel County. 
Colorado, dated "November 7. 201 1 and recorded November 23, 201 1 at Reception No. 420677 of the 
records in the Office or lhe- Clerk and R~'Corder of San Miguel County, Colorado, creating a condominium 
regime on the Project Property including ... arious components of condominium units, including without 
limitation, the "HotellJnil ; ' 100 "hotel tondo miniums" (a lso known as " Iodgt and efficiency ludgl' 
units" and, together with the HOle! Unit, the "condominium-hotel") :lnd 60 " residenlial 
condominiums;" and 

WIIEREAS, Declaranl is the successor owner oft lle Project Property; and 

27()..119612 

/3 
245



430163 10-07-1013 OJ : 24- PM page 2 of 13 

WHEREAS, the Declarant and the Town wish 10 amend the Originll l Decluration and 
restate it in its entirety as hereinafter sct forth. 

AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT. The Original Declamtion is amended and 
restated in its entirety as set forth herein and shall apply to the ownership, use, operation, and 
development of the Project Property. 

I, RECITAT IONS. TIle n!citations set forth above '1m true and correct and arc 
incorporated into this Declaration by this (('ferencc as if set lorth herein in full . 

2. GENILRAL RES1'RICnONS. As mOfC particularly described herein, Ihe Declarant 
has developed and has operat ed a Condomi nium lIote l (defined below) on the Project Propel'Y . 
Declarant shall operate the Condominium Hotel in aocordance with the tenns and condi tions sel rOl1h 
herein , 

3 "Condgmininm Hotd " shall mean the holel to be oper.ltcd on a portion of the 
Property, which will be comprised of the Hotel Unit, Condominium HOlel Units (defined bclow), 
the On-Site Rental PfOgram (delin~d bdow) and other components of lbe Project neceSSDI)' to r a 
hotel meeting the I lotel Standard (uefined below). The Condominium Holel shall provide Ihl! 
services consistent with the Hotel Standard. 

4. " Hotel Unit" shaJ l mean that ponion of the Project that shall be more particularly 
described in the condominium declaration and condominium map required by the Act, approved by the 
Town and fil ed in the Public Records. The Hotel Unit shall include, at a minimum, those portions 
orthe Project identified as "Confinncd Master Hotel Unit" in lhe sketches attached hereto as 
Exhibit "0 " as well as the eighty (80) parking spaces in the underground parking garage on the Property 
that are owned by the Declarant, together with easements over and across such portions of the Project as 
shall be appropriate to the reasonable and customary use or the forego ing. The Declarant andlor the 
Hotel Owner may gmnt casemeots 10 other unit owners and the public over and across portions of the 
Hotel Unit. 

5. "Hotel Owner" shall mean the owner in fee title of the Hotcl Unit. 

6. "Condominium Hotcl Units" shall refer to those Condominium Units and Efficiency 
Lodge Un its that arc participating in the On·Site Rental Program for use as transient guest lodging 
fac ili ties (hotel guest rooms) of the Condominium Holel. 

7. HOT~~L STANDARD. "Hotel Rating Standard" shall mean achievement by the 
Condominium Hotel of e ither ( I) Mobil Four-Star or Mobil Five·Star rating (as determined by 
Mobil pursuant to Mobil 's then-applicable Travel Guide Rating Criteria fo r Fouf-Star or Fivc·Star 
Lodging Establishments), or (2) AAA Pour-Diamond or AAA Five-Diamond rating (as determined 
by AAA pursuant to its then·applicable rating criteria for Four-Diamond or Five·Dilllllond lodging 
establishments) "Hotel Rating Service" shall mean lhe publisher of the Mobil Travel Guide or the AAA 
Travel Guide, or in the event such organization ceases to provide criteria for the Hotel Standard, an 
organization reasonably acceptable to the Town that provides a comparable hotel rating system that 
is widely recogn ized and accepted withi n the hospitality industry as a standard for rating the 
overall qual ity of hotels, such additional organization being sometimes referred to as 11 
"Replacement Hotel Rating Service". 

8. ACHIEVEMENT OF HOTEL RATING STANDARD. The Hotel Owner shall 
apply to Hotel Rating Service for an initial rating as soon as pennitted by each of the rating services., 

27()41962.l 

4301 63 10-u7-2013 Ol :2t PM page 2 or 13 

WHEREAS. the Declarant' and the Town wish 10 amend the Origina l Declarat ion and 
restate it in its entirely as hereinafter sct fOl1h. 

AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT. The Original Declaration is amended and 
reSUlted in its entirety as sel forth herein and shall apply to the ownership, usc, operation, and 
development of the Project Propcny. 

I , RECITATIONS. TIle recitations ser forth above /Irc true and correct :md :1re 
incorpornted into this Declaration by this rderencc liS if set lorth herein in ful l. 

2 . GENIIRAL RESrrR1CTIONS. As more particularly dc~cribcd herein.lhe Declarant 
has develDped and has operated a Condomi ni lllll Ilotel (defined below) on the Project Propcl1y 
Declarant s hall operate the ClHldOll1in iutn Hotel ill accordance with the terms and conditiol1s set FOl1h 
herein . 

3. "Condomininm HQleI" shall mcan the hutel to be operated on fI portion ()f thc 
Property, which will be comprised of Ihe HOle.1 Unit, Condominium Hotel Unils (defined below). 
the On-Site Rental Program (deFined b~low) and other components oftbe rrojccl necessary tor a 
hotel mcCtiJlg the Hotel Standard (uefincd below). The Coltdomillill!1l Holel shall provide the 
services consistent with the Hore! Standard . 

4. " Hotel Unit" shall mean that ponion of the Project that shall be more particularly 
described in the eondominitun declaralion and condominium map required by the Act, approved by the 
Town and filed in the Public Records. The Hotel Unit shall include, at a minimum, those portions 
of the Project identified as "Confinncd Master HOl el Unit" in Ihe sketches anached herel o as 
Exhibit "8" as well as the eighty (80) parking spaces in the underground parking garage on the Property 
lhat are owned by the Declarant. together with casements over and across such portions of the Pro jed as 
shall be appropriale to the reasooable and customary use of the foregoing_ The Declarnnt and/or the 
Hotel Owner may b'Tant casements to other unit owners and the public over and across portions of the 
Hotel Unit. 

5. "HoCel Owner" shall mean the owner in fee ti tle of the Hotel Unit. 

6. I'Condominium Holel Units" sha ll refer to those Condominium Units and Efficiency 
Lodge Un its that are participating in the On-Site Rental Program for use as transient guest lodging. 
fac ili ties (hotel guest rooms) of the Condominium Hotel. 

7. HOTEL STANDA RD. "Hotel Rating Sln ndard" shan mean achievement by the 
Condominium Hotel of either (I) Mobil Four-Star or Mobll Five-Star ruling (as determined by 
Mobil pursuant to Mobi l's Ulen-applieable Travel Guide Rating Criteria for Four-Star or Five-Slar 
Lodging Establishments), or l2) AAA Pour-Diamond or AAA Five-Diamond rating (as determined 
by AM pursuant to its then -applicable rating criteri a for Four-Diamood or Five-Diamond lodging 
establi shments) "Hotel Rating Service" shall mean the pu bl isher o f the Mobil Travcl Guide or the AAA 
Travel Guide, or in lhe event such organizalion ceases to provide crileria for the Hotel Standard, an 
orgartization reasonably acceptable to the Town thai prov ides a comparable hotel rating system tlliJt 
is widely recogn ized and accepted within the hospitality industry as a standard for rating lhe 
overall qual ity of hotels, such additional organizal ion being sometimes referred to as II 
"Replacement Hale! Rating Service". 

8. ACHIEVEMENT OF HOTElr RATING STANDAR D. The Hotel Owner shall 
apply to HOlel Rating Serv ic~ for an initial rating as soon as permitted by each o fLhe mting services. 

246



~30 1 63 10-07-2013 O l: 2~ PM Page 3 of 13 

shall take all reasonable actions requ ired in order to achieve the Hotel Standard on an exped itious 
basis. and shall achieve the Hotel Standard wiihin hvo (2) years from the date the Condominium 
Hotel opens to the public for transient gUCSt lodging, subject only to delays for force majeure 
(the "Initial Rating"). Thc Hotel Owner shall be required to advise the Town in writing of the 
results of the initial and each periodic rating of the Condominium Hotelobtained by the Hotel Owner 
from the Hotel Rating Service, promptly after receipt in wri ting of such rating. Ifat any lime the 
Condom inium Hotel does not ach ieve the Hotel Rating Standard, the Hotel Owner shall aga in achieve 
the Hote l St'andard (the "Re-Achieved Rating") within fifteen ( 15) months of the loss of the Hotel 
Rating Standard . 

9. REMF:DY FOR NOT ACUIEVING HOTEL RATING STANDARD. In thcevent 
thai the Hotel Owner does not achieve tbe Initial Rating or the Re-Achieved Rating within the 
timeframes provided in the foregoing paragraph the Hotel Owner shall pay a fcc to the Town in the 
amount of Twenty-Five Thousand and Noll 00 ($25,000) Dollars for each month fo llowing the date On 
which the Hotel Rating Standard was to be achieved or re- achieved and until the Hotel Rating Standard is 
achieved or re-achievcd, which monthly amount shall be prorated for the portions ofa month 
following such date on which the Hotel Rating Standard was to be achieved or re-achieved and the 
portion ofa montb preceding the date 011 whieh the Hotel Rating Standard is ach ieved or re·achieved. 
In the event that the Hotel Rating Standard is 1101 achieved on or before the date one year after the date 
on wh ich the Hotel Rating Standard is to be achieved or re-achieved, the Holel Owner shall pay a fee to 
the Town in the amount of Fifty Thousand and Noll 00 ($50,000) Dollars for each month fo llowing 
the date one year after the Hotel Standard is to be achieved or rc-achieved and until the Hotel Rating 
Standard is achieved or re-achieved, which monthly amount shall be prorated for the portions ofa 
month following such date that is one year after the date ihat the Hotel Rating Standard is to be achieved 
or re-ach ieved and the portion of a month preceding the date on which the Hotel Rating Standard is 
achieved or re-achieved. 

10. RELEASE. The Project Property except for the Hotel Unit is released from the Original 
Declaration. 

II . CONOOM1NI UM-HOTEL REQ UIREMENTS. The Hotel Unit and the 
condOlllinium-hotelunits shall be either: (i) operated and managed by a fu ll service hotel opcr'dtor/brand 
(as applicable) with !1ignificanl experience in full service operations with existing broad marketing 
distribution capabilit ies (hotel operator) for the life of the condominium-hotel ill accordance with the 
operational standards. 

12. CONDOMINJ UM-HOTEI1STANDAROS. 

L The condom in ium-hotel operator shall be capable of operating the project in u manner 
consistent with the project operalional standards of this Declaration, or The 
Condominium-Hotel unit operator shall have a hjgh level of name, brand awarcness and 
marketing breadth with the general public and offer customers incentives such as a 
customer loyalty program. Thc current condominium-hotel operator, Cresccnt Hotels and 
Resorts, satisfies the requirements of this section. 

II. Examples of intcmationally or nationally recognized full service hotel operators and 
brands include (but are not limited to) the follow ing: Wes1in, Marriott (all full service 
brands), Hyatt (all full service brands), [Iilton (all full service brands, including Waldorf 
Astoria), Pairmont, Intercontinental (all fuJI service brands), Morgans Hotel Group, 
Wyndham, Le Meridieo, Luxury Col lection (Starwood) and similarly styled operators, as 
recognizcd by accepted industry standards and brands from time to time. 

21041962.2 

43D 163 lo -d7-2013 Ol:2~ PM PU3e 3 ot 13 

shall take all reasonable actions required in order to achieve the Hotel Standard on an expeditious 
basis. and shall achieve the HOle l Standard within two (2) years from the date the Condominium 
Hotel opens to the public for transient guest lodging, subject only 10 delays for force majeure 
(the " Initia l Rating"). The Hotel Owner shal l be required 10 advise the Town in writing oF the 
results of the initial and each periodic rating ofthe Condominium Hotel obtained by the Ilotel Owner 
fro m the Hotel Rating Service, promptly nfter receipt in wri ting of such raling. Irat any lime the 
Condom inium Hotel does nOl achieve the Hotel Rating Standard, tlte Hotel Owner shall again achieve 
the Hotel Standard (the " Re-Achieved Rating") within liftecn ( 15) months of the loss of the Hotel 
Rating Standard. 

9. REMEDY FO R NOT ACHIEVING HOTEL RATING STANDARO. In Ihcevenl 
thaI the Hotel Owner does not achieve the Initjal Rating or the Re·Achieved Rating within the 
timeframes provided in the foregoing pAragraph the Hotel Owner shall pay a fc c to the Town in thc 
amount of Twenty-Five Thousand fUld No/100 ($25,000) Dollars for each mont h fo llO\ving the dull! on 
which the Hotel Rating Standard was to be achieved or re- achieved and until the Hate! Rating SlilJldard is 
achieved or re-achieved, which monthly amount shall be prorated for the portions ofa month 
following SUdl date on wh ich the Hotel Ruting St:mdard was to beachieved or re·achieved and the 
portion ofa month preceding the date 011 which the Hotel Rating Standard is achieved or re-achieved. 
In the event that the Hotel Rating Standard is not achieved 011 or before the date one year after the date 
on which the Hotel Rating Standard is to be achieved or fe-achieved, the Ilotel Owncr shall pay a fee to 
the Town in the amount ofFifly Thousand and Nol l 00 (S50,OOO) Dollars for each month fo llowing 
the dale one year after the Hotel Standard is to be achieved or rc-achieved and until the Hotel Rating 
Standard is achieved or re-achieved, which monthly amount sha ll be prorated for the portions of a 
month foltowing such date that is one year after the d:ile that the Holel Rating Standard is 10 be achieved 
or ro-achieved and the p0l1ion of a month preceding the dale on which the Hotel Rating Standard is 
achieved or re-aeh ieved. 

10. R[LF..ASE. The Project Property except for the Hotel Unit is re leased from the Original 
Declaration. 

I I. CONDOMIN IUM· HOTEL REOUl"REMF:NTS. The Hotel Unit and the 
condom in ium-hotel units shall be ei thor: (1) opernted !lnd ma naged by a full service hotel opcnuor/brand 
(as applicable) with s ignificant experience in full sllrvice operations with exisling broad mnrketing 
distribution capabililies (hotel operator) for the lire of the condominium-hotel in accordance with the 
Opcl'atlonal standards. 

11_ CONDOMIN JUf\.·t-HOTE I~ STANf)A ROS. 

i. The condominium-hotel operator shall be capable of operating the project in a manner 
consistent with the project opermionaJ standards of this Declaration. or The 
Condominium-Hotel unit operator shal l have n hlgh level of name, brand awareness and 
marketing breadth with the general public and offer customers incentives such as a 
customer loyalty program. The current condominium-hotel operator, Crescent Hotels and 
Resorts, satisfies the requiremen ts Oflhis Secljon. 

II. Examples ofintemationally or nationally recognized fuji service hote l operators and 
brands include (but are not lim ited 10) the following: Westin, Marriott (all full service 
brands), Hyatt (all full service brands), i lillon (all full service brands, including Waldorf 
Astoria), Pairmont, lntercontineota l (all full service brands), Morgans Hotel Group, 
Wyndham, Le Meridicn, Luxury Collection (Starwood) and similarly styled operators, as 
recognized by accepted industry standards and brands from time to time. 

27iJ41\162.2 

247



~ 30163 10- 07-2013 01 :2~ PM PUge 4 of 13 

ii i. Thecondominium-hotel operator may be changed by tbe owner of the Holel Unit (or 
other authorized person or entity) froro tunc to time. In the event that the owner oCthe 
Hotel Unit elects to term inate the approved condomin ium-hotel operator at any time, the 
owner of the Hotel Unit shall provide the Director of Com munity Development of the 
Town with: (a) thirty (30) days' prior wri tten notice of such tenninat ion including thc 
reasons for such lenninat ion (which shall be held in confidence by the Town), or such 
lesser period of time as may be necessitated by the bankruptcy or cessation of business of 
the hotel operator or misfeasance or malfeasance of thc condominium-hote l operator; and 
(b) within two hundred forty (240) days oftennination of the hotel operator. notice of the 
rep lacement condominium- hotel operator, which notice shall include a Icller ofintcnt 
from the replacement condominium-holel operator. The Town shal l promptly provide 
notice of acceptance or non-acccptance within f0l1y- fi ve (45) days of receipt of tbe notice 
and the fai lure to provide a response shall be deemed to be an approval of the 
replacement condomin ium-hotel operator by the Town. In considering the acceptability 
of the replacement condominililll-hotel operator, the developer and Town sha ll adhere 10 

the standards and guidelines of this section. 

iv. In the event of a dispute between the owner ofthe Hotel Unit and the Town conceming 
the adequacy of the designation of the condomin ium-hotel operator consistent with this 
sect ion, the panics shall mutually identifY a qual ified, neutral third-party recogni ?..ed as 3n 
authority in the hospitality industry to mediate and resolve th is dispute through a binding 
mediation process described in section 6 below. 

Y. The Hotel Unit owner and the condomin ium-hotel operator shall provide thc fo llowing 
rull service amen.ities, facilities and services within the Project Property, wh ich arc 
intended to help promote the lodge and efficiency lodgc units, including but nOllimited 
to 3 restaurant, bar. spa, concierge and similar full service hotel/lodging amen ities. 

vi. The Hotel Unit and each lodgc and efficiency lodge unit is incorporated as a 
condomin ium-hote l and the will meet the fo llowing cond itions, restrictions and 
requirement: 

27(141962.2 

3. The condomin ium-hotel operator shall be responsible for the implementation, 
management and operation of the condominium-hotel, including the national and 
intemational marketing of each of the lodge and effi ciency lodge un its 
(managemenl and marketing program). The management and marketing prognlm 
is intended to manage market and promote the condominium-hotel proj ect and 
the use and occupancy of the associated lodge and efficiency lodge units in the 
condomini um-hotel as accommodation styled rooms. The management and 
marketing program is furt her intended to provide fo r the use and rentals of all 
avaiJable lodge and cfficiency lodge units, which are required to be made 
available to the general public as hotel -type lodging units except when the hotel 
condomin iums are occupied by an owner as allowed by this section . 

b. The residemial eondomin iwns in the Project Property may also voluntari ly be put 
into the accommodations rental pool and the management and marketing 
program. 

c. So long as registration as a security is not required under applicable state and 
federal securities laws. each lodge and efficiency lodge unit in the condomin ium-

~3016J 10-07-2013 01:24 PM PUge 4 of 13 

iii. The condomin ium-hotel operator may be changed by the owner of the Hotel Unil (or 
other authorized person or entity) froro lime to lime. III the cvenl that Ihe owncr of the 
Hotel Unit eleclS 10 tenninale the approved condominiwn-holcl operator at any time, the 
owner of the Hotcl Unit shall provide the Director of Com munity Development or the 
Town with: (a) thirty (30) days' prior writtcn notice of such tennination including the 
reasons for such term inat ion (which shall be held in confidence by the Town), or such 
lesser period of lime as mfty be necessitated by the bankruptcy or cessation of business of 
Ihe hmel operator or misfeasance or malfeasance of the condominium-hote l operator; and 
(b) wilbin two hundred forty (240) days of tcnnination of tile hotel opemlor, notice ofthe 
rep lacemcnt condominium- hotal operator. which nOliccshaJJ include a !c1lcr of intent 
from the replacement condom inium-holel operator. The Town shall promptly provide 
notice of aecepta.nce or non-acceptance witliin fOl1y-five (45) days of receipt of the notice 
and the fa ilure to provide a response shall be deemed to be an approval or the 
replacement condomin ium-hotel operator by the Town. In considering the acceptability 
orlhe replacement condominium-hotel operator, lhedeveioper and Town shall adhere to 
the standards and guidelines of this section . 

iv. .to the event am dispute between the owner of the Hotel Unit and the Town concerning 
the adequacy of the designation of the condom inium-hotel opcr'dtor consistent with this 
section, (he parties shall mutually identifY a qual ified, neutral third-party recognized as an 
authority in the hospitality industry to mediate and resolve th is djspute through a binding 
mediation process described in section 6 below. 

1,'_ The Hotel Unit owner and the condominium-hotel operator shall prol,'ide 11lC following 
full service amenitics, facilities nod services within the Projcct Property, which arc 
imended to help promote the lodge and efficiency lodge units, including but not limited 
to a restaurant. bar, ~ra. concierge and similar full service hotelJlodging arne.n ilies. 

vi. The HOlel Unit and each lodge and efficiency lodge unit is incorporatcd as a 
condominium-hotel and the will meet the rollowing conditions, restrictions and 
req uirement: 

a. The condominium-holel operator shall be responsible for the implementation. 
management and operation of the condominium-hotel, including the national tlnd 
international marketing of each of the lodge and effici e.ncy lodge un its 
(nlltnagemcnl and lIlarketing program). The management and marketing prognnll 
is intended to manage market and promotc the condominium-hotel project and 
the usc and occupancy of the associated lodgo and efficiency lodge UJ1its in the 
condominium-hotel as accommodatiun styled rooms. The management and 
marketing program is further intended 10 provide for the use and rentals of all 
avaiJable lodge and efficiency lodge units, which are required to be made 
available 10 the general public as horel -type lodging unIts except when thc hOlel 
condominiums are occupied by an owner as allowed by this section. 

b. The residcntial condominiums in the Project Propcrty may also voluntari ly be PUI 
into the accommodations rental pool and Ihe managt!ment and marketing 
program. 

So long as regjstration as a securi ty is not required undcr applicable state and 
federal securities laws, each lodge and efficiency lodge unit in the condomin ium· 

248



2704 1 962~ 

430163 10-07-201 301:2, PM PCIge 5 of 13 

hotel shall be included in the hotel operator's management and marketing 
program and managed by the condominium-hotel operator, and in that case a 
separate unit management agreement for each unit must be executed at the time 
of dosing on a lodge and efficiency lodge unit, consistent with this section. 

d. The lodge and efficiency lodge units shall not be the primary residence of the 
owner. 

(I) When not in use by the owner ofa lodge and efficiency lodge 
unit, such units shall be included illlhe condominium-hotel 's 
accommodations rental pool and available for rental occupancy 
and accommodalions by guests. 

(lJ) Thc owner ofa lodge and efficiency lodge unit shall provide 
lead-time on notice of occupancy to the condominium-hotel 
operator with February 2811

, as the deadline for providing 
intended summer occupancy dales and September 30th (or winter 
occupancy dates. 

(UI) The owner may use their lodge and efficiency lodge unit at other 
times without any lead-time notice if the un it is not reserved for 
lodging purposes. 

e. Willi respect to each condomin ium-hotel unit, the restrictions set forth in this 
section shall be reflected in a separate deed restriction for each lodge and 
effici ency lodge unit so that the owner of each unit is affirmatively stating that 
their unites) will be avai lable to the condominium-hote l operator and their paying 
gueslS when not in use by the owner in accordance with the requirements of this 
section. 

f. For each lodge and efficiency unit in the hotel operator's management and 
marketing program, the condomin ium-hotel operator and not the individual 
owners oflodge and efficiency lodge units will establish maxi mum room rental 
rates and yie ld manage the inventory, other than during owner's allowed usage 
periods. 

g. The condominium-hotel project may consist of lodge and efficiency lodge units 
that arc connected by lock-off doors between the individual units. When s uch a 
configuration of lodge and e ffi ciency lodge unilS is desired in a lock-off 
configuration, the following requirements shall be met: 

(I) Doors that lock-off one unit from another unit shall be 
maintained as a separate, lockable door. and doors or locks shall 
not be removed for any reason; 

(II) Each unit shall maintain a separately keyed entry from the other 
attached unit; 

(IJI) Each unit shall be shown as a separate condominium unit on the 
condominium map with an owner allowed to own up to a 
maximum of three (3) UlliLS in a l ock~offunit configuration; 

(IV) Each lock-offunit shall maintain a separate, unique unit 
designation in the common hallway; and 

(V) Each unit shall contain a freestanding bed that does not include a 
sleeper sofa or Murphy bed. 

2704 1 96~7 

~30163 1/)-(17-2013 0l :2~ PM Pm"'! 5 or 13 

hotel shall be induded in the hotel operator's management and marketing 
program and managed by fhe condominium-hotol opcrator~ and in that case a 
separate wlit management agreement for each unit musl be executed al the lime 
of closing on a lodge and efficiency lodge unit, consistent with this section. 

d. The lodge and efficiency lodge units shall not be the primary residence of the 
owner. 

(I) When not in usc by the owner ofa lodge and efficiency lodge 
unit. such units shall be included in lhe condominium-hotel's 
at:t:ommodations rental pool and available for rental ocoupancy 
and accommodations by guests. 

(11) The owner ora lodge and efficiency lodge unit shall provide 
lead-lime on notice of occupanCy to thc condominium-holel 
oper!\tor with February 2811

, as the deadline for providjng 
intended summer occupancy dates and September'JOIh ror winter 
occupancy dates. 

(Ill ) l'hc owner may use their lodge and efficiency lodge unital other 
times without any lead-time notice if the unit is not reserved for 
lodging purposes. 

c. Witll respect to each condominiulll-hote1 unillhe restrictions sci forth in this 
section shall be reflected in a separate deed restriction for each lodgc and 
efficiency lodge wlit so that the owner of each unit is amrmalively stating that 
their unites) will be avai lable to the condominium-hotel operator and their paying 
guests when nol in use by the owner in accordance with the requirements of this 
section. 

I' For each lodge and efficiency ullit in the hotel operator's management and 
marketing program, the condomin ium-hotel operator and nor the individual 
owners of lodge and efticiency lodge units will establish maximum room rental 
rates and yield manage the. invcntory, other than during owner's allowed usage 
periodS. 

g. The condominium-hotel project may consist of lodge and efficiency lodge units 
Ihal arc connected by lock-off doors between the individual units. When such a 
configuration of lodge alld efficiency lodge units is desired in a lock-off 
eonfiguraiion, the following requi rements shall be met: 

(I) Doors that lock-orfone unit from another unit shall be 
maintained as a separate, lockable door. and doors or locks shall 
not be removed fo r any reason; 

(lI) Each unit shall maintain a separately keyed entry from the other 
attached unit; 

(IJI ) Each unit shall be shown as a separate condominium unit on the 
condominium map with an owner allOWed 10 own up to a 
maxim um of three (3) UlliLS in a lock~offunit con[jguration~ 

(IV) E..'lch 10ek-olTunit shall maintain a separate. unique unit 
designation in the common hallway; and 

(V) Each unit shall contain a freestanding bed lhat does not include a 
sleeper sofa or Murphy bed. 

249



h. An owner ora unit in the condominium-hote l shall not be allowed to park or 
store a yehicle in a parking space during times thatlhe owner is no{ occupying 
their unit. 

i. A block orlodge and efficiency lodge units may be owned by one (I) owner 
provided such units meet the requirements of this section. 

j. Alteration or elimination or any walls shown on the condominium map, or 
changes to the individual rooms that eliminate the number of beds approved by 
the Town are prohibited unless such changes are reviewed and approved by the 
Town in accordance with these regulations and prov ided that sucn change wiJl 
not reduce thc number of beds availahle in the condominium-hotel proje(.1. 

" . The owner oftbc Holel Unit, in consultation with the Town-approved 
condomini um-hotel operator, will continue to maintain unironn furn iture, 
fixtures and equipment packages that will be provided for each of the lodge and 
efficiency lodge units exclusive of the residential condominium units. The 
furniture, fixture and equipment packages will continue to insure a quality of 
decor, furniture. rurnishings and appliances suitable to meet the condomin ium
hotcl operational standards, which may include without limitat ion appropriate 
and suitable fixtures (including bathroom fixtures), cabinetry, carpeting, floor 
covcring, paint, wall covering, furniture (including built-in fumituTc, lfany), 
lighting, mirrors, decor items, color tclcvision, clock, radio, drapes, shades and 
other window treatments and any and all other flxtures, equipment, utitities and 
decOl-ative accessories within the units. The design and content of the furniture, 
fi xture and equipment packages may be offered in different variations and 
themes intended to achieve the condominium~hotel operational standards. 

I. "Operational standards" means the standards for operating the condominiulIl
hotel as detcnnined by the condominium-hotel operator, in consultation with the 
owner of the Hotel Unit, consistent with the foregoing terms and conditions and 
the operating standards customarily followed by the hote l operator for simi lar 
projects managed by hotel operator located in mountain rcsort locations The 
operational standards arc intended to be followed for purposes of promoting the 
use and opcralion of the condom inium-hotel as a full-setvice hotel within the 
Hotel Unit, the hotcl condominiums and those residential condominium units 
participating in the rental management program. When developing and 
implemcnting the operationa l standards, the hotel opcrator shall exercise its 
good-faith, commercially reasonablejudgmcnt and adhere to industry standards 
for similar projects located in mountain resort locations as well as the actual 
operational needs oflhe hotel and/or hotel guest. rt is recognized and agreed that 
the operational standards may vary from time to time given due consideration to 
winter periods, sununer periods and shouldcr seasons between winter and 
swnmer periods. 

13. EX PERT RESOLUTION PROCESS. 11.11 disputes regarding the appointment of the 
replacement hotel operator or replacement hotel rating scrvice shaH be resolved through the expert 
resolution process described in this section. Wcre a matter is referred to the expert resolution process, the 
following provisions shall apply: 

2704 1962.2 

4J IJ t 63 10- 07-2013 01 :1~ PM Page b of 1..3 

h. An oWner ora unit in the condominium-hotel shall not be allowed to park or 
slore n vehicle in a parking space dwillg times that the owner is not occupying 
their unit-

t. A block of lodge and erficicncy lodge units may be owned by one (I) owner 
provided such tmits meet the requ irements of this seet'ion . 

j . Alteration or elimination of any walls shown on the condominium map, or 
changes to the individual rooms that eliminate the number of beds approved by 
the Town are prohibited unless suc·h changes are reviewed and approved by the 
Town in accordance with these regulations and provided that such change will 
not reduce the numbel' of beds available in the condominium-hotel project. 

k.. The owner ohhe Holel Unit, in consulLation with the Town-approved 
condominium-hotel operator, wi ll continue to maintain unifonn fimlilure, 
fixtures and equipment packages that will be provided for each of the lodge and 
efficiency lodge units exclusive of the residentia l condominium units. TIle 
furniture, fixture and equipment packages will continue 10 insure a_quality of 
decor, furniture. furnishings and appliances suitable h) meet the condominlum
hotel operational standards, whicJI may include wilhoul limitation appropriate 
and suitable fixllires (including. batbroom fixtures). cabinetry, carpeting, floor 
covering, paint, wall covering, rurniture (including bUilt'-in furniture, if any), 
lighting, mirrors. decor items, color television, clock, mdio. drapes. shades and 
other window treatments find any and all other fixtures, equipment, utilities and 
decorative accessories within the units. The design and conlcnt ohbe furniture, 
fixture and equipment packages may be offered in different variations and 
themes intended to achieve the condominium-hotel operational standards. 

I, "Operational standards" means the standards for operating the condomin ium
notel as dctcnnined by the condominium-hotel operator. in eon!lultation with the 
owner of the Hotel Unit. consistent with the foregoing terms and conditions and 
the operating standards customarily followed by the hotel operator for similar 
projects managed by hotel operator localed in mountain resort locations The 
operationa l standards arc intended to be followed for purposes of promoting Ihe 
use and opcralion oftilc condominium-hotel as a full -service hotel within the 
Hotel Unit, the hotel condominiums and lhose residential condominium units 
participating in the rental management program. When developing and 
implemcnljng the operat iona l standards, Ihe hOlel operator shall exercise its 
good-faith, commercially reasonab lejudgmcnt and adhere to industry standards 
for similar projects located in mmmiain resort locations as well as lhe actual 
operational needs of the hotel and/or hotel guest. It is recognized and agreed that 
the operational standards may vary from time to time given due consideration to 
winter periods. summer periods and shoulder seasons between winter and 
summer periods. 

13. EXPERT RESOLUTION PRQCF.SS. All disputes regarding the appointment of the 
replacemeni hotel operator or replacement hoi'el rating service shaH be resolved through the experl 
resolution process described in this section. Were a matter is referred to the expert resoluiion process, the 
following provisions simi! apply: 

250



~30163 to-07-2013 01=24 PM Page 7 or 13 

i, Initiation of Expert Resolution Process. Either the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel 
Unit on the one hand, or the Town on the other hand, may initiate the expert resolution 
process by notice to the other party after attempting in good faith to resolve the mailer for 
a period of not less than lhirty (30) days from delivery of written notice of disagreemcm 
by one party to the other. The parties shall have ten (10) days from the date of such nolice 
to mutually agree on an expert. An expert shall be a party agreed to by the hotel operator 
or owner of the Hotel Unit on the one hand, or the Town on the other hand, who has not 
less than five years of experience in the hospital ity industry practice of a national or 
international consulting timl and who does not have any conflict ofintcrcst and has not 
previously worked for and docs not then work for either party absent disclo!lurc to and 
approval of the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit on the one hand, and the Town 
on the other hand. Upon the failu re ofthe parties to agree upon an expert, either party 
may submit a request to the local office of the American Arbitration Association and such 
expert shall be selected by said office who has not less than five years' experience in the 
hospitality industry and in the operation of hotels, and who does not have any confli ct of 
interest and is not previuusly worked for and docs not then work for either party absent 
disclosure to and approval of the hotel operator or owner of the J lotel Unit on the one 
hand, and the Towo on the other hand, which selection shall be binding. 

Ii. Decision Of Expert. The decision of an expert selected according to this section shall be 
final and binding on the parties and will not be capable of challenge, absent bad faith or 
fraud, whether by arbitration, through ajudicial proceeding or otherwise. If a party fail s 
to comply with the expert's detemlination, the other party may enforce the detennination 
in a court of competent jurisdiction in San Miguel County, Colorado, 

Hi. Submissions To Expert. Each party will be entitled to make written submissions to thc 
expert, but must provide a copy to the other party, and the latter will have the Tight to 
comment on such submission. The parties will make available to the expert all books and 
records relating to the issue in dispute and will render to the expert any assistance 
requested of the parties. 'Ine cost of the expert and the proceedings, including the 
reasonable travel, room, board and incidental expenses of the expert, will be born as 
directed by the expert. Any hearings or meetings required by the expert wilt be held in 
San Miguel County, Colorado or such other location as ;s acceptable to the hotel operator 
or owner ohhe Hotel Unit on the one hand, and the Town on the other hand. 

iv. Terms Of Engagcment Of Expert. The tenns of engagement of the expert will include an 
obligation on the part of the expert to: (i) provide time frames to the parties for the 
submission of information and materials reasonably necessary to resolve the subject 
issues, (ii) notify the parties in writ ing of the decision within thirty (30) days from the 
date 011 which the expert has been selected and has received the infonnation and 
supporting documentation necessary to resolve the subject issues (or such other period as 
the parties may agree); and (iii) make his or her deCISion regarding the replacement hotel 
rating serv ice and/or replacement hotel operator by applying the provisions of this 
Declaration. 

\4. ARBITRATION PROCESS. All conlroversies, disputes or claims between the hotel 
operator or owner of the Hotel Unit on the one hand, or the Town on the other hand, which arise from or 
re late to th is Declaration and which are not otherwise subject to the expert resolution process shail be 
resolved through the arbitration process described herein. Where a matter is referred to the arbitration 
process, the following provisions shall apply: 

' 30163 10-07- 2013 01: 2' PM PO!f~ 7 Dr- 1.3 

i. Initiation of Expert Resolution Process. Either the botel operator or OWner of the Hotel 
Uoil on the one hand, Of the Town CUI the other hand, may initiate lhe expert resolution 
process by notice to the olher party after attempting in good faiih to resolve the matter for 
a period of not Jess tban thirty (30) days from delive!), of written notice of disagreement 
by one party to the other. The parties shall have ten (10) days !Tom the dute of such nOlice 
to mutually agree on an expert. An expert shall be n party agreed to by the hotel operatm 
or owner of the Hotel UniLon the one hand. or the Town on the other hand, who has not 
less than five years of experience in the hospitality industry practice ofa national or 
international consulting fiml and who does Dot have any conflict ofintercst and has not 
prev iously workcd for and docs not then work for either party absent disc1o~urc 1.0 and 
approval oflhe hotel operator or owoer of the Hotel LInit on the one hand, and the 'Tow II 
on tht', other hand, Upon the failurcofthe parties t9 agree upon an expert, either party 
may submit :'I request to the local office of lhe American Arbitration Association and such 
expert shall be selected by said office who has lIot less than five years' experience in the 
hospitality industry and in the operation of bote Is. and who does not have any conflict of 
interest and is not previously worked for and docs not then work for either party absent 
disclosure to and approval of the hotel operator or owner of the I lotel Unit on the one 
hand. and the Towo on the other hand. which selection shall be binding. 

11. Decision Of Expcrt. The decision of an expert selected according 10 this section shall be 
final a.nd binding On the parties and will not be capable orchallenge. absent bad fa ith or 
fraud, whether by arbitration, through a judicial proceeding or otherwise. If a party fails 
to comply with the expert's detemlination, the other party may enforce the detenninatioll 
in a court ofcompelentjurisdiction ill San Miguel County, Colorado. 

iii. Submissions To Expert. Each party will be entitled to make written submiSSions to the 
expert, but must prov ide a copy to the other party, and the latter will have the rigbt to 
comment on such submi ssion. The parties will make available to the expert aU books and 
records relating to the issue in dispute and wi ll render to lhe expert any assistance 
requested of the parties. '111e cost of the expert and the proceedings. including the 
reasonable travel. room. board and incidentaJ expenses oflhe expert, will be born as 
directed by the e.xpert. Any hearings or meetings required by the expert will be held in 
San Miguel County, Colorado or such other location as is acceptable to the hotel operutor 
or owner of the Hotel Unit on the one hand. and the Town on the other hand. 

iv. Terms Of Engagemel\! Of Expert. The terms of engagement of the expert \.,.ill include all 

obligat ion on the part of the expert to: (i) provide time frames to the p:trties for the 
submission of infomlalion and materials reasonably necessary 10 resolve the subject 
issues, (ii) notify the parties in woting of the decision within thirty (30) da.ys ITom the 
date all which the expert has been selected and has received the infonnalion and 
supporting documentation nece.,>sary to resolve the subject issues (or such oUler period as 
the parties may agree); and (iii) make his or her decision regarding Lhe replacement hotel 
raling serv ice and/or replacement hotel operator by applying the provisions of this 
Declaration. 

14. ARBITRATION PROCESS. All controversies, disputes or claims between the hotel 
operator or owner ofthe Hote! Un i~ on the one hand, or the Town on the other hand, whicb arise fi'Qm or 
relate to this Declarntion and whkh are not otherwise subject 10 ihe expert resolution process shail be 
resolved through the arbitration process described herein. Where a matter is referred to the arbitration 
process, the Following provisions shall apply: 

251



L 

ii. 

15. 

,. 

27041962.2 

430163 10-07-2013 Ot:2'- PM P(\.'Ie S or 13 

Initiation QfArbitration. Either the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit on the one 
hand, or the Town on the other hand, may in itiate the arbitration process by notice to the 
other party after attempting in good fa ith to resolve the mailer (or a period of not less 
than thirty (30) days. Within thirty (30) days after a party's delivery of notice to the other 
party of its election to subm it a disagreement to arbitration. the parties sball mutually 
agree on an arbitrator with not less than five (5) years' experience in the hospitali ty 
industry and in the operation of hoI cis, who does not have any conflict orintcrest and has 
not previously worked for and does not then work for either party, absent disclosure 10 
and approval of the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit on the one hand, and the 
Town on the otber hand. Upon failu re of the parties to agree upon an arbitrator, either 
party may submit a request to the local office of the American Arbitration Association 
that an arbitrator be selected by said office with not less than fi ve (5) years' experience in 
the hospitali ty industry and in the operation of hotels, and who does not have any connict 
of interest and has not previously worked tor and docs not then work for either party, 
absence disclosure to and approval of the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit 011 the 
one hand, and the Town on the other hand, wh ich selection shall be binding. 

Conduct Of Arbitration. The arbitrator shall conduct the arbitration with the goal of 
resolving the dispute as speedily as possible. All discovery shall be conducted in 
accordance with the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure. The arbitrator sha II endeavor to 
conduct the proceeding so as to permit the issuance of an award within fou r months of the 
commencement ofibe arbitration. The award of the arbitrator shall be fina l and binding 
on the parties, and shalluot be subject to challenge absent bad faith or fraud, whether 
through ajudicial proceeding or otherwise. If a piU1y fails to comply with the arbitrator's 
award the other party may enforcc the award in a cOurt of competent j urisdiction in San 
Miguel County, Colorado. The fecs of the arbitrator and expenses of the arbitration 
proceeding shall be allocated in the award by the arbitrator. Each party shall pay the fees 
and costs o f its respecti ve counsel and fees of court and costs o f any witness called by 
that party. 

MISCELLANEOUS. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Declaration, no owner of a hotel 
condominium or rcsidential condominium or other parcel of real property within the 
project of which the Property is a part, other than the Hotel Unit, no lessee or 
concessionaire o r a portion of, or of services with in, the condom in ium·hotel or on the 
Property, and, except as otherwise provided in section viii bclow, no holder ora 
mortgage or provider of financing with respect to the Property or any condominium unit 
o[ other parcel of real property within the project of which the Property is a part, shall be 
bound by or responsible for the fu lfillment of the requirements or restrictions imposed by 
this Declaration, and no lien or charge shall attach to any interest in the Property or the 
project of which the Property is a part as a result of this Declaration or the exercise of the 
rights hereunder other than against the Hotel Unit. No lien shall be imposed against the 
Hotel Unit by operation of law or otherwise un less the matter as to which the licn relates 
has been resolved in accordance with the appl icable dispute resolution mechan ism 
prov ided for in this Declaration. No present or future partner, shareholder, officer, 
d irector, member, employee, affiliate or agent of the owner of the Hotel Unit or of any 
corporation or other entity that is or becomes thc owncr of the Hote l Unit or a constituent 
partner in or mcmber of the owner of the Hotel Unit, shall be personally liable, direct ly or 
indirectly, for any liabilities arising in connection with this Declaration, and the Town 
waives any. such personal liability. 

430163 10-07-2013 01:2' PM P~~e S of 13 

i. Initiation Of Arbitration. Either the hote l operator or owner of the Hotel Unit on the one 
hand, or the Town on the other hand, may ini tiate tbe arbitration process by notice to the 
other party after attempting in good faith to resolve the mailer for a period of not less 
than thirty (30) days. Within thirty (30) days after a party's deli very of notice to tbe other 
party of its election to subm it a disagreement to arbitration. the parties sball mutuaJly 
agrce on an arbitrator with not less than fi ve (5) years' experience in the hospitali ty 
industry and in the operat ion of hot c is, who does not have any conflict of interest and has 
not previously worked for and does not then work for either party, absent disclosure to 
and approval of lhe hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit on the one hand, and the 
Town On (he other hand. Upon fai lure of the parties to agree upon an arbitrator, either 
party may submit a request to the local office of the American Arbitration Association 
that an arbitrator be selected by said office with not lcss than fi ve (5) years' experience in 
the hospitali ty industry and in the operation of hotels, and who does not have any con nict 
of interest and has not previously worked to r and does not then work for either party, 
absence disclosure to and approval of the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit 011 the 
one hand, and the Town on the other hand, which selection shall be binding. 

iL Conduct Of Arbitration. The arbitrator shall conduct the arbitration with the goal of 
resolving the dispute as speedily as possible. All discovery shall be conducted in 
accordance with the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure. The arbitrator shal l endeavor to 
conduct the proceeding so as to permit the issuance of an award within fou r months of the 
commencement oflhe arbi tration. The award of the arbitrator sball be fina l and binding 
on the parties, and shaU 1I0t be subject to challenge absent bad faith or fraud, whether 
through ajudicial proceeding or otherwise. If a party fails to comply with the arbitrator's 
award the other party may enforcc the award in a cOurt of competent jurisdiction in San 
Miguel Counl)'. Colorado. The fees of the arbitrator and expenses of the arbitration 
proceeding shall be allocated in the award by the arbitrator. Each party shaH pay the fees 
and costs of its respective counsel and fees of court and costs of any witness called by 
that party. 

15. MISCELLANEOUS. 

I . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this lJeclaration, no owner of a hotel 
condominium or residential condominium or other parcel of real property within the 
project of which the Property is a part, other than the Hotel Unit, no lessee or 
concessionaire of a portion of, or of services within, the condom ini um-hotel or on the 
Property, and, except as otherwise provided in section viii below, 110 holder ofa 
mortgage or provider of financing with respect to the Property or any condominium unif 
or other parcel of rcal property within the project ofwhieh the Property is a part, shall be 
bound by or responsible for the fulfillment of the requirements or restrictions imposed by 
this Declaration, and no liell or cbarge shal l attach to any interest in the Property" or the 
projc(.i of which the Property is a part as a result of this Declaration or the exercise of the 
rights hereunder other than against the Hotel Unit. No lien shall be imposed against the 
Hotel Unit by operation of law or otherwise un less the matter as 10 which the lien relates 
has been reso l.ved in accordance with the appl icable dispute resolution mechan ism 
prov ided for in th is Declaration. No present or ruture partner, shareholder, officer, 
d irector. member. employee, affi liate or agent of the owner of the Hotel Unit or of any 
corporation or other entity that is or becomes the owner of the Hotel Unit or a constituent 
partner in or member of the owner of the Hotel Unit, shall be personally liable, direct ly or 
indirectly. for any liabilities arising in connection with this Declaration, and the Town 
waives any. such personal liabili ty. 

2704J962.2 

252



430163 10-07-2013 01:24 PM Pn3~ 9 or 13 

II . This Dcclaration shall not be mod ified, amended or released except by written instrument 
executed by the owner of the Hotel Unit and approved in writing by the Town. Approval 
of a Lender (as defined below) is not requ ired. The appropriate governmcntal authority of 
the Town shall execute a written instrument effectuating and acknowledging such 
modification, amendment or release. Any amendment, modificat ion or release of this 
Declaration shall be recorded in the public records orSan Miguel County, Colorado. 

ii i. Th is Declaration shall he elTcctive upon recording. 

iv. These restrict ions arc hereby declared to be severable and independent. Ifany court of 
competent jurisdiction shall declare any section, paragraph or part hereof invalid or 
unenforceable, then such j udgment or decree shall have no effect on the enforcement or 
validity of any other section. paragraph or part hereof, and the same shall remain in fuJI 
force and effect. 

v. Articles and paragraph captions, headings and titles inserted throughout this Declaration 
are intended as a matter of conven ience only and in no way shall such captions, headings 
or titles define, li mit or in any way affect the subject matler or any of the !emls and 
provisions thereunder or the terms and provisions of this Declaration. 

vi. With the exception of Lenders (hereafter defined), there shall be no third party 
beneficiaries to this Declaration and no party other than the owner of the Hotel Uni t and 
the Town and any Lender, and their respective Sllccessors and assigns, shall have a claim 
or be entitled to pursue a cause of action in connection with the matters addressed herein. 

vii.. If the Town shall be notified in writing of a Lender's (defined below) interest in the 
Proje(.'t Property and/or llotel Unit or the owner of tile Hotel Unit, the Town shall provide 
such Lender with contemporaneous copies of noti ces to the owner of the Hotel Unit sent 
in conncction with this Declaration. 

viii. No Lender shall be responsible for any financial obligations hereunder which accrue or 
relate to actions, inactions, conditions or circumstances arising or ex isting prior to the 
time that such Lender shall have acquired titlc to or control ortbe Hotel Unit or the 
owner of the Hotel Unit, as applicable. 

ix. Any lien placed against the Hotel Unit arising out of or relating to the provisions oflh is 
Declaration is hereby expressly subordinated in all respeclS to any loan held by either a 
Mortgage Lender (defi ned below) or a Me7.7anine Lender (defined below). The Town 
agrees to execute a release of any lien promptly upon the delivery by any Lender of 
evidence of the foreclosure of a loan or a transfer of thc interest securing such loan 
pursuant to a deed in lieu or transfer in lieu of forec losure. 

"'. " Lender" shall mean any of the following: (I) the holder ofa loan secured by a mortgage 
or deed oflrus! encumbering any oflhe Project Property and/or the Hotel Unit 
("Mortgage Lender"); (2) the holder oCa Loan secured by a pledge of direct or indirect 
ownership interest in the owner of the Hotel Unit ("Mez.zanine Lender"); (3) the 
successors and or assigns of the Mortgage Lender or Mez.zanine Lender; (4) the entity or 
individual who acquires title· 10 any oftbe Property or the Hotel Unit by purchase or 
assignment at foreclosure or by deed in lieu thereof; and/or (5) the entity or individual 
who acquires ownership to the direct or indirect ownership interests i.n the owner of the 

27()41962.J 

430163 10-07-2013 01:2; PM Pa3~ 9 or 13 

II . This Declaration shall not be mod ified, amended or released except by written instrument 
executed by the owner of the Hotel Unit and approved ill writing by the Town. Approval 
of a Lender (as defined below) is not required. The appropriate govemmcntal authority of 
the Town shall execute a written instrument effectuating and acknowledging such 
modification, amendment or release. Any amendment, modification or release of this 
Declaration shall be recorded in the public records of San Miguel County, Co lorado. 

Il l. Th is Declaration shall be effective upon recording. 

iv. These restrictions are hereby declared to be severable and independent. Ifany court of 
competent jurisdiction shall declare any section, paragraph or part hereof invalid or 
unenforceable, then such judgment or decree shall have no effect on tbe enforcement or 
validity of any other section, paragraph or part hereof, and the same shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

v. Articles and paragraph captions, headings and litles inserted throughout this Declarat ion 
are intended as a mailer of conven ience only aIld in no way shall such captions, headi ngs 
or titles define, limit or in any way affect the subject matter or any of the terms and 
provisions thereunder or the terms and provisions of this Declaration. 

vi. With the exception of Lenders (hercatlcr defined) , there shall be DO third party 
beneficiaries to this Declarat ion and no party other than the owner orthe Hotel Unit and 
the Town and any Lender, and their rcspcctive successors and assigns, shall have a claim 
or be entitled to pursue a calise of action in connection with Ihe matters addressed herein, 

VI I.. If the Town shall be notified in writing of a Lender's (defined below) interest in the 
Projed: Property and/or llotel Unit or the owner ofthe Hotel Unit, the Town shall provide 
such Lender with contemporaneous copies of noti ces to the owner of the Hotel Unit sent 
in connection with this Declaration. 

vi ii No Lender shall be responsible for any financia l obligations hereunder which accrue or 
relate to actions, inactions. conditions or circumstances arising or ex isting prior io the 
time that such Lender shall have acquired title to or control of the Hotel Unit or the 
owner of the Hotel Unil, as applicable. 

IX. Any lien placed against the Hotel Unit arising OUi of or relating to Ihe provisions ofth is 
Declaration is hereby expressly subordinated in all respects to any 10al1 held by either a 
Mortgage Lendcr (defined below) or a Me7.2'.an ine Lender (defined below). The Town 
agrees to execute a release of any licn promptly upon the delivery by any Lender of 
evidence of the foreclosure of a loan or a transfer of the interest securing such loan 
pursuantto a decd in lieu or transfer in lieu of foreclosure. 

1(. " Lender" shall mean any of the following: (I) the bolderofa loan securcd by a mortgage 
or deed oftrust encumbering any ofllie Project Property and/or the Hotel Unit 
("Mortgage Lender"); (2) the holder ofa Loan secured by a pledge of direct or indirect 
ownership interest in the owner of the Hotel Unit ("Mev..anine Lender"); (3) the 
successors and or assigns of the Mortgage. Lender or Mezzanine Lender; (4) the entity or 
individual who acquires title 10 any of the Property or the Hotel Unit by purchase or 
assignmcnt at foreclosure or by deed in lieu thereof; and/or (5) the enti ty or individual 
who acquires ownership 10 the direct or indirect ownership interests in the owner of the 

27(4 1962) 

253



~30163 10-07-2013 01 :24 PH Page 10 of 13 

Hotel Unit in a uee forec losure proceeding, secured party sale or transfer in lieu of 
foreclosure. 

xi. Any notice. provided or pemlitted to be given in this Declaration shall be made in writing 
and may be given by personal delivery, facsimile transmission or by depositing the notice 
in the United Stales mail, postage prepaid, certified wiih retum receipt requested, and 
addressed to thc party to be not ified. Notice deposited in the mai l in the forego ing manner 
shall be deemed received three days after it is so deposited, excluding Sunday and postal 
holidays. Notice given in any other manner shall be effective only if and when actually 
received by the person or cntity to be notified. For purposes of notice, the addresses of 
the parties shall be as set forth below until changed. Any party, by notify ing the other 
parties hereto in the maMer provided in this paragraph, may designate a different address 
for receipt of subsequent notices. 

For the Owner of the Hotel Uni l: 

Ektomct US Telluride LLC 
One Penn Plaza, Suite 15 14 
New York, NY, 10 119 
Attention: Presiden! 

With a copy to: 

Carlton Fields, P.A. 
4221 W. Boy Scout Blvd., Suile 1000 
Tampa, FL 33607 
Attention: Richard Linquanti 

For the Town: 

Town of Mountain Village 
455 Mountain Vi llagc Blvd., Suite A 
Mountain Village, eo 81435 
Anention: Community Development Director 

With a copy to: 

J. David Reed P.CO 
James Mahoney, Esq 
1047 S. ] >1 Street 
Montrose, CO 8 1435 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF', Declarant has executed this Amended and Restated Declaration on 
the day and year first above written. 

21041 962.1 

~30163 10-07-2013 01 :24 PM Page 10 of 13 

Hotel Unit in a uec forec losure proceeding, secured party sale or transfer in lieu of 
foreclosure. 

xi. Any notice provided or pennilted to be given in this Declaration shall be made in writing 
and may be given by personal delivery, facsimile transmission or by depositing the notice 
in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified with relWll receipt requested, and 
addressed 10 the party to be notified. Notice deposited in the ma il in the foregoing manner 
shall be deemed received three days after it is so deposited, excluding Sunday and postal 
holidays. Notice given in any other manner shall be eiTective only if and when actually 
received by the person or cntity to be notified. For purposes of notice, the addresses of 
the parties shall be as set forth below unti l changed. Any party, by noti fy ing the other 
parties hereto in the manner provided in this paragraph, may designate a diRerent address 
for receipt of subsequent notices. 

For the Owner of the Holel Uni t: 

EktolTlct US Telluride LLC 
One Penn Plaza, Suite 15 14 
New York, NY, 10 119 
Attention: President 

Wilh a copy to: 

Carlton Fields, P.A. 
4221 W. Boy SeOUl Blvd., Su ite 1000 
Tampa, FL 33607 
Attention: Richard Linquunti 

For the Town: 

Town of Mountain Village 
455 Mountain Vi llage Blvd .• Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Attention: Commun ity Development Direclor 

With a copy 10: 

J. David Reed P.C. 
James Mahoney. Esq 
1047S. I>l Street 
Montrose, CO 8143 5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. Declarant has e'(ecuted this Amended and Restated Declaration on 
the day and year first above writlen. 

21041962.2 

254



'30163 10-07-2013 01:24 PM Page 11 of 13 

LLC 

nager 

By~~~@!~==---_ 
Sven Hansen, Manager 

State of '1-4 .... '\o.,\;" 
Counly of )l. .... ~X; 

) 
) ss. 
) 

Ackno~c_~~d bpfore me by Kai Ringenson as Manager of Ektomel US Telluride LLC. on th is \;t~ 
day of ~Ob'c<.,," .2013. IFIIS B. AlFONSO 

NOtaOVPtilllo._oI-"YOttt 
Witness my hand and eul. No. 01AL828138e 

.,ktY!R9.t;nmission ': QY.ttn«l1n NlwYOft!; Cour~\!" 
~", -"" --COirtl ... 6iilaphWM!y07,20 ...... 

,.~' A \,I\.... '1 "_ 
.'~ .. ;;,. ... ,. 

/ fl.:'" -t'0l"a~~.i>! •• b!i~ SEAL 
:: .... : C.: C (I ::. , 
.: ; .j: C.I • _ .. , : :. ~'-:. : r:: ~ :' . .. 
:. -" . (") U. :v: .: 
\ .... ~~ .. ,.. ,: ... :\. :,~ 

.... ','0, ...... ... . , '.I • 
.... '.! C" " ",' , .. ".,,..,',,. ' 

State of '»~ 'kc~ 

County of ~ .. ~'kA; 
) 
) ss. 
) 

Ac~o~Cdecd before me by Sven Hansen as Manager of Ektomet US Telluride LLC. on this \~ day 
of _ ~ . 2013. IRISS. ALFONSO 

Notaty~. _01_ VOttt 
Witness my hand and seal. No. 01AUJ,2151388 

, \ \ tVtY' ~Qmftl i,ss ion ex Qualified In New YorkColnylt. 
.... ''\,1.'.; . .~;i::' ",: COlTlnllllon Expne Mlly07. 20~ 

.,' '> ... -:... . ". 'J • 

2' '0,:" ~()ta{t)ubljc ~ SEAL 
= '7.' ~ V _ . ~ :: 
:. ._ , OJ , _' : • • 
:: I' l : C !\ ::., ;-' .~
::. -~'. Q V , .1 :r~·:· 
~;. - ". . : . . ' '., .~ '\. J,< ......... ... ; .. ( ... >.: 

", ' .'" (" . ~ . . ' .,'" 
"" ', .: " , .,,,,:' ::" .• c·· 

21041962.2 

430163 10-07-2013 01:24 PM Page 11 of 13 

LLC 

nagcr 

By~~~@!~==---_ 
S\'en Hansen, Manager 

State of )4" .. >,\",,\; 

County of 1\ ..... ~If, 
) 
) SS. 

) 

Ackno'1~ffd bprore me by Kai Ringenson as Manager of Ektornel US Telluride Li .C. on th is ~~ 
day of ~Oh""-"'- • 2013. IFIIS B. ALFONSO 

_IV ,tIbIIo. _ttl_"YOItt 
Witness my hand and eal. No. Q1AL.828138e 
~,commission ' : Qu,rn.UnNlwYOftI;CounIy ~ !" 

.' .," ""'!!,I, --comn_oir je.-MayC1T,20 .... 
,,' .\ 

~"J'o\"..;) I, " 
--~ -;..'" ' 

~: r") ,. ' -.Nomry'Pl blib SEAL 
f )/ .... r .Y [' ....... ... ~.~ . 
- ....... ........ ("" .: :" i: O.J • _ .. , ~ 

:. ':":. ~ !:': :i, ;. :' 
-=-..... · ... < )1.,;1. 11.', •.• \, /~> .. ,: .. -:: ~.' :l 

....... , " .. ' . •. , •• , '.I ,. 

"".,,"! (" '.. ,,' ',., .. ,,,. ,,,. 

State of ~ .... 'kc~ 

Couoty of ~ .. ~'kA-. 
) 
) S5. 

) 

AC~*Cdged before me by Sven Hansen as Manager of Ektomet US Telluride LLC. on Ihis \~ day 
of &low . 2013. IAISS. ALFONSO 

No1aty PubIc. _ '" _ YOItt 
Witness my hand and seal. No. 01Al..82818 

, \ \ tVt)"~omrt\i.ss ion ex Oulll'led In New YorkCountylJ .... ~'\ ... :'.. . .!:.:.: ". Comll 'ilion ExpIrIe May 07. 2DYa... 
•. ' '>/.... . " .• " . 

i .fl ,':" ~Qta{rt:u1Jljc -; SEAL 

~ ~~ ~ X ?: ;:. ~ 
:. M,·. --"0 v ' ,,' :t ... ,. 
;. - ", . : . .. '''. . . ' 

'. )M ' . ..' r" ' .: 
...... ~ "':" """ ', .. : ' .,; 

. ,, ' .;'" {'", ' ; ., . ... ,' 
""'" '.,. ",,: " " " 

21041962.2 

255



430163 10-07-2013 01:24 PM Page 12 or 13 

JOINDER AND CONSENT: 

The uodersignedjoins into this Declaration for the purpose of acknowledging its consent and agreement 
with the terms hereof. 

TOWN Of OUNTAIN VILLAGE 

Attest: 

~U~\l9...vt~ 
Jadde Kennefick, Town Ocr 

2704 1%2.2 

430163 10-07-2013 01:24 PM Page 12 of 13 

JOINDER AND CONSENT: 

The undersigned joins into this Declaration for the purpose of acknowledging its consent and agreement 
with the terms hereof. 

TOWN O" F __ O" UNTA IN VILLAGE 

By -;;-~-'c:-"~""':'''~''':~'J)~~O • ....... 
Dan Jansen, Mayor {- ... 

Attest: 

~C<~\(j,M~ 
Jact(fe Kennefick, Town Ocr 

27041%2.2 

256



430163 10-07- 2013 01;24 PM Pase 13 of 13 

E xhibit ;, A" 

Lot 38-50-5 1 R, Town of Moun lain Village, A Replat of /.ot 38R, Lot 50-5 1 R, Tract OS-3CR and Trnct 
os-ex, Town of Mountain Village, accord ing to lhe PIal recorded February 11,2009 in Pial Book I al 
Page 4061, being also Ihe property subj ect to that certain First Amended and Restated Declaration of 
Grants, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Telluridc Mountain Village Reson Condominiums. a 
Condominium Common Intcrest Community Located in Town of Mountain Village. San Miguel County, 
Colorado, dated November 7, 20 1 1 and recorded November 23, 20 I I at Reception No. 420677 of th e 
records in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder of San Miguel County, Colorado. 

27041962_2 

~30163 10-07-2013 01:2~ PM P01e 13 or 13 

Exhibit "A" 

Lot 38-50-51 R, Town of Mounl:Jin Village, A Replat of LOl38R, Lot 50·5 1 R, Tract OS·JC R and Trnct 
os·ex. Town of Mountain Village, according to the Plat recorded February -11, 2009 in Plat Book I al 
Page 4061, beIng also the property subj ecl lo that certain FirSt Amended and Restated Dcciaratioo of 
Grants, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Telluride Mountain Village Reson Condominiums, a 
Condominium Common Interest Community Located in TowllllfMounlai n Village, San Miguel County, 
CoiorHdo, dated November 7, LOt 1 and recorded November 23, 20 II al Reception No. 420677 of til e 
records in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder of San Miguel County, Colorado. 

257



RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM HOTEL 
COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR HOTEL MADELINE  

 
Resolution No. 2015-0219-__ 

 
RECITALS: 

 
A. The Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village (“Town Council”) granted 

approval for a Final PUD Plan for Lots 50A, 50B, 50C, 51 , OS-3, OS-3C (“Final 
PUD Plan Approval”) as set forth in Resolution 2004-0318-02  recorded at Reception 
No. 366172 (“Resolution 2004-0318-02”) in the records of the San Miguel County 
Clerk and Recorder (“Public Records”). 
 

B. Pursuant to the Final PUD Plan Approval as amended, Lots 50A, 50B, 50C, 51,0S-3, 
OS-3C have been replatted into Lot 38-50-51R in accordance with the replat recorded 
in Plat Book 1 at Page 3566 in the Public Records (“Property”). 
 

C. Madeline Property Owner, LLC, (“Owner”) is the fee title owner of the majority of 
the Property. 
 

D. In connection with the development of the Property, a Declaration of Condominium 
Hotel Covenants and Restrictions was recorded against the Property at Reception No. 
384750 (“Hotel Covenant”) relating to the operation of Property.   Such Hotel 
Covenant was amended by the Town Council in August of 2013 and recorded at 
Reception No. 430163 in the Public Records (the “Second Amended and Restated 
Hotel Covenant”).   

 
E. Owner has applied to the Town to eliminate the requirement that all efficiency lodge 

units after sales to third parties participate in the hotel’s rental program and to replace 
this requirement with certain restrictions on use and occupancy as set forth in the 
2015 Amended and Restated Declaration of Condominium Hotel Covenants and 
Restrictions (the “Hotel Deed Restriction”) attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 

F. The amendments to the Hotel Deed Restriction are not one of the required community 
purposes underlying the Final PUD Plan Approval, and are not required by any 
condition of the Final PUD Plan Approval as amended. 

 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Town Council hereby approves an amendment to the 
Hotel Covenant as set forth in Exhibit A, subject to the following: 

 
Section 1.  Recital Incorporation 
 
The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
 
 

258



Section 2.  Resolution Effect 
 
A. This Resolution shall have no effect on pending litigation, if any, and shall not operate as 

an abatement of any action or proceeding now pending under or by virtue of the 
resolutions repealed or amended as herein provided and the same shall be construed and 
concluded under such prior resolutions.  

B. All resolutions, of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this 
Resolution, are hereby repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such 
inconsistency or conflict. 

 
Section 3.  Severability 
 
The provisions of this Resolution are severable and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause 
or portion of this Resolution as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect 
the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of this Resolution. 
 
Section 4. Effective Date 
 
This Resolution shall become effective on February 19th, 2015 (“Effective Date”) as herein 
referenced throughout this Resolution. 
 
Section 6.  Public Meeting 
 
A public meeting on this Resolution was held on the 19th day of February, 2015, in the Town 
Council Chambers, Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd, Mountain Village, Colorado 81435. 
 
Approved by the Town Council at a public meeting on February 19, 2015. 
 
 

Town of Mountain Village, Town Council 
 
 

By:                                                                      
Dan Jansen, Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
By:         

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 
 

Approved As To Form: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Jim Mahoney, Assistant Town Attorney 

259



       

 

 

 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 

AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

 

James Mahoney 

J. David Reed, P.C. 

P.O. Box 196 

Montrose, CO 81402 

 

       

 

 

 

2015 AMENDED AND RESTATED 

DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM HOTEL 

COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS 

(Hotel Deed RestrictionsRestriction) 
 

 THIS 2015 AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM HOTEL 

COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS (this “DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction”) is made this 12_______ 

day of September, 2013________________, 2015 by EKTORNET US TELLURIDEMADELINE 

PROPERTY OWNER, LLC (“Declarant, a Delaware limited liability company (“Hotel Unit Owner”), 

successor in title to RAL Mountain Village Lodging, L.L.C. (“RAL”), for the benefit of the TOWN OF 

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, a home rule municipality and political subdivision of the State of Colorado 

(“Town”), its successors and assigns. Declarant is owner of the Hotel Unit as defined herein. 

 

WITNESSETH: 
 

  WHEREAS, RECITALS 

 

 RAL, executed that certain Declaration of Condominium Hotel Covenants and Restrictions 

((“Original Hotel Deed Restrictions)Restriction”) dated April 4, 2006 and recorded June 12, 2006, at 

Reception No. 384748 of the records in the Office of the Clerk Recorder of San Miguel County, Colorado 

(“Official Declaration”) with respect to that certain real property described therein and on Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto (“Project Property”): andRecords”) in connection with the Planned Unit Development 

Approval granted to RAL by the Town pursuant to Town Resolution recorded at Reception Numbers 366172, 

379360 and 384748 and the Amended and Restated PUD Development Agreement recorded on 

_________________, 2015 at Reception Number ____________, as amended.  

 

  WHEREAS, theThe Original Declaration provided for the release therefrom of all 

portions of the Project Property other than the Hotel Unit upon the creation thereofHotel Deed Restriction 

was amended by recording an appropriate condominium Declaration pursuant to the Colorado Common 

Interest Ownership Act, C.R.S., 38-33.3-[0] et seq; and 

 

  WHEREAS, RAL recorded that certain First Amended and Restated Declaration 

of Grants, Covenants, Conditions and Recitations for Telluride Mountain Village Resort Condominiums, a 

Condominium Common Interest Community Located in the Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 

Colorado,Hotel Covenants and Restrictions dated NovemberSeptember 12, 2013 and recorded on October 7, 

2011 and recorded November 23, 20112013 at Reception No. 420677 of the records in the Office of the Clerk 

and Recorder of San Miguel County, Colorado, creating a condominium regime on the Property Project 

including various components of condominium units, including without limitation, the “Hotel Unit,” 100 

“hotel condominiums” (also known as “lodge and efficiency lodge units” and, together with the Hotel Unit, 

260



the “condominium-hotel”) and 60 “residential condominiums,” and430163 (“First Amended and 

Restated Hotel Deed Restriction) in the Official Records. 

 

  WHEREAS, Declarant is the successor owner of the Project Property; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the DeclarantA Colorado common interest community known as 

“Telluride Mountain Village Resort Condominiums” (“Community”) was established on the real property 

more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (“Project Property”).  The Project Property is 

subject to the Third Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions recorded 

on ________________, 2015 at Reception No. ______ in the Official Records, as may be amended 

(“Declaration”); and the Condominium Map recorded on February 11, 2009 at Reception No. 405678 and 

the First Amendment to the Condominium Map recorded on January 29, 2015 at Reception No.  _________in 

the Official Records, as may be amended (“Condominium Map”).    The Declaration and Condominium 

Map may be referred to herein collectively as the “Condominium Documents.” 

 

The Condominium Documents created a “Hotel Unit” and 100 “Hotel Condominium” Units.  Each 

Hotel Condominium Unit is zoned as an “Efficiency Lodge Unit” pursuant to the Town’s Community 

Development Code (“CDC”). 

 

The Condominium Documents further created certain “Residence Condominium” Units as 

designated in the Condominium Documents.  

 

As of the Effective Date, the Hotel Unit Owner is the fee title owner of the Hotel Unit and each of 

the 100 Hotel Condominium Units. 

 

The Hotel Unit Owner and the Town wish to amend and restate the Original Declaration and restate 

it in itsHotel Deed Restriction and First Amended and Restated Hotel Deed Restriction and fully supersede 

and replace, in their entirety as hereinafter set forth., the same with this Hotel Deed Restriction.  

 

  AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT. The  NOW THEREFORE, the Original 

Declaration isHotel Deed Restriction and the First Amended and Restated Hotel Deed Restriction are hereby 

amended and, restated, replaced and superseded in itstheir entirety by this Hotel Deed Restriction as set forth 

herein and shall apply to the ownership, use, operation, and development of the Project Property..   

 

 1. RECITATIONS RECITALS. The recitationsRecitals set forth above are true and correct 

and are incorporated into this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction by this reference as if set forth herein in full. 

 

 2. GENERAL RESTRICTIONS.  As more particularly described herein, the Declarant 

has developed and has operated a Condominium Hotel (defined below) on the Project Property. Declarant 

shall operate the Condominium Hotel has been constructed, developed and established as the Community.  

Pursuant to this Hotel Deed Restriction, the Hotel Unit Owner shall operate a “Hotel” within the 

Community in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 

 3. “Condominium Hotel” shall mean the hotel to be operated on a portion of the Property, 

which will be comprised of the Hotel Unit, Condominium Hotel Units (defined below), the On-Site Rented 

Program (defined below) and other components of the Project necessary for a hotel meeting in the Hotel 

Standard (defined below). The Condominium Hotel shall provide the services consistent with the Hotel 

Standard.provisions of this Hotel Deed Restriction are intended to bind and obligate only the Hotel Unit 

Owner and the Hotel Unit and not any other portion of the Community.  

 

 4. “Hotel Unit” shall mean that portion of the Project that shall be more particularly 

described in the condominium declaration and condominium map required by the Act, approved by the 

Town and filed in the Public Records. The Hotel Unit shall include, at a minimum, those portions of the 

Project identified as “Confirmed Master Hotel Unit” in the sketches attached hereto as Exhibit “B” as well 

as the eighty (80) parking spaces in the underground parking garage on the Property that are owned by the 

Declarant, together with easements over and across such portions of the Project as shall be appropriate to 

261



the reasonable and customary use of the foregoing. The Declarant and/or the Hotel Owner may grant 

easements to other unit owners and the public over and across portions of the Hotel Unit. 

 

 5. “Hotel Owner” shall mean the owner in fee title of the Hotel Unit. 

 

 6. “Condominium Hotel  3. DEFINITIONS.  The following terms, when used in 

this Hotel Deed Restriction, shall have the respective meanings ascribed to them below, except where the 

context clearly requires a different meaning or where otherwise defined. 

 

   3.1 “Condominium Hotel” or “Hotel” shall mean the business of offering transient 

guest lodging within Hotel Unit and the Community which shall be operated by the Hotel Unit Owner and/or 

Hotel Operator. 

 

  3.2 “Hotel Operator” shall mean the entity retained by the Hotel Unit Owner to 

operate the Hotel in accordance with this Hotel Deed Restriction.    

 

  3.3. “Hotel Unit” shall mean that portion of the Community designated in the 

Condominium Documents as the “Hotel Unit,” as may be amended from time to time. 

 

  3.4 “Hotel Unit Owner” shall mean the fee title owner of the Hotel Unit. 

 

  3.5 “Hotel Condominium Units” shall refer to those 100 Hotel Condominium Units 

created and Efficiency Lodge Units thatdesignated in the Condominium Documents as “Hotel Condominium” 

which are participating in the On-Site Rental Program for useintended to be used for transient guest lodging 

facilities (hotel guest rooms) of the Condominium Hotel.).  

 

 7. HOTEL STANDARD.    3.6 “Hotel Rating Standard” shall mean 

achievement by the Condominium Hotel of either (1i) Mobil Four-Star or Mobil Five-Star rating (as 

determined by Mobil pursuant to Mobil’s then-applicable Travel Guide Rating Criteria for Four-Star or Five-

Star Lodging Establishments), or (2ii) AAA Four-Diamond or AAA Five-Diamond rating (as determined by 

AAA pursuant to its then-applicable rating criteria for the Four-Diamond or Five-Diamond lodging 

establishments)). 

 

              3.7  “Hotel Rating Service” shall mean the publisher of the Mobil Travel Guide or 

the AAA Travel Guide or in the event such organization ceases to provide criteria for the Hotel Standard, an 

organization reasonably acceptable in the Town that provides a comparable hotel rating system that is widely 

recognized and accepted within the hospitality industry as a standard for rating the overall quality of hotels, 

such additional organization being sometimes referred to as a “Replacement Hotel Rating Service”. 

 

 3.8   “Operational Standards” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6 below. 

 

 3.9 “Residence Condominiums” means those condominium units within the 

Community that are designated as “Residence Condominium” Units in the Condominium Documents. 

 

 4. ACHIEVEMENT OF HOTEL RATING STANDARD.  The Hotel Unit Owner shall 

apply to the Hotel Rating Service for an initial rating as soon as permitted for each of the rating services, 

shall take all reasonable actions required in order to achieve the Hotel Rating Standard on an expeditious 

basis, and shall achieve the Hotel Rating Standard within two (2) years from the date the Condominium Hotel 

opens to the public for transient guest lodging subject only to delays for force majeure (the “Initial Rating”). 

The Hotel Unit Owner shall be required to advise the Town in writing of the results of the initial and each 

periodic rating of the Condominium Hotel obtained by the Hotel Unit Owner from the Hotel Rating Service, 

promptly after receipt in writing of such rating. If at any time the Condominium Hotel does not achieve the 

Hotel Rating Standard, the Hotel Unit Owner shall again achieve the Hotel Rating Standard (the “Re-

Achieved Rating”) within fifteen (15) months of the loss of the Hotel Rating Standard. 

 

262



 9.4.1 REMEDY FOR NOT ACHIEVING HOTEL RATING STANDARD.  In the 

event that the Hotel Unit Owner does not achieve the Initial Rating or the Re-Achieved Rating 

within the timeframes provided in the foregoing paragraph the Hotel Unit Owner shall pay a fee to 

the Town in the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 ($25,000) Dollars for each month 

following the date on which the Hotel Rating Standard was to be achieved or re-achieved and until 

the Hotel Rating Standard is achieved, or re-achieved, which monthly amount shall be prorated for 

the portions of a month following such date on which the Hotel Rating Standard was to be achieved 

or re-achieved and the portion of a month preceding the date on which the Hotel Rating Standard is 

achieved or re-achieved. In the event that the Hotel Rating Standard is not achieved on or before the 

date one year after the date on which the Hotel Rating Standard is to be achieved or re-achieved, the 

Hotel Unit Owner shall pay a fee to the Town in the amount of Fifty Thousand and No/100 ($50,000) 

Dollars for each month following the date one year after the Hotel Standard is to be achieved or re-

achieved and until the Hotel Rating Standard is achieved or re-achieved, which monthly amount 

shall be prorated for the portions of a month following such date that is one year after the date that 

the Hotel Rating Standard is to be achieved or re-achieved and the portion of the month preceding 

the date on which the Hotel Rating Standard is achieved or re-achieved. 

 

 10. RELEASE.  The Project Property except for the Hotel Unit is released from the Original 

Declaration. 

 

 11. CONDOMINIUM- 5. HOTEL REQUIREMENTS.  The Hotel Unit and the 

condominium-hotel units shall be either: (i) operated and managed by a full service hotel operator/brand (as 

applicable) with significant experience in full service hotel operator/brand (as applicable) with significant 

experience in full service operations with existing broad marketing distribution capabilities (hotel 

operator)(“Hotel Operator”) for the life of the condominium-hotelHotel in accordance with the operational 

standardsOperational Standards. 

 

 12. CONDOMINIUM- 6. HOTEL STANDARDS. 

 

i.6.1 The condominium-hotel operatorHotel Operator shall be capable of operating the 

projectHotel in a manner consistent with the project operational standardsOperational 

Standards of this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction, or The Condominium-the Hotel unit 

operatorOperator shall have a high level of name, brand-awareness and marketing breadth 

with the general public and offer customers incentives such as a customer loyalty program. 

The current condominium-hotel operator, Crescent Hotels and ResortsHotel Operator, 

Northview Hotel Group, satisfies the requirements of this sectionSection 6. 

 

ii.6.2 Examples of internationally or nationally recognized full service hotel operators and brands 

include (but are not limited to) the following: Westin, Marriott (all full service brands), 

Hyatt (all full service brands), Hilton (all full service brands, including Waldorf Astoria), 

Fairmont, Intercontinental (all full service brands), Morgans Hotel Group, Wyndham, Le 

Meridien Luxury Collection (Starwood) and similarly styled operators, as recognized by 

accepted industry standards and brands from time to time. 

 

iii.6.3 The condominium-hotel operatorHotel Operator may be changed by the owner of the Hotel 

Unit (or other authorized person or entity)Owner from time to time. In the event that the 

owner of the Hotel Unit Owner elects to terminate or replace the approved condominium-

hotel operatorHotel Operator at any time, the owner of the Hotel Unit Owner shall provide 

the Director of Community Development of the Town with: (a) thirty (30) daysdays’ prior 

written notice of such termination or replacement including the reasons for such 

termination or replacement (which shall be held in confidence by the Town), or such lesser 

period of time as may be necessitated by the bankruptcy or cessation of business of the 

hotel operator ofHotel Operator or the  misfeasance or malfeasance of the condominium-

hotel operatorHotel Operator; and (b) within two hundred forty (240) days of termination 

of the hotel operatorHotel Operator, notice of the replacement condominium-hotel 

operatorHotel Operator, which notice shall include a letter of intent from the replacement 

263



condominium-hotel operatorHotel Operator. The Town shall promptly provide notice of 

acceptance or non-acceptance within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the notice and the 

failure to provide a response shall be deemed to be an approval of the replacement 

condominium-hotel operatorHotel Operator by the Town. In considering the acceptability 

of the replacement condominium-hotel operatorHotel Operator, the developerHotel Unit 

Owner and Town shall adhere to the standards and guidelines of this sectionSection 6. 

 

iv.6.4 In the event of a dispute between the owner of the Hotel Unit Owner and the Town 

concerning the adequacy of the designation of the condominium-hotel operatorHotel 

Operator consistent with this sectionSection 6, the parties shall initially identify a qualified, 

neutral third-party recognized as an authority in the hospitality industry to mediate and 

resolve this dispute through a binding mediation process described in section 6Section 7 

below. 

 

v.6.5 The Hotel Unit ownerOwner and the condominium-hotel operatorHotel Operator shall 

provide the following full service amenities, facilities and services within the Project 

PropertyCommunity, which are intended to help promote the lodge and efficiency lodge 

unitstransient guest lodging, including but not limited to a restaurant, bar, spa, lobby, 

check-in/check-out, parking, concierge and similar full service hotel/lodging amenities. 

 

vi.6.6 The Hotel Unit and each lodge and efficiency lodge unit is incorporated as a condominium-

hotel and the will Hotel Condominium Unit shall meet the following conditions, 

restrictions and requirementrequirements: 

 

a.6.6.1 The condominium-hotel operatorHotel Operator shall be responsible for the 

implementation, management and operation of the condominium-hotel, including 

an onsite rental management program, which shall include the national and 

international marketing of each of the lodge and efficiency lodge units 

(management and marketing programs).the Hotel for transient guest occupancy 

(“Hotel Rental Program”). The management and marketing programHotel 

Rental Program is intended to manage and, market and promote the 

condominium-hotel projectHotel and the use and occupancy of the associated 

lodge and efficiency lodge units in the condominium-hotelHotel Condominium 

Units participating in the Hotel Rental Program as accommodation styled rooms. 

The management and marketing programHotel Rental Program is further intended 

to provide for the use and rentals of all available lodge and efficiency units, which 

are required to be made available rental of the Hotel Condominium Units 

participating in the Hotel Rental Program to the general public as hotel-type 

lodging units, except when the hotel condominiumssuch Units are occupied by an 

owner as allowed by this section.the owners of the Units.   The Hotel Rental 

Program shall require that the maximum rental rates for the participating Hotel 

Condominium Units are set by the Hotel Unit Owner or Hotel Operator.  

 

b.6.6.2 The residential condominiumsResidence Condominiums in the Project 

PropertyCommunity may also voluntarily be put into the accommodations rental 

pool and the management and marketing program. 

 

c. So long as registration as a security is not required under applicable state and 

federal securities laws, each lodge and efficiency lodge unitparticipate in the 

condominium-hotel shall be included inHotel Rental Program.  

 

6.6.3 In accordance with the Zoning Designation under the CDC as Efficiency Lodge 

Units, the hotel operator’s management and marketing program and managed by 

the condominium-hotel operator, and in that case a separate unit management 

agreement for each unit must be executed at the time of closing on a lodge and 

efficiency lodge unit, consistent with this section. 

264



 

d. The lodge and efficiency lodge unitsHotel Condominium Units shall not be the 

primary residence of the owner. 

 

(I) When of such Units and when not in use by the owner of a lodge and efficiency 

lodge unitthe Unit, such unitsUnits shall be included in the condominium-hotel’s 

accommodations rental pool andmade available for short-term transient rental 

occupancy and accommodations by guests.through the Hotel Rental Program, a 

Qualified Rental Program (defined below) or a direct rental by the owner.  Hotel 

Condominium Units may not be rented on a long-term basis.  For the purposes of 

this Hotel Deed Restriction, “long term basis” shall mean a period of more than 

thirty-one (31) consecutive days.   

(II)  

(i) The owner Declaration shall include provisions setting forth the 

restrictions of a lodgeSection 6.6.3, which may not be amended without 

the prior written consent of the Town. 

 

6.6.4 Hotel Exclusive Services.  The Hotel Unit Owner and efficiency lodge unit/or 

the Hotel Operator shall provide lead-time on notice of occupancy to the 

condominium-certain exclusive hotel operator withservices (“Hotel Exclusive 

Services”) to and for each of the Hotel Condominium Units as set forth in Exhibit 

“B” attached hereto.  The provision of the Hotel Exclusive Services shall be 

mandatory for all Hotel Condominium Units and may not be performed by any 

party other than the Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator. The owners of Hotel 

Condominium Units and their agents, employees and contractors are expressly 

prohibited from performing or engaging in any of the Hotel Exclusive Services.  

The provisions in the Declaration pertaining to the mandatory provision of the 

Hotel Exclusive Services by the Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator may not 

be removed from the Declaration without the written consent of the Town.  

 

6.6.5 Qualified Rental Programs. The Declaration shall include provisions regarding 

the approval by the Board of the TMVRC Owners’ Association, Inc. 

(“Association”) of third party rental programs (“Qualified Rental Programs”) 

that are qualified to provide rental management services and programs for the 

Hotel Condominium Units that meet the Hotel Rating Standard.   The provisions 

in the Declaration requiring approval of Qualified Rental Programs shall not be 

amended without the prior written consent of the Town.   

 

6.6.6 All Hotel Condominium Unit owners will be required to obtain and maintain all 

business license(s) which allow for the rental of such units as required by the 

Town of Mountain Village, and to pay any and all associated transient room and 

lodging taxes.  Hotel Condominium Unit owners who participate in the Hotel 

Rental Program are not required to obtain a separate business license(s) as 

required by this Section. 

 

6.6.7 The Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator shall be required to provide a written 

report to the Town on an annual basis by no later than February 28th as the deadline 

for providing intended summer occupancy dates and September 30th for winter 

occupancy dates.28 of each year commencing on February 28, 2015, which 

includes the following information: 

(III) The owner may use their lodge and efficiency lodge unit at other times 

without any lead-time notice if the unit is not reserved for lodging 

purposes. 

 

e. With respect to each condominium-hotel unit, the restrictions set forth in this 

section shall be reflected in a separate deed restriction for each lodge and 

265



efficiency lodge unit so that the owner of each unit is affirmatively stating that 

their unit(s) will be available to the condominium-hotel operator and their 

paying guests when not in use by the owner in accordance with the requirements 

of this section. 

f. For each lodge and efficiency unit in the hotel operator’s management and 

marketing program, the condominium-hotel operator and not the individual 

owners of lodge and efficiency lodge units will establish maximum room rental 

rates and yield mange the inventory, other than during owner’s alleged usage 

periods. 

 

g. The condominium-hotel project may consist of lodge and efficiency lodge units 

that are connected by lock-off doors between the individual units. When such a 

configuration of lodge and efficiency lodge units is desired in a lock-off 

configuration, the following requirements shall be met: 

 

(I) Doors that lock-off one unit from another unit shall be maintained as a 

separate, lockable door, and doors or locks shall not be removed for 

any reason; 

(II) Each unit shall maintain a separately keyed entry from the other 

attached unit; 

(III) Each unit shall be shown as a separate condominium unit on the 

condominium map with an owner-allowed to own up to a maximum of 

three (3) units in a lock-off unit configuration; 

(IV) Each lock-off unit shall remain a separate, unique unit designation in 

the common hallway; and 

(V) Each unit shall contain a freestanding bed that does not include a 

sleeper sofa or Murphy bed. 

 

h. An owner of a unit in the condominium-hotel shall not be allowed to park or 

store a vehicle in a parking space during times that the owner is not occupying 

their unit. 

 

i. A block of lodge and efficiency lodge units may be owned by one (1) owner 

provided such units meet the requirements of this section. 

 

j. Alteration or elimination of any walls shown on the condominium map, or 

changes to the individual rooms that eliminate the number of beds approved by 

the Town are prohibited unless such changes are reviewed and approved by the 

Town in accordance with these regulations and provided that such change will 

not reduce the number of beds available in the condominium-hotel project. 

 

k. The owner of the Hotel Unit, in consultation with the Town-approved 

condominiums-hotel operator, will continue to maintain uniform furniture, 

fixtures and equipment packages that will be provided for each of the lodge and 

efficiency lodge units exclusive of the residential condominium units. The 

furniture, fixtures, and equipment packages will continue to insure a quality of 

décor, furniture, furnishings and appliances suitable to meet the condominium-

hotel operational standards, which may include without limitation appropriate 

and suitable fixtures (including bathroom fixtures), cabinetry, carpeting, floor 

covering, paint, wall covering, furniture (including built-in furniture, if any), 

lighting, mirrors, décor items, color television, clock, ratio, drapes, shades and 

other window treatments and any and all other fixtures, equipment, utilities and 

decorative accessories within the units. The design and content of the furniture, 

fixture and equipment packages may be offered in different variations and 

themes intended to achieve the condominium-hotel operational standards. 

 

266



l. “Operational standards 

 (i)   The number of Hotel Condominium Units sold to third parties; 

 

 (ii)   The number of Hotel Condominium Units sold to third parties 

participating in the Hotel Rental Program; 

 
 (iii)    The number of Hotel Condominium Units sold to third parties utilizing 

a Qualified Rental Program;  

 
(iv)    The number of Hotel Condominium Units sold to third parties that are 

directly rented by owners of the units;  

 

(v) The name of each Qualified Rental Program approved by the Board of 

the Association and the number of units utilizing the services of each approved 

Qualified Rental Program;  

 

 (vi) Occupancy rates for the previous fiscal year for the Hotel Condominium 

Units sold to third parties broken down into each of the following categories:  (a) 

Hotel Rental Program; (b) Qualified Rental Program; and (c) direct owner rentals; 

 

6.7 The Hotel Condominium Units are encumbered by the Hotel Reconfiguration Deed 

Restriction at Reception Number 384749 in the Official Records.  

 

6.8 The Hotel Unit Owner, in consultation with the Hotel Operator, has established certain 

standards under the Community Documents that among other things require a uniform 

quality of furniture, fixtures and equipment packages for each of the Hotel Condominium 

Units that comply with the Operational Standards (defined below).  

 

6.9 “Operational Standards” means the standards for operating the condominium-hotelHotel 

as determined by the condominium-hotel operatorHotel Operator, in consultation with the 

owner of the Hotel Unit,Hotel Unit Owner that are necessary to achieve and maintain the 

Hotel Rating Standard and are consistent with the foregoing terms and conditions and the 

operating standards customarily followed by the hotel operator for similar projects 

managed by hotel operator located in mountain resort locations. The operational standards.   

The Operational Standards are intended to be followed for purposes of promoting the use 

and operation of the condominium-hotelHotel as a full-service hotelHotel within the Hotel 

Unit, the hotel condominiumsHotel Condominiums and those residential condominium 

unitsResidence Condominium Units participating in the rental management programHotel 

Rental Program. When developing and implementing the operational standards, the hotel 

operatorOperational Standards, the Hotel Unit Owner and Hotel Operator shall exercise 

itstheir good-faith commercially reasonable judgment and adhere to industry standards for 

similar projects located in the mountain resort locations as well as the actual operational 

needs of the hotelHotel and/or hotel guest. It is recognized and agreed that the operational 

standardsOperational Standards may vary from time to time given due consideration to 

winter periods, summer periods and shoulder seasons between winter and summer periods. 

 

137. EXPERT RESOLUTION PROCESS.  All disputes regarding the appointment of the replacement 

hotel operatorHotel Operator or replacement hotel rating serviceReplacement Hotel Rating Service shall be 

resolved through the expert resolution process described in this section. WereWhere a matter is referred to 

as the expert resolution process, the following provisions shall apply: 

 

i.7.1 Initiation of Expert Resolution Process.  Either the hotelHotel Unit Owner or owner of the 

Hotel UnitOperator on the one hand, or the Town on the other hand, may initiate the expert 

resolution process by notice to the other party after attempting in good faith to resolve the 

matter for a period of not less than thirty (30) days from the delivery of written notice of 

267



disagreement by one party or the other. The parties shall have ten (10) days from the date 

of such notice to mutually agree on an expert. An expert shall be a party agreed to by the 

hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit Owner or Hotel Operator on the one hand, or the 

Town on the other hand, who has not less than five years of experience in the hospitality 

industry practice of a national or international consulting firm and who does not have any 

conflict of interest and has not previously worked for and does not work for either party 

absent disclosure to and approval of the hotel operatorHotel Unit Owner or owner of the 

Hotel UnitOperator on the one hand, and the Town, on the other hand. Upon the failure of 

the parties to agree upon an expert, either party may submit a request to the local office of 

the American Arbitration Association and such expert shall be selected by said office who 

has not less than five years’ experience in the hospitality industry and in the operation of 

hotels, and who does not have any conflict of interest and is not previously worked for and 

does not then work for either party absent disclosure to and approval of the hotel 

operatorHotel Unit Owner or owner of the Hotel UnitOperator on the one hand, and the 

Town on the other hand, which election shall be binding. 

 

ii.7.2 Decision of Expert.  The decision of an expert selected according to this section shall be 

final and binding on the parties and will not be capable of challenge, absent bad faith or 

fraud, whether by arbitration, through a judicial proceeding or otherwise. If a party fails to 

comply with the expert’s determination, the other party may enforce the determination in 

a court of competent jurisdiction in San Miguel County, Colorado. 

 

iii.7.3 Submissions to Expert.  Each party will be entitled to make written submissions to the 

expert, but must provide a copy to the other party, and the latter will have the right to 

comment on such submission. The parties will make available to the expert all books and 

records relating to the issue in dispute and will render to the expert any assistance requested 

of the parties. The cost of the expert and the proceedings, including the reasonable travel, 

room, board and incidental expenses of the expert, will be born as directed by the expert. 

Any hearings or meetings required of the expert will be held in San Miguel County, 

Colorado or such other location as is acceptable to the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel 

Unit Owner or Hotel Operator on the one hand, and the Town on the other hand. 

 

iv.7.4  Terms of Engagement of Expert.  The terms of engagement of the expert will include an 

obligation on the part of the expert to (i) provide time frames to the parties for the 

submission of information and materials reasonably necessary to resolve the subject issues, 

(ii) notify the parties in writing of the decision within thirty (30) days from the date on 

which the expert has been selected and has received the information and supporting 

documentation necessary to resolve the subject issues (or such other period as the parties 

may agree); and (iii) make his or her decision regarding the replacement hotel rating 

serviceHotel Rating Service and/or replacement hotel operatorHotel Operator by applying 

the provisions of this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction. 

 

148. ARBITRATION PROCESS.  All controversies, disputes or claims between the hotel operator or 

owner of the Hotel Unit Owner or Hotel Operator on the one hand, or the Town on the other hand, which 

arise from or relate to this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction and which are not otherwise subject to the 

expert resolution process shall be resolved through the arbitration process described herein. Where a matter 

is referred to the arbitration process, the following provisions may apply: 

 

i.8.1 Initiation of Arbitration.  Either the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit Owner or 

Hotel Operator on the one hand, or the Town on the other hand, may initiate the arbitration 

process by notice to the other party after attempting in good faith to resolve the matter for 

a period of not less than thirty (30) days. Within thirty (30) days after a party’s delivery of 

notice to the other party of its election to submit a disagreement to arbitration, the parties 

shall mutually agree on an arbitrator with not less than five (5) years’ experience in the 

hospitality industry and in the operation of hotels, who does not have any conflict of interest 

and has not previously worked for and does not then work for either party, absent disclosure 

268



to and approval of the hotel operator or owner of the Hotel Unit Owner or Hotel Operator 

on the one hand, and the Town on the other hand. Upon failure of the parties to agree upon 

an arbitrator, either party may submit a request to the local office of the American 

Arbitration Association that an arbitrator be selected by said office with not less than five 

(5) years’ experience in the hospitality industry and in the operation of hotels, and who 

does not have any conflict of interest and has not previously worked for and does not then 

work for either party, absence disclosure to and approval of the hotel operatorHotel Unit 

Owner or owner of the Hotel UnitOperator on the one hand, and the Town on the other 

hand, which selection shall be binding. 

 

ii.8.2 Conduct Of Arbitration.  The arbitrator shall conduct the arbitration with the goal of 

resolving the dispute as speedily as possible. All discovery shall be conducted in 

accordance with the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure. The arbitrator shall endeavor to 

conduct the proceeding so as to permit the issuance of an award within four months of the 

commencement of the arbitration. The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on 

the parties and shall not be subject to challenge absent bad faith or fraud, whether through 

a judicial proceeding or otherwise. If a party fails to comply with the arbitrator’s award the 

other party may enforce an award in a court of competent jurisdiction in San Miguel County, 

Colorado. The fees of the arbitrator and expenses of the arbitration proceeding shall be 

allocated in the award by the arbitrator. Each party shall pay the fees and costs of its 

respective counsel and fees of court and costs of any witness called by that party. 

 

159. MISCELLANEOUS. 

 

i.9.1 Notwithstanding anything contrary set forth in this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction, no 

owner of a hotel condominiumHotel Condominium Unit or residential condominium 

orResidence Condominium Unit or any other parcel of real property within the project of 

which the Property is a partCommunity, other than the Hotel Unit, no lessee or 

concessionaire of a portion of, or of services within, the condominium-hotelHotel Unit or 

onwithin the PropertyCommunity, and, except as otherwise provided in sectionSection viii 

below, no holder of a mortgage or provider of financing with respect to the Project Property 

or any condominium unit or other parcel of real property within the project of which the 

Property is a partCommunity, shall be bound by or responsible for the fulfillment of the 

requirements or restrictions imposed by this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction, and no 

lien or charge shall attach to any Interestinterest in the Property ofany property within the 

project of which the Property is a partCommunity as a result of this DeclarationHotel Deed 

Restriction or the exercise of the rights hereunder other than against the Hotel Unit. No lien 

shall be imposed against the Hotel Unit by operation of law or otherwise unless the matter 

as to which the lien relates has been resolved in accordance with the applicable dispute 

resolution mechanism provided for in this Declaration.Hotel Deed Restriction. No present 

or future partner, shareholder, officer, director, member, employee, affiliate or agent of the 

owner of the Hotel Unit or of any corporation or other entity that is or becomes the owner 

of the Hotel Unit or a constituent partner in or member of the owner of the Hotel Unit, shall 

be personally liable, directly or indirectly, for any liabilities arising in connection with this 

DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction, and the Town waives any such personal liability. 

 

ii.9.2 This DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction shall not be modified, amended or released except 

by written instrument executed by the owner of the Hotel Unit Owner and approved in 

writing by the Town. Approval of a Lender (as defined below) is not required. The 

appropriate governmental authority of the Town shall execute a written instrument 

effectuating and acknowledging such modification, amendment or release. Any 

amendment, modification or release of this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction shall be 

recorded in the public records of San Miguel County, Colorado.Official Records.  

 

iii.9.3 This DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction shall be effective upon recording. 

 

269



iv. There9.4 These restrictions are hereby declared to be severable and independent. If any 

court of competent jurisdiction shall declare any section, paragraph or part hereof invalid 

or unenforceable, then such judgment or decree shall have no effect on the enforcement or 

validity of any other section, paragraph or part hereof, and the same shall remain in full 

force and effect. 

 

v.9.5 Articles and paragraph captions, headings and titles inserted throughout this 

DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction are intended as a matter of convenience only and in no 

way shall such captions, headings or titles define, limit or in any way affect the subject 

matter or any of the terms and provisions thereunder or the terms and provisions of this 

DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction. 

 

vi.9.6 With the exception of the Lenders (hereafter defined), there shall be not third party 

beneficiaries to this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction and no party other than the owner 

of the Hotel Unit Owner and the Town and any Lender, and their respective successors and 

assigns, shall have a claim or be entitled to pursue a cause of action in connection with the 

matters addressed herein. 

 

vii9.7. If the Town shall be notified in writing of a Lender’s (defined below) interest in the Project 

Property and/or Hotel Unit or the owner of the Hotel Unit Owner, the Town shall provide 

such Lender with contemporaneous copies of notices of the owner ofsent to the Hotel Unit 

Owner sent in connection with this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction. 

 

viii9.8. No Lender shall be responsible for any financial obligations hereunder which accrue or 

relate to actions, inactions, conditions or circumstances arising or existing prior to the time 

that such Lender shall have acquired title to or control of the Hotel Unit or the owner of 

the Hotel Unit Owner, as applicable. 

 

ix.9.9 Any lien placed against the Hotel Unit arising out of or relating to the provisions of this 

DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction is hereby expressly subordinated in all respects to any 

loan held by either a Mortgage Lender (defined below) or a Mezzanine Lender (defined 

below). The Town agrees to execute a release of any lien promptly upon the delivery by 

any Lender of evidence of the foreclosure of a loan or transfer of the interest securing such 

loan pursuant to a deed in lieu or transfer in lieu of foreclosure. 

 

x.9.10 “Lender” shall mean any of the following: (1) the holder of a loan secured by a mortgage 

or deed of trust encumbering any of the Project Property and/or the Hotel Unit (“Mortgage 

Lender”); (2) the holder of a Loan secured by a pledge of direct or indirect ownership 

interest in the owner of the Hotel Unit Owner (“Mezzanine Lender”); (3) the successors 

and or assigns of the Mortgage Lender or Mezzanine Lender; (4) the entity or individual 

who acquires title to any of the Property or the Hotel Unit by purchase or assignment at 

foreclosure or by deed in lieu thereof; and/or (5) the entity or individual who acquires 

ownership to the direct or indirect ownership interests in the owner of the Hotel Unit Owner 

in a UCC foreclosure proceeding, secured party sale or transfer in lieu of foreclosure. 

 

xi.9.11 Any notice provided or permitted to be given in this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction 

shall be made in writing and may be given by personal delivery, facsimile transmission or 

by depositing the notice in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified with return 

receipt requested, and addressed to the party to be notified. Notice deposited in the mail in 

the foregoing manner shall be deemed received three days after it is so deposited, excluding 

Sunday and postal holidays. Notice given in any other manner shall be effective only if and 

when actually received by the person or entity to be notified. For purposes of notice, the 

addresses of the parties shall be set forth below until changed. Any party, by notifying the 

other parties hereto in the manner provided in this paragraph, may designate a different 

address for receipt of subsequent notices. 

 

270



 For the Owner of the Hotel UnitsUnit Owner: 

 

 Ektornet US Telluride   Madeline Property Owner, LLC 

 One Penn Plaza Suite 1514 

 New York, NY, 10119 

 Attention: President 

 

 With a copy to: 

 

 Carlton Fields, P.A. 

 4221 W. Boy Scout Blvd., Suite 1000 

 Tampa, FL 33607 

 Attention:  Richard Liquanti 

 

  36 Narrow Rocks Road 

Westport, CT 06880 

Attn: Simon A. Hallgarten 

 

271



For the Town: 

 

 Town of Mountain Village 

 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A 

 Mountain Village, CO 81435 

 Attention: Community Development Director 

 

 With a copy to: 

 

 J. David Reed P.C. 

 James Mahoney, Esq. 

 1047 S. 1st Street 

 Montrose, CO 81435 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Declarant has executed this Amended and Restated Declaration2015 

Hotel Deed Restriction on the day and year first above written. 

 

 

     Ektornet US TellurideMadeline Property Owner, LLC, 

 

           a 

Delaware limited liability company 

 

 

      

By __________________________ 

          Kai Ringenson, ManagerSimon A. Hallgarten, Authorized  

 

     By __________________________ 

          Steve Hansen, Manager 

 

State of New York_________       ) 

   ) ss. 

County of New York  _______ ) 

 

Acknowledged before me by Kai Ringenson as ManagerSimon A. Hallgarten, Authorized Signatory of 

Ektornet US TellurideMadeline Property Owner, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company on this 12ththe 

___ day of September, 2013________________, 2015. 

 

Witness my hand and seal, 

 

My commission expires ____________________, 2016____________________ 

 

State of New York       ) 

   )ss. 

County of New York   ) 

 

Acknowledged before me by Sven Hansen as Manager of Ektornet US Telluride LLC on this 12th day of 

September, 2013, 

 

Witness my hand and seal, 

My commission expires ____________________, 2016 

 

272



JOINDER AND CONSENT: 
 

The undersigned joins into this DeclarationHotel Deed Restriction for the purpose of acknowledging its 

consent and agreement with the terms hereof. 

 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
 

 

By __________________________________ 

      Dan Jansen, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_______________________ 

____________________________________ 

Jackie Kennefick, Town Clerk 

 

273



Exhibit “A” 

Project Property Legal Description 
 

Lot 38-50-51R51RR, Town of Mountain Village, A Replat of Lot 38R, Lot 50-51R, Tract OS-3-CR and 

Tract OS-CX, Town of Mountain Village, according to the Plat recorded February 11, 2009 in Plat Book 1 

at Page 4061, being also the property subject to that certain First Amended and Restated Declaration of 

Grants, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Telluride Mountain Village Resort Condominiums, a 

Condominium Common Interest Community Located in Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 

Colorado, dated November 7, 2011 and recorded November 23, 2011 at Reception No. 420677 of the 

records in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder of San Miguel County, Colorado, as may be amended from 

time to time. 

  

274



EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT E TO DELCARTION  

HOTEL EXCLUSIVE SERVICES 

In order to ensure compliance with the Town Requirements and the Standards, the Hotel Unit Owner must 

maintain control over the Hotel operations, services and facilities within the Community.  The services listed 

below are an integral part of the Hotel operations and may only be provided and performed by the Hotel Unit 

Owner and/or Hotel Operator to or for all Residence Condominium and Hotel Condominium Units, in order 

to ensure and maintain uniform, orderly and high quality Hotel operations.  The Owners of Residence 

Condominium and Hotel Condominium Units and their agents, employees and contractors are expressly 

prohibited from performing or engaging in any of the Hotel Exclusive Services.  The Rules and Regulations 

supplement these Hotel Exclusive Services and establish the service fees and charges, which may be amended 

from time-to-time.   

Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator shall have the sole and exclusive right to provide the following 

services to all Residence Condominium and Hotel Condominium Units: 

1. Accept reservations by, from and through the Unit Owner and/or its agents, including any Qualified 

Rental Program, for the use and occupancy of the Unit; 

2. Establish and enforce check-in and check-out procedures for all Owner’s and Owner’s guests; 

3. Housekeeping and cleaning services necessary or desired for the Units;  

4. All routine repairs and maintenance services necessary or desired for the Units,  

5. Valet parking services; 

6. Pest control services;  

7. Manage and maintain the Unit electronic locking system, and all associated keys, including issuance 

and replacement of room keys;   

8. Collection of all service fees and other charges payable by the Owner to the Hotel Unit Owner or 

Hotel Operator for the provision of these Hotel Exclusive Services and any other individual charges 

incurred by or on behalf of the Owner;  

9. Connect telephones in the Unit to the Hotel’s telephone switchboard. All Units must utilize the 

Hotel’s telephone systems; 

10. Make arrangements for, or cause to be arranged, internet service and basic cable or satellite 

television service to the Unit utilizing the Hotel’s cable or satellite system and such additional 

television services as Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator may, from time to time determine, 

in its discretion.  No separate internet, cable or satellite televisions services may be provided to the 

Units. 

11. In accordance with the liquor license issued by the State of Colorado for the Community, the Hotel 

Unit Owner or Hotel Operator shall (i) operate mini-bars in the Units; and (ii) provide room service 

to the Units, which shall include the sale and dispensing of alcoholic beverages and food in the Unit.  

Unit Owners shall not engage in any activity within its Unit or any portion of the Community 

requiring a liquor license from the State of Colorado, without limitation, the sale of alcoholic 

beverages and food; 

275



12. Such additional services and procedures as the Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator may elect, 

from time to time, in order to maintain uniformity, quality, appropriate access restrictions, and 

ensure compliance with the Town Requirements and the Standards.  

Nothing in this Exhibit “E” is intended to authorize Hotel Unit Owner and/or Hotel Operator to 

solicit, advertise, promote or rent a Unit.  The Owner has the exclusive authority to arrange for the rental of 

the Owner’s Unit in accordance with the Restated Declaration. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Hotel Unit Owner, Hotel Operator and the Hotel, shall 

not be liable for any loss of, damage to, or destruction of any of the personal property or physical 

improvements located within the Units and shall not have any obligation to protect against or take action to 

prevent the theft, damage or destruction of such personal property. 

Except for the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any of the Indemnified Parties (as defined 

below), each Unit Owner hereby agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law, to defend, indemnify and hold 

the Hotel Unit Owner, the Hotel Operator, and all of their owners, affiliates and subsidiaries and their 

respective employees, officers, directors, owners, representatives, contractors and agents (collectively, 

“Indemnified Parties”), free and harmless from and against any and all acts, omissions, investigations, 

inquiries, liabilities, losses, damages, fines, obligations, penalties, demands, taxes, injuries, claims, causes of 

action, judgments, allegations, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs 

(collectively, “Claims”) arising and/or relating, directly or indirectly, from injury to person or property 

(including to the Unit and the property therein), or both, sustained by anyone in and about the Unit, and in 

connection with or arising from any cause in, on or about the Unit (including, but not limited to, a personal 

injury), Unit Owner’s and Unit Owner’s Guests’ use of the Unit or the Community, from any breach or 

default in the performance of the Hotel Exclusive Services by the Indemnified Parties.   Unit Owner hereby 

assumes all risk of damage to property or injury to persons in, upon or about the Unit from any cause, and 

Unit Owner hereby waives all claims in respect thereof against the Indemnified Parties, excepting where the 

damage is caused solely by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties in the 

performance of the Hotel Exclusive Services. 

 

 

276



February 19th, 2015 Agenda Item 16a  

    

Activity MONTH YTD MONTH YTD Variance Variance %

# Residential & Bulk Basic Cable 929 957 (28) -2.9%

# Premium Channel Residential & Bulk Subscribers 488 483 5 1.0%

# Digital Subscribers 280 324 (44) -13.6%

# Internet Subscribers 1,619 1,557 62 4.0%

Average # Phone Subscribers 99 91 8 8.8%

Occupancy Rate                        % 100.00% 100.00% 98.20% 98.20% 1.80% 1.8%

# Vacated Units    1 1 4 4 (3) -75.0%

# Work Orders Completed         25 25 30 30 (5) -16.7%

# on Waiting List                               96 33 63 190.9%

Service Calls 408 408 341 341 67 19.6%

Snow Fall                                    Inches 13 13 37 37 (24) -64.9%

Snow Removal - Streets & Prkg Lots  Hours 777 777 701 701 76 10.8%

Roadway Maintenance            Hours 83 83 81 81 2 2.5%

Water Billed Consumption       Gal. 29,927,000 29,927,000 21,151,000 21,151,000 8,776,000 41.5%

Sewage Treatment                      Gal. 8,122,000 8,122,000 8,200,000 8,200,000 (78,000) -1.0%

# Infants & Toddlers Actual Occupancy 17.02 17.02 19.03 19.03 (2.01) -10.6%

# Preschoolers Actual Occupancy 14.52 14.52 13.09 13.09 1.43 10.9%

GPG (noon snapshot) 2,763 2,763 2,633 2,633 130 4.9%

HPG (noon snapshot) 2,203 2,203 2,148 2,148 55 2.6%

Total Parking (noon snapshot) 10,370 10,370 10,305 10,305 65 0.6%

Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 42.7% 42.7% 42.5% 42.5% 0.2% 0.5%

Paid Parking Revenues $36,391 $36,211 $45,193 $45,193 ($8,982) -19.9%

Bus Routes                    # of Passengers 37 37 49 49 (12) -24.5%

Employee Shuttle  # of Passengers 1,805 1,805 1,433 1,433 372 26.0%

Employee Shuttle Utilization Rate % 54.2% 54.2% 67.5% 67.5% -13.30% -19.7%

Inbound (Vehicle) Traffic (Entrance)       # of Cars 65,005 65,005 60,704 60,704 4,301 7.1%

FT Year Round Head Count 78 76 2 2.6%

Seasonal Head Count (FT & PT) 5 4 1 25.0%

PT Year Round Head Count 11 13 (2) -15.4%

Gondola FT YR, Seasonal, PT YR Head Count 60 60 0 0.0%

Total Employees 154 153 1 0.7%

Gondola Overtime Paid               Hours 269 269 140 140 129 92.1%

Other Employee Overtime Paid               84 84 34 34 50 147.1%

# New Hires Total New Hires 7 7 1 1 6 600.0%

# Terminations 2 2 4 4 (2) -50.0%

# Workmen Comp Claims 2 2 2 2 0 0.0%

Workmen Comp Claims Costs $0 $0 $2 $2 -$2 -100.0%

Total Users/Total Sessions 1,207/1,447 1,207/1,447 91/200 91/200 1116/1247 1226%/624%

Town Hosted Meetings 5 5 5 5 0 0.0%

Email Correspondence Sent 3 3 4 4 (1) -25.0%

E-mail List # 4327 2116 2,211 104.5%

Press Releases Sent 0 0 1 1 (1) -100.0%

Gondola  # of Passengers 295,855 295,855 270,878 270,878 24,977 9.2%

Chondola  # of Passengers 29,431 29,431 28,409 28,409 1,022 3.6%

RETA fees collected by TMVOA $328,647 $328,647 $177,315 $177,315 $151,332 85.3%

2015 2014

Business and Government Activity Report

For the month ending: January 31st

Cable/Internet

Variance

Child Development Fund

Public Works

Transportation and Parking

Village Court Apartments

Community Relations

RETA revenues are unaudited

Human Resources 

Gondola and RETA

277



February 19th, 2015 Agenda Item 16a  

    

Activity MONTH YTD MONTH YTD Variance Variance %

2015 2014

Cable/Internet

Variance

Calls for Service # 447 447 370 370 77 20.8%

Investigations # 10 10 31 31 (21) -67.7%

Alarms # 17 17 11 11 6 54.5%

Arrests # 1 1 3 3 (2) -66.7%

Traffic Contacts # 3 3 7 7 (4) -57.1%

Traffic Tickets Written   # 0 0 3 3 (3) -100.0%

Parking Tickets Written      # 313 313 146 146 167 114.4%

Administrative Dismissals     # 6 6 27 27 (21) -77.8%

Community Development Revenues $13,564 $13,564 $29,511 $29,511 ($15,947) -54.0%

# Permits Issued        2 2 2 2 0 0.0%

Valuation of Building Permits Issued    $49,971 $49,971 $164,263 $164,263 ($114,292) -69.6%

# Inspections Completed           138 138 88 88 50 56.8%

# Design Review/Zoning Agenda Items   4 4 5 5 (1) -20.0%

# Staff  Review Approvals 2 2 2 2 0 0.0%

Recreation 

Mile of Trails Maintained 14.7 14.7 14.7 14.7 0 0.0%

Platform Tennis Registrations       60 60 40 40 20 50.0%

Ice Rink Skaters 1490 1490 1498 1498 (8) -0.5%

Snow Cat Hours 144 144 25 25 119 485.0%

Snow Removal  Plaza                 Hours 356 356 297.25 297 58 19.6%

Plaza Maintenance  Hours 288 288 239.25 239 48 20.2%

Lawn Care  Hours 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

Plant Care  Hours 12 12 6 6 6 100.0%

Irrigation  Hours 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

TMV Trash Collection  Hours 129 129 92.5 93 36 38.9%

Christmas Decorations  Hours 342 342 347.75 348 (6) -1.7%

# Preventive Maintenance Performed 24 24 22 22 2 9.1%

# Repairs Completed              20 20 41 41 (21) -51.2%

Special Projects 5 5 4 4 1 25.0%

# Roadside Assists 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

# Employee Based Business Licenses Issued 498 498 484 484 14 2.9%

# Privately Licensed Rentals 54 54 49 49 5 10.2%

# Property Management Licensed Rentals 248 248 303 303 (55) -18.2%

# VRBO Listings for MV 314 216 98 45.4%

# Paperless Billing Accts (YTD is total paperless customers) 21 411 16 286 125 43.7%

# of TMV AR Bills Processed 2,023 2,023 1,894 1,894 129 6.8%

838,252$      99.0% 211,369$      90.5% (14,630)$        152.2% Change in Value $22,275

1,139            0.1% 18,622          8.0% (783)               8.1% Ending Balance $5,757,875

2,706            0.3% 2,706            1.2% (1,390)            14.5% Investment Income $3,275

53                 0.0% 886               0.4% 7,190              -74.8% Portfolio Yield 0.992

4,217            0.5% 19                 0.0% -                     0.0%

846,367$      100.0% 233,601$      100.0% (9,613)$          100.0%

Other Statistics

10,524          57.2% 1,045,516$   96.0% 521,720$        97.6% Population (estimated) 1,340

4,902            26.6% 23,879          2.2% 11,094$          2.1% Registered Voters 1,016

1,869            10.2% 5,890            0.5% 857$               0.2% Property Valuation 266,407,970

935               5.1% 9,064            0.8% 1,383$            0.3%

178               1.0% 4,414            0.4% (422)$             -0.1%

18,407$        100.0% 1,088,762$   100.0% 534,632$        100.0%

Building/Planning

Police

Total

60+ Days

Current

Utilities - Cable and 

Water/Sewer

30+ Days

Vehicle Maintenance

over 120 days

Other Billings - CDF, 

Construction Parking, 

Commercial Trash

Change Since Last Month -

Increase (Decrease) in AR Total All AR

Property Maintenance

Accounts Receivable - Total Bad Debt Reserve/Allowance: $

90+ Days

Finance 

General Fund Investment ActivityVCA - Village Court Apartments

TMV Operating Receivables 

(includes Gondola funding)

Total

Current

30+ Days

90+ Days

over 120 days

60+ Days

278



February 19h 2015 Agenda Item   16b 

 
Memorandum 

To:  Town Council 

From:  Kevin Swain, Finance Director 

Date:  February 12, 2015 

Re:  Town of Mountain Village Financial Statements through December 2014 

 Mountain Village Financials Statements through December, 2014  

 
General Fund Summary 

These financials reflect the revised budget as adopted at the December Town Council Meeting. They are 

preliminary and express the financial position as of the date of this memo.  The books are still open and 

there are payables outstanding. These financials do however materially reflect the year-end financial positon 

of the Town.  The General Fund currently shows a surplus of $500,000.   

 

Development related revenues have declined from prior year but exceeded the revised budget. Sales taxes 

continue to show an increase of 7% over prior year and are over budget by 5%.  Total revenues of $8.25 

million were over budget by $460,000 due mainly to sales taxes and community development fees such as 

permit fees, use tax, road impact fees, and plan review fees exceeding revised budgeted expectations. County 

Road and Bridge taxes have come in under budget and prior year.  Contributions are under budget mainly 

because shuttle expenses were less than anticipated and contributions are based on a percentage of those 

costs. 

 

Total operating expenditures of $7 million were under budget by $600,000.  Capital outlay through this 

period was for boilers/snowmelt/plaza improvement, trail improvements, and environmental projects. 

 

Transfers to other funds include: 

 

Fund This Month YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD % of Budget

Child Development Fund   29,695$       96,512$          86,937$        90.08%
Affordable Housing Development Fund 

(Monthly Sales Tax Allocation) 62,788$       330,000$        348,409$      105.58%

Conference Center Subsidy 65,496$       164,018$        154,274$      94.06%

Debt Service Fund (487,708)$    (420,330)$       (357,416)$     85.03%

Vehicle & Equipment Acquisition Fund  -$                 216,868$        185,994$      85.76%

 

 

 
279



 

 

 

Income transfers from other funds include: 

 

Fund This Month YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD % of Budget

Cable System    39,012$       165,628$        180,167$      108.78%

Parking Services  34,586$       (66,362)$         33,477$        -50.45%
Overhead allocation from Cable, W/S, 

Gondola, VCA and Parking Services 37,199$       451,996$        443,371$      98.09%

*Tourism Fund 5,374$         13,012$          53,124$        408.29%

*This transfer is comprised of  administrative fees and penalties collected.  
 

Vehicle and Equipment Acquisition Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 

A road and bridge vehicle was purchased ($164,000) with offsetting grant funds of $124,000, a Hotsy 

pressure washer was replaced, new plaza services and Parks & Recreation ATV’s were replaced, a utility 

truck and a crack sealing machine were purchased, and the bobcat leases have been paid.  Employee 

Shuttles have been purchased and 80% matching grant funds have been reimbursed.  

 

Capital Projects Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 

DOJ communications expenses of $ 83,726 have been incurred which will be paid by the grant monies for the 

project. $61,883 has been spent on the Meadows improvement plan. $54,221 has been transferred from the 

affordable housing development fund. 

 

Historical Museum Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 

$88,343 in property taxes were collected and $86,573 was tendered to the historical museum. The county 

treasurer retained $1,770 in treasurer’s fees.  

 
Mortgage Assistance Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 

One promissory note was paid and interest of $5,572 has been recorded. 

 

Sales Tax 

Sales taxes of $3.1 million are 7% over 2013.  Sales tax revenues are over budget by 5%. Restaurant shows the 

highest growth of 13.5% followed by lodging at 9.4%.      

 

Category Actual

2010

Actual

2011

PY %

Increase

Actual

2012

PY %

Increase

Actual

2013

PY %

Increase

Actual

2014

PY $

Variance

PY %

Increase

4.5% 4.5% 2010 to 

2011

4.5% 2011 to 

2012

4.5% 2012 to 2013 4.5% 2013 to 2014 2013 to 

2014

Lodging 16,667,064      19,663,485      18% 21,813,629      11% 27,745,883      27% 30,348,012        2,602,129      9.38%
Restaurant 10,606,332      11,223,839      6% 12,717,690      13% 13,631,180      7% 15,477,328        1,846,148      13.54%
Retail 11,947,237      13,406,936      12% 12,293,787      -8% 14,864,000      21% 15,593,895        729,894         4.91%
Utility/Other 8,861,304        7,625,308        -14% 8,323,303        9% 9,047,900        9% 8,263,593          (784,307)        -8.67%
  Total 48,081,937      51,919,568      8% 55,148,409      6% 65,288,964      18% 69,682,828        4,393,864      6.73%

Actual Sales Tax Base By Class, Through December 2014

 
 

280



 -
 250,000
 500,000
 750,000

 1,000,000
 1,250,000
 1,500,000
 1,750,000
 2,000,000
 2,250,000
 2,500,000
 2,750,000
 3,000,000
 3,250,000
 3,500,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

T
o

ta
l 

T
a
x
 C

o
ll

e
c
te

d

Year

Sales Tax by Category
through the month of: December

Lodging

Restaurant

Retail

Utility/Other

  Total

 
 

Tourism Fund 

2014 restaurant taxes totaling $314,737 have been collected and $308,442 was tendered to the airline 

guarantee program. $1.2 million in lodging taxes were collected and $1.19 was tendered to the airline 

guarantee program and to MTI. The Town retained $23,562 in administrative fees, and penalties and 

interest of $2,811.  

 

Lodging taxes exceeded prior year by 11% and are exceeding budget by 12%.  Restaurant taxes are also 

ahead of prior year and budget by 14.5% and 14%, respectively. For the month of December, restaurant 

taxes are 15% over December 2013 and lodging taxes are 18% over December 2013. 

 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2013 2014 Budget

Activity       

(4%)

Activity         

(4%)

Activity         

(4%)

 Activity           

(4%)

 Activity           

(4%)

Var % Budget  Var %

January 111,915        123,204        105,787        167,378           159,264        -4.85% 162,972        -2.33%
February 138,044        137,579        135,434        151,727           170,098        12.11% 148,710        12.57%
March 149,122        179,223        150,548        203,235           248,285        22.17% 196,971        20.67%
April 6,630            5,006            7,619            9,382               7,291            -22.29% 9,522            -30.59%
May 4,214            6,665            8,673            10,684             10,627          -0.53% 10,881          -2.39%
June 37,439          50,466          55,581          77,013             74,275          -3.56% 76,522          -3.03%
July 52,231          64,340          77,661          93,602             109,838        17.35% 92,286          15.98%
August 60,591          52,153          74,889          84,727             88,929          4.96% 84,488          4.99%
September 51,295          61,547          62,057          69,349             82,891          19.53% 68,746          17.07%
October 12,191          12,532          16,867          16,450             17,383          5.67% 16,731          3.75%
November 5,712            6,206            6,618            6,761               11,840          75.14% 6,695            43.46%
December 152,210        171,797        164,045        191,249           221,667        15.90% 181,008        18.34%
Total 781,594        870,717        865,780        1,081,555        1,202,388     11.17% 1,055,532     12.21%
Tax Base 19,539,844   21,767,932   21,644,491   27,038,867      30,059,690   26,388,300   

Town of Mountain Village Colorado Lodging Tax Summary

 
 

281



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2013 2014 Budget

Activity     

(2%)

Activity       

(2%)

Activity       

(2%)

 Activity (2%)   Activity (2%) Var % Budget  Var %

January 31,043          31,256          28,754          34,448          38,239           11.01% 33,945          11.23%
February 36,794          37,572          34,996          41,121          48,466           17.86% 40,521          16.39%
March 42,064          45,498          42,723          47,045          53,516           13.76% 46,358          13.38%
April 1,637            1,368            3,506            2,518            1,995             -20.79% 2,482            -24.40%
May 1,789            3,402            2,469            3,913            5,154             31.71% 3,856            25.19%
June 13,669          18,235          17,098          19,116          25,366           32.70% 18,837          25.74%
July 18,436          22,524          25,929          27,921          32,661           16.98% 27,514          15.76%
August 20,710          20,044          20,958          25,645          25,017           -2.45% 25,271          -1.02%
September 15,265          17,272          17,813          19,982          23,831           19.26% 19,690          17.38%
October 3,895            6,355            7,258            5,468            5,369             -1.80% 5,388            -0.35%
November 3,203            3,487            4,524            4,668            5,765             23.49% 4,600            20.21%
December 35,772          37,737          39,565          42,983          49,356           14.83% 42,033          14.84%
Total 224,278        244,750        245,593        274,828        314,736         14.52% 270,495        14.06%
Tax Base 11,213,910   12,237,496   12,279,634   13,741,420   15,736,820    13,524,750   

Town of Mountain Village Colorado Restaurant Tax Summary

 
 

 

 

Business license fees of $270,572 are under budget by $1,976 and over prior year $573.  $254,338 was 

remitted to MTI and $25,969 in admin fees and penalties were transferred to the General Fund. 

 

 

 

 

282



 

 
 

To:  TMVOA 

From:  Kevin Swain, Finance Director 

Date:  January 31, 2015 

Re:  Gondola Quarterly Report, December 31, 2014 

These financials reflect the revised budget as adopted at the December Town Council Meeting. They are 

unaudited and therefore subject to change. 

 

The gondola fund is $250,856 under budgeted operating expenses. Operating and capital grant funds 

are submitted as expended and are posted when received.  Due to a worker’s compensation dividend 

check, that line item in each department has been reduced.   

 

Gondola Fund - Expenditures 

 

1. Mobile Aerial Rapid Rescue System (MARRS):   

 Annual budget: $77,356 

 YTD expenditures: $71,291 

 YTD budget: $77,356 

MARRS is 8% under budget.  This is due to savings on payroll costs due to evacs and training. 

 

2. Chondola Operations and Maintenance:   

   Annual budget: $187,917 

   YTD expenditures: $162,843 

   YTD budget: $187,917 

Chondola operations expenses are under budget by $25,100. Operations salaries and wages are 

slightly over budget, as well as maintenance wages which are based on actual and offset 

maintenance departmental wages and salaries.  TSG utilities, parts and supplies, and outside labor 

are running under budget.  Utility costs are higher than prior year mainly due to the addition of 

tire bank heaters. $12,000 budgeted major repairs was unexpended. 

 

3. Gondola Operations:   

   Annual budget: $1.635 million 

   YTD expenditures: $1.565 million  

   YTD budget: $1.635 million 

Gondola operations were under budget by $69,734.  Salaries and wages are under budget $27,145, 

group insurance under $9,355, and worker’s compensation $21,177, due to the dividend check 

received. Administrative management costs were $6,611 under budget and $4,200 under prior year. 

Those costs are based on actual hours by admin personnel.  

283



 

4. Gondola Maintenance:  

   Annual budget: $1.2 million  

   YTD expenditures: $1.12 million 

   YTD budget: $1.2 million 

Gondola maintenance is below budget by $74,126 and $12,582 over prior year.  Budget variances of 

note are: Worker’s comp ($16,505), contract labor ($28,478), and parts and supplies ($10,165). 

Contract labor ($9,081) and parts and supplies ($15,722) were under prior year but salaries and 

wages ($17,881) and facility expenses ($10,300) were over prior year.     

 

5. Fixed, General, Overhead and Administration:   

 Annual budget: $543,094 

 YTD expenditures: $482,920 

 YTD budget: $543,094 

FGOA costs are $60,174 below budget.  Noteworthy budget savings include: Natural gas ($5,900), 

electricity ($43,405), and admin costs ($8,900). Also under budget are dues and fees and shuttle 

expense. 

 

6. Major Repairs and Replacements:   

   Annual Budget: $288,056  

   YTD expenditures: $272,685 

   YTD budget: $288,056 

Conveyor drives and gear motors replaced/repaired, conveyor rebuilds performed, and cabin 

window buffing has been continued.  

   

7. Capital Outlay:   

   Annual Budget: $739,500 (there are matching grant funds for a portion of these costs) 

   YTD expenditures:  $119,373 

   YTD budget: $739,500 

One snowmobile and a Snowcat have been replaced.  The Oak Street Station bathrooms were 

remodeled and came in $1,263 under budget. The main drive grant funded project was not done due 

to the securing of proper contracts and funding agreements. It is expected to be done in 2015 if 

these items can be procured. 
 

Overall Financial Performance through December 31, 2014 

 

Total gondola expenditures through this period of $2.8 million were 19% under budget due mainly 

to the main drive project.  The budget shortfall was the result of reduced costs in all operations.  

Total funding for the period of $3.8 million was primarily provided by TMVOA, with contributions 

of approximately $3.3 million(86%), and $158,550 (4%) provided by TSG from lift ticket sales, 

$325,908 (9%) in grant funding, event operations funding, $41,525 (1%), and miscellaneous 

revenues, $3,727.  

284



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014
2013 2012 2011

 Actual YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

General Fund

Revenues

Charges for Services 292,241$             175,891$        116,350$     66.15% 175,891$           (116,350)$        724,927$          431,759$          490,813$          

Contributions 33,762                53,648            (19,886)       -37.07% 53,648               19,886             29,884              32,708              13,498              

Fines and Forfeits 4,093                  6,077              (1,984)         -32.65% 6,077                 1,984               2,725                (558)                  5,156                

Interest Income 44,268                25,000            19,268        77.07% 25,000               (19,268)            (534)                  21,707              12,671              

Intergovernmental 363,555              362,529          1,026          0.28% 362,529             (1,026)              440,285            415,315            455,538            

Licenses and Permits 273,555              158,060          115,495       73.07% 158,060             (115,495)          494,317            171,777            203,660            

Miscellaneous Revenues 90,702                77,877            12,825        16.47% 77,877               (12,825)            89,642              120,072            142,781            

Taxes and Assessments 7,149,011            6,934,226       214,785       3.10% 6,934,226          (214,785)          8,517,245         7,210,930         7,842,538         

Total Revenues 8,251,187            7,793,308       457,879       5.88% 7,793,308          (457,879)          10,298,491       8,403,710         9,166,655         

Operating Expenses

Legislation & Council 18,072                21,608            (3,536)         -16.36% 21,608               3,536               20,858              8,608                10,663              

Town Manager 227,808              229,153          (1,345)         -0.59% 229,153             1,345               213,208            215,374            286,388            

Administrative Services 329,063              358,197          (29,134)       -8.13% 358,197             29,134             327,327            300,116            296,483            

Finance 766,061              767,449          (1,388)         -0.18% 767,449             1,388               761,718            760,377            788,728            

Technical 157,025              176,802          (19,777)       -11.19% 176,802             19,777             150,428            147,442            142,991            

Human Resources 251,057              288,168          (37,111)       -12.88% 288,168             37,111             261,463            243,776            234,324            

Town Attorney 437,283              454,458          (17,175)       -3.78% 454,458             17,175             395,298            438,756            441,098            

Community Relations 212,636              228,012          (15,376)       -6.74% 228,012             15,376             187,414            201,339            214,284            

Municipal Court 28,859                29,859            (1,000)         -3.35% 29,859               1,000               28,636              27,733              28,907              

Police Department 662,484              691,888          (29,404)       -4.25% 691,888             29,404             713,062            765,679            796,087            

Community Services 51,391                51,394            (3)                -0.01% 51,394               3                      52,541              45,409              46,562              

Community Grants and Contributions 79,795                86,500            (6,705)         -7.75% 86,500               6,705               66,500              91,500              103,500            

Roads and Bridges 909,908              1,011,628       (101,720)     -10.06% 1,011,628          101,720           1,537,840         948,429            739,802            

Vehicle Maintenance 432,818              469,118          (36,300)       -7.74% 469,118             36,300             429,893            476,649            466,418            

Municipal Bus/Dial-A-Ride 153,917              193,805          (39,888)       -20.58% 193,805             39,888             345,534            593,625            716,118            

Employee Shuttle 69,827                93,821            (23,994)       -25.57% 93,821               23,994             73,746              84,663              88,021              

Parks & Recreation 405,229              445,045          (39,816)       -8.95% 445,045             39,816             326,841            471,132            551,964            

Plaza and Environmental Services 1,135,911            1,266,037       (130,126)     -10.28% 1,266,037          130,126           1,129,898         1,036,132         965,803            

Public Refuse Removal and Residential Trash Billing Services 43,929                46,809            (2,880)         -6.15% 46,809               2,880               200,162            216,487            301,466            

Building/Facility Maintenance 100,407              113,968          (13,561)       -11.90% 113,968             13,561             162,205            298,395            94,705              

Community Development 5,527                  9,149              (3,622)         -39.59% 9,149                 3,622               4,533                6,594                66,025              

Building Division 186,500              196,338          (9,838)         -5.01% 196,338             9,838               168,638            160,392            182,675            

Housing Division Office 19,096                19,298            (202)            -1.05% 19,298               202                  79,348              83,533              99,978              

Planning and Zoning Division 364,727              373,504          (8,777)         -2.35% 373,504             367,977           260,043            262,310            328,255            

Contingency -                          26,025            (26,025)       -100.00% 26,025               6,929               -                        4,099                39,426              

Total Operating Expenses 7,049,330            7,648,033       (598,703)     -7.83% 7,648,033          938,807           7,897,134         7,888,549         8,030,671         

Surplus / Deficit 1,201,857            145,275          1,056,582    727.30% 145,275             (1,396,686)       2,401,357         515,161            1,135,984         

Capital Outlay 289,682              294,671          (4,989)         -1.69% 294,671             4,989               167,036            89,705              16,567              

Surplus / Deficit 912,175              (149,396)         1,061,571    -710.58% (149,396)            (1,061,571)       2,234,321         425,456            1,119,417         

Other Sources and Uses

Sale of Assets 10,568                -                     10,568        #DIV/0! -                        (10,568)            1,685                5,563                1,300                

Transfer (To) From Affordable Housing (348,409)             (330,000)         (18,409)       5.58% (330,000)            18,409             (327,349)           (277,387)           (268,308)           

Transfer (To) From Cable 180,167              165,628          14,539        8.78% 165,628             (14,539)            171,866            214,105            236,660            

Transfer (To) From Child Development (86,937)               (96,512)           9,575          -9.92% (96,512)              57,762             (72,215)             (105,643)           (128,897)           

Transfer (To) From Communications -                          8,688              (8,688)         -100.00% 8,688                 8,688               -                        -                        -                        

Transfer (To) From Capital Projects -                          -                     -                  #DIV/0! -                        (53,124)            (365,765)           -                        (2,238)               

Transfer (To) From Debt Service (357,416)             (420,330)         62,914        -14.97% (420,330)            (863,701)          410,031            96,511              83,208              

Transfer (To) From Mortgage Assistance -                          -                     -                  #DIV/0! -                        -                      -                        -                        -                        

Transfer (To) From Overhead Allocation 443,371              451,996          (8,625)         -1.91% 451,996             8,625               420,417            396,143            304,509            

Transfer (To) From Parking Services 33,477                (66,362)           99,839        -150.45% (66,362)              20,575             11,280              4,101                (114,565)           

Transfer (To) From Conference Center (154,274)             (164,018)         9,744          -5.94% (164,018)            (164,018)          (198,329)           (155,045)           (116,548)           

Transfer (To) From Tourism 53,124                13,012            40,113        308.29% 13,011.58          370,427           (65,970)             (50,127)             40,400              

Transfer (To) From Vehicle/Equipment (185,994)             (216,868)         30,874        -14.24% (216,868)            (30,874)            (36,381)             (95,587)             (223,193)           

Transfer (To) From Water/Sewer -                          -                     -                  #DIV/0! -                        -                      600,000            -                        -                        

2014

285



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014
2013 2012 2011

 Actual YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

2014

Total Other Sources and Uses (412,323)             (654,766)         242,444       -37.03% (654,766)            (652,338)          549,270            32,634              (187,672)           

Surplus / Deficit 499,853$             (804,162)$       1,304,015$  -162.16% (804,162)$          (1,713,909)$     2,783,591$       458,090$          931,745$          

Beginning Fund Balance Components Actual YTD Annual Budget

Emergency Reserve 2,676,812$          2,729,032$        

Property Tax Reserve 450,828              450,828             

Unreserved 3,509,556            3,457,333          

Beginning Fund Balance 6,637,196$          6,637,193$        

YTD Ending Fund Balance Components

Emergency Reserve 2,676,812$          2,689,410$        

Property Tax Reserve 450,828              450,828             

Health Care Premium Savings Reserve 50,000                50,000               

Facility Maint Reserve 155,000              155,000             

Unreserved 3,804,409            2,487,793          

Ending Fund Balance 7,137,048$          5,833,031$        

These financials reflect the revised budget as adopted at the December Town Council Meeting.

Revenues

Taxes & Assessments - Specific Ownership taxes collected are on budget.  Sales tax revenues are 5% over budget and 7% over prior year. 

Construction use tax is now over budget 15% but 72% below prior year.  Property taxes collected  are on budget.

Licenses & Permits -  Construction permits are over the annual budget by $59,575.  Electrical and plumbing permits are over budget $56,123.

Intergovernmental - Road and Bridge taxes are under budget and prior year 5% and 20%. 

Charges for Services - Plan review, road impact, and DRB fees ended over the revised budget.  

Fines & Forfeitures - Towing fees are under budget but traffic fines make up some of the shortfall.

Investment Income - Interest is exceeding budget and prior year.

Miscellaneous - Overall, over budget $12,825 but van rider revenues are under budget 10%. 

Contributions -  Green gondola receipts and TMVOA's employee shuttle contribution collected to date.

Top Ten Budget Variances 

Under Budget

Plaza and Environmental Services -  $130,126 Savings are mainly in electric and natural gas, plaza maintenance, supplies, and personnel expense.  

Road and Bridge - $101,720 Savings in gasoline, personnel, bridge repair, and vehicle repair.

Municipal Bus Service - $39,888 Savings are in personnel costs and gasoline.

Parks and Recreation - $39,816 Under budget in personnel and trail maintenance.

Human Resources- $37,111 Savings in  personnel costs due to a temporary vacancy, dues and fees, and life insurance costs.

Vehicle Maintenance- $36,300 Savings in personnel, general supplies and oil.

Police - $29,404 Savings in group insurance and gasoline.

Admin Services- $29,134 Savings in  communications and electric.

Employee Shuttle - $23,877 Vehicle repair and gasoline were under budget.

Technical - $19,777 Savings were realized in hardware replacement and printer maintenance.

286



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

 Actual 

YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance 

 Actual 

YTD 

 Actual 

YTD 

 Actual 

YTD 

($) (%)

Tourism Fund

Revenues

Business Licenses Fees 270,572$      271,145$      (573)$            0% 271,145$      573$             268,235$     245,933$     228,070$     

Lodging Taxes - Condos/Homes (1) 563,529        474,989        88,540          19% 474,989        (88,540)         528,648       374,588       362,378       

Lodging Taxes - Hotels/Condos (1) 638,859        580,543        58,316          10% 580,543        (58,316)         552,906       490,481       508,685       

Lodging Taxes - Prior Year 781               -                    781               #DIV/0! -                    (781)              870              7,044           -                  

Penalties and Interest 12,546          3,000            9,546            318% 3,000            (9,546)           15,372         18,578         4,416           

Restaurant Taxes 314,737        270,495        44,242          16% 270,495        (44,242)         274,828       245,428       243,948       

Restaurant Taxes - Prior Year 88                 -                    88                 #DIV/0! -                    (88)                164              1,045           -                  

Total Revenues 1,801,112     1,600,172     200,940        13% 1,600,172     (200,940)       1,641,023    1,383,097    1,347,497    

Tourism Funding

Additional Funding -                    25,000          (25,000)         -100% 25,000          25,000          100,000       105,833       -                  

Airline Guaranty Funding 898,081        782,296        115,786        15% 782,296        (115,786)       799,880       668,879       665,890       

MTI Funding 849,906        777,365        72,542          9% 777,365        (72,542)         807,113       658,512       641,207       

Total Tourism Funding 1,747,988     1,584,660     163,327        91% 1,584,660     (163,327)       1,706,993    1,433,224    1,307,097    

Surplus / Deficit 53,124          15,512          37,613          242% 15,512          (37,613)         (65,970)        (50,127)        40,400         

Administrative Fees

Audit Fees -                    2,500            (2,500)           -100% 2,500            2,500            -                  -                  -                  

Total Administrative Fees -                    2,500            (2,500)           #DIV/0! 2,500            2,500            -                  -                  -                  

Surplus / Deficit 53,124          13,012          165,827        1274% 13,012          (40,113)         (65,970)        (50,127)        40,400         

Other Sources and Uses

Transfer (To) From Other Funds (53,124)         (13,012)         (40,113)         308% (13,012)         40,113          65,970         50,127         (40,400)        

Total Other Sources and Uses (53,124)         (13,012)         (40,113)         308% (13,012)         40,113          65,970         50,127         (40,400)        

Surplus / Deficit -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                -$                

2014

287



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

 Actual 

YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Parking Services Fund

Revenues

Contributions/Shared Facility Expenses 17,461$          18,500$           (1,039)$         -6% 18,500$          1,039$          19,567$            24,419$            25,124$                

Fines and Forfeits 29,182            8,000               21,182          265% 8,000              (21,182)         361                   10,678              10,210                  

Gondola Parking Garage 140,173          103,900           36,273          35% 103,900          (36,273)         128,917            113,549            107,728                

Heritage Parking Garage 139,895          143,000           (3,105)           -2% 143,000          3,105            146,813            121,366            112,364                

Parking Meter Revenues 10,750            9,500               1,250            13% 9,500              (1,250)           11,157              11,736              11,732                  

Parking Permits 14,986            12,000             2,986            25% 12,000            (2,986)           11,580              10,475              6,166                    

Special Event Parking 41,743            36,000             5,743            16% 36,000            (5,743)           5,000                5,000                -                            

Total Revenues 394,190          330,900           63,290          19% 330,900          (63,290)         323,395            297,223            273,324                

Operating Expenses

Other Operating Expenses 614                 4,600               (3,986)           -87% 4,600              3,986            1,615                2,501                6,126                    

Personnel Expenses 122,316          134,881           (12,565)         -9% 134,881          12,565          123,051            124,910            143,901                

Gondola Parking Garage 37,705            55,592             (17,887)         -32% 55,592            17,887          38,732              35,147              44,197                  

Surface Lots 23,909            22,260             1,649            7% 22,260            (1,649)           17,084              14,744              20,619                  

Heritage Parking Garage 113,116          118,765           (5,649)           -5% 118,765          5,649            99,856              93,038              94,172                  

Contingency -                      -                       -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                        (22,019)             22,019                  

Meadows Parking 2,000              -                       2,000            #DIV/0! -                      (2,000)           1,000                1,188                810                       

Total Operating Expenses 299,660          336,098           (36,438)         -11% 336,098          36,438          281,338            249,509            331,844                

Surplus / Deficit 94,530            (5,198)              99,728          -1919% (5,198)             (99,728)         42,057              47,714              (58,520)                 

Capital

Capital 29,232            29,343             (111)              0% 29,343            111               -                        10,155              19,218                  

Surplus / Deficit 65,298            (34,541)            99,839          -289% (34,541)           (99,839)         42,057              37,559              (77,738)                 

Other Sources and Uses

Sale of Assets -                      -                       -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                        -                        -                            

Overhead Allocation (31,821)           (31,821)            -                    0% (31,821)           -                    (30,777)             (33,458)             (36,827)                 

Transfer (To) From General Fund (33,477)           66,362             (99,839)         -150% 66,362            99,839          (11,280)             (4,101)               114,565                

Total Other Sources and Uses (65,298)           34,541             (99,839)         -289% 34,541            99,839          (42,057)             (37,559)             77,738                  

Surplus / Deficit -$                    -$                     -$                  #DIV/0! -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                          

Parking revenues are over budget $63,300. HPG revenues are lagging budget but are offset by GPG and special event parking. 

Expenditures are under budget primarily due to personnel, utilities, and maintenance costs.  The net transfer to the General Fund is $65,298.

2014

288



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

 Actual YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Gondola Fund

Revenues

Event Operations Funding 5,525$             -$                     5,525$             #DIV/0! -$                     (5,525)$            11,779$               9,380$                 2,880$                 

Event Operations Funding - SMC/TOT 36,000             36,000             -                       0.00% 36,000             -                       36,000                 61,000                 36,000                 

Grant Funding 325,908           478,259           (152,351)          -31.86% 478,259           152,351           131,799               175,420               -                           

Insurance Proceeds -                       -                       -                       #DIV/0! -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           

Miscellaneous Revenues 3,169               5,000               (1,831)              -36.62% 5,000               1,831               3,775                   3,858                   2,734                   

Sale of Assets 558                  -                       558                  #DIV/0! -                       (558)                 -                           -                           -                           

TMVOA Operating Contributions 2,875,434        3,314,990        (439,556)          -13.26% 3,314,990        439,556           3,025,294            2,968,105            3,070,810            

TMVOA Capital Contributions 392,058           699,393           (307,335)          -43.94% 699,393           307,335           43,043                 191,259               173,483               

TSG 1% Lift Sales 158,550           134,230           24,320             18.12% 134,230           (24,320)            136,939               133,290               134,665               

Total Revenues 3,797,202        4,667,872        (870,670)          -18.65% 4,667,872        870,670           3,388,628            3,542,311            3,420,571            

Operating Expenses

MAARS 71,291             77,356             (6,065)              -7.84% 77,356             6,065               67,701                 73,623                 70,714                 

Chondola 162,843           187,917           (25,074)            -13.34% 187,917           25,074             150,512               156,607               189,307               

Grant Success Fees 37,702             37,702             -                       0.00% 37,702             -                       27,463                 4,498                   -                           

Operations 1,528,082        1,597,816        (69,734)            -4.36% 1,597,816        69,734             1,502,787            1,538,241            1,539,613            

Maintenance 1,122,305        1,196,431        (74,126)            -6.20% 1,196,431        74,126             1,109,723            1,107,875            1,036,546            

FGOA 482,920           543,094           (60,174)            -11.08% 543,094           60,174             487,400               470,208               410,908               

Major Repairs and Replacements 272,685           288,056           (15,371)            -5.34% 288,056           15,371             15,892                 176,298               173,483               

Contingency -                       -                       -                       #DIV/0! -                       -                       -                           -                           -                           

Total Operating Expenses 3,677,829        3,928,372        (250,543)          -6.38% 3,928,372        250,543           3,361,477            3,527,350            3,420,571            

Surplus / Deficit 119,373           739,500           (620,127)          -83.86% 739,500           27,151                 14,961                 -                           

Capital

Capital Outlay 119,373           739,500           (620,127)          -83.86% 739,500           620,127           27,151                 14,961                 -                           

Surplus / Deficit -$                     -$                     -$                     #DIV/0! -$                     -$                         -$                         -$                         

2014

289



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

 Actual 

YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Child Development Fund

Revenues

Daycare Fees 245,405$      250,068$      (4,663)           -1.86% 250,068$         4,663$           242,243$           218,635$           209,334$            

Fundraising Revenues - Daycare 10,136           6,000             4,136             68.93% 6,000               (4,136)           10,967               11,545               7,261                  

Fundraising Revenues - Preschool 3,980             6,000             (2,020)           -1.11% 6,000               (165,473)       3,150                 -                         -                          

Grant Revenues - Daycare 24,643           30,000           (5,357)           -17.86% 30,000             5,357             27,772               28,793               33,795                

Grant Revenues - Preschool 10,673           14,620           (3,947)           -27.00% 14,620             3,947             11,703               11,306               7,003                  

Preschool Fees 171,473        181,475        (10,002)         -166.70% 181,475           177,495        172,878             174,484             142,677              

Total Revenues 466,310        488,163        (21,853)         -4.48% 488,163           21,853           468,713             444,763             400,070              

Operating Expenses

Daycare Contingency -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                       -                    -                         -                         -                          

Daycare Other Expense 57,240           76,319           (19,079)         -25.00% 76,319             19,079           69,870               64,681               66,336                

Daycare Personnel Expense 310,570        325,300        (14,730)         -4.53% 325,300           14,730           310,979             324,245             346,279              

Preschool Contingency -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                       -                    -                         -                         -                          

Preschool Other Expense 42,767           46,939           (4,172)           -8.89% 46,939             4,172             34,847               34,580               32,514                

Preschool Personnel Expense 142,670        136,117        6,553             4.81% 136,117           (6,553)           125,232             126,900             101,033              

Total Operating Expenses 553,247        584,675        (31,428)         -5.38% 584,675           31,428           540,928             550,406             546,162              

Surplus / Deficit (86,937)         (96,512)         9,575             -9.92% (96,512)           (72,215)              (105,643)            (146,092)            

Capital

Preschool Capital Outlay -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                       -                    -                         -                         -                          

Total Capital -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                       -                    -                         -                         -                          

Surplus / Deficit (86,937)         (96,512)         9,575             -9.92% (96,512)           (72,215)              (105,643)            (146,092)            

Other Sources and Uses

Contributions -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                       -                    -                         -                         -                          

Transfer (To) From General Fund 86,937           96,512           9,575             9.92% 96,512             9,575             72,215               105,643             128,897              

Total Other Sources and Uses 86,937           96,512           9,575             9.92% 96,512             9,575             72,215               105,643             128,897              

Surplus / Deficit -$                  -$                  -$                  #DIV/0! -$                     -$                       -$                       (17,195)$            

Child Development revenues are $20,650 under budget because of slow daycare and preschool fees. Grant revenues came in short of expectations.

Operating expenses are $31,400 under budget due mainly to daycare personnel costs although preschool employee costs are over budget, caused by 

personnel allocations.  Other savings are in the scholarship program, which is grant funded, and travel and education,  The fund has required $86,937

in funding from the General Fund compared to a budget of $96,512.

2014

290



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Water & Sewer Fund

Revenues

Mountain Village Water and Sewer 2,197,882$         2,065,502$         132,380$            6.41% 2,065,502$         (132,380)$          2,214,623$         2,074,019$         2,064,745$               

Other Revenues 8,993                  24,050                (15,057)              -62.61% 24,050                15,057                17,143                13,555                12,901                      

Ski Ranches Water 130,865              124,224              6,641                  5.35% 124,224              (6,641)                124,938              124,433              123,793                    

Skyfield Water 24,127                18,595                5,532                  29.75% 18,595                (5,532)                22,750                21,525                18,983                      

Total Revenues 2,361,867           2,232,371           129,496              5.80% 2,232,371           (129,496)            2,379,454           2,233,532           2,220,422                 

Operating Expenses

Mountain Village Sewer 414,214              385,871              28,343                7.35% 385,871              (28,343)              382,519              371,224              350,028                    

Mountain Village Water 861,493              996,732              (135,239)            -13.57% 996,732              135,239              845,160              896,960              906,368                    

Ski Ranches Water 20,389                48,389                (28,000)              -57.86% 48,389                28,000                30,481                30,554                65,726                      

Contingency -                         28,620                (28,620)              -100.00% 28,620                28,620                -                         -                         -                               

Total Operating Expenses 1,296,096           1,459,612           (163,516)            -11.20% 1,459,612           163,516              1,258,160           1,298,738           1,322,122                 

Surplus / Deficit 1,065,771           772,759              293,012              37.92% 772,759              1,121,294           934,794              898,300                    

Capital

Capital Outlay 330,931              367,388              (36,457)              NaN 367,388              36,457                448,822              203,359              134,132                    

Surplus / Deficit 734,840              405,371              329,469              81.28% 405,371              672,472              731,435              764,168                    

Other Sources and Uses

Overhead Allocation Transfer (134,455)            (134,445)            10                       -0.01% (134,445)            10                       (119,016)            (113,070)            (127,020)                  

Mountain Village Tap Fees 27,043                33,075                6,032                  18.24% 33,075                6,032                  171,725              113,876              15,356                      

Sale of Assets -                         -                         -                         #DIV/0! -                         -                         -                         -                         -                               

Ski Ranches Tap Fees 10,718                5,000                  (5,718)                -114.36% 5,000                  (5,718)                5,000                  10,697                5,000                        

Skyfield Tap Fees -                         2,000                  2,000                  100.00% 2,000                  2,000                  -                         -                         -                               

Telski Tap Fee/Water  Credit (116,762)            (116,762)            -                         0.00% (116,762)            -                         (112,271)            (107,953)            (103,801)                  

Transfer (To) From General Fund -                         -                         -                         #DIV/0! -                         -                         (600,000)            -                         -                               

Total Other Sources and Uses (213,456)            (211,132)            2,324                  -1.10% (211,132)            2,324                  (654,562)            (96,450)              (210,465)                  

Surplus / Deficit 521,384$            194,239$            327,145$            168.42% 194,239$            17,910$              634,985$            553,703$                  

Water and sewer base fees and irrigation fees are exceeded budget (1% and 39%), although irrigation fees are slightly behind  last year.  Excess water fees are over budget (30%).  

Snowmaking fees are $22,000 over budget but $118,000 under prior year.  Ski Ranches revenues are over budget due to base fees.  Skyfield revenues are also over budget in excess 

water.  Other revenues are under budget in late fees, inspections, water meter sales, and maintenance revenues.  Sewer expenditures are over budget due mainly to shared costs of the

treatment facility. MV water is under budget due to electricity and legal.  Ski Ranches water costs are under budget with savings in personnel costs, R&M,  and electric.  Capital costs 

include the regional sewer charge for the solar panels and shared costs, water rights acquisition, a leak detection system, a power generator, the San Joaquin well, and Wapiti water line.

2014

291



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

 Actual 

YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Cable Fund

Revenues

Cable User Fees 793,941$      816,489$      (22,548)$       -2.76% 816,489$        22,548$          849,571$          834,641$          799,861$          

Channel Revenues 234               416               (182)              -43.75% 416                 182                 488                   384                   452                   

Internet User Fees 708,974        696,635        12,339          1.77% 696,635          (12,339)           609,267            568,401            543,853            

Other Revenues 86,595          93,088          (6,493)           -6.98% 93,088            57,346            79,019              86,276              108,885            

Phone Service Fees 35,742          33,246          2,496            7.51% 33,246            (53,349)           34,256              32,458              19,936              

Total Revenues 1,625,486     1,639,874     (14,388)         -0.88% 1,639,874       14,388            1,572,601         1,522,160         1,472,987         

Operating Expenses

Cable Direct Costs 572,187        571,724        463               0.08% 571,724          (463)                560,864            536,171            499,243            

Phone Service Costs 24,505          23,580          925               3.92% 23,580            (925)                22,659              21,177              12,715              

Internet Direct Costs 108,000        108,000        -                   0.00% 108,000          -                      102,358            91,272              91,348              

Cable Operations 532,195        556,606        (24,411)         -4.39% 556,606          24,411            528,395            506,551            479,322            

Contingency -                   3,000            (3,000)           -100.00% 3,000              3,000              -                        -                        -                        

Total Operating Expenses 1,236,887     1,262,910     (26,023)         -2.06% 1,262,910       26,023            1,214,276         1,155,171         1,082,628         

Surplus / Deficit 388,599        376,964        11,635          3.09% 376,964          358,325            366,989            390,359            

Capital

Capital Outlay 42,096          45,000          (2,904)           -6.45% 45,000            2,904              105,431            19,897              13,902              

Surplus / Deficit 346,503        331,964        14,539          4.38% 331,964          252,894            347,092            376,457            

Other Sources and Uses

Sale of Assets -                   -                   -                   #DIV/0! -                      -                      -                        -                        7,593                

Transfer (To) From General Fund (180,167)       (165,628)       (14,539)         8.78% (165,628)         14,539            (171,866)           (214,105)           (236,660)           

Overhead Allocation Transfer (116,336)       (116,336)       -                   0.00% (116,336)         -                      (106,028)           (97,987)             (97,390)             

Total Other Sources and Uses (296,503)       (281,964)       (14,539)         5.16% (281,964)         14,539            (277,894)           (312,092)           (326,457)           

Surplus / Deficit 50,000$        50,000$        -$                 0.00% 50,000$          (25,000)$           35,000$            50,000$            

Beginning Fund Balance 60,000$        60,000$        -$                 

Ending Fund Balance 110,000$      110,000$      -$                 

Cable user revenues are under budget (1%) and are over prior year (3%).  Residential basic, premium and digital fees are under budget.  Internet revenues are over 

budget 1.8% and 16% over prior year.  Other revenues are under budget 7% due mainly to parts sales, labor, and equipment rental.  Direct costs for cable are just over 

budget and over prior year due to increasing programming costs.  Internet costs are on budget and over prior year due to increased bandwidth.  Phone service 

revenues are over budget by 7.5%, while phone service expenses are slightly over budget by 4%.  Phone revenues have increased 4% over prior year and expenses are 

over prior year by 8%.  Cable operating expenses are under budget with savings in head end and plant R&M, DCT's, and salaries and wages. The cable fund has 

returned $296,5037 to the general fund including the overhead allocation, leaving $50,000 in the fund for future capital as budgeted.  A pick-up truck has been 

replaced and additional receivers have been purchased.

2014

292



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

 Actual 

YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Telluride Conference Center Fund

Revenues

Beverage Revenues -$                  -$                 -$                  #DIV/0! -$                    -$                  -$                       -$                      -$                      

Catering Revenues -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Facility Rental -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Operating/Other Revenues 920               -                    920               #DIV/0! -                      (920)              -                         -                        14,200              

Total Revenues 920               -                    920               #DIV/0! -                      (920)              -                         -                        14,200              

Operating Expenses

Wait Staff -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Food Operations -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Beverage Operations -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

General Operations -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    12,271               6,156                4,924                

Administration 78,598          79,018          (420)              -0.53% 79,018            420               59,910               67,996              75,370              

Marketing 36,010          65,000          (28,990)         -44.60% 65,000            28,990          43,553               65,368              41,749              

Contingency -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Total Operating Expenses 114,608        144,018        (29,410)         -20.42% 144,018          29,410          115,734             139,520            122,043            

Surplus / Deficit (113,688)       (144,018)      30,330          -21.06% (144,018)         (115,734)           (139,520)          (107,843)          

Capital Outlay/ Major R&R 40,586          20,000          20,586          102.93% 20,000            (20,586)         82,595               15,525              8,705                

Surplus / Deficit (154,274)       (164,018)      9,744            -5.94% (164,018)         (198,329)           (155,045)          (116,548)          

Other Sources and Uses

Damage Receipts -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Insurance Proceeds -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Sale of Assets -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Transfer (To) From General Fund 154,274        164,018        (9,744)           -5.94% 164,018          9,744            198,329             155,045            116,548            

Overhead Allocation Transfer -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Total Other Sources and Uses 154,274        164,018        (9,744)           74.00% 164,018          9,744            198,329             155,045            116,548            

Surplus / Deficit -$                  -$                 -$                  #DIV/0! -$                    -$                       -$                      -$                      

Expenses include HOA dues, equipment, and marketing.

2014

293



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

 Actual 

YTD 

 Budget 

YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Affordable  Housing Development Fund

Revenues

Contributions -$                  -$                  -$                  #DIV/0! -$                    -$                  -$                      -$                      -$                      

Grant Proceeds -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                        -                        -                        

Rental Income 12,155          12,228          73                 0.60% 12,228            21,635              22,028              13,842              

Sales Proceeds -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    (47,628)             -                        -                        

Total Revenues 12,155          12,228          73                 0.60% 12,228            -                    (25,993)             22,028              13,842              

Operating Expenses

Coyote Court -                    5,000            (5,000)           -100.00% 5,000              5,000            4,274                8,245                183,360            

RHA Funding - Moved in 2014 from the GF 69,280          69,280          -                    0.00% 69,280            -                    -                        -                        596,754            

Timberview -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    -                        -                        1,080,756          

Sunshine Valley -                    -                    -                    #DIV/0! -                      -                    13,558              7,343                9,587                

Foreclosure Properties 942               7,181            (6,239)           -86.88% 7,181              6,239            8,856                11,664              9,720                

Density bank 8,963            8,963            0                   0.00% 8,963              (0)                  

Fairway Four 8,856            8,856            -                    0.00% 8,856              -                    -                        -                        -                        

Total Operating Expenses 88,041          99,280          (11,239)         -11.32% 99,280            11,239          26,688              27,252              1,880,177          

Surplus / Deficit (75,886)         (87,052)         (11,166)         12.83% (87,052)           (11,239)         (52,681)             (5,224)               (1,866,335)        

Other Sources and Uses

Transfer (To) From MAP -                    (24,428)         (24,428)         100.00% (24,428)           -                    (14,000)             -                        -                        

Transfer (To) From General Fund - Sales Tax 348,409        330,000        (18,409)         -5.58% 330,000          (18,409)         327,349            277,387            268,308            

Transfer (To) From Capital Projects Fund (1) (22,191)         (61,570)         (39,379)         63.96% (61,570)           (39,379)         -                        -                        -                        

Transfer (To) From VCA (2) (33,319)         (111,854)       (78,535)         70.21% (111,854)         -                    (13,663)             (137,681)           (102,493)           

Total Other Sources and Uses 292,898        132,148        (160,750)       -121.64% 132,148          (57,788)         299,686            139,706            165,815            

Surplus / Deficit 217,012$      45,096$        149,585$      331.70% 45,096$          (69,026)$       247,005$           134,482$           (1,700,520)$      

Beginning Fund Equity Balance 763,727$      763,727$      -$                  

Ending Equity Fund Balance 980,739$      808,823$      171,916$      

1. For Meadows Improvement Plan

2. To help fund the community garden and basketball court in 2014.

Expenses consist of HOA dues on town owned property and the Regional Housing Authority's 2014 funding.

2014

294



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014

2013 2012 2011

Actual Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget

Village Court Apartments YTD YTD Vary ($) Var (%) Budget Balance

Operating Revenues

  Rental Income 1,941,605$       1,943,231$         (1,626)$              0% 1,943,231$        1,626$               1,766,985$            1,677,183$            1,708,924$            

  Other Operating Income 382,641            369,627              13,014               4% 369,627             (13,014)              362,903                 330,175                 287,342                 

  Less: Allowance for Bad Debt (12,918)             (12,918)              -                        0% (12,918)              -                         (806)                       (7,587)                    (2,491)                    

    Total Operating Revenue 2,311,328         2,299,940           11,388               0% 2,299,940          (11,388)              2,129,082              1,999,771              1,993,775              

Operating Expenses

  Office Operations 173,307            178,753              5,447                 3% 178,753             5,447                 180,891                 172,632                 168,550                 

  General and Administrative 109,656            119,275              9,619                 8% 119,275             9,619                 118,131                 107,089                 111,888                 

  Utilities 362,007            408,531              46,524               11% 408,531             46,524               387,210                 361,856                 398,705                 

  Repair and Maintenance 347,216            371,985              24,769               7% 371,985             24,769               362,517                 354,371                 303,101                 

  Major Repairs and Replacement 206,805            234,471              27,666               12% 234,471             27,666               283,011                 120,508                 185,112                 

  Contingency -                       12,509               12,509               0% 12,509               12,509               -                              -  - 

    Total Operating Expenses 1,198,991         1,325,524           126,533             10% 1,325,524          126,533              1,331,760              1,116,455              1,167,355              

Surplus / (Deficit) After Operations 1,112,337         974,416              137,921             14% 974,416             797,322                 883,316                 826,420                 

Non-Operating (Income) / Expense

  Investment Earning (179)                  (1,500)                (1,321)                -88% (1,500)                (1,321)                (470)                       (929)                       (905)                       

  Debt Service, Interest 249,743            248,558              (1,185)                0% 248,558             (1,185)                266,902                 272,229                 293,179                 

  Debt Service, Fees 593,657            587,633              (6,024)                -1% 587,633             (6,024)                212,244                 214,519                 218,478                 

  Debt Service, Principal 185,801            185,877              76                      0% 185,877             76                      224,004                 210,833                 201,795                 

    Total Non-Operating (Income) / Expense 1,029,022         1,020,568           (8,454)                -1% 1,020,568          (8,454)                702,680                 696,652                 712,546                 

Surplus / (Deficit) Before Capital 83,316              (46,152)              129,468             -281% (46,152)              94,642                   186,664                 113,873                 

  Capital Spending -                       -                         -                        #DIV/0! -                        -                         -                             383,342                 1,021,836              

Surplus / (Deficit) 83,316              (46,152)              129,468             -281% (46,152)              94,642                   (196,678)                (907,962)                

Other Sources / (Uses)

Transfer (To)/From General Fund (116,635)           (116,385)            (250)                  0% (116,385)            (116,385)            (108,306)                (101,252)                -                             

New Loan Proceeds -                       50,683               50,683               

Sale of Assets -                       -                         -                        0% -                        -                         -                             -                             (13,710)                  

Grant Revenues -                       -                         -                        0% -                        (33,319)              -                             147,708                 732,292                 

Transfer From AHDF 33,319              111,854              (78,535)              0% 111,854             195,170              13,663                   137,681                 102,493                 

    Total Other Sources / (Uses) (83,316)             46,152               (78,785)              0% 46,152               161,851              (94,643)                  184,138                 821,074                 

Surplus / (Deficit) -                       -                         -                        #DIV/0! -                        -                             (12,540)                  (86,888)                  

Beginning Working Capital -                       -                         -                        #DIV/0! -                        

Ending Working Capital -$                  -$                   -$                  #DIV/0! -$                  

Rent revenues are at budget after 2014 revisions have been made, they are over prior year 10%. Other revenues are over budget 4% and over prior year 5% due mainly to other miscellaneous 

revenues which includes a SMPA rebate for LED lighting and utility billings.  Office operations are under budget 3%.  Group insurance and housing allowance are under budget.  General 

and administrative is under budget due to property insurance and tenant damages.  Savings in utilities (11%) is mainly in electricity.  Maintenance is over in fire system repairs but under in 

contratct labor. MR&R is under budget mainly in cabinet replacement and parking lot expense. Expenses include LED lighting replacement, cabinet replacement,  appliances, and some carpet 

replacement.  Operating expenditures of $1.2 million budget were $126,533 under budget. 

2014

Actual Actual Actual

295



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014 2013 2012 2011

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Debt Service Fund

Revenues

Abatements -$                          -$                      -$                      #DIV/0! -$                         -$                      -$                              -$                              32,068$                    

Contributions 204,425                203,740             685                    0.34% 203,740               (685)                  203,425                    207,425                    228,217                    

Miscellaneous Revenue -                            -                        -                        #DIV/0! -                           -                        -                                235                           -                                

Property Taxes 3,536,181             3,537,991          (1,810)               -0.05% 3,537,991            1,810                 3,426,649                 3,431,494                 3,232,592                 

Reserve/Capital/Liquidity Interest 10,582                  5,910                 4,672                 79.05% 5,910                   (4,672)               9,655                        11,898                      11,951                      

Specific Ownership Taxes 142,584                79,070               63,514               80.33% 79,070                 (63,514)             115,031                    96,511                      83,208                      

Total Revenues 3,893,773             3,826,711          67,062               140.00% 3,826,711            (67,062)             3,754,760                 3,747,563                 3,588,036                 

Debt Service

2001/2011 Bonds - Gondola - Paid by contributions from TMVOA and TSG

2001/2011 Bond Issue - Interest 99,425                  99,425               -                        94.69% 99,425                 -                        103,425                    107,425                    103,216                    

2001/2011 Bond Issue - Principal 105,000                105,000             -                        #DIV/0! 105,000               -                        100,000                    100,000                    125,000                    

2002 Bonds - Water/Sewer/Parking (refunding 1992) - 77.5% Water/Sewer - 22.5% Parking

2002 Bond Issue - Interest 63,125                  -                        63,125               #DIV/0! -                           (63,125)             -                                3,610                        34,875                      

2002 Bond Issue - Principal -                            -                        -                        #DIV/0! -                           -                        -                                95,000                      845,000                    

2005 Bonds - Telluride Conference Center - (refunding portion of 1998 )

2005 Bond Issue - Interest 63,125                  126,250             (63,125)             21.58% 126,250               63,125               152,050                    173,850                    194,450                    

2005 Bond Issue - Principal 585,000                585,000             -                        #DIV/0! 585,000               -                        645,000                    545,000                    515,000                    

2014 Bonds - Heritage Parking 

2014 Bond Issue - Interest 373,388                373,388             -                        169.72% 373,388               -                        381,788                    389,988                    397,788                    

2014 Bond Issue - Principal 220,000                220,000             -                        #DIV/0! 220,000               -                        210,000                    205,000                    195,000                    

2007 Bonds - Water/Sewer (refunding 1997)

2007 Bond Issue - Interest 300,863                300,863             -                        20.12% 300,863               -                        346,988                    391,425                    399,425                    

2007 Bond Issue - Principal 1,495,000             1,495,000          -                        #DIV/0! 1,495,000            -                        1,230,000                 1,185,000                 200,000                    

2009 Bonds - Telluride Conference Center (refunding 1998 bonds)

2009 Bond Issue - Interest 41,300                  41,300               -                        14.75% 41,300                 -                        49,050                      55,800                      61,000                      

2009 Bond Issue - Principal 280,000                280,000             -                        7.72% 280,000               -                        310,000                    270,000                    260,000                    

Total Debt Service 3,626,226             3,626,226          -                        0.00% 3,626,226            -                        3,528,301                 3,522,098                 3,330,754                 

Surplus / (Deficit) 267,547                200,485             67,062               33.45% 200,485               226,459                    225,465                    257,282                    

Operating Expenses

Administrative Fees 6,925                    17,000               (10,075)             -59.26% 17,000                 10,075               1,750                        11,530                      14,341                      

County Treasurer Collection Fees 106,291                104,017             2,274                 2.19% 104,017               (2,274)               103,030                    103,382                    98,502                      

Total Operating Expenses 113,216                121,017             (7,801)               -6.45% 121,017               7,801                 104,780                    114,912                    112,843                    

Surplus / (Deficit) 154,331                79,468               74,863               94.20% 79,468                 121,679                    110,553                    144,439                    

2014

296



Town of Mountain Village

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report

December 2014 2013 2012 2011

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD 

 Budget 

Variance  

Budget 

Variance 

 Annual 

Budget 

 Budget 

Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Debt Service Fund

2014

Other Sources and Uses

Transfer (To) From General Fund (142,584)               (79,070)             (63,514)             80.33% (79,070)                63,514               (115,031)                   (96,511)                     (83,208)                     

Transfer (To) From Other Funds 500,000                499,400             -                        0.00% 499,400               (600)                  (295,000)                   (37,500)                     -                                

Bond Premiums (70,588)                 -                        -                        #DIV/0! -                           70,588               -                                -                                -                                

Proceeds From Bond Issuance (500,000)               (500,000)           -                        0.00% (500,000)              -                        -                                -                                -                                

Total Other Sources and Uses (213,173)               (79,670)             (63,514)             79.72% (79,670)                133,503             (410,031)                   (134,011)                   (83,208)                     

Surplus / (Deficit) (58,842)$          (202)$            11,348$        -5617.99% (202)$              (288,352)$           (23,458)$             61,231$               

Beginning Fund Balance 734,652$         737,976$      (3,324)$         

Ending Fund Balance 675,810$         737,774$      (61,964)$       

297



2014 Financial Planning Management Summary* - Qtr 4

* This summary is a combined town revenue and expenditure summary not prepared in accordance with governmental budgeting and accounting standards, but rather to provide a summary look at the actual revenue and expenditures with debt service allocated to the appropriate fund or operation.

Non-major Funds 

General 

Fund

Vehicle 

Acquisition

Debt 

Service 

Fund

Capital 

Projects

Parking 

Services Water/Sewer Cable TCC VCA

Child 

Development/Housing 

Authority Total

Percentage 

of Total Tourism

Historical 

Museum Gondola

2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 Grand Total

Inflows

Revenues 8,251,187$   224,000$   142,584$    123,418$    394,190$       2,361,867$    1,625,486$    920$              2,324,246$    484,037$                   15,931,935$  1,801,112$    88,343$         3,797,202$    21,618,592$  

Debt Service Income

Property Tax (Income) -                    -                 -                  -                  1,591,281      1,237,663      -                     707,236         -                     -                                 3,536,181      -                     -                     -                     3,536,181      
Other Income -                    -                 -                  -                  4,762             3,704             -                     2,116             179                -                                 10,761           -                     -                     204,425         215,186         

Total Debt Service Income -                    -                 -                  -                  1,596,043      1,241,367      -                     709,353         179                -                                 3,546,942      -                     -                     204,425         3,751,367      

Inflow Subtotal (Revenues) 8,251,187     224,000     142,584      123,418      1,990,233      3,603,234      1,625,486      710,273         2,324,425      484,037                     19,478,877    -  1,801,112      88,343           4,001,627      25,369,959    

Other Sources and Uses (Inflows)

Interfund Transfers In 710,139        185,994     500,000      54,221        -                     -                     -                     154,274         33,319           435,346                     2,073,293      -                     -                     -                     2,073,293      
Tap Fees -                    -                 -                  -                  -                     37,761           -                     -                     -                     -                                 37,761           -                     -                     -                     37,761           
Sale of Assets 10,568          -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                                 10,568           -                     -                     -                     10,568           

Other Sources and Uses (Inflows) Total 720,707        185,994     500,000      54,221        -                     37,761           -                     154,274         33,319           435,346                     2,121,622      -                     -                     -                     2,121,622      

Total Inflows 8,971,894     409,994     642,584      177,639      1,990,233      3,640,995      1,625,486      864,547         2,357,744      919,383                     21,600,499    1,801,112      88,343           4,001,627      27,491,581    

Outflows

Operating Expense

Cable, Phone, and Internet Service Delivery Costs -                    -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     726,935         -                     -                     -                                 726,935         6.13% . -                     -                     726,935         
Consulting, Professional Services, & Comp Plan 128,934        -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     2,199             -                     14,483           1,125                         146,741         1.24% -                     -                     59,717           206,458         
Dues, Fees, and Licenses 43,667          3,360         -                  -                  -                     1,960             661                78,598           40,166           18,282                       186,694         1.58% -                     1,770             11,536           200,000         
Environmental Projects 41,090          -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     -                     -                     70,819           -                                 111,909         0.94% -                     -                     -                     111,909         
Equipment and Vehicle Maintenance 122,746        -                 -                  -                  -                     38,519           39,611           -                     7,829             -                                 208,705         1.76% -                     -                     8,366             217,071         
Fuel (Vehicles) 156,231        -                 -                  -                  566                10,834           3,908             -                     4,541             -                                 176,080         1.49% -                     -                     6,182             182,262         
Funding Support to Other Agencies 79,795          -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     25,750           -                     -                     93,076                       198,621         1.68% 898,081         86,573           -                     1,183,275      
Government Buildings and Facility Expense 102,651        -                 -                  -                  106,802         2,211             2,347             -                     178,643         36,972                       429,626         3.62% -                     -                     50,031           479,657         
Information Technology 157,025        -                 -                  -                  2,502             -                     30,401           -                     3,063             -                                 192,991         1.63% -                     -                     3,840             196,831         
Legal Services 417,770        -                 -                  -                  -                     8,750             -                     -                     -                     -                                 426,520         3.60% -                     -                     3,203             429,723         
Marketing, Public Communications, and Regional Promotion 102,523        -                 -                  -                  -                     -                     717                36,010           1,680             -                                 140,930         1.19% 849,906         -                     -                     990,836         
Other Expenses 505,529        -                 -                  -                  13,451           -                     -                     -                     52,967           9,781                         581,728         4.91% -                     -                     80,598           662,327         
Personnel Expense 4,261,660     -                 -                  -                  122,316         474,620         330,205         -                     393,534         453,817                     6,036,152      50.92% -                     -                     2,534,354      8,570,507      
Property Insurance 105,108        -                 -                  -                  -                     12,644           8,242             -                     68,803           -                                 194,797         1.64% -                     -                     41,421           236,218         
Road, Bridge, and Parking Lot Paving, Striping, and Repair 302,721        -                 -                  -                  16,411           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                                 319,132         2.69% -                     -                     -                     319,132         
Supplies, Parts and Materials 122,283        -                 -                  -                  16,746           38,878           37,663           -                     4,478             16,542                       236,590         2.00% -                     -                     190,484         427,074         
Travel, Education, and Conferences 33,930          -                 -                  -                  -                     2,443             4,135             -                     901                -                                 41,409           0.35% -                     -                     7,924             49,333           
Utilities-W/S, Electric, Natural Gas, Internet, Phone Services 365,667        -                 -                  -                  20,866           280,169         24,113           -                     370,001         11,693                       1,072,509      9.05% -                     -                     350,965         1,423,474      
Water/Sewer Service Delivery -                    -                 -                  -                  -                     425,070         -                     -                     -                     -                                 425,070         3.59% -                     -                     -                     425,070         

Total Expense 7,049,330     3,360         -                  -                  299,660         1,296,098      1,236,887      114,608         1,211,908      641,288                     11,853,139    100.00% 1,747,987      88,343           3,348,621      17,038,091    

Capital 289,682        367,072     -                  145,609      - 29,232           330,931         42,096           40,586           -                     -                                 1,245,209      -                     -                     404,457         1,649,666      

Debt Service Expense

Principal/Interest -                    -                 -                  -                  607,591         1,844,785      -                     969,425         435,544         -                                 3,857,345      -                     -                     204,425         4,061,770      
Other Admin Fees -                    -                 -                  -                  50,947           39,626           -                     22,643           593,657         -                                 706,873         -                     -                     -                     706,873         

Total Debt Service Costs -                    -                 -                  -                  658,538         1,884,411      -                     992,068         1,029,201      -                                 4,564,218      -                     -                     204,425         4,768,643      

Outflows (Expenses) Subtotal 7,339,012     370,432     -                  145,609      987,430         3,511,440      1,278,983      1,147,262      2,241,109      641,288                     17,662,566    1,747,987      88,343           3,957,503      23,456,400    

Other Sources and Uses (Outflows)

Interfund Transfers Out 1,133,030     -                 142,584      -                  65,298           134,455         296,503         -                     116,635         87,540                       1,976,045      53,125           44,124           2,073,294      
Water/Sewer Water and Tap Fee Credits -                    -                 -                  -                  -                     116,762         -                     -                     -                     . 116,762         -                     -                     -                     116,762         

Other Sources and Uses Total (Outflows) 1,133,030     -                 142,584      -                  65,298           251,217         296,503         -                     116,635         87,540                       2,092,807      53,125           -                     44,124           2,190,056      

Total Outflows 8,472,042     370,432     142,584      145,609      1,052,728      3,762,657      1,575,486      1,147,262      2,357,744      728,828                     19,755,373    1,801,112      88,343           4,001,627      25,646,456    

Net Budget Surplus (Deficit) 499,852        39,562       500,000      32,030        937,505         (121,662)        50,000           (282,716)        -                     190,555                     1,845,127      -                     -                     -                     1,845,126      

Total Beginning Fund Balance - Governmental Funds Only 6,637,196     20,346       734,652      -                  7,392,193      -                     -                     -                     7,392,193      

Total Ending Fund Balance - Governmental Funds Only 7,137,048$   59,907$     1,234,652$ 32,030$      8,463,637$    -$                   -$                   -$                   8,463,637$    

Outstanding Debt (end of year) -$                 -$               -$               -$               8,290,000$   6,380,000$   -$                  3,700,000$   13,492,350$ -$                              31,862,350$ -$                  -$                  2,700,000$   34,562,350$ 

Governmental Funds Enterprise (Business-Type) Funds Governmental Pass Through Funds 

Special Revenue Funds

298



Agenda item 17 
   J. David Reed P.C. 

Memo 
To: Mayor Jansen and Town Council 
From: James Mahoney 

Date: February 12, 2015 

Re: Boulder’s Zoning Violations - Update  

A request was made to update Town Council on where our office and Town staff is 
regarding the Boulder’s and potential zoning violations related to potential illegal 
accessory apartments.   
 
I will give you some background into where we started and where we are at.  Late 
in 2012 the Town was approached by a resident in the Boulder’s alleging that there 
were illegal accessory apartments in multiple homes within the Boulder’s 
subdivision.  The Town looked into the matter and concluded that it was likely that 
such accessory apartments existed.  However, the Town staff wanted to make sure 
that this was an issue that the Town Council wanted pursued, rather than jump into 
enforcement.  Therefore, Town staff conducted a work session with Town Council 
on proposed code changes that would allow for the existence and regulation of 
accessory apartments.  Town Council directed staff to investigate further and 
enforce if necessary rather than change codes to allow for accessory apartments.  
This process took into 2013 to get such direction.   
 
In the spring/summer of 2013 the Town investigated by speaking with the 
complaining party to get a feel for what units in the Boulder’s may have accessory 
apartments.  After this investigation it was determined that while these units may 
exist, there would likely be insufficient grounds for a search warrant, thus, the Town 
asked for voluntary inspections of properties.  These voluntary inspections were 
granted by the property owners, although it took some time to coordinate and 
complete.   
 
After concluding these inspection and evaluating them in light of Town records and 
approvals, in the spring of 2014, Town staff made the determination that there were 
several types of accessory apartments within the Boulders.  All had full to semi full 

299



kitchens, but the differences were in the access and lock off capability.  Some were 
basement areas that were commingled with the remainder of the houses and some 
were fully locked off and accessible through completely separate entrances.  The 
former was determined to be a legal non-conforming use that could remain in place 
so long as no lock off facilities or separate entrances was ever added.  These were 
deemed to be “Mother in Law Units”.  The later were deemed to be illegal 
accessory apartments that could no longer be rented (Separate Access Unit).  Letters 
to owners of Mother in Law Units and Separate Access Unit owners was sent in 
May of 2014.  The letter to Separate Access Unit owners demanded that such units 
cease being rented.   
 
Several months later, the Town was approached by Mr. Daniel Zemke as the 
attorney for the owners of the Separate Access Unit owners saying they would like 
to discuss the determination.  We discussed the determination and ways to resolve 
the matter without going to court and have been in those discussions for the past 4-6 
months.  We currently have a potential settlement which would require the owners 
of the Separate Access Units to make physical changes to their units to essentially 
change the layout so that they are in line with the Mother in Law units.  We are 
working through the details of what those changes are, so it would be inappropriate 
to comment as to what those are going to be as it is an ongoing settlement 
discussion at this point in time.   
 
It is also important to note that while our office and Town staff has determined that 
there are improper accessory apartments, until a court of competent jurisdiction 
makes that determination it is not a conclusive determination and there are many 
factors beyond the Town’s position that would play into a court case of such nature 
making any outcome uncertain.   
 
With that said, I would like to either get a settlement wrapped up by the end of April 
so as to allow for construction during the ideal summer construction season or 
proceed with preparing for a court case at that time.   
 
 

300



 
 

 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
455 Mountain Village Blvd.  Suite A 
Mountain Village, Co 81435 
970-728-8000 
970-728-4342 Fax 
mvclerk@mtnvillage.org 

 
 
February 19, 2015       AGENDA  ITEM #19a 
 
Mr. Eric Heyboer 
Pollution Prevention Advisory Board 
Colorado Department of Public Health & Environment 
4300 Cherry Creek Drive South  
Denver, CO 80246-1530 
 
 RE: EcoAction Partners’  RREO 2015 Grant application  
 
Dear Mr. Heyboer: 
 
The Town of Mountain Village would like to submit this letter of support for EcoAction Partners’ RREO grant 
application. We have worked with EcoAction Partners since its inception in 2007 and are a major funder of the 
organization. As a government and as an interconnected, interdependent region, we recognized the value in 
having one organization that could address regional issues of sustainability. 
 
In response to a grant received in 2009 from the Colorado Governor’s Energy Office, EcoAction Partners brought 
together representatives from the regional governments, the local power utilities and interested citizens to form 
what is now called the Sneffels Energy Board. As part of that grant, a regional Sustainability Action Plan was 
completed. The establishment of a regional composting program was near the top of the desired outcomes in the 
plan.  
 
The Sneffels Regional Composting project has many layers of benefits to our region. It creates some much needed 
employment, and addresses several challenges that we face. It is difficult for small rural governments to fund a 
regional facility, yet we fully embrace the environmental benefits of reduced transport of materials, reduced landfill 
methane production and increased use of compost as a soil amendment - made locally, of local materials and 
purchased and used in large part by locals. It is a winning combination for our region. We are very pleased that the 
grant opportunity has expanded to promote just this sort of hub and spoke regional facility. 
 
We fully support the grant application and truly hope it is awarded as the project would be a major benefit to our 
rural/resort region. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Dan Jansen, Mayor 
 

 

301


	Agenda
	Agenda Item 3a TC Minutes
	Agenda Item 3b Work Session Minutes
	Agenda Item 3c Resolution to Convey a Portion of Lot 1003R-1 to the Telluride Hospital District
	Agenda Item 3d Resolution to Sell a Portion of Lot 1003R-1 to Belem Properties, Co. LLC
	Agenda Item 4 Modification of Premises for Mountain Town Get Down
	Agenda Item # 7 Memo
	Agenda Item # 7a Ordinance to Rezone and Transfer Density for 91 Workforce Apts
	Agenda Item # 7b Resolution Approving a Conditional Use Permit to Allow for the Devel of 91 Workforce Apts
	Agenda Item 8 Meadows Improvement Plan
	Agenda Item 11 Additional TCC Funds
	Agenda Item 12a1 Human Resources Report
	Agenda Item 12a2 Approval of the Drug and Alcohol Policy
	Agenda Item 12a3 Employee Handbook
	Agenda Item 12a4 Council Compensation
	Agenda Item 13 Work Session for CUP on Coonskin Ridge for Freestanding Antennas
	Agenda Item 14 BBQ Cart Memo
	Agenda Item 14 January Staff Memo
	Agenda Item 14 2/12/15 Email from Nick Pasquariello
	Agenda Item 15 Lot 38-50-51 Hotel Madeline Amended & Restated Hotel Deed Restriction
	Agenda Item 16a BAGAR
	Agenda Item 16b December 2014 Financials
	Agenda Item 17 Boulder's Zoning Violations Update
	Untitled
	Untitled



